
City of South Pasadena Page 1 
 

 
 

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA 
CITY COUNCIL  

  
AGENDA 

 
SPECIAL MEETING 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023 AT 5:30 PM 

 
AMEDEE O. “DICK” RICHARDS JR. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

1424 MISSION STREET, SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030 
 
 

NOTICE ON PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & ACCESSIBILITY 
The South Pasadena City Council Meeting will be conducted in-person from the Amedee O. “Dick” 
Richards, Jr. Council Chambers, located at 1424 Mission Street, South Pasadena, CA 91030. 
Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361 Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (e)(3), the City 
Council may conduct its meetings remotely and may be held via video conference. 
 
Public Comment regarding items on the Closed Session Meeting agenda will be taken at the 
beginning of the meeting. The public will be released from the meeting so that the City Council 
may convene Closed Session discussion of items allowed under the Government Code. Any 
reportable action taken in Closed Session will be reported by the City Attorney during the next 
Open Session meeting. A separate Zoom link will be provided for the Open Session for the public 
to attend. 
 
Public Participation may be made as follows:  

• In-Person Hybrid – Council Chambers, 1424 Mission Street, South Pasadena, CA 91030 
• Via Zoom – Meeting ID: 226 442 7248 
• Written Public Comment – written comment must be submitted by 12:00 p.m. the day of 

the meeting 
 
1.    Go to the Zoom website, https://zoom.us/join and enter the Zoom Meeting information; or 
2.    Click on the following unique Zoom meeting link: 
       https://us06web.zoom.us/j/2264427248?pwd=aEFuSGszQ2I5WjJkemloTms0RTlVUT09 or 
3.   You may listen to the meeting by calling: +1-669-900-6833 and entering the Zoom Meeting 

ID listed above and Passcode when prompted. 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor    Jon Primuth 

 
ROLL CALL: Mayor    Jon Primuth  
 Mayor Pro Tem  Evelyn G. Zneimer  
 Councilmember Jack Donovan 
 Councilmember  Michael A. Cacciotti  
 Councilmember  Janet Braun   
 
 

https://zoom.us/join
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/2264427248?pwd=aEFuSGszQ2I5WjJkemloTms0RTlVUT09


South Pasadena City Council      February 15, 2023 

 
 Page 2 

 
CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS 

 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: EXISTING LITIGATION 
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) 

 
1. Travelers Ins. v. So. Pasadena (LASC Case No. 22STCV22759) 
2. Fahren James and Victoria Patterson v. City of South Pasadena 

(CDCA Case No. 2:21-cv-08256-DSF-KK) 
3. Forbes v. So. Pasadena (LASC Case No. 22STCV30042) 
4. Albina Magdalena Ormeno v. City of South Pasadena; Mercury Overseas, Inc. 

(22AHCV01170) 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 
 
I declare under penalty of perjury that I posted this notice of agenda for the meeting to be held on 
February 15, 2023, on the bulletin board in the courtyard of City Hall located at 1414 Mission Street, 
South Pasadena, CA 91030, and on the City website as required by law, on the date listed below. 

 
02/9/2023                     /S/ 
Date        Desiree Jimenez, CMC, Chief City Clerk  
  

 

  

PUBLIC COMMENT 



City of South Pasadena Page 1 
  

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor  Jon Primuth 
  
ROLL CALL: Mayor  Jon Primuth 
 Mayor Pro Tem  Evelyn G. Zneimer 
 Councilmember  Jack Donovan 
 Councilmember Michael A. Cacciotti 
 Councilmember  Janet Braun 
   
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Councilmember  Janet Braun 
 
 

 

 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023, AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
AMEDEE O. “DICK” RICHARDS JR. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

1424 MISSION STREET, SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030 
 
 

South Pasadena City Council Statement of Civility 
As your elected governing board, we will treat each other, members of the public, and City employees 
with patience, civility, and courtesy as a model of the same behavior we wish to reflect in South Pasadena 
for the conduct of all City business and community participation. The decisions made tonight will be for 
the benefit of the South Pasadena community and not for personal gain. 
 

NOTICE ON PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & ACCESSIBILITY 
The South Pasadena City Council Meeting will be conducted in-person from the Amedee O. “Dick” 
Richards, Jr. Council Chambers, located at 1424 Mission Street, South Pasadena, CA 91030.  
 
The Meeting will be available:  

• In Person Hybrid – Council Chambers, 1424 Mission Street, South Pasadena, CA 91030 
• Live Broadcast via the City website – 
• http://www.spectrumstream.com/streaming/south_pasadena/live.cfm  
• Via Zoom – Webinar ID:  825 9999 2830 

        
To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public 
may observe the meeting via Zoom in one of the three methods below: 
 
1.    Go to the Zoom website, https://zoom.us/join and enter the Zoom Meeting information; or 
2.    Click on the following unique Zoom meeting link: 
       https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82599992830 or 
3.    You may listen to the meeting by calling: +1-669-900-6833 and entering the Zoom Meeting ID listed 

above. 
 

http://www.spectrumstream.com/streaming/south_pasadena/live.cfm
https://zoom.us/join
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82599992830


Regular Meeting Agenda                February 15, 2023 

 Page 2 

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES  
The City Council welcomes public input. Members of the public may comment on a non-agenda subject 
under the jurisdiction of the City Council or on an agenda item. Members of the public will have three 
minutes to address the City Council, however, the Mayor and City Council may adjust the time allotted, 
as needed. You may participate by one of the following options:  
 
Option 1: 
Participate in-person at the City Council Chambers located at 1424 Mission Street, South Pasadena, 
CA 91030. 
 
Option 2: 
Participate via Zoom.  
Public comment speakers are able to speak by going to the Zoom webinar controls and clicking on the 
“Raise Hand” icon. The Meeting Host will be notified that a hand has been raised and speakers will 
have their microphone un-muted by the Host during the appropriate Public Comment period. 
 
Option 3: 
Email public comment to ccpubliccomment@southpasadenaca.gov.  
Public Comments received in writing will not be read aloud at the meeting, but will be part of the meeting 
record. Written public comments will be uploaded to the City website for public viewing under Additional 
Documents. When submitting a public comment, please make sure to include the following:  
1) Name (optional), and  
2) Agenda item you are submitting public comment on.  
3) Submit by no later than 12:00 p.m., on the day of the City Council meeting. Correspondence received 
after this time will be distributed the following business day. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  The Mayor may exercise the Chair's discretion, subject to the approval of the majority 
of the City Council, to adjust public comment time limit to less than three minutes, as needed.  
 
Pursuant to State law, the City Council may not discuss or take action on issues not on the meeting 
agenda, except that members of the City Council or staff may briefly respond to statements made or 
questions posed by persons exercising public testimony rights (Government Code Section 54954.2). 
Staff may be asked to follow up on such items.  

 

CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
1. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT – GENERAL (NON-AGENDA ITEMS) 
 General Public Comment will be limited to 30 minutes at the beginning of the agenda. If there are 

speakers remaining in the queue, they will be heard at the end of the meeting. Only Speakers 
who submit a Public Comment card within the first 30 minutes of Public Comment period will be 
queued up to speak. 

 

 
3. STAFF INTRODUCTION 
 

Finance Department: 
John Downs, Interim Finance Director 
 

RECOGNITION / INTRODUCTION 

mailto:ccpubliccomment@southpasadenaca.gov


Regular Meeting Agenda                February 15, 2023 

 Page 3 

 
Community Development: 
Jose Martinez, Planning Counter Technician 

 

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
4. REORDERING OF, ADDITIONS, OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
OPPORTUNITY TO COMMENT ON CONSENT CALENDAR 
Items listed under the Consent Calendar are considered by the City Manager to be routine in nature and will be enacted 
by one motion unless a public comment has been received or Councilmember requests otherwise, in which case the 
item will be removed for separate consideration. Any motion relating to an ordinance or a resolution shall also waive 
the reading of the ordinance or resolution and include its introduction or adoption as appropriate. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF PREPAID WARRANTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $12,534.42; GENERAL 

CITY WARRANTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $533,501.77; VOIDS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
($1,363.94); ONLINE PAYMENTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $100,262.26; PAYROLL IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $966,864.03 
 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the Warrants as presented. 
 

6. MONTHLY INVESTMENT REPORT FOR DECEMBER 2022 
 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the City Council receive and file the Monthly Investment Report for 
December 2022. 

 
7. APPROVAL OF A PURCHASE ORDER TO D&R OFFICE WORKS, INC. FOR 

LIBRARY WORKSTATIONS AND APPROPRIATE $10,000 FROM GENERAL FUND 
RESERVES 
 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
1. Appropriate $10,000 to the Library Building Improvements Account No. 101-8010-8011-

8500 from the General Fund Reserves;  
2. Approve a purchase order to D&R Office Works, Inc. for the purchase of eight (8) 

workstations for Library staff, including delivery, assembly, and sales tax; and  
3. Authorize the City Manager to execute the purchase order with D&R Office Works, Inc. in an 

amount not to exceed $44,000, including the $42,221.46 quoted price and a $1,778.54 
contingency. 

  



Regular Meeting Agenda                February 15, 2023 

 Page 4 

8. ADOPTION OF A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN UPDATED CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN AND ANNEXES 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SOUTH 
PASADENA, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING AN UPDATED EMERGENCY 
OPERATIONS PLAN AND ANNEXES 

 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt the updated Emergency Operations Plan and 
associated Annexes. 
 

 
9. PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE OBJECTIONS OR PROTESTS TO THE VEGETATION 

MANAGEMENT PROGRAM REGARDING THE ABATEMENT OF WEEDS, BRUSH, RUBBISH 
AND REFUSE UPON OR IN FRONT OF SPECIFIED PROPERTY IN THE CITY AND 
AUTHORIZING BY MINUTE ORDER THE ABATEMENT OF HAZARDOUS VEGETATION 

 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the City Council, after holding a Public Hearing and receiving public 
testimony and hearing any objections or protests to the procedures for abating brush and native 
vegetation fire hazards identified in Resolution No.7801, adopt by motion an order directing the 
abatement of hazardous vegetation.   

 

 
10. PRESENTATION OF THE OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) ACTUARIAL 

STUDY BY FOSTER & FOSTER 
 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the City Council receive and file the presentation of the Other Post-
Employment Benefits Liability Actuarial Study by Foster & Foster. 

 
11. PRESENTATION OF THE ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR FISCAL 

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022  
 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the annual audit reports for the year ended 
June 30, 2022. 
 

12. TERMINATION OF EMERGENCY ORDER EFFECTIVE MARCH 1, 2023; REMOTE 
TELECONFERENCING MEETING OF LEGISLATIVE BODIES; CONTINUATION OF 
PARTICIPATION BY THE PUBLIC THROUGH REMOTE ACCESS 

 
Recommendation 
The Agenda Report will be provided under separate cover. 

  

PUBLIC HEARING  

ACTION / DISCUSSION  



Regular Meeting Agenda                February 15, 2023 

 Page 5 

13. FINANCE DEPARTMENT CURRENT STATUS UPDATE AND ORGANIZATIONAL 
ASSESSMENT 

 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the City Council receive and file a report and presentation on the Finance 
Department Current Status Update/ Organizational Assessment. 
 

INFORMATIONAL REPORT 
 

14. PRESENTATION OF THE CITY'S INVESTMENT BY MORGAN STANLEY AND WESTERN 
ASSET MANAGEMENT 
 
Recommendation  
It is recommended that the City Council receive and file the presentation of the City's  
Investment by Morgan Stanley and Western Asset Management. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT – CONTINUED  
 

15. CONTINUED PUBLIC COMMENT – GENERAL 
This time is reserved for speakers in the Public Comment queue not heard during the first 30 
minutes of Item No. 2. No new speakers will be accepted at this time. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
16. COUNCILMEMBER COMMUNICATIONS 

Time allotted to speak per Councilmember is three minutes. Additional time will be allotted at the 
end of the City Council meeting agenda, if necessary. 
 

17. CITY MANAGER COMMUNICATIONS 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

FOR YOUR INFORMATION 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 1, 2023 Regular City Council Meeting  7:00 p.m. 
March 15, 2023 Regular City Council Meeting 7:00 p.m. 
April 5, 2023 Canceled due to Spring Break 7:00 p.m. 



Regular Meeting Agenda                February 15, 2023 

 Page 6 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO AGENDA DOCUMENTS AND BROADCASTING OF MEETINGS 
City Council meeting agenda packets, any agenda related documents, and additional documents are 
available online for public viewing on the City’s website:  
www.southpasadenaca.gov/CityCouncilMeetings2023 
 
Regular meetings are live streamed via the internet at: 
http://www.spectrumstream.com/streaming/south_pasadena/live.cfm 
 
AGENDA NOTIFICATION SUBSCRIPTION 
If you wish to receive an agenda email notification please contact the City Clerk’s Division via email at 
CityClerk@southpasadenaca.gov or call (626) 403-7230.  
 

ACCOMMODATIONS 
 The City of South Pasadena wishes to make all of its public meetings accessible to the public. If 

special assistance is needed to participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk's Division at 
(626) 403-7230 or cityclerk@southpasadenaca.gov. Upon request, this agenda will be made available 
in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities. Notification at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility 
to the meeting (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 
I declare under penalty of perjury that I posted this notice of agenda for the meeting to be held on 
February 15, 2023, on the bulletin board in the courtyard of City Hall located at 1414 Mission Street, 
South Pasadena, CA 91030, and on the City website as required by law, on the date listed below. 
 
02/9/2023                     /S/ 
Date      Desiree Jimenez, CMC, Chief City Clerk  

 

 

http://www.southpasadenaca.gov/CityCouncilMeetings2023
http://www.spectrumstream.com/streaming/south_pasadena/live.cfm
mailto:CityClerk@southpasadenaca.gov
mailto:cityclerk@southpasadenaca.gov


5

5 - 1

DATE: 

FROM: 

PREPARED BY: 

City Council 
Agenda Report 

February 15, 2023 

Armine Chaparyan, City Manager ~ 
Hsiulee Tran, Deputy Finance Director 

ITEM NO. --

SUBJECT: Approval of Prepaid Warrants in the Amount of $12,534.42; 
General City Warrants in the Amount of $533,501.77; Voids in 
the Amount of ($1,363.94); Online Payments in the Amount of 
$100,262.26; Payroll in the Amount of $966,864.03 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the Warrants as presented. 

Fiscal Impact 
Prepaid Warrants: 

Warrant # 315926-315932 $ 4,741.74 
ACH $ 7,792.68 
Voids $ 0 

General City Warrants: 
Warrant# 315933-316014 $ 339,259.92 
ACH $ 194,241.85 
Voids $ (1,363.94) 

Payroll Period Ending: 01/26/2023 $ 1,521.75 
Payroll Period Ending: 02/03/2023 $ 965,342.28 
Wire Transfers Out-To (LAIF) $ 0 
Wire Transfers In - From (LAIF) $ 0 
Wire Transfers (RSA) $ 0 
Wire Transfers Out- To (Acct# 2413) $ 0 
Wire Transfers Out- To (Acct# 1936) $ 0 
Online Payments $ 100,262.26 

Prepaid Warrants $ 0 
General City Warrants $ 0 

Total $ 1,611,798.54 



Approval of Warrants 
February 1, 2023  
Page 2 of 3

Commission Review and Recommendation 
This matter was not reviewed by a Commission. 

Key Performance Indicators 
This item is in line with the Finance Department’s Key Performance Indicators identified 
in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget. The Accounts Payable process is completely 
digital and routed via a workflow process. This cuts down staff time significantly, as well 
as streamlines a previously strenuous process. This process also falls in line with the 
City’s environmental strategies by reducing the amount of paper used.  

Explanation of Terms 
Warrant – Directs the Finance Department to pay a sum of money out of the City’s 

funds to bearer of claim/invoice (named individual, company) also known as a payable. 

The warrants (payments) are only released after City Council approval. 

Warrant Summary – Summarizes all of the payments prepared during a specific cycle.  

The beginning of the cycle is the period after the last set of warrants were approved by 

Council and released as payment. The end of the cycle is the last date of invoice 

processing.  All the warrants for the current cycle are summarized and the detail of 

warrants provided to Council for review and approval.  

Prepaid Warrant List - A Prepaid Warrant directs the Finance Department to pay a sum 

of money out of the City’s funds to bearer of claim/invoice (named individual, company) 

also known as a payable.  The Prepaid Warrants (payments) are released prior to City 

Council approval, however reported to City Council as a Prepaid.  Prepayments are 

generally time sensitive and would incur additional charges if not paid within a specific 

time frame. 

General City Warrant List – Detailed listing of all payments made for a specific cycle. 

The beginning of the cycle is the period after the last set of warrants were approved by 

Council and released as payment. The end of the cycle is the last date of invoice 

processing. 

Online Payments – Payments made online.  These are typically for time sensitive 

utilities, credit card payments, and sometimes require the use of the payee’s portal 

(SCE, So Cal Gas, Amazon, etc.). 

Voids – Checks that were issued and voided.  Examples of such instances would be 

lost checks that were mailed out.  Checks that were on a warrant that did not get 

approved by Council. 

Payroll – All payments made related to payroll, such as payroll taxes, retirement 

benefits, CalPERS, Garnishments, payroll etc. 

5 - 2



Approval of Warrants 
February 1, 2023  
Page 3 of 3

Attachments: 
1. Warrant Summary
2. Prepaid Warrant List
3. General City Warrant List
4. Online Payments
5. Voids
6. Payroll

5 - 3



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

5 - 4



ATTACHMENT 1 
Warrant Summary 

5 - 5



 
THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 
LEFT BLANK 

5 - 6



City of South Pasadena

Demand/Warrant Register Date 2/15/2023

Recap by fund Fund No.

Prepaid Written

General Fund 101 1,549.29 334,506.81 

Insurance Fund 103 - - 

Street Improvement Program 104 - 1,042.75 

Facilities & Equip.Cap. Fund 105 - - 

Programs and Projects 107 - 320.00 

Local Transit Return "A" 205 - 2,984.92 

Local Transit Return "C" 207 - 1,636.35 

TEA/Metro 208 - - 

Sewer Fund 210 - 1,807.60 

CTC Traffic Improvement 211 - - 

Rogan HR5294 Grant 214 - 74,489.86 

Street Lighting Fund 215 - 50,670.93 

Public, Education & Govt Fund 217 - - 

Clean Air Act Fund 218 - - 

Business Improvement Tax 220 - - 

Gold Line Mitigation Fund 223 - - 

Mission Meridian Public Garage 226 - 804.13 

Housing Authority Fund 228 - - 

State Gas Tax 230 4,583.12 10,241.71 

County Park Bond Fund 232 - 4,138.96 

Measure R 233 - - 

Measure M 236 - - 

Road Maint & Rehab (SB1) 237 - - 

MSRC Grant Fund 238 - - 

Measure W 239 - 3,424.63 

Measure H 241 - - 

Prop C Exchange Fund 242 - - 

Bike & Pedestrian Paths 245 - - 

BTA Grants 248 - - 

Golden Street Grant 249 - - 

Capital Growth Fund 255 - 8,276.65 

CDBG 260 - - 

Asset Forfeiture 270 - - 

Police Grants - State 272 - - 

Homeland Security Grant 274 - - 

Park Impact Fees 275 - - 

Historic Preservation Grant 276 - - 

HSIP Grant 277 - - 

Arroyo Seco Golf Course 295 - - 

Sewer Capital Projects Fund 310 - - 

Water Fund 500 - 16,278.61 

Water Efficiency Fund 503 - 10,505.92 

2016 Water Revenue Bonds Fund 505 - - 

SRF Loan - Water 506 - - 

Water & Sewer Impact Fee 510 - - 

Public Financing Authority 550 - - 

Payroll Clearing Fund 700 6,402.01 12,371.94 

- 

Column Totals: 12,534.42 533,501.77 

Recap by fund Fund No.

Prepaid Written

RSA 227 - - 

RSA Report Totals: - - 

City Report Totals: 546,036.19 

Payroll Period Ending: 01/26/2023 1,521.75 

Payroll Period Ending: 02/03/2023 965,342.28 

Wire Transfer Out - To LAIF - 

Wire Transfer In - From LAIF - 

Wire Transfer - RSA - 

Wire Transfer Out - To Acct. # 2413 - 

Wire Transfer Out - To Acct. # 1936 - 

Online Payments 100,262.26 

Voids - Prepaid - 

Voids - General Warrant (1,363.94) 

Grand Report Total: 1,611,798.54 

Amounts

Jon Primuth, Mayor

Desiree Jimenez, Chief City Clerk

Amounts

Hsiulee Tran, Deputy Finance Director

5 - 7



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

5 - 8



ATTACHMENT 2 
Prepaid Warrant List

5 - 9



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

5 - 10



Accounts Payable

Check Detail

User: ealvarez

Printed: 02/06/2023 -  3:54PM

Check Number Check Date Amount

CSD3014 - Ca. State Disbursement Unit  

 315926 01/31/2023

Inv PR 01/06/2023

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/06/2023  814.15Garnishment Case # FAMSS-1406906

Inv PR 01/06/2023 Total  814.15

Inv PR 01/20/2023

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/20/2023  814.15Garnishment Case # FAMSS-1406906

Inv PR 01/20/2023 Total  814.15

Inv PR 12/23/2022

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/23/2022  814.15Garnishment Case # FAMSS-1406906

Inv PR 12/23/2022 Total  814.15

 315926 Total:  2,442.45

 2,442.45CSD3014 - Ca. State Disbursement Unit Total:

CMRSFP - CMRS-FP  

 315927 01/31/2023

Inv 600102810

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/17/2023  500.00Funds for Library Postage machine

Inv 600102810 Total  500.00

 315927 Total:  500.00

 500.00CMRSFP - CMRS-FP Total:

DTV5012 - DIRECTV  

 315928 01/31/2023

Inv 068653046221229

Line Item Date Line Item Description

Page 1AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:54 PM)

5 - 11



Check Number Check Date Amount

12/29/2022  103.23068653046 Period 12/28/22 - 1/27/23

Inv 068653046221229 Total  103.23

 315928 Total:  103.23

 103.23DTV5012 - DIRECTV Total:

FRNCPOST - FRANCOTYP-POSTALIA, INC.  

 315929 01/31/2023

Inv RI105609131

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/04/2023  108.06FP Mailing Solutions Lease

Inv RI105609131 Total  108.06

 315929 Total:  108.06

 108.06FRNCPOST - FRANCOTYP-POSTALIA, INC. Total:

LEISGMAN - Goodman, Leisa  

 315930 01/31/2023

Inv 1054

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/06/2023  240.00100 Library note cards and envelopes

Inv 1054 Total  240.00

 315930 Total:  240.00

 240.00LEISGMAN - Goodman, Leisa Total:

LATS2011 - Los Angeles Times  

 315931 01/31/2023

Inv 10004495887

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/30/2022  598.00Subscription Renewal to the Los Angeles Times

Inv 10004495887 Total  598.00

 315931 Total:  598.00

 598.00LATS2011 - Los Angeles Times Total:

VRMZ7000 - Munoz, Valerie  

 315932 01/31/2023

Page 2AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:54 PM)

5 - 12



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv PR 01/06/2023

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/06/2023  750.00Garnishment

Inv PR 01/06/2023 Total  750.00

 315932 Total:  750.00

 750.00VRMZ7000 - Munoz, Valerie Total:

SSDV2018 - Sandoval, Sheila  

 0 01/31/2023

Inv PR 01/06/2023

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/06/2023  956.03Garnishment

01/06/2023  120.21Garnishment

Inv PR 01/06/2023 Total  1,076.24

Inv PR 01/20/2023

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/20/2023  956.03Garnishment

01/20/2023  110.63Garnishment

Inv PR 01/20/2023 Total  1,066.66

Inv PR 12/23/2022

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/23/2022  110.63Garnishment

12/23/2022  956.03Garnishment

Inv PR 12/23/2022 Total  1,066.66

 0 Total:  3,209.56

 3,209.56SSDV2018 - Sandoval, Sheila Total:

VUL6601 - Vulcan Materials Company  

 0 01/31/2023

Inv 73362263

Line Item Date Line Item Description

08/03/2022  2,838.48PW Street Division: Asphalt cold mix for street repairs

Inv 73362263 Total  2,838.48

Inv 73432486

Line Item Date Line Item Description

10/05/2022  1,234.80PW Street Division: Liquid emulsion for asphalt roadway repairs

Page 3AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:54 PM)

5 - 13



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv 73432486 Total  1,234.80

Inv 73472270

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/09/2022  509.84PW Street Division: Fill sand for sandbags

Inv 73472270 Total  509.84

 0 Total:  4,583.12

 4,583.12VUL6601 - Vulcan Materials Company Total:

 12,534.42Total:

Page 4AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:54 PM)

5 - 14



ATTACHMENT 3 General 
City Warrant List

5 - 15



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

5 - 16



Accounts Payable

Check Detail

User: ealvarez

Printed: 02/06/2023 -  3:55PM

Check Number Check Date Amount

AKGSHFLP - Akin Gump Strauss Hauer & Feld LLP  

 315933 02/15/2023

Inv 2024247

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/18/2023  3,588.00Legal Services Rendered: 10/31/2022

Inv 2024247 Total  3,588.00

Inv 2024248

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/18/2023  4,602.00Legal Services Rendered: 11/30/2022

Inv 2024248 Total  4,602.00

Inv 2024249

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/18/2023  7,410.00Legal Services Rendered: 12/31/2022

Inv 2024249 Total  7,410.00

 315933 Total:  15,600.00

 15,600.00AKGSHFLP - Akin Gump Strauss Hauer & Feld LLP Total:

ACMT2920 - All City Management Services, Inc.  

 315934 02/15/2023

Inv 82448

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/17/2023  9,161.19Crossing Guard Services: December 11-24, 2022

Inv 82448 Total  9,161.19

 315934 Total:  9,161.19

 9,161.19ACMT2920 - All City Management Services, Inc. Total:

ALL0197 - All Star Fire Equipment, Inc.  

 315935 02/15/2023

Inv 245261

Line Item Date Line Item Description

Page 1AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 17



Check Number Check Date Amount

01/30/2023  710.56Fire Safety Clothing & Equipment - Wildland Boots

Inv 245261 Total  710.56

Inv 245290

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/23/2023  395.80Fire Safety Clothing & Equipment - Bunker Boots

Inv 245290 Total  395.80

 315935 Total:  1,106.36

 1,106.36ALL0197 - All Star Fire Equipment, Inc. Total:

AMAZONCP - Amazon Capital Services, Inc.  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 14T4-DQGD-N4P6

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/30/2023  280.86City Manager's Office Supplies

Inv 14T4-DQGD-N4P6 Total  280.86

Inv 17RV-PC3H-MJT3

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/16/2023  30.84Wireless Keyboard & Mouse

Inv 17RV-PC3H-MJT3 Total  30.84

Inv 19K9-1TQD-NTKW

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/23/2023  128.51Books for Library Collection

Inv 19K9-1TQD-NTKW Total  128.51

Inv 1C3K-FRWW-NQ6V

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/23/2023  20.37Senior Center Luna New Year supplies

Inv 1C3K-FRWW-NQ6V Total  20.37

Inv 1M3J-NTTX-LY9R

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/30/2023  121.21Fire - Oil cleaner, cleaning kit

01/30/2023  282.81Fire - Sandbags

Inv 1M3J-NTTX-LY9R Total  404.02

Inv 1PJH-4T34-P3GQ

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/30/2023  55.32Fire - magnetic wire pulling system

Page 2AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 18



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv 1PJH-4T34-P3GQ Total  55.32

Inv 1RHQ-H9K7-MP4H

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/16/2023  35.27Towels for Staff Break room

Inv 1RHQ-H9K7-MP4H Total  35.27

Inv 1T71-7FN3-M3PC

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  122.62Rec. and Camp Med cleaning supplies. Senior Center Lunar event

01/26/2023  18.62Rec. and Camp Med cleaning supplies. Senior Center Lunar event

01/26/2023  61.96Rec. and Camp Med cleaning supplies. Senior Center Lunar event

Inv 1T71-7FN3-M3PC Total  203.20

Inv 1WHH-FJL3-63M4

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/30/2023  996.15Sandbags for floods

01/30/2023  41.51Fire - wheel chock, ice bags name plate

Inv 1WHH-FJL3-63M4 Total  1,037.66

 0 Total:  2,196.05

 2,196.05AMAZONCP - Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Total:

AKDC9265 - Ashok Kumar Dhingra  

 315936 02/15/2023

Inv CSP 2023-01

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/19/2023  5,856.00Seismic and Structrual Evaluation

Inv CSP 2023-01 Total  5,856.00

 315936 Total:  5,856.00

 5,856.00AKDC9265 - Ashok Kumar Dhingra Total:

RatPactI - ASM Industrial Corp.  

 315937 02/15/2023

Inv 13831

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/02/2022  500.00Monthly Gopher Abatement for Dec 2022-Arroyo Park

Inv 13831 Total  500.00

Page 3AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 19



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv 14151

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/06/2023  500.00Monthly Gopher Abatement for Jan 2022-Arroyo Park

Inv 14151 Total  500.00

 315937 Total:  1,000.00

 1,000.00RatPactI - ASM Industrial Corp. Total:

AT&T5006 - AT&T  

 315938 02/15/2023

Inv 130464796

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/17/2023  90.24AN 130464796 (1/18/23-2/17/23)U-Verse Internet 18 Mbps/1.5 Mbps

Inv 130464796 Total  90.24

 315938 Total:  90.24

 315939 02/15/2023

Inv 331841-08023436

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/07/2023  35.09AN331 841-0802 343 6(12/8/22-1/7/23)1. Cir. Alarm RD at Fremont

Inv 331841-08023436 Total  35.09

Inv 626441-64973570

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/13/2023  1,088.71AN 626 441-6497 357 0 (1/13/23-2/12/23) 1 MBL FX to Verdugo alt.

Inv 626441-64973570 Total  1,088.71

 315939 Total:  1,123.80

 315940 02/15/2023

Inv 000019392820

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/20/2023  16,579.78AN 9391062308(12/20/22-1/19/23) City Landlines

Inv 000019392820 Total  16,579.78

Inv 000019393146

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/20/2023  66.03CALNET 9391081369 12/20/22-1/19/23

Inv 000019393146 Total  66.03

Page 4AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 20



Check Number Check Date Amount

 315940 Total:  16,645.81

 17,859.85ATCN9011 - AT&T Total:

CIN4011 - AT&T Mobility  

 315941 02/15/2023

Inv 287014917916x01

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/08/2023  635.97AN 287014917916 (12/9/22-1/8/23)PD lpads + SPASMOB Library & Fin

Inv 287014917916x01 Total  635.97

Inv 287288006612X12

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/02/2022  82.40Public Works Cell Phones -DEC 2022

12/02/2022  945.82Public Works Cell Phones -DEC 2022

12/02/2022  158.10Public Works Cell Phones -DEC 2022

12/02/2022  236.76Public Works Cell Phones -DEC 2022

Inv 287288006612X12 Total  1,423.08

 315941 Total:  2,059.05

 2,059.05CIN4011 - AT&T Mobility Total:

HELBCN - Bacon, Helen  

 315942 02/15/2023

Inv 128250

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/25/2023  129.00Refund of recreation class due to cancelation by instructor.

Inv 128250 Total  129.00

 315942 Total:  129.00

 129.00HELBCN - Bacon, Helen Total:

BAK0369 - Baker & Taylor Books  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 2037129981

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/11/2023  1,321.50Library Books

Inv 2037129981 Total  1,321.50

Inv 2037161524

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/12/2023  476.59Library Books

Page 5AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 21



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv 2037161524 Total  476.59

Inv 2037163639

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/11/2023  240.91Library Books

Inv 2037163639 Total  240.91

Inv 2037201823

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/05/2023  83.68Library Books

Inv 2037201823 Total  83.68

Inv 2037206021

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/11/2023  43.97Library Books

Inv 2037206021 Total  43.97

Inv 2037223331

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/04/2023  459.02Library Books

Inv 2037223331 Total  459.02

Inv 2037229334

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/04/2023  49.38Library Books

Inv 2037229334 Total  49.38

Inv 2037237086

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/10/2023  258.42Library Books

Inv 2037237086 Total  258.42

 0 Total:  2,933.47

 2,933.47BAK0369 - Baker & Taylor Books Total:

BAK0366 - Baker & Taylor Entertainment  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv H63626660

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/10/2023  419.73DVDs/CDs

Inv H63626660 Total  419.73

Page 6AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 22



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv H63721260

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/12/2023  112.41DVDs/CDs

Inv H63721260 Total  112.41

Inv H63797350

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/16/2023  121.87DVDs/CDs

Inv H63797350 Total  121.87

 0 Total:  654.01

 654.01BAK0366 - Baker & Taylor Entertainment Total:

WON6400 - Bob Wondries Ford  

 315943 02/15/2023

Inv 639050

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  741.35Inspection on Veh #80 - replace spark plugs & helicoil

Inv 639050 Total  741.35

 315943 Total:  741.35

 741.35WON6400 - Bob Wondries Ford Total:

DABN8267 - Bohan, Diana  101-8030-8021-8267-000

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 9228

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  191.20Contract Instructor-Jan Senior monthly Yoga class

Inv 9228 Total  191.20

 0 Total:  191.20

 191.20DABN8267 - Bohan, Diana Total:

NCOBORLD - Borland, Nicola  

 315944 02/15/2023

Inv 128254

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/25/2023  258.00Refund recreation class due to cancelation by Instructor.

Page 7AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 23



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv 128254 Total  258.00

 315944 Total:  258.00

 258.00NCOBORLD - Borland, Nicola Total:

JSHBRDEN - Breeden, Josh  

 315945 02/15/2023

Inv 128335

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/24/2023  90.00Refund of Gazebo Reservation due to weather.

Inv 128335 Total  90.00

 315945 Total:  90.00

 90.00JSHBRDEN - Breeden, Josh Total:

BRMR8267 - BRIT West Soccer  

 315946 02/15/2023

Inv 9243

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/20/2023  202.80Contract Instructor for Soccer Classes- Tiny Pros 2-3.5-SA

Inv 9243 Total  202.80

Inv 9245

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/20/2023  135.20Contract Instructor for Soccer Classes- Tiny Pros 2-3.5-SU

Inv 9245 Total  135.20

Inv 9249

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/20/2023  405.60Contract Instructor for Soccer Classes- Tiny Pros 3.5-5-SA

Inv 9249 Total  405.60

Inv 9278

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/20/2023  202.80Contract Instructor for Soccer Classes- Club Pros 5-7SA

Inv 9278 Total  202.80

Inv 9279

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/20/2023  270.40Contract Instructor for Soccer Classes- Club Pros 5-7 SU

Inv 9279 Total  270.40

Page 8AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 24



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv 9305

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/20/2023  135.20Contract Instructor for Soccer Classes- Club Pros 7-12 SA

Inv 9305 Total  135.20

Inv 9307

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/20/2023  135.20Contract Instructor for Soccer Classes- Club Pros 7-12 SU

Inv 9307 Total  135.20

Inv 9398

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/20/2023  743.60Contract Instructor for Soccer Classes- Tiny Pros 3.5-5-SU

Inv 9398 Total  743.60

 315946 Total:  2,230.80

 2,230.80BRMR8267 - BRIT West Soccer Total:

PMAB8021 - Budka, Pamela Avry  

 315947 02/15/2023

Inv 9191

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  64.00Contract Class Instructor- January Senior Meditation Class

Inv 9191 Total  64.00

Inv 9196

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  56.00Contract Class Instructor- Jan Senior Meditation Walk-In Class

Inv 9196 Total  56.00

Inv 9476

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  48.00Contract Class Instructor- January Senior  Chair YogaClass

Inv 9476 Total  48.00

Inv 9481

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  68.00Contract Class Instructor- Jan Senior Chair Yoga Walk-In Class

Inv 9481 Total  68.00

Page 9AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 25



Check Number Check Date Amount

 315947 Total:  236.00

 236.00PMAB8021 - Budka, Pamela Avry Total:

DEP5072 - CA Dept of Transportation  

 315948 02/15/2023

Inv SL210623

Line Item Date Line Item Description

04/21/2021  1,171.39Signals & Lighting Shared Cost with Caltrans-Jan-March 2021

Inv SL210623 Total  1,171.39

Inv SL230036

Line Item Date Line Item Description

10/25/2022  2,247.38Signals & Lighting Shared Cost with Caltrans-July-Sep 2022

Inv SL230036 Total  2,247.38

 315948 Total:  3,418.77

 3,418.77DEP5072 - CA Dept of Transportation Total:

CAN0607 - Cantu Graphics Inc.  

 315949 02/15/2023

Inv 21232

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/13/2022  33.02Business Cards

Inv 21232 Total  33.02

Inv 21283

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/13/2023  277.83Guide to Doing Business Booklet

Inv 21283 Total  277.83

Inv 21293

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/25/2023  131.20Police Department posters

Inv 21293 Total  131.20

Inv 22196

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/30/2023  293.82Poster for Community Development

Inv 22196 Total  293.82

Page 10AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 26



Check Number Check Date Amount

 315949 Total:  735.87

 735.87CAN0607 - Cantu Graphics Inc. Total:

MATTCHAG - Chang, Matt  

 315950 02/15/2023

Inv 0076977/0077456

Line Item Date Line Item Description

10/02/2023  70.00Conference Parking Reimbursement

Inv 0076977/0077456 Total  70.00

Inv 2022246050

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/10/2023  75.00Reimbursement for LA County Recorder Posting.

Inv 2022246050 Total  75.00

 315950 Total:  145.00

 145.00MATTCHAG - Chang, Matt Total:

TIM4011 - Charter Communications  

 315951 02/15/2023

Inv 0357905010523

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/24/2023  130.52Acct# 8448 30 008 0357905 (1/05/23 - 02/04/23)

Inv 0357905010523 Total  130.52

 315951 Total:  130.52

 130.52TIM4011 - Charter Communications Total:

STPHCHCY - Chauncey, Stephen A  

 315952 02/15/2023

Inv 12/06-12/09/22

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  170.00Radar/Lidar Training for Officer Godoy 12/06-12/09/22

Inv 12/06-12/09/22 Total  170.00

 315952 Total:  170.00

 170.00STPHCHCY - Chauncey, Stephen A Total:

Page 11AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 27



Check Number Check Date Amount

CHE6010 - Chem Pro Laboratory, Inc.  

 315953 02/15/2023

Inv IN95611

Line Item Date Line Item Description

10/27/2022  153.00Monthly cleaning and treatment of City cooling tower-Oct 2022

Inv IN95611 Total  153.00

Inv IN96723

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/01/2022  153.00Monthly cleaning and treatment of City cooling tower-Nov 2022

Inv IN96723 Total  153.00

Inv IN99693

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/01/2022  153.00Monthly cleaning and treatment of City cooling tower-Dec 2022

Inv IN99693 Total  153.00

 315953 Total:  459.00

 459.00CHE6010 - Chem Pro Laboratory, Inc. Total:

CINTAS - Cintas CORP No. 2  

 315954 02/15/2023

Inv 4143565381

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/16/2023  88.63Uniform Cleaning Services - January 2023

01/16/2023  18.72Uniform Cleaning Services - January 2023

01/16/2023  80.85Uniform Cleaning Services - January 2023

01/30/2023  35.49Uniform Cleaning Services - January 2023

01/16/2023  30.24Uniform Cleaning Services - January 2023

Inv 4143565381 Total  253.93

Inv 5140225644

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/10/2023  3.94First Aid Cabinets and PW Vehicle Kits- Monthly Check Jan 2023

01/10/2023  3.94First Aid Cabinets and PW Vehicle Kits- Monthly Check Jan2022

01/10/2023  3.94First Aid Cabinets and PW Vehicle Kits- Monthly Check Jan 2023

01/10/2023  3.94First Aid Cabinets and PW Vehicle Kits- Monthly Check Jan2022

01/10/2023  3.94First Aid Cabinets and PW Vehicle Kits- Monthly Check Jan2022

01/10/2023  3.94First Aid Cabinets and PW Vehicle Kits- Monthly Check Jan2022

01/10/2023  3.94First Aid Cabinets and PW Vehicle Kits- Monthly Check Jan2022

01/10/2023  3.95First Aid Cabinets and PW Vehicle Kits- Monthly Check Jan2022

Inv 5140225644 Total  31.53

Inv 9206366319

Line Item Date Line Item Description

Page 12AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 28



Check Number Check Date Amount

01/17/2023  153.25First Aid Cabinet & AED Monthly Servicing - FY2022-2023

Inv 9206366319 Total  153.25

 315954 Total:  438.71

 438.71CINTAS - Cintas CORP No. 2 Total:

ALPD4010 - City of Alhambra Police Department  

 315955 02/15/2023

Inv SP12-2022

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  2,580.00Inmate housing for December 2022

Inv SP12-2022 Total  2,580.00

 315955 Total:  2,580.00

 2,580.00ALPD4010 - City of Alhambra Police Department Total:

PAS4012 - City of Pasadena  

 315956 02/15/2023

Inv 30020474

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/17/2023  270.60Forensic services 22-10733

Inv 30020474 Total  270.60

 315956 Total:  270.60

 270.60PAS4012 - City of Pasadena Total:

SPMN3010 - City of South Pasadena  

 315957 02/15/2023

Inv 19126 - 1/18/23

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/25/2023  439.33Water utility bill for Garfield park restrooms.11/14/22-01/10/23

Inv 19126 - 1/18/23 Total  439.33

 315957 Total:  439.33

 439.33SPMN3010 - City of South Pasadena Total:

SOU5400 - City of South Pasadena Finance Petty Cash  

 315958 02/15/2023

Page 13AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 29



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv FIN-PettyCash

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/31/2023  37.01Petty Cash Reimbursement

01/31/2023  145.62Petty Cash Reimbursement

01/31/2023  84.70Petty Cash Reimbursement

01/31/2023  236.31Petty Cash Reimbursement

01/31/2023  62.00Petty Cash Reimbursement

01/31/2023  80.16Petty Cash Reimbursement

01/31/2023  11.98Petty Cash Reimbursement

01/31/2023  60.00Petty Cash Reimbursement

Inv FIN-PettyCash Total  717.78

 315958 Total:  717.78

 717.78SOU5400 - City of South Pasadena Finance Petty Cash Total:

SOU5340 - City of South Pasadena-Library Petty Cash  

 315959 02/15/2023

Inv 01/03/2023

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/03/2023  22.052023 Rose Parade programs

Inv 01/03/2023 Total  22.05

Inv 01/12/2023

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/12/2023  4.16Postage to ship item to Bob Baker Marionette Theatre

Inv 01/12/2023 Total  4.16

Inv 01/20/2023

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/20/2023  21.53Blu Ray for Library Collection

Inv 01/20/2023 Total  21.53

Inv 08/18/2022

Line Item Date Line Item Description

08/18/2022  19.85Comics for Library Collection

Inv 08/18/2022 Total  19.85

Inv 09/07/2022

Line Item Date Line Item Description

09/07/2022  2.99Refreshments for consultant meeting

Inv 09/07/2022 Total  2.99

Inv 09/30/2022

Line Item Date Line Item Description

Page 14AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 30



Check Number Check Date Amount

09/30/2022  14.26Magazine for Library Collection

Inv 09/30/2022 Total  14.26

Inv 12/22/2022

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/22/2022  28.10Fed Ex shipping to return Quadient Postage machine

Inv 12/22/2022 Total  28.10

Inv 12/30/2022

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/30/2022  67.68DVDs for Library Collection

Inv 12/30/2022 Total  67.68

 315959 Total:  180.62

 180.62SOU5340 - City of South Pasadena-Library Petty Cash Total:

COP0708 - CopWare, Inc  

 315960 02/15/2023

Inv 86273

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  965.00Ca Peace Officers Legal Sourcebook-Yearly License for Police

Inv 86273 Total  965.00

 315960 Total:  965.00

 965.00COP0708 - CopWare, Inc Total:

CRSR2010 - Corodata Shredding Inc.  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv DN 1393062

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/31/2022  83.69Shredding Services - December 2022

Inv DN 1393062 Total  83.69

 0 Total:  83.69

 83.69CRSR2010 - Corodata Shredding Inc. Total:

CPR0551 - CPRS District XIII  

 315961 02/15/2023

Page 15AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 31



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv CPRS D85 Event

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  75.00CPRS D13 Breakfast 3 Attendees: L.Hakobian, M.Synyder, J.Bell

Inv CPRS D85 Event Total  75.00

 315961 Total:  75.00

 75.00CPR0551 - CPRS District XIII Total:

CSGCONLT - CSG Consultants, Inc.  

 315962 02/15/2023

Inv 47329

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/15/2022  1,730.00Entitlement Expediting Services (181,185,187 Monterey)

Inv 47329 Total  1,730.00

 315962 Total:  1,730.00

 1,730.00CSGCONLT - CSG Consultants, Inc. Total:

CTCTCH - CTC Technology & Energy  

 315963 02/15/2023

Inv 23140090

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  2,717.58CENIC WI-FI and CENIC Broadband FY 2022-23

Inv 23140090 Total  2,717.58

 315963 Total:  2,717.58

 2,717.58CTCTCH - CTC Technology & Energy Total:

DEL0771 - Delta Dental of California  

 315964 02/15/2023

Inv BE005349445

Line Item Date Line Item Description

02/01/2023  12,371.94Dental Insurance Premiums - February 2023

Inv BE005349445 Total  12,371.94

 315964 Total:  12,371.94

 12,371.94DEL0771 - Delta Dental of California Total:

Page 16AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 32



Check Number Check Date Amount

GEMT5550 - Department of Health Care Services  

 315965 02/15/2023

Inv GEM0223NFYA

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/30/2023  7,654.50Fire - Ground Emergency Medical Transport Quality Assurance Fee

Inv GEM0223NFYA Total  7,654.50

 315965 Total:  7,654.50

 7,654.50GEMT5550 - Department of Health Care Services Total:

PMLDONG - Dong, Pamella C.  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 9211

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/23/2023  20.00Contract Class Instructor- Senior Center Tai Chi

Inv 9211 Total  20.00

Inv 9213

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/23/2023  4.00Contract Class Instructor- Senior Center Tai Chi Qi Gong Walk-In

Inv 9213 Total  4.00

 0 Total:  24.00

 24.00PMLDONG - Dong, Pamella C. Total:

DDLP8010 - Dr. Detail Ph.D LLC  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 2748

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/18/2023  600.00Dial-A-Ride Fleet Washing and Santizing for January

Inv 2748 Total  600.00

Inv 2751

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  495.00Camp Med Carpet cleaning service for upper and lower floors.

Inv 2751 Total  495.00

 0 Total:  1,095.00

 1,095.00DDLP8010 - Dr. Detail Ph.D LLC Total:

Page 17AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 33



Check Number Check Date Amount

ELSRTIRE - El Sereno Tire Shop  

 315966 02/15/2023

Inv 02453

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/20/2023  20.00Patch for vehicle 79 (back left tire)

Inv 02453 Total  20.00

 315966 Total:  20.00

 20.00ELSRTIRE - El Sereno Tire Shop Total:

ENT8216 - Entersect  

 315967 02/15/2023

Inv 123EP30995

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/21/2023  2.99EPO live search for Detectives

Inv 123EP30995 Total  2.99

 315967 Total:  2.99

 2.99ENT8216 - Entersect Total:

LILESTDA - Estrada, Lilly  

 315968 02/15/2023

Inv 04/26/2022

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/25/2023  36.54Rater Lunch Reimbursement

Inv 04/26/2022 Total  36.54

Inv 07/20/2022

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/25/2023  73.60Post Office Reimbursement

Inv 07/20/2022 Total  73.60

 315968 Total:  110.14

 110.14LILESTDA - Estrada, Lilly Total:

EXSF8020 - Extreme Safety  

 315969 02/15/2023

Inv 00107879

Line Item Date Line Item Description

Page 18AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 34



Check Number Check Date Amount

01/30/2023  105.00Equipment Maintenance - Fit Test

Inv 00107879 Total  105.00

 315969 Total:  105.00

 105.00EXSF8020 - Extreme Safety Total:

FED1109 - FedEx  

 315970 02/15/2023

Inv 8-006-32203

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/13/2023  16.52Shipment to background investigator

Inv 8-006-32203 Total  16.52

 315970 Total:  16.52

 16.52FED1109 - FedEx Total:

BTFELSR - Felser, Betsy  

 315971 02/15/2023

Inv DI1114-01

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/23/2023  300.00Drip Irrigation Rebate (Max Amount)- DI1114-01

Inv DI1114-01 Total  300.00

 315971 Total:  300.00

 300.00BTFELSR - Felser, Betsy Total:

FUNEXPRS - Fun Express, LLC  

 315972 02/15/2023

Inv 722187338-01

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/17/2023  90.21Lunar New Year supplies for Senior Center

Inv 722187338-01 Total  90.21

 315972 Total:  90.21

 90.21FUNEXPRS - Fun Express, LLC Total:

GALL5011 - Galls, LLC  

 315973 02/15/2023

Page 19AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 35



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv 023132036

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/30/2023  25.14Fire - Safety uniform belt for Anderson

Inv 023132036 Total  25.14

Inv 023156305

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/30/2023  585.06Fire - Safety uniform for Anderson

Inv 023156305 Total  585.06

 315973 Total:  610.20

 610.20GALL5011 - Galls, LLC Total:

GLCI2997 - Graphic Electric Inc.  

 315974 02/15/2023

Inv 99987

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/15/2022  5,650.69Troubleshoot and Repair Ballast Field Lights

Inv 99987 Total  5,650.69

 315974 Total:  5,650.69

 5,650.69GLCI2997 - Graphic Electric Inc. Total:

CRHY8067 - Hartney, Corey  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 9330

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/23/2023  429.00Contract Class Instructor - Basketball January Beginner

Inv 9330 Total  429.00

Inv 9333

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/23/2023  71.50Contract Class Instructor- Basketball January Intermediate

Inv 9333 Total  71.50

 0 Total:  500.50

 500.50CRHY8067 - Hartney, Corey Total:

HDLC3011 - HdL Coren & Cone  

Page 20AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 36



Check Number Check Date Amount

 315975 02/15/2023

Inv SIN024993

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/24/2023  3,249.26Contract Services - Property Tax: Quarterly (January - March)

Inv SIN024993 Total  3,249.26

 315975 Total:  3,249.26

 3,249.26HDLC3011 - HdL Coren & Cone Total:

MOBPLAN - Henninger, Grant  

 315976 02/15/2023

Inv 169

Line Item Date

01/17/2023  54,000.00

Line Item Description 
Housing Element Consultant

Inv 169 Total  54,000.00

 315976 Total:  54,000.00

 54,000.00MOBPLAN - Henninger, Grant Total:

HOMCOMMU - Hom, Reagan  

 315977 02/15/2023

Inv 011723

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/17/2023  350.00Electrical work on PD unit #1406

Inv 011723 Total  350.00

 315977 Total:  350.00

 350.00HOMCOMMU - Hom, Reagan Total:

HOM1515 - Home Depot Credit Services  

 315978 02/15/2023

Inv 5351034

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/28/2022  38.58Additional Battery for Ring Camera located at PW Yard

Inv 5351034 Total  38.58

Inv WP56394013

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/03/2023  38.58Second Additional Battery for Ring Camera located at PW Yard

Inv WP56394013 Total  38.58

Page 21AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 37



Check Number Check Date Amount

 315978 Total:  77.16

 77.16HOM1515 - Home Depot Credit Services Total:

MADHRTN - Horton, Madeleine  

 315979 02/15/2023

Inv 128253

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/24/2023  129.00Refund of Rec Class due to class cancelation by instructor.

Inv 128253 Total  129.00

 315979 Total:  129.00

 129.00MADHRTN - Horton, Madeleine Total:

JULIBARO - Ibaro, Julie  

 315980 02/15/2023

Inv 128333

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/24/2023  561.00Refundable Sercurity deposit for WMB reservation.

Inv 128333 Total  561.00

 315980 Total:  561.00

 561.00JULIBARO - Ibaro, Julie Total:

CDPS1020 - ICC General Code  

 315981 02/15/2023

Inv GC0007846

Line Item Date Line Item Description

06/20/2022  1,542.05Municipal Code - Ord Nos. 2357-2364

Inv GC0007846 Total  1,542.05

Inv GC0008710

Line Item Date Line Item Description

09/30/2022  273.80Municipal Code - Ord Nos. 2345-2348-2351-2353-2355- 2364 & 2366

Inv GC0008710 Total  273.80

 315981 Total:  1,815.85

 1,815.85CDPS1020 - ICC General Code Total:

Page 22AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 38



Check Number Check Date Amount

JSAR4011 - Jack's Auto Repair  

 315982 02/15/2023

Inv 17961

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/18/2023  275.00Repair to catalytic converter pipe for vehicle 79.

Inv 17961 Total  275.00

 315982 Total:  275.00

 275.00JSAR4011 - Jack's Auto Repair Total:

JKPRPTY - JK Property Management Services, Inc.  

 315983 02/15/2023

Inv 2662

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/12/2022  31,210.00Holiday Lights and Decor Display, Storage, Installation, Removal

Inv 2662 Total  31,210.00

Inv 2663

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/12/2022  19,505.00Holiday Lights and Decor Display, Storage, Installation, Removal

Inv 2663 Total  19,505.00

 315983 Total:  50,715.00

 50,715.00JKPRPTY - JK Property Management Services, Inc. Total:

KOAC6010 - KOA Corporation  

 315984 02/15/2023

Inv JC1I001 - 2

Line Item Date

10/18/2022  285.50

10/18/2022  2,569.50

Line Item Description

Engineering Design Services for North-South Corridor Transportation 
Engineering Design Services for North-South Corridor Transportation

Inv JC1I001 - 2 Total  2,855.00

Inv JC1I001 - 4

Line Item Date

12/14/2022  29,127.94

12/14/2022  3,236.44

Line Item Description

Engineering Design Services for North-South Corridor Transportation 
Engineering Design Services for North-South Corridor Transportation

Inv JC1I001 - 4 Total  32,364.38

Inv JC1I001 - 5

Line Item Date Line Item Description

Page 23AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 39



Check Number Check Date Amount

01/24/2023  42,792.42

01/24/2023  4,754.71

Engineering Design Services for North-South Corridor Transportation 
Engineering Design Services  for North-South Corridor Transportation

Inv JC1I001 - 5 Total  47,547.13

 315984 Total:  82,766.51

 82,766.51KOAC6010 - KOA Corporation Total:

JSHKRV - Krilov, Josh  

 315985 02/15/2023

Inv 128234

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/24/2023  134.00Refund request of Gazebo due to weather.

Inv 128234 Total  134.00

 315985 Total:  134.00

 134.00JSHKRV - Krilov, Josh Total:

CUR7778 - L.N. Curtis & Sons  

 315986 02/15/2023

Inv INV666548

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/30/2023  575.51Fire - 240V Charger for vehicle

Inv INV666548 Total  575.51

 315986 Total:  575.51

 575.51CUR7778 - L.N. Curtis & Sons Total:

LAPG8520 - LA Police Gear Inc.  

 315987 02/15/2023

Inv IV01959647

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/24/2023  749.70Pepper spray for officers

Inv IV01959647 Total  749.70

 315987 Total:  749.70

 749.70LAPG8520 - LA Police Gear Inc. Total:

LDCR6410 - LandCare USA LLC  

Page 24AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 40



Check Number Check Date Amount

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 547918

Line Item Date Line Item Description

08/31/2022  4,227.30Landscape and Lighting Maint. District-Aug 2022

08/31/2022  1,233.21Prop A Park Maintenance-Aug 2022

08/31/2022  1,669.68Water Distribution-Aug 2022

08/31/2022  17,223.90Park Maintenance Contract Services-Aug 2022

Inv 547918 Total  24,354.09

Inv 578546

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/30/2022  17,223.90Park Maintenance Contract Services-Nov 2022

11/30/2022  4,227.30Landscape and Lighting Maint. District-Nov 2022

11/30/2022  1,233.21Prop A Park Maintenance-Nov 2022

11/30/2022  1,669.68Water Distribution-Nov 2022

Inv 578546 Total  24,354.09

Inv 587702

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/31/2022  20,491.56Park Maintenance Contract Services

12/31/2022  1,669.68Water Distribution-Dec 2022

12/31/2022  959.64Landscape and Lighting Maint. District-Dec 2022

12/31/2022  1,233.21Prop A Park Maintenance-Dec 2022

Inv 587702 Total  24,354.09

 0 Total:  73,062.27

 73,062.27LDCR6410 - LandCare USA LLC Total:

ZZLI3012 - Li, Zhenzhen  

 315988 02/15/2023

Inv DW1206-01

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/23/2023  499.99Residential Rebate for Water Efficient Dishwasher. DW1206-01.

Inv DW1206-01 Total  499.99

 315988 Total:  499.99

 499.99ZZLI3012 - Li, Zhenzhen Total:

MMV9126 - Mission Meridian Village POA  

 315989 02/15/2023

Inv 101-102

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/20/2022  1,730.17Mission Meridian HOA Parking Dues - Dec'22

Page 25AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 41



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv 101-102 Total  1,730.17

Inv 103

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/20/2022  804.13Mission Meridian HOA Parking Dues - Dec'22

Inv 103 Total  804.13

 315989 Total:  2,534.30

 2,534.30MMV9126 - Mission Meridian Village POA Total:

MOR2900 - Morrow & Holman Plumbing Inc  

 315990 02/15/2023

Inv P-11-19981

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/15/2022  148.31Emergency Plumbing-PD Womens Restroom Plumbing

Inv P-11-19981 Total  148.31

Inv P-11-20024

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/21/2022  181.25Emergency Plumbing-PD Womens Locker room Issues

Inv P-11-20024 Total  181.25

 315990 Total:  329.56

 329.56MOR2900 - Morrow & Holman Plumbing Inc Total:

OVDR8011 - OverDrive Inc.  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 01148CO23008430

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/10/2023  2,577.06eBooks / eAudiobooks

Inv 01148CO23008430 Total  2,577.06

Inv 01148CO23010645

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/11/2023  777.09eBooks / eAudiobooks

Inv 01148CO23010645 Total  777.09

 0 Total:  3,354.15

 3,354.15OVDR8011 - OverDrive Inc. Total:

Page 26AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 42



Check Number Check Date Amount

PWP4465 - Pasadena Water & Power  

 315991 02/15/2023

Inv 11/14-12/12/22

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  2,576.51City Of Pasadena water purchase Nov-Dec 2022

Inv 11/14-12/12/22 Total  2,576.51

 315991 Total:  2,576.51

 2,576.51PWP4465 - Pasadena Water & Power Total:

PHOE4610 - Phoenix Group Information Systems  

 315992 02/15/2023

Inv 122022184

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/24/2023  3,605.48Citations processed for the month of December 2022

Inv 122022184 Total  3,605.48

 315992 Total:  3,605.48

 3,605.48PHOE4610 - Phoenix Group Information Systems Total:

PDI417 - Plumbers Depot Inc.  

 315993 02/15/2023

Inv PD-52351

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/10/2022  1,683.02Sewer Maintenance-Plug for Storm Drains

Inv PD-52351 Total  1,683.02

 315993 Total:  1,683.02

 1,683.02PDI417 - Plumbers Depot Inc. Total:

POS5265 - Post Alarm Systems  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 1550172

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/04/2023  54.33Post Alarm Services for Orange Grove Recreation Center

01/04/2023  54.33Post Alarm Services for War Memorial Building

Inv 1550172 Total  108.66

 0 Total:  108.66

Page 27AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 43



Check Number Check Date Amount

 108.66POS5265 - Post Alarm Systems Total:

PSOMAS - PSOMAS  

 315994 02/15/2023

Inv 192346

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/23/2023  320.00Assistance with General Plan & Downtown Specific Update

Inv 192346 Total  320.00

 315994 Total:  320.00

 320.00PSOMAS - PSOMAS Total:

QUI5869 - Quill Corporation  

 315995 02/15/2023

Inv 30042938

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/10/2023  115.73Wet Floor Caution fold-up signs

Inv 30042938 Total  115.73

 315995 Total:  115.73

 115.73QUI5869 - Quill Corporation Total:

QUI7779 - Quinn Company  

 315996 02/15/2023

Inv PC810948614

Line Item Date Line Item Description

05/02/2022  392.36Annual Maintenance for Street Roadway Machinery-Hydraulic fluid

Inv PC810948614 Total  392.36

Inv PC810960477

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  439.37Annual Maintenance for Street Roadway Machinery-Hydraulic fluid

Inv PC810960477 Total  439.37

Inv PC810962928

Line Item Date Line Item Description

10/17/2022  1,464.56Annual Maintenance for Street Roadway Machinery-Hydraulic fluid

Inv PC810962928 Total  1,464.56

Page 28AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 44



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv WO810243464

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/09/2022  2,135.50Annual Maintenance for Street Roadway Machinery-Hydraulic fluid

Inv WO810243464 Total  2,135.50

 315996 Total:  4,431.79

 4,431.79QUI7779 - Quinn Company Total:

RTPC5500 - Regional TAP Service Center  

 315997 02/15/2023

Inv 6018469

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/18/2023  212.00Metro 30 Day Senior Bus Pass subsidy payment for December 2022.

Inv 6018469 Total  212.00

 315997 Total:  212.00

 212.00RTPC5500 - Regional TAP Service Center Total:

RHCC7101 - Rio Hondo College  

 315998 02/15/2023

Inv F22-400-ZSPS

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  25.00Driver Training for Officer Giron on 12/09/2022

Inv F22-400-ZSPS Total  25.00

 315998 Total:  25.00

 25.00RHCC7101 - Rio Hondo College Total:

RlPU8540 - Roadline Products Inc. USA  

 315999 02/15/2023

Inv 18189

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/21/2022  912.87Street Maintenance-Equipment sign post and anchors

Inv 18189 Total  912.87

 315999 Total:  912.87

 912.87RlPU8540 - Roadline Products Inc. USA Total:

Page 29AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 45



Check Number Check Date Amount

SGVMC111 - San Gabriel Valley Medical Center  

 316000 02/15/2023

Inv 899936

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  48.00Blood alcohol withdrawal # 899936

Inv 899936 Total  48.00

 316000 Total:  48.00

 48.00SGVMC111 - San Gabriel Valley Medical Center Total:

SAXE2013 - Saxe-Clifford PH.D, Susan  

 316001 02/15/2023

Inv 22-1229-7

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/30/2023  450.00Fire - Psychological evaluation for firefighter applicant

Inv 22-1229-7 Total  450.00

 316001 Total:  450.00

 450.00SAXE2013 - Saxe-Clifford PH.D, Susan Total:

SEITECIN - SEITec, Inc.  

 316002 02/15/2023

Inv 1027-002-2

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/19/2022  917.10Technical services to assist City in stormwater project funding,

Inv 1027-002-2 Total  917.10

Inv 1027-003-2

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/19/2022  2,507.53Technical services to assist City in stormwater project funding,

Inv 1027-003-2 Total  2,507.53

Inv 1027-004-2

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/19/2022  3,953.96Technical services to assist City in stormwater project funding,

Inv 1027-004-2 Total  3,953.96

 316002 Total:  7,378.59

 7,378.59SEITECIN - SEITec, Inc. Total:

Page 30AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 46



Check Number Check Date Amount

SHO7777 - Showcases  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 325512

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/20/2023  432.00DVD cases

Inv 325512 Total  432.00

 0 Total:  432.00

 432.00SHO7777 - Showcases Total:

WLST8267 - Shuttic, William  101-8030-8021-8267-000

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 9178

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  140.00Contract Instructor-Jan Senior monthly Functional Fitness class

Inv 9178 Total  140.00

 0 Total:  140.00

 140.00WLST8267 - Shuttic, William Total:

STA5219 - Staples Business Advantage  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 3518931697

Line Item Date Line Item Description

09/28/2022  9.76Yard Breakroom supplies

09/28/2022  9.76Yard Breakroom supplies

09/28/2022  9.76Yard Breakroom supplies

09/28/2022  9.76Yard Breakroom supplies

09/28/2022  9.76Yard Breakroom supplies

09/28/2022  9.76Yard Breakroom supplies

Inv 3518931697 Total  58.56

Inv 3521880879

Line Item Date Line Item Description

10/29/2022  42.46Office Supplies

Inv 3521880879 Total  42.46

Inv 3525445476

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/13/2022 -491.72Credit Memo

Inv 3525445476 Total -491.72

Page 31AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 47



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv 3525615702

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/15/2022  202.77Office Supplies & First Aid

Inv 3525615702 Total  202.77

Inv 3527217441

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  100.40Recreation Office Supplies

Inv 3527217441 Total  100.40

Inv 3527565068

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/30/2023  71.43Fire - General office supplies

Inv 3527565068 Total  71.43

Inv 3527637844

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/11/2023  407.90Office Supples - Coffee, Toner, Cables, Mesh.

Inv 3527637844 Total  407.90

Inv 3527789926

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/13/2023  171.20Police Department Office Supplies

Inv 3527789926 Total  171.20

Inv 3527980618

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/14/2023  9.76Yard Breakroom supplies

01/14/2023  9.76Yard Breakroom supplies

01/14/2023  9.76Yard Breakroom supplies

01/14/2023  9.76Yard Breakroom supplies

01/14/2023  9.76Yard Breakroom supplies

01/14/2023  9.76Yard Breakroom supplies

Inv 3527980618 Total  58.56

Inv 3528205304

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/19/2023  74.39Binders, paper clips, scotch tape, thermal register rolls

Inv 3528205304 Total  74.39

Inv 3528205305

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/13/2023  253.54Police Department Office Supplies

Page 32AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 48



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv 3528205305 Total  253.54

Inv 3528205306

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/19/2023  289.52Police Department Office Supplies

Inv 3528205306 Total  289.52

Inv 3528586477

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/24/2023  130.38Office Supplies

Inv 3528586477 Total  130.38

Inv 3528701395

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/25/2023  98.48Office Supplies

Inv 3528701395 Total  98.48

Inv 3528701396

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/30/2023  54.89Fire - General office supplies

Inv 3528701396 Total  54.89

Inv 3528855563

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/27/2023  17.63Office Supplies

Inv 3528855563 Total  17.63

 0 Total:  1,540.39

 1,540.39STA5219 - Staples Business Advantage Total:

SCRR4010 - Superior Court of California, County of LA  

 316003 02/15/2023

Inv December 2022

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/24/2023  3,443.00Citations processed for the month of December 2022

Inv December 2022 Total  3,443.00

 316003 Total:  3,443.00

 3,443.00SCRR4010 - Superior Court of California, County of LA Total:

SWRCB900 - SWRCB  

Page 33AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 49



Check Number Check Date Amount

 0 02/15/2023

Inv WD-0214717

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/08/2022  794.00NPDES Permit Fees FY 2022-23

Inv WD-0214717 Total  794.00

 0 Total:  794.00

 794.00SWRCB900 - SWRCB Total:

COBR7131 - The Advantage Group  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 152704

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/30/2023  306.00HRA Administration Fee - January 2023

Inv 152704 Total  306.00

Inv February

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/30/2023  16,246.80HRA Retiree Premiums - February 2023

Inv February Total  16,246.80

 0 Total:  16,552.80

 16,552.80COBR7131 - The Advantage Group Total:

CAPEACEO - The California Peace Officers' Association  

 316004 02/15/2023

Inv 346910

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  250.00Public Records Act Training for Clerk Ochoa

Inv 346910 Total  250.00

Inv 346920

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  250.00Public Records Act Training for Clerk Ramirez

Inv 346920 Total  250.00

 316004 Total:  500.00

 500.00CAPEACEO - The California Peace Officers' Association Total:

Page 34AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 50



Check Number Check Date Amount

TRA5998 - Transtech Engineers, Inc.  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 20215689

Line Item Date Line Item Description

04/30/2022  1,590.001818 Peterson Soils Report

Inv 20215689 Total  1,590.00

Inv 20216464

Line Item Date Line Item Description

05/31/2022  1,534.0023 Short Way Soils Report

Inv 20216464 Total  1,534.00

Inv 202231066

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/31/2022  19,144.50Transtech Building & Safety Services: (December 2022)

Inv 202231066 Total  19,144.50

Inv 20231065

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/30/2022  24,459.62Transtech Plan Check Services: (November 2022)

Inv 20231065 Total  24,459.62

Inv 20231067

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/31/2022  245.00#20231067-Dec 2022

Inv 20231067 Total  245.00

 0 Total:  46,973.12

 46,973.12TRA5998 - Transtech Engineers, Inc. Total:

TTTC6710 - TT Technologies, Inc.  

 316005 02/15/2023

Inv TT76618

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/16/2023  1,172.37Cable Grip Replacement-Water Div.

Inv TT76618 Total  1,172.37

 316005 Total:  1,172.37

 1,172.37TTTC6710 - TT Technologies, Inc. Total:

ULIN8021 - Uline, Inc.  

Page 35AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 51



Check Number Check Date Amount

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 80303354

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/19/2023  1,233.84Replacement of round tables for WMB

Inv 80303354 Total  1,233.84

Inv 85620281

Line Item Date

01/19/2023  653.34

Line Item Description

Interior trash cans for Eddie Park House & the 

Youth House

Inv 85620281 Total  653.34

 0 Total:  1,887.18

 1,887.18ULIN8021 - Uline, Inc. Total:

POR4707 - United Site Services, Inc.  

 316006 02/15/2023

Inv INV-01297728

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/27/2022  368.34Portable Toilet at Skate Park: 12/27/22-01/23/23

Inv INV-01297728 Total  368.34

 316006 Total:  368.34

 368.34POR4707 - United Site Services, Inc. Total:

UPP7789 - Upper San Gabriel Valley MWD  

 316007 02/15/2023

Inv So-Pas-01.06.23

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/23/2023  3,877.00MWD Co-Fund December 2022

Inv So-Pas-01.06.23 Total  3,877.00

Inv SoPas-11.15.22

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/23/2023  1,159.97MWD Co-Fund October 2022

Inv SoPas-11.15.22 Total  1,159.97

Inv SoPas-12.15.22

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/23/2023  415.00MWD Co-Fund November 2022

Inv SoPas-12.15.22 Total  415.00

Page 36AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 52



Check Number Check Date Amount

 316007 Total:  5,451.97

 5,451.97UPP7789 - Upper San Gabriel Valley MWD Total:

LUVA8110 - Vazquez, Luis  

 316008 02/15/2023

Inv 1/27/2023

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/30/2023  300.00Fire - Refund for training

Inv 1/27/2023 Total  300.00

 316008 Total:  300.00

 300.00LUVA8110 - Vazquez, Luis Total:

VERW6711 - Verizon Wireless  

 316009 02/15/2023

Inv 9925580308

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/17/2023  765.13AN 842311063-00002 (12/18/22-1/17/23) Fire Ipads

Inv 9925580308 Total  765.13

 316009 Total:  765.13

 765.13VERW6711 - Verizon Wireless Total:

VTMS4011 - Vital Medical Services, LLC  

 316010 02/15/2023

Inv 4058

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/31/2022  939.00Calls for service 12.31.22, DR #22-18909, DR# 22-18998

Inv 4058 Total  939.00

 316010 Total:  939.00

 939.00VTMS4011 - Vital Medical Services, LLC Total:

WES4152 - West Coast Arborists, Inc.  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 193716

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/30/2022  23,620.00Street Maintenance Professional Services-11/16/22-11/30/22

11/30/2022  1,696.00Street Tree Maintenance In-Lieu Tree Planting-11/16/22-11/30/22

Page 37AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 53



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv 193716 Total  25,316.00

Inv 194246

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/15/2022  775.00Street Maintenance Professional Services-12/1/2022-12/15/2022

12/15/2022  720.00St. Tree Maint. Annual Tree Planting & Removal  12/1/22-12/15/22

12/15/2022  7,940.00Street Maintenance Contract Services-12/1/2022-12/15/2022

Inv 194246 Total  9,435.00

Inv 194247

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/15/2022  340.00Street Maintenance Professional Services 12/1/2022-12/15/2022

Inv 194247 Total  340.00

Inv 194595

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/31/2023  2,700.00St. Tree Maint. Annual Tree Planting & Removal 12/16/22-12/31/22

12/31/2022  1,905.00Park Maintenance Contract Services 12/16/2022-12/31/2022

Inv 194595 Total  4,605.00

 0 Total:  39,696.00

 39,696.00WES4152 - West Coast Arborists, Inc. Total:

WLHD8020 - Westlake Hardware  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 14303042

Line Item Date Line Item Description

10/18/2022  223.15Fire - Insect traps

Inv 14303042 Total  223.15

Inv 14303160

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/01/2022  356.85Hardware Supplies for Public Works Dep.-Water Div

Inv 14303160 Total  356.85

Inv 14303225

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/20/2022  66.11Hardware Supplies for Public Works Dep.-Facilities Div

Inv 14303225 Total  66.11

 0 Total:  646.11

Page 38AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 54



Check Number Check Date Amount

 646.11WLHD8020 - Westlake Hardware Total:

WHI6410 - Whittier Fertilizer Co.  

 316011 02/15/2023

Inv 393462

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/16/2022  66.15Soil Mix for Arroyo North and South (AYSO)

Inv 393462 Total  66.15

Inv 393655

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/22/2022  129.10Soil Mix for Arroyo North and South (AYSO)

Inv 393655 Total  129.10

 316011 Total:  195.25

 195.25WHI6410 - Whittier Fertilizer Co. Total:

WIL2010 - Willdan Engineering  

 316012 02/15/2023

Inv 00418094

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/17/2023  1,042.75On-Call Construction Mgmt. - Fair Oaks Signal Project

01/17/2023  1,042.75On-Call Construction Mgmt. - Fair Oaks Signal Project

Inv 00418094 Total  2,085.50

 316012 Total:  2,085.50

 2,085.50WIL2010 - Willdan Engineering Total:

PUFG8267 - Wong, Pauline Sam  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 9185

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  48.00Contract Instructor- Jan Senior Line Dance Monthly

Inv 9185 Total  48.00

Inv 9187

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  184.00Contract Instructor- Jan Senior Line Dance Walk-In

Inv 9187 Total  184.00

Page 39AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 55



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv 9359

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  13.00Contract Instructor- Jan Adult Line Dance Monthly Beginner

Inv 9359 Total  13.00

Inv 9361

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  26.00Contract Instructor- Jan Senior Line Dance Monthly Intermediate

Inv 9361 Total  26.00

Inv 9726

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/26/2023  104.00Contract Instructor- Jan Adult Line Dance Walk-In

Inv 9726 Total  104.00

 0 Total:  375.00

 375.00PUFG8267 - Wong, Pauline Sam Total:

YTI1023 - Y Tire Performance LLC  

 316013 02/15/2023

Inv 33926

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/10/2022  2,682.31Vehicle Maintenance for Street Division Unit # 330

Inv 33926 Total  2,682.31

Inv 34096

Line Item Date Line Item Description

11/02/2022  93.42Vehicle Maintenance for Street Division-New Tire-PW Prius

Inv 34096 Total  93.42

Inv 34339

Line Item Date Line Item Description

12/10/2022  2,009.23Vehicle Maintenance for Street Division Unit # 327

Inv 34339 Total  2,009.23

 316013 Total:  4,784.96

 4,784.96YTI1023 - Y Tire Performance LLC Total:

CHGFYNG - Yang, Ching F  

 316014 02/15/2023

Page 40AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 56



Check Number Check Date Amount

Inv DI0123-01

Line Item Date Line Item Description

01/23/2023  300.00Residential Rebate for Drip Irrigation

Inv DI0123-01 Total  300.00

 316014 Total:  300.00

 300.00CHGFYNG - Yang, Ching F Total:

ZUMAR103 - Zumar Industries, Inc.  

 0 02/15/2023

Inv 97902

Line Item Date Line Item Description

10/13/2022  1,002.25Signs for Library Park

Inv 97902 Total  1,002.25

 0 Total:  1,002.25

 1,002.25ZUMAR103 - Zumar Industries, Inc. Total:

 533,501.77Total:

Page 41AP-Check Detail (2/6/2023 -  3:55 PM)

5 - 57



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

5 - 58



ATTACHMENT 4 
Online Payments 

5 - 59



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

5 - 60



Date Vendor Amount Description

1/30/2023 So Cal Edison $26,830.11
Online Payment for City Owned 

So Cal Edison Account 33859.

2/2/2023 So Cal Edison $73,432.15
Online Payment for City Owned 

So Cal Edison Account 11581.

Total: $100,262.26

Online Payment Log

5 - 61

City of 

SOUTH PASADENA 



 
THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 
LEFT BLANK 

5 - 62



ATTACHMENT 5
Prepaid &Warrant Voids

5 - 63



 
THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 
LEFT BLANK 

5 - 64



Accounts Payable

ealvarez

02/01/2023 -  8:08AMPrinted:

User:

Void Check Proof List

Batch: 00001.02.2023

Account Number Amount Invoice No Inv Date Description Reference Type PONumber Close PO? Line ItemTask Label

CRSR2010 Corodata Shredding Inc.Vendor: 

Check No: 0 Check Date: 02/01/2023

DN 1393062 108.94 Shredding Services - December No  012/31/2022

101-2030-2033-8180-000

 108.94Check Total:

Vendor Total:  108.94

Report Total:  108.94

Page 1AP-Void Check Proof List (2/1/2023 -  8:08 AM)

5 - 65

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CRSR2010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CRSR2010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=fcffb5e2-ba3b-403f-8a6f-7bbeecfcf991
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=fcffb5e2-ba3b-403f-8a6f-7bbeecfcf991
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2023:101-2030-2033-8180-000


Accounts Payable

ealvarez

02/06/2023 -  4:02PMPrinted:

User:

Void Check Proof List

Batch: 00002.02.2023

Account Number Amount Invoice No Inv Date Description Reference Type PONumber Close PO? Line ItemTask Label

ASOP8030 Aire Serv of PasadenaVendor: 

Check No: 315710 Check Date: 01/18/2023

AZ76083592 1,255.00 HVAC System for San Pasqual Stables No  007/02/2022

101-6010-6601-8120-000

 1,255.00Check Total:

Vendor Total:  1,255.00

Report Total:  1,255.00

Page 1AP-Void Check Proof List (2/6/2023 -  4:02 PM)

5 - 66

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ASOP8030
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ASOP8030
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f0d9324e-2f3e-42dc-8387-b1969bac8457
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f0d9324e-2f3e-42dc-8387-b1969bac8457
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2023:101-6010-6601-8120-000


ATTACHMENT 6 
Payroll Summary

5 - 67



 
THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 
LEFT BLANK 

5 - 68



Payroll

Payroll Summary Report

Payroll Date: 1/26/2023 Off-Cycle

Checks -$     

Direct Deposits 1,466.73$     

IRS Payments 43.50$     

EDD - State of CA 11.52$     

PERS Pension -$     

Deferred Comp -$     

PERS Health -$     

Subtotal: 1,521.75$     

Payroll Date: 2/3/2023 Regular

Checks -$     

Direct Deposits 488,619.47$     

IRS Payments 107,136.49$     

EDD - State of CA 32,409.51$     

PERS Pension 123,595.41$     

Deferred Comp 25,729.88$     

PERS Health 187,851.52$     

Subtotal: 965,342.28$     

Grand Total: 966,864.03$     

5 - 69



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

5 - 70



6

6 - 1

DATE: 

FROM: 

City Council 
Agenda Report 

February 15, 2023 

ITEM NO. 

Armine Chaparyan, City Manager ~ -tw' It(,,. 

PREPARED BY: John Downs, Interim Finance Director 
Hsiulee Tran, Deputy Finance Director/Controller 
Albert Trinh, Finance Manager 

SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report for December 2022 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the City Council receive and file the Monthly Investment Report 
for December 2022. 

Background 
As required by law, a monthly investment report, which includes water bond funds, is 
presented to the City Council disclosing investment activities, types of investments, 
dates of maturities, amounts of deposits, rates of interest, and securities with a maturity 
of more than 12 months at current market values. 

The reports reflect all investments at the above-referenced date and conform to the 
California Government Code, Section 53600 et. seq., and the City Investment Policy 
adopted by Resolution No. 7635. A copy of the Resolution is available in the City Clerk's 
Office. 

Analysis 
The Monthly Investment Report provides a detailed report of the City's investments in 
various bonds and the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The report reflects that 
the City complies with the reporting requirements of California Government Code 
Section 53646, whereby the agency must describe the investments made, indicate 
monies under the management of contracted parties, discuss compliance with local 
investment policy, and discuss whether the agency can meet its expenditure 
requirements for the next six months. Investments herein provide sufficient cash flow 
liquidity to meet the estimated expenditures, as required in the investment policy. 

Key Performance Indicators and Strategic Plan 
This item is in line with the Finance Department's Key Performance Indicator. The 
Monthly Investment Report is prepared in a timely manner. 



Monthly Investment Report for December 2022 

Page 2 of 2 

Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this recommendation. 

Commission Review and Recommendation 
Item not required to be reviewed by a commission. 

Attachment: City Investment Report for December 2022 

6 - 2



 ATTACHMENT 1 
City Investment Reports for December 2022 

6 - 3



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

6 - 4



PERCENT CURRENT
INSTITUTION MATURITY CURRENT OF MARKET

NAME DATE YIELD PORTFOLIO COST VALUE  *

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND:
  LAIF City ON DEMAND 2.173% 24.37% 15,663,303.28 15,663,303.28

   SUBTOTAL 24.37% 15,663,303.28$          15,663,303.28$          

ZIONS BANK
  Corporate Bonds See Exhibit B-1 2.92% 22.22% 14,283,772.11 13,587,285.54
  U.S. Treasury Bills See Exhibit B-1 2.44% 3.86% 2,478,660.00 2,497,830.00
  US Treasury Notes & Bonds See Exhibit B-1 1.31% 47.89% 30,784,233.57 29,531,980.72
  US Obligations Variable See Exhibit B-1 4.38% 1.66% 1,066,455.34 1,065,872.24

    SUBTOTAL 75.63% 48,613,121.02$          46,682,968.50$          

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 100.00% 64,276,424.30$          62,346,271.78$          

BANK ACCOUNTS:
Bank of the West Accounts Balance: 9,123,165.91$            

Zions Bank Uninvested Cash Balance1: 260,491.71$  

Zions Bank Unsettled Transactions1 - 

BNY Mellon Uninvested Cash Balance2 160,398.31$  

Footnotes:

2 The BNY Mellon Uninvested Cash Balance is information-only as it is funds intended for 2016 Water Revenue Bond.

Required Disclosures:

Average weighted maturity of the portfolio 496 DAYS

Average weighted total yield to maturity of the portfolio 1.975%

Projected Expenditures for the next 6 months:
Projected with Prior Year Same Period:
Projected with FY 2023 Adopted Budget:

* Current market valuation is required for investments with maturities of more than twelve months.

DateZhen Tao, City Treasurer

1 The Zions Bank Uninvested Cash Balance and Unsetteled Transactions are separate from the investment portion. The sum of the three Zions Bank 
balance totals to the balance reflected on the provided statement.

19,555,142$  
36,749,639$  

In compliance with the California Government Code Section 53646, as the City Treasurer of the City of South Pasadena, based on the information 
provided I hereby identify that the City is able to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six months and that all investments are in compliance 
to the City's Statement of Investment Policy.
I also certify that this report reflects all Government Agency pooled investments and all City's bank balances.

Investment Balances at Month End

December 31, 2022

Exhibit A

City of South Pasadena

INVESTMENT REPORT

2/7/2023

6 - 5



 
THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 
LEFT BLANK 

6 - 6



Statement of Account
December 1, 2022 Through December 31, 2022

South Pasadena Custody

Account Number: 

1414 Mission Street
South Pasadena, CA 91030

City of South Pasadena

Exhibit B-1

6 - 7

ZIONS BANK. 

-



Cash Reconciliation
Income Principal

Receipts

Disbursements

Sales

Interest

Dividends

Other Receipts

Collective Fund Earnings

Transfers

0.00 2,336,304.07

10,536.02 0.00

590.94 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

Purchases

Fees

Other Disbursements

Transfers

0.00 -2,300,750.76

0.00 0.00

0.00 -5,458.05

0.00 0.00

Total Receipts 11,126.96 2,336,304.07

Total Disbursements 0.00 -2,306,208.81

Net Cash Management 0.00 -41,222.22

Opening Balance December 1, 2022 $ 847,845.49 $ -847,845.49

Closing Balance December 31, 2022 $ 858,972.45 $ -858,972.45

December 01, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Account Name : South Pasadena Custody Account No : 

Page 2Cash Reconciliation (2 col) - SUMCTB1

6 - 8

-



Portfolio

Portfolio Summary
Market Projected Current

 % Value Income Yield

December 31, 2022

Cash & Equivalents 0.55% 260,491.71 9,981.25 3.83%

Fixed Income 99.45% 46,682,968.50 891,065.07 1.91%

Accrued Income

Total Portfolio

Total Market Value

100.00 % 46,943,460.21 901,046.32 1.92%

207,399.60

47,150,859.81

December 01, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Account Name : South Pasadena Custody Account No : 

Page 3Port Sum and Hold w Accruals - ACRHLD

6 - 9

-



December 01, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Account Name : South Pasadena Custody Account No : 

Holdings
Shares / PV Asset Description Price Market Est Ann Inc Yield Acc IncomeCost

Money Market Funds - Taxable

260,491.71 Fidelity Gov Port III  FCGXX 260,491.71260,491.71 9,981.25 3.83%1.00 3,864.21

* * Sub Totals * * 260,491.71260,491.71 9,981.25 3.83% 3,864.21260,491.71

Corporate Bonds (30/360)

383,000 Bank of New York Mellon 382,536.37384,493.77 11,298.50 2.95%99.88 4,765.572.950% 01/29/2023

470,000 General Dynamics Corp 467,380.73476,093.05 15,862.50 3.39%99.44 1,993.893.375% 05/15/2023

466,000 Burlington Northn Santa Fe 462,184.11471,247.13 17,941.00 3.88%99.18 5,963.633.850% 09/01/2023

237,000 Cisco Systems Inc 232,795.67235,410.30 5,214.00 2.24%98.23 1,456.422.200% 09/20/2023

473,000 Deere John Capital Corp 469,275.71482,792.76 17,264.50 3.68%99.21 3,761.543.650% 10/12/2023

474,000 State Street Corp 468,122.40491,415.00 17,538.00 3.75%98.76 1,959.553.700% 11/20/2023

469,000 Caterpillar Finl Svcs 464,257.75488,541.36 17,587.50 3.79%98.99 1,768.583.750% 11/24/2023

594,000 Truist Finl Corp 587,647.48610,589.30 22,275.00 3.79%98.93 1,493.303.750% 12/06/2023

237,000 3M Co 232,656.69233,641.71 7,702.50 3.31%98.17 2,926.093.250% 02/14/2024

467,000 Blackrock Inc 459,518.27471,794.13 16,345.00 3.56%98.40 4,656.963.500% 03/18/2024

235,000 MetLife Inc 230,825.95242,189.29 8,460.00 3.67%98.22 1,890.503.600% 04/10/2024

468,000 Comcast Corp New 461,037.56486,999.46 17,316.00 3.76%98.51 3,627.653.700% 04/15/2024

470,000 Ace Ina Hldgs Inc 460,162.90455,881.20 15,745.00 3.42%97.91 1,979.123.350% 05/15/2024

478,000 Texas Instruments Inc 465,024.60484,080.02 12,547.50 2.70%97.29 1,577.202.625% 05/15/2024

242,000 Paccar Financial Corp 231,039.61245,945.38 5,203.00 2.25%95.47 1,962.032.150% 08/15/2024

598,000 Unitedhealth Group Inc 575,285.60612,447.46 14,202.50 2.47%96.20 5,355.692.375% 08/15/2024

241,000 United Parcel Svcs Inc 230,789.70242,165.57 5,302.00 2.30%95.76 1,762.402.200% 09/01/2024

490,000 Coca Cola Co 467,178.51490,801.14 8,575.00 1.84%95.34 2,730.591.750% 09/06/2024

610,000 PNC Finl Svcs Group Inc 583,114.07612,034.86 13,420.00 2.30%95.59 2,211.682.200% 11/01/2024

483,000 Pepsico Inc 459,556.42494,354.84 10,867.50 2.36%95.15 3,065.972.250% 03/19/2025

487,000 Target Corp 462,089.89494,519.29 10,957.50 2.37%94.88 2,295.572.250% 04/15/2025

504,000 US Bancorp 467,640.96498,297.09 7,308.00 1.56%92.79 979.841.450% 05/12/2025

827,000 JPMorgan Chase & Co 808,257.78873,558.57 32,253.00 3.99%97.73 14,865.213.900% 07/15/2025

585,000 Bank Of America Corp 569,974.20624,331.14 22,668.75 3.98%97.43 9,434.763.875% 08/01/2025

Page 4Port Sum and Hold w Accruals - ACRHLD

6 - 10

-



December 01, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Account Name : South Pasadena Custody Account No : 

Holdings
Shares / PV Asset Description Price Market Est Ann Inc Yield Acc IncomeCost

472,000 Home Depot Inc 458,010.87499,974.23 15,812.00 3.45%97.04 4,637.603.350% 09/15/2025

513,000 Bristol-Myers Squ bb Co 461,405.27473,796.54 3,847.50 0.83%89.94 505.120.750% 11/13/2025

257,000 Prudential Finl Inc 231,323.13249,874.41 3,855.00 1.67%90.01 1,184.501.500% 03/10/2026

523,000 Procter & Gamble Co 468,949.82501,840.38 5,230.00 1.12%89.67 978.801.000% 04/23/2026

524,000 Schwab Charles Corp 466,164.56503,714.96 6,026.00 1.29%88.96 791.121.150% 05/13/2026

485,000 Intel Corp 452,574.30497,799.65 12,610.00 2.79%93.31 1,444.162.600% 05/19/2026

351,000 Amazon Com Inc 350,504.66353,148.12 15,970.50 4.56%99.86 1,293.704.550% 12/01/2027

* * Sub Totals * * 13,587,285.5414,283,772.11 397,205.25 2.92% 95,318.7414,113,000

U.S. Treasury Bills

2,500,000 U S Treasury Bills 2,497,830.002,478,660.00 60,922.07 2.44%99.91 0.0001/12/2023

* * Sub Totals * * 2,497,830.002,478,660.00 60,922.07 2.44% 0.002,500,000

U.S. Treasury Notes & Bonds

2,246,000 U S Treasury Notes 2,241,950.462,251,056.92 39,305.00 1.75%99.82 16,341.481.750% 01/31/2023

2,648,000 U S Treasury Notes 2,606,315.182,640,009.54 36,410.00 1.40%98.43 18,205.001.375% 06/30/2023

1,471,000 U S Treasury Notes 1,422,101.021,446,948.50 3,677.50 0.26%96.68 929.480.250% 09/30/2023

2,133,000 U S Treasury Notes 2,098,172.382,179,603.78 61,323.75 2.92%98.37 5,222.632.875% 11/30/2023

2,036,000 U S Treasury Notes 1,973,010.232,034,316.55 43,265.00 2.19%96.91 10,935.112.125% 03/31/2024

2,888,000 U S Treasury Notes 2,787,370.532,893,472.33 57,760.00 2.07%96.52 9,733.042.000% 04/30/2024

2,753,000 U S Treasury Notes 2,572,441.742,688,117.38 17,206.25 0.67%93.44 3,639.780.625% 10/15/2024

2,539,000 U S Treasury Notes 2,333,699.002,466,140.98 12,695.00 0.54%91.91 3,208.630.500% 03/31/2025

2,320,000 U S Treasury Notes 2,103,316.642,213,630.56 5,800.00 0.28%90.66 2,900.000.250% 06/30/2025

2,077,000 U S Treasury Notes 1,859,646.101,972,491.75 7,788.75 0.42%89.54 663.330.375% 11/30/2025

2,215,000 U S Treasury Notes 1,972,647.992,109,604.43 8,306.25 0.42%89.06 3,453.410.375% 01/31/2026

2,062,000 U S Treasury Notes 1,850,323.331,982,404.35 15,465.00 0.84%89.73 3,908.740.750% 03/31/2026

2,598,000 U S Treasury Notes 2,303,493.322,485,764.10 19,485.00 0.85%88.66 6,566.770.750% 08/31/2026

1,400,000 U S Treasury Notes 1,407,492.801,420,672.40 57,750.00 4.10%100.54 14,596.154.125% 09/30/2027

* * Sub Totals * * 29,531,980.7230,784,233.57 386,237.50 1.31% 100,303.5531,386,000

Page 5Port Sum and Hold w Accruals - ACRHLD

6 - 11

-



December 01, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Account Name : South Pasadena Custody Account No : 

Holdings
Shares / PV Asset Description Price Market Est Ann Inc Yield Acc IncomeCost

U.S. Obligations Variable

1,065,000 U S Treasury Notes Adj Rt 1,065,872.241,066,455.34 46,700.25 4.38%100.08 7,913.104.385% 10/31/2023

* * Sub Totals * * 1,065,872.241,066,455.34 46,700.25 4.38% 7,913.101,065,000

* * Grand Totals * * 46,943,460.2148,873,612.73 1.92%901,046.32

Cash Summary

207,399.6049,324,491.71

-858,972.45

858,972.45

0.00

Principal Cash

Income Cash

Invested Income

Page 6Port Sum and Hold w Accruals - ACRHLD

6 - 12

-



Account Transactions
Date Description Income Principal Carrying Value

Starting Balances $ -847,845.49$ 847,845.49 $ 49,138,843.17

Interest

8,775.00Interest12/06/2022
Truist Finl Corp             3.7500% 12/06/23

2,494.53Accrued Interest Received12/08/2022
Amazon Com Inc               2.4000% 02/22/23

-310.54Purchase Accrued Interest12/08/2022
Amazon Com Inc               4.5500% 12/01/27

14,998.00Maturity - Interest12/08/2022
U S Treasury Bills                   12/08/22

-13,168.27Purchase Accrued Interest12/22/2022
U S Treasury Notes           4.1250% 09/30/27

-301.87Purchase Accrued Interest12/29/2022
Truist Finl Corp             3.7500% 12/06/23

-549.31Purchase Accrued Interest12/29/2022
Coca Cola Co                 1.7500% 09/06/24

-780.69Purchase Accrued Interest12/29/2022
Deere John Capital Corp      3.6500% 10/12/23

-220.00Purchase Accrued Interest12/29/2022
Procter & Gamble Co          1.0000% 04/23/26

-400.83Purchase Accrued Interest12/29/2022
State Street Corp            3.7000% 11/20/23

0.0010,536.02Sub Total 0.00

Dividends

590.94Dividend12/01/2022
Fidelity Gov Port III  FCGXX
Interest From 11/01/2022 To 11/30/2022

0.00590.94Sub Total 0.00

Buys

-353,148.12Buy12/08/2022 353,148.12
Amazon Com Inc               4.5500% 12/01/27
351000 Par Val  @  $100.612

December 01, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Account Name : South Pasadena Custody Account No : 

Page 7Transactions (3 col) - TRNTNT8

6 - 13

-



December 01, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Account Name : South Pasadena Custody Account No : 

Account Transactions
Date Description Income Principal Carrying Value

-1,420,672.40Buy12/22/2022 1,420,672.40
U S Treasury Notes           4.1250% 09/30/27
1400000 Par Val  @  $101.4766

-125,186.04Buy12/29/2022 125,186.04
Truist Finl Corp             3.7500% 12/06/23
126000 Par Val  @  $99.354

-95,655.00Buy12/29/2022 95,655.00
Coca Cola Co                 1.7500% 09/06/24
100000 Par Val  @  $95.655

-99,122.00Buy12/29/2022 99,122.00
Deere John Capital Corp      3.6500% 10/12/23
100000 Par Val  @  $99.122

-107,779.20Buy12/29/2022 107,779.20
Procter & Gamble Co          1.0000% 04/23/26
120000 Par Val  @  $89.816

-99,188.00Buy12/29/2022 99,188.00
State Street Corp            3.7000% 11/20/23
100000 Par Val  @  $99.188

-2,300,750.760.00Sub Total 2,300,750.76

Sells

351,302.07Sell12/08/2022 -359,729.83
Amazon Com Inc               2.4000% 02/22/23
Sold 353000 Par Val  @  $99.519
Cost Basis Removed $352,656.56
Short Term Gain/Loss : $-2,543.24
Long Term Gain/Loss : $1,188.75

1,985,002.00Maturity12/08/2022 -1,985,002.00
U S Treasury Bills                   12/08/22
2000000 PV  @  $ 99.2501
Cost Basis Removed $1,985,002.00

2,336,304.070.00Sub Total -2,344,731.83

Page 8Transactions (3 col) - TRNTNT8

6 - 14

-



December 01, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Account Name : South Pasadena Custody Account No : 

Account Transactions
Date Description Income Principal Carrying Value

Disbursements

-3,998.05Cash Disbursement12/09/2022
Miscellaneous Disbursement
Paid To  :   Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC
Per Sec. 9 of the Custody Agreement Inv#10823022341 dtd 12-07-22 Acct#255-138705 Inv#0108230

-1,460.00Cash Disbursement12/20/2022
Fee Paid To Bank - CC
Paid To  :   Zions Bank
Per Sec. 9 Custody Agreement. Quarterly Administration Fee $1460 (July 2022 - September 2023)
Invoice No. 10802 Dated 10/13/22.

-5,458.050.00Sub Total 0.00

Other/Miscellaneous

Explanation12/20/2022
Market Fee received in the amount of $500.00. Per invoice dated 09/30/2022.
Explanation12/20/2022
Miscellaneous Fee received in the amount of $960.00. Per invoice dated 12/20/2022.

0.000.00Sub Total 0.00

Cash Management

-590.94Sweep - Buy12/01/2022 590.94
Fidelity Gov Port III  FCGXX
590.94 Par Val  @  $1.00

-8,775.00Sweep - Buy12/06/2022 8,775.00
Fidelity Gov Port III  FCGXX
8775 Par Val  @  $1.00

-2,000,337.94Sweep - Buy12/08/2022 2,000,337.94
Fidelity Gov Port III  FCGXX
2000337.94 Par Val  @  $1.00

3,998.05Sweep - Sell12/09/2022 -3,998.05
Fidelity Gov Port III  FCGXX
Sold 3998.05 Par Val  @  $1.00

1,460.00Sweep - Sell12/20/2022 -1,460.00
Fidelity Gov Port III  FCGXX
Sold 1460 Par Val  @  $1.00

Page 9Transactions (3 col) - TRNTNT8

6 - 15

-



December 01, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Account Name : South Pasadena Custody Account No : 

Account Transactions
Date Description Income Principal Carrying Value

1,433,840.67Sweep - Sell12/22/2022 -1,433,840.67
Fidelity Gov Port III  FCGXX
Sold 1433840.67 Par Val  @  $1.00

529,182.94Sweep - Sell12/29/2022 -529,182.94
Fidelity Gov Port III  FCGXX
Sold 529182.94 Par Val  @  $1.00

-41,222.220.00Sub Total 41,222.22

Ending Balances $ -858,972.45$ 858,972.45 $ 49,136,084.32

Page 10Transactions (3 col) - TRNTNT8

6 - 16

-



Corporate Trust Services provided by Zions Bancorporation, N.A.
Statement Disclosures & Other Important Information

Please review your statement promptly and report any discrepancies immediately to your account administrator listed on the first page.

Market value information (including accrued income) furnished herein has been obtained from sources that Zions Bancorporation, N.A. believes
to be reliable. Zions Bancorporation, N.A. makes no representation, warranty or guarantee, express or implied, that any quoted value
necessarily reflects the proceeds that may be received on the sale of a security or asset. Securities and asset prices may vary from actual
liquidation value and should only be used as general guide to portfolio value. Prices are received from various pricing services. However, pricing
services are sometimes unable to provide timely information. Where pricing sources are not readily available, particularly on certain debt
securities, estimated prices may be generated by a matrix system taking various factors into consideration.

Securities, including mutual funds, are not bank deposits and are not FDIC insured, nor are they obligations of or guaranteed by
Zions Bancorporation, N.A., its affiliates or of any federal or state government or government sponsored agency. Securities,
including mutual funds, involve investment risks, including the possible loss of the principal amount invested.

December 01, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Account Name : South Pasadena Custody Account No : 

Page 11Statement Letter

6 - 17

-



2016 Water Revenue Bonds

Investment Issuer Settlement Par Value Coupon Market Value Current Maturity Days to CUSIP
Type Date Rate YTM Date Maturity Account Number

BNY Mellon Project Fund

1 Cash 358.94                0.010% 358.94                 0.010% 1
2 Morgan Stanley Treasury Portfolio 160,039.37 0.250% 158,291.81 0.250% 1

Subtotal Cash & Cash Equivalents 0.52% 160,398.31 0.249% 158,650.75 0.249% 1

Total Project Fund 160,398.31 0.249% 158,650.75 0.249% 1

Funds and Investments

Exhibit B-2

December 31, 2022
Held by Contracted (Third) Parties

6 - 18



MONTH FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23

JULY 17,332,153 20,958,651 26,306,572 28,541,631 74,033,803 33,187,829 34,119,395 39,309,559 47,220,730 62,091,716
AUGUST 17,330,985 12,658,088 26,294,151 28,405,544 73,122,925 31,258,493 34,245,197 35,205,219 47,188,874 62,035,853

SEPTEMBER 16,331,557 19,715,369 22,058,959 27,049,892 70,952,657 31,219,168 34,211,588 35,108,138 50,651,612 62,025,768
OCTOBER 13,841,158 17,221,779 22,325,114 27,023,005 70,917,973 26,989,542 30,424,551 32,530,753 47,647,956 62,066,381

NOVEMBER 13,836,635 17,221,849 22,287,418 73,246,265 26,547,176 26,916,772  30,394,571 36,836,391 47,638,933 62,383,437
DECEMBER 16,837,192 20,603,990 22,253,300 71,499,585 28,949,643 27,028,835  30,398,333 36,824,546 51,976,067 62,346,272
JANUARY 18,846,359 26,309,319 27,399,997 71,229,735 32,878,042 35,305,506  30,183,446 43,433,939 56,735,289

FEBRUARY 18,845,663 26,260,788 30,108,605 71,084,575 33,013,420 34,571,287  35,784,459 43,636,405 44,768,920
MARCH 13,145,894 26,315,158 28,939,924 72,604,964 32,833,141 32,568,840  35,894,036 43,608,698 53,763,388
APRIL 13,153,853 26,326,876 28,276,276 75,018,330 33,064,100 32,242,202  36,081,161 42,158,002 53,442,475
MAY 23,452,878 26,310,240 28,429,928 76,053,277 32,879,674 36,925,478  34,133,626 42,180,215 53,637,240
JUNE 22,452,628 29,289,712 26,594,581 75,918,587 33,102,349 38,922,757  34,218,755 42,164,581 53,485,809

December 31, 2022

Exhibit C

Investment Report

Summary of Invested Funds -- Last Day of the Month

6 - 19



 
THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 
LEFT BLANK 

6 - 20



7

7 - 1

DATE: 

FROM: 

City Council 
Agenda Report 

February 15, 2023 

Armine Chaparyan, City Manager A,l,-
PREPARED BY: Cathy Billings, Library Director 

ITEM NO. 

SUBJECT: Approval of a Purchase Order to D&R Office Works, Inc. for 
Library Workstations and Appropriate $10,000.00 from General 
Fund Reserves 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the City Council: 

1. Appropriate $10,000.00 to the Library Building Improvements Account No. 101-
8010-8011-8500 from the General Fund Reserves; and 

2. Approve a purchase order to D&R Office Works, Inc. for the purchase of eight (8) 
workstations for Library staff, including delivery, assembly, and sales tax; and 

3. Authorize the City Manager to execute the purchase order with D&R Office 
Works, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $44,000.00, including the $42,221.46 
quoted price and a $1,778.54 contingency. 

Background 
Current Library workstations are furnished with 20+ year old products that no longer 
meet the needs of current staffing levels, space management, and efficiencies. Half of 
the Library's full-time staff and all 15 of the part-time Aides and Clerks work out of the 
same small workroom on the Library's first floor. Some of the existing furnishings are 
not designed for computer work and are non-ergonomic. The workstations have no 
barriers between them and therefore no privacy or noise blocking capability. 
Improvements to the workspace and furnishings will provide improved workflows and 
productivity. 

Analysis 
Eight workstations are required to accommodate current staffing levels: five full-time 
staff, five part-time clerks, and one part-time weekend "in-charge" librarian. Five 
workstations will be assigned to the following full-time staff: Support Services Manager, 
Public Services Manager, Support Services Librarian, Circulation Supervisor, and Clerk 
II. The six part-time employees each work a maximum of 18 hours per week, and will 
share three workstations. The proposed workstations have 65" walls on three sides 
which will provide the conditions conducive to productivity that are currently lacking. 



Approve a Purchase Order to D&R Office Works, Inc. for Library Workstations 
February 15, 2023  
Page 2 of 3 

For the acquisition of these new workstations, the Library will utilize the competitive 
bidding process undertaken by the Public Works Department for workstation furniture 
for the Garfield Reservoir facility. In accordance with the City’s purchasing policy, Public 
Works solicited proposals to purchase, deliver, and assemble workstations. D&R Office 
Works, Inc., was the lowest of the three bids obtained. D&R’s proposal for the Library 
workstations uses the same furniture product line that was used in the competitive bid 
for Public Works. The City Council approved the Public Works purchase at the July 20, 
2022 City Council meeting (Agenda Item #20).  

Key Performance Indicators and Strategic Plan 
This item is in line with the City’s Adopted 2021-2026 Strategic Plan, item 6.h. City 
Workforce: To pursue a healthy Workplace Culture including efforts to raise employee 
morale. It is also related to the special project listed with the Library’s Key Performance 
Indicators regarding the addition of a full-time Support Services Librarian and the 
reorganization of roles and responsibilities in the Support Services Division and 
revisions to the Division’s policies, procedures and workflows. 

Fiscal Impact 
The Library is able to fund the majority of the Library Workstation Project (Project) with 
already budgeted Fiscal Year 2022-23 funds. A budget amendment request moved 
$3,000.00 from the Library’s Building Maintenance Account No. 101-8010-8011-8120 to 
the Library’s Machinery & Equipment Account No. 101-8010-8011-8250, making a total 
of $10,500.00 available for the project in that account. An additional $23,500.00 is 
available in the Library’s Building Improvements Account No. 101-8010-8011-8500, for 
a total of $34,000.00 available in the Library’s approved Budget. This staff report 
recommends that the City Council approve an appropriation from the General Fund 
Reserves in the amount of $10,000.00 to cover the remaining cost of the project.  

Due to inflation, the City will collect as much as $36,000.00 more in Library Special Tax 
Revenue than was budgeted for Fiscal Year 2022-23. The appropriation of an additional 
$10,000.00 for the Library is not expected to have a negative impact on the City’s 
Budget overall.  

Environmental Analysis 
Assembly of workstations inside an existing facility is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) analysis based on State CEQA Guidelines Section 
requirements under Section 21084 of the Public Resources Code, in accordance with 
Article 19, Section 15301, Class (1) "existing facilities."  

Commission Review and Recommendation 
This matter was presented as an informational item only to the Library Board of 
Trustees on January 12, 2023. No action was taken. 

Attachments: 
1. D&R Office Works, Inc. Proposal for Library Workstations

7 - 2



Approve a Purchase Order to D&R Office Works, Inc. for Library Workstations 
February 15, 2023  
Page 3 of 3 

2. Public Works Department Furnishings Item: July 20, 2022 City Council Agenda
Report, Item #20

7 - 3



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

7 - 4



ATTACHMENT 1 
D&R Office Works, Inc. Proposal for Library 

Workstations 

7 - 5



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

7 - 6



CATHY BILLINGS
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - PUBLIC LIBRARY
1100 OXLEY STREET
SOUTH PASADENA CA 91030-3298
626-403-7352

SAME

1/25/2023

BJ FERRANTE

BILL TO: SHIP TO:

 ITEM  QTY.   MODEL / DESCRIPTION UNIT     EXTENDED

HON H36720R

Brigade Ped "R" Pull Freestanding B/B/F 20"D x 28"H

8
$253.00 $2,024.00

1

.L Lock: Lock

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON H882

Brigade 800 Series Lateral File 2 Drawer 36W

8
$529.32 $4,234.56

2

.L Standard Random Key Lock

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HRVOH48FM

Abound Overhead-Metal Flipper Door 48"

5
$266.33 $1,331.65

3

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

.L Lock: Lock

HON HRVSH48

Abound Open Shelf 48"

8
$123.00 $984.00

4

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

85

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA LIBRARY - 
121522.visual.sp4

Page 1 of 81/25/20237 - 7



HON HWC4824P

Systems Corner Worksurface 48Wx24D Edgeband Curved

$264.00 $2,112.00

$(L1STD) Grd L1 Standard Laminates

.PINC Pinnacle

.PINC EDGE: Pinnacle

.T5 Grommet: Greige

HON HWR2448P

Systems Rectangular Worksurface Edgeband 24D x 48W

5
$165.67 $828.35

6

$(L1STD) Grd L1 Standard Laminates

.PINC Pinnacle

.PINC EDGE: Pinnacle

.T5 Grommet: Greige

HON HWR2442P

Systems Rectangular Worksurface Edgeband 24D x 42W

8
$156.00 $1,248.00

7

$(L1STD) Grd L1 Standard Laminates

.PINC Pinnacle

.PINC EDGE: Pinnacle

.T5 Grommet: Greige

HON HH871248

Electrical Power Harness 48W 3-1 & 2-2 Systems

21
$89.00 $1,869.00

8

HON HS30ABC

Brigade Bookcase 2-Shelf 12-5/8D x 34-1/2W x 29H

5
$154.44 $772.20

9

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HETP6548FP

Tackable Panel w/o TC 65H x 48W

13
$194.67 $2,530.71

10

$(A) Gr A Fabric

.APN FABRIC: Appoint

09 COLOR: Morel

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA LIBRARY - 
121522.visual.sp4

Page 2 of 81/25/20237 - 8



.T5 Greige

HON H511596

Bookcase Laminate Top 34-1/2W x 12-5/8D

5
$118.33 $591.65

11

$(L1STD) Grd L1 Standard Laminates

.PINC Pinnacle

HON HETP3548FP

Tackable Panel w/o TC 35H x 48W

8
$142.00 $1,136.00

12

$(A) Gr A Fabric

.APN FABRIC: Appoint

09 COLOR: Morel

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HETP3542FP

Tackable Panel w/o TC 35H x 42W

8
$135.00 $1,080.00

13

$(A) Gr A Fabric

.APN FABRIC: Appoint

09 COLOR: Morel

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HETP3524FP

Tackable Panel w/o TC 35H x 24W

9
$118.33 $1,064.97

14

$(A) Gr A Fabric

.APN FABRIC: Appoint

09 COLOR: Morel

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HES3024G

Clear Glass Stacker 30H x 24W

6
$258.33 $1,549.98

15

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

.Q Glass: Clear

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA LIBRARY - 
121522.visual.sp4

Page 3 of 81/25/20237 - 9



HON HES3042G

Clear Glass Stacker 30H x 42W

5
$334.67 $1,673.35

16

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

.Q Glass: Clear

HON HES3048G

Clear Glass Stacker 30H x 48W

5
$360.33 $1,801.65

17

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

.Q Glass: Clear

HON H36820R

Brigade Ped "R" Pull Freestanding F/F 20 20"D x 28"H

5
$253.00 $1,265.00

18

.L Lock: Lock

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HETP6524FP

Tackable Panel w/o TC 65H x 24W

3
$151.67 $455.01

19

$(A) Gr A Fabric

.APN FABRIC: Appoint

09 COLOR: Morel

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HH871224

Electrical Power Harness 24W 3-1 & 2-2 Systems

4
$84.33 $337.32

20

HON HETP3560FP

Tackable Panel w/o TC 35H x 60W

1
$154.67 $154.67

21

$(A) Gr A Fabric

.APN FABRIC: Appoint

09 COLOR: Morel

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA LIBRARY - 
121522.visual.sp4

Page 4 of 81/25/20237 - 10



$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HES3060G

Clear Glass Stacker 30H x 60W

1
$413.00 $413.00

22

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

.Q Glass: Clear

HON HWR2424P

Systems Rect Worksurface Edgeband 24D X 24W

3
$125.67 $377.01

23

$(L1STD) Grd L1 Standard Laminates

.PINC Pinnacle

.PINC EDGE: Pinnacle

.T5 Grommet: Greige

HON HRVOH24FM

Abound Overhead-Metal Flipper Door 24"

3
$228.00 $684.00

24

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

.L Lock: Lock

HON HH870942

Tasklight 42W

13
$102.33 $1,330.29

25

HON HH870924

Tasklight 24W

3
$93.33 $279.99

26

HON HH879072

Base In-Feed Cable Base 3-1 & 2-2 Systems

2
$94.33 $188.66

27

HON HH871501

Duplex Receptacle Circuit 1 3-1 & 2-2 Systems

20
$18.00 $360.00

28

.EY Brownstone

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA LIBRARY - 
121522.visual.sp4

Page 5 of 81/25/20237 - 11



HON HH871502

Duplex Receptacle Circuit 2 3-1 & 2-2 Systems

20
$18.00 $360.00

29

.EY Brownstone

HON HETC48

Panel Top Cap 48"W

21
$28.33 $594.93

30

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HETC42

Panel Top Cap 42"W

8
$25.67 $205.36

31

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HETC24

Panel Top Cap 24"W

12
$16.00 $192.00

32

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HETC60

Panel Top Cap 60"W

1
$35.33 $35.33

33

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HSCKTPS

Straight Connector Kit

17
$8.67 $147.39

34

.X No Option

HON HEFEC35P

Panel Finished End Covers 35H

3
$21.33 $63.99

35

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

736

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA LIBRARY - 
121522.visual.sp4

Page 6 of 81/25/20237 - 12



HON HEFEC65P

Panel Finished End Covers 65H

$27.33 $191.31

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HEC65PTN

65H "T" Connector Post

6
$58.00 $348.00

37

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HECVH30P

Variable Height Connector Kit 30H

3
$33.00 $99.00

38

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HECS1

Single Connector Strap

6
$6.67 $40.02

39

HON HEC35PLN

35H "L" Connector Post

3
$38.67 $116.01

40

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HECSL

"L" Connector Strap

11
$6.67 $73.37

41

HON HEC65PLN

65H "L" Connector Post

8
$60.00 $480.00

42

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HECST

"T" Connector Strap

3
$9.33 $27.99

43

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA LIBRARY - 
121522.visual.sp4

Page 7 of 81/25/20237 - 13



HON HWSB2

Worksurface Bracket Kit

9
$19.67 $177.03

44

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HWSB2

Worksurface Bracket Kit

8
$19.67 $157.36

45

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

HON HCTL242

24D Cantilever One Pair

16
$35.00 $560.00

46

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts

.T5 Greige

$36,546.11TOTAL:

DELIVERY / INSTALLATION

$1,750.00 $1,750.00

SALES TAX

$3,925.35 $3,925.35

ORDER TOTAL:
TERMS / CONDITIONS:
-NET 30 DAYS.
-SPECIAL ORDERS CAN NOT BE CANCELLED.
-CREDIT CARDS: CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS OVER $5,000.00 WILL BE CHARGED A 3% PROCESSING FEE.
-DELIVERY / INSTALLATION CHARGES BASED ON NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS / AREA CLEARED.
-MOVING OF ADDITIONAL FURNITURE IS NOT INCLUDED
-ORDERS DELAYED OR HELD FOR MORE THAN 30 DAYS ARE DUE AND PAYABLE IN FULL.

_____________________________________           ______________
SIGNATURE                                                                          DATE

$42,221.46

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA LIBRARY - 
121522.visual.sp4

Page 8 of 81/25/20237 - 14



B
B

F

PUBLIC LIBRARY

18x36x28

4848

24
x4

8 24x48

24
x4

2

48PH 48PH

18x36x28

4848

24
x4

8 24x48

24
x4

2

48PH 48PH

18x36x28

4848

24
x4

8 24x48

24
x4

2

48PH 48PH

18x36x28

4848

24
x4

8 24x48

24
x4

2

48PH 48PH

4'
 

222 2

BBF

7-1/2' x 8' 7-1/2' x 8' 7-1/2' x 8' 7-1/2' x 8'

65x48T 65x48T65x48T 65x48T65x48T65x48T65x48T65x48T

H
51

15
96

H
51

15
96

H
51

15
96

H
51

15
96

65x48T 65x48T

48PH 48PH

3
5

x4
8

T
3

5
x4

2
T

35x24T

35x24T
30x24G

3
5

x4
2

T
3

0
x4

2
G

3
5

x4
8

T
3

0
x4

8
G

3
5

x4
8

T

3
5

x4
8

T

3
5

x4
8

T
3

0
x4

8
G

3
0

x4
8

G

3
0

x4
8

G

3
5

x4
2

T

3
5

x4
2

T

3
5

x4
2

T

3
0

x4
2

G

3
0

x4
2

G

3
0

x4
2

G

35x24T 35x24T 35x24T
30x24G 30x24G 30x24G

24
x4

8

24
x4

2

24x48

F
F

18x36x28

48 48

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

B
B

F

B
B

F

B
B

F

B
B

F

65x48T65x48T 65x48T

48PH48PH 48PH

65x24T65x24T 65x24T

24PH24PH 24PH

3
5

x4
8

T
3

5
x4

2
T

35x24T

3
5

x4
8

T
3

5
x4

2
T

35x24T
30x24G

3
0

x4
2

G
3

0
x4

8
G

24
x4

8

24
x4

8

24
x4

2

24
x4

2

3
5

x4
8

T
3

5
x4

2
T

35x24T

3
5

x2
4

T
3

0
x2

4
G

3
5

x6
0

T
3

0
x6

0
G

24
x4

8

24
x4

2

24x2424x24 24x24

2424 244848 48

TLTLTL TLTL TLTL TL

TLTLTLTLTLTLTLTL

7-1/2' x 8' 7-1/2' x 6' 7-1/2' x 6' 7-1/2' x 6'

1
8

x3
6

x2
8

1
8

x3
6

x2
8

BBF

1
8

x3
6

x2
8

BBF

BIF

2
4

P
H B

IF

4
8

P
H

4
8

P
H

4
8

P
H

4
8

P
H

4
8

P
H

4
8

P
H

4
8

P
H

4
8

P
H

1

11

1

1

1 1

1
2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2 12 1 2

1

11

1

1

1

1

12

2

2

2

2

2

2

2 1212

TC48TC48

T
C

48

TC48TC48

T
C

48

TC48TC48

T
C

48

TC48TC48

T
C

48
T

C
48

TC48TC48TC48 TC48

T
C

48

T
C

48

T
C

48

T
C

42

T
C

42

T
C

42

T
C

42
T

C
42

T
C

42

T
C

42

T
C

42

TC24TC24TC24TC24

TC24

TC24TC24 TC24

T
C

24

TC24TC24 TC24

T
C

60

TC48

IC

IC

IC

IC

IC

IC

IC

IC
IC IC

ICIC

IC IC

IC IC

IC

35E35E35E65E

6
5

E

65E

65E

65E65E65E

65T 65T 65T3
0

V
H

3
0

V
H

3
0

V
H

S1S1 S1S1 S1S1

3
5

L

3
5

L

3
5

L

S
L

S
L

S
L

6
5

L
S

L

65L
SL

6
5

L
S

L

65L65L65L 65L

6
5

L
S

L

SL SL SL SL

65T65T 65T
ST STST

2

H
51

15
96

WBKWBKWBKWBK

WBKWBKWBKWBK

WBKWBK WBK WBK

WBKWBKWBK WBK

W
B

K

CB

C
B

CB

C
B

CB

C
B

C
B

CB

C
B

CB

C
B

CB

C
B

CB

C
B

CB

7 - 15



7 - 16



ATTACHMENT 2 
Public Works Department Furnishings Item: July 
20, 2022 City Council Agenda Report, Item #20 

7 - 17



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

7 - 18



20
City Council 
Agenda Report 

DATE: July 20, 2022 

FROM: Armine Chaparyan, City Manager ~ 
PREPARED BY: H. Ted Gerber, Director of Public Works 

ITEM NO. 

SUBJECT: Approve a Purchase Order to D&R Office Works, Inc. for 
Workstations at the Garfield Water Distribution Facility 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the City Council: 

1. Approve a purchase order to D&R Office Works, Inc. for the purchase of twelve 
(12) workstations for the Garfield Water Distribution Facility, including delivery, 
assembly, and sales tax; and 

2. Authorize the City Manager to execute the purchase order with D&R Office 
Works, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $55,000, including the $49,438.39 
quoted price and a $5,438.39 contingency. 

Background 
In late 2021/early 2022, the Public Works Department staff that had occupied 
workstations and offices at City Hall moved to the second floor of the Garfield Water 
Distribution Facility. The City Hall office area previously occupied by Public Works staff 
is now occupied by Management Services staff. 

Prior to the move, the Garfield Water Distribution Facility second floor was an open 
space with no fixed workstation units. Subsequently, the Public Works Department 
requested a mid-year budget adjustment from City Council in early 2022 to 
accommodate the purchase of workstations for full-time and part-time office staff. At 
present, the existing office staff at the Garfield Water Distribution Facility are utilizing 
temporary tables as workstations. 

Analysis 
Twelve workstations are required in the second floor open area for current Public Works 
office positions and positions that are now in recruitment. Positions currently in 
recruitment are the Public Works Assistant, Senior Civil Engineer, Associate Engineer, 
Civil Engineering Assistant, Two Inspectors, Two Management Analysts, Engineering 
Division Intern, Environmental Services & Sustainability Intern, and a forthcoming 
Transportation position. 

The Public Works Director and Public Works Deputy Director are seated in the former 
Deputy Director and Water Operations Manager offices. The Water Operations 

7 - 19



Public Works Garfield Water Distribution Facility Workstation Purchase 
July 20, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

Manager and Environmental Services & Sustainability Manager will have offices located 
in another part of the building, in a separate effort. 
In accordance with the City’s purchasing policy, the Public Works Department solicited 
proposals to purchase, deliver, and assemble the workstations: 

Vendor Price 

M3 Office (South Pasadena) $65,940.33 

2010 Office Furniture (South El Monte) $45,188.56 

D&R Office Works, Inc. (El Monte) $44,546.60 
Note:  D&R Office Works, Inc. was the only vendor to include chairs as requested in the quote. 
For comparison, the value of the chairs and chair sales tax was removed from D&R’s price in 
the above table. 

Fiscal Impact 
Sufficient funds are available in the Public Works Administration & Engineering Special 
Department Expense Account No. 101-6010-6011-8020-000 ($40,000) and Water 
Distribution Special Department Expense Account No. 500-6010-6710-8020-000 
($15,000) as funds were appropriately carried forward from Fiscal Year 2021-2022. 

Environmental Analysis 
Assembly of workstations inside an existing facility is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) analysis based on State CEQA Guidelines Section 
requirements under Section 21084 of the Public Resources Code, in accordance with 
Article 19, Section 15301, Class (1) "existing facilities."  

Attachment: D&R Office Works, Inc. Proposal 

7 - 20



ATTACHMENT 
D&R Office Works Proposal 

7 - 21



ANTENEH TESFAYE
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA
416 GARFIELD AVE.
SOUTH PASADENA CA 91030
626-460-6393

SAME
LEAONNA DEWITT

6/9/2022
BJ FERRANTE

BILL TO: SHIP TO:

PROPOSAL

 ITEM  QTY.   MODEL / DESCRIPTION UNIT  EXTENDED

HON

HETC24
Panel Top Cap 24"W

14

$14.61 $204.54

1

HON

HETC72
Panel Top Cap 72"W

18

$39.61 $712.98

2

HON

HSCKTPS
Straight Connector Kit

8

$7.79 $62.32

3

HON

HEFEC65P
Panel Finished End Covers 65H

14

$25.32 $354.48

4

HON

HEC65PTN
65H "T" Connector Post

4

$53.90 $215.60

5

HON

HEC65PLN
65H "L" Connector Post

12

$55.84 $670.08

6

HON

HECSL
"L" Connector Strap

12

$6.17 $74.04

7

HON

HECST
"T" Connector Strap

4

$8.44 $33.76

8

HON

HH871224

29

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - 060922.visual.sp4 Page 1 of 46/9/2022

9956 baldwin place el monte, ca 91731 
626.454.4660 

Of fi Ce WO f k S , in C. www.dandrofficeworks.com 

7 - 22
7 - 22



Electrical Power Harness 24W 3-1 & 2-2 Systems $78.57 $157.14

HON

HH871236
Electrical Power Harness 36W 3-1 & 2-2 Systems

12

$78.57 $942.84

10

HON

HH871501
Duplex Receptacle Circuit 1 3-1 & 2-2 Systems

22

$16.56 $364.32

11

HON

HH871502
Duplex Receptacle Circuit 2 3-1 & 2-2 Systems

24

$16.56 $397.44

12

HON

HH879072
Base In-Feed Cable Base 3-1 & 2-2 Systems

4

$87.66 $350.64

13

HON

HWR2472P
Systems Rectangular Worksurface Edgeband 24D x 72W

4

$201.62 $806.48

14

HON

HWR2436P
Systems Rectangular Worksurface Edgeband 24D x 36W

12

$132.14 $1,585.68

15

HON

HWV93AARP
Systems 72x36x24x24Rt Corner Cove Worksurface Edgeband

6

$254.55 $1,527.30

16

HON

HWV93AALP
Systems 72x36x24x24Left Corner Cove Worksurface Edgebd

6

$254.55 $1,527.30

17

HON

HVFB20R
Box/Box/File 28H x 19 7/8D x 15W

12

$212.34 $2,548.08

18

HON

HVFF23R
File/File 28H x 22 7/8D x15W

4

$216.56 $866.24

19

HON

HCTL242
24D Cantilever One Pair

16

$32.47 $519.52

20

HON

HCTL241L

821

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - 060922.visual.sp4 Page 2 of 46/9/20227 - 23
7 - 23



Left-hand Cantilever 24"D $17.53 $140.24

HON

HCTL241R
Right-hand Cantilever 24"D

8

$17.53 $140.24

22

HON

HWSB2
Worksurface Bracket Kit

16

$18.18 $290.88

23

HON

HRVOH36FM
Abound Overhead-Metal Flipper Door 36"

12

$225.97 $2,711.64

24

HON

HH870930
Tasklight 30W

12

$87.99 $1,055.88

25

HON

HVFF20R
File/File 28H x 19 7/8D x 15W

8

$210.39 $1,683.12

26

HON

HEC65PXN
65H "X" Connector Post

2

$51.62 $103.24

27

HON

HECSX
"X" Connector Strap

2

$10.06 $20.12

28

HON

HEWS65P
Wall Starter Kit for Panels 65H

2

$41.23 $82.46

29

HON

HES3024G
Clear Glass Stacker 30H x 24W

14

$250.32 $3,504.48

30

HON

HES3036G
Clear Glass Stacker 30H x 36W

30

$291.56 $8,746.80

31

HON

HETP3524FP
Tackable Panel w/o TC 35H x 24W

14

$106.82 $1,495.48

32

HON

HETP3536FP

3033

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - 060922.visual.sp4 Page 3 of 46/9/20227 - 24

7 - 24



Tackable Panel w/o TC 35H x 36W $119.48 $3,584.40

HON

HETP6536FP
Tackable Panel w/o TC 65H x 36W

6

$154.22 $925.32

34

925

2360-Y2-A8B
Bristol - Mid-Back, Synchro-Tilt Control, A8 Height Adj. Black Arms

12

$369.75 $4,437.00

35

$42,842.08TOTAL:

DELIVERY / INSTALLATION $2,000.00 $2,000.00

SALES TAX $4,596.31 $4,596.31

ORDER TOTAL:
TERMS / CONDITIONS:
-NET 30
-CREDIT CARDS: CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS OVER $5,000.00 WILL BE CHARGED A 3% PROCESSING FEE.
-DELIVERY/INSTALLATION CHARGES BASED ON NORMALL BUSINESS HOURS  / AREA CLEARED
-MOVING OF ADDITIONAL FURNITURE IS NOT INCLUDED.
-SPECIAL ORDERS CAN NOT BE CANCELLED.
-ORDERS DELAYED OR HELD FOR MORE THAN 30 DAYS ARE DUE AND PAYABLE IN FULL.

_____________________________________  ______________
SIGNATURE            DATE

$49,438.39

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - 060922.visual.sp4 Page 4 of 46/9/20227 - 25

7 - 25



IC
IC

6
5
E

6
5
E

6
5
E

65T65L

6
5
L

SL

S
L

ST

2
4
P
H

3
6
P
H

3
6
P
H

1
1

1
1

2

2

2

2

B
IF

24x72 24x72

2
4
x3
62

4
x3
6

72x36x24x24
72

x3
6x

24
x2

4BBF BBF

FF FF

C
B

C
BC

B
C
B

CL
CR

CR
CL

W
B
K W

B
K

3
63

6

T
L

T
L

IC

6
5
E

6
5
E

65T 65L

6
5
L

SL

S
L

ST

3
6
P
H

3
6
P
H

1
1

1
1

2

2

2

2

2
4
x3
6 2

4
x3
6

72
x3
6x
24
x2
4

72x36x24x24 BBFBBF

C
B C

B

CR
CL

W
B
KW

B
K

3
6 3

6T
L

TL

F
F

F
FWBK

IC

6
5
E

6
5
E

65L

6
5
L

SL

S
L

3
6
P
H

3
6
P
H

1
1

1
2

2

2

2

2
4
x3
6 2

4
x3
6

72
x3
6x
24
x2
4

72x36x24x24 BBFBBF

C
B C

B

CR
CL

W
B
KW

B
K

3
6 3

6T
L

T
L

F
F F

FWBK

65X
SX

6
5
W

B
IF

T
C
2
4

3
0
x2
4
G

T
C
2
4

3
0
x2
4
G T

C
2
4

3
0
x2
4
G

T
C
2
4

3
0
x2
4
G

3
0
x3
6
G

T
C
72

30x36G

TC72
30x36G 30x36G

TC72
30x36G

T
C
72

3
0
x3
6
G

30x36G

TC72
30x36G 30x36G

TC72
30x36G

3
5
x2
4
T

3
5
x2
4
T 3

5
x2
4
T

3
5
x2
4
T

35x36T 35x36T 35x36T 35x36T

3
5
x3
6
T

3
5
x3
6
T

35x36T 35x36T 35x36T 35x36T

6
5
x3
6
T

6
5
x3
6
T

6
5
x3
6
T

T
C
2
4

3
5
x2
4
T

3
0
x2
4
G

T
C
2
4

3
5
x2
4
T

3
0
x2
4
G T

C
2
4

3
5
x2
4
T

3
0
x2
4
G

3
5
x3
6
T

T
C
72

3
0
x3
6
G

35x36T
30x36G

35x36T

TC72
30x36G

35x36T
30x36G

35x36T

TC72
30x36G

IC
IC

6
5
E

6
5
E

6
5
E

65T65L

6
5
L

SL

S
L

ST

2
4
P
H

3
6
P
H

3
6
P
H

1
1

1
1

2

2

2

2

B
IF

24x72 24x72

2
4
x3
62

4
x3
6

72x36x24x24
72

x3
6x

24
x2

4BBF BBF

FF FF

C
B

C
BC

B
C
B

CL
CR

CR
CL

W
B
K W

B
K

3
63

6

T
L

T
L

6
5
x3
6
T

T
C
2
4

3
5
x2
4
T

3
0
x2
4
G

T
C
2
4

3
5
x2
4
T

3
0
x2
4
G T

C
2
4

3
5
x2
4
T

3
0
x2
4
G

3
5
x3
6
T

T
C
72

3
0
x3
6
G

35x36T
30x36G

35x36T

TC72
30x36G

35x36T
30x36G

35x36T

TC72
30x36G

IC

6
5
E

6
5
E

65T 65L

6
5
L

SL

S
L

ST

3
6
P
H

3
6
P
H

1
1

1
1

2

2

2

2

2
4
x3
6 2

4
x3
6

72
x3
6x
24
x2
4

72x36x24x24 BBFBBF

C
B C

B

CR
CL

W
B
KW

B
K

3
6 3

6T
L

TL

F
F

F
FWBK

IC

6
5
E

6
5
E

65L

6
5
L

SL

S
L

3
6
P
H

3
6
P
H

1
1

1
2

2

2

2

2
4
x3
6 2

4
x3
6

72
x3
6x
24
x2
4

72x36x24x24 BBFBBF

C
B C

B

CR
CL

W
B
KW

B
K

3
6 3

6T
L

T
L

F
F F

FWBK

65X
SX

6
5
W

B
IF

T
C
2
4

3
0
x2
4
G

T
C
2
4

3
0
x2
4
G T

C
2
4

3
0
x2
4
G

T
C
2
4

3
0
x2
4
G

3
0
x3
6
G

T
C
72

30x36G

TC72
30x36G 30x36G

TC72
30x36G

T
C
72

3
0
x3
6
G

30x36G

TC72
30x36G 30x36G

TC72
30x36G

3
5
x2
4
T

3
5
x2
4
T 3

5
x2
4
T

3
5
x2
4
T

35x36T 35x36T 35x36T 35x36T

3
5
x3
6
T

3
5
x3
6
T

35x36T 35x36T 35x36T 35x36T

6
5
x3
6
T

6
5
x3
6
T

I 
I 

( i ( I/ 
I I -

I 

O 

I 

u u 

0 I I 0 

u u 

I 

O 

I 

-

- ~ 

~ - ~ ~ ~ - ~ ~ 

o-1 t~o oJ ~-0 
~ - ~ -LI = 

= , LI LI = ; LI ',".' =:: ',".' 
- - - - - - -

- - - - - -n u u n n u u n = F(> = = 

\ = F(> / \ = 
:_ ✓ ~ 

0-i· i-0 0-i i~o 
E n~ ~ u ,~ ,~ ~ - - - - - - - -n u u n n u u n = F(> = = 

\ = 
~/ ~ \ = :_✓ ~ 

0 ~: 1-0 0 ~r 1=0 H~ -
~ ,~ ~ -

7 - 26



7 - 27



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

7 - 28



8

8 - 1



Adoption of Emergency Operations Plan and Annexes 
February 15, 2023  
Page 2 of 2 

The updated version contains language and processes that have evolved in the seven 
years since last adoption. The updates include Annexes that address specific types of 
emergencies that have also evolved since the last EOP adoption specific to heat and 
earthquake related incidents. 

The EOP is being presented for approval as required by the South Pasadena Municipal 
Code (SPMC). Per SPMC section Chapter 11, titled Emergency Organization, the Mayor 
and City Manager are assigned the role of Civil Defense and Disaster Council. SPMC 
Section 11.4 states “It shall be the duty of the South Pasadena disaster council, and it is 
empowered to develop and recommend for adoption by the City Council, emergency and 
mutual aid plans and agreements and such ordinances and resolutions and rules and 
regulations as are necessary to implement such plans and agreements.”  

Key Performance Indicators and Strategic Plan 
This item is in line section 3(c) of the Adopted 2021-2026 Strategic Plan, which addresses 
emergency preparedness and the renewing of the City’s Emergency Operations Plan and 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact related to this item, outside of staff time and duplication costs. 
Approval of this EOP will make the City eligible to receive state and federal disaster 
reimbursement and recovery funds that are made available under local, state, and federal 
disaster declarations.  

Community Outreach 
This document and its Annexes were reviewed by the Public Safety Commission on 
March 14, 2022, the Natural Resources and Environmental Commission on August 23, 
2022, the City’s Disaster Council on September 13, 2022, Los Angeles County Office of 
Emergency Management on July 15, 2022, and the AREA C Disaster Management Area 
Coordinator on July 21, 2022. They all recommended the EOP and Annexes be presented 
for review and approval to the City Council. City Council heard a presentation at their 
December 7, 2022 meeting and provided staff direction on next steps and to return with 
a final document for adoption in early 2023. 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution
2. Emergency Operations Plan, Part 1
3. Emergency Operations Plan, Part 2
4. Earthquake Annex
5. Heat Emergency Annex

8 - 2



ATTACHMENT 1 
Resolution 

8 - 3



 
THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 
LEFT BLANK 

8 - 4



RESOLUTION NO. __ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SOUTH PASADENA, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING AN UPDATED 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN AND ANNEXES 

WHEREAS, The purpose of the City of South Pasadena (City) Emergency 
Operations Plan (EOP) is to provide the planning basis for a coordinated 
response to extraordinary emergency situations associated with natural, and 
human-caused emergencies or disasters within or affecting the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s last EOP update was in 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the City received an updated Emergency Operations Plan 
template through a Federal Emergency Management Performance Grant for use 
by local jurisdictions in Los Angeles County; and 

WHEREAS, the template was utilized to update the City’s EOP to more 
closely address the types of emergencies facing the City, and to match our 
staffing and organization chart; and 

WHEREAS, the updated EOP includes Annexes that address specific 
types of emergencies that have evolved since the last EOP adoption specific to 
heat and earthquake-related incidents; and 

WHEREAS, the City Disaster Council, consisting of the Mayor and City 
Manager, have reviewed the updated EOP; and 

WHEREAS, on December 7, 2022, an overview of the updated EOP was 
presented to the City Council. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SOUTH 
PASADENA, CALIFORNIA, DOES RESOLVE, DECLARE, DETERMINE AND 
ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The EOP and Annexes are hereby adopted as the 
Emergency Operations Plan of the City of South Pasadena. 

SECTION 2. The EOP shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

SECTION 3. The City Clerk of the City of South Pasadena shall certify to 
the passage and adoption of this resolution and its approval by the City Council 
and shall cause the same to be listed in the records of the City. 

8 - 5



RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 
PAGE 2 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON this 15th day of February, 2023. 

Jon Primuth, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Desiree Jimenez, CMC Andrew L. Jared, City Attorney 
Chief City Clerk 

      I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the 
City Council of the City of South Pasadena, California, at a regular meeting held 
on the 15th day of February, 2023, by the following vote:  

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAINED: 

Desiree Jimenez, CMC 
Chief City Clerk 

8 - 6



ATTACHMENT 2 
Emergency Operations Plan, Part 1 

8 - 7



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

8 - 8



EMERGENCY 
OPERATIONS PLAN 
PART 1: BASE PLAN  

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA JUNE 2022 

8 - 9



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 1 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

8 - 10



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 2 

 Introductory Material 
1.1 Cover Page 

CITY OF SOUTH 
PASADENA 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS 
PLAN 

PART 1: BASE PLAN 

2022 

8 - 11



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 3 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

8 - 12



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 4 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN 
PART 1: BASE PLAN 
JUNE 2022  

PREPARED FOR PREPARED BY 

Project Manager/Lead Facilitator: 
Michael Brady 
michaelbrady101@gmail.com 

Project Subject Matter Expert/Facilitator: 
Kurt Johnson 

Technical Expert & Writer: 
Hilda Hurtado, CEM, PCP 

8 - 13



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 5 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

8 - 14



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 6 

1.2 Letter of Promulgation 
 
To: City Officials, Employees and Residents 
 
The preservation of life, property and the environment are inherent responsibilities of local, 
state, and federal governments. As disasters can occur at any time, the City must provide 
safeguards that will save lives and minimize property and environmental damage through 
careful planning, preparedness measures and training. Sound emergency plans carried out by 
knowledgeable and well-trained personnel can and will minimize losses.  
 
The City’s Emergency Operations Plan establishes an Emergency Management Organization 
and assigns functions and tasks consistent with California’s Standardize Emergency 
Management System (SEMS) and the National Incident Management System (NIMS). It 
provides for the integration and coordination of planning efforts through a whole community 
approach and authorizes City’s personnel to perform their duties and tasks before, during, and 
after an emergency. 
 
This plan was developed for City Departments and local special districts with emergency 
services responsibilities within the City. The content is based upon guidance approved and 
provided by the Federal Emergency Management Agency standard on EOP organization for a 
local jurisdiction and the California Office of Emergency Services. Its intent is to provide 
direction on how to respond to an emergency from the onset, through an extended response 
and into the recovery process.  
 
Once adopted, this plan is an extension of the County of Los Angeles’s Emergency Response 
Plan and the California Emergency Plan. It will be reviewed and tested periodically and revised 
as necessary to meet changing conditions such as lessons learned from an actual disaster and 
emergency; and/or changes in State/Federal guidance. 

This EOP will be submitted to the City Council for review, and, upon their concurrence, officially 
adopted and promulgated. 

This promulgation shall be effective upon its signing and shall remain in effect until amended or 
rescinded by further promulgation. The promulgation of this EOP further affirms the City’s 
support for emergency management, and a safe and resilient community. 

________________________ 

Armine Chaparyan 

City Manager 

Director of Emergency Services 

1.3 Approval & Implementation 
 
The City’s Emergency Operations Plan addresses the City’s planned response to extraordinary 
emergency situations associated with natural or man-made disasters under an all-hazards 

8 - 15



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 7 

approach. This plan does not apply to normal day-to-day emergencies incidents or the 
established departmental procedures used to cope with such emergencies. Instead, this plan 
focuses on operational concepts that would be implemented in large-scale disasters, which can 
pose major threats to life, property, and the environment, requiring unusual emergency 
responses. 

This plan accomplishes the following: 

• Establishes the Emergency Management Organization required to mitigate any
significant emergency or disaster affecting the City.

• Identifies the roles and responsibilities required to protect the health and safety of City
residents, public and private property, and the environmental, due to natural or human-
caused emergency disasters.

• Establishes the operational concepts associated with a field response to emergencies,
the City’s Emergency Operation Center (EOC) activities and the recovery process.

Upon concurrence of the City Council, the plan will be officially adopted and promulgated. The 
approval date will be included on the title page and the plan will be distributed to City 
departments, supporting agencies and community organizations having assigned primary 
responsibilities with the Emergency Operations Plan, as necessary. 

Upon the delegation of authority from the City Manager, specific modifications can be made to 
this plan without the signature of the City Council. This Emergency Operations Plan and 
Attachments supersede all previous versions of the City’s Emergency Operations Plan. 

8 - 16



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 8 

1.4 Plan Concurrence 

The following list of signatures documents each City Council Member’s concurrence and receipt 
of the 2022 City Emergency Operations Plan. 

Council Member  
____________________________________ 

Date 

Council Member  
____________________________________ 

Date 

Council Member  
____________________________________ 

Date 

Council Member  
____________________________________ 

Date 

Council Member  
____________________________________ 

Date 

8 - 17



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 9 

 

1.5 Record of Changes 
 

Version 
Number 

Date of 
Change 

Change 
Made By 

Date of 
Approval 

Change 
Approved by 

Description of 
change 

1 6/2022 E. Zanteson   Initial Update 

2      

3      

4      

5      

6      

7      

8      

9      

10      
 

 

 

 

 

8 - 18



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 10 

1.6 Record of Distribution 

Recipient Name Recipient Title Recipient Agency Date of 
Delivery 

Number 
of Copies 
Provided 

8 - 19



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 11 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

8 - 20



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 12 

1.7 Table of Contents 
 

Introductory Material ................................................................................................................... 2 

1.1 Cover Page ......................................................................................................................... 2 

1.2 Letter of Promulgation ........................................................................................................... 6 

1.3 Approval & Implementation ............................................................................................. 6 

1.4 Plan Concurrence ................................................................................................................. 8 

1.5 Record of Changes ............................................................................................................... 9 

1.6 Record of Distribution ......................................................................................................... 10 

1.7 Table of Contents ................................................................................................................ 12 

2 Purpose, Scope, Situation and Assumptions ............................................................................ 16 

2.1 Purpose ............................................................................................................................... 16 

2.2 Scope .................................................................................................................................. 17 

2.3 Situation Overview .............................................................................................................. 17 

2.4 Planning Assumption .......................................................................................................... 18 

3 Concept of Operations ............................................................................................................... 20 

3.1 Response ............................................................................................................................ 20 

3.1.1 Goals, Priorities and Strategies ................................................................................... 20 

3.1.2 Plan Activation .............................................................................................................. 21 

3.1.3 Proclaiming an Emergency .......................................................................................... 21 

3.1.4 Presidential Declarations ............................................................................................. 23 

3.1.5 Emergency Management Response Levels ................................................................ 23 

3.1.6 Sequence of Events ..................................................................................................... 24 

3.2 Recovery ............................................................................................................................ 29 

3.2.1 Short-Term ................................................................................................................... 30 

3.2.2 Long-Term .................................................................................................................... 30 

3.3 Continuity ............................................................................................................................ 31 

4 Organization and Assignment of Responsibilities ..................................................................... 33 

4.1 Roles of Staff in the EOC .................................................................................................... 33 

4.2 Role of Elected Official ........................................................................................................ 33 

4.3 Role of City Departments .................................................................................................... 34 

4.4 Role of Disaster Management Area Coordinators (DMACs) ............................................. 37 

4.5 Role of the Private Sector ................................................................................................... 37 

8 - 21



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 13 

4.5.1 Contracted City Services .............................................................................................. 37 

4.5.2 Residents ...................................................................................................................... 38 

4.5.3 Population with Access and Functional Needs ............................................................ 38 

4.5.4 At Risk Individuals ........................................................................................................ 39 

4.5.5 Businesses ................................................................................................................... 39 

4.5.6 Volunteer Organizations ............................................................................................... 40 

4.5.7 Public-Private Partnerships .......................................................................................... 40 

5 Direction, Control and Coordination .......................................................................................... 42 

5.1 Direction and Control .......................................................................................................... 42 

5.2 Coordination ........................................................................................................................ 42 

5.3 Multi-Entity/Jurisdiction Coordination and Mutual Aid ........................................................ 42 

5.4 NIMS, SEMS, and ICS ........................................................................................................ 46 

6 Communications ........................................................................................................................ 51 

7 Information Collection, Analysis and Distribution ...................................................................... 53 

8 Administration, Finance and Logistics ....................................................................................... 54 

8.1 Administration ..................................................................................................................... 54 

8.1.1 City Emergency Operations Policy Statement ............................................................. 55 

8.1.2 Disaster Service Workers ............................................................................................. 55 

8.1.3 Documentation ............................................................................................................. 56 

8.2 Finance ................................................................................................................................ 56 

8.2.1 Expenditure Tracking ................................................................................................... 56 

8.2.2 Eligible Expenses ......................................................................................................... 57 

8.2.3 Recordkeeping Requirements...................................................................................... 57 

8.3 Logistics .............................................................................................................................. 57 

8.3.1 Resource Management ................................................................................................ 57 

8.3.2 Resource Priorities ....................................................................................................... 58 

8.3.3 Resource Requests ...................................................................................................... 58 

9 Plan Development and Maintenance ........................................................................................ 60 

9.1 Administrative Practices ...................................................................................................... 60 

9.2 Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) .............................................................................. 60 

9.3 Training and Exercises ....................................................................................................... 60 

9.4 Essential Records Retention .............................................................................................. 61 

9.5 After Action Reports and Corrective Actions ...................................................................... 61 

8 - 22



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 14 

10 Authorities and References ..................................................................................................... 64 

11 Appendix A - Acronyms ........................................................................................................... 65 

12 Appendix B – Glossary of Terms ............................................................................................. 68 

8 - 23



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 15 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

8 - 24



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 16 

2 Purpose, Scope, Situation and Assumptions 
2.1 Purpose 
 
The purpose of the City Emergency Operations Plan is to provide the planning basis for a 
coordinated response to extraordinary emergency situations associated with natural, and 
human-caused emergencies or disasters within or affecting the City. This plan is the principal 
guide for the City’s response to, management of, and recovery from real or potential 
emergencies and disasters occurring within its designated geographic boundaries. Specifically, 
this plan is intended to: 

• Outline the methods and procedures used by emergency management personnel to 
assess emergency situations and take appropriate actions to save lives and reduce 
injuries, prevent, or minimize damage to public and private property, and protect the 
environment. 

• Identify the components of an Emergency Management Organization and establish 
associated protocols required to effectively respond to, manage and recover from major 
emergencies and disasters. 

• Develop a whole community approach to emergency management to facilitate a 
response that is inclusive of the entire community 

• Identify the organizational framework for the overall management and coordination of 
emergency operations in the city by implementing the National Incident Management 
System (NIMS) and Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS). 

• Identify the responsibilities of local, state, and federal agencies in the event of an 
emergency or disaster affecting the city. 

• Define the operational concepts and procedures associated with the EOC interface with 
the field emergency responders 

• Facilitating mutual aid to supplement local resources. 
• Facilitating multi-agency and multi-jurisdictional coordination, particularly between local 

government, the private sector, operational area (OA), state response levels, and 
appropriate federal agencies in emergency operations. 

• Support the provision for emergency public information throughout the emergency, 
including information on personal protective actions the public can take. 

• Serve as an operational plan as well as a reference document that may be used for pre-
emergency planning in addition to emergency operations. 

• To be use in coordination with applicable local, state, and federal contingency plans.  

Allied agencies, special districts, private enterprise, and volunteer organizations having roles 
and responsibilities established by this plan are encouraged to develop operating protocols and 
emergency action checklists based on the provisions of this plan. 

Finally, this plan is divided into two parts that contain general and specific information relating to 
city emergency management operations. Those parts are as follows: 
 
Part 1: Basic Plan. This part provides the structure and organization of the cities 

8 - 25



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 17 

Emergency Management structure, identifies roles and responsibilities, describes the concept of 
emergency operations, and identifies how the city implements SEMS and NIMS, as established 
by federal and state emergency management entities. 
 
Part 2: EOC Management and Plan Implementation. This part provides an introduction to EOC 
operations, processes, considerations, sections and positions and provides supporting 
documentation such as job aids and forms to support an EOC operations activation. 
 
2.2 Scope 
 
The policies, procedures and provision of this plan are applicable to all agencies and 
individuals, public and private, having responsibilities for emergency preparedness, response, 
recovery and/or mitigation activities within the City.  

The plan applies to any extraordinary situation associated with any hazard, natural, or human-
caused, which may affect the City, as well as situations requiring a planned and coordinated 
response by multiple agencies or jurisdictions. 

Incorporating the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA) Comprehensive 
Preparedness Guide (CPG) 101: Developing and Maintaining Emergency Operations Plans, 
November 2020, Version 3.0 (draftv0.5), the CalOES’ Emergency Operations Plan Crosswalk - 
Local Government, 2020; the Los Angeles County Operational Area Emergency Response 
Plan, and the State of California Emergency Plan best practices, this plan is designed to be 
read, understood and exercised prior to an emergency and establishes the framework for the 
implementation of the Standardized Emergency Management System and National Incident 
Management System for the City.  

This plan will be used in coordination with the State Emergency Plan and the National 
Response Framework. 

 
2.3 Situation Overview 
 
The City, situated within Los Angeles County, faces a variety of hazards. This plan was 
developed using an all-hazards planning approach as well as leveraging the specific hazard and 
vulnerability findings that are identified in the County of Los Angeles All-Hazards Mitigation Plan 
for the City, which include, but are not limited to: 

• Climate Change 
• Dam Failure 
• Earthquake 
• Flood 
• Landslide/Mudslide 
• Wildfire 

More detailed information regarding the hazards to the County and the City can be found in the 
current County of Los Angeles All-Hazards Mitigation Plan. 

8 - 26



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 18 

2.4 Planning Assumption 

The following are assumptions used during the development of this plan. These assumptions 
translate into basic principles for conducting emergency management operations in preparation 
for, response to and recovery from major emergencies. 

• Emergencies or disasters may occur at any time, day, or night, in populated and remote
areas of the City.

• Major emergencies and disasters will require a multi-agency, multi-jurisdictional
response. Therefore, it is essential that NIMS, SEMS, and ICS are implemented
immediately by responding agencies, and expanded as the situation dictates.

• Large-scale emergencies and disaster may overburden local resources and require the
need for mutual aid from neighboring jurisdictions.

• Large-scale emergencies and disasters and the complex organizational structure
required to respond to them pose significant challenges in terms of warning and
notification, logistics, and agency coordination.

• The City is primarily responsible for emergency actions within City boundaries and will
commit all available resources to save lives, minimize injury to persons, protect the
environment and minimize property damage.

• Major emergencies and disasters may generate widespread media and public interest;
information provided to the public needs to be accurate and timely. Additionally, the
media must be considered an ally in largescale emergencies and disasters; it can
provide considerable assistance in emergency public information and warning.

• Large-scale emergencies and disaster may pose serious long-term threats to public
health, property, the environment, and the local economy. While responding to
significant disasters and emergencies, all strategic decisions must consider each of
these threats.

• Disasters and emergencies may require an extended commitment of personnel and
other resources from involved agencies and jurisdictions.

• The Emergency Management Organization is familiar with this plan, supporting
documentation, and NIMS, SEMS, and ICS.

It is the City’s intent to fulfill the policies describe here, within the capabilities and resources 
available at the time of an emergency or disaster. 

This plan uses the whole community concept where residents, emergency management 
representatives, organizational and community leaders, and government officials can 
understand and assess the needs of their respective communities and determine the best ways 
to organize and strengthen their resources, capabilities, and interest. Engaging in the whole 
community emergency management planning process, builds a more effective path to societal 
security and resilience. This plan supports the following whole community principles: 

• Understand and meet the needs of the entire community, including people with
disabilities and those with other access and functional needs.

• Engage and empower all parts of the community to assist in all phases of the disaster
cycle.

8 - 27



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 19 

• Strengthen what works well in communities on a daily basis.

In keeping with the whole community approach, this plan was developed with representation 
from City departments and various other stakeholders. The effectiveness of the emergency 
response is largely based on the preparedness and resiliency of the community. 

Community Resiliency Consists of Three Key Factors: 

1. The ability of first responders’ agencies (e.g., fire, law etc.) to divert from their day-to-day
operations to the emergency disaster effectively and efficiently.

2. The strength of the emergency management system and organization with the region, to
include Emergency Operations Centers (EOCs), mass notification systems and
communication systems.

3. The preparedness of the region’s citizens, businesses, and community organizations.

By focusing on enhancing all three of these components, the City is improving not only the 
City’s resiliency to emergency disaster, but also the regions. 

8 - 28



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 20 

3 Concept of Operations 
3.1 Response 

During a major emergency response, the City will work in coordination with numerous 
governmental, non-governmental, and private organizations. To enable a multi-faceted 
operation, the City follows a specific response structure that designates the way local, county, 
and state-level entities coordinate and communicate during emergency response operations.  

This Concept of Operations provides guidance to City decision makers and plan users regarding 
the sequence and scope of actions to be taken during a citywide emergency response. 

The response phase concept of operations the City practices can be summarized in six key 
elements: (1) goals, priorities, and strategies; (2) plan activation; (3) proclaiming an emergency; 
(4) presidential declarations; (5) emergency management response levels; and (6) the
sequence of events during disasters.

3.1.1 Goals, Priorities and Strategies 

Operational Goals: During the response phase, the agencies charged with 
responsibilities in this plan should focus on the following five goals: 

1 Mitigate Hazards 
2 Meet basic human needs 
3 Address needs of People with Access and Functional Needs 
4 Restore essential services 
5 Support community and economic recovery 

Operational Priorities: Operational priorities govern resource allocation and the response 
strategies for the City and its political subdivisions during an emergency. Below are 
operational priorities addressed in this plan: 

• Save Lives – The preservation of life is the top priority and takes precedence over all
other considerations.

• Protect Health and Safety – Measures should be taken to mitigate the impact of the
emergency on public health and safety.

• Protect Property – All feasible efforts must be made to protect public and private
property and resources, including critical infrastructure, from damage during and after an
emergency.

• Preserve the Environment – All possible efforts must be made to preserve the
environment and protect it from damage during an emergency.

Operational Strategies: To meet the operational goals, emergency responders should 
consider the following strategies: 

• Mitigate hazards –As soon as practical, suppress, reduce, or eliminate hazards and/or
risks to persons, property, and the environment during the disaster response in order to
lessen the actual or potential effects or consequences of future emergencies.

8 - 29



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 21 

• Meet basic human needs –All possible efforts must be made to supply resources to
meet basic human needs, including food, water, accessible shelter, medical treatment,
and security during an emergency.

• Address needs of individuals with disabilities or access and functional needs –
People with access and functional needs are more vulnerable to harm during and after
an emergency. The needs of these individuals must be considered and addressed.

• Restore essential services –Power, water, sanitation, accessible transportation, and
other essential services must be restored as quickly as possible to assist communities in
returning to normal daily activities.

• Support Community and Economic Recovery –All members of the community must
collaborate to ensure recovery operations are conducted efficiently, effectively, and
equitably, promoting expeditious recovery of the affected areas.

3.1.2 Plan Activation 

The City Emergency Operations Plan may be activated by the City Manager or designated 
alternates under any of the following circumstances: 

• By order of the City Manager as designated by the City Municipal Code or as needed on
the authority of the City Manager or designee based on incident complexity.

• Upon proclamation by the Governor that a State of Emergency exists.
• Automatically on the proclamation of a State of War Emergency
• Upon declaration by the President, of the existence of a National Emergency.
• Automatically, on receipt of an attack warning or actual attack on the United States, or

upon occurrence of a catastrophic disaster that requires immediate government
response

3.1.3 Proclaiming an Emergency 

The California Emergency Services Act provides for three types of emergency proclamations in 
California: (1) Local Emergency, (2) State of Emergency, (3) State of War Emergency. 

Emergency proclamations expand the emergency powers and authorities of the State and its 
political subdivisions. They also provide a mechanism for unaffected jurisdictions to provide 
resources and assistance to affected jurisdictions. Although emergency proclamations facilitate 
the flow of resources and support to the affected jurisdiction and local government, they are not 
a prerequisite to providing mutual aid and assistance under existing agreements or requesting 
assistance from agencies such as the American Red Cross, the Los Angeles County, or the 
State of California. 

Local Emergency Proclamations: 

In the case of the existence or threatened existence of an emergency that threatens the people, 
property, or environment of the City, and the condition is beyond the capability of the city to 
control effectively, the City Manager can proclaim a local emergency. A local emergency may 
be proclaimed to exist due to a specific situation, such as earthquake, flood, fire, storm, 
pandemic, drought, sudden and severe energy shortage, or other condition 

8 - 30



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 22 

If assistance will be requested through California Disaster Assistance Act (CDAA), a Local 
Emergency may be recommended by the City Manager as specified by the Municipal Code and 
issued within 10 days after the actual occurrence of a disaster  

A Local Emergency proclamation must be ratified by the City Council within 7 days. 

The governing body must review the need to continue the proclamation at least every 30 days 
until the Local Emergency is terminated. The Local Emergency must be terminated by 
resolution as soon as conditions warrant.  

The Proclamation of a Local Emergency provides the governing body with the legal authority to: 

• Request the Governor proclaim a State of Emergency, if necessary
• Promulgate or suspend orders and regulations necessary to provide for the protection of

life and property, including issuing orders or regulations imposing a curfew within
designated boundaries

• Exercise full power to provide mutual aid to any affected area in accordance with local
ordinances, resolutions, emergency plans, or agreements

• Request state agencies and other jurisdictions to provide mutual aid
• Require the emergency services of any local official or employee
• Requisition necessary personnel and materials from any local department or agency
• Obtain vital supplies and equipment and, if required, immediately commandeer the same

for public use
• Impose penalties for violation of lawful order
• Conduct emergency operations without incurring legal liability for performance, or failure

of performance (Article 17 of the Emergency Services Act provides from certain
privileges and immunities)

When the City proclaims a Local Emergency, it will: 

• Notify the Office of Emergency Management (OEM) Duty Officer
• Notify the Disaster Management Area Coordinator (DMAC)

Proclamation of a State Emergency: 

The Governor proclaims a State of Emergency based on the formal request from the City 
Council and the recommendation of the California Office of Emergency Services. If conditions 
and time warrant, the Governor drafts and signs a formal State of Emergency Proclamation. The 
Governor has expanded emergency powers during a proclaimed State of Emergency. The 
Governor: 

• Has the right to exercise police power as deemed necessary, vested in the State
Constitution and the laws of California within the designated area

• Is vested with the power to use and commandeer public and private property and
personnel, to ensure all resources within California are available and dedicated to the
emergency when requested

• Can direct all state agencies to utilize and employ personnel, equipment, and facilities
for the performance of any and all activities designed to prevent or alleviate the actual

8 - 31



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 23 

and threatened damage due to the emergency and can direct them to provide 
supplemental services and equipment to political subdivisions to restore any service in 
order to provide for the health and safety of the residents of the affected area. 

• May make, amend, or rescind orders and regulations during an emergency and 
temporarily suspend any non-safety-related statues, ordinances, regulations, or rules 
that impose restrictions on the emergency response activities 

Proclamation of a State of War Emergency 

In addition to a State of Emergency, the Governor can proclaim a State of War Emergency 
whenever California or the nation is attacked by an enemy of the United States, or upon receipt 
by California of a warning from the federal government indicating that such an enemy attack is 
probable or imminent. The powers of the Governor granted under a State of War Emergency 
are commensurate with those granted under a State of Emergency. 
 
3.1.4 Presidential Declarations 
 
When it is clear that State capabilities will be exceeded, the Governor can request federal 
assistance, including assistance under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency 
Assistance Act (Stafford Act). The Stafford Act authorizes the President to provide financial and 
other assistance to state and local government, certain private nonprofit organizations, and 
individuals to support response, recovery, and mitigation efforts following Presidential 
Emergency or Major Disaster declarations. 

Declaration of Emergency or Major Disaster: The President of the United States can declare 
an Emergency or Major Disaster under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency 
Assistance Act (41 USC §5121 et seq.), thereby providing federal government resources to 
support the States’ response and recovery activities. While Presidential Declarations under the 
Stafford Act release federal resources and funding to support response and recovery, federal 
agencies may also provide assistance under other authorities or agreements that do not require 
a Presidential Declaration. 
 
 
3.1.5 Emergency Management Response Levels 
 
The City Emergency Operations Plan will be activated when an emergency occurs or threatens 
to exceed capabilities to adequately respond to and mitigate an incident(s). The scope of an 
emergency, rather than the type, will largely determine whether the Emergency Operations Plan 
and Emergency Operations Center will be activated, and to what level. 

For planning purpose, the California Office of Emergency Services has established three EOC 
activation “levels” of response to emergencies. The City also employs this system to guide local 
response to emergencies in the table below: 

Activation  
Level Detail Event 

or Situation 
Minimum  
Staffing 

Three 
Level Three is a minimum 

activation. This level may be 
used for situations which initially 

only require a few people, 

• Events with potential impacts on 
the health & safety of the public 
and/or environment 

• Weather Alerts 

1. EOC Director 
2. Other Designees (Such 

as Section 
Coordinators,) 

8 - 32



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 24 

Activation  
Level Detail Event 

or Situation 
Minimum  
Staffing 

or may virtual • Incident involving 2+ City 
departments 

• Low risk planned event 
• Wind or rainstorm 
• Power outage and Stage 1 & 2 

emergencies 

Two 

Level Two activation is normally 
achieved as an increase from 

Level Three or a decrease from 
Level One. This activation level 

is used for emergencies or 
planned events that would 

require more than a minimum 
staff but would not call for a full 

activation/staffing 

• Two or more large incidents 
involving 2 or more departments 

• Major wind or rain 
• Major scheduled event 
• Large scale power outage and 

Stage 3 power emergencies 
• Hazardous Material Incident 

involving large scale or possible 
large-scale evacuations 

1. EOC Director 
2. Section Coordinators 
3. Branches & Units as 

appropriate 
4. Liaison/Agency 

Representatives as 
appropriate 

5. Public Information 
Officer 

One 

Level One activation involves a 
complete & full activation of all 

organizational elements & 
staffing. Level One would be 
the initial activation for any 
major emergency requiring 

acute State help. 

• Major County/City or Regional 
emergency, multiple 
departments with heavy 
resource involvement 

1. All EOC as appropriate 

 

 

TABLE 1: EOC ACTIVATION LEVELS 
3.1.6 Sequence of Events 
 
Two sequences of events are typically associated with disasters: one involves the response and 
the other involves emergency proclamations. The response sequence generally describes the 
emergency response activities to save lives, protect property and preserve the environment. 
This sequence describes deployment of response teams, activation of emergency management 
organizations and coordination among the various levels of government. The emergency 
proclamation sequence outlines the steps to gain expanded emergency authorities needed to 
mitigate the problem. It also summarizes the steps for requesting state and federal disaster 
assistance. 
 
3.1.6.1 Before Impact 
 
Before an emergency ever occurs, the City is committed to conducting preparedness activities that 
include developing plans, training personnel, conducting emergency exercises, educating the public, 
and arranging to have necessary resources available. 

To remain ready to respond, the City will keep their emergency communications systems, 
warning systems and the Emergency Operations Center ready at all times. 

Routine Monitoring for Alerts, Watches and Warnings: Emergency officials constantly 
monitor events and the environment to identify specific threats that may affect their jurisdiction 

8 - 33



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 25 

and increase awareness level of emergency personnel and the community when a threat is 
approaching or imminent. 

Increased Readiness: Sufficient warning provides the opportunity for response agencies to 
increase readiness, which are actions designed to increase an agency’s ability to effectively 
respond once the emergency occurs. This includes, but is not limited to: 

• Briefing government officials
• Reviewing plans and procedures
• Preparing and disseminating information to the community
• Updating resource lists
• Testing systems such as warning and communications systems
• Activating Emergency Operations Centers, even if precautionary

Pre-Impact: When a disaster is foreseen as highly likely, action is taken to save lives, protect 
property and the environment. During this phase, warning systems are activated, resources are 
mobilized, and evacuation begins. 

Proclaiming and Emergency: In the case of the existence or threatened existence of an 
emergency that threatens the people, property, or environment of the City, and the condition is 
beyond the capability of the city to control effectively, the City Council, or the City Manager if the 
Council is not in session, can proclaim a local emergency.  

3.1.6.2 Immediate Impact 

During this phase, emphasis is placed on control of the situation, savings lives and minimizing the 
effect of the disaster.  

Below is a list of actions to be taken: 

Alert and Warning: Local response agencies are alerted about an incident by the public through 
911, another response agency, or other method. First responders are then notified of the incident. 
Upon an alert, response agencies notify response personnel. 

Resource Mobilization: Response agencies activate personnel and mobilize to support the incident 
response. As the event escalates and expands, additional resources are activated and mobilized to 
support the response. Activation and mobilization continue for the duration of the emergency, as 
additional resources are needed to support the response. This includes resources with the County, 
or, when resources are exhausted, from surrounding unaffected jurisdictions. 

Incident Response: Immediate response is accomplished within the City by local responders. 
First responders arrive at the incident and function within their established field level plans and 
procedures. The responding agencies will manage all incidents in accordance with the Incident 
Command System organizational structures, doctrine, and procedures. 

Establishing Incident Command: Incident Command is established to direct, order, and/or 
control resources by virtue of some explicit legal agency or delegated authority at the field level. 
Initial actions are coordinated through the on-scene Incident Commander. The Incident 
commander develops an initial Incident Action Plan, which sets priorities for the incident, 

8 - 34



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 26 

assigns resources, and includes a common communications plan. If multiple jurisdictions or 
agencies are involved, the first responders will establish a Unified Incident Command Post to 
facilitate multijurisdictional and multiagency policy decisions. The Incident Commander may 
implement an Area Command to oversee multiple incidents that are handled by separate 
Incident Command System organizations or to oversee the management of a large or evolving 
incident that multiple incident management teams engaged. 

Activation of the Multiagency Coordination System: Responding agencies will coordinate 
and support emergency management and incident response objective through the development 
and use of integrated Multiagency Coordination Systems (MACS) and Multiagency Coordination 
System Groups (MAC Groups). This includes developing and maintaining connectivity capability 
between the Incident Command Post, Local 911 Centers, local Emergency Operations Centers, 
Regional Emergency Operations Centers, the State Emergency Operations Center and Federal 
Emergency Operations Center and National Response Framework organizational elements. 

Local Emergency Operations Center Activation: Local jurisdictions activate their local 
Emergency Operations Center based on the magnitude or need for more coordinated 
management of the emergency. When activated, local EOCs help form a common operating 
picture of the incident by collecting, analyzing, and disseminating emergency information. The 
local Emergency Operations Center can also improve the effectiveness of the response by 
reducing the amount of external coordination of resources by the Incident Commander by 
providing a single point of contract to support multiagency coordination. When activated the 
local Emergency Operations Center notifies the Operational Area lead that the local Emergency 
Operations Center has been activated. 

Communications between field and the Emergency Operations Center: When a jurisdiction 
Emergency Operation Center is activated, communications and coordination are established 
between the Incident Commander and the Department Operations Center to the Emergency 
Operations Center, or between the Incident Commander and the Emergency Operations 
Center. 

Operational Area Emergency Operations Center Activation: If one or more local EOCs are 
activated, or if the event requires resources outside the affected jurisdiction, the Operational 
Area Emergency Operations Center activates. The Operational Area Emergency Operations 
Center also activates if a Local Emergency is proclaimed by the affected local government. The 
Operational Area Emergency Operations Center then coordinates resource requests from the 
affected jurisdiction to an unaffected jurisdiction, or if resources are not available within the 
Operational Area, forwards the resource request to the Regional Emergency Operations Center 
and mutual aid coordinators. 

Regional Emergency Operations Center Activation: Whenever an Operational Area 
Emergency Operations Center is activated the California Office of Emergency Services 
Regional Administrator will activate the Regional Emergency Operations Center within the 
affected region and notifies the California office of Emergency Services Headquarters. The 
Regional Emergency Operations Center will then coordinate resource requests from the 
affected Operational Area to unaffected Operational Areas within the affected region, or, if 
resources are not available within the affected region, resource requests are forwarded to the 
State Operations Center for coordination. 

8 - 35



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 27 

State Level Field Teams: The State may deploy Field Teams (Emergency Services Regional 
Staff) to provide situation reports on the disaster to the Regional Emergency Operations Center 
in coordination with responsible Unified Command. 

State Operations Center Activation: The State Operations Center is activated when the 
Regional Emergency Operations Center activates to: 

• Continuously monitor the situation and provide situation reports to brief state officials as
appropriate

• Process resource request between the affected regions, unaffected regions, and state
agency Department Operation Centers

• Process requests for deferral assistance and coordinate with Federal Incident
Management Assistance Teams when established

• Coordinate interstate resource request as part of the Emergency Management
Assistance Compact or Interstate Disaster and Civil Defense Compact

• The State Operations Center may also be activated independently of a Regional
Emergency Operations Center to continuously monitor emergency conditions

Joint Information Center Activation: Where multiple agencies are providing public 
information, the lead agencies will work together to analyze the information available and 
provide a consistent message to the public and the media. Where practical, the agencies will 
activate a Joint Information Center to facilitate the dissemination of consistent information. 

State Department Operations Center Activation: Each state agency may activate a 
Department Operations center to manage information and resources assigned to the incident. If 
a Department Operations Center is activated, an agency representative or liaison may deploy to 
facilitate information flow between the two facilities. 

Federal Emergency Management Agency Regional Response Coordination Center 
Activation: The Federal Emergency Management Agency Regional Response Coordination 
Center may deploy a liaison or Incident Management Assistance Team to the State Operations 
Center to monitor the situation and provide situational awareness to federal officials. 

3.1.6.3 Sustained Operations 

As the emergency continues, further emergency assistance is provided to individuals impacted 
by the disaster and efforts are made to reduce the likelihood of secondary damage. If the 
situation demands, mutual aid is provided, as well as activities such as search and rescue, 
shelter and care, and identification of victims. 

3.1.6.4 Transition to Recovery 

As the initial and sustained operational priorities are met, emergency management officials 
consider the recovery phase needs. Short-term recovery activities include returning vital life-
support systems to minimum operating standards. Long-term activity is designed to return to 
normal activities. Recovery planning should include reviews of ways to avert or mitigate future 
emergencies. During the recovery phase, damage is assessed, local assistance centers and 
disaster recovery centers are opened, and hazard mitigation surveys are performed. 

8 - 36



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 28 

Local Assistance Centers: Local Assistance Centers (LAC) are opened by local governments 
to assist communities by providing a centralized location for services and resource referrals for 
unmet needs following a disaster or significant emergency. The LAC is staffed and supported by 
local, state, and federal agencies, as warranted, as well as nonprofit and voluntary 
organizations. The LAC provides a venue at which individuals, families, and businesses can 
access available disaster assistance programs and services. The LACs need to be physically 
accessible and information needs to be provided in accessible formats for all community 
members. If federal resources are authorized, a state-federal Disaster Recovery Center (DRC) 
may be co-located with the LACs.  
 
Joint Field Office: The state coordinates with FEMA as necessary to activate a JFO to 
coordinate federal support for the emergency. The state will appoint a State Coordinating Officer 
(SCO) to serve as the state point of contact. A Federal Coordinating Officer (FCO) is appointed 
upon a Presidential Declaration of an Emergency or Major Disaster.  
 
Demobilization: As resources are no longer needed to support the response, or the response 
activities cease, resources are demobilized. Demobilization includes provisions to address and 
validate the safe return of resources to their original location and includes processes for 
resource tracking and ensuring applicable reimbursement. Where applicable, demobilization 
should include compliance with mutual aid and assistance provisions.  
 

8 - 37



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 29 

The sequence of activities occurring for the emergency response and proclamation process is 
illustrated in Figure 1 – Response Phase Sequence of Events. 

 

3.2 Recovery 

 
FIGURE 1: RESPONSE PHASE SEQUENCE OF EVENTS 

8 - 38



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 30 

In the aftermath of a disaster, many citizens will have specific needs that must be met before 
they can pick up the thread of their pre-disaster lives. Typically, there will be a need for such 
services as these: 

(1) Assessment of the extent and severity of damages to public and private property.
(2) Restoration of services generally available in communities - water, food, medical

assistance, utilities, and lifelines.
(3) Repair of damaged homes, buildings, and infrastructure.
(4) Professional counseling when the sudden changes resulting from the emergency have

resulted in mental anguish and inability to cope.

Local governments can help individuals and families recover by ensuring that these services are 
available and by seeking additional resources if the community needs them. Recovery occurs in 
two phases: short-term and long-term. 

3.2.1 Short-Term 

Short-term recovery operations begin during the response phase of the emergency. Although 
referred to as “short-term” recovery, these activities may last for weeks. Short-term recovery 
includes actions required to: 

• Stabilize the situation.
• Restore services (electricity, water, and sanitary systems)
• Implement critical infrastructure recovery plans to maintain operations during

emergencies and the recovery phase.
• Commence the planning for the restoration of the community, including economic

functions.
• Address debris that poses a threat to public health and safety.

For federally declared disasters, Disaster Assistance Centers may be established by the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) to assist disaster victims and businesses in 
applying for grants, loans, and other benefits. In coordination with the American Red Cross, the 
City may provide sheltering for disaster victims until housing can be arranged. 

3.2.2 Long-Term 

Long-term recovery continues the short-term recovery actions focusing on community 
restoration. Long-term recovery may continue for several months or years depending on the 
severity and extent of the damage sustained. These activities include those necessary to 
restore a community to a state of normalcy, given the inevitable changes that result from a 
major disaster. Long-term recovery activities require significant planning to maximize 
opportunities and mitigate risks after a major incident and may include the following: 

• Reconstruction of facilities and infrastructure including the technology systems and
services necessary for restoration of all operations functions.

• Community planning including the development of long-term housing plans.
• Implementation of waivers, zoning changes, and other land-use legislation to promote

recovery.

8 - 39



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 31 

• Assistance to displaced families, which may include financial support as well as social 
and health services. 

• Restoration of the local economic system. 
• Integration of mitigation strategies into recovery efforts. 
• Documentation of eligible disaster-related costs for reimbursement through state and 

federal grant programs. 

 
3.3 Continuity 
 
Continuity of Operations and Government: A critical component of the City emergency 
management strategy involves ensuring that government operations will continue during and 
after a major emergency or disaster. The ability to maintain essential government functions, 
including the continuity of lawfully constituted authority is a responsibility that must be provided 
for to the greatest extent possible. 

A major disaster could result in great loss of life and property, including the death or injury of 
key government officials, the partial or complete destruction of established seats of government 
and/or the destruction of public and private records essential to continue operations of 
government and industry. 

In the aftermath of a major disaster, during the reconstruction period, law and order must be 
preserved and, so far as possible, government services must be maintained. The civil 
government can best complete these services. To this end, it is particularly essential that the 
local units of government continue to function. 

The following portions of the California Government Code and the State Constitution provide 
authority for the continuity and preservation of State and local government: 

• Continuity of Government in California (Article IV, Section 21 of the State 
Constitution) 

• Preservation of Local Government (Article 15 of the California Emergency 
Services Act) 

• Temporary Seat of State Government (Section 450, Title 1, Division 3, Chapter 1 
of the Government Code) 

Key authorities include Sections 8635 through 8643 of the Government Code: 

• Furnish a means by which the continued functioning of political subdivisions can 
be assured by providing for the preservation and continuation of (City and 
County) government in the event of an enemy attack, or in the event a State of 
Emergency or Local Emergency is a matter of statewide concern. 

• Authorize political subdivisions to provide for the succession of officers 
(department heads) having duties related to law and order and/or health and 
safety. 

• Authorize governing bodies to designate and appoint three standby officers for 
each member of governing body and for the Chief Executive, if not a member of 
the governing body. Standby officers may be residents or officers of a political 
subdivision, other than that to which they are appointed. Standby officers take 

8 - 40



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 32 

the same oath as regular officers and are designated numbers 1, 2 and 3 as the 
case may be. 

• Authorize standby officers to report ready for duty in the event of a State of War 
Emergency, State of Emergency or Local Emergency at the place previously 
designated. 

• Authorize local governing bodies to convene as soon as possible whenever a 
State of War Emergency, State of Emergency or Local Emergency exists, and at 
a place not within the political subdivision. 

 

 

 

  

8 - 41



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 33 

4 Organization and Assignment of Responsibilities 
4.1 Roles of Staff in the EOC 

For the City, this basic plan establishes the operational organization that is relied on to respond 
to an emergency. The City uses the Standardized Emergency Management System, The 
National Incident Management System, and the Incident Command System See also Section 
5.4), to be consistent with the National Response Framework concepts and to be coordinated 
with other jurisdictional partners within the Los Angeles County. 

The following sections list out the city’s organization structure as well as departmental roles and 
responsibilities during an Emergency Operations Center activation. 

Additionally, it details out the role that Disaster Management Area Coordinators (DMACs) have 
during an emergency. 

4.2 Role of Elected Official 

All disasters are locally driven events, and it is the local official’s role to provide leadership and 
policy guidance to their jurisdiction before, during, and after a disaster. It is important for local 
elected officials to engage in preparedness efforts, which are ongoing and involve activities 
undertaken to prepare for disasters and emergencies, as well as to facilitate future response 
and recovery efforts. The following section detail some of the local official’s roles and 
responsibilities during and following a disaster. 

Elected Officials Role During an Emergency Disaster: The primary role of an elected official 
during a disaster is that of support. As the disaster is occurring and the immediate response is 
underway, you will best serve your citizens by empowering and allowing your first responders 
and the EOC staff the freedom to manage the incident as they have been trained to do. Allow 
them time to stabilize the situation before attempting to step in as a decision maker. Your role 
as decision maker will come, but the primary goal of addressing a disaster as it is happening is 
to stabilize the situation quickly and efficiently – your staff will do that for you. To help in this 
goal, your role consists of:  

• Support and work with your emergency management officials, as needed. This may include
facilitating communication with and obtaining assistance from other agencies, declaring a
local state of emergency, and issuing emergency orders such as imposing curfews etc.

• Communicate quickly, clearly, and effectively to your constituents and work with your
partners to ensure a coordinated message.

• Get accurate information out early and often, and ensure all messaging is accessible.
• Maintain situational awareness regarding the disaster by staying informed.
• Provide direction for response-related activities, when appropriate.
• Trust and empower your emergency management officials to make the right decisions.
• Serve your citizens by allowing the First Responders and the EOC staff to manage the

incident as they are trained to do. The active participation of Elected Officials in planning /

8 - 42



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 34 

training before a disaster and leadership during the recovery period is where you will have 
the greatest impact and be of most value.  

• Use an EOC Liaison to help you stay informed during the incident.

Elected Officials Role Following an Emergency Disaster: The primary role of an elected 
official after a disaster is that of leadership. Once the first responders and EOC staff have 
stabilized the situation, your role as an elected official becomes crucial to the recovery process. 
A community is built on law and order, and this stems from City Code, Zoning Regulations, 
Building Code, Police Enforcement, and much more. Just because a disaster occurs does not 
mean these regulations are null and void. On the contrary, they are crucial to make sure your 
community is built back right. For a City to truly recover, diligent and firm adherence to the City’s 
Codes and Regulations must be adhered to. To help in accomplishing this goal, the following is 
a list of roles for you to fill. 

• Understand the disaster assistance programs available and application process for State of
California and the Federal Disaster Declarations.

• Support your community throughout the recovery – it can be a long process and may take
multiple years.

• Help identify opportunities to rebuild and mitigate future damage through planning and smart
infrastructure investments.

• Ask questions – the recovery process and programs can be complex.
• Ensure all Codes and Regulations are enforced during the recovery process.

4.3 Role of City Departments 

In the event of an Emergency Operations Center activation, each City department is responsible 
to support emergency response and recovery objectives and taking the lead regarding the 
emergency function to which they have been assigned. The departments also provide 
representatives to the EOC to coordinate people, resources, and information in order to manage 
an incident that occurs in the city, and to communicate emergency efforts between departments 
and/or jurisdictions.  

Designated department representatives are trained in emergency management and response 
operations. In addition, these representatives have assigned successors to support EOC staff in 
the event of extended operations. The sections below outline the designated responsibilities for 
each of the city departments. Details for department staff roles and responsibilities in the EOC 
are defined in the EOC position “jobaids” included in part two of this plan. 

City Manager’s Office. The executive staff members of the City Manager’s Office are 
responsible for policy level decisions related to the management of the incident. The office will 
provide representatives to assist in the EOC, and provide liaison assistance to the operational 
area, if activated. The City Manager, or designee (e.g., Deputy City Manager, or other 
designee), will serve as the EOC Manager/Director overseeing the direction and policy guidance 
of all EOC operations. Policy level decisions are related to formation of policies/procedures, 
authorization of expenditures, support of local emergency management operations with 
additional staff, resources, etc., as well as other operations as determined appropriate. The City 
Manager’s Office will also establish a Public Information Officer (PIO) to staff the position of 

8 - 43



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 35 

EOC PIO to support the collection, verification, and dissemination of emergency related 
information to the public and the media. 

Management Services. Management Services staff serves in the Recovery Coordination 
Group following the response phase of a disaster event as the city moves into the recovery 
phase. Management Services supports redevelopment and recovery strategies for the city using 
current economic development strategies. 

Community Development Department. The Community Development Department is 
responsible for providing support on public infrastructure evaluation/damage assessment, 
providing GIS support upon request, identifying possible shelter locations (ensuring the 
structural safety of the buildings), providing staff to the EOC, and administering evaluations and 
permits in the recovery process. Department representatives from Planning and Building lead 
the Planning and Intelligence Section in the EOC and may serve in a variety of EOC sections 
and branches, depending on the needs of the incident. 

Finance Department. The Finance Department is responsible for overseeing all expenditures 
related to emergency management and response operations, including tracking and 
documentation necessary for recovery reimbursement purposes including personnel time 
tracking during emergency operations. Finance will provide department representatives to staff 
the Finance Section in the EOC. Department representatives will utilize established procedures 
and protocols for expense tracking and documentation but may also develop additional 
procedures as necessary to fit the needs of emergency operations. Finance will also provide 
staffing to the Procurement Unit in the Logistics Section in the EOC utilizing established 
procedures and protocols for purchasing but may develop procedures as necessary to support 
emergency operations. 

Fire Department. The Fire Department is responsible for the management of fire operations 
within the city during emergency response efforts. This includes the immediate first responder 
effort to manage any fires, as well as the management of a safe scene, recognition of potential 
hazardous materials, public safety on scene, and many other responsibilities. The Fire 
Department will coordinate all response efforts and serve as the main coordination point when 
requesting fire response or emergency medical service (EMS) assistance from neighboring 
jurisdictions. 

Fire services also include the provision of Emergency Medical Services (EMS), providing life-
saving medical care. Fire EMS personnel will work in coordination with private EMS providers to 
meet the needs of the incident in the event that Fire EMS is overwhelmed. A Fire Department 
representative will be appointed to serve in the Fire Branch of the Operations Section in the 
EOC. 

Human Resources Division. The City Human Resources Department is responsible for 
managing all efforts associated with city personnel and volunteers. As emergency resources, 
city personnel and volunteers may be assigned to positions in the EOC or in the field to support 
city emergency management and response operations. Department representatives will staff the 
Personnel Branch of the EOC, addressing issues such as workers compensation, disaster 
service worker (DSW) agreements, volunteer management, and other various tasks as 
determined appropriate. In addition, the risk management personnel within Human Resources 
are responsible for providing a representative to staff the Safety Officer position for the EOC 
itself. 

8 - 44



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 36 

Information Technology Division. The Information Technology (IT) Contractor is responsible 
for ensuring the operation of the city’s critical IT infrastructure during an emergency and 
providing technical support to the EOC when activated. IT will staff the Communications Unit in 
the EOC, and will provide support to GIS, mapping, and any other technical resources. IT 
should provide representatives to the EOC when activated. 

Community Services Department. The Community Services Department is responsible for 
some logistics functions (supporting staff) and supporting mass care operations, including the 
implementation of shelter operations in the city. Mass care and shelter operations include the 
mobilization and deployment of department personnel and resources (in coordination with the 
operational area) and receiving and registering volunteer resources during emergencies. The 
Community Services Department will provide staff to manage the shelter facilities and may 
request additional assistance from the American Red Cross (ARC), if necessary. The 
Community Services department will appoint department representatives to the city EOC to 
assist in the coordination of department operations. In addition, the department also serves in a 
primary role for the provision of services for people with access and functional needs (PAFN) 
during an emergency. Community Services will also support transportation needs via City 
busses. 

Police Department. The Police Department is responsible for law enforcement operations and 
terrorism prevention within the city. Police officers will respond to the immediate threats and 
dangers associated with any emergencies in the city. The Police Department will support 
emergency operations including, but not limited to prevention of threats, protection of 
population, evacuation, and damage assessment. A Police Department representative will be 
appointed to serve in the Law Branch of the Operations Section in the EOC. 

Public Works Department. The Public Works Department serves in a variety of roles to 
support emergency management and response operations. Responsibilities for Public Works 
include, but are not limited to, damage assessment, critical infrastructure restoration, support for 
debris management, transportation, evacuation, and general logistics operations. Department 
representatives may be appointed to the EOC to serve in both the Operations and Logistics 
Sections. In addition, Public Works will assist emergency operations by deploying personnel into 
the incident area to assess damage and begin emergency restoration efforts. These operations 
will be coordinated through their Department Operations Center (DOC), which will communicate 
and coordinate with the EOC. A portable radio console can be provided to Public Works DOC 
so that the DOC can operate from a Public Works Facility if preferred. Public Works is also 
responsible for the management of flood/mudslide response operations, mitigation, planning 
and recovery activities. Public Works will monitor and assess weather-related data, provide 
technical assistance for interpreting river level related data and its impacts in the city, document 
any flooding through photographs, observations, and computer-generated data, ensure water 
and sewer are maintained during the emergency and provide staff to the EOC. The flood 
monitoring information provided by Public Works will assist the EOC in making necessary 
evacuation, transportation, or other emergency management related decisions. Public Works 
will coordinate flood fighting operations in coordination with local reclamations districts and other 
city and contracted partners in the event of potential or actual dam failure, or other weather-
related flood emergencies. The Emergency Manager is responsible for the maintenance and 
access to hazard maps (such as 100-year flood zone maps) and will provide these to Public 
Works where applicable. 

8 - 45



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 37 

EOC, DOC and Responder Personnel. While this Emergency Operations Plan is focused on 
the City’s organizational response, all city employees with responsibilities for emergency 
functions would greatly benefit from having a personal and family preparedness plan. Any city 
employee with responsibility to report to the EOC, a department operations center (DOC), or to 
field response operations should have a personal and family preparedness plan in place. 
Personal and family preparedness planning supports city employees in ensuring the safety of 
their loved ones, and in turn supports the employees with being available to respond to their city 
emergency management responsibilities. 

4.4 Role of Disaster Management Area Coordinators (DMACs) 

The mission of DMACs is to coordinate with Area cities in planning for preparedness, mitigation 
and recovery from emergencies/disasters. During an actual emergency, DMACs are responsible 
for Advocating for Area cities and liaison with the Los Angeles County Operational Area 
Emergency Operations Center as (OAEOC) as necessary, assist other Areas as requested; 
staff City Liaison post at OAEOC. 

• Additional they check in with Area cities to quickly determine the impact of the
emergency/disaster.

• Provide a quick Area status report to the OAEOC to supplement individual cities’ reports.
This is not a detailed or formal report. It should be consider outside the normal reporting
system and will provide the OAEOC with an indication of where potential problems might
exist as well as indicate which Disaster Management Area Coordinators (DMACs) might be
in the best position to directly provide staffing to assist the most heavily impacted Area(s)
and the OAEOC (staffing may come from the DMAC or from a city within the DMAC’s Area).

• Get feedback from the OAEOC as to which DMAC Areas appear to be the most heavily
impacted and which appear least impacted. Feedback will include a recommendation from
the OAEOC as to which DMAC should provide staffing to the OAEOC (staffing may come
from the DMAC or from a city within the DMAC’s Area).

• DMAC of selected city provides shit staffing to the OAEOC to represent concerns of cities, to
ensure that the needs and concerns of cities are properly represented in the OAEOC, and to
participate, as appropriate, in the development of solutions affecting cities.

Finally, the following sections list out the role and responsibilities of the private sector. 

4.5 Role of the Private Sector 

4.5.1 Contracted City Services 

If the City should ever contract for certain services such as Police, Fire or Public Works, and in 
the event of an Emergency Operations Center activation, each Contracted City Service partner 
is responsible to support emergency response and recovery objectives and taking the lead 
regarding the emergency function to which they have been assigned. At a minimum contract city 
service partners will either provide a representative to the City EOC or provide a contact number 
for Business Operations Center to coordinate people, resources, and information in order to 
manage an incident that occurs in the city, and to communicate emergency efforts between their 
organization and the City.  

8 - 46



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 38 

4.5.2 Residents 

The resident of the City are primary beneficiaries of the City’s emergency management system. 
At the same time, residents play an important role in emergency management by ensuring that 
they and their families are prepared for disasters. Before an emergency, residents can assist 
the emergency management effort by taking first aid training, maintaining supplies, and being 
prepared to evacuate or shelter-in-place for several days. 

Many residents join disaster volunteers’ programs such as Community Emergency Response 
Teams and remain ready to volunteer or support emergency response and recovery efforts. 
During an emergency, residents should monitor emergency communications and carefully follow 
direction from authorities. By being prepared, residents can better serve their family, their 
community and reduce demands on first responders. 

4.5.3 Population with Access and Functional Needs 

Populations with access and functional needs include those members of the community that 
may have additional needs before, during and after an incident in functional areas, including but 
not limited to maintaining independence, communication, transportation, supervision, and 
medical care. 

Individuals in need of additional response assistance may include those who: 

• Have disabilities – temporary and/or lifelong
• Live in assisted living settings
• Are elderly
• Are unaccompanied children
• Are from diverse cultures
• Have limited English proficiency or a non-English speaking
• Have sight or hearing losses (impairments)
• Are transportation dis-advantaged; or
• Other situations that would require assistance

Lessons learned from recent emergencies concerning people with disabilities and older adults 
have shown that existing paradigm of emergency planning, implementation and response must 
change to meet the needs of these groups during an emergency. These lessons show four 
areas that are repeatedly identified as most important to people with disabilities and older 
adults: 

• Communications and Public Information: Emergency notification systems must be
accessible to ensure effective communication for people who are deaf/hard of hearing,
blind/low vision, or deaf/blind

• Evacuation and Transportation: Evacuation plans must incorporate disability and older
adult transportation providers for identifying and the movement of people with mobility
impairments and those with transportation disadvantages

8 - 47



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 39 

• Sheltering: Care and shelter plans must address the access and functional needs of
people with disabilities and older adults to allow for sheltering in general population
shelters

• Americans with Disabilities Act: When shelter facilities are activated, the State will
work with local officials to ensure they accommodate the provisions of the Americans
with Disabilities Act.

4.5.4 At Risk Individuals 

Another perspective is to consider the needs of people who are not in contact with traditional 
emergency service providers. These people may feel they cannot comfortably or safely access 
and use the standard resources offered in preparedness, response, and recovery. These 
include, but are not limited to individuals who are: 

• Homeless
• Without transportation
• Out of hearing range of community alert sirens/systems
• Without radio or television to know they need to take action
• Without access to telephones
• Visiting or temporarily residing in an impacted region
• Not familiar with available emergency response and recovery resources
• Limited in their understanding of English
• Geographically or culturally isolated

4.5.5 Businesses 

Most of the City’s critical infrastructure is owned and maintained by businesses and must be 
protected during a response to ensure a quick and complete recovery from an emergency. 
These same businesses provide valuable resources before, during and after an emergency, as 
well as play a critical role in meeting the needs of those impacted by an emergency. 

Target Hazards: Some key locations are potential targets for terrorist attacks and must institute 
measures to prevent attacks and protect their infrastructure and surrounding community. This 
requires businesses to coordinate with local, state, and federal governments to ensure that their 
emergency plans are integrated with government plans. 

Hazardous Materials Area Plans: Some industries are required by law or regulation to have 
emergency operations procedures to address a variety of hazards, the California Office of 
Emergency Services Hazardous Materials Program requires businesses that handle hazardous 
materials that meet certain quantity or risk thresholds must submit Business Program Plans and 
Risk Management Plans to the County’s Certified Unified Program Agency or Administering 
Agency. The administering Agency can then develop Hazardous Material Area Plans to respond 
to a release of hazardous material within the county. 

Business Emergency Plans: This plan recommends that all businesses develop 
comprehensive emergency plans that include employee injury and illness prevention programs, 
business resumption and continuity of operations elements. A comprehensive business 
emergency plan can assist the business and community at-large by providing: 

8 - 48



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 40 

• Information to employees to protect themselves and their families from the effects of
likely emergencies

• A business emergency organization with identified positions having clear and specific
emergency roles, responsibilities, delegated authority and identified successors

• An identification of actions necessary to protect company property and records during
emergencies

• A list of critical products and services
• Production shutdown procedures
• A company command post
• Alternative work sites
• Methods and channels of communication
• Contacts with local emergency management officials
• A method to provide and accept goods and services from other companies

Business Operations Centers: This plan also promotes the use of business operations 
centers to enhance public and private coordination. Local government can effectively coordinate 
with businesses by establishing a business operation center that is linked to their existing 
emergency operations center. 

4.5.6 Volunteer Organizations 

The City recognizes the value and importance of organizations that perform voluntary services 
in their community. These organizations have resources, which can augment emergency 
response and recovery efforts. Some examples of voluntary organization are the following: 

• American Red Cross
• Community Emergency Response Team within the City or County
• Amateur Radio Group (SPARC)

4.5.7 Public-Private Partnerships 

The private sector provides valuable assistance and resources to support emergency response 
and recovery activities. The goal of the Public-Private partnership is to advise on: 

• Appropriate agreements to provide for quick access to emergency supplies and
essential services to minimize the need to stockpile such supplies during normal times

• Logistic measures required to quickly deliver needed supplies and services to affected
areas

• Methods to utilize non-profit and private sector capabilities to increase the surge
capacity of local agencies responding to emergencies

• Methods to promote the integration of the non-profit and private sectors into the
emergency services system so that people can be better informed and prepared for
emergencies

• Systems that aid business and economic recovery after an emergency

8 - 49



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 41 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

  

8 - 50



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 42 

5 Direction, Control and Coordination 
5.1 Direction and Control 
 
The City is responsible for coordinating the resources, strategies, and policy for any event in the 
City that exceeds the capacity of field responders. Tactical control always remains the 
responsibility of field Incident Commanders. The City Manager, working through the mechanism 
of the Emergency Operations Center, provides direction and control over the coordination of 
multi-department and multi-jurisdictional resources to support the field responders. Policy 
decisions may be made by the Emergency Operations Center Manager/Director that is staffed 
by the City Manager or designee. 
 
5.2 Coordination 
 
The City Emergency Operations Center will coordinate resource requests from the field and 
other jurisdictions within the City. If request exceed the supply, the Emergency Operations 
Center will provide resources based on established priorities. 

If resources are not available within the City, requests will be made to the Los Angeles 
Operational Area Emergency Operations Center either directly or through DMACs will who are 
responsible for advocating for Area cities and liaison with the Los Angeles County Operational 
Area Emergency Operations Center as (OAEOC) as necessary. The Operational Area 
Emergency Operations Center will coordinate resources obtained from within the operational 
area. If resources are not available in the operational area, they will request from the Southern 
Regional Emergency Operations Center. The Regional Emergency Operations Center will 
coordinate resources obtained from operational areas throughout the region. If resources are 
not available in the region, they will request from the State Operations Center. If the state 
cannot supply the resource, they will request from Federal Emergency Management Agency 
and other federal agencies. Below is a visual of this coordination relationship. 
 

 
 

5.3 Multi-Entity/Jurisdiction Coordination and Mutual Aid 
 

FIGURE 2: DMAC COORDINATION RELATIONSHIP 

8 - 51



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 43 

Operational Area Coordination: In the event that an incident overwhelms the resources and 
capabilities of the City, additional support will be requested from a variety of entities, 
jurisdictions, and organizations. For general emergency management operations, the city will 
follow SEMS and make requests for additional assistance through the operational area, working 
directly with the operational area emergency management personnel and the operational area 
EOC, if activated. If the emergency requires state and federal support, representatives from the 
operational area will work with the state level emergency management organization (Regional 
Emergency Operations Center), following the established SEMS, NIMS, and ICS structures. 

When working with external partners such as private companies, non-profit organizations, 
nongovernment organizations, or other partners, city representatives in the EOC will ensure that 
these external partners work within the designated organizational structure of the city EOC. The 
City EOC Manager/Director will designate the coordination procedures for new partners that are 
not already established as part of the city’s emergency management operational systems. 

Mutual Aid: California's emergency assistance is based on a statewide mutual aid system 
designed to ensure additional resources are provided to the state’s political subdivisions 
whenever their own resources are overwhelmed or inadequate. The basis for this system is the 
California Disaster and Civil Defense Master Mutual Aid Agreement (MMAA), which is entered 
into by and between the State of California, its various departments and agencies, and the 
various political subdivisions, municipal corporations, and public agencies to assist each other 
by providing resources during an emergency. The agreement obligates each signatory entity to 
provide aid to each other during an emergency without expectation of reimbursement. Under 
specific conditions, federal and state funding may be appropriated to reimburse public agencies 
who aid other jurisdictions. If other agreements, memoranda, and contracts are used to provide 
assistance for consideration, the terms of those documents may affect disaster assistance 
eligibility and local entities may only be reimbursed if funds are available. This plan promotes 
the establishment of emergency assistance agreements between public and private sector 
agencies at all levels. 

There are four approved, formal Mutual Aid Systems in California. Those systems are: 

8 - 52



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 44 

1 Fire and Rescue 
2 Law Enforcement 
3 Coroner 
4 Emergency Management (resources 

not covered by the other three 
systems) 

Other informal mutual aid involves, but is not 
limited to the interchange of: 

1 Public Information 
2 Medical and Health 
3 Communications 
4 Transportation Services 
5 Facilities 
6 Hazardous Material Mutual Aid System 
7 Volunteer and Private Agencies 

California is divided into six mutual aid 
regions, which are subdivisions of the state 
emergency services organization to facilitate 
the coordination of mutual aid and other 
emergency operations within an area of the State consisting of two or more Operational Area. A 
map of the Regions is shown in Figure 3: California Mutual Aid Regions. The City is located in 
Mutual Aid Region I-A. 

Mutual Aid Coordination: Formal mutual aid requests follow specified procedures and are 
processed through pre-identified mutual aid coordinators. Mutual aid requests follow discipline-
specific chains (i.e., fire, law enforcement etc.) from one level of government to the next. The 
mutual aid coordinator receives the mutual aid request and coordinates the provision of 
resources from within the coordinator's geographic area of responsibility. In the event resources 
are unavailable at one level of government, the request is forwarded to the next higher level of 
government to be filled.  

• Field Level Requests: Requests for MMAA resources originate from the Field Level 
and are managed by the Incident Commander (IC). If the IC is unable to obtain the 
resource through existing local channels, the request is elevated to the next successive 
government level until obtained or cancelled.  

• Local Government Request: Local jurisdictions are responsible for the protection of life 
and property within the municipal geographic boundaries. The local jurisdiction where 
the incident occurred should assess its resource inventory and existing local agreements 
to determine if the requested resource is available. When locally committed resources 
are exhausted and mutual aid is needed, the local official will request assistance from 
the OA Mutual Aid Coordinator.  

• Operational Area Requests: The Operational Area (OA) is a composite of its political 
subdivisions, (i.e., municipalities, contract cities, special districts, and county agencies). 
The OA Mutual Aid Coordinator assesses the availability of resources within the OA and 
fulfills the resource request based upon that assessment. In the event resources are 

FIGURE 3: CALIFORNIA MUTUAL AID REGIONS 

8 - 53



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 45 

unavailable at the OA level, the request is forwarded to the responsible Regional Mutual 
Aid Coordinator to be filled.  

• Region Level Requests: The State is geographically divided into six Mutual Aid 
Regions. For Law Enforcement Mutual Aid, Region I is divided into two sub-regions. 
Each Mutual Aid Region is comprised of multiple Operational Areas and has a Regional 
Mutual Aid Coordinator. The Regional Mutual Aid Coordinator is granted the authority to 
coordinate the mutual aid response of discipline-specific resources within the Region to 
support a mutual aid request by a jurisdiction also within the Region. In the event 
resources are unavailable at the Region level, the request is forwarded to the State 
Mutual Aid Coordinator to be filled.  

• State Level Requests: On behalf of the Governor, the Director of Cal OES has the 
responsibility for coordination of state mutual aid resources in support of local 
jurisdictions during times of emergency. The Director will analyze and coordinate the 
request by forwarding the request to an unaffected REOC or tasking the appropriate 
State agency to fill the need. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
FIGURE 4: FLOW OF REQUEST AND RESOURCES 

8 - 54



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 46 

5.4 NIMS, SEMS, and ICS 

Emergency management operations for the City are organized under the guidelines established 
by NIMS, SEMS, and ICS. These emergency management structures and guidelines provide 
the foundation for all emergency operations, creating a flexible organizational structure that can 
be adjusted to meet the needs of any incident, regardless of the size, extent, or associated 
damage. This plan, following the identified emergency management structures and guidelines, 
serves as a local, city management plan, and nests into and supports the Los Angeles County 
and Operational Area Response Plan. 

The city will manage their internal operations through the implementation of this plan as 
outlined, and work in support of county operations if necessary. In following these standardized 
systems, the city EOC is organized into the sections listed below. 

• Management Staff
• Operations Section
• Planning Section
• Logistics Section
• Finance Section

Detailed descriptions of the roles of each position in the EOC can be found in Part 2 of this plan. 

NIMS is the national standard for incident management operations defined by the FEMA and 
based on the National Response Framework. NIMS has been adopted by the City by resolution 
to serve as its incident management system. ICS is the organizational structure within NIMS 
that defines how emergency management operations will be organized. All state and local 
jurisdictions are required to prepare, plan, and respond to emergencies based on the NIMS and 
ICS standards in order to be eligible for federal reimbursement for emergency related costs. 
Additional details regarding NIMS and ICS can be found online through FEMA’s website. 

In addition, the Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS), based on State of 
California emergency management standards, has been adopted by the City for managing 
response to multi agency and multi jurisdiction emergencies, and to facilitate communications 
and coordination between all levels of the system and among all responding agencies. 
California Government Code § 8607 requires all local public agencies (cities, special districts, 
and counties) to respond to emergencies using the SEMS at the scene of a multi-agency 
emergency and in the EOC. 

SEMS defines the organizational structure of local EOCs, reporting to operational area EOCs, 
which report to Regional EOCs (REOC), to state EOCs, and finally to FEMA. The utilization of 
SEMS during emergency management and response efforts is required for jurisdictions to be 
eligible for state reimbursement. Additional information for SEMS can be found online through 
the California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) website. 

National Incident Management System: The terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001, 
illustrated the need for all levels of government, the private sector, and nongovernmental 
agencies to prepare for, protect against, respond to, and recover from a wide spectrum of 
events that exceed the capabilities of any single entity. These events require a unified and 
coordinated national approach to planning and to domestic incident management. To address 

8 - 55



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 47 

this need, the President signed a series of Homeland Security Presidential Directives (HSPDs) 
that were intended to develop a common approach to preparedness and response. Two Policy 
Directives that are of particular importance to emergency planners: 

• HSPD-5, Management of Domestic Incidents: Identifies steps for improved 
coordination in response to incidents. It requires the Department of Homeland Security 
to coordinate with other federal departments and/or agencies and state, local, and tribal 
governments to establish a National Response Framework and a National Incident 
Management System. 

• PPD-8, National Preparedness: Describes the way federal departments and agencies 
will prepare. It requires DHS to coordinate with other federal departments and agencies 
– and with state, local, and tribal governments to develop a National Preparedness Goal. 

Together, the National Incident Management System, National Response Framework, and the 
National Preparedness Goal define what needs to be done to prevent, protect against, respond 
to, and recover from a major event; and how well it needs to be done. These efforts align 
federal, state, local, and tribal entities; the private sector; and nongovernmental agencies to 
provide an effective and efficient national structure for preparedness, incident management, and 
emergency response. 

The National Incident Management System structure provides a consistent framework for 
incident management at all jurisdictional levels, regardless of the cause, size, or complexity of 
the incident, building on the Incident Command System and the National Incident Management 
System provides the nation’s first responders and authorities with the same foundation for 
incident management for terrorist attacks, natural disasters, and all other emergencies. The 
National Incident Management System structure requires the institutionalization of the Incident 
Command System and its use to manage all domestic incidents. 

The National Incident Management System structure integrates existing best practices into a 
consistent, nationwide approach to domestic incident management that is applicable at all 
jurisdictional levels and across functional disciplines. Six major components make up the 
National Incident Management system’s approach: 

• Command and Management 
• Preparedness 
• Resource Management 
• Communications and Information Management 
• Supporting Technologies 
• Ongoing Management and Maintenance 

Standardize Emergency Management System: The Standardized Emergency Management 
System is the cornerstone of California’s emergency response system and the fundamental 
structure for the response phase of emergency management. The Standardized Emergency 
Management System required by the California Emergency Services Act for managing 
multiagency and multijurisdictional response to emergencies in California. The system unifies all 
elements of California’s emergency management community into a single integrated system 
and standardizes key elements. The Standardized Emergency Management System 
incorporates the use of the Incident Command System, California Disaster and Civil Defense 
Master Mutual Aid Agreement, the Operation Area concept and multiagency or inter-agency 

8 - 56



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 48 

coordination. State agencies are required to use the Standardized Emergency Management 
System and local government entities must use the Standardized Emergency Management 
System in order to be eligible for any reimbursement of response-related costs under the state’s 
disaster assistance programs. 

Standardize Emergency Management System Organization Levels: There are five 
Standardized Emergency Management System organizational levels.  

• State: The State Level of the Standardized Emergency Management System prioritizes 
task and coordinates state resources in response to the request from the Regional Level 
and coordinates mutual aid among the mutual aid regions and between the Regional 
Level and State Level. The State Level also serves as the coordination and 
communication link between the state and the federal emergency response system. The 
State Level requests assistance from other state governments through the Emergency 
management Assistance Compact and similar interstate compacts/agreements and 
coordinates with the Federal Emergency Management Agency when federal assistance 
is requested. The State Level operates out of the State Operations Center. At the 
Federal Level, the National Response Framework identifies the methods and means for 
federal resources to provide support to the state and local government. Federal 
resources would be accessed via the Standardized Emergency Management System 
process through the mutual aid region and State Operations Center. 
 

• Region: The Regional Level manages 
and coordinates information and 
resources among Operational Areas 
within the mutual aid region and also 
between the Operational Area and the 
State Level. The Regional Level also 
coordinates overall state agency support 
for emergency response activities within 
the region. California is divided into three 
Administrative Regions – Inland, Coastal 
and Southern (Figure 5); which are 
further divided into six mutual aid regions 
(Figure 3).  

 
• Operational Area: An operational Area is 

the intermediate level of the state’s 
emergency management organization, 
which encompasses a county’s 
boundaries, and all political subdivisions 
located within that country, including 
special districts. The Operational Area 
facilitates and/or coordinates information, resources, and decisions regarding priorities 
among local governments within the Operational Area. The Operational Area serves as 
the coordination and communication link between the Local Government Level and 
Regional Level, State, Federal and Tribal jurisdictions in the Operational Area may have 
statutory authorities for response similar to that at the local level. 

FIGURE 5: ADMINISTRATIVE REGIONS 

8 - 57



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 49 

• Local Government (The City): The Local Government Level includes cities, counties
and special districts, Local governments are required to use the Standardized
Emergency Management System when their Emergency Operations Center is activated,
or a local emergency is declared or proclaimed in order to be eligible for state
reimbursement of response-related costs.

• Field: The Field Level is where emergency response personnel and resources, under
the command of responsible officials, carry out tactical decisions and activities in direct
response to an incident or threat.

Standardized Emergency Management System Functions: The Standardized 
Emergency Management System requires that every emergency response involving multiple 
agencies include the five functions identified in Figure 6: Standardized Emergency 
Management System Functions. These functions must be applied at each level of the 
Standardized Emergency Management System organization. 

FIGURE 6: STANDARDIZED EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM FUNCTIONS 

Command/Management: Command is responsible for the directing, ordering, and/or controlling 
of resources at the field response level. Management is responsible for overall emergency 
policy and coordination at the Standardized Emergency Management System Emergency 
Operations Center levels. Command and Management are further discussed below: 

• Command: A key concept in all emergency planning is to establish command and
tactical control at the lowest level that can perform that role effectively in the
organization. In the Incident Command System, the Incident Commander, with
appropriate policy direction and authority from the responding agency, sets the
objectives to be accomplished and approves the strategy and tactics to be used to meet
those objectives. The Incident Commander must respond to higher authority. Depending

Command/
Management

Operations Planning & 
Intelligence Logistics Finance & 

Adminstration

8 - 58



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 50 

upon the incident’s size and scope, the higher authority could be the next ranking level in 
the organization up to the agency or department executive. This relationship provides an 
operational link with policy executives who customarily reside in the Department 
Operations Center of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC), when activated. 

• Management: The Emergency Operations Center serves as a central location from
which multiple agencies or organizations coordinate information collection and
evaluation, priority setting and resource management. Within the Emergency Operations
Center, the Management function:

• Facilitates multiagency coordination and executive decision making in support of
the incident response

• Implements the policies established by the governing bodies
• Facilitates the activities of the Multiagency Coordination Group

• Operations: Responsible for coordinating and supporting all jurisdictional operations
supporting the response to the emergency through implementation of the organizational
level’s Action Plans. At the Field Level, the Operational Section is responsible for the
coordinated tactical response directly applicable to, or in support of the objectives in
accordance with the Incident Action Plan. In the Emergency Operations Center, the
Operations Section Coordinator/Chief manages functional representatives who share
information and decisions about discipline-specific operations.

• Logistics: Responsible for providing facilities, services, personnel, equipment, and
materials in support of the emergency. Unified ordering takes place through the Logistics
Section to ensure controls and accountability over resource requests. As needed, Unit
Coordinators are appointed to address the needs for communications, food, medical,
supplies, facilities, and ground support.

• Planning/Intelligence: Responsible for the collection, evaluation and dissemination of
operational information related to the incident for the preparation and documentation of
the Incident Action Plan at the Field Level or the Action Plan at an Emergency
Operations Center. Planning/Intelligence also maintains information on the current and
forecasted situation and on the status of resources assigned to the emergency or the
Emergency Operations Center. As needed, Unit Coordinators are appointed to collect
and analyze data, prepare situation reports, develop action plans, set Geographic
Information Systems priorities, compile, and maintain documentation, conduct advance
planning, manage technical specialists, and coordinate demobilization.

• Finance/Administration: Responsible for all financial and cost analysis aspects of the
emergency and for any administrative aspects not handled by the other functions. As
needed, Unit Leaders are appointed to record time for incident of Emergency Operations
Center personnel and hire equipment, coordinate procurement activities, process claims
and track costs.

The field and Emergency Operations Center functions are illustrated in Table 2: Field and 
Emergency Operation Center Standardize Emergency Management Functions 
Comparison. 

8 - 59



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 51 

SEMS Function Field Level EOCs 

Command / 
Management 

Command is responsible for 
directing, ordering and/or controlling 

resources 

Management is responsible for 
facilitation of overall policy, 

coordination, and support of the 
incident 

Operations 
The coordinated tactical response of 

all field operations in accordance 
with the Incident Action Plan 

The coordination of all jurisdictional 
operations in support of the 

response to the emergency in 
accordance with the Emergency 

Center Action Plan 

Planning & 
Intelligence 

The collection, evaluation, 
documentation and use of 

intelligence related to the incident 

Collecting, evaluating, and 
disseminating information and 

maintaining documentation relative 
to all jurisdiction activities 

Logistics 
Providing facilities, services, 

personnel, equipment, and materials 
in support of the incident 

Providing facilities, services, 
personnel, equipment, and materials 

in support of all jurisdictional 
activities as required 

Finance & 
Administration 

Financial and cost analysis and 
administrative aspects not handled 

by the other functions 

Responsible for coordinating and 
supporting administrative and fiscal 

consideration surrounding and 
emergency incident 

TABLE 2: FIELD AND EMERGENCY OPERATION CENTER STANDARDIZE EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS COMPARISON 

6 Communications 
6.1 City EOC. Once notified of an emergency or disaster of any size, or of a potential or 
imminent threat to the city, communications will be established between the City EOC and 
outside entities, such as field responders, department level personnel, media, or other outside 
agencies and partners. From the EOC, telephones, cell phones, radios, email, and internet 
applications (such as VEOCI) are used for direct communications with field responders or 
outside agencies. 

8 - 60



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 52 

The City EOC can communicate with the OA EOC to access the State OASIS satellite system. 
OASIS can support the operational area entities by allowing for direct satellite communication 
with the State’s Regional EOC (REOC), and the State Operations Center (SOC). OASIS voice 
transmission works like a standard telephone and data transmission is similar to a computer 
modem. 

6.2 City Operations and Responders. The City operational staff in the field implement 
interoperable communications through the use radios to facilitate communications with all 
responding departments and city entities. Alternate forms of communications such as the use of 
cell phones, text messaging, email, amateur radio etc., may be utilized if determined necessary. 
The use of the interoperable radio system allows for communications between DOCs, EOCs, 
and the Incident Command Post (ICP) that is located near the site of a field emergency incident. 
DOCs and dispatch centers for private entities (i.e., private EMS providers) are responsible for 
maintaining communications with the city EOC when it is activated. A cache of radios is 
available from the Fire Department if radio distribution is needed. A Satellite Phone Hub (Iridium 
Go) is available for text and voice communications in the event that standard phone lines are 
not operational. See the Iridium Go binder in the EOC for operations. 

6.3 Alert and Warning. In addition to an effective communication capability, government must 
have an effective means to provide warning alerts to the populations impacted or at risk as the 
result of an emergency. There are several primary alert and warning systems designed to 
provide City residents with emergency information. The city employs several modalities and 
systems to alert residents of impending dangers. These include a mass notification system 
where resident landline data is preloaded into the system. Residents can also voluntarily opt-in 
the system by providing additional information such as email, cell phone, and additional 
residential data. The city also has access to the Integrated Public Alert and Warning System 
(iPAWS) which enables the city to utilize Wireless Emergency Alerts (WEA) to notify residents 
on their cell phones under extreme circumstances where there is an imminent threat to life, 
property, or the environment. Additionally, special broadcasts, or simply driving up and down the 
streets using the public address system can also be conducted to notify and warn citizens. 
Police and Fire may be required to disseminate emergency warning to public who cannot be 
reached by primary warning systems. 

8 - 61



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 53 

7 Information Collection, Analysis and Distribution 
Before an Incident. Information is often provided before an incident occurs. Sources may 
include weather reports, National Oceanic Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) alerts, LA 
County Flood Control (Public Works) monitoring data, crime reports, credible threats of 
intentional events, and others. Advanced notice information can be used to activate the EOC, 
prepare emergency management and response personnel, and provide information to the city 
population. This advanced information can increase the preparedness level of emergency 
management and response personnel, ensuring the number of responders and material 
resources needed for response operations. Advanced information is also used to notify people 
that might be living in harm’s way, and supports individuals and their families with preparing for, 
or evacuating from, the hazardous situation. Early information can greatly reduce the numbers 
of people who might otherwise be harmed by the emergency event. 

During an Incident. Information collected during the incident assists in determining the correct 
course of action and emergency management decisions. Information is collected from field 
responders, DOCs, private entities, the media, social media, community members, and a variety 
of other sources. All information collected from open-source public resources will be analyzed 
for accuracy, processed through rumor control, and documented by the respective EOC 
sections, branches, and units. All information documentation will be provided to the Situation 
Unit in the Planning Section of the EOC for inclusion into in the EOC Action Plan.  

The use of Actions Plans in the City Emergency Operations Center provides a clear and 
measurable process for identifying objectives and priorities for a given event. Action Planning is 
an important management tool that involves: 

• Process for identifying priorities and objectives for emergency response or recovery 
efforts 

• Plans which document the priorities and objectives and the task and personnel 
assignments associated with meeting the objectives 

The Action Planning process should involve the Emergency Operations Center Director and 
Section Chiefs/Coordinators (one from each Section) along with other Emergency Operations 
Center staff, as needed, such as agency representatives. 

The initial Emergency Operations Center Action Plan may be a verbal plan that is developed 
during the first hour or two following Emergency Operations Center action. A verbal plan may 
also be utilized for incidents involving a limited scope, short duration (less than 12 hours) and/or 
a limited number of response personnel. An Emergency Operations Center Action Plan will be 
developed whenever the Emergency Operations Center is activated, either partially or fully. A 
written Emergency Operations Center Action Plan is required whenever: 

• Two or more agencies are involved in the response 
• The incident overlaps more than one operational period 
• All Emergency Operations Center functions are fully staffed 

The Emergency Operations Center Action Plan addresses a specific operational period, which 
may vary in length from a few hours to days depending on the circumstances. The plan should 
be regularly reviewed and evaluated through the operational period and revised or updated as 
warranted. 

8 - 62



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 54 

The Planning Section Chief/Coordinator, with input from the EOC Manager/Director, EOC 
Coordinator, and the Operations Section Chief/Coordinator, establishes the schedule and cycle 
for planning and situation information dissemination. Initially, meetings may be conducted every 
few hours or several times each day. Over time, meetings may be held twice each day, and 
then daily, depending on the level of operations. 

In addition, all EOC situation status reports and EOC Action Plans will be developed and 
presented for the purpose of information sharing at scheduled meetings during each EOC 
operational period. Information may also be sent to City departments, Emergency Operations 
Center personnel, the Operational Area, and other key agencies using the City’s Emergency 
reporting system, OASIS, radio, telephone, email, internet, or fax. Regardless of the method of 
communication, all data should be verified prior to transmission. If unverified data must be 
transmitted, it should be clearly designated as unconfirmed information.  

The City uses EOC forms found in part two of this plan to record and report information. 

After an Incident. Information collected throughout emergency operations will be documented 
by members of the Planning Section. This information will be used during the recovery phase of 
the emergency to develop a history of actions and expenditures related to the disaster. 
Information will also be used for the development of the after-action report that is used to 
document effective practices, archive effective tools, note areas in which EOC personnel saw 
need for additional training or tools, and document areas for program enhancements. In 
addition, the city and other agencies, entities, and organizations involved in the emergency 
management and response operations will collect information related to their respective after-
effects of the incident, such as social and economic impacts, relief support provided, and 
ongoing recovery operations. 

Emergency Public Information. Emergency Public Information is a priority of most importance 
during emergencies and disasters. City government has a primary responsibility to provide 
accurate and timely information to the public regarding conditions, threats, and protective 
measures. To avoid conflicts and confusion, the Emergency Public Information function 
operates best when centralized and coordinated among all involved jurisdictions, agencies, and 
organizations. 

 

 

8 Administration, Finance and Logistics 
8.1 Administration 
 
Emergency management operations supporting administration, finance, and logistical processes 
will be primarily conducted within the Logistics and Finance Sections of the EOC and will 
include the following considerations: 

• Tracking and documentation of expenses 
• Documentation of all actions taking during emergency operations 
• Procuring necessary equipment, resources, and additional support 
• Tracking and documentation of city employee working hours 

8 - 63



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 55 

• Documentation of city employee working hours
• Managing continuity of operations (COOP) for the city
• Developing staff rotation schedules for extended operations
• Managing compensation and claims related to emergency operations
• Tracking and documenting of the deployment and utilization of resources
• Managing additional staff and volunteers to support emergency operations
• Managing both financial and in-kind donations
• Overseeing and managing information technology components and issues as they arise
• And other actions as determined appropriate

8.1.1 City Emergency Operations Policy Statement 

Limitations: Due to the nature of emergency response, the outcome is not easy to predict. 
Therefore, it should be recognized that this plan is meant to serve as a guideline and that the 
outcome of the response may be limited by scope, magnitude, and duration of the event. 

Suspension of Routine Activities and Availability of Employees: Day-to-day functions that 
do not contribute directly to the disaster operation may be suspended for the duration of an 
emergency. Efforts normally required for routine activities may be redirected to accomplish 
emergency tasks. During an emergency response, City employees not otherwise assigned 
emergency disaster related duties will, unless otherwise restricted, be made available to 
augment the work of their department, or other City departments, if required. 

Employee Personal Preparedness: City employees may not be at peak efficiency or 
effectiveness during a disaster if the status of their households is unknown or in doubt. 
Employees who are assigned disaster response duties are encouraged to make arrangement 
with other employees, friends, neighbors, or relatives to check on their immediate families in the 
event of a disaster and to communicate that information to the employee through the City 
Emergency Operations Center. 

Non-Discrimination: All local activities will be carried out in accordance with federal 
nondiscrimination laws. It is the City’s policy that no service will be denied on the basis of race, 
religion, national origin, age, sex, marital status, veteran status, sexual orientation of the 
presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability. 

Citizen Preparedness: This plan does not substitute government services for individual 
responsibility. Citizens are expected to be aware of developing events and take appropriate 
steps to respond in a safe and timely manner. Since the City’s resources and personnel may be 
overwhelmed at the onset of a disaster event, individuals and organizations should be prepared 
to be self-sufficient following a disaster. The City will make every effort to provide information to 
the public via the media and other sources to assist citizens in dealing with the emergency. 

8.1.2 Disaster Service Workers 

Under California Government Code, Section 3100-3109, all public employees are obligated to 
serve as Disaster Service Workers. Public employees (civil service) are all persons employed 

8 - 64



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 56 

by any county, city, state agency or public district in the State of California. Disaster Service 
Workers provide services and support during declared emergencies or disasters. 

In the event of a major emergency or disaster, City employees may be called upon to perform 
certain duties in support of emergency management operations, such as: serve in a position in 
the Emergency Operations Center, support shelter operations, or work at a logistics base in the 
field. 

• City employees may be required to work at any time during a declared emergency and
may be assigned to disaster service work

• Assignments may require service at locations, times and under conditions other than
normal work assignments

• Assignment may include duties within the Emergency Operation Center, in the field or at
another designated location

Under no circumstances will City employees that do not usually have a response role in their 
day-to-day responsibilities be asked to perform duties or functions that are hazardous, that they 
have not been trained to perform or are beyond their recognized capabilities. 

8.1.3 Documentation 

The Emergency Operations Center Finance/Administration Section will be responsible for 
maintaining records on damage assessment expenditures, recovery cost expenditures, 
insurance related documents, personnel overtime and other cost associated with the 
emergency.  

The Emergency Operations Center Planning Section will maintain copies of documents that are 
integral to Emergency Operation Center functions such as Emergency Operation Center Action 
Plans, Situation Status Logs, Position Logs etc. that together make up the history and 
chronology of the emergency events.  

8.2 Finance 

In the case of a major disaster, the Emergency Operations Center will support county, state, 
and federal entities with cost recovery efforts, if requested and as able. City citizens may benefit 
from the Small Business Administration, and the City may benefit from the State and/or the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency Public Assistance Program. The City may assist the 
citizenry with public service announcement regarding support available as unemployment 
benefits, worker’s compensation, and insurance benefits. 

8.2.1 Expenditure Tracking 

The city may be reimbursed for insurance, state and/or federal sources for disaster-related 
expense. The purpose of this section is to provide guidance on the record keeping requirements 
for claiming such expenses. 

8 - 65



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 57 

8.2.2 Eligible Expenses 
 
Eligible costs are extraordinary costs incurred while providing emergency services required by 
the direct impact of a declared disaster and which service is the responsibility of the applicant 
agency. Eligible costs are generally considered to be the net costs over and above any 
increased revenue or subsidy of the emergency service. Ineligible expense includes costs for 
standby personnel and/or equipment and lost revenue. 
 
8.2.3 Recordkeeping Requirements 
 
State and federal governments require detailed information to support claims for 
reimbursement. Funding will be approved or denied based upon the information supplied by 
applicant agencies. Documentation supporting all cost claimed will be required, and all 
information must relate back to individual original source records. The following guidelines 
should be followed when documenting disaster-related reimbursable expenses: 

• Costs and revenue associated with emergency operations should be segregated from 
normal operating expenses 

• Separate records should be maintained for each vehicle and piece of heavy equipment 
used for emergency operations 

• Vehicles and equipment documentation should include the limes and/or hours operated 
by location and operator 

• Vehicle operating expenses should include fuel, tires, and maintenance 
• Labor costs should be compiled separate from vehicle and/or equipment expenses 
• Equipment documentation should include exactly where the equipment was used and for 

what; hours and minutes used; and the name of the equipment operator if applicable 
• Revenues and subsidies for emergency operations must be subtracted from any costs 

claimed 
• Requisitions, purchase orders, and invoices must be maintained for all supplies, 

materials and equipment expenses claimed 
• Costs for supplies and materials must include documentation of exactly where resources 

were used and for what purpose 
• All non-competitive procurements must be justified 

Expenditure tracking should commence upon notice or obvious occurrence of disasters that 
require. The following section focus on logistics and resource management, priorities, and 
requests. 
 
8.3 Logistics 
 
8.3.1 Resource Management 
 
The resource management function describes the system that will be utilized for identifying 
available resources within the City to enable timely, efficient, and unimpeded access to 
resources needed to prepare for, respond to, or recover from an incident. Resource 
management under the National Incident Management System (NIMS) includes mutual aid and 

8 - 66



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 58 

assistance agreements, the use of special federal, state, territorial, tribal, and local teams, and 
resource mobilization protocols. This function specifically includes the management of 
personnel for emergency management operations and addresses necessary coordination 
efforts with local jurisdictions to secure necessary support and resources. 
 
8.3.2 Resource Priorities 
 
When activated, the City Emergency Operations Center establishes priorities for resource 
allocation during the emergency. All City resources are considered part of a pool, which may be 
allocated by the Emergency Operations Center to fulfill priority missions. Each department 
retains control of its non-assigned resources until released for an emergency assignment by the 
Emergency Operations Center. 

 

8.3.3 Resource Requests 
 
Resource requests will be made through one of the following processes:  

• Discipline-specific (usually Fire and Law) mutual aid systems: Request for resources that 
are normally within the inventories of the mutual aid system will go from local coordinator 
to Operational Area Mutual Aid Coordinator to the Regional Mutual Aid Coordination. 

• All other resource request will be made through the logistics function at each level. 

Resource request from the City will be coordinated with the Los Angeles Operational Area 
Emergency Operations Center to determine if the resource is available internally or other more 
appropriate sources located within the Operational Area. Emergency Management Mutual Aid 
Coordinators at each level will keep the Operations Chief informed of the status of resource 
request and allocations. Coordinators at each level will communicate and coordinate with each 
other to maintain current status on resource request and allocation within the disaster area. 

Resource request from the City Emergency Operations Center to the Los Angeles Operational 
Area Emergency Operations Center may be verbally requested and then documented. Available 
resources will be allocated to the requesting local government, if request for a specific resource 
exceed the supply, the available resources will be allocated consistent with the priorities 
established through the action planning process. The Section Chiefs in the Emergency 
Operations Center are responsible for ensuring that priorities are followed. 

Resource requests for equipment, personnel, or technical assistance not available to the City 
should be coordinated with the Los Angeles County Emergency Operations Center to the 
Southern Region Regional Emergency Operations Center. Once the request is coordinated, 
approved and resources deployed, planning in coordination with various Operational Branches, 
is responsible for tracking the resources. 

 

 

 

 

8 - 67



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 59 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

8 - 68



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 60 

9 Plan Development and Maintenance 
This section of the City EOP discusses the overall approach to plan development and 
maintenance responsibilities. 

This plan is developed under the authority conveyed to the City Manager’s office in accordance 
with the City’s Emergency Organization who has the primary responsibility for ensuring that 
necessary changes and revisions to this plan are prepared, coordinated, published, and 
distributed. The City uses the planning process prescribed by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency and the State of California. This Plan and supporting documentation are 
reviewed and updated on a regular basis. The review and updates are coordinated with City 
Departments and the Los Angeles County. 
 
9.1 Administrative Practices 
 
Adherence to standard administrative and financial procedures is critical to ensure resources 
and funding to support response and recovery activities are accurately tracked and accounted 
for. Standard administrative and financial practices also support proper cost accounting in order 
to obtain any reimbursement provided through disaster assistance programs.  

The City follow the administrative practices required by state law and the SEMS Guidelines in 
Part III of the SEMS Guidelines documents California’s Emergency Management 
administrative practices. 
 
9.2 Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) 
 
This Plan is intended to be used in conjunction with county, operational area, and State plans 
and associated SOPs. Where supporting plans are inconsistent with the general principles 
described in the State Emergency Plan, the state plan will supersede supporting plans.  

SOPs provide the purpose, authorities, duration, and details for the preferred method or 
performing a single function or a number of interrelated functions in a uniform manner. SOPs 
must also facilitate the need to carry out actions under conditions that may not have been 
anticipated when the SOP was drafted. For example, it may be necessary to consider 
alternative procedures that solve a problem in order to perform in a more time-efficient or cost-
efficient way. It is clear; therefore, some procedures may need to be suspended, relaxed, or 
made operational under threat of disaster. However, such action should be carefully considered, 
and the consequences should be projected realistically. 

9.3 Training and Exercises 
 
All city department personnel that are designated responsible for staffing the EOC are required 
to complete training related to emergency management operations. All designated personnel 
will be provided access to a copy of this plan (as noted in the Record of Distribution section of 
this plan) and are required to read and become familiar with the plan. The Coordinator of 
Emergency Services will notify holders of this plan of training opportunities associated with 

8 - 69



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 61 

emergency management and operations. The minimum training requirement for employees 
under NIMS is ICS 100 and ICS 700. 

A multi-year training and exercise plan (MYTEP) may be developed and followed that will 
identify and prioritize the levels of training and exercises the city will follow. This MYTEP should, 
as best as possible, align with other trainings and exercises within the operational area to 
ensure practice and integration with OA partners as often as possible. The Coordinator of 
Emergency Services will be responsible for the ongoing maintenance of the MYTEP and ensure 
plan reviews, trainings and exercises are conducted accordingly. 

Partner jurisdictions and agencies having assigned responsibilities under this plan must ensure 
their assigned personnel are properly trained to carry out identified responsibilities. Individual 
jurisdictions and agencies are responsible for maintaining their own plans, training, and program 
maintenance. 

Training and exercises involve a variety of scopes, scales, and participation. Such training 
events include the following: 

Drills. A drill is a small, organized exercise that tests one specific action, such as evacuation of 
a building, or a sheltering-in-place. 

Tabletop exercises. A tabletop exercise is a discussion-based exercise in a low-stress 
environment to discuss a possible emergency scenario. 

Functional exercise. A functional exercise is an activity designed to exercise a single function, 
or multiple functions through the simulation of a realistic scenario. The functional exercise is 
designed to simulate real conditions in the EOC, and as such as time constraints on decision 
making and, by its nature, allows for a more stressful environment. 

Full-scale exercise. A full-scale exercise is an activity involving multiple agencies, jurisdictions, 
entities, organizations, etc., and exercising multiple functions through the simulation of a 
realistic scenario. This exercise includes the mobilization and utilization of city resources. 
 
9.4 Essential Records Retention 
 
Maintenance of administrative records continues through all phases of an emergency. In 
preparation for an emergency, training and appropriate forms are provided, including 
procedures for all units of potential response organization. During a response, entities 
ensure adequate documentation is collected through the Documentation Unit at the Incident 
and EOC, for activities of personnel, use of equipment, and expenditures for the 
emergency. Finally, after the response has been terminated, records should be protected 
and maintained for audit purposes for up to three years after the closeout of any 
Presidential disaster declaration. The Cost Unit is responsible for cost recovery records and 
assisting in collecting any missing information. Problem areas are identified, corrective 
measures taken, and employees retrained in the proper, updated procedures. 
 
9.5 After Action Reports and Corrective Actions 
 

8 - 70



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 62 

SEMS regulations require local government agencies, to complete an After-Action Report (AAR) 
for each Governor proclaimed emergency. After an incident or from a gubernatorial 
proclamation, the AAR is completed within 120 days. Furthermore, SEMS regulations under 
Title XIX, Division 2, Chapter 1, Section 2450(a) requires any federal, state, or local jurisdiction 
proclaiming or responding to a Local Emergency for which the governor has declared a State of 
Emergency or State of War Emergency shall complete and transmit an AAR to Cal OES within 
90 days of the close of the emergency period.  

The identification of corrective actions is critical to the AAR process. Jurisdictions are strongly 
encouraged to make recommendations for correcting problems noted in the response/recovery 
effort, or during exercises and training. Corrective actions may encompass anything from 
detailed recommendations for improving individual agency plans and procedures to broader 
system-wide improvements. Corrective actions are assigned to relevant stakeholders and 
tracked to ensure the identified problem has been addressed.  

The AAR will provide, at a minimum: 

• Response actions that were taken.
• Application of SEMS during response.
• Necessary modifications to plans and procedures that are needed.
• Lessons learned.
• Noted areas of improvement.
• Best practice implementations proposed.
• Training needed.
• Recovery activities conducted to date.
• Additional information as appropriate.

Findings and recommendations in the contents of the AAR will be used to further develop and 
update the city EOP, as necessary. AAR development will include the input of all personnel 
involved in the incident or exercise. 

8 - 71



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 63 

 

 

 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

  

8 - 72



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 64 

10 Authorities and References 
FEDERAL 

Authorities  

• Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act of 1988, 42 U.S.C. 5121, 
et seq., as amended 

• Homeland Security Presidential Directive 5, Management of Domestic Incidents, February 
28, 2003 

• Homeland Security Presidential Directive 8, National Preparedness, December 17, 2003 
• The Code of Federal Regulations, Title 44, Chapter 1, Federal Emergency Management 

Agency, October 1, 2007 
• Public Law 920, Federal Civil Defense Act of 1950, as amended 
• Public Law 84-99, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers - Flood Fighting 
• Public Law 93-288, Federal Disaster Relief Act of 1974 
• Public Law 107-188, Bio-terrorism Act, June 2002 
• Public Law 107-296, Homeland Security Act, January 2002 
• Executive Order 13228, Office of Homeland Security, October 8, 2001 
• Executive Order 13231, Critical Infrastructure Protection, October 16, 2001 
• Executive Order 13234, Citizens Prepared, November 9, 2001 
• Presidential Decision Directive 39 - U.S. Policy on Counterterrorism, June 1995 
• Presidential Decision Directive 62 - Combating Terrorism, May 1998 
• Presidential Decision Directive 63 – Critical Infrastructure Protection, May 1998 
• National Security Presidential Directive 17 - National Strategy to Combat Weapons of Mass 

Destruction 

References 

• National Response Framework (as revised) 
• National Incident Management System 
• Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA) Comprehensive Preparedness Guide 

(CPG) 101: Developing and Maintaining Emergency Operations Plans, November 2020, 
Version 3.0 (draftv0.5) 
 

STATE 

Authorities  

• California Disaster Assistance Act, California Government Code Section 8680 et. seq. 
• California Disaster and Civil Defense Master Mutual Aid Agreement 
• California Government Code, Title 1, Chapter 4, Division 8, Section 3100 - Disaster Service 

Workers 
• California Government Code, Title 1, Chapter 4, Division 8, Section 8635 - Continuity of 

Government 
• California Government Code, Title 2, Division 1, Chapter 7 – California Emergency Services 

Act 

8 - 73



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 65 

• California Government Code, Title 19, Division 2 – Standardized Emergency Management
System

• California Water Code, § 128-Department of Water Resources - Flood Fighting

References

• Standardize Emergency Management System
• California Disaster Assistance Act
• California State Emergency Plan, October 1, 2017

COUNTY 

Authorities 

• Los Angeles County Emergency Services Code of Ordinances Chapter 2.68 as amended

References

• Los Angeles County Operational Area Emergency Response Plan, June 2012
• Public Draft - 2019 County of Los Angeles All-Hazards Mitigation Plan, 2019

CITY

• City Resolution No. x adopting the Emergency Operations Plan, Basic Plan, on Month DD,
YYYT.

• City, California Municipal Code, Chapter x, Article x, Section x

11 Appendix A - Acronyms 
Action Plan (AP) 
After Action Report (AAR) 

8 - 74



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 66 

California Disaster and Civil Defense Master Mutual Aid Agreement (MMAA) 
California Disaster Assistance Act (CDAA) 
California Emergency Services Act (ESA) 
Continuity of Government (COG) 
Continuity of Operations (COOP) 
Department Operations Center (DOC) 
Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC) 
Emergency Operations Center (EOC) 
Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) 
EOC Action Plan (EAP) 
Incident Action Plan (IAP) 
Incident Commander (IC) 
Incident Command Post (ICP) 
Incident Command System (ICS) 
Joint Information Center (JIC) 
Multiagency Coordination Group (MAC Group) 
Multiagency Coordination System(s) (MACS) 
Multi-year Training and Exercise Plan (MYTEP) 
National Incident Management System (NIMS) 
National Response Framework (NRF) 
Operational Area (OA) 
Public Information Officer (PIO) 
Regional Emergency Operations Center (REOC) 
The Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (Stafford Act)  
Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) 
Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) 
State Operations Center (SOC) 

  

8 - 75



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 67 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

  

8 - 76



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 68 

12 Appendix B – Glossary of Terms 
Action Plan (AP): See EOC Action Plan and Incident Action Plan. 

Activation: 1) Initial activation of an EOC may be accomplished by a designated official of the 
emergency response agency that implements SEMS as appropriate to accomplish the agency's 
role in response to the emergency. 2) An event in the sequence of events normally experienced 
during most emergencies. 

After Action Report (AAR): A report that examines response actions, application of SEMS, 
modifications to plans and procedures, training needs, and recovery activities. AARs are 
required under SEMS after any emergency that requires a gubernatorial state of emergency 
proclamation. Local government AARs must be submitted to Cal OES within 90 days. 

Agency: A division of government with a specific function offering a particular kind of 
assistance. In the Incident Command System (ICS), agencies are defined either as jurisdictional 
(having statutory responsibility for incident management) or as assisting or cooperating 
(providing resources or other assistance). Governmental organizations are most often in charge 
of an incident, though in certain circumstances private sector organizations may be included. 
Additionally, Non-Governmental Organizations (NGO) may be included to provide support. All-
Hazards: Any incident, natural or human-caused, that warrants action to protect life, property, 
environment, public health, or safety, and minimize disruptions of government, social, or 
economic activities. 

California Disaster and Civil Defense Master Mutual Aid Agreement (MMAA): An 
agreement entered by and between the State of California, its various departments and 
agencies, and the various political subdivisions, municipal corporations, and public agencies of 
the State of California to assist each other by providing resources during an emergency. Mutual 
Aid occurs when two or more parties agree to furnish resources and facilities and to render 
services to each other in response to any type of disaster or emergency. California Emergency 
Support Functions (CA-ESF): The CA-ESFs are a grouping of State agencies, departments, and 
other stakeholders with similar functional activities/responsibilities whose responsibilities lend to 
improving the state’s ability to collaboratively prepare for, effectively mitigate, cohesively 
respond to, and rapidly recover from any emergency. CA-ESFs unify a broad-spectrum of 
stakeholders with various capabilities, resources, and authorities to improve collaboration and 
coordination for a particular discipline. They also provide a framework for the state government 
to support regional and community stakeholder collaboration and coordination at all levels of 
government and across overlapping jurisdictional boundaries. 

California Emergency Services Act (ESA): An Act within the California Government Code to 
ensure preparations within the state will be adequate to deal with natural, human-caused, or 
war-caused emergencies which result in conditions of disaster or in extreme peril to life, 
property, and the natural resources of the state, and generally to protect the health and safety 
and preserve the lives and property of the people of the state. 

Catastrophe: Any natural or human-caused incident, including terrorism that results in 
extraordinary levels of mass casualties, damage, or disruption severely affecting the population, 
infrastructure, environment, economy, national morale, and/or government functions. 

8 - 77



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 69 

Command: The act of directing, ordering, or controlling by virtue of explicit statutory, regulatory, 
or delegated authority. 

Command/Management: Command is responsible for the directing, ordering, and/or controlling 
of resources at the field response level. Management is responsible for overall emergency 
policy and coordination at the SEMS EOC levels. 

Command Post: See Incident Command Post. 

Command Staff: The Command Staff at the SEMS Field Level consists of the Information 
Officer, Safety Officer, and Liaison Officer. They report directly to the Incident Commander. 
They may have an assistant or assistants, as needed. These officers are also found at the EOC 
levels in SEMS and they report directly to the EOC Director and comprise the Management 
Staff. They may have an assistant or assistants, as needed. 

Communications: Process of the transmission of information through verbal, written, or 
symbolic means. 

Continuity of Government (COG): Activities that address the continuance of constitutional 
governance. COG planning aims to preserve and/or reconstitute the institution of government 
and ensure that a department or agency’s constitutional, legislative, and/or administrative 
responsibilities are maintained. This is accomplished through succession of leadership, the pre-
delegation of emergency authority, and active command and control during response and 
recovery operations. 

Continuity of Operations (COOP): Planning should be instituted, including all levels of 
governments, across the private sector and non-governmental organizations as appropriate, to 
ensure the continued performance of core capabilities and/or critical government operations 
during any potential incident. 

Coordination: The process of systematically analyzing a situation, developing relevant 
information, and informing appropriate command authority of viable alternatives for 
selection of the most effective combination of available resources to meet specific 
objectives. The coordination process (which can be either intra- or inter-agency) does not 
involve dispatch actions. However, personnel responsible for coordination may perform 
command or dispatch functions within the limits established by specific agency delegations, 
procedures, legal authority, etc. Multiagency or interagency coordination is found at all 
SEMS levels. 

Coordination Center: Term used to describe any facility used for the coordination of 
agency or jurisdictional resources in support of one or more incidents. 

Corrective Actions: Implementing procedures based on lessons learned from actual 
incidents or from training and exercises. 

Cost Unit: Functional unit within the Finance/Administration Section responsible for 
tracking costs, analyzing cost data, making cost estimates, and recommending cost-saving 
measures. 

Critical Infrastructure: Systems and assets, whether physical or virtual, so vital to the 
United States that the incapacity or destruction of such systems and assets would have a 

8 - 78



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 70 

debilitating impact on security, national economic security, national public health or safety, 
or any combination of those matters. 

Demobilization: The orderly, safe, and efficient return of an incident resource to its original 
location and status. 

Department Operations Center (DOC): An Emergency Operations Center (EOC), specific 
to a single department or agency where the focus is on internal agency incident 
management and response. They are often linked to and, in most cases, are physically 
represented in a combined agency EOC by authorized agent(s) for the department or 
agency. 

Disaster: A sudden calamitous emergency event bringing great damage, loss, or 
destruction. 

Division: The partition of an incident into geographical areas of operation. Divisions are 
established when the number of resources exceeds the manageable span of control of the 
Operations Section Chief. A Division is located within the ICS organization between the 
Branch and resources in the Operations Section. 

Documentation Unit: Functional unit within the Planning/Intelligence Section responsible 
for collecting, distributing, recording, and safeguarding all documents relevant to an incident 
or within an EOC. 

Emergency: Any incident(s), whether natural or human-caused, that requires responsive action 
to protect life or property. Under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency 
Assistance Act, an emergency means any occasion or instance for which, in the determination 
of the President, federal assistance is needed to supplement state and local efforts and 
capabilities to save lives, protect property and public health and safety, or to lessen or avert the 
threat of a catastrophe in any part of the United States. 

Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC): A congressionally ratified 
organization that provides form and structure to interstate mutual aid. Through EMAC, a 
disaster-affected state can request and receive assistance from other member states quickly 
and efficiently, resolving two key issues upfront: liability and reimbursement. 

Emergency Management Community: The stakeholders in emergency response in California 
including the residents of California, the private sector and federal, state, local, and tribal 
governments. 

Emergency Operations Center (EOC): The physical location at which the coordination of 
information and resources to support incident management (on-scene operations) activities 
normally takes place. An EOC may be a temporary facility or may be located in a more central 
or permanently established facility, perhaps at a higher level of organization within a jurisdiction. 
EOC may be organized by major functional disciplines (e.g., fire, law enforcement, and medical 
services), by jurisdiction (e.g., federal, state, regional, tribal, city, county), or some combination 
thereof. 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP): The ongoing plan maintained by various jurisdictional 
levels for responding to a wide variety of potential hazards. 

8 - 79



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 71 

Emergency Response Agency: Any organization responding to an emergency, or providing 
mutual aid support to such an organization, whether in the field, at the scene of an incident, or 
to an operations center. 

Emergency Response Personnel: Personnel affiliated with or sponsored by emergency 
response agencies. 

EOC Action Plan: The plan developed at SEMS EOC levels, which contains objectives, actions 
to be taken, assignments, and supporting information for the next operational period. 

Essential Facilities: May include facilities such as law enforcement, fire, emergency operations 
centers, schools, medical facilities, and other resources that have a role in an effective and 
coordinated emergency response. 

Evacuation: Organized, phased, and supervised withdrawal, dispersal, or removal of civilians 
from dangerous or potentially dangerous areas and their reception and care in safe areas. 

Federal: Of or pertaining to the federal government of the United States of America. 
Finance/Administration Section: The section responsible for all administrative and financial 
considerations surrounding an incident or EOC activation. 

Function: Function refers to the five major activities in ICS: Command, Operations, Planning, 
Logistics and Finance/Administration. The same five functions are also found at all SEMS EOC 
Levels. At the EOC, the term Management replaces Command. The term function is also used 
when describing the activity involved, (e.g., the planning function). A sixth function, 
Intelligence/Investigations, may be established, if required, to meet emergency management 
needs. 

Group: Established to divide the incident management structure into functional areas of 
operation. Groups are composed of resources assembled to perform a special function not 
necessarily within a single geographic division. Groups, when activated, are located between 
branches and resources in the Operations Section. See Division. 

Hazard: Something that is potentially dangerous or harmful, often the root cause of an 
unwanted outcome. 

Incident: An occurrence or event, natural or human-caused, which requires a response to 
protect life or property. Incidents can, for example, include major disasters, emergencies, 
terrorist attacks, terrorist threats, civil unrest, wildland and urban fires, floods, hazardous 
materials spills, nuclear accidents, aircraft accidents, earthquakes, hurricanes, tornadoes, 
tropical storms, tsunamis, war-related disasters, public health and medical emergencies, and 
other occurrences requiring an emergency response. 

Incident Action Plan (IAP): An oral or written plan containing general objective reflecting the 
overall strategy for managing an incident. It may include the identification of operational 
resources and assignments. It may also include attachments that provide direction and 
important information for management of the incident during one or more operational periods. At 
the SEMS EOC Level, it is called the EOC Action Plan. 

Incident Command: Responsible for overall management of the incident and consists of the 
Incident Commander, either single or unified command, and any assigned supporting staff. 

8 - 80



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 72 

Incident Commander (IC): The individual responsible for all incident activities, including the 
development of strategies and tactics, and the ordering and the release of resources. The IC 
has overall authority and responsibility for conducting incident operations and is responsible for 
the management of all incident operations at the incident site. 

Incident Command Post (ICP): The field location where the primary functions are performed. 
The ICP may be co-located with the incident base or other incident facilities. 

Incident Command System (ICS): A standardized on-scene emergency management 
construct specifically designed to provide for the adoption of an integrated organizational 
structure that reflects the complexity and demands of single or multiple incidents, without being 
hindered by jurisdictional boundaries. ICS is the combination of facilities, equipment, personnel, 
procedures, and communications operating within a common organizational structure, designed 
to aid in the management of resources during incidents. It is used for all kinds of emergencies 
and is applicable to small as well as large and complex incidents. ICS is used by various 
jurisdictions and functional agencies, both public and private, to organize field-level incident 
management operations. 

Information: Pieces of raw, unanalyzed data that identifies persons, evidence, events; or 
illustrates processes that specify the occurrence of an event. May be objective or subjective and 
is intended for both internal analysis and external (news media) application. Information is the 
“currency” that produces intelligence. 

Intelligence: Product of an analytical process that evaluates information collected from diverse 
sources, integrates the relevant information into a cohesive package, and produces a 
conclusion or estimate. Information must be real, accurate, and verified before it becomes 
intelligence for planning purposes. Intelligence relates to the specific details involving the 
activities of an incident or EOC, and current and expected conditions, and how they affect the 
actions taken to achieve operational period objectives. Intelligence is primarily intended for 
internal use and not for public dissemination. Intelligence/Investigations: Intelligence gathered 
within the Intelligence/Investigations function is information that either leads to the detection, 
prevention, apprehension, and prosecution of criminal activities (or the individual(s) involved) 
including terrorist incidents or information that leads to determination of the cause of a given 
incident (regardless of the source) such as public health events or fires with unknown origins. 
This is different from the normal operational and situational intelligence gathered and reported 
by the Planning Section. 

Joint Information Center (JIC): A facility established to coordinate all incident-related public 
information activities. It is the central point of contact for all news media. Public information 
officials from all participating agencies should co-locate at the JIC. 

Jurisdiction: A range or sphere of authority. Public agencies have jurisdiction at an incident 
related to their legal responsibilities and authority. Jurisdictional authority at an incident can be 
political or geographical (e.g., federal, state, tribal, and local boundary lines) or functional (e.g., 
law enforcement, public health). 

Key Resources: Any publicly or privately controlled resources essential to the minimal 
operations of the economy and government. 

8 - 81



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 73 

Local Government: According to federal code36a county, municipality, city, town, township, 
local public authority, school district, special district, intrastate district, council of governments 
(regardless of whether the council of governments is incorporated as a nonprofit corporation 
under state law), regional or interstate government entity, or agency or instrumentality of a local 
government; an Indian tribe or authorized tribal entity, or in Alaska a Native village or Alaska 
Regional Native Corporation; a rural community, unincorporated town or village, or other public 
entity. 

Logistics: Providing resources and other services to support incident management. 

Logistics Section: The section responsible for providing facilities, services, and material 
support for an incident or EOC activation. 

Management Staff: See Command Staff. 

Mitigation: Provide a critical foundation in the effort to reduce the loss of life and property from 
natural and/or human-caused disasters by avoiding or lessening the impact of a disaster and 
providing value to the public by creating safer communities. Mitigation seeks to fix the cycle of 
disaster damage, reconstruction, and repeated damage. These activities or actions, in most 
cases, will have a long-term sustained effect. 

Mobilization: The process and procedures used by all organizations - federal, state, tribal, and 
local - for activating, assembling, and transporting all resources that have been requested to 
respond to or support an incident. 

Multiagency Coordination Group (MAC Group): Typically, administrators/executives, or their 
appointed representatives, who are authorized to commit agency resources and funds, are 
brought together and form MAC Groups. MAC Groups may also be known as multiagency 
committees, emergency management committees, or as otherwise defined. It can provide 
coordinated decision-making and resource allocation among cooperating agencies and may 
establish the priorities among incidents, harmonize agency policies, and provide strategic 
guidance and direction to support incident management activities. 

Multiagency Coordination System(s) (MACS): Multiagency coordination systems provide the 
architecture to support coordination for incident prioritization, critical resource allocation, 
communications systems integration, and information coordination. The elements of 
multiagency coordination systems include facilities, equipment, personnel, procedures, and 
communications. Two of the most commonly used elements are EOC and MAC Groups. These 
systems assist agencies and organizations responding to an incident. Mutual Aid Agreements 
and/or Assistance Agreements: Written or oral agreements between and among 
agencies/organizations and/or jurisdictions that provide a mechanism to quickly obtain 
emergency assistance in the form of personnel, equipment, materials, and other associated 
services. The primary objective is to facilitate rapid, short-term deployment of emergency 
support prior to, during, and/or after an incident. 

Mutual Aid Coordinator: An individual at the local government, Operational Area, Region or 
State Level that is responsible to coordinate the process of requesting, obtaining, processing, 
and using mutual aid resources. Mutual Aid Coordinator duties will vary depending upon the 
mutual aid system.  

8 - 82



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 74 

Mutual Aid Region: A mutual aid region is a subdivision of Cal OES established to assist in the 
coordination of mutual aid and other emergency operations within a geographical area of the 
state, consisting of two or more Operational Areas. 

National: Of a nationwide character, including the federal, state, tribal, and local aspects of 
governance and policy. 

National Incident Management System (NIMS): Provides a systematic, proactive approach 
guiding government agencies at all levels, the private sector, and non-governmental 
organizations to work seamlessly to prevent, protect against, respond to, recover from, and 
mitigate the effects of incidents, regardless of cause, size, location, or complexity, in order to 
reduce the loss of life or property and harm to the environment. 

National Response Framework (NRF): A guide to how the nation conducts all-hazards 
incident management. Non-governmental Organization (NGO): An entity with an association 
based on the interests of its members, individuals, or institutions. It is not created by a 
government, but it may work cooperatively with the government. Such organizations serve a 
public purpose, not a private benefit. Examples of NGO include faith-based charity 
organizations and the American Red Cross. 

Officer: 1) The ICS title for the personnel responsible for the Command Staff (Management 
Staff at EOC) positions of Safety, Liaison, and Public Information. 2) One who holds an office or 
post; especially one elected or appointed to a position of authority or trust in a corporation, 
government, institution, etc. 

Operational Area (OA): An intermediate level of the state emergency organization, consisting 
of a county and all other political subdivisions within the geographical boundaries of the county. 

Operational Period: The time scheduled for executing a given set of operation actions, as 
specified in the Incident Action Plan. Operational periods can be of various lengths, although 
usually last 12-24 hours. 

Operations Section: The section responsible for all tactical incident operations and 
implementation of the Incident Action Plan. In ICS, it normally includes subordinate branches, 
divisions, and/or groups. At the SEMS EOC levels, the section is responsible for the 
coordination of operational activities. The Operations Section at an EOC contains branches, 
groups, or units necessary to maintain appropriate span of control. 

Organization: Any association or group of persons with like objectives. Examples include, but 
are not limited to, governmental departments and agencies, private sector, and/or non-
governmental organizations. 

Planning Section: The section responsible for the collection, evaluation, and dissemination of 
operational information related to the incident or EOC activities and for the preparation and 
documentation of the IAP or EOC action plan, respectively. This section also maintains 
information on the current and forecasted situation and on the status of resources assigned to 
the incident or EOC activation. 

Political Subdivisions: Includes any city, city and county, county, tax or assessment district, or 
other legally authorized local governmental entity with jurisdictional boundaries. 

8 - 83



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 75 

Preparedness: A continuous cycle of planning, organizing, training, equipping, exercising, 
evaluating, and taking corrective action in an effort to ensure effective coordination during 
incident response. Within NIMS, preparedness focuses on the following elements: planning, 
procedures and protocols, training and exercises, personnel qualification and certification, and 
equipment certification. 

Prevention: Actions to avoid an incident or to intervene to stop an incident from occurring. 
Prevention involves actions to protect lives and property. It involves applying intelligence and 
other information to a range of activities that may include such countermeasures as deterrence 
operations; heightened inspections; improved surveillance and security operations; 
investigations to determine the full nature and source of the threat; public health and agricultural 
surveillance and testing processes; immunizations, isolation, or quarantine; and, as appropriate, 
specific law enforcement operations aimed at deterring, preempting, interdicting or disrupting 
illegal activity, and apprehending potential perpetrators and bringing them to justice. 

Private Sector: Organizations and entities that are not part of any governmental structure. The 
private sector includes for-profit and not-for-profit organizations, formal and informal structures, 
commerce, and industry. 

Protocols: Sets of established guidelines for actions (which may be designated by individuals, 
teams, functions, or capabilities) under various specified conditions. 

Public Information: Processes, procedures, and systems for communicating timely, accurate, 
and accessible information on the incident’s cause, size, and current situation; resources 
committed; and other matters of general interest to the public, responders, and additional 
stakeholders (both directly affected and indirectly affected). 

Public Information Officer (PIO): A member of the Command Staff (Management Staff at the 
SEMS EOC Levels) responsible for interfacing with the public and media and/or with other 
agencies with incident-related information requirements. 

Recovery: The development, coordination, and execution of service- and site-restoration plans; 
the reconstitution of government operations and services; individual, private–sector, non-
governmental, and public assistance programs to provide housing and to promote restoration; 
long-term care and treatment of affected persons; additional measures for social, political, 
environmental, and economic restoration; evaluation of the incident to identify lessons learned; 
post-incident reporting; and development of initiatives to mitigate the effects of future incidents. 

Regional Emergency Operations Center (REOC): Facilities found at Cal OES Administrative 
Regions. REOC provide centralized coordination of resources among Operational Areas within 
their respective regions and between the Operational Areas and the State Level. 

Reimbursement: Provide a mechanism to recoup funds expended for incident-specific 
activities. 

Resource Management: Efficient emergency management and incident response requires a 
system for identifying available resources at all jurisdictional levels to enable timely and 
unimpeded access to resources needed to prepare for, respond to, or recover from an incident. 
Resource management under NIMS includes mutual aid agreements and assistance 
agreements; the use of special federal, state, tribal, and local teams; and resource mobilization 
protocols. 

8 - 84



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 76 

Resources: Personnel and major items of equipment, supplies, and facilities available or 
potentially available for assignment to incident operations and for which status is maintained. 
Resources are described by kind and type and may be used in operational support or 
supervisory capacities at an incident or at an EOC. 

Response: Activities that address the short-term, direct effects of an incident. Response 
includes immediate actions to save lives, protect property, and meet basic human needs. 
Response also includes the execution of EOP and of mitigation activities designed to limit the 
loss of life, personal injury, property damage, and other unfavorable outcomes. As indicated by 
the situation, response activities include applying intelligence and other information to lessen 
the effects or consequences of an incident; increased security operations; continuing 
investigations into nature and source of the threat; ongoing public health and agricultural 
surveillance and testing processes; immunizations, isolation, or quarantine; and specific law 
enforcement operations aimed at preempting, interdicting, or disrupting illegal activity, and 
apprehending actual perpetrators and bringing them to justice. 

Response Personnel: Includes federal, state, territorial, tribal, sub-state regional and local 
governments, private sector organizations, critical infrastructure owners, and operators, NGO 
and all other organizations and individuals who assume an emergency management role. Also 
known as an Emergency Responder. 

Safety Officer: A member of the Command Staff (Management Staff at the SEMS EOC Levels) 
responsible for monitoring incident operations and advising the IC on all matters relating to 
operational safety, including the health and safety of emergency responder personnel. The 
Safety Officer may have assistants. 

Section: 1) The organizational level having responsibility for a major functional area of incident 
or EOC Management, (e.g., Operations, Planning, Logistics, Finance/Administration) and 
Intelligence/Investigations (if established). The section is organizationally situated between the 
branch and the Incident Command. 2) A separate part or division as: a. A portion of a book, 
treatise, or writing. b. A subdivision of a chapter. c. A division of law. 

Situation Report: Often contains confirmed or verified information regarding the specific details 
relating to the incident. 

Special District: A unit of local government (other than a city, county, or city and county) with 
authority or responsibility to own, operate, and maintain systems, programs, services, or 
projects [(as defined in California Code of Regulations (CCR) Section 2900(s)] for purposes of 
natural disaster assistance. This may include joint powers authority established under Section 
6500 et. seq. of the California Code of Regulations. 

Stafford Act: The Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (Stafford 
Act) establishes the programs and processes for the federal government to provide disaster and 
emergency assistance to states, local governments, tribal nations, individuals, and qualified 
private nonprofit organizations. The provisions of the Stafford Act cover all hazards including 
natural disasters and terrorist events. Relevant provisions of the Stafford Act include a process 
for Governors to request federal disaster and emergency assistance from the President. The 
President may declare a major disaster or emergency. 

8 - 85



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 77 

Standard Operating Procedure (SOP): Complete reference document or an operation manual 
that provides the purpose, authorities, duration, and details for the preferred method of 
performing a single function or several interrelated functions in a uniform manner. 

Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS): A system required by California 
Government Code and established by regulations for managing response to multiagency and 
multijurisdictional emergencies in California. SEMS consists of five organizational levels, which 
are activated as necessary: Field Response, Local Government, Operational Area, Region, and 
State. 

Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) Guidelines: The SEMS guidelines 
are intended to assist those responsible for planning, implementing, and participating in SEMS. 

Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) Regulations: Regulations 
establishing the Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) based upon the 
Incident Command System (ICS) adapted from the system originally developed by the 
Firefighting Resources of California Organized for Potential Emergencies (FIRESCOPE) 
program including those currently in use by State agencies, the Multiagency Coordination 
System (MACS) as developed by FIRESCOPE program, the Operational Area concept, and the 
Master Mutual Aid Agreement and related mutual aid systems. Regulations are found at Title 
XIX. Division 2. Chapter 1, Section 2400 et. seq.

State: When capitalized, refers to any State of the United States, the District of Columbia, the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, the Commonwealth 
of the Northern Mariana Islands, and any possession of the United States. See Section 2 (14), 
Homeland Security Act of 2002, Public Law 107−296, 116 Stat. 2135 (2002). 

State Operations Center (SOC): The SOC is operated by the California Governor’s Office of 
Emergency Services at the State Level in SEMS. It is responsible for centralized coordination of 
state resources in support of the three Regional Emergency Operations Centers (REOC). It is 
also responsible for providing updated situation reports to the Governor and Legislature. 

Strategy: The general plan or direction selected to accomplish incident objectives. 

System: An integrated combination of people, equipment, and processes that work in a 
coordinated manner to achieve a specific desired output under specific conditions. 

Technical Assistance: Support provided to state, tribal, and local jurisdictions when they have 
the resources, but lack the complete knowledge and skills needed to perform a required activity 
(such as mobile-home park design or hazardous material assessments). 

Technical Specialists: Personnel with special skills that can be used anywhere within the 
SEMS organization. No minimum qualifications are prescribed, as technical specialists normally 
perform the same duties during an incident that they perform in their everyday jobs and they are 
typically certified in their fields or professions. 

Terrorism: Under the Homeland Security Act of 2002, terrorism is defined as activity that 
involves an act dangerous to human life or potentially destructive of critical infrastructure or key 
resources; is a violation of the criminal laws of the United States or of any state or other 
subdivision of the United States in which it occurs; and is intended to intimidate or coerce the 
civilian population, or influence or affect the conduct of a government by mass destruction, 

8 - 86



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 1 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 78 

assassination, or kidnapping. See Section 2 (15), Homeland Security Act of 2002, Public 
Law107−296, 116 Stat. 2135 (2002). 

Threat: An indication of possible violence, harm, or danger. 

Tools: Those instruments and capabilities that allow for the professional performance of tasks, 
such as information systems, agreements, doctrine, capabilities, and legislative authorities. 

Unified Command: An ICS application used when more than one agency has incident 
jurisdiction or when incidents cross political jurisdictions. Agencies work together through the 
designated members of the UC, often the senior person from agencies and/or disciplines 
participating in the UC, to establish a common set of objectives and strategies and a single IAP. 

Unit: The organizational element with functional responsibility for a specific incident planning, 
logistics, or finance/administration activity. 

Vital Records: The essential agency records needed to meet operational responsibilities under 
national security emergencies or other emergency or disaster conditions (emergency operating 
records), or to protect the legal and financial rights of the Government and those affected by 
Government activities (legal and financial rights records). 

Volunteer: For purposes of NIMS, a volunteer is any individual accepted to perform services by 
the lead agency (which has authority to accept volunteer services) when the individual performs 
services without promise, expectation, or receipt of compensation for services performed. See 
16 U.S.C. 742f(c) and 29 CFR 553.101. 

8 - 87



 
THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 
LEFT BLANK 

8 - 88



ATTACHMENT 3 
Emergency Operations Plan Part 2 

8 - 89



 
THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 
LEFT BLANK 

8 - 90



 

EMERGENCY 
OPERATIONS PLAN 
PART 2: EOC MANAGEMENT & IMPLEMENTATION  

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA  JUNE 2022 
 

 

 

  

8 - 91



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 1 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

8 - 92



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF SOUTH 
PASADENA 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN 
PART 2: EOC MANAGEMENT & IMPLEMENTATION 

2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 93



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 94



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 4 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN 
PART 2: EOC MANAGEMENT AND PLAN IMPLEMENTATION  
2022 

PREPARED FOR PREPARED BY 

Project Manager/Lead Facilitator: 
Michael Brady 
michaelbrady101@gmail.com 

Project Subject Matter Expert/Facilitator: 
Kurt Johnson 

Technical Expert & Writer: 
Hilda Hurtado, CEM, PCP 

8 - 95



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 96



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 6 

Table of Contents 
 

Table of Contents ....................................................................................................................... 6 
1 EOC Activation ........................................................................................................................ 9 
1.1 EOC Purpose ....................................................................................................................... 9 
1.2 EOC Facilities ...................................................................................................................... 9 

1.2.1 Main EOC facility ........................................................................................................ 9 
1.2.2 Alternate EOC facility ................................................................................................11 
1.2.3 Initial Response ........................................................................................................13 
1.2.3 Levels of EOC Activation ...........................................................................................13 

1.3 EOC Notification/Personnel Recall ......................................................................................14 
2 EOC Operations .....................................................................................................................16 
2.1 Summary of EOC Operations ..............................................................................................16 
2.2 Emergency Operation Center Protocols ..............................................................................16 
2.3 Management Organization ..................................................................................................17 
2.4 Resource Management .......................................................................................................17 
2.5 EOC Information Management ............................................................................................18 
2.6 EOC Action Planning ..........................................................................................................19 
2.7 EOC Coordination ...............................................................................................................20 

2.7.1 Field Responders ......................................................................................................20 
2.7.2 Departmental Operation Centers (DOCs) ..................................................................21 
2.7.3 Operation Area ..........................................................................................................21 
2.7.4 Private and Volunteer Agencies ................................................................................21 
2.7.5 Special Districts and Utilities (Schools, So Cal Gas, SCE and Metro Transit) ............21 
2.7.6 Region Emergency Operations Center ......................................................................21 
2.7.7 State & Federal Field Response ................................................................................22 

3 EOC Position JobAids ............................................................................................................24 
3.1 Management Section ..........................................................................................................28 

JobAid: EOC Director .........................................................................................................30 
JobAid: EOC Coordinator ...................................................................................................38 
JobAid: Legal Officer ..........................................................................................................43 
JobAid: Liaison Officer .......................................................................................................47 
JobAid: Public Information Officer ......................................................................................53 
JobAid: Safety Officer ........................................................................................................59 

3.2 Operations Section ..............................................................................................................63 

8 - 97



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 7 

JobAid: Operations Chief/Coordinator ................................................................................65 
JobAid: Fire Branch ...........................................................................................................73 
JobAid: Law Branch ...........................................................................................................79 
JobAid: Medical/Health Branch ..........................................................................................85 
JobAid: Care & Shelter Branch ..........................................................................................89 
JobAid: Construction & Engineering Branch .......................................................................95 
JobAid: Damage & Safety Assessment Unit ..................................................................... 101 
JobAid: Debris Management Unit ..................................................................................... 107 
JobAid: Public Works Unit ................................................................................................ 111 
JobAid: Utilities Unit ......................................................................................................... 115 

3.3 Planning & Intelligence Section ......................................................................................... 119 
JobAid: Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator ........................................................... 121 
JobAid: Action Planning Unit ............................................................................................ 129 
JobAid: Situation Analysis Unit ......................................................................................... 133 
JobAid: Documentation Unit ............................................................................................. 139 
JobAid: Advance Planning Unit ........................................................................................ 145 
JobAid: Resource Status/Tracking Unit ............................................................................ 151 
JobAid: Demobilization Unit ............................................................................................. 155 
JobAid: Technical Specialist Unit ..................................................................................... 159 
JobAid: Access and Functional Needs (AFN) Specialist ................................................... 163 
JobAid: Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Specialist ............................................... 167 
JobAid: Social Media Specialist ....................................................................................... 173 

3.4 Logistics Section ............................................................................................................... 177 
JobAid: Logistics Chief/Coordinator ................................................................................. 179 
JobAid: Communications & IT Unit ................................................................................... 185 
JobAid: Transportation Unit .............................................................................................. 189 
JobAid: Personnel Unit..................................................................................................... 193 
JobAid: EMMA Coordinator .............................................................................................. 199 
JobAid: Supply & Procurement Unit ................................................................................. 203 
JobAid: Facilities Unit ....................................................................................................... 209 
JobAid: Food Unit ............................................................................................................ 215 
JobAid: Donations Management Unit ............................................................................... 219 
JobAid: Volunteer Coordination Unit ................................................................................ 223 

3.5 Finance/Administration Section ......................................................................................... 227 
JobAid: Finance & Administration Chief/Coordinator ........................................................ 229 

8 - 98



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 8 

JobAid: Time Keeping Unit ............................................................................................... 235 
JobAid: Compensation & Claims Unit ............................................................................... 239 
JobAid: Purchasing Unit ................................................................................................... 243 
JobAid: Recovery Unit...................................................................................................... 249 

4 EOC Forms & Tools ............................................................................................................. 255 
4.1 EOC Action Planning ........................................................................................................ 255 

4.1.1 Common Operating Picture Guidance ..................................................................... 255 
4.1.2 Planning P............................................................................................................... 257 
4.1.3 Planning P Meeting Agendas .................................................................................. 258 
4.1.4 EOC Action Plan ..................................................................................................... 265 
4.1.5 EOC Forms ............................................................................................................. 277 
4.1.6 EOC Reports ........................................................................................................... 279 
4.1.7 EOC Plans .............................................................................................................. 281 
4.1.8 EOC Guides ............................................................................................................ 281 

5 Appendix A - Resources ...................................................................................................... 283 
6 Appendix B - Contact List ..................................................................................................... 285 

8 - 99



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 9 

1 EOC Activation 
1.1 EOC Purpose 
 
The City EOC is a central location from which the City can provide inter-agency coordination 
and executive decision-making in support of incident response and recovery operations.  The 
purpose of the EOC is to provide a centralized location where public safety, emergency 
response, and support agencies coordinate planning, preparedness, and response activities.  
The EOC does not command or control on-scene response efforts, but does carry out the 
coordination functions through: 
 

1. Collecting, evaluating and disseminating incident information. 
2. Analyzing jurisdictional impacts and setting priority actions; and 
3. Managing requests, procurement, and utilization of resources. 

 
The decisions made through the EOC are designed to be broad in scope and offer general 
guidance on priorities.  Information is disseminated through the EOC Manager/Director and 
tactical decisions are coordinated from field response personnel.  The EOC serves as a 
coordinated link between the Chief Elected Official (CEO) of each jurisdiction and the field 
personnel coordinating the execution of event priorities. 
 
1.2 EOC Facilities 
 
1.2.1 Main EOC facility 
 
Table 1: EOC Information provides location and logistics data useful for activating the EOC. 
Figure 1: EOC Area Map shows the EOC location and the surrounding area. 

Address 817 Mound Ave 

Phone Number (626)403-7310 

Parking  

Directions  
 

Table 1: EOC Information 

 

 

 

8 - 100



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 10 

 

 

 

Figure 1: EOC Area Map 

 

8 - 101



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 11 

1.2.2 Alternate EOC facility 

Table 2: Alternate EOC Information provides location and logistics data useful for activating 
the EOC. Figure 2: Alternate EOC Area Map shows the EOC location and the surrounding 
area. 

Address 

Phone Number 

Parking 

Directions 

Table 2: Alternate EOC Information 

8 - 102



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 12 

 

 

Figure 2:  Alternate EOC Area Map 

 

8 - 103



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 13 

1.2.3 Initial Response 
 
Initial field response operations will be accomplished by the appropriate City departments, 
member jurisdictions, volunteer agencies, and segments of the private sector. During initial 
response operations, field responders will place emphasis on saving lives, property, and the 
environment, controlling the situation, and minimizing the effects of the emergency. The Incident 
Command System will be used to manage and control the response operations.  

The disaster/event may be controlled solely by City emergency responders or with other 
agencies through the mutual aid system. If the resources available at the field response level 
are not sufficient to mitigate the situation, the Incident Commander may request that the City 
Emergency Operations Plan, or the Emergency Operations Center, be activated to support the 
field operations.  

Field Reports. A field report is provided by the incident responders and includes information 
concerning the nature, severity, and extent of the situation. The information will be used to 
assess the extent of the disaster/event and determine the appropriate level of response for the 
City. 
 
1.2.3 Levels of EOC Activation 
 

The City EOC may be activated as needed to support City emergency operations. The EOC 
may be activated by one of the following: 

• City Manager 
• City Manager designated alternate 
• Upon the request of the City Council/Disaster Council 
• Upon the request of the Field Incident Commander (Battalion Chief, Fire Chief or Police 

Chief) 

The City has developed EOC activation criteria that include conditions based on a hazard 
analysis as well as regulatory requirements. The goal is a rapid EOC activation when it is 
needed. 

Three levels of activation have been identified that will provide EOC staffing commensurate with 
the coordination needs of varying emergency situations. Table 3: EOC Activation Criteria, 
contains the activation criteria for the City EOC. 

 

 

 

Activation  
Level Detail Event 

or Situation 
Minimum  
Staffing 

Three 
• Level Three is a minimum 

activation. This level may be 
used for situations which 

• Events with potential 
impacts on the health & 
safety of the public and/or 
environment 

1. EOC Manager 
2. Other Designees 

(Such as Section 
Coordinators,) 

8 - 104



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 14 

Activation 
Level Detail Event 

or Situation 
Minimum 
Staffing 

initially only require a few 
people. 

• A Level Three activation is
also called monitoring level
activation.

• The physical EOC facility
may or may not need to be
opened or staffed
(virtual/Veoci).

• Weather Alerts
• Incident involving 2 or more

City departments
• Low risk planned event
• Wind or rainstorm
• Power outage and Stage 1 &

2 emergencies

Two 

• Level Two activation is
normally achieved as an
increase from Level Three or
a decrease from Level One.
This activation level is used
for emergencies or planned
events that would require
more than a minimum staff
but would not call for a full
activation/staffing.

• A Level Two activation are
also called partial level
activation.

• The physical EOC facility will
need to be opened and
staffed.

• Two or more large incidents
involving 2 or more
departments

• Major wind or rain
• Major scheduled event
• Large scale power outage

and Stage 3 power 
emergencies 

• Hazardous Material Incident
involving large scale or
possible large-scale
evacuations

• Moderate Earthquake

1. EOC Manager
2. Section

Coordinators
3. Branches & Units

as appropriate 
4. Liaison/Agency

Representatives as
appropriate

5. Public Information
Officer

One 

• Level One activation
involves a complete/full
activation of all EOC
elements & staffing. Level
One would be the initial
activation for any major
emergency requiring acute
State assistance.

• A Level One activation is
also called full level
activation.

• The physical EOC facility will
need to be opened and fully
staffed.

• Major County/City or
Regional emergency,
multiple departments with
heavy resource involvement

• Major Earthquake
• Terrorism threat or incident

1. All EOC as
appropriate

Table 3: EOC Activation Criteria 

1.3 EOC Notification/Personnel Recall 

If EOC activation is required, the City Dispatch will notify everyone on the EOC Recall List and 
provide directions to the primary EOC. If the primary EOC is not available or is inaccessible, an 
alternate EOC will be activated.  

8 - 105



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 15 

The EOC Emergency Recall List includes personnel who are part of each SEMS function in the 
Emergency Operations Center, as well as other technical support employees of the City. The 
Emergency Recall List is to be activated and implemented when an emergency or disaster 
affects the City and poses a major threat to life, property, and/or the environment. 

Maintenance of Emergency Recall List: The City Manager’s Office maintains the Emergency 
Recall List. The City Manager’s Office ensures that City Dispatch, and the EOC have current 
copies of the Emergency Recall List. The Emergency Recall list is activated by City Dispatch 
and will only be implemented when directed by one of the following County employees: 

• City Manager
• City Manager designated alternate
• Upon the request of the City Council/Disaster Council
• Upon the request of the Field Incident Commander and approval of the City Manager of

City Manager designated alternate

Notification Implementation: Once EOC activation is requested and properly authorized, the 
Emergency Recall List will be implemented by City Dispatch personnel. Notifications and alerts 
begin with the City Manager. If the City Manager cannot be reached, other designees will be 
contacted until someone is reached to assume the EOC Manager/Director position. 

The dispatchers will provide the EOC Manager/Director with a complete status of the incident or 
disaster, identifying damage sustained, current response actions, resource status, etc. Based 
on the information provided by the dispatcher, the EOC Manager/Director will determine what 
parts of the Emergency Alert List will be implemented, including what sections of the City’s 
Emergency Operations Center will be activated and requested to respond.  

Additionally, the EOC Manager/Director, when appropriate, will personally contact and inform 
the City Council of the situation in the City. The EOC Manager/Director may request that the 
dispatchers notify the Operational Area of the EOC activation.  

The City Emergency Recall List consists of the following sections: 

• Management
• Operations
• Planning
• Finance
• Logistics

Recall Personnel: When notified of an Emergency Recall, personnel should notify their 
families, retrieve their emergency operations go bag, and report to the designated City 
Emergency Operations Center. Personnel should be prepared for a lengthy stay, which will be 
dependent upon the nature of the disaster and its expected duration. 

It is the responsibility of each department head to assign three (3) alternates for each key 
position. It is also the department head’s responsibility to ensure that all designated alternates 
have knowledge and training in their EOC assigned job functions. The Disaster Management 
Area Coordinator (DMAC) will assist in Emergency Operations training. 

8 - 106



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 16 

2 EOC Operations 
2.1 Summary of EOC Operations 
 
The Standard Emergency Management System (SEMS) is state law, and under SEMS 
regulations, the City falls under Local Government, one of the five SEMS levels.  

As Local Government, the City is an intermediate level of the state's emergency services 
organization that encompasses the city and all political subdivisions. The City manages and 
coordinates information, resources and priorities within its boundaries, and serves as the 
coordination and communication link between the Field Level and the Operational Area.  

The City as the Local Government level of SEMS is responsible for:  

• Establish coordination and communications with Incident Commanders either; 
• Through department operations centers to the EOC, when activated or, 
• Directly to the EOC, when activated 

• Use existing mutual aid systems for coordinating fire and law enforcement resources. 
Note that the City’s role as the local government does not change the coordination of 
discipline-specific resources, such as fire, law, and medical/health, through their 
established mutual aid systems. 

• Establish coordination and communications between the local government EOC when 
activated, and any federal, state or local emergency response agency having jurisdiction 
at an incident within the local government's boundaries. 

• Use multi-agency or inter-agency coordination to facilitate decisions for overall local 
government level emergency response activities 
 

2.2 Emergency Operation Center Protocols 
 
An EOC provides a central location of authority and information and allows for face-to-face 
coordination among personnel who must make emergency decisions. The following functions 
are performed in the City EOC:  

• Managing and coordinating emergency operations.  
• Receiving and disseminating warning information.  
• Developing emergency policies and procedures.  
• Collecting intelligence from, and disseminating information to, the various EOC 

representatives, and, as appropriate, to County/Operational Area, State and Federal 
agencies or if activated Emergency Operation Centers. 

• Preparing intelligence/information summaries, situation reports, operational reports, and 
other reports as required.  

• Maintaining general and specific maps, information display boards, and other data 
pertaining to emergency operations.  

• Continuing analysis and evaluation of all data pertaining to emergency operations.  
• Controlling and coordinating, within established policy, the operational and logistical 

support of departmental resources committed to the emergency.  
• Maintaining contact and coordination with support DOCs and the Operational Area EOC.  

8 - 107



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 17 

• Providing emergency information and instructions to the public, making official releases 
to the news media and the scheduling of press conferences, as necessary.  

Departments with critical response functions may also activate their Department Operation 
Centers (DOC) that act as conduits of information between field operations and the EOC. 
 
2.3 Management Organization 
 
The SEMS regulation requires local governments to provide for five functions: management, 
operations, planning/intelligence, logistics, and finance/administration. These functions, as seen 
in Table 4: SEMS Functions are the basis for structuring the City EOC organization. 

Primary SEMS Function Role of Local Government Level 

Management Responsible for overall emergency policy and coordination through joint 
efforts of governmental agencies and private organizations 

Operations 
Responsible for coordinating all jurisdictional operations in support of the 
emergency response through implementation of the local government’s 
action plan. 

Planning/Intelligence 
Responsible for collecting, evaluating, and disseminating information; 
developing the local government action plan in coordination with other 
functions; and maintaining documentation. 

Logistics Responsible for providing facilities, services, personnel, equipment, and 
materials. 

Finance/Administration 
Responsible for financial activities and other administrative aspects, 
including documenting all costs and expenditures associated with a 
declared disaster. 

 
Table 4: SEMS Functions 

 
The organizational structure for the City EOC provides for: 

• Representatives from the Operational Area 
• Mutual Aid Coordinators or their representatives from discipline-specific mutual aid 

systems 
• Coordinators for other major functions needed for mutual aid and inter-jurisdictional 

coordination 
• Representatives from other agencies, community-based organizations, private sector, 

and volunteer service programs to function as liaison between their organizations and 
the City EOC 

• Other functions as needed to carry out the local government responsibilities of the lead 
agency  

 
2.4 Resource Management 
 
Resource requests from the field and city departments and requests to the operational area 
level will be made through one of the following processes:  

8 - 108



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 18 

• Discipline-specific mutual aid systems: requests for resources that are normally within
the inventories of the mutual aid system will go from local coordinator to Operational
Area Mutual Aid Coordinator to Regional Mutual Aid Coordinator.

• All other resource requests will be made through appropriate branches in the Operations
Section who will then initiate the resource request through the Logistics Section at each
level with emphasis on the need for lateral coordination with other EOC functions.

Resource requests from field and city departments will be coordinated within the City EOC to 
determine if the resource is available within City supplies. Available resources will be allocated 
as they are available.  

If requests for a specific resource exceed the supply, the available resources will be allocated 
by the Operations Section consistent with priorities established through the action planning 
process. The EOC Management Staff is responsible for ensuring that priorities are followed.  

Resources not available within the City will be requested through the Operational Area level. 
Resource requests should be coordinated internally at the city/local government level before 
being placed to the Operational Area level.  

Functional coordinators in Operations and Logistics are responsible for tracking resource 
requests. 

2.5 EOC Information Management 

Within the City EOC, the EOC Forms will be used to provide written communications between 
the Sections, Branches and Units. Each Section, Branch and Unit will use these forms to order 
disaster/event related resources and to record information to be transmitted to other 
Sections/Branches/Units. This system provides an audit trail of all pertinent information 
necessary to document the actions taken by the City during the response to a disaster, rather 
than every word uttered between the various EOC Staff.  

EOC Forms will not replace face-to-face communications but will ensure a paper trail of critical 
verbal communication is maintained, if not recorded on the individual’s or 
Section's/Branches'/Units' duty logs. City EOC Forms and other pertinent documents and 
templates are located in the Form and Tools section of this plan.  

Acting as the Local Government, the City coordinates emergency activities within its 
boundaries, augmenting, not replacing, any member jurisdiction’s emergency operations. It also 
serves as the communications link between the field and the Operational Area. It provides a 
single point of contact for information on the emergency situation, as well as resource needs 
and priorities.  

Transmission of information to the Operational Area Emergency Operations Center will be 
accomplished electronically via the Operational Area Response and Recovery System 
(OARRS) is a web-based system that functions as the OA’s primary tool for 
agencies/jurisdictions and other operational area partners to report their status and needs to the 
OA. 

Critical information from the City to the Operational Area EOC will be submitted via OARRS on 
a Preliminary Report, Situation Summary, Status Report, and a Flash Report.  

8 - 109



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 19 

Preliminary Report. The Preliminary Report form will be used by the City to transmit 
information to the Operational Area Emergency Operations Center during the first two hours 
after an event.  

Situation Summary. The Situation summary is an assessment of the emergency and identifies 
major incidents/problems and response and recovery priorities. It is intended for use after the 
first two hours of an event.  

Status Report. The Status Report is informational, providing data about the effects of the 
emergency in several categories. The Status Report and Situation Summary will be transmitted 
to the State together.  

Flash Report. The Flash Report is used to transmit vital and/or time-sensitive information 
between the State and County/Operational Area outside regularly scheduled Situation 
Summaries and Status Reports. 

Resource requests will be made through one of the following processes: 

• Discipline-specific mutual aid systems: Requests for resources that are normally within
the inventories of the mutual aid system will go from Local Coordinator to Operational
Area Mutual Aid Coordinator to the Regional Mutual Aid Coordinator.

• All other resource requests will be made through the operations and logistics functions at
each level.

Resource requests from jurisdictions within the City will be coordinated to determine if the 
resource is available from other departments or other sources within the City. Mutual Aid 
Coordinators at each level will keep the Operations Chiefs informed of the status of resource 
requests and allocations. Mutual Aid Coordinators at each level will communicate and 
coordinate with each other to maintain current status on resource requests and allocations 
within the disaster area.  

Resource requests to the Operational Area are usually submitted through CALEOC. Available 
resources will be allocated to the requesting local government. If requests for a specific 
resource exceed the supply, the available resources will be allocated consistent with the 
priorities established through the action planning process. The Section Chiefs of the Operational 
Area EOC are responsible for ensuring that priorities are followed.  

Resources that are not available within the Operational Area will be requested through the 
regional level, the State's Coastal Region EOC. Resource requests should be coordinated 
internally at the Operational Area level before being forwarded to the regional level. The 
Resource Status Unit Leader in the Logistics Section, in coordination with various Operations 
Branches, is responsible for tracking resource requests. 

2.6 EOC Action Planning 

The use of action plans in the City EOC ensures a clear and measurable process for identifying 
objectives and priorities for a given event. Action planning is an important management tool that 
involves: 

8 - 110



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 20 

• A process for identifying priorities and objectives for emergency response or recovery 
efforts 

• Plans which document the priorities and objectives, and the tasks and personnel 
assignments associated with meeting the objectives 

The action planning process should involve the EOC Director and Section Chiefs (which 
includes the Chiefs of each Section), along with other EOC staff, as needed, such as special 
districts, and other agency representatives. 

The Planning and Intelligence Section is responsible for facilitating the action planning meeting 
and completing and distributing the action plan. Action plans are developed for a specified 
operational period, which may range from a few hours to 24 hours. The operational period is 
determined by first establishing a set of priority actions that need to be performed. A reasonable 
time frame is then established for accomplishing those actions. 

The action plans need not be complex but should be sufficiently detailed to guide EOC elements 
in implementing the priority actions. Guidelines for developing action plans and an action plan 
format are contained in the Forms and Tools section. 
 
2.7 EOC Coordination 
 
Inter-agency coordination inside and outside the EOC is important for:  

• Establishing overall priorities  
• Allocating critical resources  
• Development of strategies for handling multi-agency and multi-jurisdictional response 

problems  
• Sharing information  
• Facilitating communications  

 
Inter-agency coordination is an integral part of the functioning of a City EOC. The EOC is staffed 
by representatives from the departments and agencies working together to coordinate the City’s 
emergency response. Agency representatives from local governments including special 
districts, community-based organizations, volunteer services programs (VSPs), and private 
organizations, may also participate with EOC functional elements in coordinating the city 
response effort. Coordination with agencies not represented in the EOC may be accomplished 
through telecommunications, satellite, or other electronic means. 

2.7.1 Field Responders 
 
City EOC communications and coordination must be established with city field responders who 
are responding to the emergency. When no Departmental Operations Centers (DOCs) are 
activated, the Incident Commander(s) operating in the field will report directly to the Operations 
Section Chief in the City EOC, via the City dispatchers or through other methods that are 
available. 

When City Departments (Public Works for example) have activated their DOCs, the Field 
Incident Commander will continue to report directly to the Operations Section Chief in the City 
EOC and provide status reports to their DOC.  

8 - 111



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 21 

2.7.2 Departmental Operation Centers (DOCs) 
 
The appropriate City EOC Section/Branch/Unit will coordinate with DOCs to obtain information 
for advance planning, logistical needs, available personnel and equipment resources, and other 
information as required. The DOCs will assist the City EOC in supporting field operations.  
 
2.7.3 Operation Area  
During EOC activation, direct communications and coordination may be established with the 
Operational Area and any Operational Area member jurisdictions, specifically is emergency 
incident falls between the City limits and a neighbor jurisdiction. Initially, communications will be 
established by any means available and with whoever is available, regardless of their functional 
EOC position. Ideally, communications and coordination with the Operation Area EOC and 
neighboring City EOCs will occur along functional lines. 

Whenever feasible, an agency representative from the City should report to the Operational 
Area EOC, when the City EOC has been activated. The city representatives will ensure that 
adequate coordination and information exchange arrangements are made with the Operational 
Area. 

2.7.4 Private and Volunteer Agencies 
 
Coordination of response activities with many non-governmental agencies may occur, primarily 
at the field level. However, the City EOC will establish coordination with private and volunteer 
agencies that have multi-jurisdictional or city-wide response roles. The agencies that play key 
roles in the response should have representatives at the City EOC. 

Coordination with volunteer and private agencies that do not have representatives in the EOC 
may be accomplished through telecommunications. 

2.7.5 Special Districts and Utilities (Schools, So Cal Gas, SCE and Metro Transit) 
 
The emergency response role of special districts is generally focused on their normal services 
or functional area of responsibility. Ideally, the special district involved in the emergency 
response will have a representative at the City EOC, serving as the focal point of coordination 
and work with other local government representatives in the EOC. If a special district is unable 
to send a representative, then the Liaison Officer in the EOC will be responsible for establishing 
communications and coordination with the special district. 

2.7.6 Region Emergency Operations Center 
 
Direct coordination and communications with the Southern Region Emergency Operations 
Center (REOC) is essential. There is one primary method and one alternate method for the 
Operational Area to coordinate with the Regional EOC: 

• Primary Method - The REOC sends a field representative to the Operational Area 

• Alternate Method - The Operational Area and the REOC coordinate through various 
telecommunications systems 

8 - 112



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 22 

Coordination and communications between the County EOC and the Region EOC will occur 
between the five SEMS functions. Direct coordination and communications will also be 
established between the Operational Area Mutual Aid Coordinators, who are located in the 
County EOC, and the Region's Mutual Aid Coordinator, who are located in the State's Coastal 
Region EOC. These coordinators may be functioning from their respective Operational Area and 
regional EOCs or from other locations depending on the situation and the mutual aid system. 

2.7.7 State & Federal Field Response 

There are some instances where a state or federal agency will be part of a field response in the 
county. State agency field response may result of a flood fight effort, oil spill, hazardous 
materials accident or other hazard scenarios. Federal field response could result from the same 
scenarios or a military aircraft accident, where the federal military authorities are the Incident 
Commander. 

When a state agency or federal agency is involved in field operations, coordination will be 
established with the City EOC. State or federal agencies operating in the field may be found in 
any ICS section, branch, or unit; or part of a Unified Command. The incident will determine their 
location. 

8 - 113



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 23 

Emergency Operations Center Phone Numbers 

 

Management 

(626) 441-0384 

Operations 

FIRE (626) 441-0946 

LAW (626) 441-2013 

PW   (626) 441-1783 

Planning & Intelligence 

(626) 441-1783 

Logistics 

(626) 403-7310 

Finance 

(626) 441-1468 

 

  

8 - 114



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 24 

3 EOC Position JobAids 
The following pages contain functional descriptions and jobaids for each position in the City 
EOC. Figure 4: EOC Organization Chart below, provides an overview of the City’s EOC 
organization. 

Emergency Operations Center Diagram 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P&I 

OPS 

LOGS 

MGMT 

FIN 

TV Whiteboard 

City 
Map 

Whiteboard 

Phone (626) 403-7310 

8 - 115



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 25 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

8 - 116



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 26 

 
Figure 4: EOC Organization Chart 

8 - 117



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 27 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 118



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 28 

3.1 Management Section 

Figure 5: EOC Management Section 

This section contains functional section and position descriptions, responsibilities, and jobaids 
for personnel assigned to the Management Section of the City EOC. Jobaids describe the 
minimum actions that should be accomplished by personnel assigned to functional positions 
within the section. 

Section Overview: 
• The Management Section is responsible for overall emergency policy and coordination.

Section Responsibilities Include: 
• Overall management and coordination of emergency response and recovery operations
• Oversee and manage all Sections in the EOC.
• Coordinate and liaison with appropriate federal, state, local government, private and

volunteer entities
• Establish priorities and resolve demand conflicts
• Prepare and disseminate emergency public information, other essential information and

data about impacts and damage

Figure 5: EOC Management Section, above, shows all of the positions that are part of the 
EOC Management Section. 

8 - 119



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 29 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

8 - 120



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 30 

JobAid: EOC Director 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

• Overall responsibility and authority for the operation of the EOC.  
• Will assure EOC is staffed and operated at a level commensurate with 

the emergency.  

REPORT  
 

TO 
CITY COUNCIL or DESIGNEE 

 TO ME GENERAL STAFF 
• Operations Section 

Chief/Coordinator 
• Planning/Intelligence Chief 

Section Coordinator 
• Logistics Section 

Chief/Coordinator 
• Finance/Administration Section 

Chief/ Coordinator 

MANAGEMENT STAFF 
• EOC Coordinator 
• Public Information Officer 
• Liaison Officer/Agency 

Representative 
• Safety Officer 
• Legal Officer 
• Private Sector Coordinator 

PLANS 
& REPORTS 

 

EOC ACTION PLAN | REVIEW + APPROVAL 
ADVANCE PLAN(S) | REVIEW + APPROVAL 
DEMOBILIZATION PLAN | REVIEW + APPROVAL 
PRESS RELEASES | REVIEW + APPROVAL 
REPORTS | REVIEW + APPROVAL 

FORMS 
& GUIDES 

 

• POSITION JOBAID 
• ALL ICS FORMS (IF USING)  
• EOC-225 FOR PD 

CREDENTIALING 
• PROCLAMATION 

RESOLUTION  

GUIDE 
• PLANNING “P” 
• RECOVERY PLAN/PROJECT 

MANAGEMENT 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 EOC-225 to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

8 - 121



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 31 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   
• Establish appropriate EOC staffing level 
• Continuously monitor organizational effectiveness and make 

appropriate changes 

 

   
Exercise overall management responsibility for the coordination between 
emergency response agencies in the jurisdiction.   

 

   
• Alongside General Staff, set jurisdictional priorities for response.   
• Ensure all department/agency actions support established EOC 

priorities. 

 

   Ensure that inter-agency coordination is accomplished effectively.  

ACTIVATION   

   Determine appropriate level of activation based on known situation    

   Mobilize/Recall appropriate personnel to the EOC for initial activation.    

   Respond immediately to EOC site and determine operational status.  

   
• Obtain briefing from available sources.  
• Ensure that EOC is properly set up and ready for operations.  
• Ensure that EOC check-in procedure is established  

 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

   Ensure that EOC organization and staffing chart is posted and completed  

 (FORM | EOC-207) 

 

   

Determine needed EOC sections, assign Section Chief/Coordinators and 
ensure sections are adequately staffed.   

 Operations Section Chief/Coordinator 
 Logistics Section Chief/Coordinator 
 Planning/Intelligence Section Chief/Coordinator 
 Finance/Administration Section Chief/Coordinator 

 

8 - 122



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 32 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Determine needed Management Staff positions and ensure they are filled 
as soon as possible.  

EOC Coordinator  
Public Information Officer 
Rumor Control Coordinator 
Liaison Officer 
Agency Representative 
Safety Officer 

Ensure telephone and/or radio communications with other EOCs/DOCs is 
established and functioning.   

Schedule the initial EOC Action Planning Meeting 

(FORM | EOC-230) 
Alongside General Staff, determine what representation is needed at the 
EOC from other emergency response agencies.   

Assign a liaison officer to coordinate outside agency response to the EOC, 
and if needed, assist in establishing an Inter-Agency Coordination Group. 

RESPONSE 

Monitor general staff activities to ensure appropriate actions are being 
taken.  

Alongside Public Information Officer, conduct news conferences and 
review media releases for final approval. Follow established procedure for 
public information. 

(FORM | PRESS RELEASE) 
Ensure Liaison Officer is providing and maintaining effective inter-agency 
coordination.  

Based on status reports, establish initial strategic objectives for the EOC. 

Alongside Management Staff, prepare EOC objectives for the initial Action 
Planning Meeting. 

(FORM | EOC-202) 
(GUIDE | PLANNING “P” GUIDE)  

8 - 123



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 33 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   

• Convene Initial Action Planning meeting.   
• Ensure that all Section Chief/Coordinators, Management Staff, and 

key agency representatives are in attendance.  
• Ensure appropriate Action Planning procedures are followed.  

  (GUIDE | PLANNING “P” GUIDE) 
• Ensure meeting is facilitated appropriately by the 

Planning/Intelligence Section,  
and consensus among EOC Coordinator, PIO, and Section 
Chiefs/Coordinators on objectives for forthcoming operational period. 

 Assess the situation, define problems, set priorities, and 
establish strategic and SMART objectives for the 
response/recovery period 

 Determine the Operational Period time frame (i.e., 6-, 8- or 
12-hour shifts) 

 Review and identify the need for additional staffing and/or 
other resources 

 

   

When Action Plan is completed by the Planning/Intelligence Section, 
review, approve and authorize its distribution and implementation. 

 (FORMS | EOC-201, EOC-202, EOC-205A, EOC-207, 
EOC-208, EOC-211, EOC-213. EOC-215, EOC-215A, 
EOC-230  PLAN | EOC ACTION PLAN) 

 

   
Conduct periodic briefings with general staff to ensure strategic 
objectives are current and appropriate.   

 

   
Conduct periodic briefings for elected officials or their representatives. 

 (FORM | EOC-209  REPORT | SITUATION STATUS) 

 

   
If appropriate, issue an Emergency Proclamation, and coordinate local 
government proclamations with other emergency response agencies.  

 (FORM | PROCLAMATION RESOLUTION)  

 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES  

   • Provide turnover briefing to position replacement.   

   
• Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to 

be accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  
 (FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
 (FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

 

8 - 124



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 34 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   Ensure next shift’s staff are accounted for  

   
Ensure the safety and well-being of staff being dismissed for the 
operational period 

 

   Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit  

   
Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out 

 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 
 

DEMOBILIZATION   

   
Authorize demobilization of sections, branches and units when they are 
no longer required informally or via a plan. 

 (PLAN | DEMOBILIZATION PLAN) 

 

   
Notify higher level EOCs and other appropriate organizations of planned 
demobilization, as appropriate.   

 

   
Ensure that open actions not completed will be handled after 
demobilization.   

 

   
Ensure that all required forms or reports are completed prior to 
demobilization.   

 

   Prepare to provide input to the after-action report.    

   
Proclaim termination of the emergency response and proceed with 
recovery operations. 

 

TERMINATION 

   
Alongside Public Information Officer, make emergency termination 
notifications to City Council, Response Partners, Community and OP Area. 

 

8 - 125



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 35 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Provides a final emergency briefing of the event to EOC personnel to 
include: 

Date/time of termination. 
Requests all documentation developed during the event 
response. 
Instructions for support of recovery operations or assembly 
of the final report. 
Time and date of formal debrief to identify issues, lessons 
learned, and corrective actions. 
Instructions for resumption of normal operations. 

Determine if a formal Recovery Plan is required based on a review of the 
technical criteria by: 

Length and resources required for investigating and fact-finding 
activities. 
Assessment of property damage efforts require substantial and 
prolonged coordination and communications with off-site 
governments, agencies, and/or response organizations. 
Number of personal injuries or illnesses requiring protracted 
follow-up treatment, analysis, and public information. 

• Supervise the transition of the EOC from response to recovery
operations, as necessary.

• Appoint a recovery manager; the recovery manager will establish a
recovery organization and recovery plan.

(GUIDE | RECOVERY PLAN/PROJECT MANAGEMENT) 

• Proclaim EOC Deactivate.
• Approve deactivation of other emergency facilities that were opened

because of the emergency.

Assists with recovery objectives, as requested for Recovery Plan. 
(GUIDE | RECOVERY PLAN/PROJECT MANAGEMENT) 

Turn over command to Recovery Manager. 

Schedule Incident Debriefing. 

• Assists with the development of a Final AAR.
• Approved final AAR

(REPORT | LOCAL GOVERNMENT AFTER ACTION 
REPORT) 

Turns in completed job aids, forms, and notes to Documentation Unit. 

8 - 126



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 36 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: Forwarding 
Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ______________am / pm 

8 - 127



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 37 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 128



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 38 

JobAid: EOC Coordinator 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

• The EOC Coordinator assists and serves as an advisor to the Emergency 
Director and General Staff as needed 

• Oversees the overall functioning of the emergency operations center 

REPORT TO EOC DIRECTOR 

PLANS 
& REPORTS 

 

• ALL PLANS 
• ALL REPORTS 

FORMS 
& GUIDES 

 

FORMS 
• ALL 
• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING  
 
GUIDES 
• ALL 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES   

   Facilitate the overall functioning of the EOC.    

   

• Assist and serve as an advisor to the EOC Director and General Staff 
as needed. 

• Provide information and guidance related to the internal functions of 
the EOC. 

• Ensure compliance with operational area emergency plans and 
procedures.    

 

   
Assist the Liaison Officer in ensuring proper procedures are in place for 
directing agency representatives and conducting VIP/visitor tours of the 
EOC. 

 

8 - 129



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 39 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over jobaid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

Assist the EOC Director in determining appropriate staffing for the EOC. 
(FORM | EOC-207) 

Provide assistance and information regarding section staffing to all 
general staff. 

RESPONSE 

Assist the EOC Director and the General Staff in developing overall 
strategic objectives as well as section objectives for the EOC Action Plan. 

(FORM | EOC-202) 
(GUIDE | PLANNING “P” GUIDE)  

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Advise the EOC Director on proper procedures for enacting emergency 
proclamations, emergency ordinances and resolutions, and other legal 
requirements.   

(FORM | PROCLAMATION RESOLUTION) 
(GUIDE | LEGAL AUTHORITIES) 

Assist the Planning/Intelligence Section in the development, continuous 
updating, and execution of the EOC Action Plan. 

(PLAN | EOC ACTION PLAN) 
(GUIDE | PLANNING “P” GUIDE) 

Provide overall procedural guidance to General Staff as required. 

Provide general advice and guidance to the EOC Director as required. 

8 - 130



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 40 

Ensure that all appropriate notifications are made to same and one level 
higher EOCs.    

Ensure that all communications with appropriate emergency response 
agencies is established and maintained. 

Assist the EOC Director in preparing for and conducting briefings with 
Management Staff, the agency or jurisdiction policy groups, the media, 
and the public. 

(REPORT | EOC-209) or (REPORT | SITUATION STATUS) 
(FORM | PRESS RELEASE) 

Assist the Liaison Officer with coordination of all EOC visits. 

Aid with shift change activity as required. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached.  
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.  Provide 
all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit, prior to your 
departure. 

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 131



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 41 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  Forwarding 
Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 

8 - 132



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 42 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 133



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 43 

JobAid: Legal Officer 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

• Provides legal counsel to the Emergency Services Director / EOC Director
and all City / Agency Staff in legal matters pertaining to emergency
response and recovery.

• Assists in the preparation of proclamations, ordinances, and other legal
documents; and maintains the City’s / Agency’s legal records and
reports.

REPORT TO EOC DIRECTOR 

PLANS 
& REPORTS 

SHARES WITH RELEVANT STAKEHOLDERS. NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR 
DEVELOPMENT. 

FORMS & 
GUIDE 

FORM 
• POSITION JOBAID
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING
• PROCLAMATION RESOLUTION

GUIDE 
• LEGAL AUTHORITIES

TECHNOLOGY • LAPTOP
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL)

RESOURCES • WORKSTATION
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL)
• VEST

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in: 

(EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 

8 - 134



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 44 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Advises the Multi-Agency Coordination/Policy Group and/or EOC Director, 
and the Management and General Staff, as needed, on the legality and/or 
legal implications of contemplated emergency actions and policies 
(Reference the California Emergency Services Act, Stafford Act, etc., as 
necessary). 

Establishes areas of legal responsibility and/or potential liabilities. 

As needed, prepares documents relative to evacuations, curfews, and 
demolition of hazardous structures or conditions. 

Develops emergency rules, regulations and laws required for acquisition 
and/or control of critical resources. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available/appropriate 
personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

Obtain assistance for position through the Personnel Unit in Logistics, as 
required. 

RESPONSE 

Assist as necessary with Emergency Proclamation Resolution Process and 
Forms. 

(FORM | PROCLAMATION RESOLUTION) 

Provide technical knowledge of jurisdictional authorities. 
(GUIDE | LEGAL AUTHORITIES) 

8 - 135



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 45 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Develops emergency rules, regulations and laws required for acquisition 
and/or control of critical resources. 

Prepares documents relative to evacuations, curfews, and demolition of 
hazardous structures or conditions. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Release agency representatives that are no longer required in the
EOC when authorized by the EOC Director.

• Ensure that you collect any documentation from them that would be
relevant for after-action report.

Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.  Provide 
all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit, prior to your 
departure. 

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 136



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 46 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: 
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ________________am / pm 

8 - 137



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 47 

JobAid: Liaison Officer 
 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

• Responsible for serving as the point of contact to all internal and external 
individuals, organizations, agencies and customers 

•  Oversee all special events, dignitary visits and field liaison positions 

REPORT  TO EOC DIRECTOR 

PLANS 
& REPORTS 

 

SHARES WITH RELEVANT STAKEHOLDERS. NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR 
DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS 

 

• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-209 INCIDENT STATUS SUMMARY 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING  

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   
• Oversee all liaison activities, including coordinating outside agency 

representatives assigned to the EOC. 
• Handle requests from other EOCs for EOC agency representatives. 

 

   
Establish and maintain a central location for incoming agency 
representatives, providing workspace and support as needed.   

 

   
Ensuring that position specific guidelines, policy directives, situation 
reports, and a copy of the EOC Action Plan is provided to Agency 
Representatives upon check-in.   

 

   
In conjunction with the EOC Coordinator, provide orientations for VIPs 
and other visitors to the EOC. 

 

8 - 138



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 48 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Ensuring that demobilization is accomplished when directed by the EOC 
Director. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available/appropriate 
personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

Obtain assistance for position through the Personnel Unit in Logistics, as 
required. 

RESPONSE 

Contact Agency Representatives already on-site, ensuring that they: 

Have signed into the EOC 
Understand their role in the EOC 
Know their work locations 
Understand the EOC organization and floor plan. 

Determine if additional representation is required from:  

Community based organizations 
Private organizations 
Utilities not already represented 
Other agencies 

Alongside EOC Director and EOC Coordinator, establish and maintain 
Interagency Coordination Group made up of outside agency 
representatives and executives not assigned to specific sections within 
the EOC. 

8 - 139



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 49 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

• Assist the EOC Director and EOC Coordinator in conducting regular
briefings for the Inter-Agency Coordination Group.

• Assist with distribution of the current EOC Action Plan and Situation
Report.

(PLAN | EOC ACTION PLAN) 
(FORM | EOC-209) or (REPORT | SITUATION STATUS) 

Request that Agency Representatives maintain communications with their 
agencies and obtain situation status reports regularly. 

With the approval of the EOC Director, provide agency representatives 
from the EOC to other EOCs as required and requested.  

• Maintain active roster of agency representatives located at the EOC
• Roster should be distributed internally on a regular basis.

o (FORM | EOC-211 JUST FOR AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES)
o (FORM | EOC-205A JUST FOR AGENCY

REPRESENTATIVES) 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period. 

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Release agency representatives that are no longer required in the
EOC when authorized by the EOC Director.

• Ensure that you collect any documentation from them that would be
relevant for after-action report.

8 - 140



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 50 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   
Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.  Provide 
all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit, prior to your 
departure. 

 

   Clean up your work area before you leave.  

   Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached.  

   Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report.  

TERMINATION 

   
Provide Public Information officer with agency roster for final termination 
notification 

 (FORM | EOC-211 JUST FOR AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES) 

 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

8 - 141



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 51 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 

  

8 - 142



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 52 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

8 - 143



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 53 

JobAid: Public Information Officer 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for providing news and information on the emergency/disaster 
to the media, the public, all departments and required agencies. 

REPORT  TO EOC DIRECTOR 

PLANS  
& REPORTS 

 
PRESS RELEASES | DEVELOPS 

FORMS 
& GUIDES 

 

FORMS 
• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• MEDIA CALL  
• PUBLIC CALL 
• DISASTER ASSISTANCE DIRECTORY 
• PRESS RELEASE 
• MEDIA BRIEFING SCHEDULE 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING 
 
GUIDE 
• MEDIA CENTER/JOINT INFORMATION CENTER 
• EMERGECY ALERT SYSTEM NOTIFICATION 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 

 

 

8 - 144



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 54 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   
Serve as the central coordination point for the agency or jurisdiction for 
all media releases.    

 

   

Ensure that the public within the affected area receives complete, 
accurate, and consistent information about life safety procedures, public 
health advisories, relief and assistance programs and other vital 
information.   

 

   
Coordinate media releases with Public Information Officers at incidents or 
representing other affected emergency response agencies as required. 

 

   
Develop the format for press conferences, in conjunction with the EOC 
Director.   

 

   Maintaining a positive relationship with the media representatives.    

   Supervising the Public Information Branch.  

ACTIVATION   

   
Check in at the EOC 

 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 
 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up)  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness  

   Wear identification vest and read over jobaid.  

   
Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

 

   Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
 (FORM | EOC-214) 

 

   
Determine staffing requirements and make required personnel 
assignments for the Public Information function to the Personnel Unit in 
Logistics, as required. 

 

RESPONSE   

   Obtain policy guidance from the EOC Director regarding press releases.    

8 - 145



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 55 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

• Keep the EOC Director advised of all unusual requests for information
and of all major critical or unfavorable media comments.

• Recommend procedures or measures to improve media relations.

Coordinate with the Situation Analysis Unit and identify the method for 
obtaining and verifying significant information as it is developed.  

Develop and publish a media-briefing schedule, to include location, 
format, and preparation and distribution of handout materials. 

(FORM | MEDIA BRIEFING SCHEDULE) 

Implement and maintain an overall information release program. 

Establish a Media or Joint Information Center, as required, providing 
necessary space, materials, telephones, and electrical power. 

(GUIDE | MEDIA CENTER/JOINT INFORMATION CENTER) 

• Maintain up-to-date status boards and other references at the Media
or Joint Information Center.

• Provide adequate staff to answer questions from members of the
media.

Interact with other EOC PIOs and obtain information relative to public 
information operations.   

Develop content for state Emergency Alert System (EAS) releases if 
available.  Monitor EAS releases as necessary. 

(GUIDE | EMERGENCY ALERT SYSTEM NOTIFICATIONS) 
In coordination with other EOC sections and as approved by the EOC 
Director, issue timely and consistent advisories and instructions for life 
safety, health, and assistance for the public.   

• At the request of the EOC Director, prepare media briefings and press
releases for members of the agencies or jurisdiction policy groups.

• Provide other assistance as necessary to facilitate their participation
in media briefings and press conferences.

(FORM | PRESS RELEASE) 

Ensure that a rumor control function is established to correct false or 
erroneous information.   

Ensure that adequate staff is available at incident sites to coordinate and 
conduct tours of the affected areas.  

8 - 146



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 56 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Provide appropriate staffing and telephones to efficiently handle 
incoming media and public calls.  

(FORM | MEDIA CALL) 
(FORM | PUBLIC CALL) 

Prepare, update, and distribute to the public a Disaster Assistance 
Information Directory, which contains locations to obtain food, shelter, 
supplies, health services, etc.  

(FORM | DISASTER ASSISTANCE DIRECTORY) 
Ensure that announcements, emergency information and materials are 
translated and prepared for special populations (non-English speaking, 
hearing impaired etc.).   

Monitor broadcast media, using information to develop follow-up press 
releases and rumor control.  

(FORM | PRESS RELEASE) 

Ensure that file copies are maintained of all information released.  

Provide copies of all press releases to the EOC Director for approval. 
(FORM | USE CURRENT PRESS RELEASES) 

Prepare final press releases and advise media representatives of points-
of-contact for follow-up stories. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached.  

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

8 - 147



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 57 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   
Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.  Provide 
all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit, prior to your 
departure. 

 

   Clean up your work area before you leave.  

   Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached.  

   Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report.  

TERMINATION 

   
Alongside EOC Director and Liaison Officer, make emergency termination 
notifications to City Council, Response Partners, Community and OP Area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 148



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 58 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 

8 - 149



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 59 

JobAid: Safety Officer 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

• Responsible for identifying and mitigating safety hazards and situations
of potential City / Agency liability during EOC operations.

• Ensuring that all facilities used in support of EOC operations have safe
operating conditions (building, parking lots, etc.)

REPORT TO 
EOC DIRECTOR 

PLANS 

& REPORTS 

EOC ACTION PLAN | PROVIDES INPUT 

ADVANCE PLANS + REPORTS (DEMO, RECOVERY ETC.) | 
PROVIDES INPUT 

FORMS • POSITION JOBAID
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST
• EOC-208 SAFETY MESSAGE
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG
• EOC-215A SAFETY ANALYSIS
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING

TECHNOLOGY 
• LAPTOP
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL)

RESOURCES • WORKSTATION
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL)
• VEST

PROFESSIONAL 

CREDENTIAL 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in: 

(EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 

8 - 150



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 60 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Ensure that all buildings and other facilities used in support of the EOC are 
in a safe operating condition.   

Monitor operational procedures and activities in the EOC to ensure they 
are being conducted in a safe manner, considering the existing situation 
and conditions.  

Stop or modify all unsafe operations outside the scope of the EOC Action 
Plan, notifying the EOC Director of actions taken. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available/appropriate 
personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

• Tour the entire EOC facility and evaluate conditions.
• Advise the EOC Director of any conditions and actions that might

result in liability, (unsafe layout or equipment set-up, etc.)

Study the EOC facility and document the locations of all fire extinguishers, 
emergency pull stations, and evacuation routes and exits. 

(FORM | EOC-215a) 

Be familiar with particularly hazardous conditions in the facility; act when 
necessary.  

Prepare and present safety briefings for the EOC Director and General 
Staff at appropriate meetings. 

(FORM | EOC-208) 

8 - 151



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 61 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

If the event that caused activation was an earthquake, provide guidance 
regarding actions to be taken in preparation for aftershocks.  

Ensure that the EOC facility is free from any environmental threats - e.g., 
radiation exposure, air purity, water quality, etc.   

Keep the EOC Director advised of unsafe conditions; act when necessary.  

Coordinate with the Finance/Administration Section in preparing any 
personnel injury claims or records necessary for proper case evaluation 
and closure. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.  Provide 
all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit, prior to your 
departure. 

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 152



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 62 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
 

8 - 153



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 63 

3.2 Operations Section  

 

Figure 6: EOC Operations Section 

 

8 - 154



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 64 

This section contains functional section and position descriptions, responsibilities, and 
jobaids for personnel assigned to the Operations Section of the City EOC. Jobaids 
describe the minimum actions that should be accomplished by personnel assigned to 
functional positions within the section. 

Section Overview: 
• The Operations Section is primarily responsible for managing the operations of

various response elements involved in the disaster/emergency

Section Responsibilities Include: 
• Fire: Fire/Rescue, Hazardous Materials, Emergency Medical Services,

Environmental Preservation
• Law: Coroner, Law Enforcement, Investigations, Security
• Care & Shelter: Care and Shelter
• Public Works: Street, Traffic, Utilities, Solid Waste, Wastewater, Parking, Facility

and Vehicle Maintenance
• Construction & Engineering: Building Safety, Building Damage, and Safe Access

Figure 6: EOC Operations Section, above, shows all the positions that are part of the 
EOC Operations Section. 

8 - 155



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 65 

JobAid: Operations Chief/Coordinator 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for the management and coordination of all EOC related 
operational functions.  The Operations Section Coordinator will ensure, 
based on the emergency, that all necessary operational functions have been 
activated and are appropriately staffed  

REPORT  TO MANAGEMENT | EOC DIRECTOR 

 TO ME STAFF 
• Fire Branch 
• Law Branch 
• Medical/Health Branch 
• Care & Shelter Branch 

• Construction & Engineering 
Branch 

• Debris Management Unit 
• Public Works Unit 
• Utilities Unit 

PLANS 

 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS & 
REPORTS 

 

FORMS 
• POSITION JOBAID 
• RESOURCE REQUEST 
• EOC-205A 

COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-209 INCIDENT STATUS 

SUMMARY  
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-213 RESOURCE 

REQUEST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-215 RESOURCE 

PLANNING WORKSHEET 
• EOC-225 FOR PD 

CREDENTIALING 

REPORT 
• AGRICULTURAL STATUS 
• ENERGY STATUS 
• FIREFIGHTING STATUS 
• HAZMAT STATUS  
• MASS CARE STATUS 
• PUBLIC SAFETY STATUS 
• PUBLIC WORKS STATUS 
• SEARCH & RESCUE STATUS 
• TRANSPORTATION STATUS 
• UTILITY STATUS 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• BINDER 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

8 - 156



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 66 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   
Ensure that the Operations Function is carried out including coordination 
of activities for all operational functions assigned to the EOC. 

 

   
Ensure that operational objectives and assignments identified in the EOC 
Action Plan are carried out effectively. 

 

   
Establish the appropriate level of branch and unit organizations within the 
Operations Section, continuously monitoring the effectiveness and 
modifying accordingly. 

 

   
Exercise overall responsibility for the coordination of Branch and Unit 
activities within the Operations Section. 

 (FORM | EOC-215) 

 

   
Ensure that the Planning/Intelligence Section is provided with Status 
Reports and Major Incident Reports. 

 

   
Conduct periodic Operations briefings for the EOC Director as required or 
requested. 

 

   Supervise the Operations Section.  

ACTIVATION   

   Check in at the EOC. 
 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up).  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness.  

   Wear identification vest and read over job aid.  

   
Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

 

   Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities. 
 (FORM | EOC-214) 

 

   
Ensure that the Operations Section is set up properly and that 
appropriate personnel, equipment, and supplies are in place, including 
maps and status boards.  

 

   
Meet with Planning/Intelligence Section Coordinator; obtain a preliminary 
situation briefing. 

 

8 - 157



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 67 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Based on the situation, activate positions/branch within the section as 
needed: 

Fire Branch 
Law Branch 
Medical/Health Branch 
Care & Shelter Branch 
Construction & Engineering Branch 
Damage/Safety Assessment 
Debris Management Unit 
Public Works Unit 
Utilities Unit 

Determine if there are mutual aid requests for these functional areas.  
Initiate coordination with appropriate mutual aid systems as required. 

Request additional personnel for the section as necessary for 24-hour 
operation. 

• Obtain a current communications status briefing from the
Communications Branch Coordinator in Logistics.

• Ensure that there is adequate equipment and radio frequencies
available as necessary for the section.

Determine estimated times of arrival of section staff from the Personnel 
Branch in Logistics. 

Confer with the EOC Director to ensure that the Planning/Intelligence and 
Logistics Sections are staffed at levels necessary to provide adequate 
information and support for operations. 

Coordinate with the Liaison Officer regarding the need for Agency 
Representatives in the Operations Section. 

Coordinate with the Planning/Intelligence Section Coordinator to 
determine the need for any Technical Specialists. 

Establish radio or phone communications with Department Operations 
Centers (DOCs), and/or with Incident Commander(s) as directed and 
coordinate accordingly. 

Determine activation status of other EOCs in the Operational Area or 
adjacent areas and establish communication links with their Operations 
Sections if necessary. 

8 - 158



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 68 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Based on the situation known or forecasted, determine likely future 
needs of the Operations Section. 

Identify key issues currently affecting the Operations Section; meet with 
section personnel and determine appropriate section objectives for the 
first operational period. 

Review responsibilities of branches in section; develop an Operations Plan 
detailing strategy for carrying out Operations objectives. 

Adopt a pro-active attitude.  Think ahead and anticipate situations and 
problems before they occur. 

RESPONSE 

Ensure Operations Section position logs and other necessary files are 
maintained. 

Ensure that situation and resources information is provided to the 
Planning/Intelligence Section on a regular basis or as the situation 
requires, including Status Reports and Major Incident Reports. 

(FORM | EOC-209 OR OPTIONS BELOW) 
(REPORT | AGRICULTURAL STATUS) 
(REPORT | COMMUNICATION STATUS) 
(REPORT | ENERGY STATUS) 
(REPORT | FIREFIGHTING STATUS) 
(REPORT | HAZMAT STATUS) 
(REPORT | MASS CARE STATUS) 
(REPORT | PUBLIC SAFETY STATUS) 
(REPORT | PUBLIC WORKS STATUS) 
(REPORT | SEARCH & RESCUE STATUS) 
(REPORT | TRANSPORTATION STATUS) 
(REPORT | UTILITY STATUS) 

Ensure that all media contacts are referred to the Public Information 
Officer. 

Conduct periodic briefings and work to reach consensus among staff on 
objectives and work assignments for forthcoming operational periods. 

(FORM | EOC-215) 

Attend and participate in EOC Director's Action Planning meetings. 

Provide the Planning/Intelligence Section Coordinator with the 
Operations Section's objectives prior to each Action Planning meeting. 

8 - 159



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 69 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   
Work closely with each Branch Coordinator to ensure that the Operations 
Section objectives, as defined in the current Action Plan, are being 
addressed. 

 

   
Ensure that the branches coordinate all resource needs through the 
Logistics Section. 

 (FORM | RESOURCE REQUEST  EOC-213) 

 

   
Ensure that intelligence information from Branch Coordinators is made 
available to the Planning/ Intelligence Section in a timely manner. 

 

   
Ensure that fiscal and administrative requirements are coordinated 
through the Finance/ Administration Section (notification of emergency 
expenditures and daily time sheets). 

 

   Brief the EOC Director on all major incidents.  

   
Complete a Major Incident Report for all major incidents; forward a copy 
to the Planning/ Intelligence Section. 

 

   
Brief Branch Coordinators periodically on any updated information you 
may have received. 

 

   Share status information with other sections as appropriate.  

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

   Provide turnover briefing to position replacement.   

   

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

 (FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
 (FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

 

   Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit.  

   
Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

DEMOBILIZATION   

   
Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

 

8 - 160



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 70 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.   
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit, 

prior to your departure.  
Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section 
Coordinator. 

 

   Clean up your work area before you leave.  

   Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached.  

   Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 161



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 71 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: 
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ________________am / pm 

8 - 162



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 72 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 163



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 73 

JobAid: Fire Branch 
 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for coordinating personnel, equipment and resources 
committed to fire, field medical, search and rescue, and hazardous materials 
elements of the incident. 

REPORT  
 

TO OPERATIONS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 
 

PLANS 

 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS & 
REPORTS 

 

FORMS 
• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-209 INCIDENT STATUS SUMMARY 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING 
• FIRE DEPLOYED RESOURCES 

 
REPORTS 
• FIREFIGHTING STATUS 
• SEARCH & RESCUE STATUS 
• HAZMAT STATUS 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 164



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 74 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Coordinate fire, emergency medical, hazardous materials, and urban 
search and rescue operations in the jurisdictional area. 

Assist Fire & Rescue Mutual Aid System Coordinator in acquiring mutual 
aid resources, as necessary. 

Coordinate the mobilization and transportation of all resources through 
the Logistics Section. 

Complete and maintain status reports for major incidents requiring or 
potentially requiring operational area, state and federal response, and 
maintains status of unassigned fire & rescue resources. 

Coordinate with the Law Enforcement Branch Coordinator on jurisdiction 
Search & Rescue activities. 

Implement the objectives of the EOC Action Plan assigned to the Fire & 
Rescue Branch. 

Supervise the Fire & Rescue Branch. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

Based on the situation, activate the necessary Units within the Fire & 
Rescue Branch: 

• Fire & Rescue Unit
• Emergency Medical Unit
• HazMat Unit

8 - 165



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 75 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

If the mutual aid system is activated, coordinate use of fire resources with 
the Operational Area Fire & Rescue Mutual Aid Coordinator. 

(FORM | FIRE DEPLOYED RESOURCES) 
Prepare and submit a preliminary status report and major incident 
reports as appropriate to the Operations Section Coordinator. 

(REPORT | FIREFIGHTING STATUS) 
(REPORT | SEARCH & RESCUE STATUS) 
(REPORT | HAZMAT STATUS) 

Prepare objectives for the Fire & Rescue Branch; provide them to the 
Operations Section Coordinator prior to the first Action Planning meeting. 

RESPONSE 

Ensure that Branch and Unit position logs and other necessary files are 
maintained. 

Obtain and maintain current status on Fire & Rescue missions being 
conducted in the jurisdictional area. 

Provide the Operations Section Coordinator and the Planning/Intelligence 
Section with an overall summary of Fire & Rescue Branch operations 
periodically or as requested during the operational period. 

(FORM | EOC-209) OR 
(REPORT | FIREFIGHTING STATUS) 
(REPORT | SEARCH & RESCUE STATUS) 
(REPORT | HAZMAT STATUS) 

On a regular basis, complete and maintain the Fire & Rescue Status 
Report. 

Refer all contacts with the media to the Public Information Branch. 

Ensure that all fiscal and administrative requirements are coordinated 
through the Finance/ Administration Section (notification of any 
emergency expenditures and daily time sheets). 

Prepare objectives for the Fire & Rescue Branch for the subsequent 
operational period; provide them to the Operations Section Coordinator 
prior to the end of the shift and the next Action Planning meeting. 

Provide your relief with a briefing at shift change; inform him/her of all on 
going activities, branch objectives for the next operational period, and 
any other pertinent information. 

8 - 166



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 76 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 167



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 77 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: 
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ________________am / pm 

8 - 168



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 78 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 169



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 79 

JobAid: Law Branch 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for coordinating personnel, equipment and resources 
committed to fire, field medical, search and rescue, and hazardous materials 
elements of the incident 

REPORT  
 

TO OPERATIONS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 
 

PLANS 

 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS & 
REPORT 

 

FORMS 
• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING 
 
REPORT 
• PUBLIS SAFETY STATUS 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 170



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 80 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Coordinate movement and evacuation operations during an emergency. 

Alert and notify the public of the impending or existing emergency. 

Coordinate law enforcement, search and rescue, and traffic control 
operations during the emergency. 

Coordinate site security at incidents. 

Coordinate with the Law Enforcement Branch Coordinator on jurisdiction 
Search & Rescue activities. 

Coordinate Law Enforcement Mutual Aid requests from emergency 
response agencies through the Law Enforcement Mutual Aid Coordinator 
at the Operational Area EOC. 

Supervise the Law Enforcement Branch. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over jobaid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

Based on the situation, activate the necessary Units within the Law 
Enforcement Branch: 

• Law Enforcement Operations Unit
• Coroner/Fatalities Management Unit
• Search and Rescue Unit

8 - 171



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 81 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Contact and assist the Operational Area EOC Law Enforcement and 
Coroner's Mutual Aid Coordinators as required or requested. 

Based on the initial EOC strategic objectives, prepare objectives for the 
Law Enforcement Branch and provide them to the Operations Section 
Coordinator prior to the first Action Planning meeting. 

RESPONSE 

Ensure that Branch and Unit position logs and other necessary files are 
maintained. 

Maintain status on Law Enforcement missions being conducted. 

Provide the Operations Section Coordinator and the Planning/Intelligence 
Section with an overall summary of Law Enforcement Branch operations 
periodically or as requested during the operational period. 

(REPORT | PUBLIC SAFETY STATUS) 
On a regular basis, complete and maintain the Law Enforcement Status 
Report. 

Refer all contacts with the media to the Public Information Branch. 

Ensure that all fiscal and administrative requirements are coordinated 
through the Finance/ Administration Section (notification of any 
emergency expenditures and daily time sheets). 

Prepare objectives for the Law Enforcement Branch for the subsequent 
Operational period; provide them to the Operations Section Coordinator 
prior to the end of the shift and the next Action Planning Meeting. 

Provide your relief with a briefing at shift change, informing him/her of all 
ongoing activities, branch objectives for the next operational period, and 
any other pertinent information. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period. 

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit. 

8 - 172



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 82 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   
Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

DEMOBILIZATION   

   
Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

 

   

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.   
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit, 

prior to your departure.  
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section 

Coordinator. 

 

   Clean up your work area before you leave.  

   Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached.  

   Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 173



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 83 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
 

8 - 174



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 84 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

8 - 175



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 85 

JobAid: Medical/Health Branch 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Provides oversight and management for Medical Health Branch activities. 

REPORT  TO OPERATIONS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 

 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS 

 

• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 - 176



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 86 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   
Medical/Health operations are coordinated by the Medical/Health Branch 
in the Operations Section. 

 

ACTIVATION   

   Check in at the EOC 
 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up)  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness  

   Wear identification vest and read over job aid.  

   
Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

 

   Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
 (FORM | EOC-214) 

 

RESPONSE   

   Manages and supervises the Medical/Health Branch.  

   
Continuously monitors the organizational effectiveness and modifies as 
necessary. 

 

   
Ensures coordination of hospitals, health units, continuing care, mental 
health, and environmental health within the jurisdiction. 

 

   
Ensures all Medical/Health Branch resources are tracked and accounted 
for in cooperation with the Planning Section Resource Unit, as well as 
resources ordered through Mutual Aid. 

 

   Ensures the Medical/Health Branch function is carried out  

   

Meets regularly with Medical/Health Branch staff and works to reach 
consensus on Operations Section objectives for forthcoming operational 
periods and ensures they are carried out effectively as per the EOC Action 
Plan. 

 

8 - 177



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 87 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Based on the situation, activates and directs appropriate Groups or Units 
within the Branch.  Designates Group Supervisors or Unit Leaders as 
necessary. 
Examples: 

• Environmental Management Group Supervisor/Unit Leader
• Emergency Medical Services Group Supervisor/Unit Leader
• Healthcare Facilities Group Supervisor/Unit Leader
• Public Health Group Supervisor/Unit Leader
• Mental Health Group Supervisor/Unit Leader
• Medical/Health DOC Director (if DOC activated)

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period. 

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 178



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 88 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: 
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ________________am / pm 

8 - 179



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 89 

JobAid: Care & Shelter Branch 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for opening and operating evacuation centers and mass care 
facilities in the City until, and if, the American Red Cross assumes 
responsibility; coordinating efforts with the American Red Cross and other 
volunteer agencies; and supporting the Personnel Unit in the care and 
sheltering of employees and their families 

REPORT  TO OPERATIONS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 

 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS & 
REPORT 

 

FORMS 
• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING 
 
REPORT 
• MASS CARE STATUS 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

8 - 180



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 90 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   
Coordinate directly with the American Red Cross and other volunteer 
agencies to provide food, potable water, clothing, shelter and other basic 
needs as required to disaster victims. 

 

   
Assist the American Red Cross with inquiries and registration services to 
reunite families or respond to inquiries from relatives or friends. 

 

   
Assist the American Red Cross with the transition from mass care to 
separate family/individual housing. 

 

   Supervise the Care & Shelter Unit.  

ACTIVATION   

   Check in at the EOC. 
 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up).  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness.  

   Wear identification vest and read over job aid.  

   
Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

 

   
Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities. 

 (FORM | EOC-214) 
 

RESPONSE   

   Establish and maintain a position log and other necessary files.  

   

• Coordinate with the Liaison Officer to request an Agency 
Representative from the American Red Cross.   

• Work with the Agency Representative to coordinate all shelter and 
congregate care activity. 

 

   
Establish communications with other volunteer agencies to provide 
clothing and other basic life sustaining needs. 

 

   
Ensure that each activated shelter meets the requirements as described 
under the Americans With Disabilities Act. 

 

8 - 181



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Assist the American Red Cross in staffing and managing the shelters to the 
extent possible. 

In coordination with the American Red Cross, activate an inquiry registry 
service to reunite families and respond to inquiries from relatives or 
friends. 

Assist the American Red Cross with the transition from operating shelters 
for displaced persons to separate family/individual housing. 

Complete and maintain the Care and Shelter Status Report Form. 
(REPORT | MASS CARE STATUS) 

Refer all contacts with the media to the Public Information Officer. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit. 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

8 - 182



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 92 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 183



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 93 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
 

8 - 184



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 94 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 185



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 95 

JobAid: Construction & Engineering Branch 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

Supports emergency response operations under the Operations Section and 
provides guidance for initial size-up, rapid needs, and preliminary disaster 
safety reports on the areas affected, damaged, and destroyed during an 
emergency event 

REPORT TO OPERATIONS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

TO ME  • Damage/Safety Assessment Unit
• Debris Management Unit
• Public Works Unit
• Utilities Unit

PLANS 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS & 
REPORTS 

FORMS 
• POSITION JOBAID
• EOC-205A

COMMUNICATION LIST
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG
• EOC-225 FOR PD

CREDENTIALING
• WINDSHIELD SURVEY
• INITIAL DAMAGE ESTIMATE

REPORTS 
• PUBLIC WORKS &

ENGINEERING STATUS
• ENERGY STATUS

TECHNOLOGY • LAPTOP
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL)

RESOURCES • WORKSTATION
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL)
• VEST

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

(EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 

8 - 186



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 96 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Survey all utility systems, and restore systems that have been disrupted, 
including coordinating with utility service providers in the restoration of 
disrupted services. 

Survey all public and private facilities, assessing the damage to such 
facilities, and coordinating the repair of damage to public facilities. 

Survey all other infrastructure systems, such as streets and roads within 
the jurisdictional area. 

Assist other sections, branches, and units as needed. 

Supervise the Construction/Engineering Branch. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC. 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up). 

Check workstation to ensure readiness. 

Wear identification vest and read over jobaid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities. 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

Based on the situation, activate the necessary Units within the 
Construction & Engineering Branch: 

• Utilities Unit
• Public Works Unit
• Damage/Safety Assessment Unit

Contact and assist the Operational Area Public Works Mutual Aid 
Coordinator with the coordination of mutual aid resources as necessary. 

Provide an initial situation report to the Operations Section Coordinator. 
(REPORT | PUBLIC WORKS & ENGINEERING STATUS) 

8 - 187



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 97 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

• Based on the initial EOC strategic objectives, prepare objectives for
the Construction/ Engineering Branch.

• Provide them to the Operations Section Coordinator prior to the first
Action Planning meeting.

RESPONSE 

Ensure that Branch and Unit position logs and other necessary files are 
maintained. 

Maintain current status on all construction/engineering activities being 
conducted. 

Ensure that damage and safety assessments are being carried out for 
both public and private facilities. 

(FORM | WINDSHIELD SURVEY) 

Request mutual aid as required through the Operational Area Public 
Works Mutual Aid Coordinator. 

Determine and document the status of transportation routes into and 
within affected areas. 

Coordinate debris removal services as required. 

Provide the Operations Section Coordinator and the Planning/Intelligence 
Section with an overall summary of Construction/Engineering Branch 
activities periodically during the operational period or as requested. 

(REPORT | PUBLIC WORKS & ENGINEERING STATUS) 

Ensure that all Utilities and Construction/Engineering Status Reports, as 
well as the Initial Damage Estimation are completed and maintained. 

(REPORT | PUBLIC WORKS & ENGINEERING STATUS) 
(REPORT | ENERGY STATUS) 
(FORM | INITIAL DAMAGE ESTIMATE) 

Refer all contacts with the media to the Public Information Branch. 

Ensure that all fiscal and administrative requirements are coordinated 
through the Finance/ Administration Section (notification of any 
emergency expenditures and daily time sheets). 

• Prepare objectives for the Construction/Engineering Branch for the
subsequent operations period.

• Provide them to the Operations Section Coordinator prior to the end
of the shift and the next Action Planning meeting.

8 - 188



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 98 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Provide your relief with a briefing at shift change, informing him/her of all 
ongoing activities, branch objectives for the next operational period, and 
any other pertinent information. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period. 

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit. 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 189



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 99 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: 
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ________________am / pm 

8 - 190



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 100 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 191



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 101 

JobAid: Damage & Safety Assessment Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Provides communication with the field level and/or coordinates the Initial 
Damage Estimate (IDEs); coordinates with public and private sector 
representatives to identify damages 

REPORT  
 

TO OPERATIONS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 
 

PLANS 

 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS 

 

• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING 
• INITIAL DAMAGE ESTIMATE 
• WINDSHIELD SURVEY 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 192



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 102 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Collect initial damage/safety assessment information from other 
branches/units within the Operations Section. 

If the emergency is storm, flood, or earthquake related, ensure that 
inspection teams have been dispatched to assess the condition of the 
dam. 

Provide detailed damage/safety assessment information to the 
Planning/Intelligence Section, with associated loss damage estimates. 

Maintain detailed records on damaged areas and structures. 

Initiate requests for Engineers, to inspect structures and/or facilities. 

Supervise the Damage/Safety Assessment Unit. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC. 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up). 

Check workstation to ensure readiness. 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities. 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Establish and maintain a position log and other necessary files. 

Obtain initial damage/safety assessment information from Fire & Rescue 
Branch, Law Enforcement Branch, Utilities Unit and other branches/units 
as necessary. 

Coordinate with the American Red Cross, utility service providers, and 
other sources for additional damage/safety assessment information. 

8 - 193



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 103 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Prepare detailed damage/safety assessment information, including 
estimate of value of the losses, and provide to the Planning/Intelligence 
Section. 

(FORM | INITIAL DAMAGE ESTIMATE) 
(FORM | WIND SHIELD SURVEY) 

Clearly label each structure and/or facility inspected in accordance with 
ATC-20 standards and guidelines. 

Maintain a list of structures and facilities requiring immediate inspection 
or engineering assessment. 

Initiate all requests for engineers and building inspectors through the 
Operational Area EOC. 

Keep the Construction/Engineering Branch Coordinator informed of the 
inspection and engineering assessment status. 

Refer all contacts with the media to the Public Information Officer. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit. 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

8 - 194



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 104 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 195



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 105 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
  

8 - 196



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 106 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 197



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 107 

JobAid: Debris Management Unit 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

Responsible for debris management and removal. 

REPORT TO OPERATIONS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS • POSITION JOBAID
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING

TECHNOLOGY • LAPTOP
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL)

RESOURCES • WORKSTATION
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL)
• VEST

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in: 

(EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 

8 - 198



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 108 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Develops and coordinates a response plan for debris management and 
removal. 

Identifies and coordinates debris management and removal criteria to 
facilitate the FEMA eligibility. 

Coordinates procurement and contracts with Logistics and Finance and 
Administration. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC. 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up). 

Check workstation to ensure readiness. 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities. 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Establish and maintain a position log and other necessary files. 

Implementing jurisdiction-specific Debris Management Plan. 

Keep the section informed on the status of debris management. 

Refer all contacts with the media to the Public Information Officer. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

8 - 199



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 109 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

 (FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
 (FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

 

   Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit.  

   
Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

DEMOBILIZATION   

   
Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

 

   

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.   
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit, 

prior to your departure.  
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section 

Coordinator. 

 

   Clean up your work area before you leave.  

   Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached.  

   Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 200



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 110 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
 

8 - 201



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 111 

JobAid: Public Works Unit 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

Evaluates and assesses the safety and condition of roadways, bridges, and 
other public works infrastructure. 

REPORT TO OPERATIONS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS & 
REPORTS 

FORMS 
• POSITION JOBAID
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING

REPORT 
• PUBLIC WORKS STATUS

TECHNOLOGY • LAPTOP
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL)

RESOURCES • WORKSTATION
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL)
• VEST

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in: 

(EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 

8 - 202



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 112 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   
Assist other Operation Section Branches by providing construction 
equipment and operators as necessary. 

 

   
Provide heavy equipment assistance to the Damage/Safety Assessment 
Unit as required. 

 

   
Provide emergency construction and repair to damaged roadways.  Assist 
with the repair of utility systems as required. 

 

   
Providing flood-fighting assistance, such as sandbagging, rerouting 
waterways away from populated areas, and river, creek, or streambed 
debris clearance. 

 

   Supervise the Public Works Unit.  

ACTIVATION   

   Check in at the EOC 
 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up)  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness  

   Wear identification vest and read over job aid.  

   
Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

 

   
Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 

 (FORM | EOC-214) 
 

RESPONSE   

   Establish and maintain a position log and other necessary files.  

   
Ensure that appropriate staff are available to assist other emergency 
responders with the operation of heavy equipment, in coordination with 
the Logistics Section. 

 

   
Ensure that engineering staff are available to assist the Damage/Safety 
Assessment Unit in inspecting damaged structures and facilities. 

 

8 - 203



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 113 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   
As requested, direct staff to provide flood fighting assistance, clear debris 
from roadways and water ways, assist with utility restoration, and build 
temporary emergency structures as required. 

 

   
Work closely with the Logistics Section to provide support and materiel as 
required. 

 

   
Keep the Construction/Engineering Branch Coordinator informed of unit 
status. 

 (REPORT | PUBLIC WORKS STATUS) 

 

   Refer all contacts with the media to the Public Information Officer.  

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

   Provide turnover briefing to position replacement.   

   

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

 (FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
 (FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

 

   Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit  

   
Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

DEMOBILIZATION   

   
Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

 

   

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.   
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit, 

prior to your departure.  
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section 

Coordinator. 

 

   Clean up your work area before you leave.  

   Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached.  

   Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report.  

 

8 - 204



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 114 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: 
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ________________am / pm 

8 - 205



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 115 

JobAid: Utilities Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Coordinates with public and private utilities, including electric, gas, water, 
waste, and telephone to receive an assessment of the systems, and 
coordinates with utility companies to develop a restoration plan 

REPORT  TO OPERATIONS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 

 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS & 
REPORT 

 

FORMS 
• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING 
 
REPORT 
• UTILITY STATUS 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 - 206



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 116 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   Assess the status of utilities, provide Utility Status Reports as required.  

   
Coordinate restoration of damaged utilities with utility representatives in 
the EOC if present, or directly with Utility companies. 

 

   Supervise the Utilities Unit.  

ACTIVATION   

   Check in at the EOC. 
 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up).  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness.  

   Wear identification vest and read over jobaid.  

   
Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

 

   Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities. 
 (FORM | EOC-214) 

 

RESPONSE   

   Establish and maintain a position log and other necessary files.  

   Establish and maintain communications with the utility providers.  

   Determine the extent of damage to utility systems.  

   
Coordinate with the Liaison Officer to ensure that agency representatives 
from affected utilities are available to respond to the EOC. 

 

   
Ensure that all information on system outages is consolidated and 
provided to the Situation Analysis Unit in the Planning/Intelligence 
Section. 

 

   
Ensure that support to utility providers is available as necessary to 
facilitate restoration of damaged systems. 

 

8 - 207



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 117 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Keep the Health & Welfare Branch Coordinator informed of any damage 
to sewer and sanitation systems, as well as possible water contamination 
problems. 

Keep the Construction/Engineering Branch Coordinator informed of the 
restoration status. 

Complete and maintain the Utilities Status Report. 
(REPORT | UTILITY STATUS) 

Refer all contacts with the media to the Public Information Officer. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period. 

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit. 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 208



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 118 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: 
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ________________am / pm 

8 - 209



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 119 

3.3 Planning & Intelligence Section  

 

Figure 7: EOC Planning & Intelligence Section 

 

8 - 210



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 120 

This section contains functional section and position descriptions, responsibilities, and 
jobaids for personnel assigned to the Planning & Intelligence Section of the City EOC. 
Jobaids describe the minimum actions that should be accomplished by personnel 
assigned to functional positions within the section. 

Section Overview:  
• The Planning & Intelligence Section is primarily responsible for compiling, 

assembling, and reporting all safety/damage assessment information 

Section Responsibilities Include: 
• Collect, evaluate, analyze, display, and disseminate incident information and 

status of all assigned and available resources 
• Functions as the primary support for decision-making to the overall emergency 

organization 
• Provides anticipatory appraisals and develops plans necessary to cope with 

changing events 

Figure 7: EOC Planning & Intelligence Section, above, shows all the positions that are 
part of the EOC Planning & Intelligence Section. 

 

  

8 - 211



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 121 

JobAid: Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

Responsible for managing the collection, documentation, evaluation, 
forecasting, dissemination and use of information about the development of 
the incident and status of resources 

REPORT TO MANAGEMENT | EOC DIRECTOR 

TO ME STAFF 
• Situation Analysis Unit
• Documentation Unit
• Advanced Planning Unit
• Resource Status/Tracking Unit
• Demobilization Unit

Technical Specialist 
• AFN Specialist
• GIS Specialist
• Social Media Specialist

PLANS & 
REPORTS 

EOC ACTION PLAN | OVERSEE DEVELOPMENT 
ADVANCE PLANS | OVERSEE DEVELOPMENT 
OPERATION SECTION REPORTS | OVERSEES COMPLITATION & 
DISTRIBUTION 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT AFTER ACTION REPORT | SUPPORTS 
DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS • POSITION JOBAID
• EOC-201 INCIDENT BRIEFING
• EOC-202 INCIDENT

OBJECTIVES
• EOC-205A

COMMUNICATION LIST
• EOC-207 ORGANIZATION

CHART
• EOC-209 INCIDENT STATUS

SUMMARY
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST

• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG
• EOC-215 RESOURCE

PLANNING WORKSHEET
• EOC-215A SAFETY ANALYSIS
• EOC-225 FOR PD

CREDENTIALING
• EOC-230 DAILY MEETING

SCHEDULE

TECHNOLOGY • LAPTOP
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL)

RESOURCES • WORKSTATION
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL)
• VEST

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

(EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 

8 - 212



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 122 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   Establish the appropriate level of staffing and organization for the Section.  

   
Exercise overall responsibility for the coordination of unit activities within 
the section. 

 

   Supervise the Planning/Intelligence Section.  

   

 Ensure that the following responsibilities of the Section are addressed as 
required: 
 
• Collect, analyze, and display situation information 
• Prepare periodic Situation Report 
• Preparing and distributing the EOC Action Plan and facilitating the 

Action Planning meeting 
• Conducting Advance Planning activities and report 
• Providing technical support services to the various EOC sections and 

branches, and documenting and maintaining files on all EOC activities 
 

 

   
In coordination with the other Section Coordinators, ensure that Status 
Reports are completed and utilized as a basis for Situation Analysis 
Reports, and the EOC Action Plan. 

 

   
Keep the EOC Director informed of significant issues affecting the P&I 
Section 

 

ACTIVATION   

   
Check in at the EOC 

 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 
 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up)  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness  

   Wear identification vest and read over job aid.  

   
Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

 

   Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
 (FORM | EOC-214) 

 

8 - 213



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 123 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   
Ensure that the Planning/Intelligence Section is set up properly and that 
appropriate personnel, equipment, and supplies are in place, including 
maps and status boards. 

 

   

Based on the situation, activate positions/unit within the section as 
needed: 
 

 Situation Analysis Unit 
 Documentation Unit 
 Advanced Planning Unit 
 Action Planning Unit 
 Resource Status/Tracking Unit 
 Demobilization Unit 
 Technical Specialists 
 AFN Specialist 
 GIS Specialist 
 Social Media Specialist 

 

 

   
Request additional personnel for the section as necessary to maintain a 
24-hour operation. 

 

   

• Establish contact with the Operational Area EOC when activated. 
• Coordinate Situation Analysis Reports with their Planning/Intelligence 

Section. 
o (FORM | EOC-209 REPORT | SITUATION STATUS) 

 

   
Meet with Operations Section Coordinator; obtain and review any major 
incident reports. 

 (REPORT |OPS ________ STATUS REPORT) 

 

   
Review responsibilities of units in the section; develop plans for carrying 
out all responsibilities. 

 

   

• Make a list of key issues to be addressed by Planning/Intelligence, in 
consultation with section staff. 

• Identify objectives to be accomplished during the initial Operational 
Period. 

o (FORM | EOC-202) 

 

   Keep the EOC Director informed of significant events.  

   
Adopt a proactive attitude, thinking ahead and anticipating situations and 
problems before they occur. 
 

 

8 - 214



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 124 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

RESPONSE 

Ensure that Planning/Intelligence Section position logs and other 
necessary files are maintained.  

Ensure that The Situation Analysis Unit is maintaining current information 
for the situation analysis report. 

Ensure that major incidents reports, and status reports are completed by 
the Operations Section and are accessible by Planning/Intelligence. 

Ensure that a situation analysis report is produced and distributed to EOC 
Sections and the Operational Area EOC at least once, prior to the end of 
the operational period. 

(FORM | EOC-209  REPORT | SITUATION STATUS) 

Ensure that all status boards and other displays are kept current and that 
posted information is neat and legible. 

Ensure that the Public Information Branch has immediate and unlimited 
access to all status reports and displays. 

Conduct periodic briefings with section staff and work to reach consensus 
among staff on section objectives for forthcoming operational periods. 

(FORM | EOC-201) 
Facilitate the EOC Director's Action Planning meetings approximately two 
hours before the end of each operational period. 

(FORM | EOC-230) 
Ensure that objectives for each section are completed, collected and 
posted in preparation for the next Action Planning meeting. 

Ensure that the EOC Action Plan is completed and distributed prior to the 
start of the next operational period. 

(FORMS | EOC-201, EOC-202, EOC-205A, EOC-207, 
EOC-208, EOC-211, EOC-213. EOC-215, EOC-215A, 
EOC-230  PLAN | EOC ACTION PLAN) 

Work closely with each unit within the Planning/Intelligence Section to 
ensure the section objectives, as defined in the current EOC Action Plan, 
are being addressed. 

8 - 215



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 125 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Ensure that the Advance Planning Unit develops and distributes a report 
which highlights forecasted events or conditions likely to occur beyond 
the forthcoming operational period; particularly those situations which 
may influence the overall strategic objectives of the EOC. 

(PLAN | ADVANCE PLAN) 
Ensure that the Documentation Unit maintains files on all EOC activities 
and provides reproduction and archiving services for the EOC, as 
required. 

Provide technical specialists to all EOC sections as required. 

Ensure that fiscal and administrative requirements are coordinated 
through the Finance/ Administration Section. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

8 - 216



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 126 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Be prepared to provide input and/or facilitate the after-action report. 
(REPORT | LOCAL GOVERNMENT AFTER ACTION 
REPORT) 

8 - 217



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 127 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
 

8 - 218



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 128 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 219



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 129 

JobAid: Action Planning Unit 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

Responsible for driving the EOC Action Planning process and supporting the 
development of the EOC Action Plan. 

REPORT TO PLANNING & INTELLIGNCE | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS EOC ACTION PLAN | DRIVE, DEVELOP, REVIEW OR PUT TOGETHER 
ADVANCE PLANS | DEVELOP OR PUT TOGETHER 

FORMS • POSITION JOBAID
• EOC-202 INCIDENT OBJECTIVES
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING

TECHNOLOGY • LAPTOP
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL)

RESOURCES • WORKSTATION
• BINDER
• VEST

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in: 

(EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 

8 - 220



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 130 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   
Responsible for driving the EOC Action Planning process and supporting 
the development of the EOC Action Plan. 

 

ACTIVATION   

   Check in at the EOC 
 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up)  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness  

   Wear identification vest and read over job aid.  

   
Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

 

   Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
 (FORM | EOC-214) 

 

RESPONSE   

   Establish and maintain a position log and other necessary files.  

   
Establish an EOC Action Planning process & meeting schedule for the 
operational period with the Planning & Intelligence Section Chief. 

 

   
Coordinate the calling of EOC Action Planning meetings and remind 
Section Chiefs to bring summaries of their issues and needs, along with 
updates on the existing Action Plan 

 

   
Ensure EOC Action Plan is developed for each operational period, based 
on objectives developed by each section 

o (FORM | EOC-202 or PLAN | EOC ACTION PLAN) 

 

   
Ensure the Planning and Intelligence Section Chief has everything that will 
be needed to facilitate the Action Planning meetings 

 

8 - 221



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 131 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   

• Ensure that each section provides an update on their objectives at 
least 30 minutes prior to each Action Planning meeting.  This includes 
those completed, and the status of those not completed, as well as 
new objectives to be added to the Action Plan 

• In preparation for the Action Planning meeting, ensure that all EOC 
objectives are posted on chart paper and the meeting room is set up 
with appropriate equipment and materials 

 

   
Prepare a draft EOC Action Plan and submit to the Planning & Intelligence 
Section Chief/EOC Director for approval. 

 

   
Print and distribute the approved EOC Action Plan, coordinate with the 
Documentation Unit for reproduction and distribution as necessary 

 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

   Provide turnover briefing to position replacement.   

   

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

 (FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
 (FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

 

   Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit  

   
Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

DEMOBILIZATION   

   
Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

 

   

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.   
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit, 

prior to your departure.  
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section 

Coordinator. 

 

   Clean up your work area before you leave.  

   Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached.  

   Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report.  

8 - 222



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 132 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: 
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ________________am / pm 

8 - 223



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 133 

JobAid: Situation Analysis Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for the collection, evaluation, organization, analysis, and display 
of incident status and situation information; and for compiling Department 
Status Reports 

REPORT  TO PLANNING & INTELLIGENCE | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 

 

EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT AND DISTRIBUTION 
OPERATION SECTION REPORTS | SUPPORTS COMPLITATION & 
DISTRIBUTION 

FORMS & 
GUIDES 

 

FORM 
• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-202 INCIDENT OBJECTIVES 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-209 INCIDENT STATUS SUMMARY 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING 
 
GUIDE 
• PLANNING “P” GUIDE 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 224



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 134 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   
Oversee the collection, organization, and analysis of situation information 
related to the emergency. 

 

   
Ensure that information collected from all sources is validated prior to 
posting on status boards. 

 

   
Ensure that situation analysis reports are developed for dissemination to 
EOC staff and to other EOCs as required. 

 

   Ensure that an EOC Action Plan is developed for each operational period.  

   
Ensure that all maps, status boards and other displays contain current and 
accurate information. 

 

   Supervise Situation Analysis Unit.  

ACTIVATION   

   Check in at the EOC 
 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up)  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness  

   Wear identification vest and read over job aid.  

   
Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

 

   Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
 (FORM | EOC-214) 

 

   
Contact local government EOCs in the operational area and establish a 
schedule for obtaining situation reports. 

 

   

• Ensure there are adequate staff available to collect and analyze 
incoming information. 

• Maintain the Situation Analysis Report and facilitate the Action 
Planning process. 

o (FORM | EOC-209  REPORT | SITUATION STATUS)  
o (GUIDE | PLANNING “P” GUIDE)   

 

8 - 225



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 135 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Prepare Situation Analysis Unit objectives for the initial Action Planning 
meeting. 

(FORM | EOC-202) 

RESPONSE 

Establish and maintain a position log and other necessary files. 

Oversee the collection and analysis of all emergency related information. 

• Oversee the preparation and distribution of the Situation Report.
• Coordinate with the Documentation Unit for manual distribution and

reproduction as required.
o (FORM | EOC-209  REPORT | SITUATION STATUS) 

Ensure that each EOC Section provides the Situation Analysis Unit with 
Status Reports on a regular basis. 

(REPORT |OPS ________STATUS REPORT) 

Meet with the Public Information Officer to determine the best method 
for ensuring access to current information. 

Prepare a situation summary for the EOC Action Planning meeting. 
(FORM | EOC-209 REPORT | SITUATION STATUS) 

Ensure each section provides their objectives at least 30 minutes prior to 
each Action Planning meeting 

• In preparation for the Action Planning meeting, ensure that all EOC
objectives are posted on chart paper.

• Ensure the meeting room is set up with appropriate equipment and
materials (easels, markers, situation analysis reports, etc.).

Following the meeting, ensure that the Documentation Unit publishes and 
distributes the EOC Action Plan prior to the beginning of the next 
operational period. (See attachment). 

Ensure that adequate staff are assigned to maintain all maps, status 
boards and other displays. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

8 - 226



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 136 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 227



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 137 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
  

8 - 228



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 138 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

8 - 229



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 139 

JobAid: Documentation Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for maintaining complete documentation of the emergency. 
This includes damage assessment reports, EOC action reports, after action 
and corrective action reports. 

REPORT  TO PLANNING & INTELLIGNCE | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS & 
REPORTS 

 

EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT AND DISTRIBUTION 
OPERATION SECTION REPORTS | SUPPORTS COMPLITATION & 
DISTRIBUTION 

FORMS & 
REPORT 

 

• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-201 INCIDENT BRIEFING 
• EOC-202 INCIDENT 

OBJECTIVES 
• EOC-205A 

COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-207 ORGANIZATION 

CHART 
• EOC-209 INCIDENT STATUS 

SUMMARY 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 

• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-215 RESOURCE 

PLANNING WORKSHEET 
• EOC-215A SAFETY ANALYSIS 
• EOC-225 FOR PD 

CREDENTIALING 
• EOC-230 DAILY MEETING 

SCHEDULE 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 230



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 140 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   

Collect, organize and file all completed emergency related forms, to 
include: all EOC position logs, situation analysis reports, EOC Action Plans 
and any other related information, just prior to the end of each 
operational period. 

 

   Provide document reproduction services to EOC staff.  

   
Distribute the EOC situation analysis reports, EOC Action Plan, and other 
documents, as required. 

 

   
Maintain a permanent electronic archive of all situation reports and 
Action Plans associated with the emergency. 

 

   
Assist the EOC Coordinator in the preparation and distribution of the 
After-Action Report. 

 

   Supervise the Documentation Unit.  

ACTIVATION   

   
Check in at the EOC 

 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 
 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up)  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness  

   Wear identification vest and read over job aid.  

   
Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

 

   Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
 (FORM | EOC-214) 

 

RESPONSE   

   Establish and maintain a position log and other necessary files.  

   
Meet with the Planning/Intelligence Section Coordinator to determine 
what EOC materials should be maintained as official records. 

 

8 - 231



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 141 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Meet with the Recovery Unit Leader to determine what EOC materials 
and documents are necessary to provide accurate records and 
documentation for recovery purposes. 

Initiate and maintain a roster of all activated EOC positions to ensure that 
position logs are accounted for and submitted to this position at the end 
of each shift. 

(FORM | EOC-207, FORM | EOC-205A) 
Reproduce and distribute the Situation Reports and Action Plans. Ensure 
distribution is made to the Operational Area EOC. 

(FORM | EOC-209 REPORT | SITUATION STATUS)  
(REPORT |OPS ________ STATUS REPORT) 
(FORMS | EOC-201, EOC-202, EOC-205A, EOC-207, 
EOC-208, EOC-211, EOC-213. EOC-215, EOC-215A, 
EOC-230  PLAN | EOC ACTION PLAN) 

Keep extra copies of reports and plans available for special distribution as 
required. 

Set up and maintain document reproduction services for the EOC. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

8 - 232



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 142 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 233



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 143 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
 

8 - 234



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 144 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 235



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 145 

JobAid: Advance Planning Unit 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

Responsible for developing reports and recommendations for future time 
periods and for preparing reports, development of the EOC Action Plan, and 
briefings for use in strategy and/or planning meetings 

REPORT TO PLANNING & INTELLIGNCE | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS EOC ACTION PLAN | DEVELOP, REVIEW OR PUT TOGETHER 
ADVANCE PLANS | DEVELOP OR PUT TOGETHER 

FORMS • POSITION JOBAID
• EOC-202 INCIDENT OBJECTIVES
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING

TECHNOLOGY • LAPTOP
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL)

RESOURCES • WORKSTATION
• BINDER
• VEST

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in: 

(EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 

8 - 236



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 146 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Development of an Advance Plan consisting of potential response and 
recovery related issues likely to occur beyond the next operational period, 
generally within 36 to 72 hours.  

• Review all available status reports, Action Plans, and other significant
documents.

• Determine potential future impacts of the emergency; particularly
issues which might modify the overall strategic EOC objectives.

Provide periodic briefings for the EOC Director and General Staff 
addressing Advance Planning issues. 

Supervise the Advance Planning Unit. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Establish and maintain a position log and other necessary files. 

Monitor the current situation report to include recent updates. 

Meet individually with the general staff and determine best estimates of 
the future direction & outcomes of the emergency. 

8 - 237



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 147 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Develop an Advance Plan identifying future policy related issues, social 
and economic impacts, significant response or recovery resource needs, 
and any other key issues likely to affect EOC operations within a 36-to-72-
hour time frame. 

(PLAN | ADVANCE PLAN) 

Submit the Advance Plan to the Planning/Intelligence Coordinator for 
review and approval prior to conducting briefings for the General Staff 
and EOC Director. 

• Review Action Planning objectives submitted by each section for the
next operational period.

• In conjunction with the general staff, recommend a transition
strategy to the EOC Director when EOC activity shifts predominately
to recovery operations.

o (FORM | EOC-202 or PLAN | EOC ACTION PLAN)
(PLAN | ADVANCE PLAN)

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period. 

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

8 - 238



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 148 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 239



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 149 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
  

8 - 240



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 150 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 241



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 151 

JobAid: Resource Status/Tracking Unit 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

Responsible for tracking and documenting all resources. 

REPORT TO PLANNING & INTELLIGENCE | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS • POSITION JOBAID
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST
• EOC-207 ORGANIZATION CHART
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST
• EOC-213 RESOURCE REQUEST
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG
• EOC-215 RESOURCE PLANNING WORKSHEET
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING

TECHNOLOGY • LAPTOP
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL)

RESOURCES • WORKSTATION
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL)
• VEST

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in: 

(EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 

8 - 242



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 152 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Responsible for tracking and documenting resources including personnel, 
critical resources, transportation and support equipment.  

(FORM | RESOURCE TRACKING) 

Responsible for coordinating closely with all units in the Logistics Section, 
particularly Supply/Procurement Unit, Personnel Unit, and Transportation 
Unit. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Attends the Tactics/Strategy meeting (led by the Operations Section 
Chief) to complete the Operational Planning Worksheet  

(FORM | EOC-215) 
Complete resource request forms (ICS 213 form) for personnel, supplies, 
services, and equipment-as determined from the Operational Planning 
Worksheet (ICS 215 form/worksheet) developed during the 
Tactics/Strategy meeting. 

(FORM | EOC-213) 
(FORM | EOC-215) 

Verifies proper check-in and check-out of personnel in the EOC using a 
Recorder. 

(FORM | EOC-211) 

8 - 243



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 153 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Provides resource information to the Situation Analysis Unit, 
Demobilization Unit, and Logistics Section. 

(FORM | EOC-209) 
Assists in preparation of Organization Chart and post in the EOC. 

(FORM | EOC-207) 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 244



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 154 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
  

8 - 245



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 155 

JobAid: Demobilization Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for preparing a Demobilization Plan to ensure an orderly, safe, 
and cost-effective release of personnel and equipment  

REPORT  
 

TO PLANNING & INTELLIGNCE | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 

 

EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT 
DEMOBILIZATION PLAN | DEVELOP 

FORMS 

 

• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 - 246



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 156 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Develop a Demobilization Plan for the EOC based on a review of all 
pertinent planning documents, and status reports. 

Supervise the Demobilization Unit. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Establish and maintain a position log and other necessary files. 

Review EOC personnel roster to determine size and scope of any 
demobilization efforts. 

Meet individually with the general staff to determine their need for 
assistance in any Demobilization Planning. 

Advise Planning/Intelligence Section Coordinator on the need for a formal 
written Demobilization Plan. 

If a Demobilization Plan is required, develop the plan using detailed 
specific responsibilities, release priorities and procedures. 

(PLAN | DEMOBILIZATION PLAN) 
Establish with each Section Coordinator which units/personnel should be 
demobilized first. 

Determine if any special needs exist for personnel demobilization (e.g., 
transportation). 

8 - 247



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 157 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Develop a checkout procedure if necessary, to ensure all deactivated 
personnel have cleared their operating position. 

Submit any formalized Demobilization Plan to the Planning/Intelligence 
Section Coordinator for approval. 

Meet with each assigned Agency Representative and Technical Specialist 
to determine what assistance may be required for their demobilization 
from the EOC. 

Monitor the implementation of the Demobilization Plan and be prepared 
to handle any demobilization issues as they occur. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period. 

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section 
Coordinator. 

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 248



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 158 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: 
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ________________am / pm 

8 - 249



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 159 

JobAid: Technical Specialist Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

• Technical Specialists are advisors with special skills needed to support a 
field or function not addressed elsewhere or by any other discipline.  

• Technical Specialists (may or may not be employees of a public or private 
agency) may report to the Planning/Intelligence Section 
Coordinator/Chief. 

REPORT  
 

TO PLANNING & INTELLIGENCE | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 
 

 TO ME • AFN Specialist 
• GIS Specialist 
• Social Media Specialist 

PLANS 

 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT  

FORMS 

 

• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 - 250



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 160 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Provide technical observations and recommendations to EOC staff in 
specialized areas as required. 

Advise on legal limitations use of resources. 

Work with inter-agency coordination groups as necessary providing 
expertise. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over jobaid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Provide technical services as required to requesting EOC staff. 

Contribute to EOC planning meetings and inter-agency coordination 
groups as requested. 

Ensure that all recommendations are appropriately documented. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

8 - 251



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 161 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Advise Planning/Intelligence Section when duties are completed. 

Obtain release from Planning/Intelligence Section Coordinator prior to 
leaving the EOC. 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 252



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 162 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
  

8 - 253



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 163 

JobAid: Access and Functional Needs (AFN) Specialist 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

Responsible for identifying and mitigating safety concerns for the AFN 
populations and maintaining awareness of potential City/Agency liability 
during EOC response and recovery activities 

REPORT TO PLANNING & INTELLIGENCE | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS • POSITION JOBAID
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING

TECHNOLOGY • LAPTOP
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL)

RESOURCES • WORKSTATION
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL)
• VEST

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in: 

(EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 

8 - 254



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 164 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Determine the scope of the incident and the impact on AFN populations. 

Determine which AFN populations are impacted. 

Provide advice and assistance with other Sections as they manage 
resources and activities. 

Monitor and assist with message development/translation, as needed, 
including alert and warning messages to ensure all AFN populations are 
reached. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Ensure staff members assigned to AFN support have adequate resources 
to support their efforts. 

Help develop ordinances and regulations for evacuations. 

Monitor impacted AFN populations during evacuations to ensure 
adequate support. 

Provide guidance to Operations and Logistics in evacuation center and 
shelter operation activities. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

8 - 255



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 165 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period. 

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 256



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 166 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
  

8 - 257



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 167 

JobAid: Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Specialist 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Collects analyses and displays critical information obtained from various 
sources such as field reports, other departments and agencies, and EOC 
Sections.   

REPORT  TO PLANNING & INTELLIGENCE | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 

 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS 

 

• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 258



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 168 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Determine and establish GIS production priorities. 

Converts requests into GIS products quickly and effectively. 

Anticipate requirements and needs and assemble or prepare supporting 
referential data. 

Locate and secure needed database information to support production 
goal. 

Operate specialized GIS production equipment 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Develops a system to post to the significant events log casualty 
information, health concerns, property damage, fire status, size of risk 
area, scope of the hazard to the public, number of evacuees, etc. 

Develops sources of information and assist the Planning/Intelligence 
Section Coordinator/Chief in collecting, organizing and analyzing data 
from the other EOC sections. 

Provides for an authentication process in case of conflicting status 
reports. 

8 - 259



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 169 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Meets with the Planning/Intelligence Section Coordinator/Chief and the 
EOC Director (Director of Emergency Services) to determine needs for 
planning meetings and briefings.  

Determines if there are any special information needs. 

Maps specific zones or areas that detail damage surveys in conjunction 
with state and federal agencies.  

Prepares, sets up, and maintains EOC displays. 

Keeps data current concerning:  Availability of personnel, equipment, and 
supplies; Equipment or personnel out of service.   

Continually obtains information from Logistics, other Planning/Intel 
functions, the EOC Manager, Operations and the Finance/Admin Section. 

Submits verbal and written reports to Planning/Intelligence Section 
Coordinator/Chief as appropriate or as directed.   

Participates in Planning/Intelligence Section Meetings and participates in 
EOC Action Plan development. 

Provides information to be included in the Situation Report (i.e.: 
mapping). 

Obtains data on all impacts to include:  

• Utilities and infrastructure (i.e., roads, bridges, electric lines,
pipelines, buildings, etc.).

• Numbers of homes destroyed or damaged.
• Public facilities destroyed or damaged.
• Critical facilities damaged or destroyed and locations (hospital, power

stations, industry or manufacturers, water facilities, etc.).
• Financial impacts and costs expended by the County & coordinate

with Cost Unit Leader in Finance/Admin Section.
• Ensures that necessary maps and data pertinent to the operations are

obtained.
• Maps areas that may have to be rezoned, destroyed, reconstructed

and/or modified as a result of the disaster. (Consultation with the
Planning Section).

• Works with the Situation Analysis Unit to create maps, displays, and
reports.

8 - 260



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 170 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement.  

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period. 

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 261



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 171 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
  

8 - 262



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 172 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 263



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 173 

JobAid: Social Media Specialist 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

Support position to Public Information Officer. Can be assigned to various 
work location and conduct a diverse group of tasks, including gathering 
photos/videos, monitoring social media, conducting rumor control etc. 

REPORT TO PLANNING & INTELLIGENCE | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS • POSITION JOBAID
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING

TECHNOLOGY • LAPTOP
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL)

RESOURCES • WORKSTATION
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL)
• VEST

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in: 

(EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 

8 - 264



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 174 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   Social media monitoring  

   Rumor identification and management  

   Intelligence gathering  

ACTIVATION   

   
Check in at the EOC 

 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 
 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up)  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness  

   Wear identification vest and read over job aid.  

   
Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

 

   Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
 (FORM | EOC-214) 

 

RESPONSE   

   Monitor social media  

   Identify and manage rumors  

   Gather and share intelligence from media platforms  

   Take picture and video  

   
If approved by Section Coordinator, assist PIO with information 
dissemination 

 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

   Provide turnover briefing to position replacement.   

8 - 265



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 175 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

 (FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
 (FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

 

   Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit  

   
Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

DEMOBILIZATION   

   
Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

 

   

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.   
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit, 

prior to your departure.  
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section 

Coordinator. 

 

   Clean up your work area before you leave.  

   Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached.  

   Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 266



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 176 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: 
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ________________am / pm 

8 - 267



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 177 

3.4 Logistics Section  

 

Figure 8: EOC Logistics Section 

8 - 268



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 178 

This section contains functional section and position descriptions, responsibilities, and 
jobaids for personnel assigned to the Logistics Section of the City EOC. Jobaids describe 
the minimum actions that should be accomplished by personnel assigned to functional 
positions within the section. 

Section Overview: 
• The Logistics Section is responsible for providing resources to support the city’s

disaster response, including, but not limited to, personnel, vehicles, and
equipment.

Section Responsibilities Include: 
• Provide operational and logistical support for emergency response personnel

and optimize the use of resources
• Provide support to the other sections of the EOC and support as directed for field

emergency response activities
• Support the restoration of essential services and systems

Figure 8: EOC Logistics Section, above, shows all the positions that are part of the EOC 
Logistics Section. 

8 - 269



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 179 

JobAid: Logistics Chief/Coordinator 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

Responsible for managing and coordinating logistical response efforts and 
the acquisition, transportation, and mobilization of resources 

REPORT TO MANAGEMENT | EOC DIRECTOR 

REPORT  TO ME STAFF 

• Communications/IT Unit
• Transportation Unit
• Personnel Unit
• Supply/Procurement Unit
• Facilities Unit
• Food Unit
• Donations Management Unit
• Volunteer Coordination Unit

PLANS 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS • POSITION JOBAID
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST
• EOC-213 RESOURCE REQUEST
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING

• RESOURCE REQUEST
• RESOURCE TRACKING

TECHNOLOGY • LAPTOP
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL)

RESOURCES • WORKSTATION
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL)
• VEST

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

(EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 

8 - 270



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 180 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   

• Ensure the Logistics function is carried out in support of the EOC.   
• This function includes providing communication services, resource 

tracking; acquiring equipment, supplies, personnel, facilities, and 
transportation services; as well as arranging for food, lodging, and 
other support services as required. 

 

   
Establish the appropriate level of branch and/or unit staffing within the 
Logistics Section, continuously monitoring the effectiveness of the 
organization and modifying as required. 

 

   
Ensure section objectives as stated in the EOC Action Plan are 
accomplished within the operational period or within the estimated time 
frame. 

 

   
Coordinate closely with the Operations Section Coordinator to establish 
priorities for resource allocation to activated Incident Commands within 
the affected area. 

 

   
Keep the EOC Director informed of all significant issues relating to the 
Logistics Section. 

 

   Supervise the Logistics Section.  

ACTIVATION   

   Check in at the EOC 
 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up)  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness  

   Wear identification vest and read over job aid.  

   
Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

 

   Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
 (FORM | EOC-214) 

 

   
Ensure the Logistics Section is set up properly and that appropriate 
personnel, equipment, and supplies are in place, including maps, status 
boards, vendor references, and other resource directories. 

 

8 - 271



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 181 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   

Based on the situation, activate branches/units within section as needed 
and designate Unit Leaders for each element: 
 

 Communications Branch 
 Transportation Unit 
 Supply/Procurement Unit 
 Personnel Unit 
 Facilities Unit 
 Resource Tracking Unit 

 

 

   Mobilize sufficient section staffing for 24-hour operations.  

   
Establish communications with the Logistics Section at the Operational 
Area EOC if activated. 

 

   

Advise Branches and Units within the section to coordinate with 
appropriate branches in the Operations Section to prioritize and validate 
resource requests from DOCs or Incident Command Posts in the field.  
This should be done prior to acting on the request. 

 

   
Meet with the EOC Director and General Staff and identify immediate 
resource needs. 

 

   
Meet with the Finance/Administration Section Coordinator and determine 
level of purchasing authority for the Logistics Section. 

 

   
Assist branch and Unit Leaders in developing objectives for the section as 
well as plans to accomplish their objectives within the first operational 
period, or in accordance with the Action Plan. 

 

   Provide periodic Section Status Reports to the EOC Director.  

   
Adopt a proactive attitude, thinking ahead and anticipating situations and 
problems before they occur. 

 

RESPONSE   

   
Ensure that Logistic Section position logs and other necessary files are 
maintained. 

 

   
Meet regularly with section staff and work to reach consensus on section 
objectives for forthcoming operational periods. 

 

8 - 272



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 182 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

Provide the Planning/Intelligence Section Coordinator with the Logistics 
Section objectives at least 30 minutes prior to each Action Planning 
meeting. 

Attend and participate in EOC Action Planning meetings. 

Ensure that the Supply/Procurement Unit coordinates closely with the 
Purchasing Unit in the Finance/Administration Section, and that all 
required documents and procedures are completed and followed. 

Ensure that transportation requirements, in support of response 
operations, are met. 

Ensure that all requests for facilities and facility support are addressed. 

Ensure that all resources are tracked and accounted for, as well as 
resources ordered through Mutual Aid. 

(FORM | EOC-213 FORM | RESOURCE REQUEST) 
(FORM | RESOURCE TRACKING) 

Provide section staff with information updates as required. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period. 

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

8 - 273



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 183 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 274



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 184 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
  

8 - 275



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 185 

JobAid: Communications & IT Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for managing all computing needs including desktop/laptop 
computers, network and communications (internet/wireless, telephones, 
radios, etc.), printing, audio/visual, and other technology needs for the EOC 

REPORT  
 

TO LOGISTICS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 
 

PLANS 

 

EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 
DEMOBILIZATION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS & 
REPORT 

 

FORMS 
• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING 
 
REPORT 
• COMMUNICATION STATUS 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 - 276



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 186 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Coordinates with all sections and branches/groups/units on operating 
procedures for computing, network, and communications systems. 

Provides support for all EOC Information Systems and ensures automated 
information links with partner EOCs/DOCs are maintained including, if 
applicable, audio, visual, and teleconferencing equipment. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC. 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up). 

Check workstation to ensure readiness. 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities. 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Develops Communication Plan for all communication modes within the 
EOC and field ICP’s when needed. 

(FORM | EOC-205A) 

Determines what communications equipment is necessary. 

Provides technical information as required. 

Manage data and telephone services for the EOC. 

Receive any priorities or special requests. 

Provide communications briefings and technology status reports as 
requested at action planning meetings. 

(REPORT | COMMUNICATION STATUS) 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

8 - 277



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 187 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period. 

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit. 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Coordinates with Demobilization Unit to develop check out procedure on 
Demobilization Plan. 

(PLAN | DEMOBILIZATION) 
Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 278



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 188 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

  

8 - 279



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 189 

JobAid: Transportation Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for coordinating the allocation of transportation resources 
required to move people, equipment, and essential supplies during 
emergency response and recovery operations. 

REPORT  TO LOGISTICS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 

 

EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 
TRANSPORTATION PLAN | DEVELOPS (CAN USE TRANSPORTATION 
STATUS REPORT AS BASIS FOR PLAN) 

FORMS & 
REPORT 

 

FORM 
• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING 
• RESOURCE TRACKING  
 
REPORT 
• TRANSPORTATION STATUS 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 - 280



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 190 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

In coordination with the Construction/Engineering Branch Coordinator, 
and the Situation Analysis Unit, develop a transportation plan to support 
EOC operations. 

Arrange for the acquisition or use of required transportation resources. 

Supervise the Transportation Unit. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Establish and maintain a position log and other necessary files. 

Routinely coordinate with the Situation Analysis Unit to determine the 
status of transportation routes in and around the affected area. 

(REPORT | TRANSPORTATION STATUS) 
Routinely coordinate with the Construction/Engineering Branch 
Coordinator to determine progress of route recovery operations. 

Develop a Transportation Plan which identifies routes of ingress and 
egress; thus, facilitating the movement of response personnel, the 
affected population, and shipment of resources and material. 

8 - 281



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 191 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Establish contact with local transportation agencies and schools to 
establish availability of equipment and transportation resources for use in 
evacuations and other operations as needed. 

(FORM | RESOURCE TRACKING) 
Keep the Logistics Section Coordinator informed of significant issues 
affecting the Transportation Unit. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 282



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 192 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: 
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ________________am / pm 

8 - 283



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 193 

JobAid: Personnel Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for obtaining, coordinating, and allocating all non-fire and non-
law-enforcement mutual aid personnel support requests; registering and 
coordinating volunteers as Disaster Services Workers (DSWs); feeding and 
caring for all emergency workers; and the overall coordination and care of all 
City/Agency staff, both paid and volunteer. 

REPORT  TO LOGISTICS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 

 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS 

 

• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-207 ORGANIZATION CHART 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING  
• RESOURCE REQUEST 
• RESOURCE TRACKING 
• DSWV REGISTRATION 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

8 - 284



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 194 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   
Provide personnel resources as requested in support of the EOC and Field 
Operations. 

 

   Identify, recruit and register volunteers as required.  

   Develop an EOC organization chart. 
 (FORM | EOC-207) 

 

   Supervise the Personnel Unit.  

ACTIVATION   

   Check in at the EOC 
 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up)  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness  

   Wear identification vest and read over job aid.  

   
Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

 

   Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
 (FORM | EOC-214) 

 

RESPONSE   

   Establish and maintain a position log and other necessary files.  

   

• Manage check-in 
o (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

• In conjunction with the Documentation Unit, develop a large poster 
size EOC organization chart depicting each activated position.   

• Upon check in, indicate the name of the person occupying each 
position on the chart.   

• The chart should be posted in a conspicuous place, accessible to all 
EOC personnel. 

o (FORM | EOC-207)  

 

8 - 285



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 195 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Coordinate with the Liaison Officer and Safety Officer to ensure that all 
EOC staff to include volunteers, receive a current situation and safety 
briefing upon check-in. 

(FORM | EOC-208) 
Establish communications with volunteer agencies and other 
organizations that can provide personnel resources. 

Coordinate with the Operational Area EOC to activate the Emergency 
Management Mutual Aid System (EMMA), if required. 

• Process all incoming requests for personnel support.
• Identify the number of personnel, special qualifications or training,

where they are needed and the person or unit they should report to
upon arrival.

• Determine the estimated time of arrival of responding personnel and
advise the requesting parties accordingly.

o (FORM | RESOURCE REQUEST)
o (FORM | RESOURCE TRACKING)

Maintain a status board or other reference to keep track of incoming 
personnel resources. 

Update EOC organization chart for each operational period. 

Coordinate with the Liaison Officer and Security Officer to ensure access, 
badging or identification, and proper direction for responding personnel 
upon arrival at the EOC. 

Assist the Fire Rescue Branch and Law Enforcement Branch with ordering 
of mutual aid resources as required. 

To minimize redundancy, coordinate all requests for personnel resources 
from the field level through the EOC Operations Section prior to acting on 
the request. 

In coordination with the Safety Officer, determine the need for crisis 
counseling for emergency workers; acquire mental health specialists as 
needed. 

Arrange for childcare services for EOC personnel as required. 

Establish registration locations with sufficient staff to register volunteers 
and issue them disaster service worker identification cards. 

(FORM | DSWV REGISTRATION) 

8 - 286



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 196 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   
Keep the Logistics Section Coordinator informed of significant issues 
affecting the Personnel Unit. 

 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

   Provide turnover briefing to position replacement.   

   

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

 (FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
 (FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

 

   Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit  

   
Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

DEMOBILIZATION   

   
Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

 

   

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.   
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit, 

prior to your departure.  
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section 

Coordinator. 

 

   Clean up your work area before you leave.  

   Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached.  

   Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report.  

 

 

 

  

8 - 287



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 197 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
  

8 - 288



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 198 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

8 - 289



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 199 

JobAid: EMMA Coordinator 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for obtaining, coordinating, and allocating all EMMA support 
requests. 

REPORT  TO LOGISTICS | PERSONNEL UNIT 

PLANS 

 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS 

 

• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-207 ORGANIZATION CHART 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING  
• RESOURCE REQUEST 
• RESOURCE TRACKING 
• EMMA SPECIFIC REQUEST FORMS 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 - 290



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 200 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Provide, support and keep track of EMMA personnel resources as 
requested in support of the EOC(s). 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Establish and maintain a position log and other necessary files. 

• Alongside Personnel Unit Leader, identify needed EOC position that
are vacant and can be requested via EMMA.

Coordinate with the Operational Area EOC to activate the Emergency 
Management Mutual Aid System (EMMA), if required. 

• Process all incoming EMMA requests for personnel support.
• Identify the number of personnel, special qualifications or training,

where they are needed and the person or unit they should report to
upon arrival.

• Determine the estimated time of arrival of responding personnel and
advise the requesting parties accordingly.

o (FORM | RESOURCE REQUEST)
o (FORM | RESOURCE TRACKING)

Maintain a status board or other reference to keep track of incoming and 
outgoing EMMA personnel resources. 

Update EOC organization chart for each operational period. 

8 - 291



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 201 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Coordinate with the Liaison Officer and Security Officer to ensure access, 
badging or identification, and proper direction for responding EMMA 
personnel upon arrival at the EOC. 

Keep the Personnel Unit Leader informed of significant issues affecting 
the EMMA requests. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 292



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 202 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
  

8 - 293



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 203 

JobAid: Supply & Procurement Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for obtaining and delivering all non-fire and non-law-
enforcement mutual aid materials, equipment and supplies to support 
emergency operations 

REPORT  TO LOGISTICS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 

 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS 

 

• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING  

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 - 294



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 204 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Oversee the procurement and allocation of supplies and materiel not 
normally provided through mutual aid channels. 

Coordinate procurement actions with the Finance/Administration Section. 

Coordinate delivery of supplies and materiel as required. 

Supervise the Supply/Procurement Unit. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Establish and maintain a position log and other necessary files. 

Determine if requested types and quantities of supplies and material are 
available in inventory. 

Determine procurement spending limits with the Purchasing Unit in 
Finance/Administration. Obtain a list of pre-designated emergency 
purchase orders as required. 

Whenever possible, meet personally with the requesting party to clarify 
types and number of supplies and materiel, and verify that the request 
has not been previously filled through another source. 

8 - 295



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 205 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   
In conjunction with the Resource Tracking Unit, maintain a status board 
or other reference depicting procurement actions in progress and their 
status. 

 

   
Determine if the procurement item can be provided without cost from 
another jurisdiction or through the Operational Area. 

 

   
Determine unit costs of supplies and materiel, from suppliers and vendors 
and if they will accept purchase orders as payment, prior to completing 
the order. 

 

   
Orders exceeding the purchase order limit must be approved by the 
Finance/Administration Section before the order can be completed. 

 

   
If vendor contracts are required for procurement of specific resources or 
services, refer the request to the Finance/Administration Section for 
development of necessary agreements. 

 

   
• Determine if the vendor or provider will deliver the ordered items. 
• If delivery services are not available, coordinate pickup and delivery 

through the Transportation Unit. 

 

   
• In coordination with the Personnel Unit, provide food and lodging for 

EOC staff and volunteers as required.   
• Assist field level with food services at camp locations as requested. 

 

   

• Coordinate donated goods and services from community groups and 
private organizations. 

• Set up procedures for collecting, inventorying, and distributing usable 
donations. 

 

   
Keep the Logistics Section Coordinator informed of significant issues 
affecting the Supply/ Procurement Unit. 

 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

   Provide turnover briefing to position replacement.   

   

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

 (FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
 (FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

 

   Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit  

8 - 296



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 206 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 297



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 207 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: 
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ________________am / pm 

8 - 298



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 208 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 299



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 209 

JobAid: Facilities Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for ensuring adequate essential facilities are provided for the 
response effort, including securing access to the facilities and providing staff, 
furniture, supplies, and materials necessary to configure the facilities in a 
manner adequate to accomplish the mission. 

REPORT  TO LOGISTICS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 

 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS 

 

• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING  

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 - 300



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 210 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Ensure that adequate essential facilities are provided for the response 
effort, including securing access to the facilities and providing staff, 
furniture, supplies, and materials necessary to configure the facilities in a 
manner adequate to accomplish the mission. 

Ensure acquired buildings, building floors, and or workspaces are 
returned to their original state when no longer needed. 

Supervise the Facilities Unit. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Establish and maintain a position log and other necessary files. 

Work closely with the EOC Coordinator and other sections in determining 
facilities and furnishings required for effective operation of the EOC. 

Coordinate with branches and units in the Operations Section to 
determine if assistance with facility acquisition and support is needed at 
the field level. 

Arrange for continuous maintenance of acquired facilities, to include 
ensuring that utilities and restrooms are operating properly. 

If facilities are acquired away from the EOC, coordinate with assigned 
personnel and designate a Facility Manager. 

8 - 301



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 211 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Develop and maintain a status board or other reference which depicts the 
location of each facility; a general description of furnishings, supplies and 
equipment at the site; hours of operation, and the name and phone 
number of the Facility Manager. 

Ensure all structures are safe for occupancy and that they comply with 
ADA requirements. 

As facilities are vacated, coordinate with the facility manager to return 
the location to its original state.  This includes removing and returning 
furnishings and equipment, arranging for janitorial services, and locking or 
otherwise securing the facility. 

Keep the Logistics Section Coordinator informed of significant issues 
affecting the facilities unit. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period. 

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

8 - 302



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 212 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 303



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 213 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
 

8 - 304



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 214 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 305



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 215 

JobAid: Food Unit 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

Responsible for coordinating all feeding operations for the EOC, support, and 
field personnel 

REPORT TO LOGISTICS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS • POSITION JOBAID
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING

TECHNOLOGY • LAPTOP
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL)

RESOURCES • WORKSTATION
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL)
• VEST

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in: 

(EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 

8 - 306



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 216 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Establishes and disseminates a feeding plan that identifies cost limits, 
authorized vendors, catering companies, types of food, etc. Be aware of 
special diets. 

Sets meal schedules. 

Sets up and manages eating areas for EOC, staff, and field personnel. 

Establishes a personnel-feeding account for EOC, support, and field 
personnel at local restaurants. 

Briefs all EOC personnel on the location, cost limitations, and incident 
number used for each restaurant or caterer. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC. 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up). 

Check workstation to ensure readiness. 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities. 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Obtains necessary equipment, supplies, and facilities to establish food 
service (including hot/cold storage and/or handling). 

Ensures food service areas meet appropriate health and safety measures 
and are maintained in a clean condition. 

Orders sufficient food and water from or through the Supply Unit. 

Maintains an inventory of food, water, condiments, and supplies. 

8 - 307



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 217 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Coordinates with Procurement Unit to ensure all purchases are pre-
approved and paid. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period. 

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit. 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 308



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 218 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
  

8 - 309



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 219 

JobAid: Donations Management Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for coordination of donations management. This includes 
internal organizational elements and resources as well as external partner 
agencies. 

REPORT  
 

TO LOGISTICS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 
 

PLANS 

 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS 

 

• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 - 310



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 220 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Works with the Planning Section Staff to identify donation needs of life-
safety supplies and services (e.g., heat, food, water, ice) and develops a 
plan to receive and quickly distribute these resources to affected 
community members. 

Coordinates with the Resources Unit to track all donation resources. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Communicates and coordinates with external partners and NGOs to 
support effective donations management. 

Serves as point of contact with private sector that want to donate goods 
and services. 

Coordinates with Public Information function, including the JIC (if 
activated) to maintain consistent public messaging about donations. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

8 - 311



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 221 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit. 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 312



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 222 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: 
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ________________am / pm 

8 - 313



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 223 

JobAid: Volunteer Coordination Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for coordination of donations management. This includes 
internal organizational elements and resources as well as external partner 
agencies. 

REPORT  
 

TO LOGISTICS | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 
 

PLANS 

 
EOC ACTION PLAN | SUPPORTS DEVELOPMENT 

FORMS 

 

• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING 
• DSWV REGISTRATION 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 314



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 224 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Works with the Planning Section Staff to identify volunteer needs 
develops a plan to distribute these volunteers to necessary places. 

Coordinates with the Resources Unit to track all volunteer resources. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC. 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up). 

Check workstation to ensure readiness. 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Staffs Volunteer Team in the EOC and supports the Planning Section 
Resource Unit and the Logistics Section Supply Unit. 

Establishes one or more assembly and staging sites for volunteers to 
report for credential screening and potential assignment (Volunteer 
Reception Centers). 

Manages the Volunteer DSWV process including document management. 
(FORM | DSWV REGISTRATION) 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

8 - 315



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 225 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit. 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and follow 
Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 316



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 226 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
 

  

8 - 317



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 227 

3.5 Finance/Administration Section 

 

Figure 9: EOC Finance & Administration Section 

8 - 318



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 228 

This section contains functional section and position descriptions, responsibilities, and 
jobaids for personnel assigned to the Finance & Administration Section of the City EOC. 
Jobaids describe the minimum actions that should be accomplished by personnel 
assigned to functional positions within the section. 

Section Overview: 
• The Finance & Administration Section is responsible for providing financial support

and coordination.

Section Responsibilities Include: 
• Protect Life, Property, and the Environment
• Provide Continuity of Financial Support to the City and Community
• Document and Manage City costs and recovery of those costs as allowable
• Maintain a positive image for the City in its dealings with the community

Figure 9: EOC Finance & Administration Section, above, shows all the positions that are 
part of the EOC Finance & Administration Section. 

8 - 319



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 229 

JobAid: Finance & Administration Chief/Coordinator 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for the financial support, response, and recovery for the 
incident 

REPORT  TO MANAGEMENT | EOC DIRECTOR 

PLANS 
& REPORTS 

 

ASSESS, TRACKS, AND ORGANIZE COST OF IMPLIMENTATION PER 
STATE AND FEDERAL COST RECOVERY GUIDELINES 

FORMS,  
GUIDES 

 

FORMS 
• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING  
 
GUIDES 
• PA DAMAGE CATEGORIES 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 - 320



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 230 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   
Ensure that all financial records are maintained throughout the 
emergency.   

 

   
Ensure that all on-duty time is recorded for all emergency response 
personnel.   

 

   
Ensure that all on-duty time sheets are collected from EOC staff; 
Departments are collecting these from DOC staff, and Field Supervisors 
/Incident Commanders are for their staff. 

 

   
Ensure there is a continuum of the payroll process for all employees 
responding to the emergency.   

 

   
Determine/remind individuals of purchase order limits for the 
procurement function in Logistics.   

 

   
Ensure that workers’ compensation claims, resulting from the response 
are processed within a reasonable time. 

 

   
Ensure that all travel and expense claims are processed within a 
reasonable time. 

 

   
Provide administrative support to all EOC Sections as required, in 
coordination with the Personnel Unit. 

 

   
• Activate units within the Finance/Administration Section as required. 
• Monitor section activities continuously and modify the organization 

as needed.   

 

   

Ensure that all recovery documentation is accurately maintained and 
submitted on the appropriate forms to the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) and/or the Governor’s Office of Emergency 
Services.   

 

   Supervise the Finance/Administration Section.  

ACTIVATION   

   Check in at the EOC. 
 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up).  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness.  

8 - 321



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 231 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities. 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

Ensure that the Finance/Administration Section is set up properly and 
that appropriate personnel, equipment, and supplies are in place. 

Based on the situation, activate units within section as needed and 
designate Unit Coordinators for each element:   

Time Keeping Unit 
Cost Accounting Unit 
Compensation & Claims Unit 
Purchasing Unit  
Recovery Unit 

Ensure that sufficient staff are available for a 24-hour schedule, or as 
required. 

• Meet with the Logistics Section Coordinator and review financial and
administrative support requirements and procedures.

• Determine the level of purchasing authority to be delegated to
Logistics Section.

Meet with all Unit Leaders and ensure that responsibilities are clearly 
understood. 

In conjunction with Unit Leaders, determine the initial Action Planning 
objectives for the first operational period. 

Notify the EOC Director when the Finance/Administration Section is 
operational. 

Adopt a proactive attitude, thinking ahead and anticipating situations and 
problems before they occur. 

RESPONSE 

Ensure that Finance/Administration Section position logs and other 
necessary files are maintained. 

Ensure that displays associated with the Finance/Administrative Section 
are current, and that information is posted in a legible and concise 
manner.   

8 - 322



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 232 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Participate in all Action Planning meetings.  

Brief all Unit Leaders and ensure they are aware of the EOC objectives as 
defined in the Action Plan. 

Keep the EOC Director, General Staff, and elected/other officials aware of 
the current fiscal situation and other related matters, on an on-going 
basis.  

Ensure that the Recovery Unit maintains all financial records throughout 
the emergency. 

Ensure that the Time Keeping Unit tracks and records all agency staff 
time.  

In coordination with the Logistics Section, ensure that the Purchasing Unit 
processes purchase orders and develops contracts in a timely manner.   

Ensure that the Compensation & Claims Unit processes all workers’ 
compensation claims, resulting from the emergency, in a reasonable 
timeframe, given the nature of the situation.  

Ensure that the Time-Keeping Unit processes all timesheets and travel 
expense claims promptly. 

Ensure that the Finance/Administration Section provides administrative 
support to other EOC Sections as required.  

Ensure that all recovery documentation is accurately maintained by the 
Recovery Unit during the response and submitted on the appropriate 
forms to Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and/or the 
Governor’s Office of Emergency Services. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

8 - 323



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 233 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate appropriate Section Positions when authorized by EOC 
Director and follow Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Identify staff to support on-going Recovery Operations and Recovery
Plan.

• Advise identified staff on their continual support role.

Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.  Provide 
all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit, prior to 
departure. 

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

TERMINATION 

Transition over to Recovery Operations and support Recovery Manager in 
tracking per project costs as directed by FEMA cost recovery and public 
assistance guidelines. 

8 - 324



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 234 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
  

8 - 325



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 235 

JobAid: Time Keeping Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for working with all Department Liaisons and Sections to ensure 
field units track hours worked by personnel and volunteers & preparing daily 
personnel time recording documents. 

REPORT  
 

TO FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 
& REPORTS 

 

SUPPORTS ASSESSMENT, TRACKING, AND ORGANIZATION OF THE 
COST OF IMPLEMENTATION PER STATE AND FEDERAL COST 
RECOVERY GUIDELINES 

FORMS, 
GUIDES 

 

FORMS 
• POSITION JOBAID 
• RESOURCE TRACKING 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-210 RESOURCE STATUS CHANGE 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING  
 
GUIDES 
• PA DAMAGE CATEGORIES 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

8 - 326



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 236 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Track, record, and report all on-duty time for personnel working during 
the emergency.   

Ensure that personnel time records, travel expense claims and other 
related forms are prepared and submitted to budget and payroll office. 

Supervise the Time Keeping Unit. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up) 

Check workstation to ensure readiness 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Establish and maintain a time keeping system. 
(FORM | EOC-211) 
(FORM | RESOURCE TRACKING) 
(FORM | EOC-210) 

• Initiate, gather, or update time reports from all personnel, to include
volunteers assigned to each shift.

• Ensure that time records are accurate and prepared in compliance
with policy.

• Obtain complete personnel rosters from the Personnel Unit.
• Rosters must include all EOC personnel as well as personnel assigned

to the field level.

Provide instructions for all supervisors to ensure that time sheets and 
travel expense claims are completed properly and signed by each 
employee prior to submitting them.   

8 - 327



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 237 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

• Establish a file for each employee or volunteer within the first
operational period.

• Maintain a fiscal record for as long as the employee is assigned to the
response.

Keep the Finance/Administration Section Coordinator informed of 
significant issues affecting the Time-Keeping Unit. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

Deactivate position when authorized by Finance/Administration Section 
Coordinator and follow Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan. 

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 328



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 238 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: 
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ________________am / pm 

8 - 329



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 239 

JobAid: Compensation & Claims Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for investigating and processing physical-injury and property-
damage claims arising from emergency/disaster incident 

REPORT  
 

TO FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 
 

PLANS 

 

SUPPORTS ASSESSMENT, TRACKING, AND ORGANIZATION OF THE 
COST OF IMPLEMENTATION PER STATE AND FEDERAL COST 
RECOVERY GUIDELINES 

FORMS, 
GUIDES 

 

FORMS 
• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-208 SAFETY MESSAGE 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-215A SAFETY ANALYSIS 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING  
• EOC-227 CLAIMS LOG 
 
GUIDES 
• PA DAMAGE CATEGORIES 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 - 330



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 240 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   
Oversee the investigation of injuries and property/equipment damage 
claims arising out of the emergency. 

 

   Complete all forms required by worker's compensation program.  

   
Maintain a file of injuries and illnesses associated with the emergency 
which includes results of investigations. 

 

   Supervise the Compensation and Claims Unit.  

ACTIVATION   

   Check in at the EOC. 
 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up).  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness.  

   Wear identification vest and read over job aid.  

   
Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

 

   Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities. 
 (FORM | EOC-214) 

 

RESPONSE   

   Establish and maintain a compensation and claims system.  

   
Maintain a chronological log of injuries and illnesses, and property 
damage reported during the emergency. 

 (FORM | EOC-227) 

 

   Investigate all injury and damage claims as soon as possible.  

   
Prepare appropriate forms for all verifiable injury claims and forward 
them to Workmen's Compensations within the required time frame 
consistent with jurisdiction’s policy & procedures. 

 

8 - 331



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 241 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Coordinate with the Safety Officer regarding the mitigation of hazards. 
(FORM | EOC-208) 
(FORM | EOC-215A) 

Keep the Finance/Administration Coordinator informed of significant 
issues affecting the Compensation and Claims Unit. 

Forward all equipment or property damage claims to the Recovery Unit. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period.  

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

• Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and directed by
Section Coordinator.

• Follow Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan.

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 332



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 242 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING) 

NOTES 

Name: 
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date: Time: ________________am / pm 

8 - 333



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 243 

JobAid: Purchasing Unit 
 
POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

 

Responsible for financial matters involving vendor contracts 

REPORT TO FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS 

 

SUPPORTS ASSESSMENT, TRACKING, AND ORGANIZATION OF THE 
COST OF IMPLEMENTATION PER STATE AND FEDERAL COST 
RECOVERY GUIDELINES 

FORMS,  
GUIDES 

 

FORMS 
• POSITION JOBAID 
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST 
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST 
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG 
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING  
 
GUIDES 
• PA DAMAGE CATEGORIES 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

• LAPTOP 
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL) 

RESOURCES  • WORKSTATION 
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL) 
• VEST 

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in:  

 (EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 - 334



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 244 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

DUTIES           

   
Coordinate vendor contracts not previously addressed by existing 
approved vendor lists. 

 

   
Coordinate with Supply/Procurement Unit on all matters involving the 
need to exceed established purchase order limits. 

 

   Supervise the Purchasing Unit.  

ACTIVATION   

   
Check in at the EOC. 

 (FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 
 

   Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up).  

   Check workstation to ensure readiness.  

   Wear identification vest and read over job aid.  

   
Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

 

   Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities. 
 (FORM | EOC-214) 

 

RESPONSE   

   Establish and maintain a purchasing system.  

   Review the emergency purchasing procedures.  

   
Prepare and sign contracts as needed, be sure to obtain concurrence 
from the Finance/ Administration Section Coordinator. 

 

   
Ensure that all contracts identify the scope of work and specific site 
locations. 

 

   
Negotiate rental rates not already established, or purchase price with 
vendors as required. 

 

   
Admonish vendors as necessary, regarding unethical business practices, 
such as inflating prices or rental rates for their merchandise or equipment 
during emergencies. 

 

8 - 335



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 245 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Finalize all agreements and contracts, as required. 

Complete final processing and send documents to Budget and Payroll for 
payment. 

Verify costs data in the pre-established vendor contracts and/or 
agreements. 

In coordination with the Logistics Section, ensure that the Purchasing Unit 
processes purchase orders and develops contracts in a timely manner. 

Keep the Finance/Administration Section Coordinator informed of all 
significant issues involving the Purchasing Unit. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period. 

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit. 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

• Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and directed by
Section Coordinator.

• Follow Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan.

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

Clean up your work area before you leave. 

Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

8 - 336



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 246 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Be prepared to provide input to the after-action report. 

8 - 337



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 247 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

 
  

8 - 338



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 248 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 339



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 249 

JobAid: Recovery Unit 

POSITION 
OVERVIEW 

Responsible for executing procedures to capture and document costs 
relating to a disaster/emergency 

REPORT TO FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION | CHIEF/COORDINATOR 

PLANS & 
REPORTS 

SUPPORTS ASSESSMENT, TRACKING, AND ORGANIZATION OF THE 
COST OF IMPLEMENTATION PER STATE AND FEDERAL COST 
RECOVERY GUIDELINES 

AFTER ACTION REPORT 

FORMS, 
GUIDES 

FORMS 
• POSITION JOBAID
• EOC-205A COMMUNICATION LIST
• EOC-211 CHECK-IN LIST
• EOC-214 ACTIVITY LOG
• EOC-225 FOR PD CREDENTIALING

GUIDES 
• PA DAMAGE CATEGORIES

TECHNOLOGY • LAPTOP
• PHONE (DESK OR CELL)

RESOURCES • WORKSTATION
• POSITION BINDER (CAN BE VIRTUAL)
• VEST

PROFESSIONAL 
CREDENTIAL 

To receive professional credit for Emergency Management EOC/Career 
Credentialing, complete and turn in: 

(EOC-225) to CALOES | credentialcoord@caloes.ca.gov 

8 - 340



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 250 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

DUTIES 

Determine impacts of the emergency requiring recovery planning. 

Initiate recovery-planning meetings with appropriate individuals and 
agencies. 

Develop the initial recovery plan and strategy for the jurisdiction. 

Ensure that all appropriate agencies are kept informed and have the 
opportunity to participate in the recovery planning process. 

Develop the strategy to transition from recovery planning in the EOC to a 
wider post-emergency recovery effort. 

Supervise the Recovery Unit. 

ACTIVATION 

Check in at the EOC. 
(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

Assist with EOC Set-up (If not already fully set-up). 

Check workstation to ensure readiness. 

Wear identification vest and read over job aid. 

Receive situation, section and position briefing from available and 
appropriate personnel. 

Ensure readiness to maintain concise records of position activities. 
(FORM | EOC-214) 

RESPONSE 

Establish and maintain a recovery system. 

Monitor the current situation report to include recent updates and 
determine overall impacts of the emergency. 

Based on available information, prepare an initial estimate of likely 
recovery issues that must be addressed. Document these in a preliminary 
report. 

8 - 341



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 251 

TYPE TIME 
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending

Coordinate with the Advance Planning Unit to determine major mid-to-
long range social, economic, environmental and political impacts. 

Assist the Operational Area as necessary in determining appropriate sites 
for Disaster Application Centers. 

Facilitate recovery planning meetings involving appropriate Management 
and General Staff personnel and other agencies as needed. 

Develop a recovery plan and strategy for the jurisdiction or agency. 

Coordinate with Finance/Administration to ensure that FEMA, OES and 
other public reimbursement source documents and applications are 
consistent with the recovery strategy. 

In conjunction with Finance/Administration, ensure that specific project 
timelines are developed to meet the goals and objectives of the recovery 
plan. 

SHIFT CHANGE/TRANSFER OF DUTIES 

Provide turnover briefing to position replacement. 

Provide details regarding ongoing activities and planned activities to be 
accomplished during the upcoming operational period. 

(FORM | USE CURRENT POSITION JOBAID) 
(FORM | USE CURRENT EOC-214) 

Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit. 

Follow EOC check out procedures, including signing out, workstation 
clean-up and forwarding phone number where you can be reached. 

(FORM | EOC-211, FORM | EOC-205A) 

DEMOBILIZATION 

• Deactivate position when authorized by EOC Director and directed by
Section Coordinator.

• Follow Demobilization Unit Leader directions/plan.

• Complete all required forms, reports, and other documentation.
• Provide all completed documentation to the Documentation Unit,

prior to your departure.
• Turn over financial information to Finance/Administration Section

Coordinator.

8 - 342



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 252 

TYPE  TIME  
STATUS 

C=Complete 
I=In-Progress 

P=Pending 

   Clean up your work area before you leave.  

   Provide a forwarding phone number where you can be reached.  

   
Assists the EOC Coordinator and Planning & Intelligence Section with 
preparing the After-Action Report. 

 (REPORT | AFTER ACTION) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 343



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 253 

SHIFT/STAFF CHANGE 

TASKS (PENDING)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name:  
Forwarding 

Phone #: _______________________ 

Date:  Time: ________________am / pm 

  

8 - 344



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 254 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

8 - 345



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 255 

4 EOC Forms & Tools 
4.1 EOC Action Planning 

EOC Action Planning is a process that allows for the coordination of EOC activities and 
the development of the EOC Action Plan. 

The EOC Action Plan (EAP) is a printed document which outlines the priorities and 
planned response of the organization for a defined operational period (time period). 

During the initial stages of incident management, EOC staff must develop a simple plan 
that can be communicated through concise verbal briefings. Frequently, this plan must 
be developed very quickly and with incomplete information. As the incident 
management effort evolves over time with additional lead time, staff, information, more 
detailed and concise EOC Action Plans are created. 

Overall – planning involves the following 5 phases: 

1. Understanding the situation
2. Establishing incident objectives
3. Developing the Plan
4. Preparing and Disseminating the Plan
5. Executing, Evaluating and Revising the Plan

The basis for an efficient and effective EOC Action Planning process begin with the 
development and maintenance of a common operating picture. 

4.1.1 Common Operating Picture Guidance 

In order to develop a common operating picture emergency management 
organization member must exercise effective situational awareness. 

Situational Awareness is the ability to identify, process, and comprehend the critical 
information about an incident – knowing what is going on around you [requiring] 
continuous monitoring of relevant sources of information regarding actual incidents 
and developing hazards (National Response Framework). 

Elements of situational awareness include: 

• Perception (Gather information)
• Comprehension (Interpret information)
• Projection (Anticipate future status and needs)

Situational awareness can be obtained through the following sources: 

• Responders and government agencies
• 911 centers
• Citizens
• Media

8 - 346



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 256 

• Social media 
• Non-governmental organizations (NGOs) 

Situational awareness information compiled together is used to develop a common 
operating picture. 

A common operating picture is a continuously updated overview of an incident 
compiled throughout an incident’s life cycle from data shared between integrated 
systems for communication, information management, and intelligence and 
information sharing (NRF Resource Center). 

Having a common operating picture enables: 

• Enable effective and timely decision-making 
• Increase collaboration among all responders and disseminates pertinent 

information 
• Improve incident safety 
• Inform predictions and proactive response 
• Help ensure consistency of messages 

A common operating picture contains the following elements: 

• Data: Collect bits from various sources 
• Information: Bits are put together 
• Intelligence: Analyze the information 
• Make recommendations for decisions 

Situational awareness influences the 
development of a common operating 
picture and follows the following 
input/output process. 

Situational Awareness shared at every SEMS level through a 
common operating picture helps others achieve overall 
incident situational awareness as shown in the diagram on the 
right. 

If an event is not continuously monitored and the common 
operating picture updated and shared, situational awareness 
will decrease and in inaccurate operating picture will result. 

Situational awareness and common operating picture 
information can be shared through: 

• Senior leadership briefs 
• Formal reports 
• Information gathered from Incident/EOC Action Plans 

(I/EAPs), Situation Reports (SITREPs), etc. 

8 - 347



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 257 

4.1.2 Planning P 

The Planning “P” is a guide to the action planning process. The Planning “P” can be 
used for both smaller, short-term incidents or events, and for longer, more complex 
incident planning. 

The Planning “P” depicts the stages in the action planning process. 

The leg of the “P” includes initial steps to gain awareness of the situation and establish 
the organization for incident management. Steps in Phase 1 are done only one time. 
Once they are accomplished, incident management shifts into a cycle of planning and 
operations, that continues and is repeated each operational period. In this way, the 
Planning “P” becomes the Planning “O” after the first operation period. 

Figure x: Planning P… 

Figure: Planning P 

8 - 348



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 258 

Figure: Ongoing O 

4.1.3 Planning P Meeting Agendas 

The following are example Planning P meeting details and agendas: 

8 - 349



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 259 

Initial Briefing Meeting 
 (Planning P Step 3): 
Meeting Called By: EOC Director 
Attended By: All EOC personnel deemed necessary by the EOC Director. 
Led By: EOC Director or Designee (ex: P&I Section Chief/Coordinator) 
Purpose: Provide information on current on-scene operations, agency and jurisdictional 
concerns and establish working EOC organization. 
Outcome: Organizational Structure and Common Operating Picture! 
Ground Rules: 
• Cell Phone on Silent or Vibrate
• Come Prepared for each meeting
• No side conversations
• Ask questions if you don’t understand
• Take Notes
• Stick to agenda

Agenda/Flow 
• EOC Director brings meeting to order, conducts roll call, covers ground rules and

reviews the agenda
• Introduce EOC Management and General Staff
• Provide situation update to include:

1. What has happened
2. Affected areas and individuals
3. Incident Command Post Objectives and Priorities if known (ICS-201 for Field)
4. Activated emergency response facilities
5. Jurisdictions and agencies involved
6. Any actions we have taken
7. Safety Concerns
8. Agency or jurisdiction restrictions

• Verify that Incident commander(s), Area Command(s), supporting EOCs, DOCs, and
coordinating agencies have been informed that the EOC is staffed and operational.

• Establish the following:
o Event name
o Operational period duration and work shift hours
o Initial goals and objectives
o EOC staffing organization, structure, pattern
o Meeting schedule

• All resource requests will be facilitated through the EOC.
• Agree on unified logistics approach to resource ordering procedures to follow.
• Agree on resource authorization procedures.
• Agree on Information/Intelligence matters and the flow of information into the EOC

and vetted information out of the EOC.
• Next meeting EOC Objectives meeting.
• Prepare for the Objectives Meeting.

8 - 350



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 260 

Objectives Updates & Policy Confirmation Meeting  
(Planning P Step 4): 
Meeting Called By: EOC Director 
Attended By: Management & General Staff 
Led By: Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator or Designee 
Purpose: Develop EOC objectives to support on-scene and EOC operations and 
confirm policies. 
Outcome: EOC objectives updated and policies confirmed. 
Ground Rules: 
• Cell Phone on Silent or Vibrate
• Come Prepared for each meeting
• No side conversations
• Ask questions if you don’t understand
• Take Notes
• Stick to agenda

Agenda: 
• P&I Section Chief/Coordinator (PSC) brings meeting to order, conducts roll call,

covers ground rules and reviews the agenda
• Review and /or update key current actions
• Review current and projected situation
• Set prioritized SMART objectives in support of field Incident Commander(s)

considering on-scene incident objectives/resource priorities, limitations, and
constraints

• Discuss the incidents potential for the next operational period
• Review and confirm policies by EOC Management with input from General Staff

which may include:
• Managing sensitive information/intelligence
• Information flow into and out of the EOC
• Resource ordering process
• Cost sharing and cost accounting (Finance/Admin.)
• Operational security issues
• Establishment of a JIC

• Review, document, and/or resolve status of any open actions.

8 - 351



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 261 

Resource Meeting 
(Planning P Step 5): 
Meeting Called By: EOC Director 
Attended By: Management & General Staff (other EOC positions as appropriate) 
Led By: Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator or Designee 
Purpose: Develop a unified EOC strategy to support emergency management and on-
scene operation resource needs. 
Outcome: Resources identified to support emergency management and field needs. 
Ground Rules: 
• Cell Phone on Silent or Vibrate 
• Come Prepared for each meeting 
• No side conversations 
• Ask questions if you don’t understand  
• Take Notes 
• Stick to agenda 
 
Agenda: 
• P&I Section Chief/Coordinator brings meeting to order, conducts roll call, covers 

ground rules and reviews the agenda 
• Review current and projected incident situation  
• Review and /or update key current actions 
• Review coordination and support objectives and ensures accountability for each 
• Resources on-scene, en-route, and ordered are identified (Plans Section and 

Operations Section) 
• Resource priorities are discussed P&I Section Chief/Coordinator and Operations 

Section Chief/Coordinator  
• PSC and OSC develop strategic and resource needs 
• Logs Section Chief/Coordinator verify support requirements and contributes logistics 

info as necessary 
• Logs Section Chief/Coordinator reviews resource ordering process 
• F&A Section Chief/Coordinator evaluates funding /fiscal implications 
• Quick recap of the meeting and assignments 
• End meeting and prepare for Planning Meeting 
• Sections/Staff conduct break out meetings to fill in the information gaps that may 

exist 
• Prepare for Planning Meeting 

 
  

8 - 352



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 262 

Planning Meeting  
(Planning P Step 6): 
Meeting Called By: EOC Director 
Attended By: Management & General Staff (other EOC positions as appropriate) 
Led By: Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator or Designee 
Purpose: Validate EOC Action Plan components: objectives, policies, authorities, 
resources etc. 
Outcome: Validation of EOC Action Plan. 
Ground Rules: 
• Cell Phone on Silent or Vibrate 
• Come Prepared for each meeting 
• No side conversations 
• Ask questions if you don’t understand  
• Take Notes 
• Stick to agenda 
 
Agenda: 
• Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator brings meeting to order, conducts roll 

call, covers ground rules and reviews the agenda 
• EOC Director provides opening remarks 
• Situation Unit provides briefing on current situation, resources at risk, weather 

forecast, and incident projections. 
• Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator reviews coordination and support 

priorities, objectives, and decisions  
• Operations Section Chief/Coordinator provides briefing on current operations 

followed with an overview on the proposed plan including strategy work 
assignments, resource commitment, contingencies, Operations Section 
organizational structure, and needed support facilities 

• Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator reviews Operations Section 
Chief/Coordinator proposed plan to ensure that the EOC Management Priorities 
and operational objectives are met. 

• Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator reviews and validates responsibility for 
any open actions/tasks and management objectives. 
• Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator conducts round robin of EOC 

Management Group and Management Staff members to solicit their final input 
and commitment to the proposed plan. 

• Logistics Section Chief/Coordinator covers transport, communications and 
supply updates and issues, 

• Finance Section Chief/Coordinator covers fiscal issues, 
• Public Information Officer covers public affairs and public information issues, 
• Liaison Officer covers interagency issues, and 
• Safety Officer covers any safety concerns or considerations 

8 - 353



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 263 

• Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator requests EOC Management Group’s
approval of the plan as presented.  EOC Management Group may provide final
comments

• Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator issues assignments to appropriate EOC
members for developing Coordination Plan support documentation along with
deadlines.

• Planning Section prepares the EOC Action Plan using the forms and /or format as
described in the EOP or determined during the Planning meeting preparation
phase.

• Sections conduct break out meetings to fill in the information gaps that may exist.

8 - 354



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 264 

EOC Briefing Meeting  
(Planning P Step 9): 
Meeting Called By: EOC Director 
Attended By: All EOC personnel 
Led By: Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator or Designee 
Purpose: To brief the oncoming shift on the EOC Action Plan and status of on-scene 
operations 
Outcome: Oncoming shift understands EOC Action Plan and situation to execute 
Ground Rules: 
• Cell Phone on Silent or Vibrate
• Come Prepared for each meeting
• No side conversations
• Ask questions if you don’t understand
• Take Notes
• Stick to agenda

Agenda: 
• Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator brings meeting to order, conducts roll call

for personnel required to attend both incoming and out-going shift, covers ground
rules and reviews the agenda

• EOC Director provides opening remarks
• Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator reviews objectives and any changes to

the EOC Action Plan
• Situation Unit conducts Situation Briefing.
• Operations Section Chief/Coordinator discusses current response actions and

accomplishments.
• Logistics Section Chief/Coordinator covers transport, communications, and supply

updates
• Finance Section Chief/Coordinator covers fiscal issues.
• Public Information Officer covers public affairs and public information issues
• Safety Officer covers any safety concerns or considerations
• Liaison Officer covers interagency issues and Intel covers intelligence issues
• Planning & Intelligence Chief/Coordinator solicits final comments and adjourns

briefing.
• Out-going Sections Chiefs/Coordinators conduct individual break out meetings with

the on-coming Section Chiefs/Coordinators to complete process

8 - 355



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 265 

4.1.4 EOC Action Plan 
 
4.1.4.1 EOC ACTION PLAN TEMPLATE 
 
OVERVIEW:  

Event Name: 

Operational Period: 

Jurisdiction: 

Date Prepared: 

Time Prepared: 
 
MAP SKETCH:  

 

Prepared By: 

Approved By: 

8 - 356



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 266 

SUMMARY OF PRIORITIES, OBJECTIVES AND ACTIONS 

Overall Event Priorities 

Management Section Objectives 

Operations Section Objectives 

8 - 357



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 267 

Planning Section Objectives 

Logistics Section Objectives 

Finance/ Administration Section Objectives 

8 - 358



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 268 

Organizational Chart:  

 

8 - 359



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 269 

Weather Impacts on Operations: 

 

 

Weather Forecast 5-Day 

 

Weather Maps: 

    
 

Additional Attachments 

Click here to enter text. 

 

 

 

 

8 - 360



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 270 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

8 - 361



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 271 

4.1.4.1 EOC Action Plan [Example] 
 

 

OVERVIEW:  

Event Name: Earthquake  

Operational Period: 1 

Jurisdiction: Hazard City 

Date Prepared: mm/dd/yyyy 

Time Prepared: 9:00am 
 
MAP SKETCH:  

 

Prepared By: First Last, Planning Section Chief 

Approved By: First Last, EOC Director 

8 - 362



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 272 

SUMMARY OF PRIORITIES, OBJECTIVES AND ACTIONS 

Overall Event Priorities 

1. Life safety 
2. Incident stabilization 
3. Preservation of the Environment/Property  
4. Damage Assessments 

 

Management Section Objectives 

1. In the next hour proclaim a Local Emergency  
2. In the next hour issue a mass notification message with basic direction to affected residents 
reminding them of jurisdictional earthquake protocol 
4. In the next 2 hours brief jurisdictional leadership on status of situation 
5. In the next 6 hours set-up a call center and form a joint information center with larger 
jurisdiction 

 

Operations Section Objectives 

6. In the next 6 hours access main roads in jurisdiction to determine if they are safe and passable 
for first responder vehicles 
8. In the next 24 hours identify at least safe locations for displaced residents and set-up 1 shelter 
locations 
9. In the next 24 hours assess and tag priority 1 pre-identified buildings in jurisdiction 
11. In the next 24 hours, assess debris conditions and develop a removal plan 

 

 

 

 

8 - 363



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 273 

Planning Section Objectives 

7. In the next 12 hours complete 1 planning cycle and distribute EOC action plan

Logistics Section Objectives 

10. In the next 24 hours, identify needs and work on requesting/procuring and providing
preliminary life sustaining commodities for citizens

Finance/ Administration Section Objectives 

3. In the next hour set-up incident project code to begin tracking cost associated with incident

8 - 364



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 274 

Organizational Chart:  

 

8 - 365



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 275 

Weather Impacts on Operations: 

None are forecasted. 

 

Weather Forecast 5-Day 

 

Weather Maps: 

    

Additional Attachments 

None. 

 

8 - 366



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 276 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

8 - 367



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 277 

4.1.5 EOC Forms 
 
The table below list all available EOC forms.  

Note that these forms can be accessed in two ways: through hard copies in the EOC 
and Alternate EOC; and by clicking on the file names in the electronic version of this 
plan. 

 # Name Form 

1.  FORM_EOC 201_Incident Briefing FORM_EOC 
201_Incident Briefing 

2.  FORM_EOC 202_Incident Objectives FORM_EOC 
202_Incident Objecti 

3.  FORM_EOC 205A_Communication List FORM_EOC 
205A_Communicatio   

4.  FORM_EOC 207_Organization Chart FORM_EOC 
207_Organization Ch 

5.  FORM_EOC 208_Safety Message FORM_EOC 
208_Safety Message. 

6.  FORM_EOC 209_Incident Status Summary FORM_EOC 
209_Incident Status  

7.  FORM_EOC 210_Resource Status Change FORM_EOC 
210_Resource Status  

8.  FORM_EOC 211_Check-In FORM_EOC 
211_Check-In.docx  

9.  FORM_EOC 213_Resource Request FORM_EOC 
213_Resource Reque 

10.  FORM_EOC 214_Activity Log FORM_EOC 
214_Activity Log.doc 

8 - 368



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 278 

 # Name Form 

11.  FORM_EOC 215_Resource Planning Worksheet FORM_EOC 
215_Resource Planni   

12.  FORM_EOC 215A_Safety Analysis FORM_EOC 
215A_Safety Analysis 

13.  FORM_EOC 226_Individual Performance Rating FORM_EOC 
226_Individual Perfo   

14.  FORM_EOC 227_Claims Log FORM_EOC 
227_Claims Log.docx 

15.  FORM_EOC 230_Daily Meeting Schedule FORM_EOC 
230_Daily Meeting S 

16.  FORM_F&A_Cost Worksheet FORM_F&A_Cost 
Worksheet.docx  

17.  FORM_F&A_Initial Damage Estimate FORM_F&A_Initial 
Damage Estimate.do 

18.  CalEOC IDE  CalEOC IDE.pdf

 

19.  FORM_LOGS_DSWV Registration 2013 FORM_LOGS_DSWV 
Registration 2013.do 

20.  FORM_LOGS_Resource Request FORM_LOGS_Resou
rce Request.docx  

21.  FORM_LOGS_Resource Tracking FORM_LOGS_Resou
rce Tracking.xlsx  

22.  FORM_MGT Media Briefing Schedule FORM_MGT Media 
Briefing Schedule.do 

8 - 369



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 279 

 # Name Form 

23. FORM_MGT_Disaster Assistance Directory FORM_MGT_Disast
er Assistance Directo 

24. FORM_MGT_Media Call FORM_MGT_Media 
Call.docx

25. FORM_MGT_Press Release FORM_MGT_Press 
Release.docx

26. FORM_MGT_Proclamation Resolutions FORM_MGT_Procla
marion Resolutions. 

27. FORM_MGT_Public Call FORM_MGT_Public 
Call.docx

28. FORM_OPS_Fire Deployed Resources FORM_OPS_Fire 
Deployed Resources 

29. FORM_OPS_Windshield Survey FORM_OPS_Winds
hield Survey.docx

4.1.6 EOC Reports 

The table below list all available EOC Report Templates. 

Note that these Report Templates can be accessed in two ways: through hard copies in 
the EOC and Alternate EOC; and by clicking on the file names in the electronic version 
of this plan. 

# Name Report Template 

1. REPORT_OPS_Agricultural Status REPORT_OPS_Agric
ultural Status.docx

2. REPORT_OPS_Communication Status REPORT_OPS_Com
munication Status.d 

8 - 370



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 280 

# Name Report Template 

3.  REPORT_OPS_Energy Status REPORT_OPS_Energ
y Status.docx  

4.  REPORT_OPS_Firefighting Status REPORT_OPS_Firefi
ghting Status.docx  

5.  REPORT_OPS_Hazmat Status REPORT_OPS_Hazm
at Status.docx  

6.  REPORT_OPS_Mass Care Status REPORT_OPS_Mass 
Care Status.docx  

7.  REPORT_OPS_Public Safety Status REPORT_OPS_Publi
c Safety Status.docx  

8.  REPORT_OPS_Public Works Status REPORT_OPS_Publi
c Works Status.docx 

9.  REPORT_OPS_Search&Rescue REPORT_OPS_Searc
h&Rescue.docx  

10.  REPORT_OPS_Transportation Status REPORT_OPS_Trans
portation Status.doc 

11.  REPORT_OPS_Utility Status REPORT_OPS_Utility 
Status.docx  

12.  REPORT_P&I_Local Government After Action REPORT_P&I_Local 
Government After Ac 

13.  REPORT_P&I_Situation Status REPORT_P&I_Situati
on Status.docx  

 

 

 

8 - 371



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 281 

4.1.7 EOC Plans 
 
The table below list all available EOC Plan Templates.  

Note that these Plan Templates can be accessed in two ways: through hard copies in 
the EOC and Alternate EOC; and by clicking on the file names in the electronic version 
of this plan. 

# Name Plan Template 

1.  PLAN_P&I_Advance PLAN_P&I_Advance.
docx  

2.  PLAN_P&I_Demobilization PLAN_P&I_Demobili
zation.docx  

3.  PLAN_P&I_EOC Action PLAN_P&I_EOC 
Action.docx  

 

4.1.8 EOC Guides 
 
The table below list all available EOC Guides.  

Note that these Guides can be accessed in two ways: through hard copies in the EOC 
and Alternate EOC; and by clicking on the file names in the electronic version of this 
plan. 

# Name Guides 

1.  GUIDE_F&A_PA Damage Categories GUIDE_F&A_PA 
Damage Categories. 

2.  GUIDE_MGT_77 Most Asked Questions in an 
Emergency GUIDE_MGT_77 

Most Asked Questio     

3.  GUIDE_MGT_Emergency Alert System (EAS) GUIDE_MGT_Emerg
ency Alert System (EA 

4.  GUIDE_MGT_EPI-JIC SOP GUIDE_MGT_EPI-JIC 
SOP.docx  

8 - 372



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 282 

5. GUIDE_MGT_Legal Authorities GUIDE_MGT_Legal 
Authorities.docx

6. GUIDE_MGT_Recovery Plan_Project Management GUIDE_MGT_Recov
ery Plan_Project Man 

7. GUIDE_P&I_EOC Org Chart GUIDE_P&I_EOC 
Org Chart.docx

8. GUIDE_P&I_Planning P GUIDE_P&I_Plannin
g P.docx

8 - 373



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 283 

5 Appendix A - Resources 

Category Kind Function Specifications Quantity Owner Location 

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

 

 

  

8 - 374



 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 284 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

8 - 375



EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN, PART 2 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CA 285 

6 Appendix B - Contact List 

Person or 
Location Name 

Title or 
Function Phone Number Email Other 

8 - 376



ATTACHMENT 4 
Earthquake Annex 

8 - 377



 
THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 
LEFT BLANK 

8 - 378



City of South Pasadena 
Emergency Operations Plan 

EARTHQUAKE ANNEX 
June 2022 

Approved:____________________Title:__________________Date:_____________ 

8 - 379



 

FOREWORD 

The Southern California area sits on some of the most unstable ground in the country. 
Some 10 million people work and live above the 200+ known earthquake faults throughout 
the Region.  Earthquake faults are a result of tectonic plates pushing together, 6 to 15 
miles beneath the earth’s surface.  The movement between the North American Plate 
and the Pacific Plate pushes Los Angeles County north, about 1 ¾ inches per year.  Los 
Angeles County is 3 meters (10 ft) closer to San Francisco today than it was in 1924. 
 
Southern California experiences more than 200,000 earthquakes every decade.  
Fortunately, most are too small to be felt.  Notable exceptions are the Sylmar earthquake, 
February 9, 1971; the Whittier earthquake, October 1, 1987; and the Northridge 
earthquake, January 17, 1994.  Seismologists predict an 80 to 90% probability, of a 
magnitude 7+ earthquake in Los Angeles, before 2024.  Because of those predictions, 
South Pasadena remains on constant alert to seismic activity. 
 
When a “major earthquake” strikes the City of South Pasadena, the entire City will 
experience significant impact but it is unlikely that the entire City will be totally devastated.  
There will be pockets of damage with lesser amounts of damage, over a wide area.  The 
infrastructure will sustain substantial damage including structure collapse and the 
interruption of transportation routes, utilities, and communications.  The City’s Public 
Safety Departments may respond to numerous fires, persons trapped in collapsed 
structures, hazardous materials releases, traffic collisions, and a variety of medical 
emergencies. 
 
The City of South Pasadena Earthquake Annex has been developed, to be a guide, for 
Earthquake Emergency Operations.

8 - 380



Earthquake Annex | 2 
6/22 

 

CONTENTS 

FOREWORD ................................................................................................................................................... 1 

CONTENTS ..................................................................................................................................................... 2 

MANAGEMENT AND ORGANIZATION ............................................................................................... 3 

INCIDENT COMMAND SYSTEM ....................................................................................................... 3 

CITY EMERGENCY OPERATIONS ORGANIZATION .............................................................. 3 

DEPARTMENT HEAD POSITION CHECKLIST ........................................................................... 3 

AREA COMMAND .................................................................................................................................... 4 

PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENTS INITIAL PRIORITIES ....................................................... 5 

RECONNAISSANCE OF THE CITY ................................................................................................. 5 

OPENING OF THE EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER (EOC) ................................... 5 

SOUTH PASADENA POLICE DEPARTMENT (SPPD) AND VERDUGO FIRE 
COMMUNICATIONS CENTER (VFCC) OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES ........................ 6 

RESPONSE IF VFCC IS NON-OPERATIONAL ........................................................................... 6 

DISASTER MODE .................................................................................................................................... 7 

AREA COMMANDER POSITION CHECKLIST ............................................................................ 7 

ZONE COMMAND POSITION CHECKLIST .................................................................................. 8 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER ACTIVATION MATRIX .......................................... 9 

EARTHQUAKE OPERATIONS ............................................................................................................. 10 

EMERGENCY MODE (EEM) ............................................................................................................ 10 

 
  

8 - 381



Earthquake Annex | 3 
6/22 

MANAGEMENT AND ORGANIZATION 

Unlike most other large emergency incidents that may impact South Pasadena, a major 
earthquake has the potential to impact the entire City at one time.  Therefore, the 
command structure in the City may be more complex, and involve more levels than most 
other incidents.  For any earthquake causing significant damage within the City of South 
Pasadena, the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) may be activated, and field 
operations may be controlled under an Area Command structure.  All operations will be 
conducted under standard Incident Command System principles. 

INCIDENT COMMAND SYSTEM 

Incident Command will be handled by a Unified Command.  Unified Command is a team 
effort process that allows all agencies, with political, geographical, or functional 
responsibility for an incident, to establish a common set of incident objectives and 
strategies, that all can agree upon.  Command may be unified for geographic or political 
reasons. 

CITY EMERGENCY OPERATIONS ORGANIZATION 

During a local emergency, the City Manager is the Director of the Emergency Services 
(Municipal Code Sect. 11).  As Director, the City Manager is authorized to promulgate, 
issue and enforce rules, regulations, orders, and directives that he/she considers 
necessary for the protection of life and property.  The City Manager exercises full authority 
over operations of the various City Departments. 

DEPARTMENT HEAD POSITION CHECKLIST 

 Check-in upon arrival at the EOC.
 Obtain a briefing on the situation.
 Determine your personal operating location and set up as necessary.
 Clarify any issues regarding your authority and assignment and what others in the

organization do.
 Participate, as member of Emergency Operations Center general staff.
 Provide effective oversight and management of all department operations.
 Ensure that field command personnel have a clear understanding of department

policies, expectations, limitations, and priorities.
 Evaluate the need for, and request mutual aid resources.
 Resolve conflicts concerning overall response priorities, strategies, and/or

resource use.  Work with staff to establish priority use for scarce resources.
 Work with information officer to develop media strategy.

8 - 382



Earthquake Annex | 4 
6/22 

 

AREA COMMAND 

Area Command is an incident command tool, primarily designed to assist in managing a 
very large incident or portions thereof, where multiple incident management teams are 
assigned.  Area Command is responsible for the overall direction of multiple incident 
command teams.  This includes insuring that conflicts are resolved, incident objectives 
are established, and strategies are selected for the use of critical resources.  It may be 
pre-established for “predicted earthquakes,” it may be established spontaneously 
following an earthquake.  When Area Command is established, Incident Commanders, 
for the incidents under its authority, will report to the Area Commander.  For incidents 
under its authority, Area Command has the responsibility to: 
 

• Set overall incident related priorities. 
• Allocate critical resources, based on priorities. 
• Ensure that incidents are properly managed. 
• Ensure that incident(s) objectives are met and do not conflict with each other or 

with City policy. 
 

The Unified Area Command organization in our City initially will normally consist 
of the South Pasadena Fire Department (SPFD) Battalion 9 Chief and the South 
Pasadena Police Department (SPPD) Watch Commander.  Unified Area Command 
will be established simultaneous with the City-wide drive through windshield 
survey by SPFD and SPPD units. 
 
Major events such as earthquakes, floods, civil disturbances, multiple wildland fires, or 
terrorist activity may create a large number of incidents.  Due to their size and potential 
impact, these events provide an appropriate environment for the possible use of Area 
Command.   
 
As with any element of Incident Command System (ICS), the use of Area Command is 
incident driven and will be implemented to meet the span of control needs of a dynamic 
event.  Area Command may also be pre-designated for significant situations such as 
earthquake or anticipated civil disturbance.  It may be implemented City-wide or any other 
selected geographic area. 
 
In areas of concentrated damage or large numbers of incidents, the area command may 
be divided further into Zones as previously described.  Each Zone Commander reports to 
the Area Commander. 
 
In the City of South Pasadena, Area or Zone Commands are normally established in three 
predesignated areas: 
 
Area/ Zone 1 – North of Mission Street 

8 - 383



Earthquake Annex | 5 
6/22 

 

Area/ Zone 2 – South of Mission Street, West of Meridian Avenue 
Area/ Zone 3 – South of Mission Street, East of Meridian Avenue 

PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENTS INITIAL PRIORITIES 

• During an earthquake all public safety shall seek shelter for personal protection 
using the “duck, cover, and hold on” method. 

• Once shaking has stopped, all response vehicles shall be removed from their 
designated area to their earthquake safe area. 

• City infrastructure of fire station, city hall, and public works shall be assessed by 
Fire Department personnel.  The Police Station shall be assessed by the Police 
Department. 

• Fire and Police personnel assessing the infrastructure shall check with the 
Department Head or supervisors for individual department accountability of 
personnel.   

• Fire and Police personnel shall report status of facilities to their respective Unified 
Area Commander. 

RECONNAISSANCE OF THE CITY 

• After the City Hall complex has been assessed, E81, RA 81, and SPPD Patrol 
Units should conduct a reconnaissance of the City using the pre-designated 
reconnaissance routes and information sheets.  A code-3, emergency lights and 
siren, survey is to be conducted unless otherwise instructed by the Unified Area 
Command.   

• Only significant findings are to be reported to the Unified Area Command.  It is 
imperative to complete a thorough survey of the City.  However, this should not 
eliminate the opportunity for immediate action if necessary to save a life or keep a 
fire from spreading.  Fire and Police personnel recognizing the need to take 
immediate action shall communicate the circumstances to the Unified Area 
Commanders. 

• Fire and Police units shall return to the Unified Area Command Post when their 
respective reconnaissance is complete and provide documentation of the status of 
structures, transportation route, or infrastructure damage. 

• The Unified Area Command will inform Verdugo; the Chief of Police and Fire Chief 
using the Earthquake Visual Intensity Scale (EVIS), and status of public safety 
resources in the City. 

OPENING OF THE EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER (EOC) 

• In the absence of the Fire Chief, or the Police Chief, the Unified Area Commanders 
will be responsible for opening the EOC if necessary.  If the Unified Area 
Commanders are unavailable, the on-duty Fire Captain or Watch Commander will 
open the EOC as time permits. 

8 - 384



Earthquake Annex | 6 
6/22 

• The “ACTIVATION STEPS” binder located in the EOC that should be used as a
guide for personnel opening the EOC.

SOUTH PASADENA POLICE DEPARTMENT (SPPD) AND VERDUGO FIRE 
COMMUNICATIONS CENTER (VFCC) OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES 

When VFCC and the SPPD dispatch are fully operational, calls for service will be sent to 
the Unified Area Commanders (UAC, BC9 and WC) to prioritize, dispatch and track 
resources.  However, the Unified Area Commanders may, at any time, based on the 
complexity, severity, and number of incidents occurring within a specific geographic area, 
create a Zone Command using the above pre-determined areas or designate their own 
impact areas to ensure an appropriate span of control.  That decision will be incident 
driven. 

The Battalion 9 Command Vehicle is set up to become the UAC with additional radios, 
and cellphones.  If available, the front of San Marino Fire Station apron (driveway) is the 
primary safe area for the Fire Department, and should serve as a primary location for a 
Unified Area Command Post.  In this scenario Battalion 9 Chief Officer will need to 
communicate with SPPD via radio. If Battalion 9 is not in quarters at Fire Station 91, the 
safe area front apron at Fire Station 81 may also serve as the Unified Area Command 
Post, Battalion 9 Chief Officer will need to operate with the SMPD via radio. 

If there is a low volume of emergency incidents following an earthquake and no 
observable damage, SPPD and VFCC will return to normal dispatching.  SPFD and SPPD 
may resume normal operations, and in this scenario VFCC remains fully operational and 
retains control of field resources, Area Commanders will not be dispatching or tracking 
resources.   

If the earthquake intensity or damage is observed, SPPD Dispatch, VFCC and the Area 
Commanders will attempt to make a smooth transition of calls for service to the Unified 
Area Command.  Information from the VFCC will be transmitted electronically to the ACP 
(Area Command Post).  SPPD Dispatch will transmit calls for service via radio or runner.  
The ACP will then prioritize, assign resources, track, and dispose of the incident, as 
appropriate. 

RESPONSE IF VFCC IS NON-OPERATIONAL 

If VFCC is non-operational, the UAC becomes the basis of the organization.  The UAC 
will function as an independent operational system, within the City of South Pasadena.  
The UAC will provide coordination and control of activities within that area. Calls for 
service will be transmitted from SPPD Dispatch directly to the UAC by radio, cell phone 
or runner.  

Commented [DM1]: Verify station #

Commented [EZ2R1]: This is correct. So Pas is 81. San
Marino is 91 

8 - 385



Earthquake Annex | 7 
6/22 

The UAC will assume Unit status-keeping and dispatch responsibilities within the City. 
Incidents that are reported during the district survey (“Still alarms”) will be identified by 
sequential incident numbers starting with the number “1”(one).  The UAC will be 
responsible for assigning incident numbers to all incidents identified in the field. 

The UAC will report to the City of South Pasadena Emergency Operations Center, if and 
when it is established.  The UAC will normally be established in a safe area in front of Fire 
Station 91. 

DISASTER MODE 

When a citizen calls the Department and requests assistance, the Public Safety 
Departments have a “duty to respond.”  This legal responsibility can be broken by direct 
notification to the caller that “the City of South Pasadena is in the Disaster Mode and will 
not respond to your call, until the situation is known.”  Calls will be cataloged and 
transmitted to the Area Commanders for triage and follow up as resources permit.  
Incident information will be transmitted to the ACP, via electronic or other means.  The 
ACP will then prioritize, assign resources, track, and closure of the incident, as 
appropriate. 

AREA COMMANDER POSITION CHECKLIST 

 Obtain incident briefing.
 Obtain and carry out the delegation of authority, from department command, for

overall management and direction of incidents within the designated area
command.

 Notify Verdugo Fire Communications (VFCC) of Area Command perimeters along
with requesting additional radio channels, resources and staging location(s).

 Establish appropriate location for area command post, usually the safe area apron
for Fire Station 91 or Station 81.

 Determine and implement appropriate area command organization.
 Establish reporting relationships for incident commanders within the designated

area command.
 Determine need for, and request, technical specialists, and cooperating or

assisting agency representatives.
 Obtain incident briefing and incident action plans from incident commanders, as

appropriate.
 Periodically conduct joint meetings with incident commanders, as appropriate

(assess incident situations and review incident objectives and strategies, prior to
strategy meetings).

 Make priority decisions on critical resource needs.
 Maintain close coordination with adjacent jurisdictions.
 Approve incident commanders’ requests for, and release of, critical resources.

8 - 386



Earthquake Annex | 8 
6/22 

 

 Approve demobilization plans. 
 Ensure that all incidents have incident numbers assigned, either by VFCC or by 

area command (see incident numbering). 
 Maintain a log of major actions / decisions. 

ZONE COMMAND POSITION CHECKLIST 

 Conduct apparatus radio check in on Zone Tactical channel (Fire Red 7, or Red 
11 b/u). 

 Assume command of assigned resources. 
 Initiate district drive through and have companies relay damage assessments, 

once completed assign resources based upon greatest need and potential impact. 
 Establish appropriate location for Zone command post. 
 Communicate resource requests and resource availability to Area Command. 
 Develop communications plan within Battalion including available cell phone 

numbers of commanders. 
 Obtain incident briefings and incident action plans from incident commanders, as 

appropriate. 
 Ensure companies begin documentation using ICS 214 forms. 
 Identify logistical needs and coordinate with Area Command. 
 Ensure that all incidents have incident numbers assigned either by VFCC or by 

area command (see incident numbering). 
 Maintain activity log. 

  

8 - 387



Earthquake Annex | 9 
6/22 

 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER ACTIVATION MATRIX 

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA – EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER – ACTIVATION MATRIX 
EVENT EXAMPLES AND 
CHARACTERISTICS 

THREAT 
ASSESSMENT 

CITY 
RESPONSE 
LEVEL 

RESPONSE ACTIONS 

Earthquake Predictions/Advisories – 
Level One 

Severe Weather Advisories 

Minor Localized Incidents Involving 
Two or More Departments 

Generally Short-Term with Four-to-
Twelve Hours of Concern 

  LOW RISK                                                                 LEVEL 
THREE 

Initially activate and brief Level 
Three EOC staff. 

Any staff specifically required by the 
requesting agency or EOC Director. 

 

 

Earthquake Predictions/Advisories – 
Level Two, Three 

Moderate Earthquake Affecting the 
City of South Pasadena 

Major Fire, Wind, or Rain Storm 
Affecting the City of South 
Pasadena 

Two or More Large Incidents 
Involving Two or More Departments 

Longer Term Incident – Two or 
More Shifts  

MEDIUM RISK LEVEL 
TWO 

Activate and brief Level Two EOC 
staff to include all those 
enumerated in Figure 4-5: 

• All EOC Section Coordinators 

• Liaison representatives as 
appropriate 

Any staff specifically required by the 
requesting agency or EOC Director 

 

 

City-wide or Regional Emergency  

Three or More Departments with 
Life Safety Impacts 

Mutual Aid Resources May Not Be 
Available for Twenty-Four Hours or 
More 

Long Duration, Several Days to 
Weeks 

HIGH RISK LEVEL ONE Activate and brief Full Response 
Organization, staff to include those 
enumerated in Figure 4-6. 

Any staff specifically required by the 
EOC Director Operate on twelve 
hour shifts. 

 

 

  

8 - 388



Earthquake Annex | 10 
6/22 

EARTHQUAKE OPERATIONS 

The severity of an earthquake can be expressed in terms of both intensity and magnitude.  
However, the two terms are quite different, and they are often confused.  Intensity is 
based on the observed effects of ground shaking on people, buildings, and natural 
features.  It varies from place to place within the disturbed region depending on the 
location of the observer with respect to the earthquake epicenter.  Magnitude is related 
to the amount of seismic energy released at the hypocenter of the earthquake.  It is based 
on the amplitude of the earthquake waves recorded on instruments.  The magnitude of 
an earthquake is represented by a single, instrumentally determined value. 

Seismic waves are the vibrations from earthquakes that travel through the Earth; they are 
recorded on seismographs.  Seismographs record a zig-zag trace that shows the varying 
amplitude of ground oscillations beneath the instrument.  The time, location, and 
magnitude of an earthquake can be determined from the data recorded by seismograph 
stations.  

The Richter magnitude scale was developed as a mathematical device to compare the 
size of earthquakes.  The magnitude of an earthquake is determined from the logarithm 
of the amplitude of waves recorded by seismographs.  Adjustments are included in the 
magnitude formula to compensate for the variation in the distance between the various 
seismographs and the epicenter of the earthquakes.  On the Richter Scale, magnitude is 
expressed in whole numbers and decimal fractions.  For example, a magnitude of 5.3 
might be computed for a moderate earthquake, and a strong earthquake might be rated 
as magnitude 6.3.  Because of the logarithmic basis of the scale, each whole number 
increase in magnitude represents a tenfold increase in measured amplitude; as an 
estimate of energy, each whole number step in the magnitude scale corresponds to the 
release of about 31 times more energy than the amount associated with the preceding 
whole number value.  

EMERGENCY MODE (EEM) 

The City Public Safety Departments will go into Emergency Mode any time a detectable 
earthquake tremor is felt.  It will remain in that mode until either the Battalion Chief and 
Watch Commander determines otherwise.  The intensity and impact of the event will 
determine the level of response.   

All personnel are responsible for their own preparedness.  During an earthquake, City 
employees shall seek the closest safe refuge and assist others in doing the same.  They 
shall follow their respective Department Emergency Plans and assist fellow workers.   

When VFCC becomes aware that an earthquake was felt, the dispatch center will 
immediately go into the Emergency Mode.  VFCC will notify all VFCC fire stations, and 

8 - 389



Earthquake Annex | 11 
6/22 

 

announce their operational capability.  SPFD and SPPD will immediately vacate quarters 
and respond to their pre-designated “safe location.”  Public Safety resources will operate 
from their pre-designated safe location, pending direction from the Unified Area 
Command.   
 
The Battalion 9 Commander will, as soon as practical, notify the SPPD, that the SPFD is 
in the Emergency Mode.   
 
If the earthquake was felt at their location, or as directed by the Battalion Commander, 
SPFD and SPPD resources will immediately commence a drive-through survey of their 
district.  The drive-through shall be done in the “emergency” mode, unless otherwise 
directed by the Unified Area Command. 
 
Fire Companies and Patrol Units will follow a pre-designated route, paying specific 
attention to buildings with a high potential for life loss.  They will also evaluate the impact 
on the infrastructure, including transportation routes, utilities, bridges, and public services.  
All identified problems should be documented and significant problems shall be reported 
immediately to the UAC. 
 
While it is clear that the best way to get a comprehensive view of the City is through a 
thorough a ground survey, it may be unreasonable to expect ground resources in 
impacted areas to complete their surveys.  The UAC will have to evaluate and prioritize 
incidents, based on the probability of significant injuries or potential for lives saved.  When 
SPPD or SPFD feels compelled to stop at an incident and begin rescue, EMS, or 
suppression operations, the UAC Commanders shall be notified immediately. 
 
The UAC will support the operation to whatever extent possible by requesting additional 
resources through their respective channels.  When this occurs, the UAC then becomes 
responsible for all activities within the areas of the City that have not undergone a 
complete ground survey. 
  
The UAC shall prioritize incidents and dispatch the minimal amount of resources possible.  
If available, additional resources may be sent to more complex incidents, when requested 
by on-scene officers.  Resources may be dispatched in configurations that are most 
appropriate to the incident, this may include individual units, fire companies, Task Forces, 
or Strike Teams. 
 
Strategic priorities shall be: 

• Protecting life 
• Protecting property 
• Protecting the environment 

 

8 - 390



Earthquake Annex | 12 
6/22 

 

All operations should be accomplished in the safest manner possible. 
 
NOTE: This Annex matches the City of San Marino Annex and operations are based on 
the Area Command expectations of Verdugo Fire Communications. 

8 - 391



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

8 - 392



ATTACHMENT 5 
Heat Emergency Annex 

8 - 393



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

8 - 394



 

City of South Pasadena 
Emergency Operations Plan 

 
 
 

       

 
Extreme Heat / Power 

Interruption Annex 
June 2022 

 
 
 
Approved____________________Title:___________________Date:_____________

8 - 395



Extreme Heat / Power Interruption Annex | 2 
06/22 

 

CONTENTS 

Purpose ........................................................................................................................... 3 

Decision Points ............................................................................................................... 4 

Extreme Weather Conditions .......................................................................................... 5 

Objectives ....................................................................................................................... 6 

Contacts .......................................................................................................................... 7 

Level III ............................................................................................................................ 8 

Level 1I ............................................................................................................................ 9 

Level I ............................................................................................................................ 10 

Attachment A – Excessive Heat & Cooling Center Locations ........................................ 11 

Attachment B – Mass Notification Templates ................................................................ 13 

Attachment C – EnERGy Dependent Residents (Confidential) (As of July 2021 none have 
been identified) .............................................................................................................. 14 

 
  

8 - 396



Extreme Heat / Power Interruption Annex | 3 
06/22 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this plan is to guide decision makers during extreme heat conditions or 
when a power shutoff or a rotating outage is impacting South Pasadena. This plan 
identifies resources, actions and critical issues regarding an extreme heat event, including 
monitoring, public information, and cooling centers. This document is intended to be used 
by the City Manager, Police Department, Fire Department, Public Works and Community 
Services once an Excess Heat Warning has been issued by the National Weather Service 
(NWS) or power shutoff or rotating outages are impacting South Pasadena. 

8 - 397



Extreme Heat / Power Interruption Annex | 4 
06/22 

 

DECISION POINTS 

This plan will be activated by any Executive Team member when any one of the following 
occur:  
 
• Heat Advisory issued by the NWS for the Los Angeles/ Oxnard Zone 
• Predicted 100-degree weather in South Pasadena for 3 or more days 
• California Independent Service Operator (CAISO) issues a Stage 3 Electrical 

Emergency or rotating outages during an Excessive Heat event (The CAISO is 
unable to meet minimum contingency reserve requirements, and load interruption is 
imminent or in progress) 

  

8 - 398



Extreme Heat / Power Interruption Annex | 5 
06/22 

 

EXTREME WEATHER CONDITIONS 

Heat Advisory:  A Heat Advisory is issued within 12 hours of the onset of extremely 
dangerous heat conditions.  The National Weather Service (NWS) generally issues an 
advisory when the maximum heat index temperature is expected to be 100 degrees or 
higher for at least two days, and night time air temperatures will not drop below 75 
degrees. 
 
Excessive Heat Watches:  Heat watches are issued when conditions are favorable for 
an excessive heat event in the next 24 to 72 hours.  A Watch is used when the risk of a 
heat wave has increased but its occurrence and timing are still uncertain. 
 
Excessive Heat Warning:  An Excessive Heat Warning is issued within 12 hours of the 
onset of extremely dangerous heat conditions.  In general, the NWS issues a Warning 
when the maximum heat index temperature is expected to be 105 degrees or higher for 
at least 2 days and night time air temperatures will not drop below 75 degrees. 
 

The NWS, Oxnard Office, advisories, warnings and watches are based mainly on Heat 
Index Values.  Heat advisories are issued by county when any location within that 
county is expected to reach criteria.  The Heat Index, sometimes referred to as the 
apparent temperature is given in degrees Fahrenheit.  The Heat Index is a measure of 
how hot it really feels when relative humidity is factored in with the actual air 
temperature.  If NWS forecasters believe conditions will exist for two consecutive days 
in which vulnerable populations may be impacted, they will issue an alert.  A heat 
advisory means that vulnerable populations can be affected by heat if precautions are 
not taken.    

8 - 399



Extreme Heat / Power Interruption Annex | 6 
06/22 

OBJECTIVES 

The overall objectives of the Extreme Heat/Power Interruption Annex are as follows: 

• Establish roles and responsibilities for the individual departments.
• Provide a public notification of the warning through multiple platforms.
• Provide guidance for public safety staffing levels.
• Coordinate the public outreach activities when appropriate.
• Facilitate communication between departments in order to make sure the City of

South Pasadena is prepared.
• Consider utilizing local volunteer organizations such as Neighborhood Watch to

reach-out and assist the elderly and disabled as needed during a prolonged heat
event.

• Consider requesting assistance from the South Pasadena Unified School District
to provide greater access to District swimming pools during a prolonged, or
extreme heat event.

In order to protect life and property, appropriate preparedness and mitigation techniques 
need to take place which is why this document was created.  

Please take the time to familiarize yourself with this plan.  
Any questions, comments, and/or updates regarding this plan can be directed to: 

Fire Chief Paul Riddle 
priddle@southpasadenaca.gov 
(626) 403-7300
-Or-
Division Chief Eric Zanteson
ezanteson@southpasadenaca.gov
(626) 403-7300

8 - 400

mailto:mrueda@smfd.us
mailto:ezanteson@southpasadenaca.gov


Extreme Heat / Power Interruption Annex | 7 
06/22 

 

CONTACTS 

Southern California Edison Public Relations Manager 
Jeanette Soriano 
(626) 221-9311 
 
  

8 - 401



Extreme Heat / Power Interruption Annex | 8 
06/22 

 

LEVEL III 

Decision Point: 

• Heat Advisory or Excessive Heat Watch Issued by the 
National Weather Service for Los Angeles / Oxnard 

• Predicted 100-degree weather in South Pasadena for 2 or 
more days in a row 

Responsible 
Department / Agency Level III – Actions 

Emergency Manager / 
Fire Chief 

� Monitor weather information using the National Weather 
Service data and locally available weather stations. 

� Issue crisis communications on the City’s website and social 
media platforms (Nixle, Facebook, Twitter…). 

� Consider activating a resident Support Hotline. 
SPPD Command Staff � Monitor information received from the Fire Department. 

Community Services 
Staff 

� Consider establishing a Cooling Center at designated City 
operated locations for predicted Heat Advisory events.   

� Consider extended Public Library hours of operation, and 
post flyers for resident information. 

Public Works Staff 

� Send the Emergency Manager / Fire Chief any pertinent 
information from concerning SP Public Works systems 
operation. 

� Monitor information received from the City’s Emergency 
Manager / Fire Chief. 

� Ensure City fuel supplies are sufficient throughout the heat 
advisory and extreme heat conditions. 

City Manager 
� Monitor information received from the Public Safety Chiefs 

and/or SP Public Works. 
� Forward information to City Council as necessary. 

  

8 - 402



Extreme Heat / Power Interruption Annex | 9 
06/22 

LEVEL II 

Decision Point: 

• Excessive Heat Warning Issued by the National Weather
Service for Los Angeles / Oxnard

• Predicted 105-degree weather in South Pasadena for 2 or
more days in a row

Responsible 
Department / Agency Level II – Actions 

Emergency Manager / 
Fire Chief 

� Monitor weather information using the National Weather 
Service data and locally available weather stations. 

� Issue an Excessive Heat Warning Press Release to the local 
news media as well as placing it on the City’s website. 

� Post Excessive Heat information on the Police Department’s 
social media platforms (Nixle, Facebook, Twitter etc.). 

� Post press release and create an event situation status for 
Excessive Heat Warning to Los Angeles County Operational 
Area Response and Recovery System (OARRS). 

� Consider activation of the EOC to Level III for monitoring of 
the event. 

� Consider change to Employee Information Hotline 
messaging. 

� Activate the Resident Support Hotline. 
SPPD Command Staff � Monitor information received from the Fire Department. 

Community Services 
Staff 

� Establish Cooling Centers at the Public Library for the 
predicted Heat Advisory events.   

� Consider extended Public Library hours of operation, and 
post flyers for resident information. 

Public Works Staff 

� Send the Emergency Manager / Fire Chief any pertinent 
information concerning SP Public Works systems operation. 

� Monitor information received from the City’s Emergency 
Manager / Fire Chief. 

� Ensure City fuel supplies are sufficient throughout the 
extreme heat conditions. 

City Manager 
� Monitor information received from the Public Safety Chiefs 

and/or SP Public Works. 
� Forward information to City Council as necessary. 

8 - 403



Extreme Heat / Power Interruption Annex | 10 
06/22 

LEVEL I 

Decision Point: • CAISO issues a Stage 3 Electrical Emergency or rotating
outages.

Responsible 
Department / Agency Level I – Actions 

Emergency Manager / 
Fire Chief 

� Monitor weather information using the National Weather 
Service data and locally available weather stations. 

� Complete necessary items from the Level II Checklist. 
� Consider activating the EOC to support Stage 3 Electrical 

Emergency or rotating outages. 
� Post press release and create an event situation status for 

Power Interruption to OARRS. 
� Consider activating Community Alerting processes such as 

Connect South Pasadena 
� Contact Energy Dependent Residents and assess needs (if 

resources permit) 
� Change Employee Emergency Information Hotline 

messaging. 
� Activate the Resident Support Hotline 

SPPD Command Staff � Monitor information received from the Fire Department. 
� Disseminate to SPPD personnel as necessary. 

Community Services 
Staff � Complete necessary items from the Level II Checklist. 

Public Works Staff 
� Monitor information received from the Fire Department. 
� Ensure City fuel supplies are sufficient throughout the 

extreme heat conditions. 

City Manager 

� Monitor information received from the Public Safety Chiefs 
and/or SP Public Works. 

� Consider EOC activation. 
� Consider Alert and Warning / Public Outreach. 
� Forward information to City Council as necessary. 

8 - 404



Extreme Heat / Power Interruption Annex | 11 
06/22 

 

ATTACHMENT A – EXCESSIVE HEAT & COOLING CENTER 
LOCATIONS 

 
 

DATE 
 

SAMPLE PRESS RELEASE: 
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE PRESS RELEASE # 
(XXX) 
 
Subject:  Excessive Heat Warning & Cooling Center Locations 
Contact: XXXXXXXXX 
 
The National Weather Service has issued an Excessive Heat Warning for the National 
Weather Service, Los Angeles/Oxnard Office effective (Sunday, October 22, 20XX at 6:00 
a.m. through Wednesday, October 25, 20XX at 6:00 p.m.) (A wind advisory has also been 
issued where winds speed between 15-25 mph and gusts of up to 40 mph are possible. 
Temperatures will near or be in excess of 90 degrees.) An elevated sense of awareness 
is imperative during extreme weather conditions.  
 
South Pasadena has Official Cooling Centers:  

South Pasadena Public Library – 1100 Oxley Street 
South Pasadena Senior Center – 1102 Oxley Street 
War Memorial Building – 435 Fair Oaks Ave (backup location) 

 
Cooling Center Hours area as follow: 
 
Prolonged exposure to excessive temperatures may cause serious conditions like heat 
exhaustion or heat stroke which can be fatal. Symptoms of heat exhaustion may include 
heavy sweating, muscle cramps, weakness, headache, nausea or vomiting and 
dizziness. Warning signs of heat stroke may include an extremely high body temperature, 
unconsciousness, confusion, hot and dry skin (no sweating), a rapid, strong pulse, and a 
throbbing headache. If symptoms of heat stroke occur, immediately call for medical 
assistance. Move the person to a shady area and begin cooling their body with water.  
 
Recommended precautions to prevent heat related illnesses include:  

• Drink plenty of water; don’t wait until you are thirsty.  
• Wear light, loose-fitting clothing.  

8 - 405



Extreme Heat / Power Interruption Annex | 12 
06/22 

 

• Stay out of the sun if possible, and when in the sun wear a hat, preferably with a 
wide brim, and use sunscreen.  

• Avoid strenuous activities if you are outside or in non-air-conditioned buildings. If 
you are working outdoors, take frequent rest and refreshment breaks in a shaded 
area.  

• Never leave children, elderly people or pet unattended in closed cars or other 
vehicles.  

• Check on those, like neighbors, who are at high risk to make sure they are staying 
cool – including seniors who live alone, people with heart or lung disease, and 
young children.  

• Stay cool indoors – if your home is not air conditioned, visit public facilities such as 
shopping malls and libraries to stay cool.  

 
 

  

8 - 406



Extreme Heat / Power Interruption Annex | 13 
06/22 

ATTACHMENT B – MASS NOTIFICATION TEMPLATES 

Connect South Pasadena 
This is the City of South Pasadena with an important message on (date & time).  Southern 
California Edison (SCE) may experience power interruption in the City of South Pasadena 
service area.  For questions contact SCE at (800) 611-1911.  

Nixle 
Southern California Edison may experience power interruption in the City of South 
Pasadena.  For further information contact SCE at (800) 611-1911.   

Social Media 
Southern California Edison may experience power interruption in the City of South 
Pasadena. 
For questions contact SCE: (800) 611-1911.  

8 - 407



Extreme Heat / Power Interruption Annex | 14 
06/22 

 

ATTACHMENT C – ENERGY DEPENDENT RESIDENTS 
(CONFIDENTIAL) (AS OF JULY 2021 NONE HAVE BEEN IDENTIFIED) 

The following energy dependent residents will be contacted, if resources permit, in the 
event of a power emergency lasting longer than 2 hours. 
 
Address:   Address:  
Affected 
Residents: 

  Affected 
Residents: 

 

Contact Name:   Contact Name:  
Primary Phone:   Primary Phone:  
Secondary Phone:   Secondary Phone:  
     
     
Address:   Address:  
Affected 
Residents: 

  Affected 
Residents: 

 

Contact Name:   Contact Name:  
Primary Phone:   Primary Phone:  
Secondary Phone:   Secondary Phone:  
     
     
Address:   Address:  
Affected 
Residents: 

  Affected 
Residents: 

 

Contact Name:   Contact Name:  
Primary Phone:   Primary Phone:  
Secondary Phone:   Secondary Phone:  
     
     
Address:   Address:  
Affected 
Residents: 

  Affected 
Residents: 

 

Contact Name:   Contact Name:  
Primary Phone:   Primary Phone:  
Secondary Phone:   Secondary Phone:  
     
     
Address:   Address:  

8 - 408



Extreme Heat / Power Interruption Annex | 15 
06/22 

 

Affected 
Residents: 

  Affected 
Residents: 

 

Contact Name:   Contact Name:  
Primary Phone:   Primary Phone:  
Secondary Phone:   Secondary Phone:  

 

8 - 409



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

8 - 410



9

9 - 1



Public Hearing on Weed Abatement 
February 15, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 
 
The 2023 Los Angeles County Declaration list identified 87 properties in the City that 
require an inspection and or clearance of hazardous vegetation. 
 
Key Performance Indicators and Strategic Plan 
This item is in line with the Fire Department’s Key Performance Indicator to complete 
100% of brush inspections annually, as identified in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget. 
In addition, this item addresses section 3(e) of the Adopted 2021-2026 Strategic Plan, 
which identifies controlling/mitigating hazardous vegetation in the City’s high hazard 
brush area. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact related to this item, outside of staff time and duplication costs. 
Property owners who elect not to abate vegetation hazards are assessed fees through 
the County of Los Angeles for the inspection, abatement, and administration of the 
vegetation management program. 
 
Community Outreach 
On or before February 1, 2023, the County of Los Angeles Agricultural Commissioner’s 
Office sent out annual weed abatement notices to property owners of the properties 
identified in Resolution No.7801 advising them of the Public Hearing. 
 
Commission Review and Recommendation 
This matter was not reviewed by the Public Safety Commission.   
 
Public Noticing  
A Public Hearing Notice was Published January 27, 2023 in the Pasadena Star-News.  
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution No. 7801 
2. Abatement Order, Los Angeles County 
3. 2023 Los Angeles County Declaration List “Exhibit A” 

9 - 2



ATTACHMENT 1 
Resolution No. 7801 

9 - 3



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

9 - 4



9 - 5



9 - 6



9 - 7



9 - 8



9 - 9



9 - 10



9 - 11



9 - 12



9 - 13



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

9 - 14



ATTACHMENT 2 
Abatement Order, Los Angeles County 

9 - 15



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

9 - 16



ABATEMENT ORDER       FEBRUARY 15, 2023 

FOLLOWING THE PUBLIC HEARING HELD FEBRUARY 15, 2023, IN THE 
MATTER OF RESOLUTION TO ABATE NOXIOUS WEEDS, RUBBISH, AND 
REFUSE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, BY MOTION 
ADOPTED AN ORDER DIRECTING THE AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER OF 
WEIGHTS AND MEASURES TO ABATE THE NUISANCE BY HAVING THE 
WEEDS, RUBBISH, AND REFUSE REMOVED. 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA 

BY:       
    _____________________________ 

Jon Primuth, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

BY:    __________________________ 
    Desiree Jimenez, CMC 
    Chief City Clerk 

Date:    _________________________ 

9 - 17



 
THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 
LEFT BLANK 

9 - 18



ATTACHMENT 3 
 2023 Los Angeles County Declaration List “Exhibit A” 

9 - 19



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

9 - 20



9 - 21



9 - 22



9 - 23



9 - 24



9 - 25



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

9 - 26



City Council 
Agenda Report 

DATE: February 15, 2023 

ITEM NO. 

FROM: Armine Chaparyan, City Manager Jl2, �A- C. 

PREPARED BY: John Downs, Interim Finance Director 
Hsiulee Tran, Deputy Finance Director/Controller 
Albert Trinh, Finance Manager 

SUBJECT: Presentation of the Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 
Actuarial Study by Foster & Foster 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the City Council receive and file the presentation of the Other 
Post-Employment Benefits Liability Actuarial Study by Foster & Foster. 

Background 
Foster and Foster, formerly part of Bartel Associates, LLC, has been secured to perform 
an actuarial valuation of the City's OPES Liability for the purpose of compliance to the 
Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASS) 75 Pronouncement in preparation for 
the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). 

Analysis 
The City's OPES Liability is determined by an actuary such as Foster and Foster. They 
take into consideration of the retired and active employees, the City's contractual 
obligation for each bargaining unit, the City's contribution toward Section 115 Irrevocable 
Trust, and the extensive statistical data utilized to forecast life expectancy and financial 
outcomes. 

Key Performance Indicators and Strategic Plan 
This item is in line with the Finance Department's Key Performance Indicator. The 
OPEB Actuarial Study ensures the recording of the OPEB liability for the City's Fiscal 
Year 2021-22 ACFR. 

Fiscal Impact 
The OPEB actuarial study has been budgeted for in 101-3010-3041-8170-000 for 
$23,000. 

Commission Review and Recommendation 
The Finance Commission received and filed the presentation on February 6, 2023. 

10

10 - 1



Presentation of the Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Actuarial Study by Foster 
& Foster 
February 15, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 

Attachment: 
1. OPEB Actuarial Valuation
2. OPEB Accounting Information

10 - 2



 ATTACHMENT 1 
OPEB Actuarial Valuation 

 

10 - 3



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

10 - 4



City of South Pasadena 

Retiree Healthcare Plan  
June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation 
Recommended Contributions for 2022/23 & 
2023/24 

January 23, 2023 

Foster & Foster, Inc. 
411 Borel Avenue, Suite 620 
San Mateo, California 94402 
Phone:  650/377-1600 

10 - 5



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
b:\ca-public\city_of_south_pasadena\2021_val\report\f&f_southpasadenaci_23-01-23_opeb_21-06-30_valuation_report_draft.docx

10 - 6



City of South Pasadena 
Retiree Healthcare Plan 

June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation 

The purpose of this report is to present the funded status of the City of South Pasadena’s Retiree 
Healthcare Plan as of June 30, 2021 and provide recommended employer contributions for the 
2022/23 and 2023/24 fiscal years. 

The City provides healthcare benefits to its retirees through CalPERS “PEMHCA” program. The City 
contributes the single premium up to a cap of $625 per month ($915 for management). PSEA and 
management employees hired after 7/1/20 will be limited to each year’s required PEMHCA minimum 
amount, $151 in 2023.  More details can be found in the benefit summary section of this report. In 
addition, the City incurs an “implicit subsidy” since the per capita healthcare costs (expected claims) are 
higher for pre-Medicare retirees than the premium charged by PEMHCA.  Actuarial Standard of 
Practice No. 6 (ASOP 6) requires implicit subsidy be valued for agencies participating in pooled plans 
such as CalPERS’ PEMHCA. 

The City started pre-funding its OPEB benefits with CalPERS’ OPEB trust (CERBT) in the fiscal year 
2021/22. This valuation assumes ongoing contributions to the trust. Contributions less than the 
recommended amounts could potentially lead to a lower discount rate used for the City’s GASBS 75 
accounting reporting. 

GASBS 75 accounting information is provided in a separate report. 

VALUATION RESULTS 

Funded Status:  The funded status of the plan is equal to the percentage of actuarial accrued liability 
(AAL) currently funded by plan assets.  The following table summarizes the Plan’s funded status: 

June 30, 2021 Valuation 
Projected to 

 6/30/2021 6/30/2022 

 Discount rate 6.25%

 Actuarial accrued liability

 Future retirees $  3,168,409 

 Retirees   8,169,926 

 Total 11,338,335 $11,660,092 

 Plan assets - 1,141,509

 Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 11,338,335 10,518,583 

 Funded status 0.0% 9.8%

The actuarial accrued liability has decreased from the previous valuation primarily because of the 
higher discount rate used, reflecting the City’s decision to pre-fund this liability. The plan change 
effective 7/1/20, limiting benefits to the single premium amount, also reduced plan liabilities. 

10 - 7



City of South Pasadena, Retiree Healthcare Plan 
June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation 
Page 2  

Plan Assets: Plan assets are invested with the CERBT Strategy 1.  Following is a reconciliation of the 
value of plan assets from June 30, 2021 through June 30, 2022, as provided by CERBT. 

2021/22 

■ Market value of Assets (beginning of year) $ 0 

● Contributions 1,125,000 

● Benefits paid - 

● Administrative expenses (20) 

● Investment expenses (15) 

● Net investment earnings      16,544 

■ Market value of assets (end of year) 1,141,509 

Recommended Contribution: The unfunded liability is amortized over time.  The City’s 
recommended contribution is determined by the sum of the current employer Normal Cost plus 
expected administrative expenses plus an amortization of the unfunded liability, assumed payable in 
the middle of the fiscal year.  In other words, the contribution is the value of benefits earned during the 
year plus an amount to keep the plan on track for funding.  For the City’s June 30, 2021 valuation, we 
calculated the 2022/23 recommended contribution using a 20-year1 closed period amortization (as a 
level % of pay) of the projected June 30, 2022 unfunded AAL.  

June 30, 2021 Valuation 

 Discount rate 6.25% 

 Fiscal year  2022/23 2023/24 

 Normal cost $   323,537 $   332,435 

 Estimated administrative expenses 7,205 7,581 

 UAAL amortization    731,507    751,624 

 Recommended total contribution 1,062,249 1,091,640 

 Recommended total contribution 1,062,249 1,091,640 

 Minus: Estimated cash benefit payments2  (571,321) (608,813)

 Minus: Implicit subsidy benefit payments  (186,405) (196,776)

 Minus: Estimated PEMHCA and other administrative expenses      (6,634)      (6,975) 

 Net recommended trust contribution 297,889 279,076 

1  20 years remaining in amortization period for 2022/23; 19 years remaining for 2023/24. 
2  Exhibit shows estimated cash benefit payments, but the actual net trust contribution should be based on the 

actual benefit payments and administrative expenses paid by the employer. 

10 - 8



City of South Pasadena, Retiree Healthcare Plan 
June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation 
Page 3  

Projected Benefit Payments: Following is a 10-year projection of benefit payments: 

Year 

Cash 
Benefit 

Payments 

Implicit 
Subsidy 
 Benefit 

Payments 

Total 
Benefit 

Payments 
2022/23  $571,321 $186,405 $757,726 
2023/24  608,813 196,776 805,589 
2024/25  630,429 207,536 837,965 
2025/26  660,164 236,873 897,037 
2026/27  672,715 243,490 916,205 
2027/28  691,972 250,231 942,203 
2028/29  702,991 265,810 968,801 
2029/30  725,414 284,222 1,009,636 
2030/31  739,310 275,490 1,014,800 
2031/32  758,182 261,531 1,019,713 

10 - 9



City of South Pasadena, Retiree Healthcare Plan 
June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation 
Page 4  

BASIC DEFINITIONS 

Present Value of Benefits (PVB):  When an actuary prepares an actuarial valuation, they first gather 
participant data (including active employees, former employees not in payment status, participants and 
beneficiaries in payment status) at the valuation date (for example June 30, 2021).  Using this data and 
actuarial assumptions, the actuary projects future benefit payments.  (The assumptions predict, among 
other things, when people will retire, terminate, die or become disabled, as well as what salary 
increases, general (and healthcare) inflation and investment return might be.)  Those future benefit 
payments are discounted, using expected future investment return, back to the valuation date.  This 
discounted present value is the plan's present value of benefits.  It represents the amount the plan needs 
as of the valuation date to pay all future benefits – if all assumptions are met and no future 
contributions (employee or employer) are made.  The City’s June 30, 2021 retiree healthcare present 
value of benefits is $14,191,473 using a 6.25% discount rate, with $8,169,926 of this for former 
employees who have already retired.   

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL):  This represents the portion of the present value of benefits that 
participants have earned (on an actuarial, not actual, basis) through the valuation date.  The City’s  
June 30, 2021 retiree healthcare actuarial accrued liability is $11,338,335 using a 6.25% discount rate, 
with $8,169,926 of this for former employees who have already retired.  

Plan Assets:  This includes funds that have been segregated and restricted in a trust so they can only 
be used to pay plan benefits.  As of June 30, 2021, the City’s plan assets were $0. The City has begun 
prefunding its OPEB benefits via the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) fund. The 
City made an initial contribution of $1,125,000 in June 2022 and has enrolled in CERBT Strategy 1. 

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL):  This is the difference between the actuarial 
accrued liability and plan assets.  This represents the amount of the actuarial accrued liability that must 
still be funded.  If the plan assets exceed the actuarial accrued liability, the plan has surplus assets.  As 
of June 30, 2021, the City has $11,338,335 in unfunded actuarial accrued liability ($11,338,335 AAL 
less $0 plan assets). 

Normal Cost (NC):  The Normal Cost represents the portion of the present value of benefits expected 
to be earned (on an actuarial, not actual, basis) in the coming year.  The City’s 2022/23 retiree 
healthcare Normal Cost, payable in the middle of the year, is $323,537 using a 6.25% discount rate. 

Actuarial Cost Method:  This is the method in which benefits are actuarially earned (allocated) to 
each year of service.  It has no effect on the present value of benefits, but has significant effect on the 
actuarial accrued liability and normal cost.  The City’s June 30, 2021 retiree healthcare valuation was 
prepared using the Entry Age Normal cost method.  Under the Entry Age Normal cost method, the 
Plan’s normal cost is developed as a level percent of payroll throughout the participant’s working 
lifetime. 

Implicit Subsidy:  An implicit subsidy exists when the premium for a group of early retirees is 
determined by aggregating their experience with active employees. Actuarial Standard of Practice 
No. 6 (ASOP 6) requires that the implicit subsidy for retirees be included in the AAL.  We valued the 
implicit subsidy for the City’s retiree healthcare plan.   

10 - 10



City of South Pasadena, Retiree Healthcare Plan 
June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation 
Page 5  

SUMMARY OF RETIREE HEALTHCARE BENEFITS 

Benefit Summary 

 Eligibility – Future
Retirees

 Full-time employees retiring directly from City under CalPERS
 Miscellaneous Classic & Safety – Age 50 and 5 years of

CalPERS service or disability

 Miscellaneous PEPRA – Age 52 and 5 years of CalPERS
service or disability

 Retiree Medical
Benefit – Future
Retirees

 Single party premium up to:

POA & Fire PSEA Management 

Hired before 
7/1/2020 

$625/month 

$625/month $915/month 

Hired on or 
after 7/1/2020 

PEMHCA 
minimum 

PEMHCA 
minimum 

 Surviving Spouse  Single party premium up to:

POA & Fire PSEA Management 

Surviving 
Spouse 

$625/month 
PEMHCA 
minimum 

PEMHCA 
minimum 

 Other  No City paid dental, vision, life insurance or Medicare Part B
reimbursement

10 - 11



City of South Pasadena, Retiree Healthcare Plan 
June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation 
Page 6  

Premiums 

2021 PEMHCA Monthly Premiums 

Region 3  

Medical Plan 

Non-Medicare Eligible Medicare Eligible 

Single 2-Party Family Single 2-Party Family 

Anthem Select $639.10 $1,278.20 $1,661.66 $383.37 $766.74 $1,150.11 

Anthem Traditional 984.21 1,968.42 2,558.95 383.37 766.74 1,150.11 

Blue Shield Access+ 834.88 1,669.76 2,170.69 n/a n/a n/a 

Blue Shield Trio 660.49 1,320.98 1,717.27 n/a n/a n/a 

Health Net Salud y Mas 412.88 825.76 1,073.49 n/a n/a n/a 

Health Net SmartCare 691.48 1,382.96 1,797.85 n/a n/a n/a 

Kaiser 669.84 1,339.69 1,741.60 324.48 648.96 973.44 

UnitedHealthcare 720.89 1,441.78 1,874.31 311.56 623.12 934.68 

PERSCare 1,036.07 2,072.14 2,693.78 381.25 762.50 1,143.75 

PERS Choice 761.23 1,522.46 1,979.20 349.97 699.94 1,049.91 

PERS Select 459.94 919.88 1,195.84 349.97 699.94 1,049.91 

PORAC 725.00 1,450.00 1,894.00 513.00 1,022.00 1,635.00 

2022 PEMHCA Monthly Premiums 

Region 3  

Medical Plan 

Non-Medicare Eligible Medicare Eligible 

Single 2-Party Family Single 2-Party Family 

Anthem Select $676.48 $1,352.96 $1,758.85 $360.19 $720.38 $1,080.57 

Anthem Traditional 935.57 1,871.14 2,432.48 360.19 720.38 1,080.57 

Blue Shield Access+ 779.87 1,559.74 2,027.66 353.11 706.22 1,059.33 

Blue Shield Trio 668.13 1,336.26 1,737.14 353.11 706.22 1,059.33 

Health Net Salud y Mas 463.87 927.74 1,206.06 n/a n/a n/a 

Health Net SmartCare 764.96 1,529.92 1,988.90 n/a n/a n/a 

Kaiser 719.78 1,439.56 1,871.43 302.53 605.06 907.59 

UnitedHealthcare Alliance 771.85 1,543.70 2,006.81 n/a n/a n/a 

UnitedHealthcare Harmony 714.28 1,428.56 1,857.13 n/a n/a n/a 

UnitedHealthcare MA n/a n/a n/a 294.65 589.30 883.95 

UnitedHealthcare MA Edge n/a n/a n/a 347.21 694.42 1,041.63 

PERS Platinum 863.37 1,726.74 2,244.76 381.94 763.88 1,145.82 

PERS Gold 575.56 1,151.12 1,496.46 377.41 754.82 1,132.23 

PORAC 775.00 1,475.00 1,894.00 461.00 919.00 1,471.00 

10 - 12



City of South Pasadena, Retiree Healthcare Plan 
June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation 
Page 7  
 

 

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

 
Actuarial Methods 
The actuarial cost method used for this valuation is the Entry Age Normal (“EAN”) cost method. 
Under the EAN cost method, the normal cost for each participant is determined as a level percentage 
of payroll throughout the participant’s working career.   
 
The projected June 30, 2022 unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was amortized as a level % 
of pay amount over a fixed, closed 20-year period.  Other amortization periods are possible and would 
produce a different recommended contribution amount.  Individual UAAL bases are not currently 
maintained. 
 
The actuarial value of assets is equal to the market value of assets. 
 
The Plan is assumed to be ongoing for cost purposes.  This does not imply that an obligation to 
continue the Plan exists. 
 
The implicit subsidy was calculated in compliance with Actuarial Standards of Practice (ASOP) No. 6 
and its associated Practice Note. 
 
To the best of our knowledge, the City has not adopted a formal funding policy for annual 
contributions to the Trust. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
An actuary must follow current actuarial standards of practice, which generally call for explicit 
assumptions, meaning each individual assumption represents the actuary's best estimate. 
 

Actuarial 
Assumption 

June 30, 2019 Valuation June 30, 2021 Valuation 

 Discount Rate  3.50 % (Bond Buyer 20-Bond Index)  6.25%, assets in CERBT Strategy 1 
portfolio 

 General Inflation 
Rate 

 2.75% per year  2.50% per year 

 Aggregate 
Payroll Increases 

 3.00% per year  2.75% per year 

 Mortality  CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study 

 Mortality projected with Mortality 
Improvement Society of Actuaries Scale 
MP-2020 

 CalPERS 2000-2019 Experience Study 

 Mortality projected with Mortality 
Improvement Society of Actuaries Scale 
MP-2021 

 Disability, 
Termination, 
Retirement 

 CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study 
for applicable employee category 

 CalPERS 2000-2019 Experience Study 
for applicable employee category 

10 - 13



City of South Pasadena, Retiree Healthcare Plan 
June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation 
Page 8  

Actuarial 
Assumption 

June 30, 2019 Valuation June 30, 2021 Valuation 

 Participation at
Retirement

 90% of employees receiving City
Subsidy (hired before 7/1/2020)

 50% of Employees receiving PEMHCA
minimum

 Same

 Will continue to monitor

 Spouse
Coverage

 Future Retirees: 70% elect spouse
coverage

 Current Retirees: Same as current
coverage election

 Future Retirees: 40% elect spouse
coverage

 Current Retirees: Same as current
coverage election

 Medical Plan at
Retirement

 Future Retirees: Same as current plan
election

 Waived assumed to elect Blue Shield
Access+

 Same

 Medicare
Eligibility

 All retirees not yet 65 assumed to be
eligible for Medicare

 Same

 Waived Retiree
Re-Election

 None  Same

 Medical Trend Increase from Prior Year 

Non-Medicare Medicare 

Year  Kaiser Non- Kaiser 

2021 Actual Premiums 
2022 7.00% 5.00% 6.10% 
2023 6.75% 4.85% 5.90% 
2024 6.50% 4.70% 5.70% 
2025 6.25% 4.60% 5.50% 
2026 6.00% 4.50% 5.30% 
2027 5.80% 4.45% 5.15% 
2028 5.60% 4.40% 5.00% 
2029 5.40% 4.35% 4.85% 
2030 5.20% 4.30% 4.70% 

2031-35 5.05% 4.25% 4.60% 
2036-45 4.90% 4.20% 4.50% 
2046-55 4.75% 4.15% 4.45% 
2056-65 4.60% 4.10% 4.40% 
2066-75 4.30% 4.05% 4.20% 
2076+ 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 

 

Increase from Prior Year3 

Non-Medicare Medicare 

Year  Kaiser Non- Kaiser 

2021 Actual Premiums 
2022 Actual Premiums
2023 6.50% 4.60% 5.65% 
2024 6.25% 4.45% 5.45% 
2025 6.00% 4.35% 5.25% 
2026 5.75% 4.25% 5.05% 
2027 5.55% 4.20% 4.90% 
2028 5.35% 4.15% 4.75% 
2029 5.15% 4.10% 4.60% 
2030 4.95% 4.05% 4.45% 

2031-35 4.80% 4.00% 4.35% 
2036-45 4.65% 3.95% 4.25% 
2046-55 4.50% 3.90% 4.20% 
2056-65 4.35% 3.85% 4.15% 
2066-75 4.05% 3.80% 3.95% 
2076+ 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 

 

3 Medical premiums after 2022 and estimated claims after 2021 do not take into account buy-downs (CalPERS
subsidizations of premium rates from reserves).

10 - 14



City of South Pasadena, Retiree Healthcare Plan 
June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation 
Page 9  
 

 

Actuarial 
Assumption 

June 30, 2019 Valuation June 30, 2021 Valuation 

 Fixed Dollar Cap 
Increase 

 None  Same 

 PEMHCA 
Minimum 
Increase 

 4.25% annually  4.00% annually 

 Administrative 
Expenses 

 None  CERBT – 0.05% of assets  

 PEMHCA – 0.33% of retiree premium  

 The Advantage Group - $6 per retiree 
payment 

 Included in recommended contributions 

 Medical Claims 
Costs 2022 
(HMO/Medicare 
Advantage) 

 Sample estimated monthly claims costs (Region 3): 
 

 Anthem Select Blue Shield Kaiser UHC Alliance 
Age M F M M M F M F 
25 $281 $536 $287 $546 $292 $555 $321 $611 
35 329 554 336 564 341 574 376 631 
45 457 597 466 608 473 618 521 680 
55 756 758 771 772 783 785 861 864 
60 1,022 924 1,043 942 1,059 957 1,166 1,054 
64 1,253 1,076 1,278 1,097 1,298 1,114 1,429 1,226 

 Medical Claims 
Costs 2022 
(PPO) 

 Sample estimated monthly claims costs (Region 3): 
 

 PERS Platinum PERS Gold PORAC  
Age M F M M     
25 $296 $583 $233 $470 $281 $557   
35 349 605 276 488 331 576   
45 492 655 394 531 469 624   
55 842 846 688 691 804 806   
60 1,162 1,044 958 859 1,110 995   
64 1,433 1,221 1,186 1,006 1,368 1,164   
 Medicare Eligible   

65 378 329 379 330 436 377   
70 420 364 421 365 484 417   
75 452 393 453 394 521 450   
80 468 410 469 412 540 470   

10 - 15



City of South Pasadena, Retiree Healthcare Plan 
June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation 
Page 10  

Actuarial 
Assumption 

June 30, 2019 Valuation June 30, 2021 Valuation 

 Actuarial
Modeling

 Our valuation was performed using and relying on ProVal, an actuarial model leased
from Wintech. Our use of ProVal is consistent with its intended purpose. We have
reviewed and understand ProVal and its operation, sensitivities and dependencies

 Data Quality  Our valuation used census data provided by the City. We reviewed the data for
reasonableness and resolved any questions with the City. We believe the resulting data
can be relied on for all purposes of this valuation without limitation

 COVID-19  No adjustments to the assumptions have been made for COVID-19 since there is not yet
enough data to evaluate the future impacts

 Basis for
Assumptions

 No experience study performed for this Plan

 CalPERS 2000 to 2019 experience study was used

 Mortality improvement is a Society of Actuaries table

 Inflation based on our estimate for the Plan’s long time horizon

 Capital market assumptions based on 2021 Foster & Foster stochastic analysis, taking
into account capital market assumptions of investment advisory firms

 Claims cost factors from Axene Health Partners’ healthcare actuaries. Due to age-risk
adjusted federal subsidies to Medicare Advantage plans, age-based claims cost or
implied subsidy were included for those plans.

 Short-term medical trend was developed in consultation with Axene Health Partners’
healthcare actuaries. Long term medical trend developed using the Society of Actuaries
Getzen Model of Long-Run Medical Cost Trends

 Medical coverage and participation assumptions based in part on Plan experience

10 - 16



City of South Pasadena, Retiree Healthcare Plan 
June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation 
Page 11  
 

 

 

SUMMARY OF PARTICIPANT DATA 

 

Participant Statistics 
 

 
 

6/30/2019 
 

6/30/2021 

 Actives   

 Counts 

 Average 
129 139 

 Age 42.5 41.8 
 City Service 10.2 9.7 

 Retirees   

 Counts 119 117 

 Average   

 Age 73.7 73.6 
 Retirement Age4 58.5 59.1 

 

 
Eligible Active Members 

June 30, 2021 
 

 City Service 
Age <1 1-4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 ≥ 25 Total 
< 25 2 2 - - - - - 4 

25-29 2 11 3 - - - - 16 
30-34 1 14 5 1 - - - 21 
35-39 2 11 6 9 - - - 28 
40-44 2 6 2 9 2 1 - 22 
45-49 - 1 2 1 2 - 2 8 
50-54 3 3 5 1 - 1 5 18 
55-59 - - - 2 1 2 8 13 
60-64 1 1 1 - 2 - 2 7 
≥ 65 - - - 1 1 - - 2 
Total 13 49 24 24 8 4 17 139 

 
  

 
4  Service Retirees Only 

10 - 17



City of South Pasadena, Retiree Healthcare Plan 
June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation 
Page 12  

Medical Plan Participation 
Non-Waived Participants 

June 30, 2021 

Medical Plan Actives 

Retirees 

< 65 > 65 Total 

Anthem Select 9% 7% 0% 2%

Blue Shield Access+ 13% 0% 0% 0% 

Blue Shield Trio 3% 4% 0% 0% 

Health Net Salud y Más 9% 0% 0% 0% 

Health Net SmartCare 3% 0% 0% 0% 

Kaiser 39% 25% 17% 20%

UnitedHealthcare 0% 0% 13% 9%

PERS Choice 7% 25% 16% 19% 

PERS Select 5% 7% 1% 3% 

PERSCare 3% 7% 47% 35%

PORAC 9% 25% 6% 11%

Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

Eligible Actives Medical Coverage 

June 30, 2021 

Medical Plan Single 2-Party Family Waived Total 
Anthem Select 2 5 2 - 9
Blue Shield Access+ 9 3 2 - 14 
Blue Shield Trio 2 - 1 - 3 
Health Net Salud y Más - 2 7 - 9 
Health Net SmartCare - 2 1 - 3 
Kaiser 22 5 14 - 41
PERS Choice 5 1 2 - 8 
PERS Select - - 6 - 6 
PERSCare 2 1 - - 3
PORAC 4 1 4 - 9
Waived - - - 34 34
Total 46 20 39 34 139

10 - 18



City of South Pasadena, Retiree Healthcare Plan 
June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation 
Page 13  
 

 

Total Retiree Medical Coverage (Under Age 65) 

June 30, 2021 

Medical Plan Single 2-Party Family Waived Total 
Anthem Select 1 1 - - 2 
Blue Shield Access+ 1 - - - 1 
Kaiser 5 2 - - 7 
UnitedHealthcare - - - - - 
PERS Choice 4 3 - - 7 
PERS Select - 2 - - 2 
PERSCare 2 - - - 2 
PORAC 6 1 - - 7 
Waived - - - 5 5 
Total 19 9 - 5 33 

 

Total Retiree Medical Coverage (Over Age 65) 

June 30, 2021 

Medical Plan Single 2-Party Family Waived Total 
Anthem Select - - - - - 
Blue Shield Access+ - - - - - 
Kaiser 7 5 - - 12 
UnitedHealthcare 7 2 - - 9 
PERS Choice 7 4 - - 11 
PERS Select 1 - - - 1 
PERSCare 24 8 - - 32 
PORAC 1 3 - - 4 
Waived - - - 15 15 
Total 47 22 - 15 84 

 

 
  

10 - 19



City of South Pasadena, Retiree Healthcare Plan 
June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation 
Page 14  

ACTUARIAL CERTIFICATION 

This report presents the City of South Pasadena Retiree Healthcare Plan (“Plan”) June 30, 2021 actuarial 
valuation.  The purpose of this valuation is to: 

 Determine the Plan’s June 30, 2021 funded status, and

 Calculate the 2022/23 and 2023/24 recommended contributions.

This report provides information intended for plan funding but may not be appropriate for other 
purposes. Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements 
presented in this report due to such factors as: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the 
assumptions; changes in assumptions; changes expected as part of the natural progression of the plan; 
and changes in plan provisions or applicable law. Actuarial models necessarily rely on the use of 
estimates and are sensitive to changes. Small variations in estimates may lead to significant changes in 
actuarial measurements. Due to the limited scope of this assignment, we did not perform an analysis of 
the potential range of such measurements. 

The valuation is based on Plan provisions and participant data provided by the City and asset information 
provided by CERBT as summarized in this report, which we relied on and did not audit.  We reviewed 
the participant data for reasonableness.   

To the best of our knowledge, this report is complete and accurate and has been conducted using 
generally accepted actuarial principles and practices.  As members of the American Academy of 
Actuaries meeting the Academy Qualification Standards, we certify the actuarial results and opinions 
herein. 

Respectfully submitted, 

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT 

Mary Elizabeth Redding 
FSA, EA, MAAA 
Foster & Foster, Inc. 
January 23, 2023 

Drew D. Ballard 
ASA, EA, MAAA 
Foster & Foster, Inc. 
January 23, 2023 

 Tak Frazita 
FSA, EA, MAAA 
Foster & Foster, Inc. 
January 23, 2023 

10 - 20



 ATTACHMENT 2 
OPEB Accounting Information 

10 - 21



 
THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 
LEFT BLANK 

10 - 22



City of South Pasadena
Retiree Healthcare Plan

June 30, 2022 GASBS 75 Accounting Information
As of Measurement Date June 30, 2021
Based on the June 30, 2021 Actuarial Valuation

Mary Elizabeth Redding, FSA, EA, MAAA
Drew Ballard, ASA, EA, MAAA
Tak Frazita, FSA, EA, MAAA
Nathan Hinojosa
Bartel Associates LLC

January 10, 2023

Topic Page
Applicable Dates

Note Disclosures

Required Supplementary Information

Actuarial Certification

Supporting Calculations

Journal Entries

Contents

2

13

15

16

25

1

b:\ca-public\city_of_south_pasadena\2021_val\gasb_75\2022\f&f_sopasadenaci_23-01-10_gasbs75_22-06-30_report_revised.pdf

10 - 23



■ Measurement date
■ Measurement period

■ Actuarial valuation date

Applicable Dates and Periods

Applicable Dates

June 30, 2021
July 1, 2020 to 
June 30, 2021
June 30, 2021

Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2022

City of South Pasadena  
1

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023

■ Plan type
■ OPEB trust
■ Special funding situation
■ Nonemployer contributing entities
■ Plan closed to new entrants

Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2022

Plan Information

Note Disclosures

Yes

Single Employer
No
No
No

City of South Pasadena  
2

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023
10 - 24



■ Inactives currently receiving benefits
■ Inactives entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
■ Active employees
■ Total

139             
256             

20               

Covered Participants

Number of
Covered

Participants
97               

At June 30, 2021, the measurement date, the following numbers of 
participants were covered by the benefit terms:

Note Disclosures

City of South Pasadena  
3

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023

■ Total OPEB Liability (TOL)

6/30/22

6/30/21
17,980,977$                

6/30/21

6/30/20
20,220,894$                

Measurement DateMeasurement Date

Fiscal Year Ended

Note Disclosures

Total OPEB Liability

City of South Pasadena  
4

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023
10 - 25



■  

■  Changes for the year
● Service Cost
● Interest
● Changes of benefit terms
● Actual vs. expected experience
● Assumption changes
● Benefit payments*

■ Net Changes
■  

* See the measurement period column on page 16 for details.
(6/30/21 measurement date)
Balance at 6/30/22

Note Disclosures

Changes in Total OPEB Liability

Balance at 6/30/21

895,656 

20,220,894$ 

Total OPEB 
Liability

887,933 

461,163 

17,980,977$ 

(3,110,716)    

(6/30/20 measurement date)

(2,239,917)    
(498,954)       
(874,999)       

City of South Pasadena  
5

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023

■ 

■ Total OPEB Liability

■ 

■ Total OPEB Liability

Sensitivity of Total OPEB Liability

1% Decrease
(1.16%)

Current Rate
(2.16%)

1% Increase
(3.16%)

Discount Rate

Note Disclosures

16,767,529$        17,980,977$        19,352,845$        

Changes in the Discount Rate

Changes in the Healthcare Trend Rate

Healthcare Trend Rate

1% Decrease Current Trend 1% Increase

20,637,077$        17,980,977$        15,806,908$        

City of South Pasadena  
6

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023
10 - 26



■ OPEB Expense/(Income)*

* See page 21 for OPEB expense/(income) detail, which is not a required disclosure.

OPEB Expense/(Income) for Fiscal Year

2021/22

(1,759,968)$     

Note Disclosures

2020/21
Measurement Period

City of South Pasadena  
7

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023

■ 

■ Changes in assumptions
■ 

■ Total

* See page 16 for details.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows Balances at June 30, 2022

Note Disclosures

June 30, 2022
Deferred 

Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of 
Resources

766,298$             803,239$             Differences between expected and actual 
experience

Employer contributions made 
subsequent to the measurement date*

5,094,545            2,302,478            

2,481,087            1,499,239            

1,847,160            - 

City of South Pasadena  
8

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023
10 - 27



■ 2023
■ 2024
■ 2025
■ 2026
■ 2027
■ Thereafter

320,865 

2,302 
403,242 

Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Note Disclosures

Deferred
Outflows/(Inflows)

of ResourcesFYE June 30

234,223 

in Future OPEB Expense

(7,861)      $  
(7,864)       

City of South Pasadena  
9

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023

■ ■ 
■ ■ 
■ ■ 

■ 

■ ■ 
■ ■ 

■ ■ 

CalPERS 2000-2019 Experience Study

Significant Actuarial Assumptions Used for Total OPEB Liability

Mortality Improvement Mortality projected fully generational with Scale 
MP-2021

Discount Rate 2.16% at June 30, 2021

June 30, 2021Actuarial Valuation Date
Contribution Policy No pre-funding

General Inflation
Mortality, Retirement, 
Disability, Termination

2.21% at June 30, 2020

2.50% annually

(Bond Buyer 20-Bond Index)

(Bond Buyer 20-Bond Index)

Actuarial Assumption June 30, 2021 Measurement Date

Note Disclosures

City of South Pasadena  
10

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023
10 - 28



■ ■ 
■ 

■ ■ 

■ 

■ 

■ ■ 

■ ■ 

■ ■ 

■ 

Significant Actuarial Assumptions Used for Total OPEB Liability

Note Disclosures

Actuarial Assumption June 30, 2021 Measurement Date

Medicare (Non-Kaiser) - 5.65% for 2023, 
decreasing to an ultimate rate of 3.75% in 2076

Salary Increases Aggregate - 2.75% annually

4.00% annually

90% of employees receiving City Subsidy (hired 
before 7/1/2020)

Merit - CalPERS 2000-2019 Experience Study
Non-Medicare - 6.5% for 2023, decreasing to an 
ultimate rate of 3.75% in 2076

Medical Trend

PEMHCA Minimum 
Increase
Healthcare Participation 
at Retirement

50% of employees receiving PEMHCA Minimum

Medicare (Kaiser) - 4.6% for 2023, decreasing to 
an ultimate rate of 3.75% in 2076

Fixed Dollar Cap Increase None

City of South Pasadena  
11

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023

■ ■ 

■ 
■ 

■ 

■ 

■ 

■ ■ 

■ ■ 

■ 

Changes Since June 30, 2020 Measurement Date

Decreased medical trend rate for Kaiser Senior
Advantage

June 30, 2021 Measurement Date
Changes of assumptions Discount rate was updated based on municipal 

bond rate as of the measurement date

Inflation rate decreased from 2.75% to 2.50% 
which decreased the medical trend and aggregate 
salary increases by 0.25%

Demographic assumptions updated to CalPERS 
2000-2019 Experience Study

Spouse participation updated to 40%

Note Disclosures

Management cap increased from $715 to $915

Changes of benefit terms City contributions modified to only pay toward 
single premiums

Mortality improvement scale was updated to Scale 
MP-2021

Events subsequent to June 
30, 2021 measurement 
date and before June 30, 
2022

The City has established a Section 115 trust fund 
dedicated to prefunding its OPEB benefits via the 
California Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust 
(CERBT) fund. The City made an initial 
contribution of $1,125,000 in June 2022 and has 
enrolled in CERBT Strategy 1 for its investment 
portfolio.

City of South Pasadena  
12

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023
10 - 29



■ Changes in Total OPEB Liability
● Service Cost
● Interest
● Changes of benefit terms
● Actual vs. expected experience
● Assumption changes
● Benefit payments

■ Net Changes
■ Total OPEB Liability (beginning of year)
■ Total OPEB Liability (end of year)

461,163           

887,933           

895,656$         

17,980,977      

(3,110,716)       

20,220,894      

(874,999)          
(498,954)          

(2,239,917)       

2021/22

2020/21
Measurement Period

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Required Supplementary Information

City of South Pasadena  
13

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023

■ 
■ 
■ 

* For the 12-month period ended on June 30, 2021 (Measurement Date).
As reported by the City.

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Required Supplementary Information

2021/22

Covered employee payroll*
Total OPEB Liability as a percentage of 
covered employee payroll

Total OPEB Liability 17,980,977$    
15,678,975      

114.7%

Measurement Date
6/30/21

City of South Pasadena  
14

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023
10 - 30



Foster & Foster, Inc.
January 10, 2023

Foster & Foster, Inc.

Mary Elizabeth Redding, FSA, EA, MAAA
Foster & Foster, Inc.
January 10, 2023

January 10, 2023

To the best of our knowledge, this report is complete and accurate and has been conducted using generally accepted actuarial 
principles and practices and complies with applicable Actuarial Standards of Practice. Additionally, in our opinion, actuarial 
methods and assumptions comply with GASBS 75. As the actuary, we have recommended the assumptions used in this report, 
and we believe they are reasonable. As members of the American Academy of Actuaries meeting the Academy Qualification 
Standards, we certify the actuarial results and opinions herein.

Respectfully submitted,

This report presents the City of South Pasadena Retiree Healthcare Plan 2021/22 disclosure under Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 75 (GASBS 75). This report may not be appropriate for other purposes, although it may be 
useful to the City for the Plan’s financial management.
This report is based on information provided by the City which we relied on and did not audit. Additional information on the 
actuarial valuation can be found in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation report.
Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in this report due to such 
factors as: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the assumptions; changes in assumptions; changes expected as 
part of the natural progression of the plan; and changes in plan provisions or applicable law. Actuarial models necessarily rely 
on the use of estimates and are sensitive to changes. Small variations in estimates may lead to significant changes in actuarial 
measurements. Due to the limited scope of this assignment, we did not perform an analysis of the potential range of such 
measurements.

Actuarial Certification

Drew Ballard, ASA, EA, MAAA

Tak Frazita, FSA, EA, MAAA

The Journal Entries in this report are provided for the City's convenience and are not an actuarial communication. Therefore, 
this actuarial certification does not apply to the Journal Entries.

City of South Pasadena  
15

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023

■  
■  
■  
■  
■  
■  

Measurement period (7/1/20 to 6/30/21): $500,744
Fiscal year (7/1/21 to 6/30/22): $1,847,160

Total employer contributions 500,744          

126,000          

1,790              
498,954          

1,847,160       

5,688              

500,744          

182,000          

Trust Contributions - 1,125,000       - 

372,954$        

716,472          
Implied subsidy benefit payments

Administrative expenses
Total benefit payments

126,000          

1,790              
498,954          

Employer Contributions

534,472$        

Supporting Calculations

7/1/20 to 
6/30/21

7/1/21 to 
6/30/22

Same as 
Measurement 

Period

Prior 
Measurement 
Date to Prior 

FYE

372,954$        

Measurement 
Period

Measurement 
Date to FYE

Cash benefit payments

City of South Pasadena  
16

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023
10 - 31



* Participants with no liability excluded for the purpose of calculating the average.

6/30/19 1,588.6 years 226 7.0 years
6/30/21 1,808.4 years 236 7.7 years 7.3 years

July 1, 2020 (beginning of the measurement period) was not a valuation date and 
no census data was available to the actuary as of that date. Therefore, the average 
of the expected remaining service lives was estimated as follows:

Valuation 
Date

Total expected 
remaining 

service lives*
Covered 

participants*

Average of the 
expected 

remaining 
service lives as of 

valuation date

Average of the 
expected 

remaining 
service lives as of 
7/1/20 (not less 

than 1 yr)

Average of the Expected Remaining Service Lives

Supporting Calculations

City of South Pasadena  
17

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023

- - 

18/19 -          -          -          

-          -          -          -          -          20/21 -          -          -          

(200,809)  (200,809)  (200,809)  (200,809)  (200,812)  -          -          

-          -          -          -          -          

-          -          -          

121,635   158,123   

Initial 
Recog 
Period

Amount Recognized in OPEB Expense for FY

21/22 22/23 26/27 27/28+23/24 25/26

121,635   

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience
Recognition of Deferred Outflows/Inflows at June 30, 2022

Supporting Calculations

21/22 7.3           121,635   121,635   121,635   

Fiscal 
Year 24/25

121,635   

17/18 -          -          -          -          -          

19/20 7.0           

Total (79,174)    (79,174)    (79,174)    (79,174)    (79,177)    121,635   158,123   

- (803,239)      

Deferred Balances
June 30, 2022

Outflows (Inflows)

766,298         - 

766,298         (803,239)      

Initial Amt

- 

- 

(1,405,666)           

- 

887,933 

- - 

- - 

City of South Pasadena  
18

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023
10 - 32



118,434   118,434   118,435   -          -          19/20 7.0           118,434   118,434   

20/21 7.0           401,470   401,470   401,470   401,470   401,470   401,470   -          

(242,084)  -          -          -          -          17/18 7.0           (242,081)  (242,081)  

18/19 7.0           (86,647)    (86,647)    (86,647)    (86,644)    -          -          -          

Recognition of Deferred Outflows/Inflows at June 30, 2022

Supporting Calculations

(119,863)  (155,821)  

Changes of Assumptions

(119,863)  

22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27

Initial 
Recog 
Period

(119,863)  (119,863)  

Amount Recognized in OPEB Expense for FY

21/22 27/28+

21/22 7.3           (119,863)  (119,863)  

Fiscal 
Year

Total 71,313     71,313     71,310     313,397   400,042   281,607   (155,821)  

- (259,938)      

473,737         - 

Deferred Balances
June 30, 2022

Outflows (Inflows)

2,007,350      - 

- (755,136)      

2,481,087      (1,499,239)    

Initial Amt

(1,694,570)           

(606,526)              

829,039 

2,810,290             

(874,999)              

- (484,165)      

City of South Pasadena  
19

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023

■  

■  

■  

71,310          

22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26

Changes of 
Assumptions

Total

27/28+

158,123        

(155,821)       

26/27

121,635        

281,607        

(7,861)           (7,864)           234,223        320,865        2,302            403,242        

71,313          

Thereafter

313,397        

Recognition of Deferred Outflows/Inflows in Future OPEB Expense

(79,174)         (79,174)         (79,174)         (79,177)         

Supporting Calculations

400,042        

Differences between 
Expected and 
Actual Experience

City of South Pasadena  
20

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023
10 - 33



■ Service Cost
■ Interest on Total OPEB Liability
■ Administrative expense
■ Changes of benefit terms
■ Recognition of deferred outflows/(inflows)
● Experience
● Assumptions

■ OPEB Expense/(Income)

Components of GASBS 75 OPEB Expense

(79,174)            

2020/21

Supporting Calculations

(1,759,968)       

2021/22

895,656$         
461,163           

71,313             

1,790 
(3,110,716)       

Measurement Period

City of South Pasadena  
21

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023

■ 
■ 
■ 
■ 
■ 
■ 
■ 

* Liability determined as of the end of the measurement period, so no interest charge is applicable.

2020/21 Measurement Period

Benefit payments (498,954)              
Total interest

Components of GASBS 75 OPEB Expense

Portion of 
Year

Supporting Calculations

Calculation of Interest on Total OPEB Liability

Discount 
Rate

Dollar
Amount

Total OPEB Liability

Assumption changes*

2.21%

Experience*

(5,513) 

2.21%

2.21%

Service Cost
100%

2.21% 100%
Changes of benefit terms*

461,163               

0%

0%
50%2.21%

2.21% 0%

20,220,894$        
895,656               

(3,110,716)           

(874,999)              
887,933               

Interest
446,882$             

19,794 
- 

- 
- 

City of South Pasadena  
22

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023
10 - 34



■ Total OPEB Liability
■ Fiduciary Net Position
■ Net OPEB Liability
■ Deferred inflows of resources
■ Deferred (outflows) of resources
■ Balance Sheet

Check:
■ Balance Sheet 6/30/21
● OPEB Expense/(Income)
● Employer Contributions*

■ Balance Sheet 6/30/22

* See the measurement period column on page 16 for details.

GASBS 75 Balance Equation

Supporting Calculations

6/30/20 6/30/21

20,220,894$                    17,980,977$                    

Fiscal Year Ended
6/30/21 6/30/22

Measurement Date Measurement Date

(3,000,991)                      (3,247,385)                      

-                                  -                                  
20,220,894                      17,980,977                      

2,076,879                        2,302,478                        

17,036,070          
(500,744)              

(1,759,968)           

19,296,782                      17,036,070                      

19,296,782$        

City of South Pasadena  
23

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023

This page intentionally blank

Supporting Calculations

City of South Pasadena  
24

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023
10 - 35



■  
■  
■  
■  
■  

■  

Check

-$            

(500,744)     
1,847,160   -              

-              

1,790          -              

Employer Contributions

Journal Entries

Following records the impact of employer contributions as deferred outflows of 
resources and as a reduction to Net OPEB Liability.

The entries below assume cash benefit payments, Trust contributions, and 
administrative expenses have been charged to OPEB Expense when paid, and that no 
accounting entries have been made for the current year implied subsidy payment, 
which is recorded as a reduction to active employee health care costs. See page 16 for 
details.

Debit (Credit)

(2,347,904)  2,347,904 

Active employee health care costs - (implied subsidy payments 
7/1/21 to 6/30/22)
OPEB Expense - (for contributions paid 7/1/21 to 6/30/22) -              

(182,000)     

(1,665,160)  

Net OPEB Liability - (for Contributions paid 7/1/20 to 6/30/21)
OPEB Expense - (for admin fees paid 7/1/20 to 6/30/21)

 Deferred Outflow - 7/1/20 to 6/30/21 contributions
 Deferred Outflow - 7/1/21 to 6/30/22 contributions

498,954$    

-              

City of South Pasadena  
25

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023

Following records the impact of current year OPEB expense

■ Deferred Outflows*
■ Deferred Inflows**
■ OPEB Expense/Credit ***
■ Net OPEB Liability

Check

*
**
***

Summary Journal Entries - OPEB Expense

Journal Entries

Debit (Credit)
766,298$             (519,904)$            
200,809               (426,408)              

- (1,761,758)           
1,740,963            - 

2,708,070 (2,708,070) 

Total OPEB expense, -$1,759,968, equals -$1,761,758 plus $1,790 admin fees from 
page 25.

See page 29 for details.
See page 28 ('Subtotal' row) for details.

City of South Pasadena  
26

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023
10 - 36



■  

■  Deferral: Changes of assumptions
■  Total deferred outflow/inflow
■  Net OPEB Liability (NOL)
■  Contributions after the Measurement Date
■  Net Impact

Check:

■  Total OPEB expense/(income) for FYE 2022

Journal Entries

2,481,087         (1,499,239)        

-                    (17,980,977)      

Ending Balances at June 30, 2022

Debit (Credit)

766,298$          (803,239)$         
Deferral: Differences between expected and actual 
experience

3,247,385         (2,302,478)        

1,847,160         -                    
15,188,910       -                    

20,283,455       (20,283,455)     

-                    (1,759,968)        

City of South Pasadena  
27

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023

■  

■  
■  
■  
■  

Journal Entries

Reconciliation of Deferred Outflows

Deferred Outflows

Opening
Balance -

Debit

Journal
Entry -
Debit

Journal
Entry -
(Credit)

Ending
Balance -

Debit

Detail for page 26

Change in assumptions 3,000,991     -                (519,904)       2,481,087     

Differences between actual and expected 
experience -$              766,298$      -$              766,298$      

Subtotal - actuarial deferrals 3,000,991     766,298        (519,904)       3,247,385     
1,847,160     (500,744)       1,847,160     

Total Deferred Outflows 3,501,735     2,613,458     (1,020,648)    5,094,545     
Contributions after the Measurement Date 500,744        

City of South Pasadena  
28

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023
10 - 37



■  

■  
■  

Journal Entries

Reconciliation of Deferred Inflows

Deferred Inflows

Opening
Balance -
(Credit)

Journal
Entry -
(Credit)

Journal
Entry -
Debit

Ending
Balance -
(Credit)

Detail for page 26

(426,408)       200,809        (2,302,478)    

Differences between actual and expected 
experience (1,004,048)$  -$              200,809$      (803,239)$     
Change in assumptions (1,072,831)    (426,408)       - (1,499,239)    
Total Deferred (Inflows) (2,076,879)    

City of South Pasadena  
29

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023

■ Total OPEB (Liability)
■ Fiduciary Net Position
■ Net OPEB (Liability)
■ Deferred (inflows) of resources
■ Deferred outflows of resources
■ Balance Sheet Impact

Deferred Outflows include contributions after the measurement date.

Reconciliation of Deferred Outflows/(Inflows)

Journal Entries

Summary of Balances

Fiscal Year Ended
6/30/21 6/30/22

Measurement Date Measurement Date
6/30/20 6/30/21

(20,220,894)$       (17,980,977)$       

3,501,735            5,094,545            
(18,796,038)         (15,188,910)         

- - 
(20,220,894)         (17,980,977)         

(2,076,879)           (2,302,478)           

City of South Pasadena  
30

GASBS 75 January 10, 2023
10 - 38



DATE: 

FROM: 

City Council 
Agenda Report 

February 15, 2023 

ITEM NO. 

�/". 
Armine Chaparyan, City Manager 1 ,,_.,-""'..-ia,-�C. 

PREPARED BY: Hsiulee Tran, Deputy Finance Director/Controller 
Albert Trinh, Finance Manager 

--� 

SUBJECT: Presentation of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the annual audit reports for the 
year ended June 30, 2022. 

Background 
After the close of each fiscal year, the Finance Department is responsible for the 
preparation and publication of the City's Annual Comprehensive Finance Report 
(ACFR) following an independent, certified audit. The goal of the financial audit and 
report is to provide users with a reasonable assurance that the information presented in 
the statements is accurate and timely. 

The ACFR presents information on the status of the City's financial affairs, first on a 
citywide basis (Government-Wide Financial Statements) in which all the City activities 
are reported as governmental activities and business-type activities. A second set of 
statements (Fund Financial Statements) report separately the activities of all City 
Funds. 

The ACFR is organized into three primary sections: 

1. Introductory Section - includes the Finance Director's Letter of Transmittal, List
of Principal Officials, and the Organization Chart.

2. Financial Section - includes the Independent Auditors' Report, Management's
Discussion and Analysis, and the general purpose financial statements,
consisting of the combined financial statements, notes to the financial
statements, and supplemental statements.

3. Statistical Section - includes comparative information on pertinent City data,
such as expenditures, revenues, assessed valuations, tax levies, demographic
data, and performance measurements.

11

11 - 1



Presentation of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2022 
February 15, 2023  
Page 2 of 6

The ACFR is important for a number of reasons: 

• The ACFR is utilized by the investment community, including bond buyers,
underwriters, bond issuers, and credit rating agencies.

• It serves as a public information tool in the form of a comprehensive presentation
of all of the City’s financial activities.

• Due to a standardized format, the ACFR serves as a tool to provide a meaningful
comparison to similar data for other cities.

The Annual Comprehensive Finance Report (ACFR) is a complete set of financial 
statements that summarizes the City’s financial position for the Fiscal Year. The report 
is prepared annually by city staff, and audited by an independent auditing firm, with the 
purpose of providing a reasonable assurance from an independent source that the 
information is reliable.  

The audit-related items provided within this report include: 
1. City of South Pasadena – Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)
2. Independent Auditor’s Report – Government Auditing Standards
3. FY 2021-22 SAS 114 Letter
4. Management Letter

The audit for 2022 was recently completed by Rogers, Anderson, Melody & Scott, LLP 
(RAMS), in January 2023, four months ahead of the completion of the 2021 audit, a 
significant improvement over last year’s timeline. The auditors rendered an unmodified 
opinion, which is the highest and optimal opinion issued by independent auditors.  

Overall, the City’s total net position increased by $16,841,928 over the prior year, due 
primarily to water settlement payments, increase in revenue for recreational activities 
due to Covid restrictions being lifted and decreases in the City’s net pension liability. 

Discussion/Analysis 
For FY 2021-22, the accounting firm of Rogers, Anderson, Malody, & Scott, LLP, 
performed an independent audit to determine that the financial statements are fairly 
presented and free from material misstatement. The independent auditor concluded 
there was reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion, and that City’s 
financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP). 

In the FY 2020-2021 ACFR, there were four findings, three of which were materials 
findings, zero of significant deficiency, and one on non-compliance related to bonds. 
These findings referred to the timely preparation of bank reconciliations, capital 
assessment maintenance and modules, and staffing and proper review of the audit and 
reconciliations. Items were ‘late’ but ‘in progress’. In the presentation of the draft FY 

11 - 2



Presentation of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2022 
February 15, 2023  
Page 3 of 6

2021-2022 ACFR before Finance Commission, the auditors shared that no findings 
have yet dropped off, though the auditors suggested that there has been significant 
progress across the board, especially in the 18+ month catch up of bank reconciliations 
and a much improved process and timeline for Department work products and flows. In 
finalizing the draft document and in working with staff, the auditors have determined that 
one finding is being removed, and that we are in fact in compliance with our Bond 
Covenant being filed timely in January 2023, and timely completion of the ACFR. 

Finance Department staff will be working diligently to address and correct the remaining 
weaknesses and deficiencies, and focus on meeting industry best practices to resolve 
all findings.  

Listed below are financial highlights for FY 2021-22: 

• The assets of the City exceeded liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by $111,477,776.

• At the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported
combined fund balances of $39,682,789, an increase of $992,859. Of that
amount, $16,615,541 (or approximately 42%) of total fund balances is the
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund, and represents the fund balance
available for spending at the City’s discretion.

• At the end of the fiscal year, the total General Fund balance is $24,672,171,
while as previously mentioned, the emergency reserve fund balance
(unassigned) for the General Fund was $18,931,422, or 55% the General Fund
expenditures.

There are two primary citywide financial statements: Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities.  Similar to a balance sheet in private sector accounting, the 
Statement of Net Position presents the City’s overall financial position at a specific point 
in time – in the City’s case, this is as of the last day of the fiscal year (June 30, 2022). 

The Statement of Activities is similar to the income statement, presenting the City’s 
results of operations over a period of time. 

11 - 3



Presentation of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2022 
February 15, 2023  
Page 4 of 6

The table above presents a summarized version of the City’s Statement of Net Position 
for FY 2021-22, and a comparison to the previous fiscal year. Net position may serve as 
a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  For South Pasadena, assets 
exceeded liabilities by $111,477,776 at the close of the fiscal year. This represents an 
increase of $16,841,928, or 18%, from the prior year. This increase is primarily due to 
increase in unrestricted investments and decrease in compensated absences, net 
pension liability, and other post-employment benefits liability. 

11 - 4



Presentation of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2022 
February 15, 2023  
Page 5 of 6

Net investment in capital assets of $92,696,276 are by far the largest portion of the 
City’s net position, and reflects its investment in non-liquid capital assets (e.g. land, 
infrastructure, buildings, and equipment). The City uses these capital assets to provide 
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 
The second portion of the City net position, $13,774,132, represents special revenue 
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. 

Governmental activities net position increased by $3,879,228, due to an increase in 
charges for services and property taxes and a decrease in expenses, mainly in Public 
Safety. 

Business activities net position increased by $12,962,700 over the prior year mainly due 
to a settlement received of $9,298,898, and the Graves Reservoir and Well 
Rehabilitation project completions and capitalizations in FY 21/22.  

The 2022 Draft ACFR was presented and reviewed by the City’s Finance Commission.  
After deliberation and discussion for clarification points, the Commission voted to 
receive and file the document. The final document is presented to the City Council 
tonight.  

Fiscal Impact 
There is no cost associated with the presentation of this report. The cost of completing 
the audit through RAMS is a budgeted line item within the Finance Department budget. 

11 - 5



Presentation of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2022 
February 15, 2023  
Page 6 of 6

Commission Review and Recommendation 
This matter was reviewed by the Finance Commission on February 6, 2023.  RAMS 
made a presentation of a draft document, touched on the previous and current findings, 
touched on the marked improvements on timeline in completing the audit, as well as the 
improvements across the board in the department and work flows, and answered 
Commission questions. The Commission voted to receive and file the ACFR. 

In finalizing the draft document, the auditors have determined that the City has timely 
completed our Bond Convenants, and a finding has been dropped as such. The 
auditors in their presentation to the Finance Commission, suggested that there has 
been significant progress across the board, especially in the 18+ month catch up of 
bank reconciliations and a much improved process and timeline for Department work 
products and flows. Finance Department staff will be working diligently to address and 
correct the weaknesses and deficiencies, and focus on meeting industry best practices 
to resolve all findings. 

Key Performance Indicators and Strategic Plan 
This item is in line with the Finance Department’s Key Performance Indicator. The audit 
commenced in November 2022 with the completion of the audit in February 2023. 

Attachments: 
1. FY 2021-22 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
2. FY 2021-22 Internal Control Report and Response
3. FY 2021-22 SAS 114 Letter
4. Management Letter

11 - 6



 ATTACHMENT 1 
  FY 2021-22 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

Consultant is Finalizing the Document and it will be 
available on Monday, February 13, 2023 

11 - 7



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

11 - 8



 ATTACHMENT 2 
 FY 2021-22 Internal Control Report and Response 

Consultant is Finalizing the Document and it will be 
available on Monday, February 13, 2023

11 - 9



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

11 - 10



 ATTACHMENT 3 
  FY 2021-22 SAS 114 Letter 

Consultant is Finalizing the Document and it will be 
available on Monday, February 13, 2023 

11 - 11



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

11 - 12



 ATTACHMENT 4 
 Management Letter 

11 - 13



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

11 - 14



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA 
CITY CLERK DIVISION  

1414 MISSION STREET, SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030 
TEL:  (626) 403-7210 ▪ FAX: (626) 403-7211 

WWW.SOUTHPASADENACA.GOV 

February 8, 2023 

Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP 
735 E. Carnegie Drive, Suite 100 
San Bernardino, CA 92408 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial 
statements of the City of South Pasadena (the City) as of June 30, 2022, and for the 
year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of 
expressing opinions on whether the basic financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows, where 
applicable, of the various opinion units of the City in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are 
material. Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or 
misstatement of accounting information that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, 
makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information 
would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves as of 
February 8, 2023: 

Financial Statements 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement
letter dated November 7, 2022, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements of the various opinion units referred to above in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

2. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for compliance with the laws, regulations, and
provisions of contracts and grant agreements.

5. We have reviewed, approved, and taken responsibility for the financial statements and
related notes.

6. We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

11 - 15



7. We have identified and communicated to you all previous audits, attestation
engagements, and other studies related to the audit objectives and whether related
recommendations have been implemented.

8. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those
measured at fair value, are reasonable.

9. All related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for
and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP.

10. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP
requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

11. The effects of all known actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for
and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

12. All component units, as well as joint ventures with an equity interest, are included and
other joint ventures and related organizations are properly disclosed.

13. All funds and activities are properly classified.
14. All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial

Statements—and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local
Governments, GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements—and
Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments: Omnibus as
amended, and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities, for presentation as major are identified and presented as such and all other
funds that are presented as major are considered important to financial statement users.

15. All components of net position, nonspendable fund balance, and restricted, committed,
assigned, and unassigned fund balance are properly classified and, if applicable,
approved.

16. Our policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net
position/fund balance are available is appropriately disclosed and net position/fund
balance is properly recognized under the policy.

17. All revenues within the statement of activities have been properly classified as program
revenues, general revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or
contributions to permanent fund principal.

18. All expenses have been properly classified in or allocated to functions and programs in
the statement of activities, and allocations, if any, have been made on a reasonable
basis.

19. All interfund and intra-entity transactions and balances have been properly classified and
reported.

20. Special items and extraordinary items have been properly classified and reported, if
applicable.

21. Deposit and investment risks have been properly and fully disclosed.
22. Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and if

applicable, depreciated.
23. All required supplementary information is measured and presented within the prescribed

guidelines.
24. With regard to investments and other instruments reported at fair value:

a. The underlying assumptions are reasonable and they appropriately reflect
management’s intent and ability to carry out its stated courses of action.

b. The measurement methods and related assumptions used in determining fair
value are appropriate in the circumstances and have been consistently applied.

c. The disclosures related to fair values are complete, adequate, and in accordance
with U.S. GAAP.

d. There are no subsequent events that require adjustments to the fair value
measurements and disclosures included in the financial statements.

11 - 16



25. With respect to nonattest services, including assistance in preparing the financial
statements, we have performed the following:

a. Made all management decisions and performed all management functions;
b. Assigned a competent individual to oversee the services;
c. Evaluated the adequacy of the services performed;
d. Evaluated and accepted responsibility for the result of the service performed; and
e. Established and maintained internal controls, including monitoring ongoing

activities.

Information Provided 

1. We have provided you with:
a. Access to all information, of which we are aware that is relevant to the

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of the various
opinion units referred to above, such as records, documentation, meeting
minutes, and other matters;

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the
audit; and

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the City from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

2. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in
the financial statements.

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

4. We have provided to you our analysis of the City’s ability to continue as a going
concern, including significant conditions and events present, and if necessary, our
analysis of management’s plans, and our ability to achieve those plans.

5. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the City and
involves—
a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

6. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the
City’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, vendors,
regulators, or others.

7. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and
assessments whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial
statements.

8. We have disclosed to you the identity of the City’s related parties and all the related
party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

9. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning
noncompliance with or deficiencies in accounting, internal control, or financial
reporting practices.

10. The City has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities.

11. We have disclosed to you all guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the
City is contingently liable.

12. We have disclosed to you all significant estimates and material concentrations
known to management that are required to be disclosed in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 62 (GASB-62), Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.
Significant estimates are estimates at the balance sheet date that could change
materially within the next year. Concentrations refer to volumes of business,

11 - 17



revenues, available sources of supply, or markets or geographic areas for which 
events could occur that would significantly disrupt normal finances within the next 
year. 

13. We have identified and disclosed to you the laws, regulations, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements that could have a direct and material effect on
financial statement amounts, including legal and contractual provisions for reporting
specific activities in separate funds.

14. There are no:
a. Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations, or provisions of contracts

or grant agreements whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the
financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, including
applicable budget laws and regulations.

b. Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised are probable of
assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with financial reporting standards.

c. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or
disclosed by financial reporting standards.

d. Continuing disclosure consent decree agreements or filings with the Securities
and Exchange Commission and we have filed updates on a timely basis in
accordance with the agreements (Rule 240, 15c2-12).

15. The City has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset or future revenue been pledged as
collateral, except as disclosed to you.

16. We have complied with all aspects of grant agreements and other contractual
agreements that would have a material effect on the financial statements in the event
of noncompliance.

17. We acknowledge our responsibility for Required Supplementary Information (RSI).
The RSI is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of
measurement and presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period.
We have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying
the measurement and presentation of the RSI.

18. With respect to the Supplementary Information, as listed in the table of contents, of
the financial statements:
a. We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the Supplementary Information

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America and we believe the Supplementary Information, including its form and
content, is fairly presented in accordance with applicable criteria.

b. The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used
in the prior period and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or
interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the
Supplementary Information.

c. When the Supplementary Information is not presented with the audited financial
statements, management will make the audited financial statements readily
available to the intended users of the Supplementary Information no later than
the date of issuance by the City of the Supplementary Information and the
auditor’s report thereon.

d. We acknowledge our responsibility to include the auditor’s report on the
Supplementary Information in any document containing the Supplementary
Information and that indicates the auditor reported on such Supplementary
Information.

e. We acknowledge our responsibility to present the Supplementary Information
with the audited financial statements or, if the Supplementary Information will not
be presented with the audited financial statements, to make the audited financial
statements readily available to the intended users of the Supplementary

11 - 18



Information no later than the date of issuance by the City of the Supplementary 
Information and the auditor’s report thereon. 

19. We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension
and other postemployment benefit liabilities and costs for financial accounting
purposes are appropriate in the circumstances.

20. We agree with the findings of specialists in evaluating the GASB 68 accounting
report and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialist in
determining the amounts and disclosures used in the financial statements and
underlying accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given
to specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their
work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had an impact on the
independence or objectivity of the specialists.

21. We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension
and other postemployment benefit liabilities and costs for financial accounting
purposes are appropriate in the circumstances.

Signature: 

Title: City  Manager

11 - 19



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

11 - 20



City Council 
Agenda Report 

DATE: February 15, 2023 

FROM: Armine Chaparyan, City Manager 

ITEM NO.  12

PREPARED BY: Tamara Binns, Assistant to the City Manager� 4,.- A- C.
Andrew Jared, City Attorney 

SUBJECT: Termination of Emergency Order Effective March 1, 2023; 
Remote Teleconferencing Meeting of Legislative Bodies; 
Continuation of Participation by the Public Through Remote 
Access 

Recommendation 
The Agenda Report will be provided under separate cover. 

12 - 1



 
THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 
LEFT BLANK 

12 - 2



City Council 
Agenda Report 

DATE: February 15, 2023 

ITEM NO. 

FROM: Armine Chaparyan, City Manager -;o,-P-,-AC.. 

PREPARED BY: Domenica K. Megerdichian, Deputy City Manager 
Hsiulee Tran, Deputy Finance Director/Controller 

--

SUBJECT: Finance Department Current Status Update and Organizational 
Assessment 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the City Council receive and file a report and presentation on the 
Finance Department Current Status Update/ Organizational Assessment. 

Background 
The City of South Pasadena has embarked on agency-wide department organizational 
assessments in a strategic effort in analyzing the current state of each department and 
learning of recommendations to improve upon the operations and incorporate industry 
best practices. The assessments are poised to identify specific and actionable priority 
management, resource allocation, staffing needs, and improvements in service to the 
community. The City Manager's Office is working directly with each department to plan 
for and complete assessments across the board: the Public Works Department 
assessment was completed in Fall 2021; the Finance Department, Community Services 
Department, and Management Services Department's Human Resources and 
Information Technology division assessments are underway. The Police Department 
assessment is underway, and the Fire Department is working on creating a Request for 
Proposal (RFP) in the near future. 

The City Manager and the City Council have provided staff direction that final reports 
incorporate an assessment of staffing, resources, a review of policies and procedures, 
and general recommendations based on industry changes and best practices. Such 
reports are provided to the City Manager and presented to City Council. The reports will 
allow the City Manager to work with each department to strategically plan and implement 
recommendations based on the assessments, and create a basis for general oversight 
and operational management of the agency. 

The Finance Department has undergone many changes since 2018. Turnover in staffing, 
untimely preparation and presentation of key budget and audit documents, and concerns 
over the management of the department and the City's finances led to the creation of a 
Finance Ad Hoc Committee, appointed by the City Council, to analyze budget processes, 
reports, assessments and other issues. 

13

13 - 1



Award of Contract for Police Department Organizational Assessment 
February 15, 2023 
Page 2 of 9 

Since June 2021, the new City administration has worked with the Finance Department, 
and every department across the agency, to resource change by way of appropriate 
staffing levels, technology and other tools, and work toward industry shifts and best 
practices. Leadership has embarked on department organizational assessments as an 
additional tool in an effort to capture the current status, review policies, analyze existing 
resources, look at industry best practices and trends, and develop actionable 
recommendations towards working with the City Council to delivering our departments 
and agency to better serve the community for the future. The Finance Department 
organizational assessment was began by the previous Interim Finance Director, and has 
been completed in a concerted effort between the City Manager’s Office and the current 
Finance Department leadership.  The following Finance Department organizational 
assessment is presented for your review: 

Past Assessments 
The Finance Department has undergone a number of assessments since 2018 (see 
attached): 

1. Citygate Report (2018)
2. Claro Report (2020)
3. Finance Ad Hoc Committee Report (2022)

It is current staff’s understanding that the Citygate Report and the Claro Report have not 
previously been publicly shared and discussed or circulated in this forum.  The Citygate 
Report has been available on the City’s website for some time, and a non-privileged 
summary of the Claro Report has previously been released. These documents pre-date 
the current executive staff in the City Manager’s Office and the Finance Department. 
The Finance Ad Hoc Committee submitted their final report to the City Council in mid-
2022, and the report was agendized and received at the regular meetings of the City 
Council.  It was discussed twice, in June and in August 2022. This staff report provides 
these previous reports as attachments, and provides a response to the findings and 
recommendations therein. 

Citygate Report- 2018  
Citygate Associates is a local government consulting firm. It was hired by the City to 
prepare an audit and assessment of the Finance Department, in 2018. The report 
consisted of 36 findings and 44 recommendations, pertaining to the Finance 
Department work flow, work product, technology and resource needs, staffing and staff 
morale issues. This included findings of lack of training, and a lack of sufficient policies 
and procedures. Attachment A provides the full Citygate Report of 2018, and 
Attachment B provides an in-depth spreadsheet compiled in 2022/23 by current staff, 
including responses to each recommendation and finding, as well as a current status.  

Current staff can confirm that while some improvements were begun in 2018/2019, but 
much improvement and progress has been made since 2021 to follow industry best 
practices: 

13 - 2



Award of Contract for Police Department Organizational Assessment 
February 15, 2023 
Page 3 of 9 

• Of the report’s 36 findings and 44 recommendations, 29 have been completed
(66%), 14 are in progress or ongoing (32%), and a small fraction are N/A or
removed (Attachment B)

• 98% of the findings and recommendations have been completed, are in-
progress, or are ongoing.  Major improvements include:

o Professional development of staff and participation in professional
organizations and trainings (On-going)

o Exploring improvements to technology and modules in existing programs
o Updated Finance Policies and Procedures (adopted by Council,

November 2022)
o Annual presentation of Mid-year budget reports to City Council
o Timely annual audit completed and presented to City Council for

consideration and deliberation ahead of budget adoptions (completed
2022 and on on-track for 2023)

o Significant improvements to the workflows and work products of the
department, and a significant catch-up post-COVID shutdown to monthly
investments, reconciliations and reporting (On-going)

o Significantly improved staff morale (internal), including the promotion of
two Assistants to Analysts, clear direction from leadership, improved
interdepartmental relationships and customer service (On-going)

o The reclassification and hiring of a Deputy Finance Director/Controller in
November 2022 and a Deputy City Manager in December 2021 to lead
and deliver upon organizational and department improvements and
services

o Quarterly budget updates and monthly operational status updates to City
Council; moving forward starting Spring 2023, staff will provide monthly
budget updates (On-going)

o The alignment of City Council and Commission work products and
priorities with the Adopted 2021-2026 Strategic Plan and the current
Adopted Budget (On-going)

Six findings/recommendations have been removed or are no longer applicable: the 
inability of staff to ‘question’ their Director, the installation of a kiosk in the City Hall 
lobby to facilitate transactions, the recommendation to shift the Filming Division from 
Community Development to Finance, and the suggestion to create certain manuals for 
internal use.  

Staff recognizes that the state of the Finance Department of 2018 -- that predated many 
current staff— was lacking and in need of many improvements. Leadership has 
implemented significant improvements following industry best practices to address the 
issues identified. The Department is dedicated to the ongoing improvements to 
technology, staff training and cross training, and more to continue to improve the 
Finance Department. 

13 - 3



Award of Contract for Police Department Organizational Assessment 
February 15, 2023 
Page 4 of 9 

Claro Group- 2020 
The Claro Group was retained in August 2018 to review and identify accounting records 
related to a potential misappropriation of monies or possible fraudulent activity; the 
report set out to identify transactions and/or vendors for further investigation.  

The Report included nine (9) separate analyses of the City’s Accounts Payable: 
1. To seek out any fictitious vendors- none found
2. To apply forensic accounting analysis tools
3. To test round dollar amounts for any improperly recorded vendors- none found
4. To review CalPers payments- two questions identified and reviewed and deemed

appropriate
5. To review of payments by year to vendors- none warranted further investigation
6. To analyze frequency of checks from 2012- 2018 to vendors- none warranted further

investigation
7. To identify variance from averages- none warranted further investigation
8. To review new vendors to identify possible fictitious ones- none found
9. To review vendors with significant increase in payments- 31 identified as having

significant increases from the year prior, and after review, deemed each vendor’s
activity appropriate and reasonable

Because the report utilized sensitive information regarding forensic tools used to identify 
fraud, and because personnel issue could have been implicated, the Claro Group was 
retained through legal counsel and was an attorney-client privileged communication. The 
report was redacted to protect the city’s interests in preventing disclosure of investigative 
methods and tools. The redactions do not address the analysis or conclusions of the 
report. The Claro Report version attached is the one that was released in September 
2020. 

The report continued to analyze and identify areas for further investigation and 
consideration of internal work flows and processes, including: review of transactions to 
vendors, review of any duplicate payments, review of same-day multiple transaction 
postings, and review of cash receipts. No significant findings were identified at the 
conclusion of the report.  

Finance Ad Hoc Committee (FAHC)- 2022 
The Finance Ad Hoc Committee was formed by the City Council in September 2020 in an 
effort to review the fiscal year 2020-2021 budget, the Annual Comprehensive Finance 
Report (ACFR) for fiscal year 2018-2019, and to address concerns of oversight and 
management of the City’s budget process under the purview of the previous leadership 
and administration at City Hall. The Committee was tasked with making recommendations 
to improvements to the City’s process, including timely completion of various milestones. 
Shortcoming of the time included: 

- Unexplained changes between proposed budgets for review and adoptions,
- Council’s consideration of the budget ahead of timely audits,
- The issues leading to the need of the development of the Ad Hoc Committee for

13 - 4



Award of Contract for Police Department Organizational Assessment 
February 15, 2023 
Page 5 of 9 

oversight and improvements, and 
- Concerns of the lack of internal controls, transparency and timeliness of

reporting.

The Committee’s Report was presented to and received by the City Council on June 15, 
2022, and again on August 17, 2022 for further discussion opportunity.  

The report provided for a number of recommendations, many of which have been 
remedied or are in the remedial process: 

• Policies and Procedures
Finance Policies and Procedures have been re-established, and were adopted
by the City Council in November 2022. Staff training across the agency is
ongoing to ensure the adherence to the Policies and Procedures.

• Timely Reporting and Transparency
The current administration has worked diligently to address these issues,
including a timely presentation of a Mid-Year budget report to City Council,
quarterly budget updates to City Council, timely deliverance of an annual audit
ahead of budget discussions and adoptions, a robust budget process calendar,
including community input and discussion sessions, and timely adoption of an
annual budget. The monthly Citywide Operational Status Updates from
September to December 2022 will be replaced by continued quarterly
discussions of budget and operations, including a shift to monthly budget
updates to City Council beginning Spring 2023.

• Timely Audits
The FY 2021-2022 audit has been completed 4 months in advance of last year’s
audit, and the final draft is being presented to City Council, months ahead of the
budget discussions to follow. We are closer to the industry best practices we
strive for, and continue improvements in this realm. The City will be seeking a
new auditor contract at the completion of the existing contract with the current
firm.

• Proper Staffing Levels/Morale
The administration has committed to, and made strides, in employee training and
retention, professionalizing our workforce, and incorporating better and best
practices to our processes as well as internal and external customer services.
The City Manager’s Office is working closely with Finance Department leadership
to assess staffing and resourcing needs, and City Council recently approved of
temporary high-level finance staffing hires, to include the placement of a new
Interim Finance Director, while the agency seeks a permanent placement in the
coming months. The Accounting Manager position was reclassified to a Deputy
Finance Director/Controller, and the Controller has been hired, on boarded, and
has hit the ground running in leadership to the department and agency.

13 - 5



Award of Contract for Police Department Organizational Assessment 
February 15, 2023 
Page 6 of 9 

• Legal
The City Council has directed the City Manager’s Office to seek proposals for
City Attorney Services. Council established a sub-committee, and efforts to draft
a final Request for Proposal (RFP) are underway. Award of contract is expected
in May to June 2023. Recommendations and best practices are being included in
the RFP to provide for improvements to contract management by the City,
including , increased transparency in financial reporting on legal expenses, are
built into the new RFP to provide for improvements to contract and reporting
management, and identifying potential conflicts of interest in providing services to
the agency by prospective bidders.

• Recommendations for City Staff
In response to various recommendations made for internal processes and for
City staff, the Department together with the City Manager’s Office, continues to
commit to implementing industry best practices and corrective measures. The
City Attorney has provided an update to the City Council on current litigation and
legal liability positions, and will continue to keep apprised as cases and legal
needs move forward. Legal expenses and invoices have been parsed out to
provide more detail, including costs associated with public record request review.
Finally, the shift to provide quarterly and monthly updates to the Finance
Commission and the City Council are underway, as we shift from quarterly
budget updates to monthly in Spring 2023, and continue to maintain a higher
level of information sharing and transparency in efforts underway.

Current Status Update/ Finance Department Operational Assessment 
The City Manager’s Office and the Finance Department have worked together to 
complete and present a current status update and Finance Department Operational 
Assessment for City Council’s review and consideration. The Assessment was initiated 
by the previous Interim Finance Director, and has been finalized as a joint work product 
of the City Manager’s Office and Finance Department, as current staff and leadership can 
provide a high-level accounting of our current status, and recommendations of how to 
continue the positive trajectory.  

Finance Assessment Summary 

• As of February 5, 2023, the Finance Department has made substantial progress
in addressing both the Finance Ad Hoc Committee findings of June, 2022 and
the 36 findings and 44 recommendations of the City Gate Report.

• Of the 36 findings and 44 recommendations, 29 have been completed (66%), 14
are in progress or ongoing (32%), and a small fraction are N/A or removed
(Attachment B).

• One of the Committee’s findings that is still subject to review is our workers
compensation and self-insurance coverage and liability.  An actuarial study was
undertaken but a final review is required to address additional concerns if any.

13 - 6



Award of Contract for Police Department Organizational Assessment 
February 15, 2023 
Page 7 of 9 

Current Operational State of the Finance Department is in Good Order 

• Our financial statements for the fiscal year end June 2022 have been completed
and the final draft will be submitted to the Finance Commission for review and
approval prior to submission to City Council.

• We have completed our ACFR in time for us to submit to GFOA (Government
Finance Officers Association) for the ACFR Award of FY 2022.  Considering that
last year, we were not able to meet the deadline requirements due to the FY
2021 ACFR because of its 6 month completion delay to June 2022, this is major
progress.

• Based on our complete and timely submission of requested documents (PBC’s)
from auditors, we expect no accounting practice findings as we have addressed
many of the past years’ comments that were within our present control and
resources. If there will be any, they will be concentrated on issues that cannot be
resolved immediately i.e. major purchases of additional software.

Timely Reporting 
The following reports have been completed timely: 

• The State Controller’s Report was submitted on time last January 30, 2023.
• The Payroll W-2’s forms and the vendors 1099 forms were distributed by January

30, 2023.
• The MTA Audit (Metro) was completed with no findings on accounting standards

last December.
• The Street Report was also completed before due date.
• Our US Census report will be completed by February 15.
• Our OPEB (Other post-employment benefits) actuarial was completed in time for

our city-wide audit; the draft report was presented to the Finance Commission on
February 6, 2023, and the Final Draft is presented tonight to City Council

• One of the findings of the Citygate report was the timely submission of our
Investment Reports; this fiscal year, we have met all deadlines relating to
Investment reports and will continue to do this as a matter of course.

• Bank Reconciliations are well managed in spite of the loss of the accountant
position due to resignation in January 2023 to pursue higher education—a
recruitment for an accountant will follow immediately.

• The November and December bank reconciliations are in process.  Variances
have already been identified and the remaining process will be posting these
pending journal entries.

• The Finance manager has taken over the duty in order for us to complete both
reconciliations to a zero variance by February 15th.  Comparatively, a two month
delay is not uncommon during audit time—while we are reconciled, it is the
posting of the journal entries that identify variances, if any, including deposits in
transit and other timing differences.

• The midyear budget report is being finalized by the Finance Director, and in

13 - 7



Award of Contract for Police Department Organizational Assessment 
February 15, 2023 
Page 8 of 9 

partnership in working with each Department across the agency. Departments 
have met with Finance staff to review all requests and discussions, and review 
and strategic planning of all mid-year requests will take place with the City 
Manager ahead of the report to Council. 

• The budget season is in full swing.  Budget calendars have been distributed and
we expect to meet the deadlines as scheduled.

Areas for Continued Improvement 

• Staffing remains an issue. City employment trends have become contributory in
the delay in solving staffing requirements.  This problem is not unique to us but it
is evident in many city governments.  We have added a Deputy Finance
Director/Controller position this year to the department.  Further assessment of
additional personnel to assist in various back logs and/ or improvements in the
department is necessary.  There remain several projects that have been set
aside in the past that still remain incomplete.

• Significant staff cross-training is absolutely necessary to protect the Department
and the Agency in light of absences or staffing turnover/movement. This issue
goes hand-in-hand with the additional staffing needs mentioned above, and
depends fully on maintaining and onboarding qualified personnel who can take
on more responsibilities in the department to add capacity and to all be cross-
trained on all functions.

Resourcing and Next Steps 
• Temporary staffing allocations have recently been approved by the City Council

to provide for a new Interim Finance Director, temporary Finance department
staff, especially to provide capacity during this busy Finance season (audit,
reporting, mid-year, budget process).

• Staff will be requesting that an existing part-time Management Analyst position
be downgraded to a full-time Management Assistant position at the Mid-year
budget discussion, and will be requesting an additional accountant position at
budget.

• The City Manager’s Office plans to hold interviews for a permanent Finance
Director placement in the next couple of months, and looks to shift to permanent
finance staff when the busier season settles; specific staffing levels and needs
will be determined, and City Council will be asked to support those
recommendations when the time comes.

• In addition to staffing needs, technological investments are imperative to adding
functionality, reporting capability, oversight and management to the Finance
Department.

• Staff is exploring additional modules of existing software and products. A robust
financial system and tool will be needed in the near future, and will be an
expensive investment of close to $1M, and staff will work with the City Manager’s
Office and future budget processes to plan for this investment.

13 - 8



Award of Contract for Police Department Organizational Assessment 
February 15, 2023 
Page 9 of 9 

Overall, there is much improvement in the Finance Department. Policies and 
procedures have been adopted and are in place, staff is being trained on the best 
practices across the organization. We are facilitating timely necessary documents and 
processes, including audits, mid-year reports, budget updates, budget process, and 
working to align the work products and priorities of City Council, appointed bodies, 
Departments and their divisions, to the established Strategic Plan priorities, and the 
priorities resourced in the adopted budget. Staff will continue to strive toward industry 
best practices, and is proud of the work they accomplish and the service they provide to 
internal and external customers, as well as to maintaining financial responsibility.   

Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact to this status update/department assessment.  

Attachments: 
1. 2018 Citygate Report
2. 2022/23 Citygate Report Tracking Sheet
3. 2020 Claro Report
4. 2022 Finance Ad Hoc Committee Report (with Staff Report from August 17, 2022

City Council agenda)

13 - 9



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

13 - 10



 ATTACHMENT 1 
 2018 Citygate Report 

13 - 11



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

13 - 12



13 - 13



��������	�
������	����������	���������
13 - 14



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

34567�89�:8;<7;<=� >?@A�B�

3CDEF�GH�:GI3FI3J�KLMNOPQ� RSTL�UVLMWNOXL�KWYYSZ[�\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\�]�_̂̀àb_ac�d̀efghai_f̀�j�klggm̀i�àn�og_fg�̂_pbac�qmagp�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�s�tfliu�oapanm̀a�vm̀mgac�̂l̀n�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�s�vm̀mgac�wxpmgyai_f̀p�fe�̂_̀àbm�zm{agihm̀i�w{mgai_f̀p�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�|�}manmgpu_{��rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�~��nm�lab��fe���_pi_̀��tiaee�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr���ofim̀i_ac�zm{agihm̀i��mfg�à_�ai_f̀�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr���tl{{cmhm̀iac�tiaee_̀��rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr����fgacm����rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr���ogfnlbi_y_i��rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr����klpifhmg�tmgy_bm�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr����l̂ilgm�̂_̀àbm�zm{agihm̀i�kuaccm̀�mp�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�����mym̀lm�kuaccm̀�mp�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�����_p_̀��kaco��t�kfpip�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr����ogfbmpp�dh{gfymhm̀i�zmymcf{hm̀i�àn�dh{cmhm̀iai_f̀�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr����KLMNOPQ�]��QNZP�WMNOPQ�\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\�]���r�� olg{fpm�fe�tiln��rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr��s��r�� ogf�mbi��{{gfabu�àn��mpmagbu��miufnfcf���rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr��|��rs� vm̀mgac�k_i��wymgy_m��rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�����rsr�� _̂̀àb_ac�d̀efghai_f̀�j�klggm̀i�àn�og_fg�̂_pbac�qmagp�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr��~��r|� _̂̀àbm�zm{agihm̀i��mpi�ogabi_bm�àn�omgefghàbm��maplgmp�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr����KLMNOPQ����OQSQML��L�SZNYLQN���LZSNOPQS���LXOL��\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\�����r�� �ab��gfl̀n�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr��~��r�r�� _̂̀àbm�zm{agihm̀i�wg�à_�ai_f̀�àn�̂l̀bi_f̀ac��mp{f̀p_x_c_i_mp�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr��~��r�r�� _̂̀àbm�zm{agihm̀i�oapi�̂_̀àb_ac��bi_y_i��rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�s���r�rs� tiaee_̀��tigm̀�iup�àn��ma�̀mppmp�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�s���r�r|� omgbm{i_f̀�fe�̂_̀àbm�zm{agihm̀i�x��wiumg�zm{agihm̀ip�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�s|��r�� �àa�mhm̀i�}mymc��my_m��fe�̂_̀àbm�zm{agihm̀i�̂l̀bi_f̀p�àn�omgefghàbm�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�s ��r�r�� �ln�mi�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�s ��r�r�� �ln_i�àn�d̀img̀ac�kf̀igfc�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�s~��r�rs� oa�gfcc�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�|���r�r|� �bbfl̀ip�oa�axcm�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�||��r�r ���lp_̀mpp�}_bm̀p_̀�¡��bbfl̀ip��mbm_yaxcm¡�àn�kapu��mbm_{ip�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�|���r�r�� vgàip¡�¢i_c_i_mp¡�àn�t{mb_ac�ogf�mbip�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr� ���r�r~� £gmaplg�¤d̀ympihm̀ip�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr� ~��r�r�� _̂ch_̀�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr� ���rsr�� vm̀mgac�zm{agihm̀i¥�_nm�dpplmp�àn�wxpmgyai_f̀p�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�����rsr�� tiaee�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�����rsr�� _̂̀àb_ac��àa�mhm̀i�tfei�agm�àn���l_{hm̀i�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr�� ��rsrs� _̂pbac�ofc_bmp�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr����KLMNOPQ���¦LQM§YSZ̈OQT��Q©PZYSNOPQ�\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\�ª«�sr�� kfh{agai_ym�k_i��tmcmbi_f̀��{{gfabu�rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr����
13 - 15



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

34567�89�:8;<7;<=� >?@A�BB�

CDE� FGHIJKH�LM�NGOPQRSTUVOW�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�XY�CDEDZ� [L\IJSKVLO�NSHG]�NGOPQRSTUH�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�XY�CDEDE� ĜVWQ_LTVOW�̀VKVGH�NGOPQRSTUH�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�XY�CDEDC� [TGaVLIHJb�cHG]�̀LR\STSKLT�dWGOPb�NGOPQRSTU�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�XZ�efghijk�lmnohopf�nikqkgiqr�sqkqtfufkh�vwqrrfktfx�yyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyy�z{�|DZ� }IKITG�}VOSOPG�~G\STKRGOK�̀QSJJGOWGH�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�XC�|DZDZ� FGaGOIG�̀QSJJGOWGH�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�XC�|DZDE� FVHVOW�̀SJ[�F��̀LHKH�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�XC�|DZDC� [TLPGHH��R\TLaGRGOK�~GaGJL\RGOK�SO]��R\JGRGOKSKVLO�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�X|�efghijk��meouuqp��j��nik�iktx����fgjuufk�qhijkx����f�h�ehf�x�yyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyy�z����q�rf�j���q�rfx��S_JG�Z�}��Z��ZX�SO]�}��ZX�Z��cOSHHVWOG]��GOGTSJ�}IO]�NSJSOPG�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�|��S_JG�E�}��Z��ZX�SO]�}��ZX�Z��cOSHHVWOG]��GOGTSJ�}IO]�NSJSOPG�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�Z���S_JG�C�}VaG��GST�̀LR\STVHLO�LM�̀LR\LOGOKH�LM��GOGTSJ�}IO]�NSJSOPG�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�EY��S_JG�|�}VaG��GST��GOGTSJ�}IO]�FGaGOIG�SO]���\GO]VKITG���NI]WGK�aGTHIH�dPKISJ�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�EZ��S_JG���}VaG��GST�}VOSOPG�~G\STKRGOK���\GO]VKITGH��NI]WGK�aGTHIH�dPKISJ��DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�CE��S_JG���[L\IJSKVLO�NSHG]�NGOPQRSTUH�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�XY��S_JG�X� ĜVWQ_LTVOW�̀VKVGH�NGOPQRSTUH�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�XZ��S_JG���[TGaVLIHJb�cHG]�̀LR\STSKLT�dWGOPb�NGOPQRSTUH�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�XE��S_JG���}VO]VOWH�SO]�FGPLRRGO]SKVLOH��VKQ�[TVLTVKb�FSOUVOW�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�X����q�rf�j��nitopfx�}VWITG�Z� V̀Kb�LM��LIKQ�[SHS]GOS��TWSOV�SKVLOSJ�̀QSTK�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�ZX�}VWITG�E��GOGTSJ�}IO]�FGaGOIG�aGTHIH���\GO]VKITG�dPKISJ���}VaG��GST�̀LR\STVHLODDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�EE�}VWITG�C�}VOSOPG�~G\STKRGOK��TWSOV�SKVLOSJ�̀QSTK�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�EX�����fk�igfx����fk�i���� sorhi ¡fqp�¢o�tfh�£fpxox��ghoqr�¤�¥fkfpqr�nok��¤�¦��fk�ihopfx����§f�qphufkh����fk�i��̈� sorhi ¡fqp�¢o�tfh�£fpxox��ghoqr�¤�¥fkfpqr�nok��¤�¦��fk�ihopfx����vqhftjp�����fk�i��{� ¢fkgwuqp©��tfkg��vju�qpixjkx�¤�ªj�orqhijk ¢qxf�����fk�i��l� ¢fkgwuqp©��tfkg��vju�qpixjkx�¤��fitw�jpikt�vihifx����fk�i���� ¢fkgwuqp©��tfkg��vju�qpixjkx�¤�ªpf«ijoxr��¬xf��vju�qpqhjp��tfkgifx���
13 - 16



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789:5�;7<<=>?� @ABC�D�

EFEGHIJKE�LHMMNOP�QRS�TUVW�XY�ZX[VR�\]̂]_S̀]�aTUVWb�cX̀Vd]cVS_�eUVR�TUVWf]VS�ĝ X̂cU]VŜh�iiT�aTUVWf]VSb�VX�jdXkU_S�]�dSkUSe�XY�VRS�Tlmnop�qlrsrtu�vuwsxmyurm�azSj]dV{S̀Vb�XjSd]VUX̀ �̂VX�U_S̀VUYW�jXVS̀VU]|�U{jdXkS{S̀V̂�]̀_�VX�jdXkU_S�{S̀VXdÙf�̂SdkUcŜ�_[S�VX�dScS̀V�}SW�̂V]YY�V[d̀XkSd~�TUVWf]VS�̂jS̀V�VU{S�X̀�̂UVS�VX�cX̀_[cV�ÙVSdkUSêh�ÙVSdY]cS�eUVR�̂V]YYh�X�̂SdkS�Xdf]̀U�]VUX̀]|�jdXcŜ̂ Ŝ�]̀_�jdXcS_[dŜh�]̀_�dŜS]dcR�]̀_�]ccŜ̂�zSj]dV{S̀V�_Xc[{S̀V̂�]̀_�ÙYXd{]VUX̀~�QRS�̂cXjS�XY�VRÛ�Ù_SjS̀_S̀Vh�VRUd_�j]dVW�Xdf]̀U�]VUX̀]|�dSkUSe�Ùc|[_Ŝ�VRS�YX||XeÙf�S|S{S̀V̂����� ��sylrsml�r����m�u�qlrsrtu�vuwsxmyurmop��x�srl�sml�rs��pmx�tm�xu�sr��sppuppyurm�XY�}SW�{]̀]fS{S̀V�̂V]YYh�]_{ÙÛVd]VUkS�̂VdS̀fVR̂h�]̀_�]dS]̂�Ù�̀SS_�XY�U{jdXkS{S̀V~���� �SkUSe�XY�m�u�qlrsrtu�vuwsxmyurmop��wuxsml�rs����rtml�rp�sr����x������jdXcŜ̂ Ŝ�VX�U_S̀VUYW�XkSd]||� V̂dS̀fVR̂�]̀_�eS]}̀Ŝ̂ Ŝ�VX�jdXkU_S�dScX{{S̀_]VUX̀ �̂YXd�̂VdS]{|ÙÙf�jdXcS_[dŜ�]̀_�jdXcŜ̂ Ŝ~���� �̀VSdkUSê�eUVR�]jj|Uc]�|S�TUVW�jSd̂X̀ S̀|�VX�_SVSd{ÙS�VRS�SYYScVUkS̀Ŝ �̂XY�VRS�qlrsrtu�vuwsxmyurmop���x������wx�tuppup�sr��s��uxurtu�m���lrsrtls��sr��XjSd]VUX̀]|�jX|UcUŜ�]̀_�jdXcS_[dŜ~���� �SkUSe�XY�jSdVÙS̀V�zSj]dV{S̀V�_dUkS̀�_Xc[{S̀V̂�]̀_�dSjXdV̂�VX�_SVSd{ÙS�]_S�[]cWh�̀ScŜ̂UVWh�]̀_�VU{S|ÙŜ̂~���� �_S̀VUYUc]VUX̀�XY��ŜV�jd]cVUcŜ�]̀_�jSdYXd{]̀cS�{S]̂[dŜ�YXd�VRS�zSj]dV{S̀V�aU~S~h�|X̀f�d]̀fS�YÛc]|�j|]̀ Ù̀fh�Vd]ÙÙfh�]̀_�̂[ccŜ̂UX̀�j|]̀ Ù̀fb~��� \dXkÛUX̀�XY�jdXYŜ̂UX̀]|�f[U_]̀cS�]̀_�{S̀VXdÙf�VX�}SW�{]̀]fS{S̀V�̂V]YY�]̂�S̀S_S_�_[dÙf�VRS�S̀f]fS{S̀V~���� \dXkÛUX̀�XY�̂V]V[̂�[j_]VŜ�SkSdW�XVRSd�eSS}�VX�VRS�\dX�ScV��]̀]fSd�]̀_�TUVW��]̀]fSd�X[V|ÙÙf�jdXfdŜ̂�]̀_�jXVS̀VU]|�Û̂[Ŝ�_[dÙf�VRS�S̀f]fS{S̀V~���� zSkS|Xj{S̀V�]̀_�jdŜS̀V]VUX̀�XY�]�zd]YV��SjXdV�XY�]||�YÙ_Ùf̂�]̀_�dScX{{S̀_]VUX̀ �̂YXd�dSkUSe��W�VRS�TUVW~���� zS|UkSdW�XY�VRS��Ù]|��SjXdV�VX�VRS�TUVW~�QRS�]jjdX]cR�[̂S_�VX�cX{j|SVS�VRÛ�dSkUSe�cX̀ Û̂VS_�XY�]�cX{�Ù]VUX̀�XY�X̀�̂UVS�]̀]|ŴÛ�a]̀�]kSd]fS�XY�VRdSS�_]Ŵ�jSd�eSS}b�]̀_�XYY�̂UVS�]̀]|ŴÛh�eRUcR�Ùc|[_S_�VRS�YX||XeÙf�V]̂}̂���� zXc[{S̀V��SkUSe���g̀�S�VS̀ ÛkS�̀[{�Sd�XY�_Xc[{S̀V̂�dS|]VÙf�VX�VRS�zSj]dV{S̀V�eSdS�dSkUSeS_�VX�RS|j�f]Ù�]̀�[̀_Sd̂V]̀_Ùf�XY�VRS�YXd{]|�edUVVS̀�XjSd]VUX̀]|�jX|UcUŜ�]̀_�jdXcS_[dŜ�c[ddS̀V|W�Ù�j|]cS�]V�VRS�TUVW~�
13 - 17



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789:5�;7<<=>?� @ABC�D�

E� FGHIJKLIMN�O�FG�PQQLHLRG�HR�JIKLIMLGS�QRTUVIGHNW�KPJLRUN�LGHIJKLIMN�MIJI�TRGQUTHIQ�MLHX�YIZ�[LHZ�NHP\\�HR�SPLG�PG�UGQIJNHPGQLGS�R\�XRM�]JRTINNIN�PJI�TPJJLIQ�RUH�\JRV�HXI�]IJN]ITHLKIN�R\�HXI�LGQLKLQUP̂N�MLHXLG�HXI�_I]PJHVIGH�MXR�PJI�JIN]RGNL̀̂I�\RJ�]JRKLQLGS�NIJKLTINW�PN�MÎ̂�PN�HXI�KPJLRUN�IaHIJGP̂�QI]PJHVIGHN�HXPH�JITILKI�NIJKLTINb�cXI�LGHIJKLIMN�XÎ]IQ�HR�LQIGHL\Z�NHJIGSHXN�PGQ�MIPYGINNIN�R\�HXI�_I]PJHVIGH�PGQdRJ�\LGPGTIeJÎPHIQ�[LHZMLQI�]JRTINNIN�PGQ�]JRTIQUJINb��f� cXI�]RNLHLRGN�R\�gLGPGTI�_LJITHRJ�PGQ�hNNLNHPGH�gLGPGTI�_LJITHRJ�MIJI�GRH�LGHIJKLIMIQ�̀ITPUNI�HXIZ�MIJI�GR�̂RGSIJ�MLHX�HXI�[LHZ�PH�HXI�NHPJH�R\�HXLN�IGSPSIVIGHb�_UI�HR�HXI�IaHIGUPHLGS�TLJTUVNHPGTIN�JÎPZIQ�̀Z�[LHZ�VPGPSIVIGHW�LH�MPN�QIHIJVLGIQ�HXPH�LGHIJKLIMLGS�HXINI�LGQLKLQUP̂N�MRÛQ�GRH�TXPGSI�HXI�\LGQLGSN�PGQ�JITRVVIGQPHLRGN�R\�HXI�JI]RJHb�E� iR̀�jXPQRMLGS�O�hN�P�NITRGQPJZ�VIHXRQ�HR�KP̂LQPHI�HXI�]JRTIQUJIN�NXPJIQ�QUJLGS�HXI�KPJLRUN�LGHIJKLIMN�R\�_I]PJHVIGH�NHP\\W�kR̀�NXPQRMLGS�MPN�TRGQUTHIQ�MLHX�NRVI�R\�HXI�_I]PJHVIGH�]RNLHLRGNW�LGT̂UQLGS�hTTRUGHN�lPZP̀ ÎW�lPZJR̂̂W�PGQ�[PNX�mITIL]HNb�E� nIGHRJLGS�PGQ�oULQPGTI�O�lJR\INNLRGP̂�SULQPGTIW�VIGHRJLGSW�PGQ�\IIQ̀PTY�MIJI�]JRKLQIQ�HR�_I]PJHVIGH�NHP\\�PGQ�RHXIJ�YIZ�[LHZ�NHP\\�JÎPHLGS�HR�KPJLRUN�[LHZ�\LGPGTI�LNNUINW�NUTX�PN�̀UQSIH�]JI]PJPHLRGW�PUQLHLGSW�NHPHI�JI]RJHNW�R]IJPHLRGP̂�]JRTINNINW�PGQ�HJPLGLGSb�cXI�JINIPJTX�VIHXRQR̂RSZ�P̂NR�LGT̂UQIQ�JIKLIM�R\�KPJLRUN�VUGLTL]P̂�\LGPGTI�RJSPGLpPHLRGP̂�MÌNLHINW�LGT̂UQLGS�HXI�[P̂L\RJGLP�jRTLIHZ�R\�nUGLTL]P̂�gLGPGTI�q\\LTIJNW�oRKIJGVIGH�gLGPGTI�q\\LTIJN�hNNRTLPHLRG�rogqhsW�FGHIJGPHLRGP̂�[LHZd[RUGHZ�nPGPSIVIGH�hNNRTLPHLRGW�oRKIJGVIGHP̂�hTTRUGHLGS�jHPGQPJQN�tRPJQW�PGQ�uRN�hGSÎIN�[RUGHZ�vTRGRVLT�_IKÎR]VIGH�[RJ]RJPHLRGW�PN�MÎ̂�PN�jHPHI�PGQ�gIQIJP̂�RJSPGLpPHLRGP̂�MÌNLHINW�LGT̂UQLGS�HXI�[P̂L\RJGLP�jHPHI�wxyz{x||}{~�w�|��x{y����}��{z�}yz�x����y�y�}~�w�|��x{y������|������|x�}}����}z�{}�}yz����z}��r[P̂lvmjsW�PGQ��j�[IGNUN�tUJIPUb�hQQLHLRGP̂̂ZW�KPJLRUN�TRV]PJP̀ Î�TLHZ�MÌNLHIN�MIJI�JIKLIMIQ�HR�]JRKLQI�TRV]PJPHLKI�QPHP�\RJ�HXLN�JI]RJHb��jRUHX�lPNPQIGP�LN�̂RTPHIQ�P]]JRaLVPHÎZ�NLa�VL̂IN�GRJHXIPNH�R\�QRMGHRMG�uRN�hGSÎIN�RG�HXI�MINH�NLQI�R\�HXI�jPG�oP̀JLÎ��P̂̂IZ�̀IHMIIG�HXI�[LHLIN�R\�lPNPQIGPW�jPG�nPJLGRW�uRN�hGSÎINW�PGQ�ĥXPV̀ JPW�PGQ�LH�XPN�P�]R]ÛPHLRG�R\���W���b�gRUGQIQ�LG������̀Z�HXI�FGQLPGP�[R̂RGZW�HXI�[LHZ�IGTRV]PNNIN��b���N�UPJI�VL̂IN�PGQ�MPN�LGTRJ]RJPHIQ�PN�P�SIGIJP̂�̂PM�[LHZ�R\�HXI�jHPHI�R\�[P̂L\RJGLP�RG�nPJTX��W�����b�jRUHX�lPNPQIGP�LN�GRHIQ�\RJ�LHN�̀IPUHL\ÛW�XLNHRJLTP̂̂Z�NLSGL\LTPGH�XRVIN�RG�HJIIêLGIQ�NHJIIHNW�\RJ�LHN�IaTÎ̂IGH�]Ù L̂T�NTXRR̂NW�PGQ�\RJ�P�NVP̂̂eHRMG�PHVRN]XIJI�LG�HXI�VLQNH�R\�SJIPHIJ�uRN�hGSÎINb�cXI�[LHZ�LN�P�\Û̂eNIJKLTI�SIGIJP̂�̂PM�[LHZ�HXPH�R]IJPHIN�UGQIJ�HXI�[RUGTL̂enPGPSIJ�\RJV�R\�SRKIJGVIGHb�cXI�[LHZ�[RUGTL̂�TRGNLNHN�R\�\LKI�VIV̀ IJN�ÎITHIQ�HR�\RUJeZIPJ�NHPSSIJIQ�HIJVN�R\�
13 - 18



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789:5�;7<<=>?� @ABC�D�

EFFGHIJ�KLI�MNOEP�GQ�QIRIHSIT�FPEU�SLI�VGSO�VEWXHGR�UIUYIPQ�NXT�QIPZIQ�N�EXI[OINP�SIPUJ�KLI�VGSO\Q�ESLIP�IRIHSIT�EFFGHGNRQ�NPI�SLI�VGSO�KPINQWPIP�NXT�VGSO�VRIP]̂�INHL�EF�_LEU�QIPZI�N�FEWP[OINP�SIPU�EF�EFFGHIJ�KLI�VGSO�̀PEZGTIQ�N�FWRR�PNXaI�EF�QIPZGHIQ̂�GXHRWTGXa�̀ERGHI�NXT�FGPI�̀PESIHSGEXb�SLI�HEXQSPWHSGEX�NXT�UNGXSIXNXHI�EF�QSPIISQ�NXT�ESLIP�GXFPNQSPWHSWPIb�QI_IP�QIPZGHIQb�_NSIP�WSGRGSOb�PIFWQI�HERRIHSGEXb�̀WYRGH�GÙ PEZIUIXSQb�̀RNXXGXa�NXT�cEXGXab�PIHPINSGEXNR�NHSGZGSGIQ�NXT�HWRSWPNR�IZIXSQb�RGYPNPO�ÈIPNSGEXQb�NXT�aIXIPNR�NTUGXGQSPNSGZI�NXT�QẀ ÈPS�QIPZGHIQJd�efghgifhj�fgeklmhnfkg�o�ipllqgn�hgr�slfkl�eftihj�uqhlt�vwx�yz{|\}�FGQHNR�OINP�~����d��d��YWTaISIT�I�̀IXTGSWPIQ�SESNR�Ǹ P̀E�GUNSIRO�����UGRRGEX̂�GXHRWTGXa�YWTaISIT��IXIPNR��WXT�I�̀IXTGSWPIQ�EF�Ǹ P̀E�GUNSIRO����J��UGRRGEXJ�KLI�VGSO�LNQ�d���NWSLEPGcIT�FWRR[SGUI�IÙ REOIIQ�NXT����̀NPS[SGUI�IÙ REOIIQ�_LEQI�UN�GUWU�_EP]�LEWPQ�PNXaI�YIS_IIX�d��NXT����LEWPQ�̀IP�_II]J��Q�EF�SLI�SGUI�EF�SLGQ�PÌEPŜ�SLI�VGSO�LNT�d��ZNHNXHGIQJ�;�78���=�=�5�=��5�5>=���7����EP����d��d�̂�YWTaISIT��IXIPNR��WXT�I�̀IXTGSWPIQ�EF�Ǹ P̀E�GUNSIRO����J��UGRRGEX�NPI�QẀ ÈPSIT�YO�NXSGHG̀NSIT�PIZIXWIQ�EF�Ǹ P̀E�GUNSIRO����J�̂�PIQWRSGXa�GX�NX�NXSGHG̀NSIT�ÈIPNSGXa�TIFGHGS�EF�Ǹ P̀E�GUNSIRO�����̂���J��S�GQ�NXSGHG̀NSIT�SLNS�SLGQ�TIFGHGŜ�GF�GS�UNSIPGNRGcIQ̂�_GRR�YI�NTTPIQQIT�_GSL�NZNGRNYRI�FWXT�YNRNXHIJ��KLI�FERRE_GXa�SNYRI�PÌPIQIXSQ�SLI�NXSGHG̀NSIT�WXNQQGaXIT�FWXT�YNRNXHI�NS�SLI�IXT�EF����d��d��YNQIT�EX�SLI����d��d��VEÙ PILIXQGZI��XXWNR��GXNXHGNR��ÌEPS�~V�����NXT�SLI����d��d���TÈSIT��WTaISJ�
�������������������������������������������������d�VGSO�EF��EWSL��NQNTIXN����d��d��VEÙ PILIXQGZI��XXWNR��GXNXHGNR��ÌEPS�

13 - 19



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789:5�;7<<=>?� @ABC�D�

EFGHI�JKLM�JNOJP�FQR�LM�JPOJS�TQFUUVWQIR�XIQIYFH�LZQR�[FHFQ\I�]7̂_58�̀a<bac5c8� d=e75�fg�hijhk�lmnomB�pqrAs�tCmCuAs�fvmn�wAsAmxCh� yhizi�{ossoqm�|5}}~�fg�hijhk��C�Cu�Aroqm��q��lmnomB�tCmCuAs�fvmn�wAsAmxCh� yiz��{ossoqm�fg�hijhk�lmnomB��mA��oBmCn�tCmCuAs�fvmn�wAsAmxCh� y�zk�{ossoqm�]7̂_58�̀a<bac5c8� d=e75�fg�hkjh��wCBommomB�pqrAs�tCmCuAs�fvmn�wAsAmxC� yhizi�{ossoqm�|5}}~�fg�hkjh��wvnBCrCn��C�Cu�Aroqm��q��tCmCuAs�fvmn�wAsAmxC�� y�zD�{ossoqm�|5}}~�fg�hkjh���mroxo@ArCn��@CuAromB��C�oxor�� y�zk�{ossoqm�fg�hkjh���mroxo@ArCn�lmnomB��mA��oBmCn�tCmCuAs�fvmn�wAsAmxC� yh�z��{ossoqm������������������������������������������� ¡�¢�����£�¤¥� �¤������ ¡�¦����� ����� �¤���¤��¥��§��̈©�ª�«�����¥��¤�¬����������¤�£������������ �¤���� ��� �£����£������������� �¤�£���¤���� ����§��®©�̈��������¤��� ̄��§��̈©�ª�����¤� �¤�̄���°��¤������ �¡�±���¤����¤�����������²� ���� ̄�� �³�� ��������� �� � �����²�������� ������ �¤���� ����§��̈©�ª�£�¤¥� �µ́¶·̧ ¹º»�¼½¾�̧¹½º»�»µ�¿¹À¿¹¾¹º»�»Á¹�½̧µ·º»�¿¹Â·Ã¿¹́�À¹¿�»Á¹�ÄÃ»ÅÆ¾�¿¹¾¹¿Ç¹�ÀµÈÃ¶̄¡��¦����� ����� �¤��§��̈©�ª�������¥��¤�¬����������¤�£������������ ���� �¤���� ������������ �£���²���¤�£�������É��� ��̄�ÊË������� ����� ����� �¤���������³�²�������� �� ���¬�Ì�Æ¾�£�� �À¿½¶»Ã¶¹�¿¹¶µ̧ ¹̧º́½»Ãµº�½º́�»Á¹�ÄÃ»ÅÆ¾�¿¹¾¹¿Ç¹�ÀµÈÃ¶Å�µÍ�½»�È¹½¾»�ÎÏ������� ���¬����������¤���������¡���� ���¥�� ���ÄÃ»ÅÆ¾�·º½¾¾ÃÐº¹́�Í·º́�Ñ½È½º¶¹�Ã¾�¿¹È½»ÃÇ¹ÈÅ�Á¹½È»ÁÅÒ�À� �� ������Ó�������� ����� �£�������¤���¤³��������� ��������¥���� ��������Ô�Õ���¤�� ������� �������������¤�������������������¤�£̄��� ����� ������¤©������������¤�²� ����¡�����Ô�Õ������¤�� �¤�������� �� �²���¤���²��� ���������¥���� ��Ö¤������ ��� �×������� �������¤� ��¤��������� ̄���� ��£� ������ �������� �����É ����������̄���������̈¡Ø̈Ù������� � ��̈������� ¡�¦����²�������������� ��������Ô�Õ���� �� �� ����� ̄¡�¦��������� ����¤�������¤���������¤� ������ ������ ��������� ¡��¤¤� ������̄³�����������»Á½»�¼µ·È́�¿¹À¹½È�»Á¹�ÄÃ»ÅÆ¾�Ú»ÃÈÃ»Å�Ú¾¹¿¾�Û½Ü�ÝÚÚÛÞ�Á½¾�Â·½ÈÃÍÃ¹́�Íµ¿�»Á¹�ßµÇ¹̧Ñ¹¿�Ñ½ÈÈµ»à�¦���ÄÃ»ÅÆ¾�ÚÚÛ�¿¹À¿¹¾¹º»¾�½ÀÀ¿µÜÃ̧½»¹ÈÅ�áÎ������� ���¬����������¤���������¡�â����¥� ������������²� ��� ������������� ��������²������ã�������¥������ ������������¤�� ����¡�¦����� �����������¤�������¤���������¤� ������ ������ ��������� ¡�äåæåçèé�êëìåçíèîïêæì�êð�ðïæèæñå�òåóèçîôåæî�êóåçèîïêæì�¦�������²��¥������������̄��������µÍ�ÄÃ»ÅÐ½»¹Æ¾�¥��������£����� ������� ���õ���� ��� ¡�Õ�������¤������������� �������� ���� ��������²³�����¤¤� ���� ������������¤��¥����¤�
13 - 20



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789:5�;7<<=>?� @ABC�D�

EFGHIIFJKLMNHJOP�LEF�EFQRFGMFK�NJ�MSF�THKU�HQ�MSF�EFVHEMW�X�OYIILEU�HQ�MSF�OVFGNQNG�QNJKNJZO�LJK�EFGHIIFJKLMNHJO�GLJ�TF�QHYJK�NJ�[\]̂_̀a�b�HQ�MSNO�EFVHEMW�c� dMLQQ�QFFRO�MSLM�MSF�VENHE�eFVLEMIFJM�RFLKFEOSNV�fLO�JHM�OYVVHEMNgF�HE�SFRVQYR�MH�MSFI�NJ�MSF�VFEQHEILJGF�HQ�KLNRU�KYMNFOW�c� hiMFEJLR�MELNJNJZ�LJK�NJMFEJLR�GEHOOjMELNJNJZ�fLOP�QHE�MSF�IHOM�VLEMP�KNOGHYELZFK�TU�MSF�VENHE�eFVLEMIFJM�SFLK�NQ�MSFEF�fLO�LJU�GHOM�NJgHRgFK�fNMS�MSF�MELNJNJZW�kSNO�SLO�EFOYRMFK�NJ�L�RLGl�HQ�OHVSNOMNGLMNHJ�GHJGFEJNJZ�QNJLJGNLR�HVFELMNHJO�HQ�L�IYJNGNVLR�QNJLJGF�KFVLEMIFJM�LJK�L�EFRYGMLJGF�MH�NIVRFIFJM�JFf�NKFLOW�c� kSF�VENHE�eFVLEMIFJM�SFLK�MFJKFK�JHM�MH�OSLEF�HVFELMNHJLR�NJQHEILMNHJ�fNMS�eFVLEMIFJM�OMLQQ�HE�HMSFE�KFVLEMIFJMOP�GLYONJZ�eFVLEMIFJM�OMLQQ�MH�QFFR�MSFU�fFEF�HJ�MSFNE�HfJ�LJK�OSHYRK�JHM�VYOS�QHE�GSLJZFOP�LJK�GLYONJZ�HMSFE�KFVLEMIFJMO�MH�QFFR�QNJLJGNLRRU�YJNJQHEIFKW�c� dHIF�HQ�MSF�eFVLEMIFJM�FIVRHUFFO�OFFIFK�MH�SLgF�YOFK�MSNO�ONMYLMNHJ�LO�LJ�FiGYOF�QHE�VHHE�GYOMHIFE�OFEgNGFP�L�RLGl�HQ�NJNMNLMNgF�MH�NIVEHgF�VEHGFOOFO�LJKmHE�VEHGFKYEFO�NJ�MSFNE�EFOVFGMNgF�LEFLOP�LJK�L�RLGl�HQ�LGGHYJMLTNRNMUW�c� kSF�YVZELKF�HQ�MSF�dVENJZTEHHl�QNJLJGNLR�OUOMFI�fLO�VHHERU�NIVRFIFJMFKW�kHH�QFf�OMLQQ�fFEF�MELNJFK�HJ�MSF�OUOMFIP�LJK�MSHOF�fSH�fFEF�MELNJFK�FNMSFE�fFEF�JHM�MELNJFK�HJ�LRR�HQ�MSF�LVVRNGLMNHJO�LJK�GLVLTNRNMNFO�HQ�MSF�OUOMFI�HE�SLgF�QHEZHMMFJ�MSFNE�MELNJNJZW�kSNO�SLO�EFOYRMFK�NJ�LJ�NJFQQNGNFJM�YOF�HQ�MSF�OUOMFI�LJK�L�TLEENFE�MH�KFMFEINJNJZ�NQ�MSF�OUOMFI�SLO�MSF�GLVLTNRNMNFO�JFFKFK�MH�NIVEHgF�HVFELMNHJLR�VEHKYGMNgNMUW�c� XRMSHYZS�nNMUZLMF�QHYJK�OFgFELR�fENMMFJ�VHRNGNFO�LJK�VEHGFKYEFOP�MSFU�LEF�NJGHIVRFMFP�HYMKLMFKP�HE�NJFQQFGMNgFP�LJK�LEF�JHM�RHGLMFK�NJ�L�GFJMELR�VRLGF�MSLM�fHYRK�ILlF�MSFI�FLOU�MH�QNJKW�kSFU�LEF�OGLMMFEFK�NJ�gLENHYO�FRFGMEHJNG�LJK�SLEKjGHVU�QHEIO�LJK�LEF�JHM�FJQHEGFK�HE�YJKFEOMHHK�TU�nNMU�KFVLEMIFJMOW�c� oIVEHgFIFJM�HQ�MSF�lJHfRFKZF�HQ�MSF�QNJLJGNLR�OUOMFI�GHYVRFK�fNMS�L�EFgLIVNJZ�HQ�gLENHYO�VHRNGNFO�LJK�VEHGFKYEFO�fNRR�SFRV�MH�ILlF�RLEZF�NIVEHgFIFJMO�NJ�VEHKYGMNgNMU�LJK�EFKYGF�MSF�JFFK�MH�LKK�OMLQQW�c� kSFEF�LEF�OHIF�VHMFJMNLRRU�ILpHE�NJMFEJLR�GHJMEHR�NOOYFO�KYF�MH�L�GHITNJLMNHJ�HQ�MSF�JYITFE�HQ�OMLQQP�L�RLGl�HQ�LKFqYLMF�RFLKFEOSNV�LJK�MELNJNJZP�fFLl�HE�JHJjFiNOMFJM�fENMMFJ�VHRNGNFO�LJK�VEHGFKYEFOP�LJK�L�RLGl�HQ�GHJONOMFJM�LVVRNGLMNHJ�LJK�LKSFEFJGF�MH�EYRFOW�hiLIVRFO�NJGRYKF�KLNRU�GLOS�EFGFNVMNJZ�JHM�TFNJZ�VFEQHEIFK�GHJONOMFJMRUP�EFOYRMNJZ�NJ�L�RLEZF�TLGlRHZ�HQ�YJVEHGFOOFK�GSFGlOP�GHJONOMFJMRU�KFRLUFK�TLJl�EFGHJGNRNLMNHJOP�LJK�KFRLUFK�pHYEJLR�gHYGSFEO�MH�EFQRFGM�fNEFO�LJK�
13 - 21



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789:5�;7<<=>?� @ABC�D�

EFGHI�JKIHLF�JHMENKFNO�PN�QHRR�PN�IHMHPFKST�UVWX�YPSPTHYHSF�RHFFHI�LEYYHSFN�QKFG�SE�IHNERZFKES[�\� ]GH�̂HMPIFYHSF�NGEZRJ�_H�IHNFIZLFZIHJ�FE�IH̀KNH�MENKFKESN�FE�GHRM�FGH�̂HMPIFYHSF�EMHIPFH�YEIH�HaaKLKHSFRb[�]GH�JHFPKRN�Ea�FGH�MIEMENHJ�IHNFIZLFZIH�PIH�KSLRZJHJ�KS�cdefghi�j�Ea�FGKN�IHMEIF[�\� VS�HkFHISPRRb�aPLKRKFPFHJ�FHPYl_ZKRJKST�MIETIPY�KN�SHHJHJ�FE�GHRM�PLLRKYPFH�FGH�SHQ�WKSPSLH�̂KIHLFEI�PSJ�LZIIHSF�NFPaa�PSJ�LIHPFH�PS�HaaKLKHSF�FHPY[�]GH�WKSPSLH�̂HMPIFYHSF�PLLEZSFN�aEI�PRR�UKFb�HkMHSJKFZIHNO�PJYKSKNFHIN�_ZNKSHNN�RKLHSNKSTO�YPSPTHN�NH̀HIPR�LEYMHFKFK̀H�TIPSFN�KS�LERRP_EIPFKES�QKFG�EFGHI�JHMPIFYHSFNO�MIHMPIHN�FGH�_KQHHmRb�MPbIERRO�MIHMPIHN�MPbYHSF�Ea�PRR�E_RKTPFKESN�aEI�IH̀KHQ�PSJ�PMMIÈPR�_b�FGH�UKFb�UEZSLKRO�PSJ�NHSJN�EZF�PMMIÈHJ�LGHLm�QPIIPSFN[�nS�LESoZSLFKES�QKFGO�PSJ�NZ_oHLF�FEO�FGH�pqrstsqrsqu�vswupxpvyupzq�zx�u{s�|pu}�pqrstsqrsqu�y~rpu�xpw���u{s��stywu�squ�twstyws��u{s�|pu}���UEYMIHGHSNK̀H�VSSZPR�WKSPSLKPR�XHMEIF[�]GH�̂HMPIFYHSF�PRNE�MIHMPIHN�PSSZPR�IHMEIFN�aEI�FGH��FPFH�UESFIERRHI�PSJ�EFGHI��FPFH�PSJ�WHJHIPR�PTHSLKHN[��SJHI�FGH�JKIHLFKES�Ea�FGH�UKFb��PSPTHIO�u{s��stywu�squ�twstyws��u{s�|pu}���yqq~y���~r�su���{s��stywu�squ�z�sw�ss��u{s�~up�pu}��p��pq��aZSLFKES�aEI�FGH�UKu}���yttwz�p�yus�}�������yvvz~qu��xzw�y����yusw��wsx~�sO�PSJ�NHQHI�aHHN[�]GH�ĤMPIFYHSF�QEImN�QKFG�FGH�UKFb�]IHPNZIHI�PSJ�FGH�WKSPSLH�UEYYKFFHH�IHTPIJKST�FGH�̀PIKEZN�aKSPSLKPR�KNNZHN�FGH�UKFb�YZNF�LESNKJHI[�VN�IH�ZKIHJ�_b�FGH��ÈHISYHSF�UEJHO�YESFGRb�KS̀HNFYHSF�IHMEIFN�PIH�MIÈKJHJ�FE�FGH�UKFb�UEZSLKR�PSJ�WKSPSLH�UEYYKNNKES�NZYYPIK�KST�KS̀HNFYHSF�GERJKSTN�PSJ�IPFHN�Ea�IHFZIS�ES�KS̀HNFYHSFN[�]GH�̂HMPIFYHSF�PRNE�YPSPTHN�FGH�aKRY�MHIYKFFKST�MIELHNN[��HI�FGH�W��������_ZJTHFO�FGH�̂HMPIFYHSF�LESNKNFN�Ea�FGH�aERREQKST�JK̀KNKESN��\� WKRYKST�\� �PbIERR�\� VLLEZSFN��PbP_RH�\� �ZNKSHNN��KLHSNKST�PSJ�VLLEZSFN�XHLHK̀P_RH��\� �IPSFNO��FKRKFKHNO�PSJ��MHLKPR��IEoHLFN�]GHNH�aK̀H�JK̀KNKESN�PIH�NFPaaHJ�_b�FGH�aERREQKST�SKSH�aZRRlFKYH�MENKFKESN��\� WKSPSLH�̂KIHLFEI�\� VNNKNFPSF�WKSPSLH�̂KIHLFEI�\� WKRY��KPKNES�\� VLLEZSF�]HLGSKLKPS�\� �PbIERR�UEEIJKSPFEI�
13 - 22



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789:5�;7<<=>?� @ABC�D�

E� FGH�IJKLHM�NOOHPKQ�RSJMTU�E� VWKWXJYJKQ�NKWSZUQ�E� VWKWXJYJKQ�NUULUQWKQ�F[J�\J]WMQYJKQ�WSUH�WUULUQU�LK�̂P_XJQ�OMJWQLHK�WK_�YHKLQHMLKX�WK_�Q[J�OHHM_LKWQLHK�H̀�Q[J�aWMLHPU�WP_LQU�H̀�Q[J�RLQZb�WK_�LQ�]JM̀HMYU�cde�fgchij�QMJWUPMZ�̀PKOQLHK�LK�OHKkPKOQLHK�GLQ[�Q[J�RLQZ�FMJWUPMJMl�mde�neopqcrescij�H]JMWQLKX�̂P_XJQ�̀HM�tu�vwxvy�QHQWSJ_�W]]MHzLYWQJSZ�{|ly�YLSSLHKl�}KOSP_J_�LK�Q[J�̂P_XJQ�LU�W]]MHzLYWQJSZ�{~vyb����̀HM�KHK�_J]WMQYJKQWS�OHUQUb�G[LO[�MJ]MJUJKQ�OHUQU�Q[WQ�WMJ�KHQ�_J_LOWQJ_�QH�W�]WMQLOPSWM�_J]WMQYJKQ�WK_�W]]MHzLYWQJSZ�{vlv��YLSSLHK�̀HM�Q[J�PQLSLQZ�̂LSSLKX�P̀KOQLHKb�G[LO[�LU�MJ]HMQJ_�LK�WKHQ[JM�̀PK_l�F[J�MJYWLKLKX�W]]MHzLYWQJSZ�{w��b����LU�Q[J�KJQ��JKJMWS�tPK_�H]JMWQLKX�OHUQ�̀HM�Q[J�tLKWKOJ�\J]WMQYJKQ�]JM�Q[J�tu�vwxvy�̂P_XJQ�_HOPYJKQl��SWOLKX�KHK�_J]WMQYJKQWS�OHUQU�LK�Q[J�tLKWKOJ�\J]WMQYJKQ�LU�KHQ�PKPUPWS�LK�RLQZ�XHaJMKYJKQ�_PJ�QH�Q[J�tLKWKOJ�\J]WMQYJKQ�̂JLKX�Q[J�]MLYWMZ�\J]WMQYJKQ�MJU]HKUL̂SJ�̀HM�̀HMYPSWQLKX�Q[J�̂P_XJQl���5=�5>��9��RLQZXWQJ�LKQJMaLJGJ_�WSS�\J]WMQYJKQ�UQẀ̀�WK_�RLQZ�_J]WMQYJKQ�[JW_U�MJXWM_LKX�Q[J�]MLHM�SJW_JMU[L]�H̀�Q[J�tLKWKOJ�\J]WMQYJKQl�\PJ�QH�Q[J�OPMMJKQ�SWOT�H̀�W�tLKWKOJ�\LMJOQHM�HM�NUULUQWKQ�tLKWKOJ�\LMJOQHMb�RLQZXWQJ�WUT�Q[J�LKQJMaLJGJJU�QH�_LUOPUU�Q[J�]MJaLHPU�SJW_JMU[L]b�WU�GJSS�WU�Q[J�OPMMJKQ�SJW_JMU[L]b�G[LO[�OHKULUQU�H̀�WK�WOQLKX�tLKWKOJ�\LMJOQHMb�G[H�LU�WSUH�Q[J��PYWK��JUHPMOJU�\LMJOQHMb�WK_�W�VWKWXJYJKQ�NKWSZUQb��d��gj�gs�cde�fgch��psp�eqij����g�e���c�H̀MYJMSZ�GHMTJ_�LK�Q[J�tLKWKOJ�\J]WMQYJKQ�[WK_SLKX�XMWKQU�WK_�WUULUQLKX�GLQ[�̂P_XJQ�]MJ]WMWQLHKl��WUJ_�HK�Q[J�LKQJMaLJGU�H̀�WSS�\J]WMQYJKQ�UQẀ̀b�_J]WMQYJKQ�[JW_Ub�Q[J�RLQZ�VWKWXJMb�WK_�HQ[JM�]JMQLKJKQ�RLQZ�UQẀ̀b�Q[J�̀HSSHGLKX�YWkHM�OHYYHK�Q[JYJU�MJXWM_LKX�Q[J�]MJaLHPU�SJW_JMU[L]�H̀�Q[J�\J]WMQYJKQ�GJMJ�L_JKQL̀LJ_��E� }KW_J�PWQJ�JY]SHZJJ�UP]]HMQ�E� }KUP̀̀LOLJKQ�TKHGSJ_XJ�U[WMLKX�GLQ[�JY]SHZJJU�WK_�HQ[JM�_J]WMQYJKQU��E� �WOT�H̀�JY]SHZJJ�JKOHPMWXJYJKQ�E� �WOT�H̀�UPOOJUULHK�]SWKKLKX�̀HM�JY]SHZJJU�E� �JSPOQWKOJ�QH�W]]MHaJ�QMWLKLKX�HM�WSSHG�LY]SJYJKQWQLHK�H̀�]MHOJUU�LY]MHaJYJKQU�E� }KOHKULUQJKQ�W]]SLOWQLHK�H̀�MPSJU�WK_�]MHOJ_PMJU�E� �JSPOQWKOJ�QH�QWTJ�_LUOL]SLKWMZ�WOQLHK�G[JK�KJOJUUWMZ�QH�OHMMJOQ�LKW]]MH]MLWQJ�JY]SHZJJ�̂J[WaLHM�
13 - 23



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789:5�;7<<=>?� @ABC�D�

EFGHG�IFGJGH�KLGMIGN�M�OGPGLMQ�RGGQSPO�TR�SHTQMISTP�TP�IFG�UMLI�TR�VGUMLIJGPI�GJUQTWGGHX�EFSH�MIJTHUFGLG�KTYQN�MQHT�GPKTYLMOG�PTPZULTNYKIS[G�GJUQTWGGH�IT�\G�G[GP�JTLG�PTPZULTNYKIS[G�\GKMYHG�TR�IFG�\GQSGR�IFMI�IFGW�]SQQ�PTI�\G�KTPRLTPIGN�\W�QGMNGLHFSUX�EFG�QMK̂�TR�KQGML�MPN�GPRTLKGN�RSPMPKSMQ�UTQSKSGH�MPN�ULTKGNYLGH�FMH�G_MKGL\MIGN�MP�MQLGMNW�YPULTNYKIS[G�HSIYMISTPX��EFG�KTJJGPIH�LGOMLNSPO�IFG�KYLLGPI�SPIGLSJ�QGMNGLHFSU�HIMRR�]GLG�HTJG]FMI�HY\NYGǸ�\YI�JTHIQW�UTHSIS[G�MPN�KTPHSNGLGN�MP�SJULT[GJGPI�T[GL�IFG�ULG[STYH�QGMNGLHFSUX�aMHGN�TP�IFG�KTJJGPIH�LGKGS[GǸ�SI�SH�KLYKSMQ�IFMI�IFG�PG]�bSPMPKG�VSLGKITL�FM[G�HILTPO�QGMNGLHFSU�KFMLMKIGLSHISKHX�EFG�SPNS[SNYMQ�HFTYQN�\G�̂PT]QGNOGM\QG�MPN�FM[G�IFG�]SQQSPOPGHH�IT�HFMLG�IFMI�̂PT]QGNOG�MPN�JGPITL�GJUQTWGGHX�cPTIFGL�̂GW�KFMLMKIGLSHISK�]TYQN�\G�IFG�M\SQSIW�IT�KQGMLQW�MPN�YPNGLHIMPNM\QW�KTP[GW�SPRTLJMISTP�IT�VGUMLIJGPI�HIMRR̀�TIFGL�dSIW�NGUMLIJGPIH̀�IFG�dSIW�dTYPKSQ̀�MPN�IFG�UY\QSKX�EFG�PG]�NSLGKITL�HFTYQN�GPKTYLMOG�]GQQZIFTYOFIZTYI�KTPISPYTYH�SJULT[GJGPI�SNGMH�MPN�PTI�\G�MRLMSN�IT�IM̂G�MUULTULSMIG�NSHKSUQSPMLW�JGMHYLGH�]FGP�MUULTULSMIGX��ef5g7=6?�hi�349j89kl�;8=ii�cRIGL�PYJGLTYH�HIMRR�SPIGL[SG]H̀�M�LG[SG]�TR�VGUMLIJGPI�TUGLMISTPH̀�MPN�HIMRRSPO�KTJUMLSHTPH�IT�TIFGL�KTJUMLM\QG�MOGPKSGH̀�IFG�PYJ\GL�TR�HIMRR�KYLLGPIQW�MYIFTLSmGN�RTL�IFG�VGUMLIJGPI�HGGJH�MUULTULSMIG̀�MQIFTYOF�SI�SH�TP�IFG�FSOFGL�GPN�TR�IFG�LMPOGX�nT]G[GL̀�IFG�UTHSISTPH�HFTYQN�\G�LGHILYKIYLGN�IT�SJULT[G�VGUMLIJGPI�GRRGKIS[GPGHHX�cNNSISTPMQQẀ�IFG�PYJGLTYH�JMPYMQ�ULTKGHHGH�KYLLGPIQW�YHGN�\W�VGUMLIJGPI�HIMRR�YPPGKGHHMLSQW�SPKLGMHG�IFG�]TL̂QTMN�\YLNGPX�dSIWOMIG�\GQSG[GH�IFMI�LGNYKSPO�IFG�JMPYMQ�ULTKGHHGH�IFLTYOF�IFG�SPKLGMHGN�YHG�TR�IFG�oULSPO\LTT̂�RSPMPKSMQ�HWHIGJ�JTNYQGH�]SQQ�SPKLGMHG�T[GLMQQ�HIMRR�ULTNYKIS[SIWX�c�̂GW�RSLHI�HIGU�SH�IFMI�IFG�dSIW�YPNGLHIMPNH�IFG�KMUM\SQSISGH�TR�IFG�RSPMPKSMQ�HWHIGJ�MPN�LG[SHG�MPN�NTKYJGPI�IFG�MUUQSKM\QG�RSPMPKSMQ�TUGLMISPO�UTQSKSGH�MPN�ULTKGNYLGHX��cNNSISTPMQQẀ�IFG�dSIW�HFTYQN�LG[SG]�SIH�KYLLGPI�UTQSKW�TR�M�pqrs�]TL̂�HKFGNYQG�]FSQG�LGJMSPSPO�TUGP�MQQ�\YHSPGHH�NMWH̀�MI�QGMHI�SP�IFG�bSPMPKG�VGUMLIJGPIX�EFSH�UTQSKW�KLGMIGH�M�tĤGQGITP�KLG]u�SP�IFG�VGUMLIJGPI�TP�bLSNMWHX�vR�HTJGTPG�SH�TYI�HSK̂ �̀SH�TP�[MKMISTP̀�TL�FMH�MP�GJGLOGPKẀ�HIMRR�KT[GLMOG�KMP�\G�HG[GLGQW�NSJSPSHFGǸ�GHUGKSMQQW�MI�IFG�KTYPIGLX�cPTIFGL�SHHYG�KLGMIGN�\W�IFG�SPGRRSKSGPKSGH�KMYHGN�\W�IFG�PYJGLTYH�JMPYMQ�ULTKGHHGH�SH�IFG�UTIGPISMQ�PGGN�RTL�GJUQTWGGH�IT�]TL̂�T[GLISJG�IT�MKKTJUQSHF�IFGSL�NYISGHX� �����oTJG�TUISTPH�IT�KTPHSNGL�SPKQYNG�LGJMSPSPO�TUGP�QTPOGL�NYLSPO�IFG�]GĜ�MPN�KQTHSPO�TP�bLSNMWH̀�TL�GQSJSPMISPO�IFG�pqrs�HKFGNYQG�RTL�IFG�HIMRR�JGJ\GLH�LGHUTPHS\QG�RTL�KTYPIGL�HGL[SKGX�wR�KTYLHG̀�IFGHG�IWUGH�TR�KFMPOGH�]TYQN�LGxYSLG�JGGISPOH�IT�KTPRGL�]SIF�IFG�MUUQSKM\QG�QM\TL�OLTYUHX�
13 - 24



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789:5�;7<<=>?� @ABC�D�

EF85G89=H�I5J=>8<5G8�K5F>L=G9M=89FG�NOPQRSTQ�PQU�VSWXUY�RZ�[P\ZZ�[UUW[�PR�XU�\]ÛS\PU�ZRY�PQU�_Ù\YPWUVPa�\�YU[PYSbPSYcVT�RZ�PQU�_Ù\YPWUVP�\V]�\̀ ỲR̀Yc\PU�dRX�]U[bYc̀PcRV[�[QRSO]�XU�bRV[c]UYU]e�N�YUfcUg�RZ�f\YcRS[�bRẀ \Y\XOU�bcPcU[�YUZOUbP[�f\YcRS[�]Ù\YPWUVP\O�[PYSbPSYU[�ZRY�PQU�_Ù\YPWUVPa�XSP�fUYh�ZUg�gcPQ�\�[P\ZZ�[ciU�\V]�jUVUY\O�kSV]�XS]TUP�RZ�PQU�lcPh�YUP\cV�PQU�̀R[cPcRV�RZ�_ÙSPh�RY�N[[c[P\VP�kcV\VbU�_cYUbPRYe�mQU�dRX�]U[bYc̀PcRV�ZRY�PQU�N[[c[P\VP�kcV\VbU�_cYUbPRY�ZRY�PQU�lcPh�bRVP\cV[�PQU�]SPcU[�Ph̀cb\O�RZ�PQ\P�RZ�\V�\bbRSVPcVT�W\V\TUY�RY�Zc[b\O�[UYfcbU[�W\V\TUY�cV�RPQUY�bRẀ \Y\XOU�bcPcU[e�nPQUY�[P\ZZ�bQ\VTU[�\YU�\O[R�YUbRWWUV]U]�PR�QUÒ�cVbYU\[U�RfUY\OO�UZZcbcUVbh�RZ�PQU�_Ù\YPWUVPe�N]]cPcRV\OOha�PQU�bSYYUVP�]cfc[cRV[�RY�ZSVbPcRV\O�\YU\[�RZ�PQU�_Ù\YPWUVP�bRSO]�XU�YUfc[U]�PR�XU�WRYU�]U[bYc̀PcfU�\V]�WRYU�UZZUbPcfUe�mQU�]UP\cO�RZ�PQU�YU[PYSbPSYU�YUbRWWUV]\PcRV[�c[�]c[bS[[U]�O\PUY�cV�PQc[�YÙRYPe�;7JJH5<5G8=H�;8=oo9GL�N�[P\ZZ�YUfc[cRV�[STTU[PcRV�gQcbQ�]RU[�VRP�cVfROfU�[P\ZZcVT�OUfUO[�gcPQcV�PQU�_Ù\YPWUVPa�XSP�gRSO]�cV]cYUbPOh�\[[c[P�PQU�R̀UY\PcRV[�RZ�PQU�_Ù\YPWUVPa�c[�PR�bYU\PU�\�̀R[cPcRV�gQR[U�YU[̀RV[cXcOcPcU[�gRSO]�cVbOS]U�[̀Ubc\O�̀YRdUbP[a�[SbQ�\[�\[[c[PcVT�gcPQ�PQU�XS]TUP�̀YÙ\Y\PcRVa�YUfcUgcVT�RYT\Vci\PcRV\O�UZZUbPcfUVU[[�PQYRSTQRSP�PQU�lcPha�\]WcVc[PY\PcVT�\V]�bRRY]cV\PcVT�TY\VP[�\b̂ScYU]�Xh�PQU�f\YcRS[�]Ù\YPWUVP[a�\V]�bYU\PcVT�\�lcPhgc]U�TY\VP�̀ROcbh�RY�RPQUY�R̀OcbcU[p̀YRbU]SYU[�]UPUYWcVU]�PR�XU�VUU]U]�\[�\�YU[SOP�RZ�̀UYcR]cb�R̀UY\PcRV\O�YUfcUg[�gcPQcV�lcPh�]Ù\YPWUVP[e�qr�st�uvwxyyvz{v{�r|}r�r|st�~xtsrsxz��v�}�~}ur�x��r|v��sr���}z}�vu�t�x��swva�gcPQ�[SZZcbcUzr�}�r|xusr��r|ux��|�r|v��sr���}z}�vu�rx�vzt�uv�r|v�~xtsrsxz�st�~}ur�x��r|v��sr��t�W\V\TUWUVP�PU\We��}�sz��r|st�~xtsrsxz�~}ur�x��r|v��sr���}z}�vu�t�x��swv��s���}��x���xu�v}t��YRP\PcRV�\WRVT�]Ù\YPWUVP[�gQUV�bRẀ OUPcVT�f\YcRS[�lcPhgc]U�RY�]Ù\YPWUVP�[̀UbcZcb�̀YRdUbP[e�mQc[�gcOO�\[[c[P�PQU�kcV\VbU�_Ù\YPWUVP�gcPQ�UV[SYcVT�̀ROcbcU[�\YU�XUcVT�ZROORgU]�cV�PQU�]Ù\YPWUVP[a�[Q\YU�PQU�XSY]UV�RZ�XS]TUP�]UfUOR̀WUVPa�\[[c[P�gcPQ�[SỲYc[U�\S]cP[�PQ\P�_Ù\YPWUVP�[P\ZZ�bRSO]�VRP�bRẀ OUPUa�\V]�̀YRfc]U�\V�R̀cVcRV�PQ\P�c[�U�PUYV\O�PR�PQU�kcV\VbU�_Ù\YPWUVP�RV�R̀UY\PcRV\O�c[[SU[e��F>=H5��VPUYfcUg[�gcPQ�_Ù\YPWUVP�[P\ZZ�YUfU\OU]�YUO\PcfUOh�ORg�WRY\OUe��SWUYRS[�Z\bPRY[�bRVPYcXSPU�PR�PQc[�[cPS\PcRVe��RWU�RZ�PQU��Uh�Z\bPRY[�cVbOS]U]�O\b��RZ�[S̀ R̀YP�ZYRW�PQU�ZRYWUY�kcV\VbU�_cYUbPRY��cV\]ÛS\PU�RY�O\b��RZ�PY\cVcVTa�XRPQ�U�PUYV\O�PY\cVcVT�\V]�cVPUYV\O�bYR[[�PY\cVcVT��SVbUYP\cVPh�]SU�PR�PQU�]Ù\YPSYU�RZ�PQU�kcV\VbU�_cYUbPRY�\V]�N[[c[P\VP�kcV\VbU�_cYUbPRY��\V]�PQU�O\b��RZ�bRV[c[PUVP�̀YRbU]SYU[e�nVU�RX[UYf\PcRV�W\]U�Xh�lcPhT\PU�g\[�PQ\P�PQU�[P\ZZ�ZUOP�PQUh�gUYU�cV�\�[cPS\PcRV�gQUYU�PQUh�Q\]�PR�W\�U�cP�RV�PQUcY�RgV�gcPQRSP�QUÒ�ZYRW�\VhRVUe�lcPhT\PU�[STTU[PU]�PR�lcPh�W\V\TUWUVP�PQ\P�kcV\VbU�[P\ZZa�\[�ZYÛSUVPOh�\[�̀R[[cXOUa�XU�S̀]\PU]�RV�̀O\V[�PQ\P�gRSO]�\ZZUbP�PQUW�]SYcVT�PQc[�PY\V[cPcRV�̀UYcR]�\V]�XU�cVfcPU]�PR�[Q\YU�PQUcY�R̀cVcRV�\[�PR�gQ\P�PQU�[P\ZZ�XUOcUfU[�c[�VUU]U]�PR�QUÒ�PQUW�PQYRSTQ�PQU�PY\V[cPcRVe�lcPh�W\V\TUWUVP�[P\ZZ�̂Scb�Oh�\bPU]�RV�PQU�[STTU[PcRVa�\V]�cP�[UUWU]�PR�Q\fU�W\]U�\�̀R[cPcfU�bQ\VTU�cV�RfUY\OO�WRY\OUe��
13 - 25



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789:5�;7<<=>?� @ABC�DE�

F>GH7689:98?�IJKLMNKO�PNQ�RSQOTUOV�KPNK�QKNWW�XTRVYZKJUJKL�JQ�TOVYZOV�VYO�KR�KPO�[NZ\�RW�KTNJ]J]M̂�J]ZR]QJQKO]K�RT�]R]_ÒJQKO]K�aTJKKO]�XR[JZJOQ�N]V�XTRZOVYTOQ̂�N]V�KPO�J]OWWOZKJUO�YQO�RW�KPO�bXTJ]MSTRR\�WJ]N]ZJN[�QLQKOĉ�aPJZP�TOQY[KQ�J]�KPO�YQO�RW�J]OWWJZJO]K�cN]YN[�XTRZOQQOQd�e]RKPOT�NTON�KPNK�PNQ�N]�NVUOTQO�JcXNZK�R]�XTRVYZKJUJKL�JQ�RYKVNKOV�N]V�UOTL�MO]OTN[�fRS�VOQZTJXKJR]Qd�gRS�VOQZTJXKJR]Q�QPRY[V�SO�J]�QYWWJZJO]K�QXOZJWJZJKL�KR�O]QYTO�ONZP�OcX[RLOO�Y]VOTQKN]VQ�KPO�MO]OTN[�TOQXR]QJSJ[JKJOQ�N]V�VYKJOQ�WRT�aPJZP�POhQPO�aJ[[�SO�PO[V�NZZRY]KNS[Od�iNMYO�RT�RYKVNKOV�fRS�VOQZTJXKJR]Q̂�NK�N�cJ]JcYĉ�[ONV�KR�QKNWW�ZR]WYQJR]�TOMNTVJ]M�KPOJT�TOQXOZKJUO�TOQXR]QJSJ[JKJOQ�SYK�ZN]�N[QR�[ONV�KR�cN]JXY[NKJR]�SL�QKNWW�KR�NURJV�NZZRY]KNSJ[JKL�SL�MTN]KJ]M�KPOc�N]�ÒZYQO�WRT�NSQKNJ]J]M�WTRc�N�QXOZJWJZ�KNQ\�SOZNYQO�JK�JQ�]RK�XNTK�RW�KPO�fRS�VOQZTJXKJR]d�jR�cNJ]KNJ]�ZR]WJVO]KJN[JKL̂�IJKLMNKO�VJV�]RK�TOUJOa�OUN[YNKJR]�VRZYcO]KNKJR]�RW�KPO�kOXNTKcO]K�QKNWWl�PRaOUOT̂�IJKLMNKO�aNQ�J]WRTcOV�SL�IJKL�QKNWW�KPNK�KPO�IJKL�SOMN]�YQJ]M�KPO�mORnRU�OUN[YNKJR]�XTRMTNc�KR�PNUO�OcX[RLOO�OUN[YNKJR]Q�J]Z[YVO�MRN[Q�N]V�RSfOZKJUOQd�IPN]MOQ�TO[NKJ]M�KR�KPJQ�NTON�aJ[[�TOoYJTO�KPO�IJKL�KR�cOOK�N]V�ZR]WOT�aJKP�[NSRT�MTRYXQd�p7q8G<5>�;5>:965�IYQKRcOT�QOTUJZO�QPRY[V�SO�N�UOTL�PJMP�XTJRTJKL�WRT�cY]JZJXN[�WJ]N]ZO�VOXNTKcO]KQ�NQ�JK�JQ�R]O�RW�JKQ�cNJ]�WY]ZKJR]Qd�rstuvwxu�yzwt{t|}~�}x�ZYQKRcOT_����}~s��{���������{�|��v����|sw��v��tu����t���]R]O�RW�KPO�VOXNTKcO]KQ�PNUO�OQKNS[JQPOV�N]V�VRZYcO]KOV�MRN[Q�N]V�RSfOZKJUOQ�TOMNTVJ]M�PRa�KPOL�NTO�NZPJOUJ]M�KPJQ�RT�N]L�RW�KPO�ZRTO�IJKL�UN[YOQd�bRcO�RW�KPO�RXOTNKJR]N[�JQQYOQ�NVUOTQO[L�NWWOZKJ]M�ZYQKRcOT�QOTUJZO�RSQOTUOV�SL�IJKLMNKO�J]Z[YVO�ZYcSOTQRcO�cN]YN[�RXOTNKJR]N[�XTRZOVYTOQ̂�Y]KJcO[L�XTRVYZKJR]�RW�WJ]N]ZJN[�TOXRTKQ�WRT�IJKL�VOXNTKcO]KQ�N]V�TOQJVO]KQ̂�N]V�J]ZR]QJQKO]K�NXX[JZNKJR]�RW�TY[OQd�jPOQO�JQQYOQ�|���|ss��v}t�|���tv����t�}x�tu����t��{��w{tv����QOTUJZO�ZRTO�UN[YOd��������������������������������������jPOTO�JQ�N[aNLQ�N�[ONT]J]M�ZYTUO�WRT�N�]Oa�WJ]N]ZO�VJTOZKRT�RW�N�ZJKLd�jPO�IJKL�RW�bRYKP��NQNVO]N�PJTOV�IJKLMNKO�KR�XTRUJVO�N]�N]N[LQJQ�KR�PO[X�QPRTKO]�KPNK�[ONT]J]M�ZYTUO�SL�XTRUJVJ]M�N�SNQJZ�RUOTUJOa�N]V�TOUJOa�RW�KPO��J]N]ZO�kOXNTKcO]K�KR�NQQJQK�KPO�]Oa�VJTOZKRT�J]�NZZ[JcNKJ]M�KR�KPO�kOXNTKcO]K�cRTO�oYJZ\[Ld�jPJQ�TOXRTK�aJ[[�N[QR�PO[X�KPO�]Oa�VJTOZKRT�JVO]KJWL�N]V�XTJRTJKJ�O�JQQYOQ�KR�VOUO[RX�NZKJR]�X[N]Qd��PNK�WR[[RaQ�NTO�QRcO�RW�KPO�cN]NMOcO]K�ZPN[[O]MOQd�jPJQ�[JQK�JQ�SL�]R�cON]Q�J]KO]VOV�KR�SO�N[[�J]Z[YQJUOd�jPOTO�NTO�]YcOTRYQ�ZPN[[O]MOQ�[RRcJ]M�WRT�WJ]N]ZO�VOXNTKcO]KQ�J]�KPO�YXZRcJ]M�LONTQ̂�J]Z[YVJ]M�J]WTNQKTYZKYTO�SNZ\[RMQ�N]V�WY]VJ]M̂�QKNKO�N]V�WOVOTN[�[NaQ̂�OZR]RcJZ�VRa]KYT]Q̂�XRKO]KJN[�[NSRT�JQQYOQ̂�OKZd�jPO�WR[[RaJ]M�JKOcQ�NTO�QRcO�RW�KPO�cRTO�RSUJRYQd�
13 - 26



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789:5�;7<<=>?� @ABC�DD�

E5:5F75�GH=II5FJ5K�LMNMOPQ�RSNT�OMUMNSMV�WPUM�PN�PUMOPXM�PNNSPQ�XOYZ[W�Y\�P]]OŶ_̀P[MQa�bcdefeeef�YO�ghi�]MOjMN[f�YUMO�[WM�QPV[�\_UM�\_VjPQ�aMPOVh�kYZMUMOf�P�l[_Q_[a�lVMOV�mP̂�nllmo�OM]MPQ�pPQQY[�̀MPVSOM�WPV�qSPQ_\_MT�\YO�[WM�rYUM̀pMO�setc�pPQQY[h�mWM�llm�_V�pPVMT�YN�P�[P̂�YN�S[_Q_[_MV�Y\�uhd�]MOjMN[�PNT�pO_NXV�_N�P]]OŶ_̀P[MQa�bghi�̀ _QQ_YNf�YO�tg�]MOjMN[f�Y\�LMNMOPQ�RSNT�OMUMNSMVh�v\�[WM�M̀PVSOM�ZMOM�[Y�]PVVf�VMOU_jMV�ZYSQT�NMMT�[Y�pM�V_XN_\_jPN[Qa�OMTSjMT�[Y�̀P_N[P_N�P�WMPQ[Wa�LMNMOPQ�RSNT�Z_[W�P]]OY]O_P[M�OMVMOUMVh��E9K9FJ�G=Iw3E;�GxK8K�vN�PN�M\\YO[�[Y�̀ P_N[P_N�[WM�\_VjPQ�WMPQ[W�Y\�[WM�yPQz{|}�OM[_OM̀MN[�VaV[M̀f�yPQz{|}�WPV�_̀]QM̀MN[MT�VMUMOPQ�jWPNXMV�[WP[�WPUM�_NjOMPVMT�]MNV_YN�jYV[V�PNTf�_N�VỲ M�jPVMVf�OMTSjMT�\S[SOM�pMNM\_[Vh�{PjW�̀ M̀pMO�Y\�yPQz{|}�jYN[OPj[V�Z_[W�[WM�VaV[M̀�[Y�]OYU_TM�P�QMUMQ�Y\�pMNM\_[Vh�RYO�[WM�y_[af�PV�Z_[W�̀YV[�yPQz{|}�̀M̀pMO�PXMNj_MVf�[WM�QMUMQ�Y\�pMNM\_[V�_V�TMUMQY]MT�~�����������������~��~�������~��~����������������������������������lV_NX�UPO_YSV�Pj[SPO_PQ�PVVS̀ ][_YNV�PNT�̀M[WYTYQYX_MVf�yPQz{|}�TMUMQY]V�[WM�jYV[�[Y�]OYU_TM�[WM�pMNM\_[�QMUMQ�TMV_OMT�pa�[WM�y_[ah��TUMOVM�jWPNXMV�[Y�[WMVM�Pj[SPO_PQ�PVVS̀ ][_YNV�PNT�̀M[WYTYQYX_MV�_̀]QM̀MN[MT�pa�yPQz{|}�YUMO�[WM�]PV[�\MZ�aMPOV�Z_QQ�V_XN_\_jPN[Qa�_̀]Pj[�]MNV_YN�jYV[V�\YO�PQQ�yPQz{|}�M̀̀pMO�PXMNj_MVh��������~�������������~���������������~���������������~�������������������TMj_V_YN�[Y�QYZMO�_[V�PVVS̀ MT�T_VjYSN[�OP[Mh�mWM�T_VjYSN[�OP[M�OM]OMVMN[V�[WM�OP[M�yPQz{|}�PVVS̀ MV�_[�Z_QQ�MPON�YN�_[V�_NUMV[̀MN[Vh�mWM�QYZMO�[WM�PVVS̀ MT�MPON_NXV�OP[Mf�[WM�QYZMO�[WM�PVVS̀ MT�PVVM[�XOYZ[W�PUP_QPpQM�[Y�jYUMO�PN[_j_]P[MT�]MNV_YN�jYV[Vh�vN��MjM̀pMO�set�f�[WM�yPQz{|}�pYPOT�UY[MT�[Y�QYZMO�[WM�PVVS̀ MT�T_VjYSN[�OP[M�\OỲ �uhd�]MOjMN[�[Y�u�]MOjMN[�SV_NX�P�[WOMM�aMPO�]WPVM�_N�pMX_NN_NX�Z_[W�[WM��SNM�gef�set��Pj[SPO_PQ�UPQSP[_YNVh� PVMT�YN�[WM�OP[MV�]OYU_TMT�pa�yPQz{|}f�\YO�R¡�tc¢t£�PQYNMf�[W_V�]WPVMT�_N�PVVS̀ ][_YNV�jWPNXM�Z_QQ�_NjOMPVM�]MNV_YN�jYV[�\YO�[WM�y_[a�pa�P]]OŶ_̀P[MQa�bddefeee�_N�[WM�LMNMOPQ�RSNTh�w>x65KK�¤<¥>x:5<5F8�¦5:5Ix¥<5F8�=F§�¤<¥I5<5F8=89xF�vN�OMU_MZ_NX�[WM��M]PO[̀MN[�_N\YÒP[_YN�\YO�]O_YO�\_VjPQ�aMPOVf�y_[aXP[M�\YSNT�[WP[�VMUMOPQ�Y\�[WM�Y]MOP[_YNPQ�_VVSMV�_TMN[_\_MT�_N�[W_V�OM]YO[f�VSjW�PV�]YQ_j_MV�PNT�]OYjMTSOMVf�WPT�pMMN�PTTOMVVMT�_N�]PV[�aMPOVh�lN\YO[SNP[MQaf�[WM�_N\YÒP[_YN�PNT�]OMU_YSV�]OYjMTSOMV�POM�VjP[[MOMT�[WOYSXW�NS̀ MOYSV�\YQTMOV�[WOYSXWYS[�[WM�R_NPNjM�VaV[M̀�PNT�WPT�NY[�pMMN�S]TP[MT�_N�VMUMOPQ�aMPOVh�mWMa�POM�PQVY�NY[�PQZPaV�_N�P�\YÒP[�[WP[�_V�jSOOMN[Qa�SVMTh��Q[WYSXW�[W_V�_V�NY[�_TMPQf�_[�P[�QMPV[�]OYU_TMV�VỲ M�pPV_V�YN�ZW_jW�[Y�pS_QT�PNT�S]TP[M�[Y�PTTOMVV�VỲ M�Y\�[WM�_VVSMV�_TMN[_\_MT�pa�[WM�R_NPNjM��M]PO[̀MN[�OMU_MZh� MNM\_[_NX�\OỲ �[W_V�_N\YÒP[_YNf�WYZMUMOf�Z_QQ�OMqS_OM�M̂[MNV_UM�OMU_MZf�OMVMPOjWf�PNT�jYNVYQ_TP[_YN�[Y�jOMP[M�P�SVM\SQ�̀PNSPQ�[WP[�jPN�pM�PTY][MT�pa�[WM�y_[ah�y_[aXP[M�_TMN[_\_MT�g��\_NT_NXV�PNT�ii�OMjỲ M̀NTP[_YNV�����������~����~�������������~�����~����R_NPNjM��M]PO[̀MN[h�R_NT_NXV�PNT�OMjỲ M̀NTP[_YNV�POM�_[M̀ _̈MT�[WOYSXWYS[�[W_V�OM]YO[�PNT�VS̀ P̀O_̈MT�Z_[W�VSXXMV[MT�_̀]QM̀MN[P[_YN�]O_YO_[a�[_̀MQ_NMV�_N�©ª«¬®̄�°�Y\�[W_V�OM]YO[h�
13 - 27



��������	�
������	����������	���������
13 - 28



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<96=8>?56789� @ABC�DE�

FGHIJKL�M;JLINKOPHIJKL�QRQ� STUSVWX�VY�WZT[\�]̂_�̀abc�de�fdgb̂�hijik_li�m̀abcn�odlbpiob_k�qab̂�̀abcrib_�sjjdoaib_jt�uù �m̀abcrib_n�bd�vwxyz{|�}�w|yz|~�x����|��z������z�}��|��|v}w��|�����|v}w��|����xv|w}�zx����x�z{|��z���vx�|��z}��a��pd�_�_lbj�ilk�bd��pd�ak_��_lbdpalr�j_p�ao_j�kg_�bd�p_o_lb��_c�jbiee�bgpld�_p��̀abcrib_�j�_lb�ba�_�dl�jab_�bd�odlkgob�alb_p�a_qjt�alb_peio_�qab̂�jbieet�d�j_p�_�dprila�ibadli���pdo_jj_j�ilk��pdo_kgp_jt�ilk�p_j_ipô�ilk�ioo_jj��_�ipb�_lb�kdog�_lbj�ilk�aledp�ibadl��]̂_�jod�_�de�b̂aj�alk_�_lk_lbt�b̂apk��ipbc�dprila�ibadli��p_�a_q�alo�gk_j�b̂_�ed��dqalr�_�_�_lbj����� ��}�z�}�zx��x����|��z�}��|��|v}w��|�����xw�}�z�}�zx�}����w����w|�}�{�}��|���|���de��_c��ilir_�_lb�jbieet�ik�alajbpiba�_�jbp_lrb̂jt�ilk�ip_ij�al�l__k�de�a��pd�_�_lb���alkalrj�ilk�p_od��_lkibadlj�odlo_plalr��_pjdll_��q_p_�odleak_lbai��c��pd�ak_k�bd�b̂_�̀abc� ilir_p�ilk�¡g�il�¢_jdgpo_j��ap_obdp����� £|yz|~�x����|��z�}��|��|v}w��|�����xv|w}�zx�}�������zx���}�{�~xw¤��x~��pdo_jj_j�bd�ak_lbaec�d�_pi���jbp_lrb̂j�ilk�q_i�l_jj_j�bd��pd�ak_�p_od��_lkibadlj�edp�jbp_i��alalr��pdo_kgp_j�ilk��pdo_jj_j����� ¥lb_p�a_qj�qab̂�i���aoi��_�̀abc��_pjdll_��bd�k_b_p�al_�b̂_�_ee_oba�_l_jj�de�b̂_��z�}��|��|v}w��|�����~xw¤��x~�vwx�|��|��}�{�}{�|w|��|��x��z�}��z}��}�{�d�_pibadli���d�aoa_j�ilk��pdo_kgp_j����� ¢_�a_q�de��_pbal_lb��_�ipb�_lb�kpa�_l�kdog�_lbj�ilk�p_�dpbj�bd�k_b_p�al_�ik_¦gioct�l_o_jjabct�ilk�ba�_�al_jj����� ¥k_lbaeaoibadl�de��_jb��piobao_j�ilk��_pedp�ilo_��_ijgp_j�edp�b̂_��_�ipb�_lb�ma�_�t��dlr�pilr_�eajoi����illalrt�bpialalrt�ilk�jgoo_jjadl���illalrn���� hpd�ajadl�de��pde_jjadli��rgakilo_�ilk��_lbdpalr�bd��_c��ilir_�_lb�jbiee�ij�l__k_k�kgpalr�b̂_�_lrir_�_lb����� hpd�ajadl�de�jbibgj�g�kib_j�_�_pc�db̂_p�q__��bd�b̂_�hpd§_ob� ilir_p�ilk�̀abc� ilir_p�dgb�alalr��pdrp_jj�ilk��db_lbai��ajjg_j�kgpalr�b̂_�_lrir_�_lb����� �_�_�d��_lb�ilk��p_j_lbibadl�de�i��pieb�¢_�dpb�de�i���ealkalrj�ilk�p_od��_lkibadlj�edp�p_�a_q��c�b̂_�̀abc����� �_�a�_pc�de�b̂_��ali��¢_�dpb�bd�b̂_�̀abc��]̂_�p_�dpb�aj�jbpgobgp_k�bd��pd�ak_�b̂_�alod�alr��alilo_��ap_obdp�qab̂�i�qdp�alr�kdog�_lb�b̂ib��}��̈|���|{��x���xw�|����|��|~��zw|��xw����|}w�z�����wy|�w|�ib_k�bd�b̂_�d�_pibadlj�de�b̂_��alilo_��_�ipb�_lb�bd�_©�_kab_��pdkgoba�abc��
13 - 29



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<96=8>?56789� @ABC�DE�

FGH� IJKLMNO�PIIJKPNQ�PRS�JMTMPJNQ�UMOQKSKVKWX�YZ[�\]]̂_\̀Z�ab[c�d_�̀_e]f[d[�dZgb�̂[hg[i�̀_jbgbd[c�_k�\�̀_elgj\dg_j�_k�_jmbgd[�\j\fnbgb�o\j�\h[̂\p[�_k�dẐ[[�c\nb�][̂�i[[qr�\jc�_kkmbgd[�\j\fnbgbs�iZg̀Z�gj̀fac[c�dZ[�k_ff_igjp�d\bqbt�u� v_̀ae[jd�w[hg[i�x�yj�[zd[jbgh[�jael[̂�_k�c_̀ae[jdb�̂[f\dgjp�d_�dZ[�v[]\̂de[jd�i[̂[�̂[hg[i[c�d_�Z[f]�p\gj�\j�ajc[̂bd\jcgjp�_k�dZ[�k_̂e\f�îgdd[j�_][̂\dg_j\f�]_fg̀g[b�\jc�]̂_̀[câ[b�̀â̂[jdfn�gj�]f\̀[�\d�dZ[�{gdn|�}� YZ[�lacp[db�k̂_e�dZ[�]\bd�kgh[�kgb̀\f�n[\̂b�}� YZ[�{_e]̂[Z[jbgh[�yjja\f�~gj\j̀g\f�w[]_̂db�o{y~wbr�\jc�e\j\p[e[jd�f[dd[̂b�k̂_e�dZ[�]\bd�dẐ[[�kgb̀\f�n[\̂b�}� v_̀ae[jdb�gj̀fac[c�_j�dZ[�~gj\j̀[�v[]\̂de[jd�bZ\̂[c�ĉgh[�}� �\̂c�̀_]n�kgb̀\f�]_fg̀g[b�\jc�_̂�îgdd[j�]̂_̀[câ[b�̂[f\dgjp�d_�kgj\j̀g\f�_][̂\dg_jb�o[|p|s�gjd[̂j\f�̀_jd̂_fbr�}� �_l�c[b̀̂g]dg_jb�_k�\ff�~gj\j̀[�v[]\̂de[jd�[e]f_n[[b�}� ~gj\j̀g\f�̂[]_̂db�c[h[f_][c�ln�dZ[�~gj\j̀[�v[]\̂de[jds�gj̀facgjp�egcmn[\̂�a]c\d[bs�k̂_e�dZ[�]\bd�dẐ[[�kgb̀\f�n[\̂b�\jc�dZ[�̀â̂[jd�kgb̀\f�n[\̂�d_�c\d[�}� {gdn�\jc�v[]\̂de[jd\f�_̂p\jg�\dg_j\f�̀Z\̂d�\jc�̂[b]_jbglgfgdg[b�}� �\l_̂�\p̂[[e[jdb�̂[f\dgjp�d_�v[]\̂de[jd�][̂b_jj[f�}� �_̂q[̂b��̀_e][jb\dg_j�\jc�_dZ[̂�̂gbq�e\j\p[e[jd�̀f\geb�\̀dghgdn�̂[f\d[c�d_�dZ[�v[]\̂de[jd�}� �\̂g_ab�[zd[̂j\f�[̀_j_eg̀�\jc�kgj\j̀g\f�c_̀ae[jdb�o{\fgk_̂jg\��alfg̀������������������������������ [̂]_̂dbs��y�{_ajdn��̀_j_eg̀�v[h[f_]e[jd�{_eegbbg_js�[d̀|r�}� �\̂g_ab�{gdn�{_aj̀gf�\jc�~gj\j̀[�{_eegbbg_j�e[[dgjpb�\p[jc\�}� �[̀dg_jb�_k�dZ[����������������������������������dZ[�v[]\̂de[jd�}� �dZ[̂�gd[eb�j[̀[bb\̂n�d_�c[h[f_]�\j�ajc[̂bd\jcgjp�_k�{gdn�\jc�~gj\j̀[�v[]\̂de[jd�_][̂\dg_jb�u� �jd[̂hg[ib�x��j�\ccgdg_j�d_�̂[hg[igjp�c_̀ae[jdbs�h\̂g_ab�gjd[̂hg[ib�i[̂[�_̀jcàd[c�igdZ�q[n�{gdn�bd\kk�d_�p\gj�\j�ajc[̂bd\jcgjp�_k�Z_i�]̂_̀[bb[b�\̂[�\̀̂̂g[c�_ad�k̂_e�dZ[�][̂b][̀dgh[b�_k�dZ[�gjcghgca\fb�igdZgj�dZ[�v[]\̂de[jd�iZ_�\̂[�̂[b]_jbglf[�k_̂�]̂_hgcgjp�b[̂hg̀[bs�\b�i[ff�\b�dZ[�h\̂g_ab�[zd[̂j\f�c[]\̂de[jdb�
13 - 30



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<96=8>?56789� @ABC�DE�

FGHF�IJKJLMJ�NJIMLKJNO�PGJ�LQFJIMLJRN�GJSTJU�FV�LUJQFLWX�NFIJQYFGN�HQU�RJHZQJNNJN�VW�FGJ�[JTHIF\JQF�HQU]VI�WLQHQKĴIJSHFJU�_LFXRLUJ�TIVKJNNJN�HQU�TIVKJÙIJNO�PGJ�LQFJIMLJRN�KVQÙKFJU�LQKS̀UJUa�b� _LFX�cHQHYJI�b� dNNLNFHQF�FV�FGJ�_LFX�cHQHYJI�b� cHQHYJ\JQF�dQHSXNF�ef̀UYJF�gWWLKJIh�b� dSS�K̀IIJQF�iLQHQKJ�[JTHIF\JQF�NFHWW��j� dKKV̀QF�kHXHlSJ�j� kHXIVSS��j� mJQJIHS�dKKV̀QFLQY�eLQKS̀ULQY�FJ\T�HYJQKX�J\TSVXJJh�j� f̀NLQJNN�nLKJQNJ��j� oFLSLFX�fLSSLQY�j� iLS\�_VVIULQHFLVQ�b� p̀\HQ�qJNV̀IKJN�[LIJKFVI�b� kVSLKJ�_GLJW�b� iLIJ�_GLJW�b� k̀lSLK�rVIZN�[LIJKFVI�b� kSHQQLQY�]�_V\\̀ QLFX�[JMJSVT\JQF�[LIJKFVI�b� stFJIQHS�d̀ULFVI�b� _LFX�PIJHǸIJI�b� _V\\̀ QLFX�uJIMLKJN�[LIJKFVI�b� gFGJI�JtFJIQHS�_LFX�TJINVQQJS�PGJ�TVNLFLVQN�VW�iLQHQKJ�[LIJKFVI�HQU�dNNLNFHQF�iLQHQKJ�[LIJKFVI�RJIJ�QVF�LQFJIMLJRJU�lJKH̀NJ�FGJX�RJIJ�QV�SVQYJI�RLFG�FGJ�_LFX�HF�FGJ�NFHIF�VW�FGLN�JQYHYJ\JQFO�[̀J�FV�FGJ�JtFJQ̀HFLQY�KLIK̀\NFHQKJN�IJSHXJU�lX�_LFX�\HQHYJ\JQFv�LF�RHN�UJFJI\LQJU�FGHF�LQFJIMLJRLQY�FGJNJ�LQULMLÙHSN�RV̀SU�QVF�KGHQYJ�FGJ�WLQULQYN�HQU�IJKV\\JQUHFLVQN�VW�FGJ�IJTVIFO�w� xVl�uGHUVRLQY�y�dN�H�NJKVQUHIX�\JFGVU�FV�MHSLUHFJ�FGJ�TIVKJÙIJN�NGHIJU�ÙILQY�FGJ�MHILV̀N�LQFJIMLJRN�VW�[JTHIF\JQF�NFHWWv�zVl�NGHUVRLQY�RHN�KVQÙKFJU�RLFG�
13 - 31



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<96=8>?56789� @ABC�DE�

FGHI�GJ�KLI�MINOPKHIQK�NGFRKRGQFS�RQTUVWRQX�YTTGVQKF�ZO[O\UIS�ZO[PGUUS�OQW�]OFL�ÎTIRNKF_�`� aIQKGPRQX�OQW�bVRWOQTI�c�ZPGJIFFRGQOU�XVRWOQTIS�HIQKGPRQXS�OQW�JIIW\OTd�eIPI�NPGfRWIW�KG�MINOPKHIQK�FKOJJ�OQW�GKLIP�dI[�]RK[�FKOJJ�PIUOKRQX�KG�fOPRGVF�]RK[�JRQOQTI�RFFVIFS�FVTL�OF�\VWXIK�NPINOPOKRGQS�OVWRKRQXS�FKOKI�PINGPKFS�GNIPOKRGQOU�NPGTIFFIFS�OQW�KPORQRQX_�gLI�PIFIOPTL�HIKLGWGUGX[�OUFG�RQTUVWIW�PIfRIe�GJ�fOPRGVF�HVQRTRNOU�JRQOQTI�GPXOQRhOKRGQOU�eI\FRKIFS�RQTUVWRQX�KLI�]OURJGPQRO�iGTRIK[�GJ�aVQRTRNOU�jRQOQTI�kJJRTIPFS�bGfIPQHIQK�jRQOQTI�kJJRTIPF�YFFGTROKRGQ�lbjkYmS�nQKIPQOKRGQOU�]RK[o]GVQK[�aOQOXIHIQK�YFFGTROKRGQS�bGfIPQHIQKOU�YTTGVQKRQX�iKOQWOPWF�pGOPWS�OQW�qGF�YQXIUIF�]GVQK[�rTGQGHRT�MIfIUGNHIQK�]GPNGPOKRGQS�OF�eIUU�OF�iKOKI�OQW�jIWIPOU�GPXOQRhOKRGQOU�eI\FRKIFS�RQTUVWRQX�KLI�]OURJGPQRO�iKOKI�stuvwtxxywz�s{x|}twu|{�~y�{wv�yuv�t}��|u{u�yz�s{x|}twu|{����x|�����xt�yy����yv|wy�yuv����vy��l]OUZr̂ imS�OQW��i�]IQFVF�pVPIOV_�YWWRKRGQOUU[S�fOPRGVF�TGHNOPO\UI�TRK[�eI\FRKIF�eIPI�PIfRIeIW�KG�NPGfRWI�TGHNOPOKRfI�WOKO�JGP�KLRF�PINGPK_����� �����������������������iGVKL�ZOFOWIQO�RF�UGTOKIW�ONNPG�RHOKIU[�FR��HRUIF�QGPKLIOFK�GJ�WGeQKGeQ�qGF�YQXIUIF�GQ�KLI�eIFK�FRWI�GJ�KLI�iOQ�bO\PRIU��OUUI[�\IKeIIQ�KLI�]RKRIF�GJ�ZOFOWIQOS�iOQ�aOPRQGS�qGF�YQXIUIFS�OQW�YULOH\POS�OQW�RK�LOF�O�NGNVUOKRGQ�GJ�� S¡¡�_�jGVQWIW�RQ�¢£¤¥�\[�KLI�nQWROQO�]GUGQ[S�KLI�]RK[�IQTGHNOFFIF�¦_¥¥�F§VOPI�HRUIF�OQW�eOF�RQTGPNGPOKIW�OF�O�XIQIPOU�UOe�]RK[�GJ�KLI�iKOKI�GJ�]OURJGPQRO�GQ�aOPTL��S�¢£££_�iGVKL�ZOFOWIQO�RF�QGKIW�JGP�RKF�\IOVKRJVUS�LRFKGPRTOUU[�FRXQRJRTOQK�LGHIF�GQ�KPIÏURQIW�FKPIIKFS�JGP�RKF�I�TIUUIQK�NV\URT�FTLGGUFS�OQW�JGP�O�FHOUÜKGeQ�OKHGFNLIPI�RQ�KLI�HRWFK�GJ�XPIOKIP�qGF�YQXIUIF_�gLI�]RK[�RF�O�JVUÜFIPfRTI�XIQIPOU�UOe�]RK[�KLOK�GNIPOKIF�VQWIP�KLI�]GVQTRÜaOQOXIP�JGPH�GJ�XGfIPQHIQK_�gLI�]RK[�]GVQTRU�TGQFRFKF�GJ�JRfI�HIH\IPF�IUITKIW�KG�JGVP̈[IOP�FKOXXIPIW�KIPHF�GJ�GJJRTI_�gLI�aO[GP�RF�FIUITKIW�JPGH�KLI�]RK[�]GVQTRU�HIH\IPF�OQW�FIPfIF�O�GQÏ[IOP�KIPH_�gLI�s|v����tv©yw�yxy�vyª�t}}|�|{x��{wy�v©y�s|v��«wy{��wyw�{uª�s|v��sxyw¬z�y{�©�t}�©t���yw®y�{�}t�ẅ[IOP�KIPH�GJ�GJJRTI_�gLI�]RK[�NPGfRWIF�O�JVUU�POQXI�GJ�FIPfRTIFS�RQTUVWRQX�NGURTI�OQW�JRPI�NPGKITKRGQ̄�KLI�TGQFKPVTKRGQ�OQW�HORQKIQOQTI�GJ�FKPIIKF�OQW�GKLIP�RQJPOFKPVTKVPĪ�FIeIP�FIPfRTIF̄�eOKIP�VKRURK[̄�PIJVFI�TGUUITKRGQ̄�NV\URT�RHNPGfIHIQKF̄�NUOQQRQX�OQW�hGQRQX̄�PITPIOKRGQOU�OTKRfRKRIF�OQW�TVUKVPOU�IfIQKF̄�UR\POP[�GNIPOKRGQF̄�OQW�XIQIPOU�OWHRQRFKPOKRfI�OQW�FVNNGPK�FIPfRTIF_������������������������������������������������������]RK[�GJ�iGVKL�ZOFOWIQO�j°�¢±o¢¤�]Yĵ�
13 - 32



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<96=8>?56789� @ABC�DE�

FGHIJK�LMNGOP�QR�SQIOT�UVWVXKYV�ZJHVYG[VOGQYV\�NTVJO�

�:]̂]:�_79̀957̀a�<9b8=c 6̀789�d�e?==496�̀9>�f=78=�_7g5̀a�h4̀=g�ijk�lmnopq�rmqstu�oktv�wxyz�{|}{~�����knk��k��k��mn�vkq�n�ntu�t��v��m�tnkuo������muum���������������������������������������������������������������� �¡¢£¤¥��������¤�¦§��̈�� �§���©¥£����§���ª�������«���������� ��������¬¢�����«���������� ����§��������������®�§������������������©̄�����¢̄�§�����������®¤�°������§�����������§���������±��§��̈�� �§���©¥�²��������¤�³́µ¶·�̧¹º¹»¼½¹�¾¼½¼¿¹À�Áµ½»������Â�©£Ã©̄±��������������������������������������������������� �¡¢£¤¥������������������������ ���������������²��������������������� �¡¢Ä¤£±�������������������������������������������������������������� �¡£ÅÅ±ÅÅÅ¤�Æ������������������§����§����������±����������������ª��±��������������������§��²��������������������¤������������������������������²����§���§�²����������������������������������������������������§������²����������������������¤�Ç���������������������§���� ��§����²��������°����������È���������É����±�§��§�����������������²������������������������������±���������������§�������������������������§�������������²�����������������Ê�
13 - 33



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<96=8>?56789� @ABC�DE�

F� GHIJKLMINOPQM�R�SITQUNMK�OVHUIWK�WXOW�TOIIHW�PM�KLMIW�PMTOUKM�WXM�OVHUIW�KULLHYWK�HWXMY�MIWSWZ�OKKMWK[�KUTX�OK�SI\MIWHYSMK]�F� M̂KWYSTWMN�R�SITQUNMK�OVHUIWK�WXOW�TOI�PM�KLMIW�HIQZ�_HY�WXM�KLMTS_ST�LUYLHKMK�KWSLUQOWMN�PZ�THIKWSWUWSHI[�PZ�M̀WMYIOQ�YMKHUYTM�LYH\SNMYK[�HY�WXYHUaX�MIOPQSIa�QMaSKQOWSHI]��F� bHVVSWWMN�R�SITQUNMK�OVHUIWK�WXOW�TOI�PM�UKMN�HIQZ�_HY�WXM�KLMTS_ST�LUYLHKMK�cdedfghidc�jk�l�mnfglo�lpehni�nm�eqd�rnsdfigdietu�qhrqdue�odsdo�nm�cdphuhniJVOvSIa�OUWXHYSWZ]��F� wKKSaIMN�R�SITQUNMK�OVHUIWK�_HY�aH\MYIVMIWJKLMTS_ST�LUYLHKMK�PUW�NH�IHW�VMMW�WXM�TYSWMYSO�WH�PM�TQOKKS_SMN�OK�YMKWYSTWMN�HY�THVVSWWMN]��F� xIOKKSaIMN�R�SITQUNMK�OQQ�YMKSNUOQ�KLMINOPQM�OVHUIWK�IHW�THIWOSIMN�SI�WXM�HWXMY�TQOKKS_STOWSHIK]��yXM�z{|w�SK�O�IOWSHIOQQZ�YMTHaIS}MN�HYaOIS}OWSHI�WXOW�SNMIWS_SMK�OIN�LYH\SNMK�PMKW�_SIOITSOQ�LYOTWSTM�YMTHVVMINOWSHIK�WH�VUISTSLOQ�HYaOIS}OWSHIK]�yXM�z{|w�YMTHVVMINK�WXOW�UIOKKSaIMN�_UIN�POQOITM�SI�WXM�zMIMYOQ�{UIN�PM�VOSIWOSIMN�OW�O�QM\MQ�WXOW�SK�OW�QMOKW�W~H�VHIWXK[�HY�OLLYH̀SVOWMQZ����LMYTMIW[�H_�zMIMYOQ�{UIN�YM\MIUMK�HY�M̀LMINSWUYMK]�wK�H_�{�������tu��ng�fdqdiuhsd��ii�lo��hiliphlo��d�nfe���������eqd��hektu�UIOKKSaIMN�zMIMYOQ�{UIN�POQOITM�WHWOQK�OLLYH̀SVOWMQZ���]��VSQQSHI]�yXSK�M�UOWMK�WH�OLLYH̀SVOWMQZ����LMYTMIW�H_�YM\MIUMK]�yXSK�SK�SI�QSIM�~SWX�z{|w�jdue��flpehpd�fdpnggdiclehniu�lic�eqd��hektu��nohpk�nm�li��iluuhridc�m�ic�POQOITM�H_����LMYTMIW�H_�YM\MIUMK]��yXM�_HQQH~SIa�WOPQM�YMLYMKMIWK�WXM�OIWSTSLOWMN�UIOKKSaIMN�_UIN�POQOITM�OW�WXM�MIN�H_�{��������POKMN�HI�WXM�{��������bw{̂�OIN�WXM�{��������wNHLWMN��UNaMW]�
13 - 34



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<96=8>?56789� @ABC�DE�

FGHIJ�KLMN�OPQOR�GST�MN�ORQOU�VSGWWXYSJT�ZJSJ[GI�M\ST�]GIGŜJ�_?>̀46�a8bc89496� def?4�gh�DijDk�lmnomB�pqrAs�tCmCuAs�gvmn�wAsAmxCD� yDizi�{ossoqm�|4}}~�gh�DijDk��C�Cu�Aroqm��q��lmnomB�tCmCuAs�gvmn�wAsAmxCD� yizE�{ossoqm�gh�DijDk�lmnomB��mA��oBmCn�tCmCuAs�gvmn�wAsAmxCD� yEzk�{ossoqm�_?>̀46�a8bc89496� def?4�gh�DkjD��wCBommomB�pqrAs�tCmCuAs�gvmn�wAsAmxC� yDizi�{ossoqm�|4}}~�gh�DkjD��wvnBCrCn��C�Cu�Aroqm��q��tCmCuAs�gvmn�wAsAmxC�� y�z��{ossoqm�|4}}~�gh�DkjD���mroxo@ArCn��@CuAromB��C�oxor�� y�zk�{ossoqm�gh�DkjD���mroxo@ArCn�lmnomB��mA��oBmCn�tCmCuAs�gvmn�wAsAmxC� yD�z��{ossoqm������������������������������������������� ¡�¢�����£�¤¥� �¤������ ¡�¦����� ����� �¤���¤��¥��§��̈©�ª�«�����¥��¤�¬����������¤�£������������ �¤���� ��� �£����£������������� �¤�£���¤���� ����§��®©�̈��������¤��� ̄��§��̈©�ª�����¤� �¤�̄���°��¤������ �¡�±���¤����¤�����������²� ���� ̄�� �³�� ��������� �� � �����²�������� ������ �¤���� ����§��̈©�ª�£�¤¥� �¤������ �²������� � ���������� � �������� ���́����¤�µ¶·�̧¹¶�º»̧¼½¾�·¶¾¶·¿¶�µÀÁ»Â¼Ã��¦����� ����� �¤��§��̈©�ª�������¥��¤�¬����������¤�£������������ ���� �¤���� ������������ �£���²���¤�£�������Ä��� ��̄�ÅÆ������� ����� ����� �¤����¶ÇÈ¶¾É�Ê¹»Â¹�Ë¶¶̧¾�̧¹¶�ÌÍÎÏ½¾�Ð¶¾̧�µ·ÑÂ̧»Â¶�·¶ÂÀËË¶ÇÒŅ̃»ÀÇ�ÑÇÒ�̧¹¶�º»̧¼½¾�·¶¾¶·¿¶�µÀÁ»Â¼�ÀÓ�Ņ̃�Á¶Ñ¾̧�ÔÕ�µ¶·Â¶Ç̧�ÀÓ�Ì¶Ç¶·ÑÁ�ÍÈÇÒ���������¡�ÏÁ̧¹ÀÈÖ¹�̧¹¶�º»̧¼½¾�ÈÇÑ¾¾»ÖÇ¶Ò�ÓÈÇÒ�ÐÑÁÑÇÂ¶�»¾�·¶ÁŅ̃»¿¶Á¼�¹¶ÑÁ̧¹¼É�µÀ̧¶Ç̧»ÑÁ�ËÑ×À·�»ËµÑÂ̧¾�ËÈ¾̧�£�������¤���¤³��������� ��������¥���� ��������Ø�Ù���¤�� ������� �������������¤�������������������¤�£̄��� ����� ������¤©������������¤�²� ����¡�����Ø�Ù������¤�� �¤�������� �� �²���¤���²��� ���������¥���� ��Ú¤������ ��� �Û������� �������¤� ��¤��������� ̄���� ��£� ������ �������� �����Ä ����������̄���������̈¡Ü̈Ý������� � ��̈������� ¡�¦����²�������������� ��������Ø�Ù���� �� �� ����� ̄¡�¦��������� ����¤�������¤���������¤� ������ ������ ��������� ¡��¤¤� ������̄³�����������¹̧Ņ̃�ÊÀÈÁÒ�·¶µ¶ÑÁ�̧¹¶�º»̧¼½¾�Þ̧»Á»̧¼�Þ¾¶·¾�ßÑà�áÞÞßâ�¹Ñ¾�ãÈÑ����¤���� ���ä����£���£���� ¡�¦���º»̧¼½¾�ÞÞß�·¶µ·¶¾¶Ç̧¾�Ñµµ·Àà»ËŅ̃¶Á¼�åÔ�µ¶·Â¶Ç̧�ÀÓ�Ì¶Ç¶·ÑÁ�ÍÈÇÒ�·¶¿¶ÇÈ¶¾Ã�æÀ¾»ÇÖ�̧¹»¾�·¶¿¶ÇÈ¶�²� ��� ������������� ��������²������́�������¥������ ������������¤�� ����¡��¦�������²��¥� �£������ ����������°̄����������������� ����������� ������¤�£���������� ���¬����������¤¡�
13 - 35



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<96=8>?56789� @ABC�DE�

FGHIJ�KLMNOJPQJGR�STUVGRNWTX�TY�STUVTXJXZW�TY�[JXJRGI�M\X]�̂GIGX_J̀�a8bc89496� de�:fg:h� de�:hg:i� de�:ig:j� de�:jg:k� de�:kg:l�mnopq@CorAstC� uvwvxxwExv� uvwDEywxzv� uvwEDDw{|v� uvwE}~wDD|� uvwE||w~vx��Cq�����Cr� uE� uE� uE� uE� uE��n�����Cr� uDwv|vw|{v� uDwz~EwEEE� u}w~EEwEEE� u~wz}~wEEE� u~w{xxwv}E��qq�BoCr� uE� uE� uE� uE� uE��oAqq�BoCr� uvvwyDyw{}D� uvDwy{{wD{E� uv}wvD|w|vx� uvDwyD|wDE~� uxwz{vw~}v��n�At���or��AtAo�C� uv~wEz{w|E|� uvzwz|zwD|v� uvywz|ywDzE� uvxw}x|w|Dx� uvzwzD~wv{E��������������������������������������� ��¡��¢�����£¤¥¦§̈�£©§�ª«£¬®�̄����°�������±°�°���� °��²��³��°��°¢��°²�����°¡¡��́�µ°�����¶�¡�������¡�����°�����µ��·��̧¹�º�� ���² ��·��»¹�¼½�¾�³�¢��¿�����·��»¹�¼¿�� ����µµ��������µ¡������³°�������°����±��°¡¡��́�µ°�����À�½��µ�������°���� ����°���²������µ¡�����������°����±��°¡¡��́�µ°�����ÀÁÂÂ¿ÂÂÂ½�Ã���·��»¹�¼¿�� ����³°��������������¡��°���²�����µ�����°���³������ ��À�½��µ������������°��������µµ�����������±°�°���¿�³�� ������°�ÀÁÂÂ¿ÂÂÂ������°������� ����°���²���������±°�°���½�Ã���·��¼¹�¶¿� �³�¢��¿���²�����°�����°����������Ä°¡¡��́�µ°�����À»½Á�µ������Å�³°��µ°������� ���°���������°�����¡�°��µ��������¿��������Ãµ¡��¢�µ��������¿�°����������Æ�² ���²�����¿�°���� ����µµ�����������±°�°����°������Ç�¡���°±�����µ¡�������³���������°����±��°¡¡��́�µ°�����À̧»Á¿ÂÂÂ�°���À�Â¿ÂÂÂ¿����¡����¢���½�È ���¡��°���²����¡����³°��°±��������¢���°���±���°¡¡��́�µ°�����À̧½É�µ����������� ����°������¿���������²����°������°��������°���²����°������°�������±°�°�������� ��̄����°������½�È ���·��¼¹�¶���°���²���������±°�°����³°��°¡¡��́�µ°�����ºº�¡�����������·��¼¹�¶��́¡���������¿���������²���°����������½�Ê©«®�Ë§Ì¤«Í®�Î«£©«Í�£©§�ª«£¬®�ÏÐ¦«Ñ¬�¤ÍÒ�ÓÔÕÖ�¥§®£�ÏË¤Ñ£«Ñ§�Ë§ÑÐÌÌ§ÍÒ¤£«ÐÍ®×� �³�¢��¿����������²���²����°���°���µ¡°����³������Ø�����°���������µ°���°���°� �°�� �������±°�°���½��Ù �����µ¡°���²�±��²������°���°��������¢�����°����́¡���������¿�� ��ª«£¬®�̄����°�������°���¢�������¡���������°����°��� °�������������°�²��¡�����¢��¢°��°�������²°����²���¢������°������°��¢�����µ°�����²°��¢��¢°��°�����³ �����́¡����������°������������½���¢������ °¢���́��������́¡���°������±��°��°¢��°²�����°¡¡��́�µ°�����À�½̧�µ������¿����»½»�¡������¿��¢���� ��¡°�����¢����°��¿�³ ���°���́¡�����������¢������� °¢��°¢��°²���°¡¡��́�µ°�����À�̧ ¿̧ÂÂÂ¿����Â½»�¡������¿������ ���°µ��¡�����½�È ��� °��������������°����°��������°�����������±°�°���½���� ��² ���¢���¡µ�������������¢°��¢����¢���������µ°�������°�±����¡�°�����¿���������������°�²��±��²������°���°��¢°��°����������°���°��°�Ú�����������¢��±��²���¡�°������½�Ã��������°���������Ç����µ°���²���¢�������°���°������������°������¢������¢�����������������¡��¢���������������¢������¢��������°���½�Û°�������°��°µ¡�����¢��³����¡�������°���°������¡��������������¢���������µ°�����¢���¡µ���¿�������µ��� °��¡�������°������µ°����³��������������¢°��¢��°���³�� ����°����°���°����°��½�È �������³��²��°±�����µµ°��Ü���� ��±��²���¢������°���°��°���¢��������̄����°���������¢������°����́¡��������������� ��¡°�����¢����°��½�
13 - 36



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<96=8>?56789� @ABC�DE�

FGHIJ�KLMNOJPQJGR�SJTJRGI�MUTV�WJOJTUJ�GTV�XYZJTVN[URJ�\�]UV̂J[�OJR_U_�̀a[UGIb�c4d49?4efgh49>76?=4�i8jh89496� kl�:me:n� kl�:ne:o� kl�:oe:p� kl�:pe:q� kl�:qe:r�sCtCuvC�wvxBCy� DEz{|Dz}~�� DDz{|Ez�{D� D}zED}z{{�� D}z{D�z�E{� D~z�DDz�DE�sCtCuvC���yvA�� D|z�{�zEE}� D}z|}~z{��� D~zE��z~|D� D�z}��z�~}� D�z|~�zE�D��A��Au�C� �~DzE�}� Ez�E|z��}� Ez��|z{~}� Ez{��zE|{� {|}zE�E���@Cux�yv�C�wvxBCy� DDz|{{z��|� D}z���z�D~� D|z{�Ez~��� D}z��}zE|}� D{z�}~z��~���@Cux�yv�C���yvA�� DDz{�}zE{|� DDz{�{z�D{� D|z�}�z|��� D}z{}Dz��E� D�zED�z��|��A��Au�C� �|��zDE��� DzE��z���� �E�}z����� �{�z{~{�� �Dz���z|����wvxBCyCx��v�@�v��������� ��}~z~�}�� �DzE|{z�~|�� |}|zD{�� �~z{�|� �Ez}D|z�{}����yvA���v�@�v��������� |E|z�}E� Ez~{{z�|�� EzD}DzDD}� Ez{}{zE�|� �Dz{��z�EE����A��Au�C� �~�z}}~� |z{E}z��D� ���z�~}� Ez��Ez|��� �Ez|}�zD|{������������������� ¡��¢�£�¤¥��¦§§��̈�©¦��ª��«¬®�©�ªª��̄��§��¦��̄¡�ª�¢¢��̄�°±��²³�́�µ¦¢� �������¥����¦̄¢¶����¶�¦§§��̈�©¦��ª��«··�©�ªª��̄��̄����¦§��¦ª�§��̧���¢�¶�̄ ¢�¹�¢�̄���¥����¦̄¢¶��º��¥��°±��²³�́�µ��ª �¥¦»��¥¦ �¦̄��§��¦��̄¡�¢��§ª�¢��¶�¦§§��̈�©¦��ª��«¬²�©�ªª��̄�Z̀ZJTVNY�b���¶ª���¢��¥�� ��¦�ª¢��¶��¥����»�̄���¦̄ ��̈§�̄ �������� ¡������¦���¦ª���©§¦��¢�̄�¶����¥��§¦¢��¶�»��¶�¢�¦ª���¦�¢�¤¥��¶�ªª�µ�̄¡�¡�¦§¥���¶ª���¢�¦���©§¦��¢�̄��¶�¦���¦ª���»�̄��¢����¦���¦ª��̈§�̄ �����¢��̄��¥��¼�̄��¦ª�°�̄ �¦̄ ��¥����¢�ª��̄¡��§��¦���̄¦ª�¢��§ª�¢����ª�¢¢�¶����¥��§¦¢��¶�»��¶�¢�¦ª���¦�¢��

13 - 37



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<96=8>?56789� @ABC�DD�

EFGHIJ�KLMJNJIOP�EHNQ�RJSJNHJ�SJITHT�UVWJNQFXHIJ�YZXHOP�[�EFSJ\]JOI�̂_̀ WOIFT_N�

�abc� defgfhi�jikglmnifm�oipm�klghmehi�gfj�kildqlngfhi�nigprlip�stu�vwxy�tz{�|u}u~��u|�z�������z�u~�������u{����z����u��u����u�|z����{��u~z�u|�����������z~����z���z~���u�z����{���stu��u�z���u���{�z���{t��~|��u}�u���t�{�~�{��z�|��{u����z{�z����|u��tu��|u}u~�����������u����~���u{������tu���������������������������������������� ��¡��¢£��¤��������u�z���u����u}�u�������{z~��z{��tu�|u}u~���u�������u�����z��u��uz{��u{��stu���~~�������{��tu�¥¤�¦£��§����������������̈©©������̈���̈������̈�©�����©���ª���«�¬®̄°±²³́µ¶��·̧¹º»¹¼½¾¿̧�¼̧½ÀÁ¹̧À�½¹̧�ÁÀ̧Â�ÃÄ�Å»Æ̧¹¾¼̧¾ÇÀ�Ç»�¿»ÈȨ̀¿Ç�É¾º»¹¼½ÇÉ»¾�½Ã»ÁÇ�»Ȩ̂¹½ÇÉ»¾½È�½¿ÇÉÆÉÇȨ́ÀË�½¿ÌȨ́Æ̧¼̧¾Ç�»º�Å»½ÈÀË�¿»¼¼Á¾ÉÇÄ�¿»¾ÂÉÇÉ»¾ÀË�»¹�»ÇÌ̧¹�̧¾ÆÉ¹»¾¼̧¾Ç½È�º½¿Ç»¹À�Ç»�Ã̧ÇÇ̧¹�Á¾Â̧¹ÀÇ½¾Â�½�ÀÉÇÁ½ÇÉ»¾�½¾Â�¼½Í̧�É¾º»¹¼̧Â�Â̧¿ÉÀÉ»¾ÀÎ�Ï̧Å½¹ÂȨ̀ÀÀ�Éº�½¾�»¹Å½¾ÉÐ½ÇÉ»¾�Ì½À�½�¿̧¾Ç¹½ÈÉÐ̧Â�¿»ÈȨ̀¿ÇÉ»¾�ÀÄÀÇ̧¼�º»¹�Ȩ̂¹º»¹¼½¾¿̧�¼̧½ÀÁ¹̧ÀË�ÇÌ̧�ÁÀ̧�»º�Ȩ̂¹º»¹¼½¾¿̧����������������������������������������������������stu�~�{��z�|��tu�|u�z�~u|��u����u�|z����{��z���u�}�u�u|�����tu�vwxy��u�{��u�z��t���«ÑÑ�������z����Ñ�u{�Ò��z����u{ÒÓ��
13 - 38



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<96=8>?56789� @ABC�DE�

FGHG�IJKLMF�NO�PQHORSGM�HT�UV�TWXUVYZU[YTV\]�̂_̀Y]YTVabGcPQR�dSKeOIIOI�GQF�MOGFOSI�fPHJPQ�GQ�KSRGQPgGHPKQ�IJKLMF�IOH�OhdOeHGHPKQI�HJGH�cOi�FOePIPKQI�GSO�ILddKSHOF�Ni�OjPFOQeOk�lKS�KdHPbGM�LIOm�dOSnKSbGQeO�bOGILSOI�QOOF�HK�NO�FOjOMKdOF�eKQIPFOSPQR�HJO�dKHOQHPGM�GLFPOQeO�nKS�HJO�PQnKSbGHPKQk�oI�G�SOILMHm�KSRGQPgGHPKQI�QOOF�HK�PFOQHPni�GQF�HSGec�bOGILSOI�GH�GQ�KdOSGHPKQGMm�bGQGROSPGMm�dKMPei�bGcPQRm�GQF�eKbbLQPHi�MOjOMk�pqrs�tuvwxxuyz{|}wy~���l�o�SOeKbbOQFI�GMM�KSRGQPgGHPKQI�PFOQHPnim�HSGecm�GQF�eKbbLQPeGHO�dOSnKSbGQeO�bOGILSOI�HK�bKQPHKS�nPQGQePGM�GQF�NLFROHGSi�IHGHLIm�IOSjPeO�FOMPjOSim�dSKRSGb�KLHeKbOIm�GQF�eKbbLQPHi�eKQFPHPKQIk��JOQ�PFOQHPniPQR�dOSnKSbGQeO�bOGILSObOQHIm�RKjOSQbOQHI�IJKLMF�nKeLI�KQ�bGcPQR�ILSO�HJGH�bOGILSOI�bOOH�HJO�nKMMKfPQR�eKQFPHPKQI����IOnLM���bOGILSOI�IJKLMF�dSKjPFO�PQnKSbGHPKQ�HJGH�PI�JOMdnLM�HK�FOePIPKQ�bGcPQRm�LQFOSIHGQFPQRm�KS�GeeKLQHGNPMPHi�OnnKSHIk��OMOjGQH���bOGILSOI�eGQ�NO�eMOGSMi�MPQcOF�HK�HJO�IOSjPeO�FOMPjOSi�dSKRSGb�KLHeKbOI�HJGH�HJOi�GSO�PQHOQFOF�HK�bOGILSOm�GddSKdSPGHO�nKS�HJO�KLHeKbO�NOPQR�bOGILSOFm�GQF�GSO�SOGFPMi�LQFOSIHGQFGNMO��OMPGNMO���eKMMOeHPKQ�bOHJKFI�GQF�bOGILSO�FOnPQPHPKQI�QOOF�HK�NO�LQFOSIHKKF�IK�IHGcOJKMFOSI�eGQ�SOMi�KQ�HJO�PQnKSbGHPKQk��oFO�LGHO���OQILSO�OQKLRJ�GQF�GMIK�GQ�GddSKdSPGHO�jGSPOHi�Kn�bOGILSOI�GSO�LIOF�HK�bOGILSO�dOSnKSbGQeO�GQF�HJGH�bOGILSOI�FK�QKH�PQeOQHPjPgO�NOJGjPKS�HJGH�GFjOSIOMi�PbdGeHI�HJO�bOGILSOI���ILeJ�GI�G��LGQHPHi�jOSILI��LGMPHi�IeOQGSPKk��JOSO�PI�KnHOQ�QKH�G�IPQRMO�bOGILSO�HJGH�eGQ�dSKjPFO�ILnnPePOQH�eKQHOhH�GQF�LQFOSIHGQFPQR��KMMOeHPNMO���bOGILSOI�GSO�SOGFPMi�GjGPMGNMO�GQF�FK�QKH�PQjKMjO�OheOIIPjO�HPbO�OnnKSH�HK�eKMMOeH��KQIPIHOQH���bOGILSOI�eGQ�NO�SORLMGSMi�eKMMOeHOF�HK�HSGec�KLHeKbOI�KjOS�HPbO�GQF�GjKPF�QOOF�HK�eKQHPQLKLIMi�PFOQHPni�QOf�bOGILSOI��QjPSKQbOQH���bOGILSOI�PQeMLFOI�jGSPGNMOI�SOMGHOF�HK�OhHOSQGMPHPOI�HJGH�PbdGeH�IOSjPeO�FOMPjOSi�GQF�dSKRSGb�dOSnKSbGQeO��OIdKQIPNPMPHi���eMOGSMi�PFOQHPni�SOIdKQIPNPMPHPOI�nKS�eKMMOeHPKQm�IHKSGRO�GQF�FPIIObPQGHPKQ�Kn�HJO�FGHG��iIHObI���OhPIHPQR�FGHG�eKMMOeHPKQ�eGdGePHPOI�GSO�MOjOSGROF�GddSKdSPGHOMim�KS�QOf�IiIHObI�GSO�PFOQHPnPOF�PQ�KSFOS�HK�OGIO�HJO�NLSFOQ�Kn�FGHG�eKMMOeHPKQ�
13 - 39



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<96=8>?56789� @ABC�DE�

FGHIJKHL�MJKN�OPKNIOQRONS�TNP�GUONS�VKHQWHXTNYK�XKTUGHKUL�WHSTNOZTIOWNU�XTR�QONP�OI�JK[VQG[�QWH�YWXVTHOUWN�VGHVWUKU�WH�T�HKYWSNOZKP�UITNPTHP�IW�TUUKUU�YGHHKNI�WGIYWXKUL�QTYO[OITIK�POUYGUUOWN�WH�UJTHK�OPKTU�IJTI�[KTP�IW�OXVHW\KXKNI�KQQWHIU]�̂ WMK\KHL�SW\KHNXKNIU�XGUI�HKYWSNOZK�IJK�YJT[[KNSKU�TNP�VWIKNIOT[�XOUHKVHKUKNITIOWNU�IJTI�YTN�WYYGH�MOIJWGI�YTHKQG[�YWNUOPKHTIOWNU]�FWH�K_TXV[KL�XWUI�SW\KHNXKNIU�K_OUI�ON�T�GNÒGK�KN\OHWNXKNI�TNP�VKHQWHXTNYK�PTIT�OU�UGabKYI�IW�T�\THOKIR�WQ�YWNIHOaGIONS�QTYIWHU�IJTI�XTR�WH�XTR�NWI�aK�VHKUKNI�ON�YWXVTHOUWN�PTIT]�cN�TPPOIOWNL�XTNR�XKTUGHKU�XTR�UKKX�UOXO[THL�aGI�JT\K�T�POQQKHKNI�PKQONOIOWN�WQ�JWM�IJK�XKTUGHK�OU�YT[YG[TIKP�XTdONS�T�IHGK�YWXVTHOUWN�OXVWUUOa[K]�eNYK�YW[[KYIKPL�SW\KHNXKNIU�UJWG[P�KNUGHK�IJTI�XKTUGHKU�THK�YWXXGNOYTIKP�TNP�MK[[�GNPKHUIWWP]�fJOU�ONY[GPKU�YWXXGNOYTIOWN�aWIJ�ONIKHNT[[R�TNP�K_IKHNT[[R]�gJKN�YWXXGNOYTIONS�VKHQWHXTNYK�XKTUGHKU�ONIKHNT[[R�KNUGHK�IJK�QW[[WMONSh��i_VKYITIOWNU�j�Y[KTH[R�YWXXGNOYTIK�JWM�VKHQWHXTNYK�XKTUGHKU�MO[[�aK�GIO[OZKP�ON�PKYOUOWNkXTdONS�TNP�TYHWUU�T[[�[K\K[U�WQ�IJK�WHSTNOZTIOWN�lGHVWUK�j�KXVJTUOZK�IJTI�VKHQWHXTNYK�XKTUGHKU�THK�GUKP�IW�ONQWHX�PKYOUOWNU�TNP�QTYO[OITIK�OXVHW\KXKNI�TNP�GNPKHUITNPONS]�mW\KHNXKNIU�UJWG[P�aK�YTHKQG[�IW�T\WOP�VKHQWHXTNYK�XKTUGHKU�IJTI�THK�YW[[KYIKP�IW�UOXV[R�UJWM�TYJOK\KXKNI�QWH�IJK�VGHVWUK�WQ�UW[OYOIONS�HKYWSNOIOWN�WH�HKMTHPU]�nOXO[TH[RL�[KUU�IJTN�QT\WHTa[K�WGIYWXKU�UJWG[P�aK�K\T[GTIKP�IW�GNPKHUITNP�IJK�HWWI�YTGUK�WQ�IJK�OUUGK�TNP�T\WOP�G̀OYd�VGNOIO\K�TYIOWNU�TU�IJOU�MO[[�XTdK�TYYGHTIK�PTIT�YW[[KYIOWN�KQQWHIU�XWHK�POQQOYG[I�ON�IJK�QGIGHK��o[THOIR�j�Y[KTH[R�THIOYG[TIK�IJK�VKHQWHXTNYK�XKTUGHKUL�ONY[GPONS�aWIJ�K_VKYIKP�HKUG[IUpITHSKIU�TNP�TYIGT[�HKUG[IU�qTIT�cNIKSHOIR�j�IJK�UWGHYK�WQ�IJK�PTIT�TNP�JWM�IJK�PTIT�OU�ONIKHVHKIKP�WH�GUKP�IW�PHTM�YWNY[GUOWNU�UJWG[P�aK�Y[KTH[R�TNP�THIOYG[TIKP]��oWNIK_I�j�VHW\OPK�aTYdSHWGNP�WN�MJR�IJKUK�VTHIOYG[TH�VKHQWHXTNYK�XKTUGHKU�MKHK�YJWUKNL�UGYJ�TU�YWUIL�IOXK[ONKUUL�T\TO[TaO[OIRL�KIY]��lHWPGYIOWN�j�HKQKHKNYK�UWGHYKU�WQ�VKHQWHXTNYK�XKTUGHKU�TNP�JWM�IJK�XKTUGHKU�MKHK�YW[[KYIKP�qOUUKXONTIOWN�j�KNUGHK�VKHQWHXTNYK�XKTUGHKU�THK�POUIHOaGIKP�IJHWGSJWGI�T[[�[K\K[U�WQ�IJK�WHSTNOZTIOWN�TNP�THK�XTPK�HKTPO[R�T\TO[Ta[K�gJKN�YWXXGNOYTIONS�VKHQWHXTNYK�XKTUGHKU�K_IKHNT[[R�IJK�QW[[WMONS�UJWG[P�OIKXU�UJWG[P�aK�TPPHKUUKP�IW�KNUGHK�XKTUGHKU�THK�HKTPO[R�T\TO[Ta[K�TNP�TYYKUUOa[Kh��qK[O\KHR�j�JWM�TNP�MJKHK�MO[[�IJK�VKHQWHXTNYK�XKTUGHKU�aK�YWXXGNOYTIKP�
13 - 40



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<96=8>?56789� @ABC�DE�

FGHIJKLJ�M�IHJKNIOP�QRS�NRJ�TUIVWUP�WGHIJKLJ�SO�NRJ�IKOSUVWNISK�QIXX�YJ�ZSUVWN�M�QRWN�I[�NRJ�YJ[N�QWP�NS�TUJ[JKN�NRJ�IKOSUVWNISK�ZUJ\GJKLP�M�RSQ�SONJK�QIXX�NRJ�TJUOSUVWKLJ�VJW[GUJ[�YJ�LSVVGKILWNJH]GTHWNJH�X̂WUINP�M�J_TXWIK�NRJ�J_WLN�[SGULJ�SO�NRJ�HWNẀ�RSQ�NRJ�LWXLGXWNISK[�QJUJ�LSKHGLNJH�WKH�QRP̀�QRWN�NRJ�TJUOSUVWKLJ�VJW[GUJ[�[RSQ̀�YSNR�J_TJLNJH�UJ[GXN[]NWUaJN[�WKH�WLNGWX�UJ[GXN[�ŜKNJ_N�M�TUSbIHJ�YWLcaUSGKH�SK�QRP�NRJ[J�TWUNILGXWU�TJUOSUVWKLJ�VJW[GUJ[�QJUJ�LRS[JK̀�QRP̀�IO�WKP�NWUaJN�VJW[GUJ[�QJUJ�[JN�WKH�QRP̀�WKH�QRWN�NRJ�UJ[GXN[�VJWK�NS�STJUWNISK[̀�[JUbILJ�XJbJX[̀�SU�LSVVGKINP�SGNLSVJ[de�fgh�ijkkjlmno�pqh�rpstkh�umnpnvh�whtpqxshnx�thqijqspnvh�shpryqhr�iqjs�pnjxghq�pohnvz{�fgmr�rpstkh�tqj|m}hr�xztmvpk�thqijqspnvh�shpryqhr�xgpx�pqh�ohnhqpkkz�qhkh|pnx�xj�vmxz�imnpnvh�}htpqxshnxr{�fgh�~mxz�ji��jyxg��prp}hnp��gjlh|hq��rgjyk}�}h|hkjt�shpryqhr�xgpx�shhx�rthvmimv�nhh}r�ji�xgh�~mxz��prh}�jn�xgh��hrx�tqpvxmvh�oym}hkmnhr�kmrxh}�tqh|mjyrkz{���������������������������������������������������� �ys�hq�ji�hstkjzhhr�lmxg�jthn�tqjvyqhshnx�vpq}r��� �|hqpoh�tqjvyqhshnx�vpq}�tyqvgprh�psjynx���� fjxpk�}jkkpq�|pkyh�ji�tyqvgprmno�vjn}yvxh}�lmxg�tqjvyqhshnx�vpq}r��� fjxpk�nys�hq�ji�mn|jmvhr�tqjvhrrh}�ijq�tpzshnx���� �|hqpoh�nys�hq�ji�mn|jmvhr�tqjvhrrh}�ijq�tpzshnx���� �|hqpoh�vpkhn}pq�}pzr�iqjs�pttqj|h}�qh�ymrmxmjn�xj�tyqvgprh�jq}hq�mrryh}���������� �pxmj�ji� hnhqpk�uyn}��}smnmrxqpxm|h��hq|mvhr��y}ohx�xj�xjxpk� hnhqpk�uyn}��y}ohx��� �pxmj�ji� hnhqpk�uyn}��y}ohx�xj�xgh�j|hqpkk�~mxz��y}ohx��� �ys�hq�ji�qhrm}hnxr�thq�pyxgjqm¡h}�rpkpqmh}�tjrmxmjnr���� �hqvhnx�pvvyqpvz�mn��y}ohx�qh|hnyh�xj�pvxypk�mn� hnhqpk�uyn}�¢�nnypkkz£��������������������������������������������������¤�gxxt¥¦¦lll{oijp{jqo¦thqijqspnvh§shpryqhr��
13 - 41



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<96=8>?56789� @ABC�DE�

FGHIJGKL�MNOPH�Q� RSTUVW�XYZ[\]V]T��Q� RSTUV�X\YW]̂YSV�_̀V]��Q� Ra]_̀b]�cSZd]_�Ye�Y[]c�̀STUV�UWWS]W�

13 - 42



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQRS�T;UQSVSON�WNXVYPZNSP�RXNYVPQRSV[�YN\QN]�_̂̀� abcdefghij�:klkl�<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B@m=97n=6789�=9o�<p956789=C�D4q?89q7r7C7674q�stu�vwxxwyz{|�vz|}~u��twy���tu��z{�{�u�������������������������������������������������� ��¡�¢��£¤��£�¥�����¦�£�§��̈�©ª��£�

�stu��z{�{�u�«u¬�~�u{�����w}{���vw~��xx�®z�̄�u°¬u{±z�}~u�²��±z{z��u~��³}�z{u���xz�u{�z{|²��{�|u���úu~�x��w¬u�z�źu�|~�{���z{��wxx�³w~��zw{�yz�t�w�tu~�±u¬�~�u{��²�¬~u¬�~u���tu�³zyuuµx̄�¬�̄~wxx²�¬~u¬�~u��¬�̄u{��wv��xx�w³xz|��zw{��vw~�~úzuy��{±��¬¬~ẃ�x�³̄��tu�®z�̄�®w}{�zx²��{±��u{±��w}���¬¬~ẃu±��tu�µ�y�~~�{��¶�·{��w{̧}{��zw{�yz�t²��{±��}³̧u����w²��tu���¹����¹���������º���������º�����»��¼���¹����¹�����½¹���º���¾�����������������������������»��¼���®w¬~utu{�źu�¿{{}�x��z{�{�z�x�Àu¬w~�¶�stu�«u¬�~�u{���x�w�¬~u¬�~u���{{}�x�~u¬w~���vw~��tu�Á���u�®w{�~wxxu~��{±�w�tu~�Á���u��{±��u±u~�x��|u{�zu�¶�Â{±u~��tu�±z~u��zw{�wv��tu�®z�̄�Ã�{�|u~²�����������������������������»��¼������½���Ä½¹�����Å���������������Æ�����������½�����¼�Ä�������º½�������º�������»��¼��������Ç���ux̄�È²ÉÉÉ����w}{���vw~��xx�y��u~²�~uv}�u²��{±��uyu~�vuu�¶�stu�

%����Ê��'�Ë�Ì�Í���%/�ÎÏÐÑ0ÐÒ����� ��¡��� £§��
��̈¤Ó���Ô§�� Õ�Ö�§̈̈�©§§�×���£§��� Ø�Ù�Ú  §��£�©̈��Û�ÜÝÞÚ  §��£�ß� ª�� ���ÚÕàÕ�� ª�Ô�����̈̈�ß�¤��á¤¢̈§Ö��Ôâ��ã

ÚÔÔ�Ô£��£������ ��¡��� £§���̈¤��� Õ�Ö�§̈̈Ú  §��£Ô�Õ�Ö�ä̈� å�Ô���ÔÔ�Ó� ��Ô���æ�Ú  §��£Ô�ç� ��è�ä̈� é���£Ôæ�ê£�̈�£��Ôæ�Ø¢� ��̈�Õ�§ë� £Ôì�����¤��£�Ú��̈ÖÔ£ì�����¤��£�ÚÔÔ�Ô£��£

13 - 43



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQRSNTR�UVQWX�UYRZ�RZN�[YR\�]QNPX̂QNQ�PT_�RZN�̀YTPTaN�[VSSYRRNN�QNbPQ_YTb�RZN�cPQYV̂X�dYTPTaYPe�YXX̂NX�RZN�[YR\�Ŝ XR�aVTXY_NQf�gX�QNĥYQN_�i\�RZN�jVcNQTSNTR�[V_Nk�SVTRZe\�YTcNXRSNTR�QNOVQRX�PQN�OQVcY_N_�RV�RZN�[YR\�[V̂TaYe�PT_�̀YTPTaN�[VSSYXXYVT�X̂SSPQYlYTb�YTcNXRSNTR�ZVe_YTbX�PT_�QPRNX�Vd�QNR̂QT�VT�YTcNXRSNTRXf�]ZN�MNOPQRSNTR�PeXV�SPTPbNX�RZN�dYeS�ONQSYRRYTb�OQVaNXXf�mNQ�RZN�̀n�opqor�î_bNRk�RZN�MNOPQRSNTR�aVTXYXRX�Vd�RZN�dVeeVUYTb�_YcYXYVTXs�t� ỲeSYTb�t� mP\QVee�t� gaaV̂TRX�mP\PieN�t� ûXYTNXX�vYaNTXYTb�PT_�gaaV̂TRX�wNaNYcPieN��t� jQPTRXk�xRYeYRYNXk�PT_�yONaYPe�mQVzNaRX�]ZNXN�dYcN�_YcYXYVTX�PQN�XRPddN_�i\�RZN�dVeeVUYTb�TYTN�d̂ee{RYSN�OVXYRYVTXs�t� ỲTPTaN�MYQNaRVQ�t� gXXYXRPTR�̀YTPTaN�MYQNaRVQ�t� ỲeS�vYPYXVT�t� gaaV̂TR�]NaZTYaYPT�t� mP\QVee�[VVQ_YTPRVQ�t� ]UV�yNTYVQ�gaaV̂TR�[eNQWX�t� |PTPbNSNTR�gTPe\XR�t� |PTPbNSNTR�gXXYXRPTR�]ZN�MNOPQRSNTR�PeXV�PXXYXRX�YT�î_bNR�aQNPRYVT�PT_�SVTYRVQYTb�PT_�RZN�aVVQ_YTPRYVT�Vd�RZN�cPQYV̂X�P̂_YRX�Vd�RZN�[YR\k�PT_�YR�ONQdVQSX�}~����}����}��������d̂TaRYVT�YT�aVTẑTaRYVT�UYRZ�RZN�[YR\�]QNPX̂QNQf��~�������}���}��������}���������}��������������}�}��������������}������������������������������RZN�î_bNR�YX�POOQV�YSPRNe\� ¡ork¢¢¢�dVQ�TVT{_NOPQRSNTRPe�aVXRXk�UZYaZ�QNOQNXNTR�aVXRX�RZPR�PQN�TVR�_N_YaPRN_�RV�P�OPQRYâePQ�_NOPQRSNTR�PT_�POOQV�YSPRNe\� ofo£�SYeeYVT�dVQ�RZN�̂RYeYR\�iYeeYTb�d̂TaRYVTk�UZYaZ�YX�QNOVQRN_�YT�PTVRZNQ�d̂T_f�]ZN�QNSPYTYTb�POOQV�YSPRNe\� p¢¢k¢¢¢�YX�RZN�TNR�jNTNQPe�̀ T̂_�VONQPRYTb�aVXR�dVQ�RZN�̀YTPTaN�MNOPQRSNTR�ONQ�RZN�̀n�opqor�î_bNR�_VâSNTRf�mePaYTb�TVT{_NOPQRSNTRPe�aVXRX�YT�RZN�̀YTPTaN�MNOPQRSNTR�YX�TVR�̂T̂X̂Pe�YT�[YR\�bVcNQTSNTR�_̂N�RV�RZN�̀YTPTaN�MNOPQRSNTR�iNYTb�RZN�OQYSPQ\�MNOPQRSNTR�QNXOVTXYieN�dVQ�dVQŜ ePRYTb�RZN�î_bNRf�
13 - 44



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQRSO�TUVWSOVRXRYRQRUV�Z[\�]̂__̂̀ abc�ad�e�dfggehi�̂]�j[\�kehâfd�l\mehjg\bj�]fbnjâbdo��pabebn\�lah\nĵh�m̂dajâb�]fbqabc�ad�e__̂nej\q�ĝ dj_i�ĵ�j[\�r\b\he_�pfbq�stu�m\hn\bjvw�j[\�x\̀\h�pfbq�syz�m\hn\bjvw�ebq�j[\�{ej\h�pfbq�st|�m\hn\bjvo�Z[\�}ddadjebj�pabebn\�lah\nĵh�ad�e__̂nej\q�ĝ dj_i�ĵ�j[\�r\b\he_�pfbq�stu�m\hn\bjvw�j[\�x\̀\h�pfbq�sy~�m\hn\bjvw�ebq�j[\�{ej\h�pfbq�sty�m\hn\bjvo�Z[\�h\geababc�e__̂nejâb�]̂h�\en[�̂]�j[\d\�m̂dajâbd�ad�ab�kehâfd�dfmm̂hj�]fbnjâbdo��b�eqqajâb�ĵ�j[\�_adj\q�]fbnjâbd�ĵ�]̂__̂̀ w�j[\�l\mehjg\bj�ad�h\dm̂bda�_\�]̂h�j[\�n̂ ĥqabejâb�̂]�j[\�q\k\_̂mg\bj�̂]�j[\��fqc\j�q̂nfg\bj�]̂h�j[\��aji��ebec\h�ab�n̂b�fbnjâb�̀aj[�e__�̂j[\h������������������������������������������������w�ebq�bfg\ĥfd�̂j[\h��ajiw�xjej\w�ebq�p\q\he_�]abebnae_�h\m̂hjd�ab�n̂b�fbnjâb�̀aj[�kehâfd�\�j\hbe_�efqaĵhd�ebq�j[\�\_\nj\q��aji�Zh\edfh\h������������������������������������������������������������ �MRY¡RO¢�Z[\�pa_gabc�]fbnjâb�ad�h\dm̂bda�_\�]̂h�eqgabadjhejâb�ebq�n̂ ĥqabejâb�̂]�e__�]a_gabc�m\hgaj�enjakajio�Z[\�qakadâb�abn_fq\d�̂b\�]f__£jag\�\gm_̂i\\w�j[\�pa_g��̂ ĥqabeĵho�Z[\�]a_gabc�qakadâb�mĥn\dd\d�emmĥ�agej\_i�y¤|�ĵ�z||�]a_g£h\_ej\q�m\hgajd�̂b�ek\hec\�m\h�i\eh�ebq�c\b\hej\d�emmĥ�agej\_i�¥y||w|||�ab�ebbfe_�h\k\bf\o�Z[\�]\\�]̂h�j[\�]a_gabc�m\hgajd�hebc\d�]ĥg�¥y|¦�ĵ�¥¦u|w�q\m\bqabc�̂b�j[\�]a_g�mĥ�\njw�̀[an[�eqqh\dd\d�j[\�n̂dj�̂]�m̂_an\£�ebq�]ah\£h\_ej\q�enjakaja\d�b\n\ddehi�ĵ�geabjeab�e�de]\�̂m\hejâb�̂]�j[\�mĥ�\njo�§j[\h�]\\dw�dfn[�ed�j[\��fdab\dd�agmĥk\g\bj�qadjhanj�]\\dw�eh\�e_d̂�n̂__\nj\q�ed�e�mehj�̂]�j[\�]a_gabc�]fbnjâb�mĥn\ddo�Z[\��fdab\dd�agmĥk\g\bj�je��edd̂naej\q�̀ aj[�]a_g�m\hgajd�ĵje_d�emmĥ�agej\_i�¥t|w|||�ebbfe__io�P̈PSNOQV�Z[\�}nn̂fbjd�©eie�_\�]fbnjâb�ad�h\dm̂bda�_\�]̂h�mĥn\ddabc�e__�k\bq̂h�meig\bjdo�Z[\�]fbnjâb�e_d̂�eqgabadj\hd�j[\�qadjha�fjâb�ebq�n̂ ĥqabejâb�̂]�j[\��ajìaq\�mfhn[edabc�nehq�mĥcheg�ebq�j[\�mĥn\ddabc�̂]�emm_ane�_\�y|ªªdo�Z[\�]fbnjâb�abn_fq\d�̂b\�]f__£jag\�\gm_̂i\\w�j[\�}nn̂fbjabc�Z\n[banaebo�Z[\�}nn̂fbjd�©eie�_\�qakadâb�mĥn\dd\d�emmĥ�agej\_i�u||�}nn̂fbjd�©eie�_\�n[\n«d�j̀an\�m\h�ĝ bj[o�}d�̂]�¬fb\�z|y¤w�j[\��aji�[eq�emmĥ�agej\_i�yyw¦||�k\bq̂hd�ab�j[\�k\bq̂h�gedj\h�]a_\o�Z[\�ek\hec\�q̂__eh�ĵje_�m\h�d\ga£ĝ bj[_i�}nn̂fbjd�©eie�_\�n[\n«�h\cadj\h�ad�emmĥ�agej\_i�¥yot�ga__âbo�Z[ad�\fej\d�ĵ�emmĥ�agej\_i�tw~||�n[\n«d�ĵje_abc�emmĥ�agej\_i�¥u¦ot�ga__âb�ebbfe__iw�̂b�ek\hec\o��®̄°±SYY�Z[\�©eiĥ__�]fbnjâb�ad�h\dm̂bda�_\�]̂h�j[\�mĥn\ddabc�̂]�e__�meiĥ__£h\_ej\q�meig\bjd�ĵ�\gm_̂i\\d�̂]�j[\��ajiw�ab�eqqajâb�ĵ�q\qfnjâb�mĥn\ddabc�ebq��aji�meaq��\b\]ajd�mĥn\ddabco�Z[\�©eiĥ__�]fbnjâb�e_d̂�mĥn\dd�kehâfd�h\m̂hjd�h\fah\q��i�j[\�xjej\�ebq�p\q\he_�ĉk\hbg\bjdw�
13 - 45



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOP�QM�RSM�QTU�VNQWXYW�WYZ[WXM\�]PY�̂NTOX_[T�_TÒNUYM�[TY�̂Ǹ̀aX_bY�YbZ̀[cYYd�XPY�eQcW[̀̀�f[[WU_TQX[W\�]PY�eQcW[̀̀�̂NTOX_[T�ZW[OYMMYM�QZZW[g_bQXỲc�Shi�ZQcW[̀̀�OPYOjM�YkYWc�Xl[�lYYjM�QTU�QUb_T_MXYWM�QZZW[g_bQXỲc�Smn�̂Ǹ̀aX_bY�QTU�ZQWXaX_bY�YbZ̀[cYYM\�]PY�QkYWQoY�U[̀̀QW�X[XQ̀�ZYW�p_lYYj̀c�oW[MM�ZQcW[̀̀�OPYOj�WYo_MXYW�_M�QZZW[g_bQXỲc�qrshdhhh\�]P_M�YVNQXYM�X[�QZZW[g_bQXỲc�rdthh�OPYOjM�X[XQ̀_To�QZZW[g_bQXỲc�qur�b_̀̀_[T�QTTNQ̀̀c\�]PYMY�Qb[NTXM�QWY�pQMYU�[T�OQ̀YTUQW�cYQW�Shui�QOX_k_Xc\�vwxyz{xx�|y}{zxyz~�]PY��NM_TYMM��_OYTM_To�̂NTOX_[T�_M�WYMZ[TM_p̀Y�̂[W�O[̀̀YOX_[T�[̂�pNM_TYMM�̀_OYTMY�XQg�QTU�XPY�QUb_T_MXWQX_[T�[̂�XPY�pNM_TYMM�̀_OYTM_To�ZW[oWQb\�]PY�̂NTOX_[T�_TÒNUYM�Xl[�̂Ǹ̀aX_bY�YbZ̀[cYYMd�Xl[��YT_[W��OO[NTX�f̀YWjM�lP[�Q̀M[�QMM_MX�l_XP�XPY�NX_̀_Xc�p_̀̀_To�QTU�OQMP�WYOY_ZX_To�̂NTOX_[TM\�]PY�pNM_TYMM�̀_OYTM_To�[ZYWQX_[T�QUb_T_MXYWM�QZZW[g_bQXỲc�Sdthh�pNM_TYMMYM�XPW[NoP[NX�XPY�f_Xc\�]PY�QkYWQoY�U[̀̀QW�X[XQ̀�O[̀̀YOXYU�̂[W�pNM_TYMM�̀_OYTMYM�_M�QZZW[g_bQXỲc�qthh\hhh�ZYW�cYQW\������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������U_MXW_OXd�lP_OP�oYTYWQXYM�QZZW[g_bQXỲc�quurdhhh�QTTNQ̀̀c\���}}�wz�x��{}{y� ¡¢{�]PY��OO[NTXM�£YOY_kQp̀Y�̂NTOX_[T�_M�WYMZ[TM_p̀Y�̂[W���������������¤���������������������WYOY_kQp̀Y�b_MOỲ̀QTY[NM�p_̀̀_To�ZW[oWQb\�]PY�b_MOỲ̀QTY[NM�QOO[NTXM�WYOY_kQp̀Y�p_̀̀_ToM�O[TM_MX�[̂�QZZW[g_bQXỲc�th�X[�tr�_Tk[_OYM�QTTNQ̀̀cd�WYZWYMYTX_To�QZZW[g_bQXỲc�qShSdStu�_T�p_̀̀_ToM\�]PY�OQMP�WYOY_ZX_To�ZW[oWQb�_M�Q̀M[�ZYŴ[WbYU�l_XP_T�XPY��OO[NTXM�£YOY_kQp̀Y�̂NTOX_[T\��¥¦ z�x�]PY�§WQTXM�̂NTOX_[T����������������¤�������������������¤������������������̈��ZZ̀_OQp̀Y�UYZQWXbYTXM�QWY�XPY�̀_Q_M[TM�̂[W�oWQTXMd�pNX�[TOY�XPY�oWQTXM�QWY�WYOY_kYUd�XPY�©_TQTOY�ªYZQWXbYTX�QMM_MXM�l_XP�XPY�QUb_T_MXWQX_[T�[̂�XPY�oWQTX\�]PY�§WQTXM�̂NTOX_[T�ZW[OYMMYU�M_g�oWQTXM�UNW_To�©«�us¬ui\�]PY�ZNWZ[MY�[̂�XPY�oWQTXM�WQToYU�̂W[b�eNp̀_O�R[WjM�ªYZQWXbYTX�X[�e[̀_OY�ªYZQWXbYTX�[ZYWQX_[TM�QTU�ZW[k_UYU�[kYW�qu�b_̀̀_[T�̂[W�MYWk_OYM�QTU�OQZ_XQ̀\���y¢y�y{x�]PY�®X_̀_X_YM�̂NTOX_[T�_M�WYMZ[TM_p̀Y�̂[W�QUb_T_MXWQX_[T�[̂�XPY�p_̀̀_To�̂[W�lQXYWd�MYlYWd�QTU�XWQMP\�]PY�f_Xc�PQM�O[TXWQOXYU�Q�XP_WUaZQWXc�O[bZQTc�XPQX�ZW[k_UYM�p_̀̀_To�QTU�WYOY_ZX_To�MYWk_OYM�̂[W�XPYMY�NX_̀_Xc�[ZYWQX_[TMd�l_XP�XPY�©_TQTOY�ªYZQWXbYTX�®X_̀_X_YM�WYkYTNY�̂[W�©«�us¬ui�̂[W�lQXYW�X[XQ̀�q̄dmusdiuud�̂[W�MYlYW�X[XQ̀�qudismdtmrd�QTU�̂[W�XWQMP�X[XQ̀�qmd̄̄ udimu\�]PY�NX_̀_X_YM�̂NTOX_[T�oYTYWQXYM�QZZW[g_bQXỲc�qumdnsud̄ī�_T�WYkYTNYM�QTTNQ̀̀c\��°±{}y ¢�²¦�³{}�x�]PY��ZYO_Q̀�eW[́YOXM�̂NTOX_[T�_M�WYMZ[TM_p̀Y�̂[W�[XPYW�̂_TQTOYaWỲQXYU�[ZYWQX_[TM�T[X�MZYO_̂_OQ̀̀c�bYTX_[TYUd�MNOP�QM�̀[oo_To�QTU�̂NỲ�NMQoY�_T̂[WbQX_[T\�ªNW_To�©«�ui¬ūd�XPY�µQTQoYbYTX�
13 - 46



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQRS�TURVSVUN�WOR�XYORRVZNY[�SU�S\Y�]VSQ�̂ONOZYX_R�Ù̀VaY�bcd�efdghifj�jcdhfk�dlgd�himncjfj�bcjofd�gij�mgphdgn�hqpersfqfid�peroegq�pefpgegdhri�gij�oegid�gjqhihkdegdhrit�uvwvxyz�{v|}vx�~������w��w}�����������lf��fifegn��fjofe��mdhshdhfk��cimdhri�hk�gjjefkkfj�b��fqpnr�ffk�gnefgj��himncjfj�hi�rdlfe��cimdhrign�gmdhshdhfk�r��dlf��higimf��fpgedqfidt��fifegn��fjofe��mdhshdhfk�himncjf�mefgdhri�gij�prkdhio�r���rceign�srcmlfek�dr�ef�nfmd�gmmrcidhio�gmdhshd��ird�prkdfj�gcdrqgdhmgnn��dlercol�dlf�sgehrck��higimhgn�qrjcnfk�r��dlf��pehioberr���higimhgn�k�kdfqt��\Y�]VSQ_R��YNYXOP��fjofe�mrikhkdk�r��gpper�hqgdfn������cijk�gij�dlrckgijk�r��gmmrcidkt����cij�hk�jf�hifj�b��dlf��rsfeiqfidgn��mmrcidhio��dgijgejk��rgej�gk�g�nfogn�gij�gmmrcidhio�fidhd���hdl�g�kfn��bgngimhio�kfd�r��gmmrcidk�dr�efmrej�efsficfk�gij�f�pfijhdcefk�pfe�nfogn�gij�efocngdre��ef�chefqfidkt�:���:�<79=954�>4?=@6A496��=�6�<79=957=C��567E76 �¡¢YX�S\Y�TORS�̀V¢Y�̀VRaOP�QYOXR£�S\Y��YNYXOP�¤¥N[�TUXSVUN�Ù�S\Y�¤VNONaY�¦YTOXS§YNS_R�a¥§¥POSV¢Y�f�pfijhdcef�bcjofd�dr�gmdcgn�gmdhshd��hk�gpper�hqgdfn��̈�©ª©©©ª�re�rif�pfemfid�rsfe�kpfidt�«dhnhd���hnnhio�gmdhshd��hk�ef�nfmdfj�hi��cij�¬©©�gij�lgj�g�mcqcngdhsf�bcjofd�dr�gmdcgn�sgehgimf�r��gpper�hqgdfn��̈�®ª̄�®ª�re�°��pfemfid�rsfe�kpfidt���lf�iri�jfpgedqfidgn��hsf��fge�mcqcngdhsf�bcjofd�dr�gmdcgn�gmdhshd���gk�gpper�hqgdfn��¨̄�©ª©©©ª�re�°��pfemfid�rsfekpfidt�±r�fsfeª�dlf�iri�jfpgedqfid��cimdhri�hk�ird�drdgnn���hdlhi�dlf�mridern�r��dlf��higimf��fpgedqfidt��re�f�gqpnfª�g�qg�re�mrkd�r��dlf�iri�jfpgedqfid��cimdhri�hk�dlf�mrkd��re�efdheff�lfgndl�hikcegimft���lf�qg�rehd��r���fifegn��cij�efsficf�fkdhqgdfk�gef�jfsfnrpfj�b��dlf��higimf��hefmdret�²fshf�hio�dlf��hsf��fge�mcqcngdhsf�bcjofd�dr�gmdcgn�gmdhshd���re�efsficfk�ef�nfmdfj�g�kcepnck�r��gpper�hqgdfn��̈³t¬�qhnnhriª�re�³�pfemfidt��lhk�sgehgimf�hijhmgdfk�g�sfe��mrikfesgdhsf�efsficf�bcjofd�fkdhqgdhri�permfkkt���phmgnn��g�sgehgimf��hdlhi�°�dr�́�pfemfid�efpefkfidk�gi�gmmfpdgbnf�egioft��lhk�sfe��mrikfesgdhsf�qrjfn�lgk�lfnpfj�dr�bchnj�cp�dlf��cij�bgngimf�hi�dlf��fifegn��cij�rsfe�dlf��fgekª��lhml�hk�g�orrj�dlhio�h��hd�hk��ir�i�gij�gmmfpdfj�b��fsfe�rift�µ��hd��gk�ird�cijfekdrrjª�hd�qg��lgsf�ciifmfkkgehn��mgckfj�ciifmfkkge��kfeshmf�nfsfn�efjcmdhrik�re�jfng��r��kfeshmfk�re�f�chpqfidt��lf��rnnr�hio�dgbnf�ef�nfmdk�dlf��hsf��fge�bcjofd�sfekck�gmdcgn�f�pfijhdcef�gmdhshd���re�dlf��higimf��fpgedqfidt�
13 - 47



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQ�RSTUVQWXQNY�TUZNZ[Q�\Q]NŶ_QẐ�̀a]QZbÛcYQd�efcbgQ̂�VQYdcd�h[̂cNPi�jk?49l76m@4�n8A?89496� <o�p:qpr� <o�prqps� <o�psqpt� <o�ptqpu� <o�puqpv�wxGJyz{|}~J��}zIJ|� ��K���K��� ���������� ��K���K��� ���K�K���� ��L�������wxGJyz{|}~J���|}H�� ���������� ���������� ���K������ ���������� ���K�������H~{Hy�J� �����LL��� ������LL�� �������L��� �K��L���� ���������:�p�r�36=��79��36@49�6���=9l��4=�94��4�������������������������� ��¡�¢����£�¤�¢�¢���¥�¦� �§�¢�����̈̈���©��ª�����¦� ����¢�«��� �¢¡�����¢¬����¢�����®�̄°±²³�́µ¶µ·̧¹µº¶�»¼¹µ¹½̧�¥�¦� �§�¢������¢��¬�¬����¬��«����������«�����̈�����¤�¢�¢���¥� ���� ��¢¬��������¢��¤�¢�¢���¥� ���� ������¢���¾¿À¬�Á�¦� ��¬®�Â���«�����̈������������Á�«��¬� ���¦�¦������¢������� ����¬�����¡¢�̈���¢��©��¬��¢�����¢� §�«��¦� ����¢���̈�����¥�¦� �§�¢�®�Ã�§¦�Ä¢¬�¢¡�������¬©� ������Ä����¢��������̈�������������¥�¦� �§�¢��«���¬��¢��̈̈����©��� ���À� ��¢�¢¡�¦ �¡ �§®�Å���¬��¢����̈̈��¢�� ©����£�����¤�¢�¢���¥� ���� ����� �«Ä���¢�������� ��¢��«�¬¡���¢¬��¢̈� §����¢���������� ����̈̈�§�§ª� �£��¢�«Ä¬�¢¡������������¢�®��Â���̈�««���¢¡�� ����§���̈������� �¢¡�����¢¬����¢������ �¦� ��¬�ªÁ�¤�¢�¢���¥�¦� �§�¢�����̈̈��¢¬����� �¬�¦� �§�¢�����̈̈�¬Ä �¢¡������¢�� ©����Æ�� Ç� �¢¡���Æ� È¢��Á£�¦ �¬���̈��� £�ÉȨ̂²�²³̧�Ë°Ì�·°¹̧Í������Ä¬�£���«¦̈Ä«�Î��¢�����Æ�Ï����̈��Ä¦¦� �Ð ���¡¢����¢�̈ �§�§�¢�¡�§�¢�£�¢��̈� §�«���¢�����¢��¦ �����Ð¦ ���¬Ä �� �̈ ��¦� ����¢�£�«��� �̈�� ��¢�¢¡��¢¬������¦¦� �Ä¢��ÁÐ�¢��Ä �¡�§�¢�����¡������ ��¢�¢¡£�«����̈����̈̈£�«����̈�����¢�«�¡Á��¢¬��¢��ÑÄ���¬��ÑÄ�¦§�¢�£�����§�¢Á�§�¢Ä�«�¦ �����£�«����̈��¢������©������§¦«�§�¢��¢������¢¡��Ò¢���̈������� �¢¡����¢���¬�ªÁ�Ã��Á¡��������������««�¢¡¢�����̈��������̈̈����¦������¢��¢¬���«¦�̈�««������¦� ����¢�«�¡�¦������� ��Ä«��¬�̈ �§�����«�����̈�����¥�¦� �§�¢�����¬��¢¬������������¢�®��¢���� ��� �¢¡�����������«�¢¡�©��Á��¢¬��¢����Ä���¢�«�¢��«�¬¡���̈���©� �«��̈��������̈̈®�Â�����¢����Ä���¢�«�¢��«�¬¡����«¦�����§��¢���¢���§���̈�����¦ �§� Á�̈�¢�¢���̈Ä¢����¢�£��Ä������¦�Á �««£�����Ä¢���¦�Á�ª«�£��¢¬�¡�¢� �«������¬�¦�����¢¡®�Ó����¢���� ��� �¢¡������������¡� ¢�����̈���§���̈�����«������¢�� ����̈̈����«�� ¢��¢¬�����¦���¬¬����¢�«� ��¦�¢��ª�«�����������«¦�§��¢���¢��¦� ����¢�«���¢��¢Ä��Á����§Ä������¦����ª«�®�����ª�� ©�¬�ªÁ�Ã��Á¡���£�§�����̈��������̈̈�¦� ̈� §�¬Ä������¢��¬¬����¢�������� �§��¢�¬Ä�����ª���Ä����̈�����¢��¬���̈�����¥�¦� �§�¢�®�Â������Ä«¬�ª���¢��¢��¬�ªÁ�̈� §�«��¢�� ¢�«�� ���À� ��¢�¢¡��¢¬��Ô�� ¢�«�� ��¢�¢¡®�Õ¹°²³̧Ö�¶²Ö̧¹×²³�¼¶�²³̧�¶²µØØº¶�°Ù̧ÖµÚÚ�Ú°ÛµÚ²Û�²°�²³̧�¥�¦� �§�¢���¢¬��������Ã��Á®�Ç��̈̈����¢�������ª�� ©�¬�ªÁ�Ã��Á¡�����¢�«Ä¬������«����̈�� ��¢�¢¡£��¢�� ¢�«�� ���À� ��¢�¢¡£��¢¬��¢̈� §����¢���� �¢¡®�Â��������� ����¬���¡�¢� �«���§��¦�� ���̈�¬�§�¢����¬�Ä¢¬� ���¢¬�¢¡��¢¬�
13 - 48



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KK�

LMNOPQRNLR�MN�STR�UVWS�MO�XSVOOY�ZN�R[V\U]R�MO�STPX�PX�STR�OVLS�STVS�MN]̂�MNR�URWXMN�_NM̀X�TM̀�SM�UWMLRXX�VN�RNSPWR�UV̂WM]]�VNQ�MN]̂�MNR�URWXMN�_NM̀X�TM̀�SM�UWMLRXX�VN�RNSPWR�VLLMaNSX�UV̂Vb]R�L̂L]RY�cMW�STR�VUU]PLVb]R�XSVOOd�STPX�LVN�LWRVSR�V�baWQRN�STVS�STR̂�LVNNMS�bR�V̀V̂�OWM\�STR�MOOPLR�OMW�]RePSP\VSR�WRVXMNXd�XaLT�VX�XPL_�SP\R�MW�OV\P]̂�R\RWeRNLPRXd�VNQ�PS�LVN�]RVQ�SM�]M̀�\MWV]RY�ZQQPSPMNV]]̂d�PO�XM\RSTPNe�aNOMWSaNVSR�TVUURNX�MW�PO�STR�VUU]PLVb]R�PNQPfPQaV]�PX�QPXXVSPXOPRQ�VNQ�gaPSXd�STR�hPŜ�̀Ma]Q�OPNQ�PSXR]O�PN�V�fRŴ�QPOOPLa]S�XPSaVSPMNY�ZNMSTRW�R[V\U]R�PX�STR�aNLRWSVPNŜ�MO�STR�LVUVbP]PSPRX�MO�STR�iUWPNebWMM_�OPNVNLPV]�XMOS̀VWR�X̂XSR\Y�hMNXRgaRNS]̂d�XSVOO�PX�\VNaV]]̂�URWOMW\PNe�XM\R�OPNVNLPV]�OaNLSPMNX�STVS�VWR�\MWR�SP\RjLMNXa\PNe�VNQ�LVN�]RVQ�SM�PNLWRVXRQ�LV]La]VSPMN�RWWMWXY�kRW�XSVOO�PNSRWfPR̀Xd�\PNP\V]�XSVOO�̀VX�SWVPNRQ�MN�STR�iUWPNebWMM_�X̂XSR\�VNQ�STMXR�̀TM�̀RWR�SWVPNRQ�̀RWR�MN]̂�SWVPNRQ�MN�STR�bVXPLX�MO�STRPW�WRXURLSPfR�OaNLSPMNY��lTR�]VL_�MO�SWVPNPNe�VNQ�LWMXXjSWVPNPNe�TVX�]RQ�SM�V�WR]aLSVNLR�SM�OM]]M̀�aU�MN�XM\R�QaSPRX�VNQ�VLSPfPSPRXd�WRXa]SPNe�PN�MURWVSPMNV]�QR]V̂X�MO�XM\R�MO�STR�cPNVNLR�mRUVWS\RNS�OaNLSPMNXY�n[V\U]RX�PNL]aQR�V�OPfRj\MNST�QR]V̂�PN�bVN_�WRLMNLP]PVSPMNXo�V�OPfRj\MNST�QR]V̂�PN�STR�PNUaS�MO�baXPNRXX�]PLRNXPNe�VNQ�aSP]PŜ�bP]]�WRLRPUSXo�V�OMaW�SM�OPfRj\MNST�QR]V̂�PN�pMaWNV]�fMaLTRW�PNUaS�OMW�LVXT�P̀WRXo�QR]V̂RQ�WRXUMNXR�SM�V�hV]knqi�VaQPSd�WRgaPWPNe�V�LTVNeR�PN�TM̀�SP\R�̀VX�LVSReMWPrRQd�T̀PLT�LMa]Q�TVfR�WRXa]SRQ�PN�V�OPNRo�VNQ�QR]V̂RQ�OPNVNLPV]�WRUMWSX�SM�MSTRW�QRUVWS\RNSX�OMW�MfRW�V�R̂VWY�lTRXR�QR]V̂X�VWR�XRWPMaX�PNSRWNV]�LMNSWM]�UWMb]R\X�STVS�LVN�]RVQ�SM�MSTRWX�\V_PNe�MURWVSPMNV]�QRLPXPMNX�aXPNe�PNVLLaWVSR�OPNVNLPV]�WRUMWSPNed�QPXXVSPXOVLSPMN�̀ PST�cPNVNLR�mRUVWS\RNS�XSVOOd�VNQd�PN�V�̀MWXSjLVXRd�OWVaQY�ZNMSTRW�SWMab]PNe�WRXa]S�MO�STR�LaWWRNS�VS\MXUTRWR�PN�STR�mRUVWS\RNS�PX�STR�eRNRWV]�bR]PRO�MO�cPNVNLR�mRUVWS\RNS�XSVOO�STVS�STR̂�\aXS�LVWŴ�MaS�QPWRLSPMNX�OWM\�STR�mRUVWS\RNS�TRVQ�MW�RfRN�MSTRW�QRUVWS\RNSX�RfRN�PO�STR̂�bR]PRfR�STVS�PS�PX�LMNSWVŴ�SM�UM]PL̂Y�ZN�R[V\U]R�MO�STPX�PX�STR�UWVLSPLR�PN�VS�]RVXS�MNR�QRUVWS\RNS�SM�LVXT�STRPW�URSŜ�LVXT�WRU]RNPXT\RNS�LTRL_�b̂�SV_PNe�LVXT�WRLRPfRQ�OWM\�eRNRWV]�VLSPfPSPRXY�lTPX�PX�VN�PNSRWNV]�LMNSWM]�̀RV_NRXX�STVS�\aXS�bR�LMWWRLSRQY�ZNMSTRW�R[V\U]R�PX�V�XPSaVSPMN�̀TRWR�VS�]RVXS�MNR�QRUVWS\RNS�WRP\baWXRX�URSŜ�LVXT�R[URNQPSaWRX�PN�R[LRXX�MO�stuu�̀TRN�STR�eRNRWV]]̂�aXRQ�UWMLRQaWR�aXRQ�b̂�STR�cPNVNLR�mRUVWS\RNS�PX�STVS�URSŜ�LVXT�XTMa]Q�bR�aXRQ�OMW�R[URNQPSaWRX�STVS�VWR�svu�MW�]RXXY�cPNVNLR�XSVOO�_NR̀�MO�STRXR�PXXaRX�baS�UWMLRXXRQ�STR�SWVNXVLSPMNX�VN̂ V̀̂�bR]PRfPNe�STVS�STR̂�LMa]Q�NMS�WRpRLS�STR�SWVNXVLSPMNY�lTRXR�OPNVNLPV]�PNSRWNV]�LMNSWM]�PXXaRX�NRRQ�SM�bR�VQQWRXXRQ�P\\RQPVSR]̂Y��wxyzxy{�|}~�mRUVWS\RNS�XSVOO�]VL_�LMNSPNaRQ�VNQ�ROORLSPfR�SWVPNPNe�VNQ�PNSRWNV]�LWMXXjSWVPNPNe�SM�TR]U�RNXaWR�MURWVSPMNV]�LMNXPXSRNL̂�PN�R\RWeRNL̂�LPWLa\XSVNLRXd�VX�̀R]]�VX�STR�LMNOPQRNLR�SM�WRpRLS�SWVNXVLSPMNX�STVS�STR̂�bR]PRfR�VWR�LMNSWVŴ�SM�UM]PL̂�UWMLRQaWRY�
13 - 49



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQQNRSTUVPR�WXY�Z[\]̂_̀[a�]�bcde]_�\d]̀f̀fg�hdcgd]e�\a]\�dijk̀di[�[\]bb�\c�h]d\̀l̀h]\i�̀f�digk_]d�\d]̀f̀fg�]fm�̀f\idf]_�ldc[[n\d]̀f̀fgo�pà[�[ack_m�̂i�e]fm]\cdq�\d]̀f̀fg�]fm�[ack_m�̂i�f̀l_kmim�̀f�\ai�r]d̀ck[�ieh_cqii�ir]_k]\̀cf�gc]_[o�s�eila]f̀[e�tiogou�[acd\�jk̀vw�[ack_m�̂i�miri_chim�]fm�\]xif�̂q�\ai�ieh_cqii�]b\id�\ai�\d]̀f̀fg�\c�ai_h�if[kdi�\a]\�\ai�\d]̀f̀fg�y][�kfmid[\ccmo�s[�]�h]d\�cb�\ai�̀f\idf]_�ldc[[n\d]̀f̀fgu�ieh_cqii[�[ack_m�̂i�̀f[\dkl\im�dig]dm̀fg�acy�\c�dihcd\�lcflidf[�cb�hc\if\̀]_�r̀c_]\̀cf�cb�hc_̀lqzhdclimkdi[�m̀dil\̀cf�ỳ\ack\�bi]d�cb�di\]_̀]\̀cfo�{VRSVR|�W}Y�~̀\q�[\]bb�a][�fc\�̂iif�]mijk]\i_q�\d]̀fim�cf�\ai�l]h]̂ _̀̀\̀i[�cb�\ai��������b̀f]fl̀]_�[cb\y]di�[q[\ie�\c�mi\idèfi�̀b�̀\�eii\[�\ai�fiim[�cb�\ai�~̀\qo�MNOPQQNRSTUVPR�W}Y��i\d]̀f�]fmzcd�\d]̀f�]__�]hh_̀l]̂_i�ieh_cqii[�yac�ỳ__�îfib̀\�bdce�\ai�k[i�cb��hd̀fĝdccx�\c�mi\idèfi�̀b�\ai�[q[\ie�̀[�]mijk]\i�bcd�\ai�fiim[�cb�\ai��̀f]fli��ih]d\eif\�]fm�c\aid�~̀\q�mih]d\eif\[o�pà[�\d]̀f̀fg�[ack_m�̂i�e]fm]\cdq�bcd�]__�]hh_̀l]̂_i�ieh_cqii[o�:������4@54?6789�8��<79=954�>4?=@6A496����B6�4@�>4?=@6A496��pai�gifid]_�hidlih\̀cf�cb�\ai��̀f]fli��ih]d\eif\�̂q�c\aid�mih]d\eif\[�̀[�\a]\�ec[\�cb�\ai�[\]bb�]\\ieh\�\c�̂i�ai_hbk_�]fm�[khhcd\̀riu�̂k\�\à[�̀[�fc\�]_y]q[�\ai�l][io��cei�cb�\ac[i�̀f\idr̀iyim�rc̀lim�lcflidf[�\a]\�\aìd�[\]bb[�a]m�\c�lcf\]l\�[cei��̀f]fli��ih]d\eif\�[\]bb�bcd�][[̀[\]flio�paidi�yidi�]_[c�lceeif\[�di_]\̀fg�\c�acy�̀\�y][�̂i_̀irim�\a]\�ec[\�cb�\ai��̀f]fli��ih]d\eif\�[\]bb�]\\ieh\im�\c�̂i�ai_hbk_u�̂k\�\a]\�\ai�_]lx�cb��ih]d\eif\�_i]mid[àhu�_]lx�cb�\d]̀f̀fgu�]fm�lkê id[cei�e]fk]_�hdcli[[i[�hdcr̀mim�ecdi�cb�]�àfmd]fli�\a]f�]�ai_h�\c�\ai�mih]d\eif\[o��ih]d\eif\[�bii_�\a]\�\aiq�]di�fc\�dilìr̀fg�]llkd]\i�cd�\̀ei_q�b̀f]fl̀]_�̀fbcde]\̀cf�bdce�\ai��̀f]fli��ih]d\eif\�\c�e]xi�ibbil\̀ri�chid]\̀cf]_�mil̀[̀cf[o�pai�mih]d\eif\[�yck_m�_̀xi�\c�[ii�ecdi�h]d\̀l̀h]\̀cf�]fm�]lli[[̀̂ _̀̀\q�bdce�\ai�fi�\��̀f]fli��̀dil\cdo�s�dimkl\̀cf�cb�lkê id[cei�e]fk]_�hdcli[[i[u�[kla�][�ỳ\a�h]qdc__�]fm�]llckf\[�h]q]̂_i��]f�̀fldi][i�̀f�b̀f]fli�[\]bb�ldc[[n\d]̀f̀fg��]fm�bcde]_�hc_̀l̀i[�\a]\�]di�kfmid[\]fm]̂_iu�[ceiya]\�b_i�̀̂ _iu�]fm�lcf[̀[\if\_q�]hh_̀im�]di�\ai�e]̀f�mi[̀di[�cb�\ai�c\aid�mih]d\eif\[�dig]dm̀fg��̀f]fli��ih]d\eif\�[idr̀li[o��{VRSVR|�W�Y�pai��ih]d\eif\�̀[�fc\�hdcr̀m̀fg�lcf[̀[\if\�ai_hbk_�[idr̀li�\c�c\aid�mih]d\eif\[o�
13 - 50



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQQNRSTUVPR�WXY�Z�[\]̂_̀�abc�[d\_ecfdeg�habfa]�gi\f]c�je�ceke]\[ec�abcl\d�f[camecn�MNOPQQNRSTUVPR�WoY�Z]]�ce[admhebmg�gi\f]c�[d\k̂ce�̂b[fm�\b�mie�[\]̂_̀�abc�[d\_ecfdeg�habfa]p�i\qekedr�mie�habfa]�gi\f]c�je�ceke]\[ec�jagec�\b�jegm�[da_m̂_e�gmabcadcgn�MNOPQQNRSTUVPR�WsY�tie�_\h[]emec�[\]̂_̀�abc�[d\_ecfdeg�habfa]�gi\f]c�je�[degebmec�m\�mie�ûm̀�u\fb_̂]�abc�a]]�ûm̀�eh[]\̀eeg�g\�miam�eked̀\be�̂g�aqade�miam�aciedeb_e�m\�mie�beq�[\]̂_̂eg�abc�[d\_ecfdeg�̂g�habcam\d̀n��vwv� xyzy{|x|z}�~|�|~��|��|�� �����zyz�|��|�y�}x|z}���z�}��z�� yz���|����xyz�|�:�:�������46��������������������������� ������� ���¡� ¢£��¤¥�¦§l¦̈�©ª��� ������������� ���¡� ¢£����©�� �«�¬®�̄°±²®³�́µ¶·®̧̧�¹̧�̄º̧®±�°́¶»�¹»¼±®́³�º»º½¾̧¹̧�¶¿�º·³°º½�º»±�́µ¶À®·³®±�¿°»±�º̄½º»·®̧Á�µ®Â®»°®̧Á�º»±�®Ã́®»±¹³°µ®̧Ä�Åº·�Æ¹³¾�±®́ºµ³Ç®»³�́µ®́ºµ®±�½¹»®�¹³®Ç�ÈÉÊËÌÍÎ�ÏÐÑ�ÊÒÉ�ÈÉÓËÑÊÔÉÕÊÖÎ�Ë×ÊÌØÌÊÌÉÎ�ËÕÈ�ÑÉ×ÐÔÔÉÕÈÉÈ�×ÉÑÊËÌÕ�ÎÉÑØÌ×É�ÍÉØÉÍÎ�ËÕÈ�º·³¹Â¹³¾�²¶º½̧�¿¶µ�³®�ÙÚÛÜÝÛÞ�̄°±²®³�¾®ºµÄ�¬®�ß¹»º»·®�à®́ºµ³Ç®»³�́µ®́ºµ®±�µ®Â®»°®�́µ¶À®·³¹¶»̧�á¹³�¹»́°³�¿µ¶Ç�¶³®µ�±®́ºµ³Ç®»³̧Ä�¬®�Æ¹³¾�âº»º²®µ�³®»�µ®Â¹®á®±�¹»±¹Â¹±°º½�±®́ºµ³Ç®»³º½�µ®ã°®̧³̧Á�́µ¹¶µ¹³¹ä®±�º·³¹Â¹³¹®̧�̄º̧®±�°́¶»�Æ¹³¾�Æ¶°»·¹½�́¶½¹·¾Á�º»±�Çº±®�·®µ³º¹»�º±À°̧³Ç®»³̧Ä�å³�³®�·¶»·½°̧¹¶»�¶¿�³¹̧�́µ¶·®̧̧Á�³®�æµ¶́¶̧®±�ç°±²®³�áº̧�́µ®́ºµ®±�º»±�́µ®̧®»³®±�¿¶µ�º�́°̄½¹·�®ºµ¹»²Á�³®»�°̧̄Ç¹³³®±�³¶�³®�Æ¹³¾�Æ¶°»·¹½�¿¶µ�¿¹»º½�µ®Â¹®á�º»±�º±¶́³¹¶»Ä�¬®�́µ¶·®̧̧�¿¶µ�³®�ÙÚÛÜÝÛÞ�̄°±²®³�¾®ºµ�̄®²º»�¹»�ß®̄µ°ºµ¾�ÙÚÛÜÁ�á¹³�³®�±®́ºµ³Ç®»³�®º±̧�á¶µè¹»²�¶»�³®¹µ�µ®ã°®̧³̧�¿¶µ�³®�°́·¶Ç¹»²�¿¹̧·º½�¾®ºµÄ�å̧¹±®�¿µ¶Ç�Æ¹³¾�̧³º¿¿Á�³®µ®�á®µ®�̧®Â®µº½�¶́ ¶́µ³°»¹³¹®̧�¿¶µ�³®�́°̄½¹·�³¶�²®³�¹»Â¶½Â®±�¹»�³®�́µ¶·®̧̧�¹»�¶µ±®µ�³¶�Çºè®�³®¹µ�¹»³®µ®̧³̧�º»±�·¶»·®µ»̧�è»¶á»�³¶�³®�Çº»º²®Ç®»³�º»±�³®�Æ¹³¾�Æ¶°»·¹½Ä�¬®�¿¹µ̧³�¶́ ¶́µ³°»¹³¾�³¹̧�¾®ºµ�áº̧�¶»�âºµ·�ÛÛÁ�ÙÚÛÜ�º³�³®�Æ¶ÇÇ°»¹³¾�ß¶µ°Ç�¶»�ç°±²®³�æµ¹¶µ¹³¹®̧Á�á®µ®�³®µ®�áº̧�º�±¹̧·°̧ ¹̧¶»�¶¿�á¹·�́µ¶À®·³̧�³®�Æ¹³¾�̧¶°½±�¿¶·°̧�¹³̧�µ®̧¶°µ·®̧�¶»�¿¶µ�³®�»®Ã³�¿¹̧·º½�¾®ºµÄ�é»�âºµ·�ÙÛÁ�ÙÚÛÜ�º�ế®·¹º½�Æ¹³¾�Æ¶°»·¹½�Ç®®³¹»²�³¶�±¹̧·°̧ �̧̄°±²®³�µ́¹¶µ¹³¹®̧�áº̧�®½±Á�º»±�º²º¹»�³®�́°̄½¹·�áº̧�¹»Â¹³®±�³¶�²¹Â®�³®¹µ�¹»́°³Ä�ç¾�³®�Ç¹±±½®�¶¿�âº¾Á�³®�̄°±²®³�áº̧�̧°̄ ³̧º»³¹º½½¾�·¶Ḉ½®³®�¿µ¶Ç�³®�̧³º¿¿�́®µ̧́ ®·³¹Â®Á�º»±�áº̧�̄µ¶°²³�³¶�³®�Æ¹³¾�Æ¶°»·¹½�Ç®®³¹»²�¶¿�âº¾�ÛÜÁ�ÙÚÛÜ�¿¶µ�º�àµº¿³�ç°±²®³�æµ®̧®»³º³¹¶»�³¶�µ®·®¹Â®�¿°µ³®µ�±¹µ®·³¹¶»�¿µ¶Ç�³®�Æ¹³¾�Æ¶°»·¹½Á�º²º¹»�á¹³�́°̄½¹·�
13 - 51



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQR�STU�VMNWX�YQUO�MN�QTU�WZ[OQM[N�[V�QTU�\PZ]UQ�̂WY�QTU�_[NZP_QMN]�[V�W�V[̀aWX�bP\XM_�cUẀMN]�Y_TUZPXUZ�V[̀�QTU�dMQe�d[PN_MX�aUUQMN]�[V�fPNU�gh�ijkgR�STU�dMQe�d[PN_MX�WOÒ[lUZ�QTU�\PZ]UQ�QTWQ�UlUNMN]h�WNZ�QTU�\PZ]UQ�\U_WaU�UVVU_QMlU�fPXe�kh�ijkgR�mnopo�qpo�qrstuv�wx�yz{|ov�youv�}pq~v�~o�po~tsso�{qv�t�u�o�{tpuo{�y��vno�������mno�}pt~ouu�tzvr��o{�~t��tpsu�vt�u�������������������������������������������������������������������}pq~v�~ou���vn��n�~n����������������������{tou��tv�~t��tps��mno��trrt���|��u�q�{�u~zuu�t��t��vntuo�yz{|ov�youv�}pq~v�~ou���vn��n�~n�vno���v���u��tv����~t��tpsq�~o�q�{��n�~n���v�|qvo�yor�o ou�qpo�vno�stuv�}opv��o�v�vt�vn�u�po �o�¡��¢�� £o ort}so�v�q�{�q{t}v�t��t�����q�~�qr�}tr�~�ou�vnqv�~q��yo�zuo{�vt�q~n�o o�vno�t opqrr�t}opqv�t�qr�|tqru�t��vno�q|o�~���¤¥qs}rou�t��vnouo�}tr�~�ou���~rz{o¡�¦� §vqy�r�̈qv�t��©pouop oª��z�{u�¦� �oou�q�{�~nqp|ou��¦� £oyv��uuzq�~o�q�{�sq�q|oso�v��¦� «z{|ov�{o ort}so�v�©uqs}rou��tv�qrr���~rzu� oª��¬� o o�zo®o¥}o�{�vzpo�}pt̄o~v�t�u�¬� �q}�vqr��oo{u�¬� °op�tpsq�~o�soquzpou�q�{�yo�~nsqp±u�¬� ²uo�t��t�o³v�so�tp�z�o¥}o~vo{�po o�zou�¬� t́�|³vops���u~qr�}rq����|��rvntz|n�vno���v����~rz{ou���u~qr�}tr�~��uvqvoso�vu�r�uvo{����vno�yz{|ov�{t~zso�vµ�vno�uvqvoso�vu�untzr{�yo�o¥}q�{o{�vt���~rz{o�stpo�u}o~���~����tpsqv�t��vt�quu�uv���vn�vno�z�{opuvq�{��|�t��vno�}zp}tuoµ�tȳo~v� ouµ�q�{�|tqru�t��vno�}tr�~���¶�� ·q¥�s�̈o�~ttp{��qv�t��q�{�z�{opuvq�{��|�t���zsyopu�yov�oo��yz{|ov�uvq���q�{�pou}o~v� o�{o}qpvso�v�uvq�����¦� °op���vop �o�u���v�|qvo�~t�{z~vo{���vn�vno�{o}qpvso�vuµ�utso�~t�~op���qu� t�~o{�porqv��|�vt�vno�rq~±�t��z�{opuvq�{��|�t��vno�yz{|ov�qstz�vu�vnqv��opo�}pouo�vo{�vt�vno���v���tz�~�r��mno�~tsso�vu��opo�sq{o�~t�~op���|�vno�}po �tzu���u~qr��oqp�yz{|ov�}pt~ouuµ�yzv��v��qu�yor�o o{�}opv��o�v�o�tz|n�vt�yo�so�v�t�o{����vn�u�po}tpv���̧� mno�yz{|ov�untzr{�yo�po �o�o{�po|zrqpr��vnptz|ntzv�vno��oqpµ���vn�q�stpo��tpsqr�q�{�{ovq�ro{�po �o��~ts}rovo{�qv�roquv�uos�³q��zqrr���mn�u�s�{{ro³�oqp�po �o��untzr{���~rz{o�po �o��q�{�z}{qvo�po|qp{��|�yz{|ov�tȳo~v� ou®}op�tpsq�~o�soquzpou�q�{�q{̄zuvso�vu�sq{o�q~~tp{��|r���
13 - 52



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPNOQ�RST�UVW�XYZ[�V\]�̂_Z�̀a_bW]]Wc�\�d_ae\f�e_̂ZVgŴc�_a�hi\aZWagŴc�bf_]W�Ŷ�]WjWa\f�[W\a]k�\̂c�̂_�d_ae\f�̀WaY_cgbf_]Ŷl�maYZZŴ�à_bWciaW]�mWaW�d_îcn�opqrsspOPtuNrO�RvT�w�d_ae\f�maYZZŴ�]WZ�_d�̀a_bWciaW]�]V_ifc�xW�cWjWf_̀Wc�\̂c�\�d_ae\f�e_̂ZVgŴc�aWjYWm�d_a�\ff�dîc]k�_a�\Z�fW\]Z�\�eYcg[W\a�xiclWZ�aWjYWmk�]V_ifc�xW�b_è fWZWc�WjWa[�dY]b\f�[W\an�UVY]�mYff�VWf̀�YcŴZYd[�̀_ZŴZY\f�Y]]iW]�Ŷ�ZYeW�Z_�cWjWf_̀�]Za\ZWlYW]�Z_�\ccaW]]�ZVW]W�Y]]iW]n�UVY]�à_bWciaW�mYff�\f]_�VWf̀�mVŴ�̀ Wad_aeŶl�xiclWZ�à_yWbZY_̂]�d_a�biaaŴZ�\̂c�diZiaW�xiclWZ�[W\a]n�zn� {WjWf_̀�\̂c�b_̂]Y]ZŴZf[�iZYfY|W�\�dŶ\̂bY\f�][]ZWe�ZV\Z�̀a_jYcW]�Ŷd_ae\ZY_̂�aWhiYaWc�Z_�e\}W�]_îc�_̀Wa\ZY_̂\f�cWbY]Y_̂]n�MNOPNOQ�R~T�UVW�XYZ[�i]W]��Yba_]_dZ���bWf�]̀aW\c]VWWZ]�Z_�cWjWf_̀�ZVW�xiclWZ�\̂c�ZVW��̀aŶlxa__}�dŶ\̂bY\f�][]ZWe�d_a�_ZVWa�dŶ\̂bY\f�\bZYjYZ[k�mVYbV�ŶbaW\]W]�ZVW�\e_îZ�_d�ZYeW�aWhiYaWc�Z_�cWjWf_̀�ZVW�xiclWZn�opqrsspOPtuNrO�R�T�w�d_ae\f�xiclWZ�e_cifW�]V_ifc�xW�iZYfY|Wc�Z_�d_ff_m�xW]Z�̀a\bZYbW]�\̂c�eŶYeY|W�e\̂i\f�̀a_bW]]W]�\̂c�ZVW�ZYeW�aWhiYaWc�Z_�cWjWf_̀�ZVW�xiclWZk�Ŷ�\ccYZY_̂�Z_�aWcibŶl�ZVW�̀_ZŴZY\f�d_a�Vie\̂�Waa_an�UVW��̀aŶlxa__}�][]ZWe�V\]�\�d_ae\f�xiclWZ�e_cWf�ZV\Z�Y]�b_è \ZYxfW�mYZV�YZ]�_ZVWa�dŶ\̂bY\f�e_cifW]�ZV\Z�m_ifc�]ix]Z\̂ZY\ff[�aWcibW�ZVW�\e_îZ�_d�ZYeW�aWhiYaWc�\̂c�ZVW�bV\̂bW�_d�Vie\̂�Waa_a�mVŴ�cWjWf_̀Ŷl�ZVW�xiclWZn��:�:�:����76�=9���964@9=C��896@8C�UVW�{Ẁ\aZeŴZ�Y]�aW]̀_̂]YxfW�d_a�ZVW�b__acŶ\ZY_̂�\̂c�ŶZWa\bZY_̂�mYZV�ZVW�W�ZWâ\f�\icYZ_a]�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������Xw��n�UVW�XYZ[�V\]�b_̂]Y]ZŴZf[�m_̂�ZVW�XWaZYdYb\ZW�_d�wbVYWjWeŴZ�d_a���bWffŴbW�Ŷ��Ŷ\̂bY\f��Ẁ_aZŶl�da_e�ZVW��_jWâeŴZ��Ŷ\̂bW� ddYbWa]�w]]_bY\ZY_̂k�mVYbV�Y]�\̂�\bVYWjWeŴZ�d_a�ZVW�VYlVW]Z�]Z\̂c\ac]�Ŷ�l_jWâeŴZ�\bb_îZŶl�\̂c�dŶ\̂bY\f�aẀ_aZŶln��UVW�Xw���Y]�ZVW�\icYZWc�\̂ î\f�dŶ\̂bY\f�aẀ_aZ�_d�XYZ[�_̀Wa\ZY_̂]k�ŶbficŶl�\]]WZ]k�fY\xYfYZYW]k�WhiYZ[k�aWjŴiW]k�\̂c�W�̀ŴcYZiaW]n�UVW��¡�¢£¤¢¥�Xw���m\]�\icYZWc�x[�W�ZWâ\f�\icYZ_a]k�mV_�_̀ŶWc�ZV\Z�ZVW�Xw���¦̀aW]ŴZWc�d\Yaf[k�Ŷ�\ff�e\ZWaY\f�aW]̀WbZ]k�ZVW�aW]̀WbZYjW�dŶ\̂bY\f�̀_]YZY_̂�_d�ZVW�l_jWâeŴZ\f�\bZYjYZYW]k�ZVW�xi]ŶW]]gZ[̀W�\bZYjYZYW]k�W\bV�e\y_a�dîck�\̂c�ZVW�\llaWl\ZW�
13 - 53



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQRQRS�TURV�QRTWMOPXQWR�WT�XYN�ZQX[\�P]�WT�̂URN�_̀\�àbc\�PRV�XYN�MN]dNeXQfN�eYPRSN]�QR�TQRPReQPg�dW]QXQWR\�PRV�hYNMN�PddgQePigN\�eP]Y�TgWh]�XYNMNWT\�TWM�XYN�TQ]ePg�[NPM�XYNR�NRVNV�QR�PeeWMVPReN�hQXY�PeeWURXQRS�dMQReQdgN]�SNRNMPgg[�PeeNdXNV�QR�XYN�jRQXNV�kXPXN]�WT�lONMQePmn��oYQ]�WdQRQWR�Q]�MNTNMMNV�XW�P]�PR�URpUPgQTQNV�qegNPRr�PUVQX�WdQRQWRs�oYN�WdQRQWR\�YWhNfNM\�Q]�RWX�iP]NV�WR�P�b̀ �̀dNMeNRX�PUVQX�WT�Pgg�ZQX[�XMPR]PeXQWR]s�tX�Q]�iP]NV�WR�SNRNMPgg[�PeeNdXNV�PUVQXQRS�]XPRVPMV]\�hYQeY�QRegUVN�]XPXQ]XQePg�]POdgQRS�WT�XMPR]PeXQWR]s�oYQ]�Q]�XYN�MNP]WR�XYN�PUVQXWM]�MNpUQMN�XYN�ZQX[�XW�]QSR�P�MNdMN]NRXPXQWR�gNXXNM�XYPX�eWRXPQR]�]NfNMPg�pUPgQTQNM]�XYPX�NOdYP]QuN�XYQ]�TPeXs�vw�xyzx{|}�~��}�x�{x|{x�xw}�}�~w��x}}x{��}�}x��}��}��OPRPSNONRX�P]]UON]�TUgg�MN]dWR]QiQgQX[�TWM�XYN�eWOdgNXNRN]]�PRV�MNgQPiQgQX[�WT�Pgg�WT�XYN�QRTWMOPXQWR�dMN]NRXNV�QR�XYN�MNdWMXs�oYN�VPXP�dMN]NRXNV�Q]�eWOdgNXN�PRV�MNgQPigN�QR�Pgg�OPXNMQPg�MN]dNeX]\�QX�Q]�dMN]NRXNV�QR�P�OPRRNM�VN]QSRNV�XW����{����x}��~{}��}�x���w�wz�����z}���}��~��}�x���}������{�~�����w�����w���������z�~��{x��wxzx���{��}~�xw���x�}�x�{x��x{�}~����w����~~���w�x{�}�w��w��~��}�x���}������w�wz�����z}���}[�YPfN�iNNR�QRegUVNVmn�lVVQXQWRPgg[\�PUVQXWM]�hQgg�dMWVUeN�P�OPRPSNONRX�gNXXNM�XYPX�gQ]X]�MNeWOONRVPXQWR]�TWM�QOdMWfNONRX�XW�Q]]UN]�VQ]eWfNMNV�VUMQRS�XYN�PUVQX�iUX�hNMN�RWX�]QSRQTQePRX�NRWUSY\�PX�XYN�XQON\�XW�hPMMPRX�P�TWMOPg�PUVQX�pUPgQTQePXQWRs�tX�Q]�iN]X�dMPeXQeN�TWM�PR�NRXQX[�XW�dMWfQVN�MN]dWR]N]�XW�XYN]N�PUVQXWM�MNeWOONRVPXQWR]�PRV\�hYNMN�RNeN]]PM[\�PR�PeXQWR�dgPR�XYPX�ePR�iN�MNfQNhNV�i[�XYN�PUVQXWM]�WR�TUXUMN�PUVQX]�XW�P]]Q]X�QR�MNRVNMQRS�PR�PUVQX�WdQRQWRs��NdNPX�OPRPSNONRX�gNXXNM�eWOONRX]�TWM�OUgXQdgN�[NPM]\�hQXYWUX�QOdMWfNONRX\�Q]�PR�QRVQePXQWR�WT�P�][]XNOQe�dMWigNO�PRV�]YWUgV�iN�NgNfPXNV�i[�XYN�PUVQXWM]�XW�XYN�ZQX[��PRPSNM�PRV�ZQX[�ZWUReQgs�l]�P�MN]UgX�WT�QX]�MNfQNh�PRV�QRXNMfQNh]\�ZQX[SPXN�QVNRXQTQNV�]NfNMPg�QRXNMRPg�eWRXMWg�hNP�RN]]N]�XYPX�]YWUgV�iN�PVVMN]]NVs�oYN�OWMN�]QSRQTQePRX�Q]]UN]�hNMN���� �NgP[NV�iPR��MNeWReQgQPXQWR]�XYPX�eWUgV�MN]UgX�QR�P�OQ]]XPXNONRX�WT�XYN�eP]Y�PRV�MNfNRUN�PRV�N�dNRVQXUMN�PeXQfQX[�WT�XYN�ZQX[s�oYQ]�QRXNMRPg�eWRXMWg�hNP�RN]]�eWUgV�Pg]W�YQRVNM�TMPUV�VNXNeXQWR�MNgPXQRS�XW�ZQX[�WdNMPXQWR]s��� �NgP[NV�PVOQRQ]XMPXQfN�TUReXQWR]\�]UeY�P]��WUMRPg�fWUeYNM]�dW]XQRS�XW�MNTgNeX�eP]Y�MNeNQdX]�PRV�WXYNM�PV�U]XONRX�XYPX�PMN�RWX�dW]XNV�XYMWUSY�XYN�WXYNM�kdMQRSiMWW��TQRPReQPg�][]XNO�OWVUgN]s���� ZP]Y�iNQRS�eWURXNV�QR�XYN�WdNR�fQNh�WT�eWURXNM�XMPTTQe\�hYQeY�QReMNP]N]�XYN�dWXNRXQPg�WT�XYNTX�WM�dMWeN]]QRS�NMMWM]�VUN�XW�XYN�]XPTT�iNQRS�VQ]XMPeXNV�i[�XYN�TMWRX�eWURXNM�XMPTTQes��� �NgP[NV�dMWeN]]QRS�WT�eYNe�]�TWM�OWRXY]�PTXNM�MNeNQdXs���� �Pe��WT�TWMOPg�TQRPReQPg�dWgQeQN]�PRV�dMWeNVUMN]\�hYQeY�MN]UgXNV�QR�WdNMPXQWRPg�QReWR]Q]XNReQN]s��� �Pe��WT�]NdPMPXQWR�WT�VUXQN]�WT�XYN�dP[MWgg�PRV�YUOPR�MN]WUMeN]�TUReXQWR]s�
13 - 54



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

M� NOPQ�RS�PTRUUVWTOXYXYZ�XY�PT[PXO\�S[YPWXRYU]�U[P̂�OU�_ÒTR\\�OYa�OPPR[YWU�_ÒOb\cd�M� NOPQ�RS�O�STO[a�_R\XP̀�cUWOb\XÛXYZ�_TRPcUU�SRT�Tc_RTWXYZ�STO[ad�eRfg�hi�jkglg�mgnopgllgl�mgqg�rpstuvgv�rp�jkg�gwjgqpnt�nuvrjhqxl�fnpnygfgpj�tgjjgq�shffgpjl�SRT�OW�\cOUW�ŴTcc�PRYUcP[WXzc�SXUPO\�̀cOTUd�{XẀZOWc�SR[Ya�ŴOW]�_cT�XYWcTzXc|U�|XŴ�{XẀ�UWOSS�OYa�Ŵc�c}WcTYO\�O[aXWRTU]�ŴcUc�XUU[cU�|cTc�_TcUcYWca�WR�Ŵc�_TczXR[U�~XYOYPc��XTcPWRT]�|̂R�P̂RUc�phj�jh�lknqg�jkgf�mrjk�jkg��rj���npnygqxl�hiirsg�hq�jkg�{XẀ�{R[YPX\d��\ŴR[Ẑ�Ŵc�{�~��aRP[�cYWU�|cTc�_Tglgpjgv�jh�jkg��rj�xl��rpnYPc�{R��XUUXRY�OYa�{XẀ�{R[YPX\]�XW�O__cOTU�ŴOW�Ŵc��OYOZc�cYW�\cWWcT�PR��cYWU�OYa�_\OY�WR�OaaTcUU�Ŵc�XUU[cU�|cTc�YRW�_TcUcYWcad���̂c�O[aXWRTU�ÛR[\a�̂Ozc�cYU[Tca�ŴXU�XYSRT�OWXRY]�RYPc�SXYO\X�ca]�|OU�UcYW�aXTcPW\̀�WR�Ŵc�{XẀ��OYOZcT�OYa�[\WX�OWc\̀�Tc_RTWca�WR�Ŵc�{XẀ�{R[YPX\�XY�O�SRT�O\�_TcUcYWOWXRYd��������������c_cOW��OYOZc�cYW�\cWWcT�TcPR��cYaOWXRYU�RzcT��[\WX_\c�SXUPO\�c̀OTU�|cTc�YRW�OaaTcUUca]�OYa�YR�|TXWWcY�TcU_RYUc�RT�_\OY�RS�OPWXRY�|OU�PR�_\cWca�OYa�TczXc|ca�b̀�Ŵc�{XẀ��OYOZcTd��������������̂cTc�XU�YR�SRT�O\�|TXWWcY�STO[a�_R\XP̀�WR�Tc_RTW�_RWcYWXO\�STO[ad���������������������̂c�{R�_TĉcYUXzc��YY[O\�~XYOYPXO\��c_RTW��{�~��]��OYOZc�cYW�\cWWcT]�OYa�O\\�RŴcT�Tc_RTWU�ZcYcTOWca�STR��Ŵc�OYY[O\�O[aXW]�RYPc�SXYO\X�ca]�ÛR[\a�bc�TczXc|ca�b̀�Ŵc�{XẀ��OYOZcT�OYa�_TcUcYWca�WR�Ŵc�{XẀ�{R[YPX\d��̂XU�|X\\�cYU[Tc�ŴOW�Ŵc�{XẀ�XU�O|OTc�RS�_RWcYWXO\�SXYOYPXO\�XUU[cU�OYa�ŴOW�O�_\OY�̂OU�bccY�aczc\R_ca�WR�OaaTcUU�Ŵc�XUU[cUd���������������������XUP[UU�Ŵc�O[aXW�c}_cPWOWXRYU�|XŴ�Ŵc�c}WcTYO\�O[aXWRT�a[TXYZ�OY�cYWTOYPc�PRYScTcYPc�bcSRTc�Ŵc�O[aXW�SXc\a�|RTQ�bcZXYUd��Yc�RS�Ŵc�c}_cPWOWXRYU�ÛR[\a�bc�ŴOW�Ŵc�{�~�]��OYOZc�cYW�\cWWcT]�OYa�O\\�RŴcT�Tc_RTWU�OUURPXOWca�|XŴ�Ŵc�O[aXW]�RYPc�SXYO\X�ca]�OTc�UcYW�aXTcPW\̀�WR�Ŵc�{XẀ��OYOZcT�XY�OaaXWXRY�WR�Ŵc�~XYOYPc��XTcPWRTd��̂c�SXYO\�aRP[�cYWU�ÛR[\a�bc�_TcUcYWca�WR�Ŵc�{XẀ�{R[YPX\�OSWcT�SXYO\�TczXc|�b̀�Ŵc�{XẀ��OYOZcTd������������������ ����SRT�O\�|TXWWcY�TcU_RYUc�OYa�_\OY�RS�OPWXRY�WR�OaaTcUU�Ŵc�~¡�¢£¤¢¥��OYOZc�cYW�\cWWcT�PR��cYWU�ÛR[\a�bc�_TRa[Pca�OYa�_TcUcYWca�|XŴ�Ŵc�~¡�¢¥¤¢¦�O[aXWd�
13 - 55



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQQNRSTUVPR�WXXY�Z[\]̂_̀�ab_[c\�d_efcĝg�h�i_̀ehc�]ĵg̀jhc�d_ĵ̀_c�k[gâ]_jjh]̀g�ghdb�lgh̀�_i�̂bg�gjmhmgegĵ�̂_�bgcf�]\gĵ]il�f_̂gĵ]hc�nghojgaaga�hj\�h̀gha�_j�nb]db�̂_�d_jdgĵ̀ĥg�\[̀]jm�̂bg�h[\]̂p�MNOPQQNRSTUVPR�WXqY�r[̂[̀g�h[\]̂a�ab_[c\�]jdc[\g�h�e_̀g�]js\gf̂b�̀gt]gn�_i�uvw�xyuz{|�}~����~��|w�����|u���w�~�w��uy~�|�u~�y�w�uy�z�hjl�_fg̀ĥ]_jhc�]aa[gap�MNOPQQNRSTUVPR�WX�Y��gtgc_f�h�i_̀ehc�ǹ]̂̂gj�ìh[\�f_c]dl�̂bĥ�]\gĵ]i]ga�̂bg�f̀_dgaa�̂_�̀gf_̀̂�ìh[\p��bg�f_c]dl�ab_[c\�]jdc[\g�̂bg�d̀gĥ]_j�_i�h�ng�a]̂g�i_̀�]j\]t]\[hca��]jdc[\]jm��]̂l�âhii��̂_�hj_jle_[acl�̀gf_̀̂�ìh[\�_̀�f_̂gĵ]hc�ìh[\�hj\�b̂g�âgfa�]j�fchdg�̂_�gja[̀g�̂bg�̀gf_̀̂a�h̀g�]jtgâ]mĥg\p�:�:����=�@8CC��bg�fhl̀_cc�i[jd̂]_j�]a�fg̀i_̀eg\��l�_jg�]j\]t]\[hc��̂bg��hl̀_cc��__̀\]jĥ_̀p��bg�r]jhjdg��]̀gd̂_̀�nha�\]̀gd̂g\��l�̂bg��]̂l��hjhmg̀�̂_�d̀_aaŝ̀h]j�a_eg_jg�_j�fhl̀_cc���[̂�\[g�̂_�a_eg�g̀c[d̂hjdg�_j�̂bg�fh̀̂�_i�̂bg�r]jhjdg��]̀gd̂_̀�hj\�_̀�̂bg��hl̀_cc��__̀\]jĥ_̀��̂bg�d̀_aaŝ̀h]j]jm�bha�j_̂��ggj�d_efcĝg\p��]̂lmĥg�_�ag̀tg\�̂bĥ�̂bg�d̀_aaŝ̀h]j]jm�bha�d_ĵ]j[g\���[̂�]̂�]a�â]cc�[jdg̀̂h]j�nbĝbg̀�̂bg�d̀_aaŝ̀h]j]jm�]jdc[\ga�̂bg�f̀_\[d̂]_j�_i�hj�gĵ]̀g�fhl̀_cc�ha�_ff_ag\�̂_��[â�f]gdga�_i�̂bg�f̀_dgaap��hl̀_cc�]a�h�d̀]̂]dhc�f̀_dgaa�]j�hjl�_̀mhj]�ĥ]_j��hj\�hĉb_[mb��_[̂b��hah\gjh�]a�h�̀gcĥ]tgcl�aehcc�d]̂l�n]̂b�h�aehcc�r]jhjdg��gfh̀̂egĵ��âgfa�e[â��g�̂hogj�̂_�gja[̀g�d_ĵ]j[]̂l�]j�̂bg�dhag�_i�geg̀mgjd]gap��hl̀_cc�]a�f̀_dgaag\��]nggocl�i_̀�h�̂_̂hc�_i����fhl̀_cca�fg̀�lgh̀p��n_�_i�̂bg�fhl̀_cca�h̀g�d_ja]\g̀g\�ìgg�fhl̀_cca��nbg̀g�_jcl�̂bg�̀gm[ch̀�fhl�cgaa�̂h�ga�]a�f̀_dgaag\p��gn�gefc_lgga�h̀g�f̀_dgaag\�]j��[ehj��ga_[̀dga��hj\�fhl̀_cc�]a�f̀_t]\g\�hj��efc_lgg�Zd̂]_j�r_̀e�̂_�d̀gĥg�̂bg�gefc_lgg�]j�̂bg�alâgep� jdg�d̀gĥg\�]j�̂bg�alâge���hl̀_cc�ehj[hccl�̂lfga�h��hl��gd_̀\��h̀\�i_̀�̂bg�gefc_lgg�n]̂b�hcc�fg̀̂]jgĵ�]ji_̀eĥ]_j�hj\�agj\a�̂bg�dh̀\�̂_��_̂b��[ehj��ga_[̀dga�hj\�̂bg�hffc]dh�cg�\gfh̀̂egĵp��b]a�n_[c\��g�h\gk[ĥg�]ĵg̀jhc�d_ĵ̀_c¡�b_ngtg̀���[ehj��ga_[̀dga�\_ga�j_̂�tg̀]il�̂bĥ�̂bg�]ji_̀eĥ]_j�̂lfg\�_j�̂bg��hl��gd_̀\��h̀\�eĥdbga�̂bg��efc_lgg�Zd̂]_j�r_̀e�_̀�nbĥ�nha�]jf[̂�]ĵ_�̂bg�fhl̀_cc�alâgep��b]a�]a�h�nghojgaa�]j�]ĵg̀jhc�d_ĵ̀_ca�hj\�agfh̀ĥ]_j�_i�\[̂]ga�̂bĥ�ab_[c\��g�h\\̀gaag\p�Z[̂_eĥ]_j�_i�b̂]a�f̀_dgaa�]a�hca_�jgg\g\�̂_�̀g\[dg��hl̀_cc�gefc_lgg�̂]eg�̀gk[]̀gegĵap�¢gjgi]̂�dbhjmga�i_̀�gefc_lgg�]j�̂bg�alâge�]a�̀gk[gâg\�ehj[hccl�̂b̀_[mb��hl̀_cc�hj\�j_̂��[ehj��ga_[̀dgap��_�_jg�ì_e��hl̀_cc�hff̀_tga�_̀�tg̀]i]ga�̂bg�hdd[̀hdl�_i��gjgi]̂�dbhjmga�̀gk[gâg\��l�̂bg�gefc_lggp��b]a�]a�hj_̂bg̀�]ĵg̀jhc�d_ĵ̀_c�nghojgaap�
13 - 56



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOP�QRPPSQ�TUP�VUPVTUPW�OTXYTZZ[\�P]̂PVS�_̀U�SRP�àZN̂P�bPVTUSOPXS\�TXW�OYQS�cP�UP̂PNdPW�c[�VT[ÙZZ�X̀�ZTSPU�SRTX�SRP�MYPQWT[�cP_̀UP�SRP�VT[WT[e�MRP�aT[ÙZZ�f̀ ÙWNXTS̀U�VÙ̂ PQQPQ�TZZ�VT[ÙZZQ�gNSR�Q̀OP�TQQNQSTX̂P�_ÙO�SRP�hTXTiPOPXS�jQQNQSTXSe�MRP�hTXTiPOPXS�jQQNQSTXS�T̂XX̀S�VÙ̂ PQQ�T�_YZZ�VT[ÙZZe�hPOcPUQ�̀_�SRP�àZN̂P�bPVTUSOPXS�VÙ̂ PQQ�SRPNU�SNOP�QRPPSQ�̀X�TX�TYS̀OTSPW�Q[QSPO�̂TZZPW�kXMNOP\�gRN̂R�̂̀ XSTNXQ�TX�PZP̂SÙXN̂�QNiXTSYUP�_PTSYUP\�Q̀�SNOP�QRPPSQ�TUP�X̀S�OTXYTZZ[�QNiXPWe�j�VUNXS̀YS�_ÙO�SRP�àZN̂P�SNOPlmPPVNXi�Q[QSPO�NQ�TSST̂RPW�S̀�PT̂R�SNOP�QRPPS�S̀�dTZNWTSP�SRTS�SRP[�gPUP�TZZ�PZP̂SÙXN̂TZZ[�QNiXPWe�MRP�nVUNXicÙ̀ m�VT[ÙZZ�Ò WYZP�NQ�P]̂PVSǸX�cTQPW\�Q̀�̀XZ[�dTUNTSǸXQ�S̀�T�QSTXWTUW�UPiYZTU�g̀Um�Q̂RPWYZP�XPPW�S̀�cP�PXSPUPW�c[�aT[ÙZZe�oX̂P�SNOP�QRPPSQ�TUP�PXSPUPW\�T�SNOP�QRPPS�VÙ̀ _�ZNQS�NQ�iPXPUTSPWe�MRNQ�ZNQS�UP_ZP̂SQ�TZZ�R̀YUQ�TXW�S̀RPU�SNOP�QRPPS�NX_̀UOTSǸX�PXSPUPWe�MRP�aT[ÙZZ�f̀ ÙWNXTS̀U�dTZNWTSPQ�TXW�̂̀OVTUPQ�SRP�T̂SYTZ�SNOP�QRPPS�S̀�SRP�VÙ̀ _�ZNQS�TXW�OTmPQ�TX[�UPpYNUPW�̂RTXiPQe�oX̂P�dPUN_NPW\�SRP�aT[ÙZZ�f̀ ÙWNXTS̀U�QPXWQ�SRP�VÙ̀ _�ZNQS�TXW�SNOP�QRPPSQ�S̀�SRP�qNXTX̂P�bNUP̂S̀U�̀U�jQQNQSTXS�qNXTX̂P�bNUP̂S̀U�_̀U�TVVÙdTZe�MRNQ�TVVÙdTZ�QSPV�NQ�̂YUUPXSZ[�cPNXi�VPU_̀UOPW�c[�SRP�rYOTX�sPQ̀YÛPQ�bNUP̂S̀U�t�ĵSNXi�qNXTX̂P�bNUP̂S̀Ue�aT[ÙZZ�WPWŶSǸXQ�TUP�̂TẐYZTSPW�TYS̀OTSN̂TZZ[�c[�SRP�VT[ÙZZ�Ò WYZP�NX�nVUNXicÙ̀ m�TXW�OTXYTZZ[�VÙ̂ PQQPW�c[�SRP�aT[ÙZZ�f̀ ÙWNXTS̀U�_̀U�TX[�ĵ^̀YXSQ�aT[TcZP�̂RP̂mQ�TXW�QYVV̀USNXi�Ẁ ŶOPXSTSǸX�_̀U�T�ùYUXTZ�d̀ŶRPU�UPpYNUPW�S̀�V̀QS�SRP�jYS̀OTSPW�fZPTUNXi�r̀YQP�vjfrw�WNUP̂S�VT[OPXSQ�_̀U�ZTUiP�WPWŶSǸXQ\�QŶR�TQ�qPWPUTZ�TXW�nSTSP�NX̂ ÒP�ST]PQ�TXW�fTZaxsn�S̀�SRP�yPXPUTZ�zPWiPUe�MRP�VT[ÙZZ�̂RP̂m�VÙ̂ PQQ�NQ�SRPX�NXNSNTSPW\�TXW�T�VT[ÙZZ�UPiNQSPU�NQ�VÙWŶPW�_̀U�WNUP̂S�WPV̀QNS�POVZ̀[PP�VT[�vTc̀YS�{|}�POVZ̀[PPQw�TXW�X̀XlWNUP̂S�WPV̀QNS�̂RP̂mQ�vTc̀YS�{~�POVZ̀[PPQwe�MRP�UPiNQSPUQ�RTdP�TZZ�VPUSNXPXS�VT[�TXW�WPWŶSǸX�NX_̀UOTSǸX�_̀U�PT̂R�VTNW�POVZ̀[PP\�NX̂ZYWNXi�R̂P̂m�XYOcPUQ�SRTS�TUP�iPXPUTSPW�SRÙYiR�SRP�Q[QSPO�dNT�SRP�̂RP̂m�iPXPUTSǸX�VÙ̂ PQQe��ZTXm�̂RP̂mQ�TUP�OTNXSTNXPW�NX�SRP��������������������̀__N̂P�NX�T�Z̀̂mPW�̂TcNXPSe�Mg̀�mP[Q�TUP�UPpYNUPW�S̀�̀VPX�SRP�̂TcNXPSe�MRP�qNXTX̂P�bNUP̂S̀U�RTQ�̀XP�mP[\�̂YUUPXSZ[�SRP�rYOTX�sPQ̀YÛPQ�t�ĵSNXi�qNXTX̂P�bNUP̂S̀U\�TXW�SRP�aT[ÙZZ�f̀ ÙWNXTS̀U�RTQ�SRP�̀SRPU�mP[e�MRP�aT[ÙZZ�f̀ ÙWNXTS̀U�̀cSTNXQ�UPpYNUPW�̂RP̂mQ�_̀U�X̀XlWNUP̂S�WPV̀QNS�POVZ̀[PPQ�cTQPW�̀X�SRP�X̀XlWNUP̂S�WPV̀QNS�̂RP̂m�UPiNQSPUe�MRP�aT[ÙZZ�f̀ ÙWNXTS̀U�Z̀iQ�̂RP̂m�XYOcPUQ�YQPW�NX�Z̀i�c̀ m̀e�MRP�qNXTX̂P�bNUP̂S̀U�NQ�iNdPX�SRP�VT[ÙZZ�UPiNQSPUQ�S̀�UPdNPg�TXW�TVVÙdPe�oX̂P�SRP[�TUP�TVVÙdPW\�SRP�qNXTX̂P�bNUP̂S̀U�VÙ̂ PQQPQ�T�QNiXTSYUP�VÙiUTO�S̀�QNiX�SRP�̂RP̂mQ\�QPXW�jfr�VT[OPXSQ�S̀�SRP�cTXm�_̀U�SRP�PXSNUP�VT[ÙZZ\�TXW�V̀QSQ�SRP�VT[ÙZZ�NXS̀�SRP�yPXPUTZ�zPWiPUe�aT[ÙZZ�NQ�QPXS�S̀�SRP�cTXm�̀X�SRP��PWXPQWT[�̀_�SRP�VT[�gPPm�_̀U�T�VT[WT[�̀X�qUNWT[e�MRP�aT[ÙZZ�f̀ ÙWNXTS̀U�OTXYTZZ[�_̀ZWQ�̂RP̂mQ�TXW�QSYcQ�TXW�VZT̂PQ�SRPO�NX�PXdPZ̀VPQ�_̀U�WPZNdPU[�S̀�SRP�UPQVP̂SNdP�WPVTUSOPXSQe�jZSR̀YiR�SRPUP�TUP�̀XZ[�Tc̀YS�����VT[QSYcQ�TXW�̂RP̂mQ�VPU�VT[�VPUǸW\�POVZ̀[PP�SNOP�̂ ỲZW�cP�QTdPW�SRÙYiR�SRP�VYÛRTQP�̀_�T�̂RP̂m�_̀ZWNXi�TXW�
13 - 57



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPPQRS�TUVWQRXY�ZWQM�[QXVX�\P�X]OQ[TXRN�V\Ô_�ÛM\�̀X�OMX_�QR�\NWXa�UaXUM�bWXaX�TUROÛ�P\̂_QRS�UR_�XRcX̂\[�MNOPPQRS�QM�\VVOaaQRSd�MOVW�UM�eVV\ORNM�fUgÙ X̂�UR_�hOMQRXMM�iQVXRMQRS�UR_�eVV\ORNM�jXVXQcÙ X̂Y�k\RNŴgd�]OUaNXâgd�UR_�gXUalXR_�aX[\aNM�UaX�[a\_OVX_�UON\TUNQVÛ̂g�̀g�NWX�m[aQRS̀a\\n�MgMNXTY�opqrpqs�tuv�wOX�N\�̂UVn�\P�Va\MMlNaUQRQRSd�\R̂g�\RX�XT[̂\gXX�nR\bM�W\b�N\�[a\VXMM�U�PÔ̂�xQNg�[Uga\̂̂Y�opqrpqs�tyv�mX[UaUNQ\R�\P�_ONQXM�̀XNbXXR�fUga\̂̂�UR_�zOTUR�jXM\OaVXM�aXM[\RMQ̀Q̂QNQXM�QM�̂UVnQRSd�bWQVW�bXUnXRM�QRNXaRÛ�V\RNa\̂Y�opqrpqs�t{|v�ZWXaX�UaX�N\\�TURg�TUROÛ�[a\VXMMXM�QR�NWX�[Uga\̂̂�[a\VXMMd�bWQVW�QRVaXUMXM�NWX�NQTX�aX]OQaX_�N\�V\T[̂XNX�U�[Uga\̂̂�UR_�NWX�VWURVX�\P�WOTUR�Xaa\aY�ZWQM�QM�[UaNQÛ̂g�_OX�N\�NWX�ORVXaNUQRNg�V\RVXaRQRS�NWX�VU[ÙQ̂QNQXM�\P�NWX�m[aQRS̀a\\n�[Uga\̂̂�T\_ÔXY�opqrpqs�t{{v�e_X]OUNX�X]OQ[TXRN�N\�PÔ̂g�UON\TUNX�NWX�[Uga\̂̂�[a\VXMM�QM�ÛVnQRSY�opqrpqs�t{}v�fUga\̂̂�XT[̂\gXX~M��UaX�R\N�V\RMQMNXRN̂g�\̀NUQRQRS�[Uga\̂̂laX̂UNX_�NaUQRQRS�N\�nXX[�O[�bQNW�VWURSQRS�[Uga\̂̂laX̂UNX_�̂UbMd�aÔXMd�UR_�aXSÔUNQ\RMY��������qr��p�q�t{�v�ZWX�PÔ̂�Va\MMlNaUQRQRS�\P�NWX�kURUSXTXRN�eMMQMNURN�MW\Ô_�̀X�V\T[̂XNX_�T\aX�]OQVn̂gY�f̂URRX_�\cXaNQTX�MW\Ô_�̀X�V\RMQ_XaX_�N\�X�[X_QNX�V\T[̂XNQ\R�\P�NWX�NaUQRQRSY�e__QNQ\RÛ̂gd�NWX�kURUSXTXRN�eMMQMNURN�MW\Ô_�[XaQ\_QVÛ̂g�V\T[̂XNX�UR�QRVaXUMQRS�[\aNQ\R�\P�UR�UVNOÛ�PÔ̂�[Uga\̂̂�UPNXa�NWX�NaUQRQRS�N\�XRMOaX�QN�WUM�̀XXR�XPPXVNQcXY��T[̂XTXRNUNQ\R�\P�NWQM�aXV\TTXR_UNQ\R�bQ̂̂�WX̂[�N\�TQRQTQ�X�̂\MM�\P�[a\VXMM�V\RNQROQNg�QR�NWX�VUMX�\P�XTXaSXRVQXMd�UM�bX̂̂�UM�aX̂QXcX�M\TX�\P�NWX�̀Oa_XR�PX̂N�g̀�NWX�fUga\̂̂�x\\a_QRUN\a�NWUN�̂QTQNM�XUaRX_�NQTX�\PPY�
13 - 58



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQQNRSTUVPR�WXYZ�[\]�̂_̀abcc�de_ff�d\bgch�i]�a]ea_jk]h�bk�e\]�l_m_ijcjej]d�bf�e\]�]njdejko�pmajkoiabbq�m_̀abcc�rbhgc]s�[\]�ea_jkjko�d\bgch�i]�r_kh_ebà�_kh�m_ae�bf�e\]�_kkg_c�]t_cg_ejbk�ob_cdu�v\jl\�vjcc�\]cm�rjkjrjw]�e\]�mbe]kej_c�bf�]rmcb̀]]d�lbkejkgjko�eb�gd]�e\]�bchu�jk]ff]lejt]�mabl]dd]d�vje\bge�lbkd]xg]kl]ds�yrmc]r]ke_ejbk�bf�e\jd�a]lbrr]kh_ejbk�vjcc�\]cm�eb�jh]kejf̀�lgaa]ke�r_kg_c�mabl]dd]d�e\_e�r_̀�i]�_gebr_e]h�jk�e\]�m_̀abcc�rbhgc]u�e\gd�a]hgljko�mabl]ddjko�ejr]�_kh�r_kg_c�l_clgc_ejbk�]aabads�[\jd�a]lbrr]kh_ejbk�lbgch�_cdb�h]c_̀�e\]�k]]h�fba�_hhjejbk_c�]rmcb̀]]d�i]l_gd]�bf�e\]�jkla]_d]h�mabhglejtjès�MNOPQQNRSTUVPR�WXzZ�{�dl\]hgc]�bf�a]dmbkdjijcjej]d�d\bgch�i]�h]t]cbm]h�fba�e\]�̂_̀abcc�_kh�|gr_k�}]dbgal]d�fgklejbkd�bf�e\]�~jès�[\jd�dl\]hgc]�bf�a]dmbkdjijcjej]d�d\bgch�fbccbv�i]de�ma_lejl]du�jklcghjko�_�lc]_a�h]cjk]_ejbks�|gr_k�}]dbgal]d�jd�a]dmbkdjic]�fba�]rmcb̀]]�la]_ejbku�i]k]fjedu�_kh�l\_ko]d�a]c_ejko�eb�m_̀��̂_̀abcc�jd�a]dmbkdjic]�fba�la]_ejbk�bf�e\]�]rmcb̀]]�l\]lq�_kh�_cc�be\]a�mabl]dd]d�a]c_ejko�eb�e\]�l\]lq�mabl]ddu�jklcghjko�h]hglejbkdu�m_̀abcc�e_n�_kh�a]eja]r]ke�mabl]ddjkou�a]mbae�mabl]ddjko�a]c_ejko�eb�]rmcb̀]]d�l\]lqdu�]els�yrmc]r]ke_ejbk�bf�e\jd�a]lbrr]kh_ejbk�vjcc�jrmabt]�jke]ak_c�lbkeabc�_kh�lbrmc̀�vje\�i]de�ma_lejl]�ì�rjkjrjwjko�e\]�ajdq�bf�e\]�_lljh]ke_c�ba�fa_ghgc]ke�la]_ejbk�_kh�m_̀r]ke�bf�fjlejejbgd�]rmcb̀]]ds��MNOPQQNRSTUVPR�WX�Z�[\]�~jè�d\bgch�jkt]de�jk�e\]�mgal\_d]�bf�_�fbch]a�degff]a�r_l\jk]�eb�a]hgl]�e\]�ejr]�dm]ke�bk�fbchjko�l\]lqd�_kh�m_̀degid�_kh�jkd]aejko�e\]r�jkeb�]kt]cbmd�fba�hjdeajigejbks�yrmc]r]ke_ejbk�bf�e\jd�a]lbrr]kh_ejbk�vjcc�kbe�bkc̀�a]hgl]�e\]�ejr]�a]xgja]h�ì�e\]�̂_̀abcc�~bbahjk_eba�ige�_cdb�e\]�ejr]�dm]ke�ì�be\]a�]rmcb̀]]d�v\b�m]afbar�djrjc_a�hgej]ds��
13 - 59



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KK�

LMNOPPMQRSTUOQ�VWXY�Z[\]̂__�̀ab_̂\̀ c̀�cd̂e_f�g̀�̀hîe][j̀f�k̂�[kk̀hf�b[\]̂__l]̀_[k̀f�k][mhmhj�k̂�]̀a[mh�nĥo_̀fj̀[g_̀�îhì]hmhj�b[\]̂__�_[ocp�qab_̀àhk[km̂h� r̂�kdmc�]̀îaàhf[km̂h�om__�mab]̂s̀�̀ab_̂\̀ �̀b]̂feikmsmk\�kd]̂ejd�kd̀�]̀feikm̂h�̂r�̀]]̂]c�i[ec̀f�g\�_[in�̂r�nĥo_̀fj̀�]̀j[]fmhj�b[\]̂__�a[kk̀]cp�tĥkd̀]�g̀h̀rmk�mc�kd̀�b̂k̀hkm[_�mab]̂s̀àhk�mh�îhrmf̀hì�[hf�â ][_̀�̂r�kd̀�̀ab_̂\̀ �̀fè�k̂�]̀feìf�r]eck][km̂h�̂r�r̀̀_mhj�ehmhr̂]àfp��:u:uv�w558x96y�z={=|C4�}d̀�tiîehkc�Z[\[g_̀�rehikm̂h�mc�b̀]r̂]àf�g\�̂h̀�mhfmsmfe[_~�kd̀�tiîehkmhj�}̀idhmim[hp�}dmc�ck[rr�àag̀]�[_ĉ�mc�]̀cb̂hcmg_̀�r̂]�i]̀[kmhj�kd̀�f[m_\�i[cd�id̀in�îmh�f̀b̂cmk�r̂]�kd̀��mk\�k̂�i]̀[k̀�[�c̀b[][km̂h�̂r�fekm̀c�g̀kò h̀�ck[rr�î__̀ikmhj�]̀ìmbkc�[hf�kd̀�ck[rr�i]̀[kmhj�kd̀�[ike[_�f̀b̂cmkp��}d̀��mk\��ehmimb[_��̂f̀��d[bk̀]��~�t]kmi_̀��q~��̀ikm̂h��p��l��������������������������be]id[cmhj�c\ck̀a�b]̂ìfe]̀cp�}d̀�be]id[cmhj�c\ck̀a�̀ck[g_mcd̀c�[�ìhk][_m�̀f�be]id[cmhj�c\ck̀a~�omkd�kd̀��mh[hì��m]̀ik̂]�[ikmhj�[c�[�be]id[cmhj�[j̀hkp��̂ òs̀]~�kd̀��ehmimb[_��̂f̀�[ekd̂]m�̀c�[h�̀�̀abkm̂h�k̂�ìhk][_m�̀f�be]id[cmhj�b̀]��egc̀ikm̂h��~�odmid�]̀[fc~��}d̀�be]id[cmhj�[j̀hk�a[\~�mh�o]mkmhj�[hf�omkd�kd̀�[bb]̂s[_�̂r�kd̀�imk\�a[h[j̀]~�[ekd̂]m�̀�[h\�imk\�f̀b[]kàhk�k̂�be]id[c̀�̂]�îhk][ik�r̂]�cb̀imrm̀f�cebb_m̀c~�c̀]smìc�[hf�̀�embàhk�mhf̀b̀hf̀hk_\�r̂�kd̀�be]id[cmhj�f̀b[]kàhk~�gek�kd̀�be]id[cmhj�[j̀hk�cd[__�]̀�em]̀�kd[k�ceid�be]id[c̀c�̂]�îhk][ik�g̀�a[f̀�mh�îhr̂]amk\�omkd�kd̀�b]̂ìfe]̀c�̀ck[g_mcd̀f�g\�kdmc�c̀ikm̂h~�[hf�cd[__�re]kd̀]�]̀�em]̀�b̀]m̂fmi�]̀b̂]kc�r]̂a�kd̀�f̀b[]kàhk�̂h�kd̀�be]id[c̀c�[hf�îhk][ikc�a[f̀�ehf̀]�ceid�o]mkk̀h�[ekd̂]m�[km̂hp��t_kd̂ejd��mk\j[k̀�o[c�eh[g_̀�k̂�_̂i[k̀�[�o]mkk̀h�[ekd̂]m�[km̂h�[c�]̀�em]̀f�g\��egc̀ikm̂h��~�kd̀��mk\�̂b̀][k̀c�mkc�be]id[cmhj�b]̂ìcc�ecmhj�kdmc�̀�̀abkm̂hp�}d̀�f̀b[]kàhkc�b̀]r̂]a�kd̀m]�̂oh�be]id[c̀c�[c�fm]̀ik̀f�g\�[�be]id[cmhj�b]̂ìfe]̀c�cd̀ k̀~�odmid�ceaa[]m�̀c�kd̀�be]id[cmhj�]̀�em]̀àhkc�̂ek_mh̀f�mh�kd̀�aehmimb[_�îf̀p�}d̀�g[cmi�b]̂ie]̀àhk�jemf̀_mh̀c�[]̀���� �̀�èckc�r̂]�b[\àhk��eb�k̂� ¡¢¢£�¤�ĥ�be]id[c̀�̂]f̀]�]̀�em]̀f~�f̀b[]kàhk�d̀[f�[bb]̂s[_�̂h_\p��� ¥b̀h��[]ǹk�� ¡¢¦¤¦¢~¢¢¢£�¤�be]id[c̀�̂]f̀]�]̀�em]̀f~�kd]̀̀�mhr̂]a[_��êk̀c�]̀�em]̀f~�[hf�f̀b[]kàhk�d̀[f�[ekd̂]m�̀c�kd̀�be]id[c̀�̂]f̀]�]̀�emcmkm̂hp��� ¥b̀h��[]ǹk�� ¦¢~¢¢¦¤�¡~¢¢¢£�¤�be]id[c̀�̂]f̀]�]̀�em]̀f~�kd]̀̀�o]mkk̀h��êk̀c�]̀�em]̀f~��mh[hì��m]̀ik̂]�[ekd̂]m�̀c�be]id[c̀�̂]f̀]�]̀�emcmkm̂hp�}d̀��mk\��[h[j̀]�a[\�[ekd̂]m�̀�be]id[c̀�̂r�cebb_m̀c~�̀�embàhk~�[hf�c̀]smìc�̂r�[�s[_è�
13 - 60



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQON�QRPS�TUVWVVV�XYQ�ZO[[�QRPS�T\]WVVV�̂_QR̀YQ�àbcZd_SM�̂_QR�QRO�Z_[QOe�cǸaOeYNO[�̂ROSW�_S�QRO�̀c_S_̀S�̀f�QRO�g_Qd�hPSPMONW�àbcZ_PSaO�̂ _QR�QRO�cǸaOeYNO�_[�S̀Q�_S�QRO�XO[Q�_SQONO[Q�̀f�QRO�g_Qdi�j� k̀NbPZ�àSQNPaQ�lPX̀mO�T\]WVVVn�o�cYNaRP[O�̀NeON�NOpY_NOeW�f̀NbPZ�X_ee_SM�cǸaO[[�NOpY_NOe�P[�̀YQZ_SOe�_S�qYX[OaQ_̀S�UU�̀f�QRO�cYNaRP[_SM�[d[QOb�PNQ_aZOW�g_Qd�g̀YSa_Z�PccǸmPZ�NOpY_NOei��rYNaRP[O�NOpY_[_Q_̀S[�PSe�cYNaRP[O�̀NeON[�PNO�QdcOe�̀S�P�QdcÔN_QON�̀N�aNOPQOe�Y[_SM�P�[OcPNPQO�s Ǹe�̀N�tuaOZ�cǸMNPbv�QROd�PNO�S̀Q�cǸeYaOe�QRǸYMR�P�YS_f̀Nb�[d[QObi�qQPff�[RPNOe�QRPQ�QRO�qcN_SMXǸ̀ w�[d[QOb�RP[�P�cYNaRP[_SM�b̀ eYZO�XYQ�_[�YSaONQP_S�P[�Q̀�_Q[�aPcPX_Z_Q_O[i�xRO�cǸaYNObOSQ�PSe�QRO�cPdbOSQ�PccǸmPZ�cǸaO[[O[�PNO�PZ[̀�bPSYPZW�NOpY_N_SM�c_OaO[�̀f�cPcON�Q̀�XO�ǸYQOe�QRǸYMR̀YQ�QRO�g_Qd�PSe�̂R_aR�PNO�fNOpYOSQZd�Z̀[Q�̀N�b_[cZPaOeW�NOpY_N_SM�OuQNP�Q_bO�Q̀�cǸaO[[i�g_Qd�[QPff�ZPaw�QRO�wS̀ ẐOeMO�̀f�̂RPQ�aPcPX_Z_Q_O[�QRO�qcN_SMXǸ̀ w�f_SPSa_PZ�[d[QOb�RP[�Q̀�ROZc�_bcǸmO�cǸeYaQ_m_Qdi�xRO�g_Qd�PZ[̀�RP[�P�cYNaRP[_SM�aPNe�cǸMNPb�QRPQ�PZZ̀̂ [�cYNaRP[O[�m_P�P�g_Qd�aNOe_Q�aPNei�xRO�g_Qd�aYNNOSQZd�RP[�[_u�cYNaRP[_SM�aPNe[W�̂R_aR�PNO�P[[_MSOe�P[�f̀ZZ̀̂ [y�j� g_Qd�hPSPMON�j� k_SPSaO�z_NOaQ̀N�o�{PawYc�Q̀�MOSONPZ�g_Qd�aPNe�j� |OSONPZ�g_Qd�j� k_NO�zOcPNQbOSQ�o�qQN_wO�QOPb�j� r̀Z_aO�zOcPNQbOSQ�o�̀SO�f̀N�b̀ Q̀NadaZO�fYOZ�PSe�̀SO�f̀N�[QPwÒYQ[�xRONO�_[�S̀�f̀NbPZ�̂N_QQOS�cYNaRP[_SM�aPNe�c̀Z_ad�PQ�QRO�g_Qdi�}S�NOm_Ô�̀f�QRO�cǸMNPbW�g_QdMPQO�RP[�f̀YSeW�PX[OSQ�P�f̀NbPZ�̂N_QQOS�c̀Z_adW�QRONO�_[�S̀�OffOaQ_mO�b̀ S_Q̀N_SM�bOaRPS_[b�̀f�QRO�Y[O[�_̂QR_S�QRO�k_SPSaO�zOcPNQbOSQi�xRO�k_SPSaO�zOcPNQbOSQ�P[[YbO[�QRO�eOcPNQbOSQ[�PNO�b̀ S_Q̀N_SM�QRO�cYNaRP[_SM�aPNe�Y[O�̂_QR_S�QRO_N�eOcPNQbOSQ[�Q̀�PeeNO[[�Paa_eOSQPZ�̀N�c̀QOSQ_PZZd�fNPYeYZOSQ�ONǸN[i�sROS�Y[Oe�_S�PeRONOSaO�Q̀�P�̂N_QQOS�c̀Z_ad�QRPQ�_[�[QN_aQZd�b̀ S_Q̀NOe�PSe�OSf̀NaOeW�Y[O�̀f�cYNaRP[_SM�aPNe[�aPS�_SaNOP[O�cǸeYaQ_m_Qd�Xd�NOeYa_SM�cǸaYNObOSQ�Q_bOi��~aàYSQ[�rPdPXZO�cǸaO[[O[�PZZ�mOSèN�cPdbOSQ[�PSe�NOpY_NO[�PccZ_aPXZO�cYNaRP[O�̀NeON�NOfONOSaOW�̀N_M_SPZ�_Sm̀_aO[�PSe�NOaO_cQ[W�PSe�PccǸcN_PQO�PYQR̀N_�PQ_̀S�[_MSPQYNO[i�~ZQR̀YMR�~aàYSQ[�rPdPXZO�NOpY_NO[�PYQR̀N_�Oe�[_MSPQYNO[W�PaàNe_SM�Q̀�[QPff�QRONO�_[�S̀�[_MSPQYNO�PYQR̀N_�PQ_̀S�Z̀M�̂_QR�f̀NbPZ�mPZ_ePQ_̀S�̀f�QRO�PYQR̀N_�Oe�[_MSPQYNO[�QRPQ�àYZe�XO�aǸ[[�aROawOe�Q̀�ROZc�_eOSQ_fd�YSPYQR̀N_�Oe�cPdbOSQ�NOpYO[Q[i�xR_[�[_MSPQYNO�Z̀M�̂ ỲZe�XO�YcePQOe�cON_̀e_aPZZd�Q̀�NOfZOaQ�[QPff�aRPSMO[�̀N�PYQR̀N_�PQ_̀S�aRPSMO[�̂_QR_S�P�eOcPNQbOSQ�PSe�wOcQ�̀S�f_ZO�_S�QRO�k_SPSaO�zOcPNQbOSQi��OSèN[�PNO�aNOPQOe�Xd�QRO�~aàYSQ_SM�xOaRS_a_PSi�~[�̀f�QR_[�NOc̀NQW�QRO�g_Qd�RPe�PccǸu_bPQOZd�UUW]VV�mOSèN[�̀S�f_ZOi�xRO�O[QPXZ_[RbOSQ�̀f�mOSèN[�NOpY_NO[�QRO�[YXb_[[_̀S�̀f�P�àbcZOQOe�s��
13 - 61



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOP�QRMNOR�STR�URVWNO�XYV�QR�ZY[W\�]TR�X̂OORVS�ZY_PRVS�ZONXR̀̀ �̂̀RW�a[ST�STR�WRZYOŜOR�NM�STR�ZO[NO�b[VYVXR�c[ORXSNO�YVW�d̀ [̀̀SYVS�b[VYVXR�c[ORXSNO�[VXêWR̀�STR�dXS[Vf�b[VYVXR�c[ORXSNOg�NO�ǸPRNVR�WR̀[fVYSRW�Q_�STR�dXS[Vf�b[VYVXR�c[ORXSNOg�ORU[Ra[Vf�STR�URVWNÒ�ZY[W�a[ST�RYXT�dXXN̂VS̀�hY_YQeR�ORf[̀SRO�YVW�̀ ẐZNOS[Vf�WNX̂PRVSYS[NV\�]T[̀�ZONXR̀̀�X̂OORVSe_�RPZeN_RW�T̀N̂eW�QR�XNVS[V̂RW�a[ST�STR�T[O[Vf�NM�STR�VRa�b[VYVXR�c[ORXSNO\��iV�YUROYfRg�STR�j[S_�ZONXR̀̀ R̀�YZZONk[PYSRe_�lmn�SN�onn�XTRXp̀�̀RP[qPNVSTe_\�hRO�̀SYMMg�XTRXp̀�YOR�VNS�PY[eRW�̂VS[e�STR�ORf[̀SRÒ�XNVSY[V[Vf�STR�ZY_PRVS�[VMNOPYS[NV�YOR�YZZONURW�Q_�STR�j[S_�jN̂VX[e\�iVXR�YZZONURWg�STR�b[VYVXR�c[ORXSNO�ÔV̀�Y�̀[fVYŜOR�ZONfOYP�SN�̀[fV�STR�XTRXp̀g�aT[XT�YOR�PY[eRW�[M�STR�URVWNO�TỲ�XNPZeRSRW�STR�rs�MNOP\�teYVp�XTRXp�̀SNXp�[̀�pRZS�[V�STR�uvwxwyz�{v|zy}~|���~��vyz�vw�Y�WN̂QeRqeNXpRW�XYQ[VRS\�]TR�b[VYVXR�c[ORXSNO�TỲ�NVR�pR_g�YVW�YXXN̂VS̀�ZY_YQeR�̀SYMM�TỲ�STR�̀RXNVW�pR_\��YXT�eNXp�[̀�W[MMRORVSg�YVW�QNST�pR_̀�P̂ S̀�QR�̂̀RW�SN�V̂eNXp�STR�XYQ[VRS\�dXXN̂VS̀�hY_YQeR�̀SYMM�Ẑee�STR�YZZONZO[YSR�V̂PQRO�NM�XTRXp̀�[WRVS[M[RW�[V�STR�ZONXR̀̀RW�ORf[̀SRO�YVW�eNf�[V�STR�XTRXp�V̂PQRO�OYVfR\�]TR�OYVfR�[̀�URO[M[RW�YVW�YZZONURW�Q_�STR�b[VYVXR�c[ORXSNO�U[Y�YV�[V[S[Ye�NO�̀[fVYŜOR�NV�STR�eNf�RVSO_�e[VR\��M�XTRXp�̀��YOR�WR̀SON_RW�ŴO[Vf�STR�ZO[VS[Vf�ZONXR̀̀g�dXXN̂VS̀�hY_YQeR�̀SYMM�VNS[M_�STR�b[VYVXR�c[ORXSNO�YVW�VNSR�STR�ORỲNV�YVW�STR�XTRXp�V̂PQRO�UN[WRW�NV�STR�NO[f[VYe�RVSO_�e[VR�NV�STR�eNf�QRMNOR�Ẑee[Vf�YVNSTRO�XTRXp�YVW�RVSRO[Vf�[V�STR�eNf�aT[XT�YfY[V�[̀�YZZONURW�Q_�STR�b[VYVXR�c[ORXSNO\�]T[̀�[̀�Y�XNPPNV�PRSTNW�̂̀RW�Q_�P̂ V[X[ZYe[S[R̀�SN�P[V[P[�R�ROONÒ�YVW�MOŶW\�d̀�YV�YWW[S[NVYe�XTRXp�YVW�QYeYVXRg�STR�j[S_�̀TN̂eW�XNV̀[WRO�[VXêW[Vf�Y�̀SRZ�[V�STR�dXXN̂VS̀�hY_YQeR�ZONXR̀̀�STYS�XNVSY[V̀�Y�ỲPZe[Vf�NM�URVWNÒ�MONP�RYXT�dXXN̂VS̀�hY_YQeR�ORf[̀SRO�SN�XNPZYOR�ŶSTNO[�RW�̀[fVYŜOR̀g�rs�[VMNOPYS[NVg�YVW�ẐOXTỲR�NOWRO�ORMRORVXRg�[M�YZZe[XYQeR\��S�[̀�̂VWRÒSNNW�STYS�f[URV�STR�̀[�R�NM�STR�b[VYVXR�cRZYOSPRVS�̀SYMM�ST[̀�RkSOY�̀SRZ�PY_�VNS�QR�MRỲ[QeRg�Q̂S�[PZeRPRVSYS[NV�NM�ST[̀�RkSOY�OYVWNP�ORU[Ra�̀SRZ�XN̂eW�TReZ�SN�P[V[P[�R�QNST�YXX[WRVSYe�YVW�[VSRVS[NVYe�ROONÒ\��]TR��ZO[VfQONNp�̀_̀SRP�YXXN̂VS̀�ZY_YQeR�PNŴeR�[̀�̂̀RW�SN�ZONXR̀̀�ZY_PRVS̀\�]TR�PNŴeR�TỲ�Y�Q̂WfRS�XTRXp�XNPZNVRVS�STYS�MeYf̀�ZY_PRVS�YSSRPZS̀�STYS�RkXRRW�YUY[eYQeR�Q̂WfRS�ŶSTNO[S_\�hRO�̀SYMMg�ŶSTNO[�YS[NV�aỲ�f[URV�Q_�STR�ZO[NO�b[VYVXR�c[ORXSNO�SN�YeeNa�STR�dXXN̂VS[Vf�]RXTV[X[YV�SN�NUROO[WR�STR̀R�MeYf̀�[M�STR�NUROqQ̂WfRS�YPN̂VS�[̀�eR̀̀�STYV��onn\�]T[̀�aỲ�Y�UROQYe�ŶSTNO[�YS[NV\�]TROR�[̀�VNS�Y�MNOPYe�aO[SSRV�Q̂WfRS�NUROO[WR�ŶSTNO[�YS[NV�ZNe[X_\�]TROR�[̀�VN�QYXpq̂Z�MNO�STR�X̂OORVS�dXXN̂VS̀�hY_YQeR�̀SYMM\��M�YV�[VW[U[ŴYe�[̀�N̂S�MNO�YV�RkSRVWRW�ZRO[NWg�STR�dXXN̂VS̀�hY_YQeR�ZONXR̀̀ �̀SNZ̀g�ZRO�STR�̀SYMM�[VSROU[RaRW\�d̀�Y�OR̀̂ eSg�̀[P[eYO�SN�STR�XỲR�NM�STR�hY_ONee�̀SYMMg�dXXN̂VS̀�hY_YQeR�̀SYMM�YOR�Q̂OWRVRW�a[ST�STR�[VYQ[e[S_�SN�SYpR�RYOVRW�S[PR�NMM\�jOǸ q̀SOY[V[Vf�YVW�[VXORỲRW�ŶSNPYS[NV�[̀�YèN�VRRWRW�[V�STR�dXXN̂VS̀�hY_YQeR�M̂VXS[NV�SN�[PZONUR�ZONŴXS[U[S_�YVW�PNOYeR\���PROfRVX_�NO�ZORZY_�XTRXp̀�STYS�XYVVNS�aY[S�MNO�STR�MNOPYe�ZONXR̀̀�P̂ S̀�QR�ZOR̀RVSRW�SN�STR�cRZYOSPRVS�U[Y�YV�RPROfRVX_�XTRXp�MNOP\�]TR̀R�RPROfRVX_�OR�̂R̀S̀�P̂ S̀�TYUR�Y�ORỲNV�MNO�STR�RPROfRVX_�[VXêWRW�NV�STR�MNOP�YVW�P̂ S̀�QR�YZZONURW�Q_�STR�b[VYVXR�c[ORXSNO�QRMNOR�dXXN̂VS̀�
13 - 62



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNONPQR�STUVRWWXYZ[�\]R�R̂RTZRYVO�V]RV_�XỲUT̂NaXUY�XW�a]RY�XYVQbcRc�dXa]�a]R�YRea�fVVUbYaW�MNONPQR�TRZXWaRT�XỲUT̂NaXUY�STRWRYaRc�aU�a]R�gXaO�gUbYVXQ[�MRT�fVVUbYaW�MNONPQR�WaǸ̀h�a]R�cXTRVaXUY�Ù�a]R�iXYNYVR�jXTRVaUT�XW�YUa�kbRWaXUYRch�RlRY�X̀�WaǸ̀�_YUd�a]Na�a]R�cXTRVaXUY�XW�N�lXUQNaXUY�Ù�SUQXVO[�fQa]UbZ]�fVVUbYaW�MNONPQR�WaǸ̀�W]UbQc�YUa�PR�XYWbPUTcXYNaRh�a]RO�W]UbQc�PR�RYVUbTNZRc�aU�NW_�kbRWaXUYW�X̀�a]RO�PRQXRlR�N�cXTRVaXUY�XW�VUYaTNTO�aU�a]R�gXaO�SUQXVO�NW�a]RO�_YUd�Xa[�f�SUQXVO�W]UbQc�PR�cRlRQUSRc�aU�NccTRWW�a]XW�SUaRYaXNQh�dXa]�QNYZbNZR�a]Na�STUaRVaW�WaǸ̀�X̀�a]RO�TR̀bWR�aU�STUVRWW�WÛ Ra]XYZ�a]RO�_YUd�XW�NZNXYWa�SUQXVO[�mYVR�NSSTUlRc�PO�a]R�gXaO�gUbYVXQh�a]R�iXYNYVR�jXTRVaUT�SUWaW�fVVUbYaW�MNONPQR�NVaXlXaO�aU�a]R�nRYRTNQ�oRcZRT[�pRNTqRYc�rsttW�NTR�STUcbVRc�NbaÛ NaXVNQQO�X̀�a]R�NSSTUSTXNaR�PUe�XW�V]RV_Rc�d]RY�a]R�lRYcUT�XW�VTRNaRc�XY�a]R�WOWaR̂[�uY�WÛ R�VNWRWh�Xa�XW�bY_YUdY�d]Ra]RT�a]R�N̂UbYa�SNXc�aU�a]R�lRYcUT�dXQQ�ReVRRc�a]R�TRSUTaXYZ�QX̂XaW�d]RY�a]R�lRYcUT�XW�VTRNaRc[�gbTTRYaQOh�a]RTR�XW�YUa�N�STUVRWW�̀UT�cUbPQRqV]RV_XYZ�rstt�STUcbVaXUY�aU�RYWbTR�NQQ�TRkbXTRc�rsttW�NTR�STUcbVRc[�mYR�dNO�aU�X̂YX̂XvR�a]R�XWWbR�Ù�Û XaaXYZ�a]R�VTRNaXUY�Ù�N�rstt�RTTUYRUbWQO�XW�aU�TbY�NY�fVVUbYaW�MNONPQR�SNÔ RYa�TRSUTa�PO�lRYcUT�NYc�VÛ SNTR�aU�a]R�rstt�TRSUTa�ZRYRTNaRc�PO�a]R�̀XYNYVXNQ�WOWaR̂[�MbTV]NWR�UTcRT�VNTTOqUlRTWh�d]XV]�NTR�SbTV]NWR�UTcRTW�a]Na�]NlR�̀bYcW�TR̂NXYXYZh�NTR�STUVRWWRc�PO�a]R�iXYNYVR�jXTRVaUT�NYc�STRWRYaRc�aU�a]R�gXaO�gUbYVXQ�̀UT�NSSTUlNQ[�mYVR�NSSTUlRch�NccXaXUYNQ�PbcZRa�NSSTUSTXNaXUYW�NTR�NccRc�aU�a]R�YRea�̀XWVNQ�ORNT�aU�VUlRT�a]R�bWR�Ù�a]R�TR̂NXYXYZ�̀bYcW�UY�a]R�SbTV]NWR�UTcRT[�wxyzxy{�|}~���U�dTXaaRY�Nba]UTXvNaXUY�dNW�QUVNaRc�a]Na�Nba]UTXvRc�a]R�gXaO�aU�USRTNaR�N�cRVRYaTNQXvRc�SbTV]NWXYZ�STUVRWW[�wxyzxy{�|}���\]R�STUVbTR̂RYa�NYc�SNÔRYa�NSSTUlNQ�STUVRWW�XW�̂ NYbNQh�TRkbXTXYZ�SXRVRW�Ù�SNSRT�aU�PR�TUbaRc�a]TUbZ]Uba�a]R�gXaOh�NYc�a]RO�NTR�̀TRkbRYaQO�QUWa�UT�̂XWSQNVRch�TRkbXTXYZ�ReaTN�aX̂R�aU�STUVRWW[�wxyzxy{�|}���gXaO�WaǸ̀�QNV_�a]R�_YUdQRcZR�Ù�d]Na�VNSNPXQXaXRW�a]R��STXYZPTUU_�X̀YNYVXNQ�WOWaR̂�]NW�aU�]RQS�X̂STUlR�STUcbVaXlXaO[��wxyzxy{�|}���\]RTR�XW�YU�WXZYNabTR�Nba]UTXvNaXUY�QUZ�dXa]�̀UT̂NQ�lNQXcNaXUY�Ù�a]R�Nba]UTXvRc�WXZYNabTRW�a]Na�VUbQc�PR�VTUWWqV]RV_Rc�aU�]RQS�XcRYaX̀O�bYNba]UTXvRc�SNÔ RYa�TRkbRWaW[�wxyzxy{�|}���\]RTR�XW�YU�̀UT̂NQ�dTXaaRY�PbcZRa�UlRTTXcR�Nba]UTXvNaXUY�SUQXVO[�wxyzxy{�|}���\]RTR�XW�YU�PNV_qbS�̀UT�a]R�VbTTRYa�fVVUbYaW�MNONPQR�WaǸ̀[��
13 - 63



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPNOQ�RSTU�VWX�YZZ[\]̂_�V̀àbcW�_̂̀dde�̂fW�ghXWẐh[]�[d�̂fW�ih]̀]ZW�jhXWẐ[X�h_�][̂�k\W_̂h[]Wge�WlW]�hd�_̂̀dd�m][n_�̂f̀ �̂̂fW�ghXWẐh[]�h_�̀�lh[c̀̂h[]�[d�o[chZap�MNOPNOQ�RqrU�sfWXW�h_�][̂�̀�oX[ZW__�h]�oc̀ZW�d[X�g[\bcWtZfWZmh]u�vwxx�oX[g\Ẑh[]�̂[�W]_\XW�̀cc�XWk\hXWg�vwxx_�̀XW�oX[g\ZWgp�MNOPNOQ�RqSU�sfWXW�h_�][�d[Xỳc�nXĥ̂W]�o\XZf̀_h]u�Z̀Xg�o[chZap�z{|}~~{OP��N}O�RSTU�Y_�̀]�̀ggĥh[]̀c�ZfWZm�̀]g�b̀c̀]ZWe�̂fW��ĥa�_f[\cg�Z[]_hgWX�h]Zc\gh]u�̀�_̂Wo�h]�̂fW�YZZ[\]̂_�V̀àbcW�oX[ZW__�̂f̀ �̂Z[]̂̀h]_�̀�_̀yoch]u�[d�lW]g[X_�dX[y�ẀZf�YZZ[\]̂_�V̀àbcW�XWuh_̂WX�[̂�Z[yòXW� \̀̂f[Xh�Wg�_hu]̀ \̂XW_e��x�h]d[Xỳ ĥ[]e� ]̀g�o\XZf̀_W�[XgWX�XWdWXW]ZWe�hd�̀oochZ̀bcWp��z{|}~~{OP��N}O�RqrU��X[__t̂X̀h]h]ue�W�̂WX]̀c� X̂̀h]h]ue� ]̀g�h]ZXẀ_Wg�\̀̂[ỳ ĥ[]�h_�̀c_[�]WWgWg�h]�̂fW�YZZ[\]̂_�V̀àbcW�d\]Ẑh[]�̂[�hyoX[lW�oX[g\Ẑhlĥa�̀]g�y[X̀cWp��z{|}~~{OP��N}O�RqSU�Y�o[chZa�_f[\cg�bW�gWlWc[oWg�̂[�W]Z[\X̀uW�YZZ[\]̂_�V̀àbcW�_̂̀dd�̂[�̀_m�k\W_̂h[]_�hd�̂fWa�bWchWlW�̀�ghXWẐh[]�dX[y�̂fW�ih]̀]ZW�jhXWẐ[X�h_�Z[]̂X̀Xa�̂[��ĥa�o[chZa�̀_�f̂Wa�m][n�ĥp�sfh_�o[chZa�_f[\cg�h]Zc\gW�c̀]u\̀uW�̂f̀ �̂oX[̂WẐ_�_̂̀dd�hd�̂fWa�XWd\_W�̂[�oX[ZW__�_[yŴfh]u�̂f̀ �̂f̂Wa�m][n�h_�̀ùh]_̂�o[chZap�z{|}~~{OP��N}O�RqqU��]W�ǹa�̂[�yh]hyh�W�̂fW�h__\W�[d�[yĥ̂h]u�̂fW�ZXẀĥ[]�[d�̀�vwxx�WXX[]W[\_ca�h_�̂[�X\]�̀]�YZZ[\]̂_�V̀àbcW�òayW]̂�XWo[X̂�ba�lW]g[X�̀]g�Z[yòXW�̂[�̂fW�vwxx�XWo[X̂�uW]WX̀̂Wg�ba�̂fW�dh]̀]Zh̀c�_a_̂Wyp�z{|}~~{OP��N}O�Rq�U�Y�d[Xỳc�nXĥ̂W]�o\XZf̀_h]u�Z̀Xg�o[chZa�_f[\cg�bW�gWlWc[oWg�̂f̀ �̂h]Zc\gW_�̀cc[ǹbcW�\_W_�[d�̂fW�Z̀Xg�̀]g�oW]̀ĉhW_�d[X�yh_\_Wp�Ycc�\_WX_�̀]g�o[̂W]̂h̀c�\_WX_�[d�o\XZf̀_h]u�Z̀Xg_�_f[\cg�bW�XWk\hXWg�̂[�̀̂ Ŵ]g�̂X̀h]h]u�[]�f̂W�o\XZf̀_h]u�Z̀Xg�o[chZa�̀]g�bW�ỳgW�̀ǹXW�[d�Z[]_Wk\W]ZW_�[d�][̂�̀gfWXh]u�̂[�̂fW�o[chZap�sfW�ih]̀]ZW�jWòX̂yW]̂�_f[\cg�W_̂̀bch_f�̀�y[]ĥ[Xh]u�oX[ZW__�̂[�W]_\XW�o[chZa�Z[yoch̀]ZWp�
13 - 64



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

:M:MN��OPQ794QQ�R7549Q79ST�U558P96Q�D4547E=VC4T�=9W�X=QY�D4547?6Q�Z[\]̂_\\�̀]a_̂\]̂b�cde�fghijehh�kilejhe�mgjlnioj�ih�peqmoqres�ft�nuo�ijsivisgwkhx�fond�yejioq�zllogjn�{keq|h}�~eq�������������ghijehh�kilejhe�oqsijwjlex�kilejhij��meeh�wqe�ldwq�es�ghij��w�vwqient�om�rendosh}��ghijehheh�lkwhhimies�wh��ejeqwk�qenwikx�hgld�wh�pqomehhiojwkx�udokehwkex�rwjgmwlngqij�x�oq�heqvile�qekwnes�pwt�w�mee�fwhes�oj�nde�jgrfeq�om�erpkoteeh}��ghijehheh�lkwhhimies�wh�lojnqwlnoqh�oq�fgiksij��nqwseh�wqe�ldwq�es�w�mee�fwhes�gpoj��qohh�qeleipnh}��ghijehheh�udild�lojsgln�fghijehh�ft�vedilke�wqe�ldwq�es�w�mkwn�qwne}��ghijehh�kilejheh�wqe�ihhges�moq�wjjgwkx��gwqneqktx�rojndktx�wjs�swikt�peqiosh}��j�wssinioj�no�nde�fghijehh�kilejhe�meex�fghijehheh�rghn�pwt�w�fghijehh�irpqoverejn�nw�}�cde�fghijehh�irpqoverejn�nw��ih�ldwq�es�no�nde�vwqiogh�fghijehheh�peq�nde�{int�om�yognd�~whwsejw��gjilipwk�{ose�wh�mokkouh���� �wjgmwlngqeqh�rghn�pwt����peqlejn�om�nde�fghijehh�kilejhe�nw��ondequihe�pwtwfke�gp�no�w�rw�irgr�om�ndiqnt�erpkoteeh}�zjt�hgld�fghijehheh�erpkotij��roqe�ndwj�ndiqnt�erpkoteeh�hdwkk�jon�fe�qe�giqes�no�pwt�nde�wssiniojwk�nw��oj�hgld�wssiniojwk�erpkoteeh}���� zpwqnrejnh�rghn�pwt����peqlejn�om�nde�fghijehh�kilejhe�nw��ondequihe�pwtwfke}��� zkk�ondeq�fghijehheh�kilejhes�ft�nde�{int�om�yognd�~whwsejw�rghn�pwt���}��peqlejn�om�nde�fghijehh�kilejhe�nw��ondequihe�pwtwfke}��ore�ollgpwniojh�om�wjt�ntpe�hdwkk�fe�e�lkgses}�cde�{int�pwth�����x����peq�tewq�om�nde�wrogjn�lokkelnes�mqor�nde�fghijehh�irpqoverejn�nw��no�nde�{dwrfeq�om�{orreqle�no�pqovise�fghijehh�irpqoverejnh�qekwnij��no�seloqwnioj�om�wjt�pgfkil�pkwle�ij�nde�wqewx�pqoronioj�om�pgfkil�evejnh�udild�wqe�no�nw|e�pkwle�oj�oq�ij�pgfkil�pkwleh�ij�nde�wqewx�mgqjihdij��om�rghil�ij�wjt�pgfkil�pkwle�ij�nde�wqewx�wjs�nde��ejeqwk�pqoronioj�om�qenwik�nqwse�wlnivinieh�ij�nde�wqew}��ndeq�oje�nire�pwtrejnh�moq�hpeliwknt�pqo�elnh�wqe�wkho�pwis�no�nde�{dwrfeq�om�{orreqle�mqor�fghijehh�irpqoverejn�nw��mgjsh�wh�wgndoqi�es�ft�nde�{int�{ogjlik}�cde�{int�gheh�����homnuwqe�hthner�moq�wsrijihnqwnioj�om�nde�fghijehh�kilejhe�pqo�qwr}�cde�hthner�ghes�moq�ij�doghe�fghijehh�kilejhe�pqolehhij��ih�wj�okseq�����hthner�uind�kirines�lwpwfikinieh}�zh�w�qehgkn�om�w�hnwmm�qekwnes�fwl|ko��ih�������������� ¡¢�£��¡�¤¥¦����§£̈��£�hthner�wjs�lojnqwlnes�uind�����no�pqovise�fghijehh�kilejhe�wsrijihnqwnioj�heqvileh�oj�w�nerpoqwqt�fwhih}�cdih�wqqwj�erejn�wkkouh�moq�ijlqewhes�mgjlniojwkint�wjs�lghnoreq�heqvile�©i}e}x�wfikint�moq�fghijehheh�no�lorpkene�roqe�om�nde�pqolehh�ojkije�wjs�ijlqewhe�hnwmm�no�pqevejn�fwl|ko��ihhgehª}�cdih�heerh�no�fe�w��oos�wqqwj�erejn�ndwn�hdogks�fe�rwse�peqrwjejn�no�ijlqewhe�heqvile�kevekh�moq�lghnoreqh�wjs�whhihn�ij�qehnqglngqij��nde�«ijwjle��epwqnrejn�no�irpqove�emmiliejlt}�
13 - 65



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNO�PQRSTORR�USVOTRO�WXYSTZTVO[�ZU\NWQ]N�TW\�QTŜQO[�RNWQUY�PO�XO_SROY�\W�̀ ZaO�PQRSTORR�USVOTRST]�VZUVQUZ\SWTR�UORR�VẀ bUSVZ\OYc�dO_SRSWTR�eWQUY�TOOY�\W�PO�VẀ bUO\OY�ST�ZVVWXYZTVO�eS\N�f\Z\O�UZeR�XO]ZXYST]�\ZgOR�ZTY�hOOR[�RQVN�ZR�iXWbWRS\SWT�jkl[�eNSVN�YSV\Z\O�R\ObR�TOOYOYc�m\�\NO�PO]STTST]�Wh�\NO�XO_SOe[�\NO�bXWVOYQXO�QROY�ZUUWeOY�PQRSTORROR�\W�hSUU�WQ\�ZbbUSVZ\SWTR�WTUSTO[�PQ\�\NOn�VWQUY�TW\�bZn�WTUSTOc�oWeO_OX[�YQO�\W�\ÒbWXZXn�R\Zhh�XOYQV\SWTR�\NZ\�ZhhOV\OY�\NO�PQRSTORR�USVOTRST]�hQTV\SWT�YQXST]�\NSR�XO_SOe[�\NO�pS\n�VNZT]OY�\NO�bXWVOYQXO�\W�ZUUWe�oqr�\W�̀ZTZ]O�ZTY�bXWVORR�PQRSTORR�USVOTROR�QRST]�ZT�Qb]XZYOY�oqr�VẀ bZTn�RnR\Ò�XÒW\OUnc�MNO�Qb]XZYOY�RnR\Ò�ZUUWeR�PW\N�ZbbUSVZ\SWTR�ZTY�bZǹ OT\R�\W�PO�bXWVORROY�WTUSTOc�oWeO_OX[�YQO�\W�\NO�PQRSTORR�USVOTRST]�hOO�ST\XSVZVSOR�WQ\USTOY[�R\Zhh�̀QR\�ZRRSR\�\NO�PQRSTORR�\W�YO\OX̀STO�\NO�VWXXOV\�hOO�\NZ\�RNWQUY�PO�bZSYc��sTVO�\NO�PQRSTORR�ZbbUSVZ\SWT�SR�XO_SOeOY�ZTY�hQTYR�ZXO�VWUUOV\OY[�\NO�ZbbUSVZ\SWT�SR�hWXeZXYOY�\W�\NO�iUZTTST]�qObZX\̀OT\[�tSXO�qObZX\̀OT\[�ZTY�uZ\OX�qObZX\̀OT\�hWX�ZbbUSVZPUO�ZbbXW_ZURc�MNO�iUZTTST]�qObZX\̀OT\�ZURW�TW\ShSOR�\NO�tSTZTVO�qObZX\̀OT\�Wh�bW\OT\SZU�RQPVWT\XZV\WXR�RW�\NOn�VZT�PO�VXWRRvVNOVaOY�hWX�PQRSTORR�USVOTRO�VẀ bUSZTVOc�sTVO�ZbbXW_OY�Pn�ZUU�ZbbUSVZPUO�YObZX\̀OT\R[�\NO�tSTZTVO�qObZX\̀OT\�TW\ShSOR�\NO�PQRSTORR�ZTY�̀ZSUR�\NO�PQRSTORR�USVOTROc�iOX�R\Zhh[�\NSR�bXWVORR�VWQUY�\ZaO�\eW�\W�RSg�eOOaR�YObOTYST]�WT�PQRSTORR�VẀ bUOgS\n�WX�W\NOX�hZV\WXRc�wQRSTORROR�VZTTW\�WbOT�QT\SU�Z�PQRSTORR�USVOTRO�SR�XOVOS_OYc�qQXST]�\NO�pS\n]Z\O�XO_SOe[�\NO�pS\n�YSRVW_OXOY�\NZ\�RO_OXZU�VNOVaR�XOUZ\ST]�bXS̀ZXSUn�\W�PQRSTORR�USVOTRST]�NZY�TW\�POOT�bXWVORROY�hWX�ZbbXWgS̀Z\OUn�hWQX�\W�hS_O�̀WT\NRc�MNSR�STYSVZ\OR�\NZ\�\NO�bXWVORR�WQ\USTOY�Pn�R\Zhh�ZRRWVSZ\OY�eS\N�\NO�PQRSTORR�USVOTRST]�hQTV\SWT�eZR�TW\�\XQ\NhQU�XO]ZXYST]�\NO�PQRSTORR�USVOTRO�XOVOSb\ST]�bXWVORRc�pS\n]Z\O�SR�QTVOX\ZST�eNO\NOX�\NSR�bXWVOYQXZU�PXOZaYWeT�SR�YQO�\W�STOhhSVSOTVnc�MNOXO�ZXO�TW�hWX̀ZU�PQRSTORR�USVOTRST]�STRbOV\WXR�ZRRS]TOY�\W�\NO�tSTZTVO�qObZX\̀OT\�\NZ\�ZXO�XORbWTRSPUO�hWX�OTRQXST]�\NZ\�PQRSTORROR�ZXO�VẀ bUnST]�eS\N�\NO�PQRSTORR�USVOTRST]�WXYSTZTVOc�MNOXO�SR�Z�bXWVORR[�NWeO_OX[�eNOXO�\NO�hSXO�STRbOV\WXR�ZRa�\W�ROO�\NO�PQRSTORR�USVOTRO�eNOT�Z�hSXO�STRbOV\SWT�SR�VWTYQV\OYc�xS_OT�\NO�\S̀ST]�Wh�\NO�hSXO�STRbOV\SWTR[�PQRSTORROR�VWQUY�PO�WbOXZ\ST]�eS\NWQ\�Z�USVOTRO�hWX�ZT�Og\OTYOY�bOXSWY�Wh�\S̀O�eS\NWQ\�YO\OV\SWTc�pS\n]Z\O�eZR�\WUY�Pn�RO_OXZU�tSTZTVO�qObZX\̀OT\�R\Zhh�\NZ\�Z�PQRSTORR�USVOTRST]�Z̀TOR\n�bXW]XZ̀�eZR�Z\\Òb\OY[�PQ\�S\�eZR�bWWXUn�S̀bUÒOT\OY�ZTY�VZQROY�]XOZ\�YSRRZ\SRhZV\SWT�Z̀WT]�PQRSTORROR�ZTY�R\Zhhc�MNO�pS\n�NZR�ZbbXWgS̀Z\OUn�j[yzz�PQRSTORROR�\NZ\�ZXO�USVOTROY�ZTY�ZV\S_O�ZR�Wh�mbXSU�jzklc�m�UW]�Wh�PQRSTORR�USVOTRO�ZbbUSVZ\SWTR�SR�VXOZ\OY�hWX�ZbbUSVZ\SWT�RQP̀ SRRSWTR�\W�iUZTTST][�tSXO[�ZTY�uZ\OX�qObZX\̀OT\R[�ZTY�SR�̀ZST\ZSTOY�Pn�tSTZTVO�hWX�\XZVaST]�bQXbWRORc�wQRSTORR�USVOTROR�ZXO�XOTOeOY�PZROY�WT�\NO�WXS]STZU�bOXSWY�Wh�\NO�USVOTROc�dOTOeZUR�ZXO�bXWVORROY�̀WT\NUn�QRST]�\NO�oqr�RnR\Òc��{|}~|}�������f\Zhh�ZXO�QRST]�ZT�WQ\YZ\OY�PQRSTORR�USVOTRO�RnR\Ò�eNSVN�bXWNSPS\R�\NO�bXW_SRSWT�Wh�\NO�̀WR\�OhhSVSOT\�ROX_SVO�\W�PQRSTORRORc�
13 - 66



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPNOQ�RSTU�VWX�YZ[\�]̂X_�̀ [̂�WabX�cd_Z̀X__�eZfX̀_Z̀g�Z̀_hXf[̂i_�a__Zg̀X]�[̂�[WX�jZ̀àfX�kXhai[lX̀[�à]�iXeZX_�̂̀ �[WX�mZiX�Z̀_hXf[Ẑ̀ �hîfX__�[̂�Z]X̀[Zm\�d̀eZfX̀_X]�cd_Z̀X__X_n�MNOPNOQ�RSoU�pqr�stuvwx�yzxt{rxx�|t}r{xt{~����t{�{}r���|uq�z~q�{�u�z{t�zr��Z_�b̂Xie\�f̂lheZfa[X]�m̂i�cd_Z̀X__�eZfX̀_Z̀g�faefdea[Ẑ̀ n��������OP��N�O�RSoU�YZ[\�_Ŵde]�dh]a[X�[̂�[WX�̀X���k��_\_[Xl�à]�f̂ [̀iaf[��Z[W��k��[̂�d_X�Z[_�iXl̂ [X�cd_Z̀X__�eZfX̀_Z̀g�hîgial�hXilàX̀[e\n�VWZ_��Zee�_Zg̀ZmZfà[e\�iX]dfX�[WX��̂i�êa]�m̂�[WX�[�̂��X̀Ẑi��ff̂d̀[�YeXi�_��aeê�Z̀g�[WX�ĥ_Z[Ẑ̀ _�[̂�cX�iXhdiĥ_X]�̂i�XeZlZ̀a[X]�[̂�gX̀Xia[X�md̀]Z̀g�m̂i�[̂WXi� ĥ_Z[Ẑ̀ _�]Z_fd__X]� Z̀�[WX�iX_[idf[diZ̀g�iXf̂llX̀]a[Ẑ̀ _�Z̀�[WZ_�iXĥi[n��������OP��N�O�RS�U�VWX�YZ[\�_Ŵde]�f̂ [̀iaf[��Z[W�a�f̂lhà\�_dfW�a_��k��î��d̀Z�XibZfX_�[̂�hîbZ]X�a�cd_Z̀X__�fàba__Z̀g�hîgial�[̂�]X[Xf[�d̀eZfX̀_X]�cd_Z̀X__X_n�VWX�cX̀XmZ[_�̂m�[WZ_�iXf̂llX̀]a[Ẑ̀ �aiX�[WX�Z]X̀[ZmZfa[Ẑ̀ �̂m�d̀eZfX̀_X]�cd_Z̀X__��WZfW�aiX�iXfXZbZ̀g�à�d̀maZi�a]bà[agX�̂bXi�f̂lheZà[�cd_Z̀X__X_��à�Z̀fiXa_X�Z̀�YZ[\�iXbX̀dX��à]�à�Z̀fiXa_X�Z̀�[WX�affdiaf\�̂m�[WX�cd_Z̀X__�]a[aca_Xn��������OP��N�O�RS�U�VWX�cd_Z̀X__�eZfX̀_X�̂i]Z̀àfX�_Ŵde]�cX�iXbZX�X]�à]�iXbZ_X]�[̂�iX]dfX�f̂lheX�Z[ZX_�̂m�cd_Z̀X__�eZfX̀_X�mXX�faefdea[Ẑ̀ �à]�cd_Z̀X__�fa[XĝiZ�a[Ẑ̀ n�VWZ_��Zee�cX̀XmZ[�[WX�YZ[\�c\�ĥ[X̀[Zaee\�aeê�Z̀g�cd_Z̀X__X_�[̂�faefdea[X�[WXZi�mXX_�[WXl_XebX_�[̂�_hXX]�dh�iXfXZh[�̂m�ha\lX̀[�à]�iX]dfX�a]lZ̀Z_[ia[Ẑ̀ �[ZlXn����������� � ¡¢£¤¥ �VWX�cZeeZ̀g�ĥi[Ẑ̀ �̂m�[WX�aff̂d̀[_�iXfXZbaceX�md̀f[Ẑ̀ �Z_�hXim̂ilX]�c\�̂ X̀�hXi_̂ �̀�[WX��àagXlX̀[��__Z_[à[n�VWX�YZ[\�]̂X_�̀̂ [�d_X�a�m̂ilae�cZeeZ̀g�a]bZfX�m̂il�[̂�]XbXêh�aff̂d̀[_�iXfXZbaceX�cZeeZ̀g_n�VWX�jZ̀àfX�kXhai[lX̀[�hî]dfX_�cZeeZ̀g_�ca_X]�̂ �̀XlaZe_�mîl�]Xhai[lX̀[_n�VWXiX�Z_�̀ �̂ĥeZf\�[Wa[�X_[aceZ_WX_��Ŵ�Z_�ad[ŴiZ�X]�[̂�iX¦dX_[�a�cZeeZ̀g�à]�̀ �̂m̂ilae�[iaf�Z̀g�lXfWàZ_l�[̂�]X[XilZ̀X��WX̀�a�cZee�Z_�haZ]�[̂�hiXbX̀[�iXmeXf[Z̀g�a�iXfXZbaceX�̂̀ �[WX�ĉ �̂_�[Wa[�Wa_�aeiXa]\�cXX̀�haZ]��fad_Z̀g�à�̂bXi_[a[XlX̀[�̂m�md̀]�caeàfXn�VWX�aff̂d̀[_�iXfXZbaceX�hîfX__�Z_�aee�làdae�bZa�§�fXe�_hiXa]_WXX[_�à]�̀ [̂�a�m̂ilae�l̂ ]deX�[Wa[�ad[̂la[Zfaee\�ĥ_[_�Z̀[̂�[WX�gX̀Xiae�eX]gXin��_�a�iX_de[��aff̂d̀[_�iXfXZbaceX_�aiX�̀ [̂�ae�a\_�
13 - 67



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQOR�ST�QUO�VOTONPW�WORVON�XYXQOZ[�\]�̂]QOTQSPW�NO_OT̀O�NOM]VTSQS]T�SX�ROWPYOR[�aUO�bSQY�PX�cSQU�Z]XQ�Z̀ TSMŜPW�d̀NSXRSMQS]TXe�]̂ONPQOXe�̂ON�VOTONPWWY�PMMÔQOR�PMM]̀TQSTV�̂NSTMŜWOX�fghhije�̀XSTV�P�Z]RSkSOR�PMMǸPW�lPXSX�]k�PMM]̀TQSTV�k]N�SQX�V]_ONTZOTQPW�k̀TR�PMQS_SQSOX[�m]RSkSOR�PMMǸPW�lPXSX�NOM]VTSnOX�NO_OT̀OX�cUOT�QUOY�PNO�P_PSWPlWO�PTR�ZOPX̀NOPlWO�PTR�NOM]VTSnOX�OôOTRSQ̀NOX�cUOT�QUO�WSPlSWSQY�SX�STM̀NNOR[�pSWWSTVX�QUPQ�PNO�R̀O�Q]�lO�NOMOS_OR�ST�P�XU]NQ�PZ]̀TQ�]k�QSZO�QOMUTSMPWWY�ZOOQ�QUO�NOM]VTSnOR�ROkSTSQS]T�]k�QUO�Z]RSkSOR�PMMǸPW�lPXSX�]k�PMM]̀TQSTV�PTR�XU]̀WR�lO�NOM]NROR[�aUO�bSQY�R]OX�T]Q�UP_O�P�k]NZPW�M]WWOMQS]T�̂]WSMY�k]N�PMM]̀TQX�NOMOS_PlWOX�QUPQ�ROQPSW�QUO�NOq̀SNOZOTQX�]k�QUO�PMM]̀TQX�NOMOS_PlWO�lSWWSTV�̂N]MOXX[�iON�bSQY�XQPkke�QUO�bSQY�R]OX�T]Q�O_OT�UP_O�PT�]̀QXSRO�M]WWOMQS]T�PVOTMY�̀TRON�M]TQNPMQ�Q]�ZPTPVO�ROWSTq̀OTQ�NOMOS_PlWOX[�hRRSQS]TPWWYe�QUONO�SX�T]�P̀QU]NSnPQS]T�̂N]MOXX�ST�QUO�rSTPTMO�sÔPNQZOTQ�Q]�ZSTSZSnO�kNP̀R̀WOTQ�]N�ONN]TO]̀X�lSWWSTVX�lOSTV�ZPSWOR[��hWQU]̀VU�T]Q�X̂OMSkSMPWWY�ZOTQS]TOR�PX�P�k̀TMQS]T�]k�QUO�rSTPTMO�sÔPNQZOTQe�QUO�VOTONPW�WORVON�k̀TMQS]T�PMM̀Z̀ WPQOX�PTR�MPQOV]NSnOX�PWW�kSTPTMSPW�PMQS_SQY�k]N�]̂ONPQS]TPW�NÔ]NQX�k]N�QUO�bSQY[�b]]NRSTPQS]T�]k�QUSX�k̀TMQS]T�SX�QUO�NOX̂]TXSlSWSQY�]k�QUO�rSTPTMO�sSNOMQ]N�PTR�QUO�hXXSXQPTQ�rSTPTMO�sSNOMQ]N[�aUO�mPTPVOZOTQ�hXXSXQPTQ�PWX]�PXXSXQX�cSQU�QUSX�k̀TMQS]T[�hWW�kSTPTMSPW�PMQS_SQY�T]Q�P̀Q]ZPQSMPWWY�̂]XQOR�Q]�QUO�VOTONPW�WORVON�_SP�QUO�]QUON�k̀TMQS]TX�]k�QUO�rSTPTMO�sÔPNQZOTQ�PNO�̂]XQOR�Q]�QUO�VOTONPW�WORVON�_SP�QUO�d]̀NTPW�_]̀MUON�ZOMUPTSXZ[�tTMO�QUO�d]̀NTPW�_]̀MUON�SX�ST̂ Q̀e�QUO�rSTPTMO�sSNOMQ]N�]N�hXXSXQPTQ�rSTPTMO�sSNOMQ]N�PNO�̂N]_SROR�cSQU�QUO�d]̀NTPW�_]̀MUON�cSQU�QUO�X̀^̂]NQSTV�R]M̀ZOTQPQS]T�Q]�P̂ N̂]_O�̂]XQSTV�STQ]�QUO�VOTONPW�WORVON�XYXQOZ[�aUSX�N̂]MOXX�SX�QŶSMPW�k]N�rSTPTMO�sÔPNQZOTQX[�u]cO_ONe�bSQYVPQO�M]̀WR�T]Q�kSTR�O_SROTMO�]k�P�k]NZPW�Z]TQUvOTR�]N�q̀PNQONvOTR�MW]XO[�aUO�Z]TQUvOTR�]N�q̀PNQONvOTR�MW]XO�]k�QUO�VOTONPW�WORVON�N̂]_SROX�QUO�NOX̀WQX�]k�PT�PMM]̀TQSTV�̂ONS]R�Q]�UOŴ�VP̀VO�QUO�RSNOMQS]T�]k�]̂ONPQS]TPW�NOX̀WQX�ST�PR_PTMO�]k�QUO�YOPNvOTR�PTR�PWW]cX�OZONVSTV�]̂ONPQS]TPW�SXX̀OX�Q]�lO�PRRNOXXOR�q̀SMwWY[�xT�NOXOPNMUSTV�̂NS]N�kSXMPW�YOPN�PMQS_SQYe�Z]TQUvOTR�PTR�]QUON�k]NZPW�MW]XOX�cONO�k]̀TRe�l̀Q�XQPkk�RSR�T]Q�wT]c�cUY�QUO�k]NZPW�̂N]MOXX�MOPXOR[��h�MǸMSPW�̂PNQ�Q]�QUO�VOTONPW�WORVON�k̀TMQS]T�SX�lPTw�NOM]TMSWSPQS]TX[�b̀NNOTQ�NOM]TMSWSPQS]TX�]k�QUO�lPTwSTV�PMQS_SQY�Q]�QUO�PMQS_SQY�NOkWOMQOR�ST�QUO�VOTONPW�WORVON�UOŴX�Q]�SROTQSkY�ONN]NX�PTR�]̂QOTQSPW�kNP̀R̀WOTQ�PMQS_SQY[�pPTw�NOM]TMSWSPQS]TX�XU]̀WR�lO�M]Ẑ WOQOR�]T�P�Z]TQUWY�lPXSX�̂ON�lOXQ�̂NPMQSMOX[�bSQYVPQO�RSXM]_ONOR�QUPQ�QUO�bSQY�cPX�PQ�WOPXQ�kS_O�Z]TQUX�lOUSTR�ST�lPTw�NOM]TMSWSPQS]TX[�h�QOẐ ]NPNY�PVOTMY�OẐ W]YOO�cPX�USNOR�lY�QUO�bSQY�̂NS]N�Q]�bSQYVPQO�lOVSTTSTV�QUSX�OTVPVOZOTQe�l̀Q�QUO�lPTw�NOM]TMSWSPQS]TX�PNO�XQSWW�kS_O�Z]TQUX�lOUSTR[�pPTw�NOM]TMSWSPQS]T�yz{|}~�����z�����~�z���~�}�y�~y�}�����z~|��z�����~�~�y�|����y����}y������y�{~z��z�|}y�{��}~�y����z�y�QUNOO�ZPTPVOZOTQ�WOQQON�M]ZZOTQX�ST�P̀RSQX[�xQ�SX�̀T̀X̀PW�k]N�QUSX�SXX̀O�Q]�NOZPST�̀TPRRNOXXOR�|���y����y�~y}z�����z��}|�~yz���{��{z�|���~y��{{�{��y�zy�����|��}��yzy��y����}y�����}~z~�}z��]̂XSQS]T[��UOT�bSQYVPQO�STq̀SNOR�PX�Q]�cUY�M]NNOMQSTV�QUSX�SXX̀O�cPX�T]Q�P�USVU�̂NS]NSQY�]k�QUO�bSQYe�bSQYVPQO�cPX�STk]NZOR�QUPQ�TOSQUON�QUO�rSTPTMO�sSNOMQ]N�T]N�QUO�P̀RSQ]NX�XUPNOR�QUO�P̀RSQ�]N�QUO�ZPTPVOZOTQ�WOQQON�M]���~y���}y��y����}y���z~z��{����kkSMO�]N�QUO�bSQY�b]̀TMSW[�aUSX�SX�
13 - 68



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOP�QRSTUOVRWX�YWQ�WNNQS�TZ�VN�ONSNYO[\NQ�RW�]ZON�QN̂T\�TZ�QNTNO]RWN�R_�ZT\NO�̂OZV̀N]S�NaRST�bRT\�T\N�YUQRTc�defgefh�ijkl�m\NON�RS�WZ�_ZO]Ỳ�YUTZ]YTNQ�Y[[ZUWTS�ON[NRMYV̀N�̂OZ[NSSc�defgefh�ijnl�oZ�NMRQNW[N�bYS�_ZUWQ�Z_�Y�_ZO]Ỳ�]ZWT\pNWQ�ZO�qUYOTNOpNWQ�Y[[ZUWTRWX�̂NORZQ�[̀ZSRWX�RW�ON[NWT�_RS[Ỳ�PNYOSc�defgefh�ijrl�m\N�sRTP�QZNS�WZT�\YMN�Y�_ZO]Ỳ�bORTTNW�QNVT�[Z̀̀N[TRZW�̂Z̀R[Pc�defgefh�ijtl�uZWT\̀P�VYWv�ON[ZW[R̀RYTRZWS�\YMN�VNNW�[ZWSRSTNWT̀P�VN\RWQ�_ZO�T\N�ŶST�T\ONN�_RS[Ỳ�PNYOSc�ẁT\ZUX\�T\RS�_Y[T�\YS�VNNW�[Z]]NWTNQ�ZW�RW�]YWYXN]NWT�̀NTTNOS�_ZO�T\N�̂YST�_RS[Ỳ�PNYOSx�yz{|}~��T\N�]YWYXN]NWT�̀NTTNOS�YWQ�YUQRTS�bNON�WZT�]YQN�YMYR̀YV̀N�VP�T\N��RWYW[N��RON[TZO�ZO�T\N�YUQRTZOS�TZ�T\N�sRTP�uYWYXNOxS��__R[N�ZO�T\N�sRTP�sZUW[R̀�̂ORZO�TZ�VNRWX�RW[̀UQNQ�ZW�T\N�sRT�xS�bNVSRTNc��������fg��e�f�ijrl��NMǸẐ]NWT�Z_�Y�_ZO]Ỳ�YUTZ]YTNQ�Y[[ZUWTS�ON[NRMYV̀N�ÔZ[NSS�S\ZÙQ�VN�[Z]̂ ǸTNQc�m\N�̂OZ[NSS�S\ZÙQ�[ZWTYRW�YW�YUT\ZOR�YTRZW�_ZO]��VR̀̀RWX�YQMR[N��T\YT�]UST�VN�Ŷ ÔZMNQ�VN_ZON�Y�VR̀̀�RS�XNWNOYTNQc�ẁSZ��T\N�̂OZ[NSS�S\ZÙQ�RW[̀UQN�YW�Ŷ ÔZMỲ�̂OZ[NQUON�RW�T\N��RWYW[N��N̂YOT]NWT�TZ�]RWR]R�N�NOOZWNZUS�ZO�_OYUQÙNWT�VR̀̀RWXSc�wQQRTRZWỲ̀P��T\N�Y[[ZUWTS�ON[NRMYV̀N�̂OZ[NSS�S\ZÙQ�VN�YUTZ]YTNQ�USRWX�T\N�[UOONWT�Y[[ZUWTS�ON[NRMYV̀N�]ZQÙN�RW�T\N��̂ORWXVOZZv�_RWYW[RỲ�SPSTN]��R_�YMYR̀YV̀N��ZO�SZ]N�ZT\NO�YUTZ]YTNQ�SPSTN]c�m\N�sRTP�S\ZÙQ�ỲSZ�[ZWTOY[T�bRT\�YW�NaTNOWỲ�[Z̀̀N[TRZW�YXNW[P�TZ�YSSRST�RW�[Z̀̀N[TRZW�Z_�SNORZUS̀P�QǸRWqUNWT�ON[NRMYV̀NSc�m\RS�ON[Z]]NWQYTRZW�bR̀̀�_ZO]ỲR�N�T\N�Y[[ZUWTS�ON[NRMYV̀N�SPSTN]�YWQ�R]̂ OZMN�TR]ǸRWNSS�Z_�ONMNWUN�ON[ZXWRTRZW�YWQ�]RWR]R�N�VR̀̀RWX�NOOZOSc��������fg��e�f�ijtl��NNSTYV̀RS\�Y�_ZO]Ỳ�̂OZ[NSS�_ZO�Y[[ZUWTRWX�̂NORZQ�[̀ZSRWX�ZW�YT� ǸYST�Y�]ZWT\̀P�VYSRSc�m\RS�ON[Z]]NWQYTRZW�bR̀̀�\Ǹ̂�XYUXN�b\NON�ẐNOYTRZWS�YON�\NYQRWX�YWQ�Ỳ̀Zb�_ZO�T\N�QNMǸẐ]NWT�Z_�STOYTNXRNS�TZ�YQQONSS�RSSUNS�VN_ZON�T\N�NWQ�Z_�T\N�_RS[Ỳ�PNYOc��T�bR̀̀�ỲSZ�̂OZMRQN�Y�[ZWSRSTNWT�TZZ̀�TZ�\Ǹ̂�bRT\�ẐNOYTRZWỲ�ÔZ�N[TRZWSc�
13 - 69



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQQNRSTUVPR�WXYZ�[�\]̂_̀a�bcde�f]aacfeg]h�i]agfj�kl]mab�dc�bcnca]icbo�plc�i]agfj�kl]mab�ghfambc�elc�gheĉh̀a�kecik�elc�qgej�rgaa�èsc�dc\]̂c�bcaghtmchfj�gk�kche�e]�̀�f]aacfeg]h�̀uchfjv�rlgfl�fl̀ ûck�̀�\cco�[ak]v�elc�qgej�kl]mab�ch\]̂fc�elc�f]hềfe�̂ctmĝc_che�el̀e�elc�f]aacfeg]h�̀uchfj�kmd_ge�_]helaj�̀fegngej�̂ci]̂ek�e]�elc�qgej�k]�el̀e�elc�f]aacfeg]h�ùchfj�c\\cfegnchckk�f̀h�dc�_]hge]̂cbo��MNOPQQNRSTUVPR�WwxZ�[k�̀�i]agfjv�\gh̀a�̀mbgek�kl]mab�dc�̂cngcrcb�dj�elc�qgej�y h̀̀uĉ�̀hb�îckchecb�e]�elc�qgej�q]mhfgao�[ak]v�elc�qgej�q]mhfga�kl]mab�dc�îckchecb�rgel�̂cki]hkck�̀hb�̀�iàh�e]�̀bb̂ckk�elc�_̀ h̀uc_che�aceeĉ�f]__chek�]\�elc�m̀bgeo�plgk�rgaa�chkm̂c�el̀e�elc�qgej�gk�̀r̀ ĉ�]\�i]echeg̀a�gkkmck�̀hb�fm̂̂che�\gh̀hfckv�rlgfl�rgaa�̀aa]r�elc�qgej�e]�_̀sc�_]̂c�gh\]̂_cb�bcfgkg]hk�plc�qgej�kl]mab�̂cngcr�gek�fm̂̂che�f]hềfe�rgel�elc�czeĉh̀a�̀mbge]̂�e]�chkm̂c�el̀e�elc�gh\]̂_̀eg]h�]\�elc�̀mbge�gk�bgkkc_gh̀ecb�f]̂̂cfeajo�{|}~��������}�plc�f̀kl�flcfsk�f]gh�f̂cbge�f̀ b̂k��f̀kl��̂cfcgiek�̀hb�bci]kgeghu�\mhfeg]h�gk�iĉ\]̂_cb�dj�el̂cc�kè\\��er]��chg]̂�[ff]mhe�qaĉsk�̀hb�elc�[ff]mheghu�pcflhgfg̀ho�plc�er]��chg]̂�[ff]mhe�qaĉsk�̀ ĉ�̀ak]�̂cki]hkgdac�\]̂�elc�megagegck�dgaaghu�\mhfeg]ho�q̀kl�gk�̂cfcgncb�ng̀�r̀as�gh�fmke]_ĉkv�bci]kgek�\̂]_�]elĉ�qgej�bcì ê_chekv�]̂�elc�_̀gao�[aa�f̀kl�gk�î]fckkcb�dj�elc�er]��chg]̂�[ff]mhe�qaĉsk�rl]�̂cf]hfgac�̂cfcgiek�̀hb�a]u�elc�f̀kl�ghe]�elc�\gh̀hfg̀a�kjkec_�]h�̀�b̀gaj�d̀kgko��m̂ghu�qgejùec���̂cngcrv�l]rcnĉv�ge�r̀k�bgkf]nĉcb�dj�elc�qgej�el̀e�elgk�î]fckk�r̀k�h]e�]ffm̂̂ghu�]h�̀�b̀gaj�d̀kgk�̀k�̂ctmĝcbo��cnĉ̀a�flcfsk�rĉc�bgkf]nĉcb�gh�elc�ǹmae�̂]]_�el̀e�rĉc�_̀hj�_]helk�]ab�el̀e�l̀b�h]e�dcch�î]fckkcbo�q̀kl�̂cfcgncb�\̂]_�]elĉ�bcì ê_chekv�czfcie�\]̂�elc��]agfc��cì ê_chev�gk�̂cfcgncb�dj�̀ _̂]̂cb�f̀ ô�plc��]agfc��cì ê_che�l̀hb�bcagnĉk�gek�bci]kge�bmc�e]�gek�î]zg_gej�e]�elc��gh̀hfc��cì ê_chev�dme�b]ck�h]e�̂cfcgnc�̀�ǹagb̀eg]h�̂cfcgie�kguh̀em̂c�\̂]_�elc��gh̀hfc��cì ê_che�̀fsh]racbughu�elc�bci]kgeo�[aa�bcì ê_che�bci]kgek�̀̂c�f]_iacecb�]h�̀�b̀gaj�d̀kgk�̀hb�̀�_̀hm̀a�a]u�gk�scie�]\�elc�bcì ê_chèa�bci]kgek��]haj�elc��]agfc��cì ê_che�kè\\�b]�h]e�̂cfcgnc�k]_c�k]̂e�]\�bci]kge�̂cfcgieo�plc�f̀fm̂̀ fj�]\�b̀gaj�bci]kgek�\̂]_�bcì ê_chek�r̀k�h]e�nĉg\gcb�dj�qgejùec�̀k�elgk�nĉg\gf̀eg]h�gk�]mekgbc�elc�kf]ic�]\�elgk�chùuc_cheo��hbĉ�h]̂_̀a�fĝfm_kèhfckv�]hfc�f̀kl�l̀k�dcch�î]fckkcb�ghe]�elc�\gh̀hfg̀a�kjkec_�dj�elc��chg]̂�[ff]mhe�qaĉskv�̀�î]]\�agke�rlgfl�km__̀ ĝ�ck�̀hb�f̀ecu]̂g�ck�elc�î]fckkcb�f̀kl�gk�îghecb�\̂]_�elc�kjkec_o�plgk�î]]\�agke�̀hb�elc�̀iiagf̀dac�f̀kl�gk�iàfcb�gh�elc�ǹmae�̂]]_o�
13 - 70



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KK�

LMNOPQNR�STURVWRX�NYQN�NYR�WQZ[N�VSS\�Q]X�NYR�UQ̂R�VR\QM]U�S_R]�XZVM]P�NYR�XQÒ�aYMU�MU�Q�bQUY�URbZVMNO�MUUZR�NYQN�]RRXU�NS�TR�QXXVRUURX̀�c_S]�M]dZMVOe�UNQ̂̂�VR_SVNRX�NS�LMNOPQNR�NYQN�XZR�NS�Q�Q̂Z[NO�UQ̂R�bS\TM]QNMS]�\RbYQ]MU\e�NYR�UQ̂Re�S]bR�S_R]RXe�fSZ[X�TR�[R̂N�S_R]�TRbQZUR�S][O�S]R�_RVUS]�Z]XRVUNSSX�YSf�NS�SWRVbS\R�NYR�̂QZ[NO�UQ̂R�bS\TM]QNMS]�\RbYQ]MU\�Q]X�NYQN�_RVUS]�fQU�]SN�Q[fQOU�QWQM[QT[R̀��aYR�gbbSZ]NM]P�aRbY]MbMQ]e�S]�Q�XQM[O�TQUMUe�VRNVMRWRU�NYR�_VSŜ�[MUN�Q]X�UZ__SVNM]P�bQUY�Q]X�VRbSZ]NU�NS�WRVM̂O�NYQN�NYR�bQUY�VRbS]bM[RU�NYR�_VSŜ�[MUǸ�aYR�gbbSZ]NM]P�aRbY]MbMQ]�NYR]�XRWR[S_U�NYR�XQM[O�TQ]h�XR_SUMN�fYMbY�MU�NVQ]U_SVNRX�NS�NYR�TQ]h�WMQ�QV\SVRX�bQV̀��iRNNO�bQUY�QX\M]MUNVQNMS]�MU�Q[US�\Q]QPRX�TO�NYMU�UNQ̂̂�_RVUS]̀�aYRVR�MU�]S�̂SV\Q[�fVMNNR]�_RNNO�bQUY�_S[MbÒ�gU�Q�VRUZ[Ne�NYR�Q\SZ]N�Ŝ�bQUY�M]�_RNNO�bQUY�WQVMRÙ�aYR�Q\SZ]NU�VQ]PR�̂VS\�jkll�NS�jklll�Q]Xe�Q[NYSZPY�NYR�PR]RVQ[�VZ[R�VR[QORX�TO�UNQ̂̂�MU�NS�S][O�VRM\TZVUR�WMQ�_RNNO�bQUY�̂SV�_ZVbYQURU�jml�SV�[RUUe�NYMU�MU�]SN�Q[fQOU�̂S[[SfRX̀�aYR�UNQ̂̂�_RVUS]�M]NRVWMRfRX�TO�LMNOPQNR�NYQN�MU�VRU_S]UMT[R�̂SV�QZXMNM]P�_RNNO�bQUY�TSnRU�̂SV�NYR�Q__[MbQT[R�XR_QVN\R]NU�UNQNRX�NYQN�UYR�fQU�XMVRbNRX�TO�\Q]QPR\R]N�NS�_VSWMXR�fQV]M]PU�NS�XR_QVN\R]NU�NYQN�YQWR�_RNNO�bQUY�TSnRU�VRPQVXM]P�fYR]�UYR�fM[[�TR�QZXMNM]P�TSnRÙ�ô�NYMU�MU�NVZRe�MN�MU�bS]NVQVO�NS�QZXMNM]P�TRUN�_VQbNMbR̀��pqrsqrt�uvwx�aYR�LMNO�XSRU�]SN�YQWR�Q�̂SV\Q[�bQUY�VRbRM_NM]PyYQ]X[M]P�_S[MbÒ�pqrsqrt�uz{x�aYR�LMNO�XSRU�]SN�_VR_QVR�Q�bQUY�̂[Sf�Q]Q[OUMU�S]�Q]�S]|PSM]P�TQUMÙ�pqrsqrt�uz}x�~NQ̂̂�[RQWRU�NYR�UQ̂R�S_R]�XZVM]P�NYR�XQO�XZR�NS�Q�̂QZ[NO�UQ̂R�bS\TM]QNMS]�\RbYQ]MU\̀�pqrsqrt�uzvx�aYR�LMNO�XSRU�]SN�YQWR�Q�̂SV\Q[�_RNNO�bQUY�_S[MbO�NYQN�MU�R]̂SVbRX̀��������rs��q�r�uz}x�g�̂SV\Q[�bQUY�VRbRM_NM]PyYQ]X[M]P�_S[MbO�]RRXU�NS�TR�XRWR[S_RX̀�aYR�_S[MbO�UYSZ[X�M]b[ZXR�_VSbRXZVRU�NYQN�Q[[�LMNO�XR_QVN\R]NU�\ZUN�̂S[[Sf�M̂�bQUY�MU�YQ]X[RX�Q]X�NYR�fQO�bQUY�UYSVNQPRUySWRVQPRU�Q]X�_RNNO�bQUY�QVR�\Q]QPRX̀��Z\RVSZU�\Z]MbM_Q[�̂M]Q]bR�SVPQ]M�QNMS]Ue�UZbY�QU�NYR����g�Q]X�L~���e�YQWR�UQ\_[R�_S[MbMRU�fYMbY�NYR�LMNO�bSZ[X�QXS_Ǹ��������rs��q�r�uzvx�g�bQUY�̂[Sf�Q]Q[OUMU�UYSZ[X�TR�_VR_QVRX�\S]NY[O�NS�QUUMUN�M]�\QnM\M�M]P�M]WRUN\R]N�VRNZV]�Q]X�NS�R]UZVR�[MdZMXMNÒ��
13 - 71



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQQNRSTUVPR�WXXY�Z[\�]̂_̀�a[bcde�̂fg\a_�̂f�h\iĵĥfk�_[\�ajl\�̂f�_[\�m̂fjfn\�o\ijh_p\f_�gjcd_�hbbpq�Z[̂a�r̂dd�jddbr�_[\�ajl\�_b�s\�ndba\e�jfe�dbnt\e�r[\f�fb_�̂f�ca\�ecĥfk�_[\�ej̀�jfe�̂fnh\ja\�nja[�a\ncĥ_̀q�:u:uv�w@=96xy�z67C7674xy�=9{�3?457=C�|@8}456x�~������Z[\�]̂_̀�[ja�bs_ĵf\e�fcp\hbca�khjf_a�jfe�nchh\f_d̀�[ja�â��khjf_a�_b_jd̂fk�jiihb�̂pj_\d̀����p̂dd̂bf�lbh�m�������q��d_[bck[�_[\�scek\_�h\ld\n_a�khjf_a�pjfjk\p\f_�ja�j�m̂fjfn\�o\ijh_p\f_�lcfn_̂bf��fb�bf\�̂f�_[\�o\ijh_p\f_�̂a�ai\n̂l̂njdd̀�jaâkf\e�_b�jep̂f̂a_\h�khjf_a�j_�_[̂a�_̂p\q�Z[\��jfjk\p\f_��fjd̀a_�̂fndce\e�̂f�_[\�m̂fjfn\�o\ijh_p\f_�̂f�_[\�m��������scek\_�rja�h\jaâkf\e������������������������������������� ¡�������jfe�h\_ĵf\e�khjf_�nbbhêfj_̂bf�ec_̂\aq�¢jn[�jiid̂njsd\�e\ijh_p\f_�̂a�_jat\e�r̂_[�pbf̂_bĥfk�̂_a�ai\n̂l̂n�khjf_a�̂f�nbf£cfn_̂bf�r̂_[�_[\��jfjk\p\f_��fjd̀a_�_b�ih\g\f_�_[\�̂fnbfâa_\f_�jfe�\hhbh¤ihbf\�jep̂f̂a_hj_̂bf�_[j_�ih\ĝbcad̀�\�̂a_\eq���lbhpjd��rĥ__\f�khjf_�ibd̂ǹ�r[̂n[�bc_d̂f\a�h\¥ĉh\p\f_a�_b�a\\t�jfe�bs_ĵf�khjf_a��ja�r\dd�ja�jep̂f̂a_hj_̂g\�ec_̂\a�jfe�h\aibfâŝd̂_̂\a��̂a�f\\e\e�lbh�]̂_̀�e\ijh_p\f_aq��d_[bck[�khjf_a�njf�s\�ibâ_̂g\�jfe�s\f\l̂n̂jd��̂l�_[\̀�jh\�fb_�bs_ĵf\e�r̂_[�cfe\ha_jfêfk�jfe�lbh\âk[_��khjf_a�njf�h\acd_�̂f�ncps\habp\�jep̂f̂a_hj_̂g\�h\aibfâŝd̂_̂\a�jfe�bh�pj̀�h\¥ĉh\�r̂_[ehjrjd�lhbp�_[\�¦\f\hjd�mcfe�bh�a\hĝn\�h\ecn_̂bf�r[\f�_[\�khjf_�\feaq���lbhpjd�ibd̂ǹ�r[̂n[�\a_jsd̂a[\a�j�khjf_�h\ĝ\r�ihbn\aa�s\lbh\�khjf_a�jh\�abck[_�r̂dd�[\di�_b�p̂f̂p̂§\�_[\a\�î_ljddaq���̈©ª©�©«��]̂_̀�bi\hj_\e�c_̂d̂_̂\a�̂fndce\��rj_\h��a\r\h��jfe�h\lca\�a\hĝn\aq�¬j_\h�jfe�a\r\h�a\hĝn\a�jh\�ihbĝe\e�s̀�]̂_̀�a_jll�jfe�_[\�]̂_̀�nbf_hjn_a�lbh�h\lca\�a\hĝn\�_b�_[\��_[\fa�]bpijf̀q�Z[\�m̂fjfn\�o\ijh_p\f_�̂a�h\aibfâsd\�lbh�jep̂f̂a_hj_̂g\�ŝdd̂fk�lbh�_[\a\�a\hĝn\aq�Z[\�o\ijh_p\f_�nbf_hjn_a�_[\�ŝdd̂fk�lcfn_̂bf�lbh�rj_\h�jfe�a\r\h�_b�¦dbsjd�o��mj_[bp�jfe��ja�bl�®jfcjh̀����°̄����jdd�h\lca\�ŝdd̂fk�_b��_[\faq�Z[\��_[\fa�nbf_hjn_�djfkcjk\�nbf_ĵfa�j�ndjca\�_[j_�̂a�ihbsd\pj_̂n�h\kjhêfk�h\p̂__jfn\�ij̀p\f_a�jh\�e\_\hp̂f\e�s\_r\\f�_[\�]̂_̀�jfe��_[\faq�Z[\�djfkcjk\�̂a�gjkc\�ja�_b�_[\�ihbn\aa�lbh�h\p̂__jfn\�k̂g\f�_[j_�djfkcjk\�ai\n̂l̀�_[\�ij̀p\f_�njdncdj_̂bf�sja\e�bf�iĥbh�pbf_[�a\hĝn\a�h\fe\h\e�̂f�_[\�iĥbh�pbf_[�r[\f�_[\�]̂_̀�̂a�bf�j�ŝ¤pbf_[d̀�ŝdd̂fk�ǹnd\q�Z[\�rj_\h�jfe�a\r\h�bi\hj_̂bfa�[jg\�jiihb�̂pj_\d̀�±̄°°�nca_bp\ha�jfe�\̂k[_�ŝdd̂fk�ǹnd\a�ŝdd\e�̂f�jd_\hfj_̂fk�ŝpbf_[d̀�ŝdd̂fk�i\ĥbeaq�²\lca\�bi\hj_̂bfa�[jg\�jiihb�̂pj_\d̀�³́°°�nca_bp\ha��r[̂n[�jh\�jdd�ŝdd\e�pbf_[d̀q�Z[\�h\g\fc\�k\f\hj_\e�lbh�rj_\h�a\r\h�jfe�h\lca\�lbh�m���±����rja�jiihb�̂pj_\d̀���°�p̂dd̂bf�jfe��µq́�p̂dd̂bf��h\ai\n_̂g\d̀��lbh�m�������q�Z[\�_rb�¶\f̂bh��nnbcf_�]d\hta�jh\�_[\�iĥpjh̀�h\aibfe\ha�lbh�i[bf\��pĵd��jfe�rjdt¤̂f�a\hĝn\q�Z[\̀�lbddbr�_[hbck[�bf�nca_bp\h�¥c\a_̂bfa��jn_�ja�j�d̂ĵabf�_b�_[\�nbf_hjn_\e�ŝdd̂fk�nbpijf̂\a��ihbn\aa�c_̂d̂_̀�ij̀p\f_a��jfe�i\hlbhp�jf̀�b_[\h�lcfn_̂bf�f\n\aajh̀�_b�jep̂f̂a_\h�_[\�c_̂d̂_̀�ŝdd̂fk�lcfn_̂bfq�̂dd̂fk�ij̀p\f_a�_[j_�jh\�h\n\̂g\e�s̀�_[\�
13 - 72



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOONPQ�RSTUVPNWX�VYW�YWRWNZW[�SP�V�[VNO\�]̂_̀_�̂_�̂�àbcde�acfg_̀e�̀heg�eic�j̀ekl_�]̂hm�̂ddgnhe�VP[�USXoW[�oS�opW�QWPWYVO�OW[QWY�ZNV�V�qSrYPVO�ZSrRpWY�UYS[rRW[�M\�opW�sVPVQWTWPo�tXXNXoVPou�tXXNXoVPo�vNPVPRW�wNYWRoSYu�SY�vNPVPRW�wNYWRoSYx�tOO�UV\TWPoX�YWRWNZW[�ZNV�TVNO�SY�yVOz{NP�VYW�UYSRWXXW[�UWY�opW�RVXp�YWRWNUo�UYSRWXX�SroONPW[�NP�opNX�YWUSYox�tX�V�MVRzrUu�opW�vNOT�|SSY[NPVoSY�VXXNXoX�ypWP�PWRWXXVY\�NP�opW�roNONo\�MNOONPQ�}rPRoNSPx��~������������topWPX�RSPoYVRo�OVPQrVQW�}SY�YW}rXW�RVORrOVoNSP�VP[�YWTNooVPRW�NX�ZVQrWx���������������������tTWP[�opW�topWPX�RSPoYVRo�OVPQrVQW�oS�ROWVYO\�XoVoW�pSy�UV\TWPoX�[rW�oS�opW�|No\�yNOO�MW�RVORrOVoW[�VP[�YWTNooW[x���������������������|SPXN[WY�UOVRNPQ�V�zNSXz�NP�opW�OSMM\�opYSrQp�ypNRp�RrXoSTWYX�RVP�UWY}SYT�XNTUOW�oYVPXVRoNSPX�NPXoWV[�S}�yVNoNPQ�NP�ONPWx��pNX�ySrO[�UYSZN[W�XSTW�YWONW}�oS�XoV}}�VP[�VOOSy�opWT�oS�ySYz�SP�SopWY�MVRz{OSQQW[�VYWVXx�������������������STW�S}�opW�XUWRNVO�UYSqWRoX�TVPVQW[�M\�opW�vNPVPRW�wWUVYoTWPo�NPROr[W�}rWO�OSQ�V[TNPNXoYVoNSPu�ONVNXNPQ�yNop�opW��pNoTVP�|STUVP\�RSPoYVRoW[�oS�TVPVQW�UVYVTW[NR�MNOONPQu�Vr[NoNPQ�|No\yN[W�UWoo\�RVXp�MS�WXu�VP[�rUOSV[NPQ�}NPVPRNVO�NP}SYTVoNSP�NPoS�opW� UWP¡SZ�oYVPXUVYWPR\�USYoVOx�¢VYNSrX�vNPVPRW�wWUVYoTWPo�XoV}}�VYW�YWXUSPXNMOW�}SY�UWY}SYTNPQ�opWXW�}rPRoNSPXx�:£:£¤�¥@4=¦§@̈©ª9E4¦6A496¦��pW��YWVXrY\�}rPRoNSP�NX�TVPVQW[�M\�opW�vNPVPRW�wNYWRoSY�VP[�WOWRoW[�|No\��YWVXrYWYx��pW�|No\�pVX�V�yYNooWP�NPZWXoTWPo�USONR\�ypNRp�}SOOSyX�opW�NPZWXoNPQ�YW«rNYWTWPoX�S}�opW�|VON}SYPNV�¡SZWYPTWPo�|S[W�¡SZWYPTWPo�|S[W�XWRoNSP�¬®̄ x̄u�ypNRp�SMONQVoWX�V�}N[rRNVY\�oS�WPXrYW�opVo°��±²³́µ�¶µ·́ ¹̧¶µº»�¼́¶µ·́ ¹̧¶µº»�½¾¼¿³À̧¶µº»�À¿Á¾¶¼¶µº»�́Â¿³Àµº¶µº»�̧ Ã́ÃÄÅÆÇ�ÈÉ�ÊËÅËÆÄÅÆ�ÌÍÎÃÄÏ�ÐÍÅÑÒÇ�Ë�ÓÉÍÒÓÔÔ�ÒÕËÃÃ�ËÏÓ�ÖÄÓÕ�ÏËÉÔÇ�Ò×ÄÃÃÇ�ÌÉÍÑÔÅÏÔÇ�ËÅÑ�ÑÄÃÄÆÔÅÏÔ�ÍÅÑÔÉ�ÓÕÔ�ÏÄÉÏÍÊÒÓËÅÏÔÒ�ÓÕÔÅ�ÌÉÔØËÄÃÄÅÆÇ�ÄÅÏÃÍÑÄÅÆÇ�ÎÍÓ�ÅÈÓ�ÃÄÊÄÓÔÑ�ÓÈÇ�ÓÕÔ�ÆÔÅÔÉËÃ�ÔÏÈÅÈÊÄÏ�ÏÈÅÑÄÓÄÈÅÒ�ËÅÑ�ÓÕÔ�ËÅÓÄÏÄÌËÓÔÑ�ÅÔÔÑÒ�ÈÐ�ÓÕÔ�ËÆÔÅÏÙÇ�ÓÕËÓ�Ë�ÌÉÍÑÔÅÓ�ÌÔÉÒÈÅ�ËÏÓÄÅÆ�ÄÅ�Ë�ÃÄ×Ô�ÏËÌËÏÄÓÙ�ËÅÑ�ÐËÊÄÃÄËÉÄÓÙ�ÖÄÓÕ�ÓÕÈÒÔ�ÊËÓÓÔÉÒ�ÖÈÍÃÑ�ÍÒÔ�ÄÅ�ÓÕÔ�ÏÈÅÑÍÏÓ�ÈÐ�ÐÍÅÑÒ�ÈÐ�Ë�ÃÄ×Ô�ÏÕËÉËÏÓÔÉ�ËÅÑ�ÖÄÓÕ�ÃÄ×Ô�ËÄÊÒÇ�ÓÈ�ÒËÐÔÆÍËÉÑ�ÓÕÔ�ÌÉÄÅÏÄÌËÃ�ËÅÑ�ÊËÄÅÓËÄÅ�ÓÕÔ�ÃÄÚÍÄÑÄÓÙ�ÅÔÔÑÒ�ÈÐ�ÓÕÔ�ËÆÔÅÏÙÛ�ÜÄÓÕÄÅ�ÓÕÔ�ÃÄÊÄÓËÓÄÈÅÒ�ÈÐ�ÓÕÄÒ�ÒÔÏÓÄÈÅ�ËÅÑ�ÏÈÅÒÄÑÔÉÄÅÆ�ÄÅÑÄØÄÑÍËÃ�ÄÅØÔÒÓÊÔÅÓÒ�ËÒ�ÌËÉÓ�ÈÐ�ËÅ�ÈØÔÉËÃÃ�ÒÓÉËÓÔÆÙÇ�ÄÅØÔÒÓÊÔÅÓÒ�ÊËÙ�ÎÔ�ËÏÚÍÄÉÔÑ�ËÒ�ËÍÓÕÈÉÄÝÔÑ�ÎÙ�ÃËÖx��
13 - 73



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MN�OPQQRSTU�VWX�YZVT[O�ZN\XOVQXNV�]̂_Z̀T�̂PV_ZNXO�VWX�RQ̂ PNVU�VT]XU�RNa�aPSRVẐN�̂b�ZN\XOVQXNV�cdec�cdf�ghci�jek�lmf�cn�hkofmc�hcm�hpqf�jemdr��sWX�YZVT[m�hkofmctfkc�unvcwnqhn�em�nw�xevjd�yz{|�}em�euuvn~htecfqi����r{�thqqhnk�jnkmhmchk��nw��{�r��thqqhnk�hk�cdf��cecf��njeq���fkji��kofmctfkc��lkp��������ekp�euuvn~htecfqi��{�r��thqqhnk�ejchofqi�hkofmcfp�}hcd�xnv�ek��cekqfi��thcd��evkfir��df�ghci��vfemlvfv�epthkhmcfvO�VWX�YZVT[O�R̀VZ\X�ZN\XOVQXNVOU�}dhjd�hm�teke�fp��i�xnv�ek��cekqfi��thcd��evkfi�}hcd�epohjf�wvnt��fmcfvk��mmfc�xeke�ftfkcr��df�hkofmctfkc�jecf�nvhfm�hkjqlpf��nofvktfkc�mfjlvhchfm�ekp�jnvunvecf��nkpmr��df��hkekjf��hvfjcnv�epthkhmcfvm�cdf�uemmhof�hkofmctfkcm�hk�����r������hm�e�onqlkcevi�uvn�vet�jvfecfp��i�mceclcf�hk�{����em�ek�hkofmctfkc�R_VXSNRVZ\X�b̂S�YR_Zb̂SNZR[m�qnjeq��nofvktfkcm�ekp�mufjheq�phmcvhjcm�epthkhmcfvfp��i�cdf��cecf��vfemlvfvr��dhm�uvn�vet�nwwfvm�qnjeq�e�fkjhfm�cdf�nuunvclkhci�cn�uevchjhuecf�hk�e�te�nv�unvcwnqhn�}dhjd�hkofmcm�dlkpvfpm�nw�thqqhnkm�nw�pnqqevm�lmhk��cdf�hkofmctfkc�f~ufvchmf�nw�cdf��cecf�sSXROPSXS[m��wwhjf�hkofmctfkc�mceww�ec�kn�epphchnkeq�jnmc�cn�cdf�ce~ueifvr��df�ghci��vfemlvfv�hm�ek�f~�nwwhjhn�knk�onchk��tft�fv�nw�cdf�YZVT[O��hkekjf�gntthmmhnk�ekp�cdf��hkekjf��hvfjcnv�ejcm�em�mceww�mluunvc�cn�cdf��hkekjf�gntthmmhnkr��XS�VWX�YZVT[O�QPNZ̀Z]R_�jnpf��cdf��hkekjf�gntthmmhnk�hm�e�whof�tft�fv��npi�cdec�hm�epohmnvi�cn�cdf�ghci�gnlkjhq��ghci��vfemlvfv��ekp�cdf�ghci[O��hkekjf��fuevctfkc�hk�teccfvm�nw�whkekjheq���lp�fcevi���ek�hk���ejjnlkchk���qhjfkmhk���ekp�cvfemlvi�teke�ftfkc��ekp�tffcm�cdf�wnlvcd��dlvmpei�nw�fofk�klt�fvfp�tnkcdmr��fv�mceww��nkqi�cdf�ejchof�hkofmctfkcm�evf�uvfmfkcfp�cn�cdf��hkekjf�gntthmmhnk�ekp�ghci�gnlkjhq��levcfvqir��hvfm�jnthk��cn�cdf�ghci�nlcmhpf�nw�cdf�ejchof�hkofmctfkc�evf�teke�fp��i�cdf��hkekjf��hvfjcnv�}hcdnlc�hkulc�wvnt�cdf�ghci��vfemlvfvr��fv�cdf�ghci��vfemlvfv��kn�}hcdpve}eq�wvnt�cdf�ejchof�hkofmctfkc�unvcwnqhn�dem��ffk�vf�lhvfp�hk�cdf�uemc�mfofk�whmjeq�ifevmr���������� ¡¢��df�hkofmctfkc�unqhji�tffcm�£�����fmc�uvejchjfr�¤¥¦§̈ ¥̈��©ª�§��� «¢�¬fohf}�ekp�vfohmf�euuqhje�qf�unqhjhfmuvnjfplvfm�cn�fkmlvf�cdec�cdfi�evf�hk�jntuqhekjf�}hcd�cdf�YZVT[O�hkofmctfkc�unqhjir��¤¥¦§̈ ¥̈��©ª�§��� ®¢�ghci�mdnlqp�pfofqnu�e�wnvteq�jemd�wqn}�ekeqimhm�uvnjfmm�cn�fkmlvf�cdec�hkofmctfkc�nw�hpqf�jemd�hm�te~hth̄fpr�
13 - 74



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

:M:MN�<7CA79O�PQR�STUVTWX�YZW[\T]W�T̂�V_W_XR̀�ab�]WR�̂\_YY�VRVaRcd�\QR�STUV�e]]c̀TW_\]cf�ghhc]iTV_\RUb�jkl�\]�mll�YTUV�hRcVT\̂�_cR�T̂̂ZR̀�_WWZ_UUb�ab�\QR�eT\b�_Ẁ�_UU�cRnZR̂\̂�_cR�[]]c̀TW_\R̀�\Qc]ZXQ�\QR�STUVTWX�YZW[\T]Wf�STUVTWX�TW�\QR�eT\b�Q_̂�̂RoRc_U�cRnZTcRVRW\̂d�pQT[Q�TW[UZ̀R�TŴhR[\T]W�_Ẁ�V]WT\]cTWX�ab�h]UT[R�_Ẁ�YTcR�\]�_̀ c̀R̂̂ �̂_YR\b�_Ẁ�_Z\Q]cTqR̀�U][_\T]W�T̂̂ZR̂f�r]UT[R�_Ẁ�YTcR�R̂coT[R̂�YRR̂�_cR�R̂\_aUT̂QR̀�oT_�\QR�_hhUT[_aUR�U_a]c�_XcRRVRW\̂�_Ẁ�_cR�h_T̀�\Qc]ZXQ�h_bc]UUf�g�R̀acTRYTWX�cRh]c\�T̂�hc]oT̀R̀�\]�\QR�STUV�e]]c̀TW_\]c�Y]c�\QR�[]VhUR\R̀�hc]sR[\f�PQR�STUV�e]]c̀TW_\]c�T̂�cR̂h]ŴTaUR�Y]c�\QR�aTUUTWX�_Ẁ�cR[RTh\�]Y�h_bVRW\̂�\]�_Ẁ�Yc]V�\QR�YTUV�[cRp�[]Vh_WTR̂�Y]c�eT\b�̂RcoT[R̂�hc]oT̀R̀f�gW�RẀ�]Y�hc]sR[\�cRh]c\�T̂�_Û]�V_TW\_TWR̀�\]�_̂̂ T̂\�TW�\QR�cRoTRp�]Y�YZ\ZcR�YTUV�hRcVT\�cRnZR̂\̂f�PQR�YTUVTWX�YZW[\T]W�T̂�W]\�\bhT[_UUb�Y]ZẀ�TW�\QR�STW_W[R�tRh_c\VRW\f�u\�T̂�ẐZ_UUb�Y]ZẀ�TW�R[]W]VT[�̀RoRU]hVRW\�]c�[]VVZWT\b�̀RoRU]hVRW\�cRU_\R̀�̀Rh_c\VRW\̂�̀ZR�\]�T\̂�̂TVTU_cT\b�pT\Q�p]cvTWX�pT\Q�̀RoRU]hRĉf��PQR�hc][R̂̂�Y]c�]a\_TWTWX�_�YTUVTWX�hRcVT\�TW[UZ̀R̂�[]VhUR\T]W�]Y�_W�_hhUT[_\T]W�_Ẁ�]\QRc�cRnZTcRVRW\̂d�pQT[Q�_cR�]WUTWR�TW�\QR�eT\b�YTUV�hRcVT\�h]UT[bf�PQR�_hhUT[_\T]W�[_W�aR�[]VhUR\R̀�]WUTWRw�Q]pRoRcd�h_bVRW\�Y]c�\QR�hRcVT\�T̂�W]\�_UU]pR̀�]WUTWR�̀ZR�\]�\QR�[]VhURiT\b�]Y�\QR�_hhc]o_U�hc][R̂̂f�gUU�h_hRcp]cvd�_hhc]o_Ûd�_Ẁ�h_bVRW\̂�VẐ\�aR�[]VhUR\R�aRY]cR�_�hRcVT\�T̂�cRUR_̂R̀f�PQR�U_̂\�YRR�̂\Z̀b�cRU_\TWX�\]�YTUVTWX�YRR̂�p_̂�[]VhUR\R̀�_hhc]iTV_\RUb�Y]Zc�bR_ĉ�_X]f�PQR�STUV�e]]c̀TW_\]c�_Û]�V_W_XR̂�]\QRc�̀Z\TR̂�TW�\QR�tRh_c\VRW\�_̂�WRR̀R̀d�̂Z[Q�_̂�p_\Rc�aTUUTWX�cR[RTh\̂d�h]̂\_XRd�_Ẁ�\_vTWX�[_UÛf�xyz{||y}~���{}������PQR�YTUVTWX�YZW[\T]W�̂Q]ZÙ�cRV_TW�TW�\QR�STW_W[R�tRh_c\VRW\�ZWUR̂̂�\QR�SP��T̂�cRhU_[R̀�TW�\QR�STW_W[R�tRh_c\VRW\f�gU\Q]ZXQ�\QT̂�_cc_WXRVRW\�T̂�ZWẐZ_Ud�\QR�a_[vZh�cR̂h]ŴTaTUT\TR̂�V_W_XR̀�ab�\QR�SP��TW[UZ̀TWX�hQ]WR̂d�[]ZW\Rc�p]cvd�_Ẁ�]\QRc�[]oRc_XR�̀Z\TR̂�T̂�oRcb�QRUhYZU�TW�_̀ c̀R̂̂TWX�]hRc_\T]W_U�_Ẁ�[Ẑ\]VRc�̂RcoT[R�WRR̀ f̂��]pRoRcd�\QR�\T\UR�]Y�STUV�e]]c̀TW_\]c�̂Q]ZÙ�aR�[Q_WXR�\]��_W_XRVRW\�ĝ T̂̂\_W\�\]�TW[]ch]c_\R�\QR�]\QRc�̀Z\TR̂�aRTWX�hRcY]cVR̀�TW�\QR�STW_W[R�tRh_c\VRW\f�xyz{||y}~���{}����������������������������������������������������������TW[UZ̀TWX�YTUVTWX�hRcVT\�YRR̂�\]�RŴZcR�\Q_\�\QR�eT\b�T̂�[Q_cXTWX�_hhc]hcT_\RUb�Y]c�_UU�_hhUT[_aUR�̂RcoT[R̂f�
13 - 75



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNON� PQRQSTU�VQWTSXYQRXZ[\VQ�\]]̂ Q]�TRV�_̀ ]QSaTX\_R]�:bcbd�36=ee�fghigjklmn�opqrstqu�pvquwxpuyuz�t{{�|u}twq~uvq��qt���tvz�opqr�zu}twq~uvq��utz��wustwzpvs�q�u�}wp�w�{utzuw��p}����q�u��pvtv�u�|u}twq~uvq��|�u�q��q�u���wwuvq�{t������t��pvtv�u�|pwu�q�w��w����p�qtvq��pvtv�u�|pwu�q�w��opqrstqu�t���q�u�pvquwxpuyuu��q��zp������q�u�}wuxp����{utzuw��p}��t��yu{{�t��q�u���wwuvq�{utzuw��p}��y�p�����v�p�q�����tv�t�qpvs��pvtv�u�|pwu�q�w��y���p��t{���q�u���~tv������������������������������������������������ ��������� ��¡�����������¢���££p�u�¤�q���w~uw{r�y�w�uz�pv�q�u��pvtv�u�|u}twq~uvq��tvz{pvs�swtvq��tvz�t��p�qpvs�ypq��¤�zsuq�}wu}twtqp�v��¥t�uz��v�q�u�pvquwxpuy�����t{{�|u}twq~uvq��qt����zu}twq~uvq��utz���q�u�opqr�¦tvtsuw��tvz��q�uw�}uwqpvuvq�opqr��qt����q�u���{{�ypvs�~t§�w���~~�v�q�u~u��wustwzpvs�q�u�}wuxp����{utzuw��p}����q�u�|u}twq~uvq�yuwu�pzuvqp�puz̈�©� ªvtzu«�tqu�u~}{�ruu���}}�wq�©� ªv����p�puvq��v�y{uzsu���twpvs�ypq��u~}{�ruu��tvz��q�uw�zu}twq~uvq���©� ¬t������u~}{�ruu�uv���wtsu~uvq�©� ¬t����������u��p�v�}{tvvpvs���w�u~}{�ruu��©� u{��qtv�u�q��t}}w�xu�qwtpvpvs��w�t{{�y�p~}{u~uvqtqp�v����}w��u���p~}w�xu~uvq��©� ªv��v�p�quvq�t}}{p�tqp�v����w�{u��tvz�}w��uz�wu��©� u{��qtv�u�q��qt�u�zp��p}{pvtwr�t�qp�v�y�uv�vu�u��twr�q����wwu�q�pvt}}w�}wptqu�u~}{�ruu�¤u�txp�w�®�u�u�qwtpq��ū�p¤pquz�¤r�q�u�}wuxp�����pvtv�u�|pwu�q�w��wutquz�t�suvuwt{��uu{pvs����p��{tqp�v��v�q�u�}twq����|u}twq~uvq�u~}{�ruu���®�p��tq~��}�uwu����{z�t{���uv���wtsu�v�v°}w�z��qpxu�u~}{�ruu��q��¤u�uxuv�~�wu�v�v°}w�z��qpxu�¤u�t��u����q�u�¤u{pu��q�tq�q�ur�yp{{�v�q�¤u���v�w�vquz�¤r�{utzuw��p}��®�u�{t�������{utw�tvz�uv��w�uz��pvtv�pt{�}�{p�pu��tvz�}w��uz�wu���t��ūt�uw¤tquz�tv�t{wutzr��v}w�z��qpxu��pq�tqp�v��®�u���~~uvq��wustwzpvs�q�u���wwuvq�pvquwp~�{utzuw��p}��qt���yuwu���~uy�tq���¤z�uz��¤�q�~��q{r�}��pqpxu�tvz���v�pzuwuz�tv�p~}w�xu~uvq��xuw�q�u�}wuxp����{utzuw��p}��¥t�uz��v�q�u���~~uvq��wu�upxuz��pq�p���w��pt{�q�tq�q�u�vuy��pvtv�u�|pwu�q�w��txu��qw�vs�{utzuw��p}���twt�quwp�qp����®�u�pvzpxpz�t{�����{z�¤u��v�y{uzsut¤{u�tvz��txu�q�u�yp{{pvsvu���q����twu�q�tq��v�y{uzsu�tvz�~uvq�w�u~}{�ruu����v�q�uw��ur���twt�quwp�qp��y��{z�¤u�q�u�t¤p{pqr�q���{utw{r�tvz��vzuw�qtvzt¤{r���vxur�pv��w~tqp�v�q��|u}twq~uvq��qt�����q�uw�opqr�zu}twq~uvq���q�u�opqr�o��v�p{��tvz�q�u�}�¤{p���®�u�vuy�zpwu�q�w�����{z�uv���wtsu�yu{{°q���s�q°��q���vqpv�����p~}w�xu~uvq�pzut��tvz�v�q�¤u�t�wtpz�q��qt�u�t}}w�}wptqu�zp��p}{pvtwr�~ut��wu��y�uv�t}}w�}wptqu���
13 - 76



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQRST�UV�WXYZ[Y\]�̂[RVV�_̀abc�defbcgeh�haì̀�jdabckjblhm�i�cbkjbl�g̀�nboicafbda�gobciajgdhm�idp�haì̀jdq�rgfoicjhgdh�ag�gasbc�rgfoicitub�iqbdrjbhm�asb�deftbc�g̀�haì̀�reccbdauv�ieasgcjwbp�̀gc�asb�nboicafbda�hbbfh�ioocgocjiabm�iuasgeqs�ja�jh�gd�asb�sjqsbc�bdp�g̀�asb�cidqbx�yglbkbcm�asb�oghjajgdh�hsgeup�tb�cbhaceraecbp�ag�jfocgkb�nboicafbda�b̀̀brajkbdbhhx�_ppjajgdiuuvm�asb�defbcgeh�fideiu�ocgrbhhbh�reccbdauv�ehbp�tv�nboicafbda�haì̀�eddbrbhhicjuv�jdrcbihb�asb�lgczugip�tecpbdx�{javqiab�tbujbkbh�asia�cbperjdq�asb�fideiu�ocgrbhhbh�ascgeqs�asb�jdrcbihbp�ehb�g̀�asb�|ocjdqtcggz�j̀didrjiu�hvhabf�fgpeubh�ljuu�jdrcbihb�gkbciuu�haì̀�ocgperajkjavx�_�zbv�̀jcha�habo�jh�asia�asb�{jav�edpbchaidph�asb�rioitjujajbh�g̀�asb�̀jdidrjiu�hvhabf�idp�cbkjhb�idp�pgrefbda�asb�iooujritub�j̀didrjiu�gobciajdq�ogujrjbh�idp�ocgrbpecbhx��_ppjajgdiuuvm�asb�{jav�hsgeup�cbkjbl�jah�reccbda�ogujrv�g̀�i�}~���lgcz�hrsbpeub�lsjub�cbfijdjdq�gobd�iuu�tehjdbhh�pivhm�ia�ubiha�jd�asb��jdidrb�nboicafbdax��sjh�ogujrv�rcbiabh�i��hzbubagd�rcbl��jd�asb�nboicafbda�gd��cjpivhx��̀�hgfbgdb�jh�gea�hjrzm�jh�gd�kiriajgdm�gc�sih�id�bfbcqbdrvm�haì̀�rgkbciqb�rid�tb�hbkbcbuv�pjfjdjhsbpm�bhobrjiuuv�ia�asb�rgedabcx�_dgasbc�jhheb�rcbiabp�tv�asb�jdb̀̀jrjbdrjbh�riehbp�tv�asb�defbcgeh�fideiu�ocgrbhhbh�jh�asb�ogabdajiu�dbbp�̀gc�bfougvbbh�ag�lgcz�gkbcajfb�ag�irrgfoujhs�asbjc�peajbhx��bc�jdabckjbl�rgffbdahm�hgfb�haì̀�icb�lgczjdq�gkbcajfb�idp�dga�cbogcajdq�ja�ag�zbbo�eo�ljas�asbjc�lgczugipx�_uasgeqs�asbhb�haì̀�hbbf�ag�tb�pgjdq�asjh�ljas�qggp�jdabdajgdhm�asjh�kjguiabh��bpbciu�uilm�hobrj̀jriuuv�asb��ijc��itgc�|aidpicph�_ram�idp�rid�ubip�ag�ippjajgdiu�rgha�ag�asb�{jav�peb�ag�obdiuajbh�idp�ogabdajiu�uitgc�qcjbkidrbhx��|gfb�goajgdh�ag�rgdhjpbc�jdruepb�cbfijdjdq�gobd�ugdqbc�pecjdq�asb�lbbz�idp�rughjdq�gd��cjpivhm�gc�bujfjdiajdq�asb�}~���hrsbpeub�̀gc�asb�haì̀�fbftbch�cbhogdhjtub�̀gc�rgedabc�hbckjrbx��̀�rgechbm�asbhb�avobh�g̀�rsidqbh�lgeup�cb�ejcb�fbbajdqh�ag�rgd̀bc�ljas�asb�iooujritub�uitgc�qcgeohx��U�R�O��dabckjblh�ljas�nboicafbda�haì̀�cbkbiubp�cbuiajkbuv�ugl�fgciubx��efbcgeh�̀iragch�rgdacjteab�ag�asjh�hjaeiajgdx�|gfb�g̀�asb�zbv�̀iragch�jdruepbp�uirz�g̀�heoogca�̀cgf�asb�̀gcfbc��jdidrb�njcbragc��jdipb�eiab�gc�uirz�g̀�acijdjdqm�tgas�b�abcdiu�acijdjdq�idp�jdabcdiu�rcghh�acijdjdq��edrbcaijdav�peb�ag�asb�pboicaecb�g̀�asb��jdidrb�njcbragc�idp�_hhjhaida��jdidrb�njcbragc��idp�asb�uirz�g̀�rgdhjhabda�ocgrbpecbhx��db�gthbckiajgd�fipb�tv�{javqiab�lih�asia�asb�haì̀�̀bua�asbv�lbcb�jd�i�hjaeiajgd�lsbcb�asbv�sip�ag�fizb�ja�gd�asbjc�gld�ljasgea�sbuo�̀cgf�idvgdbx�{javqiab�heqqbhabp�ag�{jav�fidiqbfbda�asia��jdidrb�haì̀m�ih�̀cb�ebdauv�ih�oghhjtubm�tb�eopiabp�gd�ouidh�asia�lgeup�ì̀bra�asbf�pecjdq�asjh�acidhjajgd�obcjgp�idp�tb�jdkjabp�ag�hsicb�asbjc�gojdjgd�ih�ag�lsia�asb�haì̀�tbujbkbh�jh�dbbpbp�ag�sbuo�asbf�ascgeqs�asb�acidhjajgdx�{jav�fidiqbfbda�haì̀��ejrzuv�irabp�gd�asb�heqqbhajgdm�idp�ja�hbbfbp�ag�sikb�fipb�i�oghjajkb�rsidqb�jd�gkbciuu�fgciubx����UNQS[Y�Y[T�{javqiab�sih�gthbckbp�asia�haì̀�ocgperajkjav�jh�cbperbp�peb�ag�asb�uirz�g̀�acijdjdqm�jdrgdhjhabda�gc�dgd�b�jhabda�lcjaabd�ogujrjbh�idp�ocgrbpecbhm�idp�asb�jdb̀̀brajkb�ehb�g̀�asb�|ocjdqtcggz�̀jdidrjiu�
13 - 77



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNMOPQR�STUVT�WPMXYOM�UZ�OTP�XMP�[\�UZP\\UVUPZO�Q]ZX]Y�̂W[VPMMPM_�̀Z[OTPW�]WP]�OT]O�T]M�]Z�]abPWMP�UQ̂ ]VO�[Z�̂W[aXVOUbUON�UM�[XOa]OPa�]Za�bPWN�cPZPW]Y�d[e�aPMVWÛOU[ZM_�f[e�aPMVWÛOU[ZM�MT[XYa�eP�UZ�MX\\UVUPZO�M̂PVU\UVUON�O[�PZMXWP�P]VT�PQ̂ Y[NPP�XZaPWMO]ZaM�OTP�cPZPW]Y�WPM̂[ZMUeUYUOUPM�]Za�aXOUPM�\[W�STUVT�TPgMTP�SUYY�eP�TPYa�]VV[XZO]eYP_�h]cXP�[W�[XOa]OPa�d[e�aPMVWÛOU[ZMR�]O�]�QUZUQXQR�YP]a�O[�MO]\\�V[Z\XMU[Z�WPc]WaUZc�OTPUW�WPM̂PVOUbP�WPM̂[ZMUeUYUOUPM�eXO�V]Z�]YM[�YP]a�O[�Q]ZÛXY]OU[Z�eN�MO]\\�O[�]b[Ua�]VV[XZO]eUYUON�eN�cW]ZOUZc�OTPQ�]Z�PiVXMP�\[W�]eMO]UZUZc�\W[Q�]�M̂PVU\UV�O]Mj�ePV]XMP�UO�UM�Z[O�̂]WO�[\�OTP�d[e�aPMVWÛOU[Z_�k[�Q]UZO]UZ�V[Z\UaPZOU]YUONR�lUONc]OP�aUa�Z[O�WPbUPS�Pb]YX]OU[Z�a[VXQPZO]OU[Z�[\�OTP�mP̂]WOQPZO�MO]\\n�T[SPbPWR�lUONc]OP�S]M�UZ\[WQPa�eN�lUON�MO]\\�OT]O�OTP�lUON�ePc]Z�XMUZc�OTP�oP[p[b�Pb]YX]OU[Z�̂W[cW]Q�O[�T]bP�PQ̂ Y[NPP�Pb]YX]OU[ZM�UZVYXaP�c[]YM�]Za�[edPVOUbPM_�lT]ZcPM�WPY]OUZc�O[�OTUM�]WP]�SUYY�WPqXUWP�OTP�lUON�O[�QPPO�]Za�V[Z\PW�SUOT�Y]e[W�cW[X̂M_�rstuvwxy�zxy{|}x�lXMO[QPW�MPWbUVP�MT[XYa�eP�]�bPWN�TUcT�̂WU[WUON�\[W�QXZUVÛ]Y�\UZ]ZVP�aP̂]WOQPZOM�]M�UO�UM�[ZP�[\�~�����~�������~�����������������������~���VXMO[QPW���~����������~����~�����������������������~����Z[ZP�[\�OTP�aP̂]WOQPZOM�T]bP�PMO]eYUMTPa�]Za�a[VXQPZOPa�c[]YM�]Za�[edPVOUbPM�WPc]WaUZc�T[S�OTPN�]WP�]VTUPbUZc�OTUM�[W�]ZN�[\�OTP�V[WP�lUON�b]YXPM_��[QP�[\�OTP�[̂PW]OU[Z]Y�UMMXPM�]abPWMPYN�]\\PVOUZc�VXMO[QPW�MPWbUVP�[eMPWbPa�eN�lUONc]OP�UZVYXaP�VXQePWM[QP�Q]ZX]Y�[̂PW]OU[Z]Y�Ŵ[VPaXWPMR�XZOUQPYN�̂W[aXVOU[Z�[\�\UZ]ZVU]Y�WP̂[WOM�\[W�lUON�aP̂]WOQPZOM�]Za�WPMUaPZOMR�]Za�~�����~����������~���~�������������������~������������������������������~��������~��������O[QPW�MPWbUVP�V[WP�b]YXP_������� �¡¢£¤�kTP�lUON�a[PM�Z[O�T]bP�]�̂W[VPMM�\[W�aP̂]WOQPZOM�O[�aPbPY[̂�c[]YM�]Za��¥¦���~��������������������~������~��~����O]OPQPZO�]Za�V[WP�b]YXPM_�§̈©ª««̈ ��¬�ª��¡®̄¤�mPbPY[̂�]�̂W[VPMM�OT]O�WPqXUWPM�aP̂]WOQPZOM�O[�aPbPY[̂�c[]YM�]Za�[edPVOUbPM�������������������~������~��~���MO]OPQPZO�]Za�V[WP�b]YXPM_�kTP�SUYY�TPŶ�OTP�°UZ]ZVP�mP̂]WOQPZO�]Za�[OTPW�aP̂]WOQPZOM�aPQ[ZMOW]OP�OTPUW�~��~�~�����������������������~������~����~��_�±vux²u|³́�µx¶³yuwx²u�·xvy̧³²|¹³u|v²�ỲOT[XcT�OTP�ZXQePW�[\�MO]\\�MPPQM�O[�eP�]aPqX]OP�\[W�OTP�mP̂]WOQPZOR�]�WPMOWXVOXWUZc�[\�OTP�mP̂]WOQPZO�]Za�]̂ Ŵ[̂WU]OP�d[e�aPMVWÛOU[ZM�MT[XYa�eP�V[ZMUaPWPa_�̀ �WPbUPS�[\�b]WU[XM�V[Q̂ ]W]eYP�VUOUPM�WP\YPVOM�b]WU[XM�aP̂]WOQPZO]Y�MOWXVOXWPM�\[W�OTP�mP̂]WOQPZOR�eXO�bPWN�\PS�SUOT�]�MO]\\�MUºP�]Za�pPZPW]Y�°XZa�eXacPO�[\�OTP�lUON�WPO]UZ�OTP�̂[MUOU[Z�[\�mP̂XON�[W�̀MMUMO]ZO�°UZ]ZVP�mUWPVO[W_�kTP�d[e�aPMVWÛOU[Z�\[W�OTP�̀MMUMO]ZO�°UZ]ZVP�mUWPVO[W�\[W�OTP�lUON�V[ZO]UZM�OTP�aXOUPM�ON̂UV]Y�[\�OT]O�[\�]Z�]VV[XZOUZc�Q]Z]cPW�[W�\UMV]Y�MPWbUVPM�Q]Z]cPW�UZ�[OTPW�V[Q̂ ]W]eYP�
13 - 78



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNONPQR�SOTPU�QOVWW�MTVXYPQ�VUP�VZQ[�UPM[\\PX]P]�O[�TPẐ�NXMUPVQP�[_PUVZZ�PWWNMNPXM̀�[W�OTP�aP̂VUO\PXOR�b]]NON[XVZZ̀c�OTP�MdUUPXO�]N_NQN[XQ�[U�WdXMON[XVZ�VUPVQ�[W�OTP�aP̂VUO\PXO�M[dZ]�eP�UP_NQP]�O[�eP�\[UP�]PQMUN̂ON_P�VX]�\[UP�PWWPMON_PR�fghijjgklmnoik�pqrs�tTP�uNÒ�QT[dZ]�M[XQN]PU�UPQOUdMOdUNXY�OTP�]N_NQN[XQ�VX]�Q[\P�[W�OTP�̂[QNON[XQ�NX�OTP�vNXVXMP�aP̂VUO\PXOR�tTP�W[ZZ[wNXY�NQ�V�ZNQO�[W�QdYYPQOP]�]N_NQN[X�VX]�̂[QNON[X�UPQOUdMOdUPQR�x\̂ ZP\PXOVON[X�[W�OTNQ�UPM[\\PX]VON[X�wNZZ�eUNXY�OTP�uNÒ�[W�y[dOT�zVQV]PXV�NX{ZNXP�wNOT�M[\̂ VUVeZP�MNONPQc�wTNMT�M[dZ]�TPẐ�NX�UPMUdNO\PXO�VX]�NXOPUXVZ�MU[QQ{OUVNXNXYR�� |}R}� uTVXYP�bQQNQOVXO�vNXVXMP�aNUPMO[U�̂[QNON[X�O[�vNQMVZ�yPU_NMPQ�~VXVYPUR�tTP�]dONPQ�w[dZ]�eP�̂UPOÒ�\dMT�OTP�QV\P�VQ�OT[QP�NX�OTP�MdUUPXO��[e�]PQMUN̂ON[X�wNOT�OTP�V]]NON[XVZ�[W�M[XOUVMO�\[XNO[UNXY�[X�V�uNÒwN]P�eVQNQ�O[�TPẐ�V]TPUPXMP�O[�M[XOUVMONXY�̂[ZNMNPQR�� |}R�� uTVXYP�dXN�dP�̂[QNON[XQ�QdMT�VQ�vNZ\��NVNQ[X�VX]�zV̀U[ZZ�u[[U]NXVO[U�O[�\[UP�YPXPUVZZ̀�ONOZP�̂[QNON[XQ�wTPUP�OTP�]dONPQ�MVX�eP�MdQO[\N�P]�VQ�XPP]P]R�bX�P�V\̂ ZP�w[dZ]�eP�O[�N]PXONẀ�bMM[dXO�tPMTXNMNVXQ�NX�V�QPUNPQ��NRPRc�bMM[dXO�tPMTXNMNVX�xc�bMM[dXO�tPMTXNMNVX�xxc�POMR�R�tTP�MdUUPXO�bMM[dXO�tPMTXNMNVX�TVX]ZNXY�VMM[dXOQ�̂V̀VeZP�w[dZ]�VZQ[�eP�NXMZd]P]�NX�OTNQ�bMM[dXO�tPMTXNMNVX�QPUNPQR�tTNQ�w[dZ]�VQQNQO�NX�UPMUdNO\PXO�VX]�PXM[dUVYP�MU[QQ{OUVNXNXY�VX]�QTVUNXY�[W�N]PVQ�ePOwPPX�ZN�P�̂[QNON[XQR�
13 - 79



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

� MNOP� QR�STU�VWSX�YUZWYU[�S\�Z\]Ŝ_ZS�̀WST�abc�S\�dÛe_]U]SfX�_YeW]W[SÛ�STU�gh[W]U[[�fWZU][U�d̂\î_e�_dd̂\jWe_SUfX�kl�dÛZU]S�\R�STU�̀ \̂mf\_Y�R\̂�U_ZT�\R�STU�nU]W\̂�oZZ\h]S�VfÛm�d\[WSW\][�̀\hfY�gU�UfWeW]_SUYO�pTU�VWSX�[T\hfY�Z\][WYÛ�UfWeW]_SW]i�STU�nU]W\̂�oZZ\h]S�VfÛm�d\[WSW\][�_]Y�ẐU_SW]i�d\[WSW\]�\R�Vh[S\eÛ�nÛqWZU�rUd̂U[U]S_SWqU[O�bhSWU[�̀\hfY�W]ZfhYU�d̂We_̂X�Z\h]SÛ�[hdd\̂S�_]Y�_YeW]W[Ŝ_SW\]�[hdd\̂S�\R�STU�Z\]Ŝ_ZSUY�gWffW]i�Rh]ZSW\][s�W]ZfhYW]i�̀ _SÛ�_]Y�[ÙÛt�̂URh[Ut�Z_[T�̂UZUWdSW]iO�pTU�[_qW]i[�R̂\e�STU�UfWeW]_SW\]�\R�S̀\�nU]W\̂�oZZ\h]S�VfÛm[�_]Y�STU�ẐU_SW\]�\R�_�Vh[S\eÛ�nÛqWZU[�rUd̂U[U]S_SWqU�Z\hfY�d_X�R\̂�STU�e_u\̂WSX�\R�_]�oZZ\h]S_]S�d\[WSW\]�S\�TUfd�e_W]S_W]�hd�S\�Y_SU�g_]m�ÛZ\]ZWfW_SW\][�u\ĥ]_f�q\hZTÛ[t�e\]STvU]Yt�wh_̂SÛvU]Yt�_]Y�XU_̂vU]Y�iU]Û_f�fUYiÛ�Zf\[W]i�d̂\ZUYĥU[t�STU�Voxrt�USZO�S\�U][ĥU�ST_S�STU�\STÛ�YUd_̂SeU]S[�_]Y�VWSX�V\h]ZWf�T_qU�Zĥ̂U]S�_]Y�_ZZĥ_SU�RW]_]ZW_f�W]R\̂e_SW\]�\]�̀TWZT�S\�g_[U�YUZW[W\][O�� MNOM� nW]ZU�STÛU�_̂U�Zĥ̂U]SfX�\STÛ�y_]_iUeU]S�o[[W[S_]S[�ẀSTW]�STU�VWSX�_]Y�STU�u\g�YU[ẐWdSW\][�Z\]S_W]�ZfÛWZ_f�_]Y�Z\h]SÛv̂Uf_SUY�YhSWU[t�WS�W[�̂UZ\eeU]YUY�ST_S�STW[�d\[WSW\]�̂Ue_W]�_[�W[O�pTU�YWqW[W\]�̂U[ŜhZSĥU�̀\hfY�Z\][W[S�\R�STU�R\ff\̀W]iz�{|}~�~�����~���� xW]_]ZU�bŴUZS\̂t�xW[Z_f�nÛqWZU[�y_]_iÛt�y_]_iUeU]S�o[[W[S_]S�{������~���� oZZ\h]S�pUZT]WZW_]�QQv�_X̂\fft�oZZ\h]S�pUZT]WZW_]�Q���oZZ\h]S[��_X_gfUt�����oZZ\h]S_]S�Q���������������}�����Vh[S\eÛ�nÛqWZU�rUd̂U[U]S_SWqUt�oZZ\h]S�pUZT]WZW_]�QQ������������������������o�[S_RR�̂UqW[W\]�[hiiU[SW\]�̀TWZT�Y\U[�]\S�W]q\fqU�[S_RRW]i�fUqUf[�̀WSTW]�STU�bUd_̂SeU]St�ghS�\̀hfY�W]YŴUZSfX�_[[W[S�STU�\dÛ_SW\][�\R�STU�bUd_̂SeU]St�W[�S\�ẐU_SU�_�d\[WSW\]�̀ T\[U�Û[d\][WgWfWSWU[�̀\hfY�W]ZfhYU�[dUZW_f�d̂\uUZS[t�[hZT�_[�_[[W[SW]i�̀WST�STU�ghYiUS�d̂Ud_̂_SW\]t�ÛqWÙW]i�\̂i_]W�_SW\]_f�URRUZSWqU]U[[�ST̂\hiT\hS�STU�VWSXt�_YeW]W[Ŝ_SW]i�_]Y�Z\\̂YW]_SW]i�
13 - 80



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQR�OSTUVNWX�YZ�Q[W�\ONV]UR�XŴONQ_WPQR̀�OPX�SNWOQVPM�O�aVQZbVXW�MNOPQ�̂]cVSZ�]N�]Q[WN�]̂cVSVWRd̂N]SWXUNWR�XWQWN_VPWX�Q]�YW�PWWXWX�OR�O�NWRUcQ�]e�̂WNV]XVS�]̂WNOQV]POc�NW\VWbR�bVQ[VP�aVQZ�XŴONQ_WPQRf�gQ�VR�hijkllimnin�opqo�oprs�tksrorkm�ui�q�tqho�kv�opi�wrox�yqmqzih{s�kvvrji|�}rop�s~vvrjrimo�q~opkhrox�ophk~zp�opi�wrox�yqmqzih�ok�ims~hi�opi�tksrorkm�rs�tqho�kv�opi�wrox{s�lqmqzilimo�oiql��yq�rmz�oprs�tksrorkm�tqho�kv�opi�wrox�yqmqzih{s�kvvrji�}r���q��k}�vkh�iqRZ�N]QOQV]P�O_]PM�XŴONQ_WPQR�b[WP�S]_̂ cWQVPM�\ONV]UR�aVQZbVXW�]N�XŴONQ_WPQ�R̂WSVeVS�̂N]�WSQRf��[VR�bVcc�ORRVRQ�Q[W��VPOPSW��ŴONQ_WPQ�bVQ[�WPRUNVPM�̂]cVSVWR�ONW�YWVPM�e]cc]bWX�VP�Q[W�XŴONQ_WPQR̀�R[ONW�Q[W�YUNXWP�]e�YUXMWQ�XW\Wc]̂_WPQ̀�ORRVRQ�bVQ[�RUN̂NVRW�OUXVQR�Q[OQ��ŴONQ_WPQ�RQOee�S]UcX�P]Q�S]_̂ cWQẀ�OPX�̂N]\VXW�OP�]̂VPV]P�Q[OQ�VR�W�QWNPOc�Q]�Q[W��VPOPSW��ŴONQ_WPQ�]P�]̂WNOQV]POc�VRRUWRf���������������������whiqoi�q�tksrorkm�}roprm�opi�wrox�yqmqzih{s�kvvrji�opqo�b]UcX� ]\WNRWW� R̂WSVOc� aVQZbVXW� ]̂WNOQV]POc�V_̂ N]\W_WPQ�̂N]�WSQRf��[VR�b]UcX�YWPWeVQ�Q[W�aVQZ�YZ�N̂]\VXVPM�NWR]UNSWR�Q[OQ�S]UcX�YW�XWXVSOQWX�Q]�\ONV]UR�R̂WSVOc�̂N]�WSQR�OR�PWSWRRONZ�Q]�V_̂ N]\W�aVQZbVXW�]NMOPV�OQV]POc�WeeWSQV\WPWRRf��[VR�̂]RVQV]P�S]UcX�OcR]�ORRVRQ�Q[W��VPOPSW��ŴONQ_WPQ�bVQ[�̂WNV]XVS�eVPOPSW�NWcOQWX�̂N]�WSQR�OPX�[Wĉ�Q]�_]PVQ]N��ŴONQ_WPQOc�OX[WNWPSW�Q]�Q[W�aVQZ{s�eVPOPSVOc�̂]cVSVWRf��]QWPQVOc�QVQcWR�e]N�Q[VR�̂]RVQV]P�VPScUXW��NMOPV�OQV]POc��eeWSQV\WPWRR��OPOMWN�]N��̂WNOQV]POc�g_̂ N]\W_WPQ��OPOMWNf��[W�]̂RVQV]P�R[]UcX�YW�OQ�O�aVQZ�_OPOMW_WPQ�QWO_�cW\Wc�Q]�VPQWNOSQ�bVQ[�XŴONQ_WPQ�[WOXR�OR�PWSWRRONZf�:���:�<79=957=C��=9=�4A496�38�6F=@4�=9 �¡¢£7?A496��[W��VPOPSW��ŴONQ_WPQ�UQVcV�WR�RW\WNOc�XVeeWNWPQ�eVPOPSVOc�_OPOMW_WPQ�R]eQbONW�̂OS¤OMWRf��[W�XVeeWNWPQ�̂OS¤OMWR�ONW�¥̂NVPMYN]]¤�e]N�MWPWNOc�eVPOPSẀ�¦�§�e]N�YURVPWRR�cVSWPRWR̀�̈c]YOc�e]N�bOQWN�OPX�RWbWN�UQVcVQZ�YVccVPM̀�©ª©�e]N�bOQWN�OPX�RWbWN�̂OZ_WPQR̀�«WPXWR¤�e]N�bOQWN�RWbWN�OX�URQ_WPQR̀�ag¥�e]N�bOQWN�RWbWN�̂OZ_WPQ�OSQV\VQZ�c]]¤Û �̀aVQZ¬]N¤R�e]N�b]N¤�]NXWNR�NWcOQVPM�Q]�bOQWN�OPX�RWbWN�̂N]�WSQR̀�OPX��̂WP̈]\�e]N��ŴONQ_WPQ�QNOPR̂ONWPSZ�VPe]N_OQV]P�e]N�Q[W�̂UYcVSf�®̄°±²³̄´́µ��[W�¥̂NVPMYN]]¤�S]_̂ OPZ�bOR�OSTUVNWX�VP�ª¶·̧�YZ�¹SSWcOf��[W�¥̂NVPMYN]]¤�eVPOPSVOc�RZRQW_�VP�¥]UQ[��OROXWPO�VPScUXWR�º� ẄPWNOc�cWXMWN�º� �OZN]cc�
13 - 81



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KK�

L� MNNOPQRS�TUVUWXY�L� ZUS[�\YNY]̂RS�L� TP_N[US]Q̀�a[Y�WPb̀YR�UQb�ZMc\�]S�bYdYXÔYb�PS]Q̀�U�NOeW]QUR]OQ�Of�g]N_OSOfR�hiNYX�UQb�jO_bk�a[Y�l̂_]Q̀W_OOm�f]QUQN]UX�SVSRYe�bOYS�OffY_�eObPXYS�R[UR�nOPXb�eUQÙY�WPb̀YR�UQb�ZMc\�_̂ObPNR]OQ�n[]N[�nOPXb�[YX̂�̂_Od]bY�NOQS]SRYQNV�UQb�ÔY_UR]OQUX�Yff]N]YQN]YS�_YSPXR]Q̀�f_Oe�R[Y�YX]e]QUR]OQ�Of�eUQPUX�̂_ONYSSYS�R[UR�]QN_YUSY�R[Y�̂ORYQR]UX�fO_�[PeUQ�Y__O_k�a[Y�Z]RV�P̂bURYb�R[Y�l̂_]Q̀W_OOm�SOfRnU_Y�RnO�VYU_S�ÙO�WPR�QOR�UXX�̂ORYQR]UX�PSY_S�nY_Y�R_U]QYb�RO�PSY�R[Y�P̂ _̀UbYb�SVSRYek�Mbb]R]OQUXXVo�̂Y_�dU_]OPS�b]SNPSS]OQo�]R�SYYeS�YdYQ�R[Y�]Qb]d]bPUXS�R_U]QYb�OQ�R[Y�P̂ _̀UbYb�SVSRYe�nY_Y�QOR�R_U]QYb�OQ�UXX�Of�R[Y�NÛUW]X]R]YS�Of�R[Y�SVSRYek�ZOQSYpPYQRXVo�SRUff�PSYb�R[Y�P̂ _̀UbYb�SVSRYe�US�R[YV�b]b�n]R[�R[Y�OXb�SVSRYe�n]R[OPR�RUm]Q̀�UbdUQRÙY�Of�R[Y�QYn�SVSRYe�NÛUW]X]R]YSk�l̂_]Q̀W_OOm�S[OPXb�WY�W_OP̀[R�WUNm�RO�R[Y�Z]RV�RO�̂_Od]bY�R_U]Q]Q̀�OQ�UXX�R[Y�eObPXYS�UQb�NÛUW]X]R]YS�UdU]XUWXY�OQ�R[Y�P̂ _̀UbYb�SVSRYe�SOXb�RO�R[Y�Z]RVk�Mbb]R]OQUXXVo�UXX�ÔRYQR]UX�PSY_S�S[OPXb�WY�R_U]QYbqQOR�rPSR�c]QUQNY�sŶU_ReYQR�SRUffk�a[]S�n]XX�[YX̂�RO�eUi]e]tY�Yff]N]YQN]YS�f_Oe�R[Y�PSY�Of�R[Y�SVSRYe�US�nYXX�US�[YX̂�RO�bYRY_e]QY�]f�U�b]ffY_YQR�f]QUQN]UX�SOfRnU_Y�SVSRYe�]S�QYYbYbk�uvwxy�z{|}|~{}�����v�}yx�a[Y��s�o��XOWUXo����o��YQbYSmo�Z�lo�UQb�Z]RVjO_mS�SVSRYeS�U_Y�_YpP]_Yb�RO�WY�PSYb�̂Y_�R[Y�R[]_b�̂U_RV�NOê UQV�R[UR�R[Y�Z]RV�NOQR_UNRS�n]R[�RO�̂_Od]bY�nURY_�UQb�SYnY_�W]XX]Q̀�UQb�_YNY]̂R]Q̀�SY_d]NYSk�a[Y�Z]RV�S[OPXb�bYRY_e]QY�]f�R[Y_Y�U_Y�UQV�SOfRnU_Y�P̂bURYS�fO_��XOWUX�R[UR�nOPXb�̂_Od]bY�]QN_YUSYb�NÛUW]X]R]YS�UQb�Yff]N]YQNVk�a[Y��̂YQ�Od�SVSRYe�]S�U�SOfRnU_Y�̂UNmÙY�R[UR�]S�PSYb�WV�SYdY_UX�N]R]YS�RO�̂_Od]bY�f]QUQN]UX�N]RV�]QfO_eUR]OQ�]Q�U�PQ]fO_e�fO_eUR�fO_�R[Y�̂PWX]Nk�:�����<7�5=C��8C754��Z]RV̀URY�]bYQR]f]Yb�SYdY_UX�n_]RRYQ�f]SNUX�̂OX]N]YS�n[]XY�_Yd]Yn]Q̀�dU_]OPS�Z]RV�bONPeYQRSk�cO_�R[Y�eOSR�̂U_Ro�[OnYdY_o�R[Y�Z]RV�SYdY_YXV�XUNmS�NOê _Y[YQS]dYo�fO_eUXo�n_]RRYQ�f]SNUX�UQb�OR[Y_�ÔX]N]YSk�a[Y�WPb̀YR�bONPeYQRo�fO_�YiUê XYo�NOQRU]QS�f]SNUX�̂OX]N]YS�R[UR�NOQS]SR�̂_]eU_]XV�Of�ÔX]NV�SRURYeYQRSo�SPN[�US�WUXUQNYb�WPb̀YR�_YpP]_YeYQRo��YQY_UX�cPQb�_YSY_dYSo�bYWRo�UQb�f]QUQN]UX�eUQÙYeYQRk�Z]RV̀URY�UXSO�fOPQb�UQ�OPRbURYb�UQb�]QNOê XYRY�Mbe]Q]SR_UR]dY�TOX]NV�gUQPUX��MTg�k�a[]S�MTg�]S�]Q�U�fO_eUR�R[UR�]S�eO_Y�]Q�X]QY�n]R[�n[UR�Z]RV̀URY�[US�SYYQ�UQb�WYX]YdYS�]S�eO_Y�]QfO_eUR]dY�UQb�PSYfPXk�a[Y�fO_eUR�RV̂]NUXXV�]QNXPbYS��L� a[Y�̂OX]NV�R]RXY�L� a[Y�̂OX]NV�̂P_̂OSY�L� a[Y�QUeYS�Of�Û X̂]NUWXY�fO_eS�
13 - 82



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<79=954�>4?=@6A496�B?4@=6789=C�D4E74F� GHIJ�KL�

M� NOP�QRSTUV�WXYORZT[WYTR\�M� NOP�QRSTUV�]P̂UZTQYTR\�M� NOP�QRSTUV�]PYWTŜ�_OR̀�_OWỲ�_OP\̀�OR_�NOP�P̂YWaST̂ObP\Y�Rc�W\�WUURX\YT\d�bW\XWS�T̂�W�efgh�aP̂Y�QZWUYTUPi�NOP�ZPURbbP\]WYTR\�cZRb�YOP�efgh�_PâTYP�cRSSR_̂i�jklm�nopq�rstuqvuo�wouxyyoz{tqvxz|��}~os���x~oszyozq�p�x��{�{xu�yozq�vqp�tuux�zqvz���x�vuvop�tz{��sxuo{�sop���st{vqvxzt�����p�u��{xu�yozqtqvxz��tp�qt�oz�q�o��xsy�x��tz�tuux�zqvz���x�vuvop�tz{��sxuo{�sop�ytz�t�����tz�p�qx�t{~tzuop�vz�qou�zx�x����o~oz�yxso�o��ouqv~o�yoq�x{p�tso�zx��t�px�t~tv�t��o��xs�q�vp���s�xpo��mz�t��sx�svtqo��o~o��x��ytzt�oyozq�qx�oy��tpv�o�q�ovs�vy�xsqtzuo�tz{�t�q�xsvq��p�x��{��sxy���tqo�tuux�zqvz���x�vuvop�tz{��sxuo{�sop����o�{xu�yozqtqvxz�x��tuux�zqvz���x�vuvop�tz{��sxuo{�sop�p�x��{��o�o~t��tqo{�tzz�t����tz{���{tqo{��osvx{vut�����zx��opp�q�tz�xzuo�o~os��q�soo��otsp��tuuxs{vz��qx�t��so{oqosyvzo{�pu�o{��o����tz�op�vz��x�vuvop�tz{��sxuo{�sop�q�tq�xuu�s��oq�ooz�q�opo��osvx{vu�so~vo�p�p�x��{��o���{tqo{�vz�q�o�{xu�yozqtqvxz��sxy�q���tp�q�o��xuu�s��m�p�ouv�vu�oy��x�oo�p�x��{��o�tppv�zo{�q�o�{�q��x��x~ospoovz��q�vp��sxuopp���tzt�oyozq�vp�sop�xzpv��o��xs�ozp�svz��q�tq�q�vp�{�q��vp��os�xsyo{�uxzpvpqozq������o�{xu�yozqtqvxz�x��tuux�zqvz���x�vuvop�tz{��sxuo{�sop�p�x��{��o�sot{v���t~tv�t��o�qx�t���oy��x�oop���x�zoo{�vq���q�p�x��{�{o�vzotqo�q�o�t�q�xsvq��tz{�sop�xzpv�v�vq��x��t���oy��x�oop��op�ouvt����q�o�t�q�xsvq��qx�t�q�xsv�o�qstzptuqvxzp�tz{�q�o�sop�xzpv�v�vq���xs�q�o�pt�o�oo�vz��x��tppoqp�tz{�souxs{p���v�o�vpo��q�o�{xu�yozqtqvxz�x��tuux�zqvz���x�vuvop�tz{��sxuo{�sop�p�x��{�vz{vutqo���vu��oy��x�oop�tso�qx��os�xsy���vu���sxuo{�sop��rsxuo{�sop�p�x��{��o�{opusv�o{�tp�q�o��tso�tuq�t����vzqoz{o{�qx��o��os�xsyo{�stq�os�q�tz�vz�pxyo�v{ot�v�o{��xsy��m�px��q�o�{xu�yozqtqvxz�x��tuux�zqvz���x�vuvop�tz{��sxuo{�sop�p�x��{�o���tvz�q�o�{opv�z�tz{���s�xpo�x��uxzqsx��so�tqo{��sxuo{�sop�qx�vzusotpo�oy��x�oo��z{ospqtz{vz��x��tz{�p���xsq��xs�uxzqsx�p������������������������������������������������������OYYQ���___idcRWiRZd�aP̂Y�QZWUYTUP̂��
13 - 83



��������	�
������	����������	���������
13 - 84



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<495=>?@A79B�C9D8@>?6789� EFGH�IJ�

KLMNOPQ�R;SLQMTUVWXOQY�OQZPWUVNOPQ�[\]� _̂̀ abcbdefg�̂edh�igjĝ de_k�baac_b̂ l�mnopqros�ntsuonvnst�wx�yz{{zu�tror�|znuo}�o~ro�r�s�sr}n�p�ryys}}n��s�v�z{�o~s��s�}nos}�zv�o~s��r�nz�}�yz{|r�n}zu�rqsuyns}���~s�tror�|znuo}��s�s�r}�vz��z�}���� �z|��ronzu���oros��s|r�o{suo�zv��nuruys���w���� �zor����tqso���z�utst�����y��ts}���yys}}z���qsuyns}���� �sus�r����ut���tqso���z�utst���� ��z�syost��sus�r����ut��r�ruys���z�utst���� �nuruys��s|r�o{suo���tqso��������ut}���y��tnuq��s�o�rut��zu��s|r�o{suor����� �nuruys��s|r�o{suo��orvv����������ut}���� �nuruys��s|r�o{suo��z}nonzu}��no�s}��������n{s���������ut}���� �zor���qsuyp�������n{s��orvv��� �zor���qsuyp��s�}zuus��mz}o���z�utst���� �nuruys��s|r�o{suo��s�}zuus��mz}o���z�utst���� �nuruys��s|r�o{suo��|ru�zv�mzuo�z����r�n{�{���|s��n}z��oz����z�tnuros��ronz���� ��s�rqs��uu�r���s�}zuus��mz}o�|s���{|�zpss�nu��nuruys��s|r�o{suo��� ��tqsost��sus�r����ut��|s�ronuq��svnyno���s}�z���z���� �qsuyp����r�s��n�srqs���� �qsuyp��stnru��z�}s~z�t��uyz{s��~s�yz{|r�r��s�ynons}��s�s�}s�syost��r}st�zu�o~�ss�y�nos�nr��ynons}�o~�z�q~z�o�mr�nvz�unr��no~�yz{|r�r��s�|z|��ronzu} �ynons}�o~ro�r�s�usnq~�z�}�oz�o~s�mnop�zv��z�o~��r}rtsur �rut�ynons}��}st��p�o~s�mnop�zv��z�o~��r}rtsur�n}�zo~s��yz{|r�n}zu�}o�tns}�vz��r�sr}�}�y~�r}�s{|�zpss�yz{|su}ronzu���r}st�zu�o~s}s�y�nos�nr �o~s�vz��z�nuq�w¡�ynos}��s�s�}s�syost���� ¢£¤¥¦§̈©£ª�«§¬®̄��z�yz ��r�rtn}s �°s{zu���z�s ���suop��nus��r�{}��� ±©²³́£µ©ª²�¶©̈©¬̄��ru��r�nuz ���~r{��r ��ru��r��ns� ��r}rtsur ��zuos�sp��r�· ��z}s{srt��� ¢µ̧©£¥¬¦¹�º¬®�»£µ�¼̈³µ�¶£½¤§µ©¬£ª¬̄�����zuos ���yrtnr �����ru· �mz�nur �°r¾s�us ��zu�z�nr �¿s}o�mz�nur�
13 - 85



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<495=>?@A79B�C9D8@>?6789� EFGH�IJ�

KLM� NOPQRSP�TU�VOWXYZ[N\]Ŵ �:_̀_a�b8cde?6789�<?f4g�<495=>?@Af�hijkil�mnjnopqrl�srtiu�vjiwrl�xyruz{|hpur�mn}tq��x~r��i}}iypu��zn�}r�q~iyq�n�kit�njpqiu�i��z~r��r{�onzn��ipuzq��ij�z~r��pz{�i���i�z~�mnqnorun�nuo�z~r�nwrjn�r�i��z~r�kit�njn�}r��i��}nzpiu�kpzprq�qr}rkzro�����������������������������������������a ¡a¢�£?6?�b8796� 38d6=�b?f?g49?� ¤8>c?@?¥e4�¤7674f�¦§4@?B4�©̈Eª«F¬©®�̄°¬F¬H�±HEF²¬³H®¬�©́�µ®F®¶H�·̧¹º� »¼½¾¾»� »¿½¿J¾�À©¬F«�ÁªÂGH¬�̄Ã©ª®ÂHÂº�̄·Ä¶«ªÂHÅ�°ª¶¶HÅÅ©²�ÆGH®¶HÅº� ¼Ç½IJJ½JJJ� »¿½¼»¼½JJJ�ÈH®H²F«�µª®Â�ÁªÂGH¬�̄Ã©ª®ÂHÂº� »I½ÉJJ½JJJ� ¹Ê½¾JÊ½I»É�²̈©ËH¶¬HÂ�ÈH®H²F«�µª®Â�ÁF«F®¶H�̄Ã©ª®ÂHÂº� ¹¹½¹JJ½JJJ� I½¹¾¼½JJJ�µ®F®¶H�±HEF²¬³H®¬�ÁªÂGH¬�̄Æ««�µª®ÂÅ�·Ä¶«ªÂ®G�±HÌ¬�F®Â�Í©®̧±HEF²¬³H®¬F«º� ¹½ÇÉJ½JJJ� IJ¹½»IÇ�µ®F®¶H�±HEF²¬³H®¬�°¬F́́�Î�̄Æ««�µª®ÂÅº� ¾� ¿�À©¬F«�ÆGH®¶Ï�µª««̧À³H�°¬F́́� ¹ÉI� ¼Ê�À©¬F«�ÆGH®¶Ï�̈H²Å©®®H«�Ð©Å¬�̄Ã©ª®ÂHÂº� »¹½»JJ½JJJ� I½Ç¿¿½¿¿I�µ®F®¶H�±HEF²¬³H®¬�̈H²Å©®®H«�Ð©Å¬�̄Ã©ª®ÂHÂº� ¾¾J½JJJ� ÉÉI½»»¿�µ®F®¶H�±HEF²¬³H®¬�°EF®�©́�Ð©®¬²©«�̄ÑFÄ³ª³�°ªEH²ÒÅ©²�¬©�°ªÌ©²Â®F¬H�ÃF¬©º� ¹�¬©�¿� ¹�¬©�¼�ÆÒH²FGH�Æ®®ªF«�̈H²Å©®®H«�Ð©Å¬�EH²�·³E«©ÏHH�®�µ®F®¶H�±HEF²¬³H®¬� ¹¹J½JJJ� ¿¼½ÊJ¾�ÁªÂGH¬HÂ�ÈH®H²F«�µª®Â�ÓEH²F¬®G�±H́¶¬�̄ÔHÅ�©²�Í©º� Í©� ÑÄHÂ�ÆGH®¶Ï�°ÕªF²H�Ñ«HFGH�� ÊÖÉ¹� »ÊÖÇ»�ÆGH®¶Ï�ÑHÂF®�×©ªÅHØ©«Â�Ù®¶©³H� ÇJ½ÉI¾� ¼É½¾¿Ê�:_̀_̀�Ú47B=¥8@79B�¤7674f�<495=>?@Af��nu�Ûnjpuil�Ü}~nt�jnl��nu�vn�jpr}l�mnqnorunl�Ûiuzrjr{�mnj�l�Ýiqrtrno��x~r��i}}iypu��zn�}r�q~iyq�n�kit�njpqiu�i��z~r��r{�onzn��ipuzq��ij�z~r��pz{�i���i�z~�mnqnorun�nuo�z~r�nwrjn�r�i��z~r�urp�~�ijpu��kpzprq�qr}rkzro��
13 - 86



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<495=>?@A79B�C9D8@>?6789� EFGH�IJ�

KLMNO�PQROSTUMVWSXT�YSZSO[�\OX]Û LW_[�à�bcdbe�f?6?�g8796� 38h6=�g?i?j49?� k8>l?@?mn4�k7674i�op4@?B4�qrs5nhj79B�g?i?j49?t�uvEwxFyzv{�|}yFyH�~HEF�y�H{y�v���z{F{�H���J�� ������� �J������vyFx��w�GHy�|�vw{�H���|���xw�H��}w��H��v���GH{�zH��� ���I������� I�����������H{H�Fx��w{���w�GHy�|�vw{�H��� �I��������� �I���������u�v�H�yH���H{H�Fx��w{���FxF{�H�|�vw{�H��� JJ�J������� J��I��������z{F{�H�~HEF�y�H{y��w�GHy�|�xx��w{������xw�z{G�~H�y�F{���v{�~HEF�y�H{yFx�� J��������� J�II��JI���z{F{�H�~HEF�y�H{y�}yF�����|�xx��w{���� �� JJ��vyFx��GH{����wxx��z�H�}yF��� J�I� J����vyFx��GH{���uH��v{{Hx��v�y�|�vw{�H��� �J��������� �����I������z{F{�H�~HEF�y�H{y�uH��v{{Hx��v�y�|�vw{�H��� �������� J����������z{F{�H�~HEF�y�H{y�}EF{�v���v{y�vx�|�F�z�w��}wEH��z�v��yv�}w�v��z{FyH��Fyzv�� J�yv��� J�yv�����H�FGH��{{wFx�uH��v{{Hx��v�y�EH����Exv�HH�z{��z{F{�H�~HEF�y�H{y� JJ������ J����J���w�GHyH���H{H�Fx��w{�� EH�Fyz{G�~H�z�zy�|¡H��v���v�� �v� �v��GH{���}¢wF�H��zxHFGH�� �£�J� ���GH{����H�zF{�¤vw�H¥vx��¦{�v�H� ����I�� ����J��:§̈§:�g@4p78hin©�ªi4j�k8>l?@?68@�oB495©�<495=>?@A�«¬�®̄°±²�³́µ¶·̧¶²�¹º́»¶̄¼²�½®¾̧̄ ¶²�¿¶À±́̄ ±²�®̄ ®́¾̧¶²�Á±Â°�½®¾̧̄ ¶��ÃÄ±�Å®¬¬®Æ̧ Ç̄�°¶»¬±�ÂÄ®ÆÂ�¶�µ®ÈÉ¶̧́Â®̄�®Å�°Ä±�¼±Ê�·¶°¶�É®̧̄ °Â�Å®́�°Ä±�½̧°Ê�®Å�Ë®º°Ä�Ì¶Â¶·±̄¶�¶̄·�°Ä±�¶¾±́¶Ç±�®Å�°Ä±�µ®ÈÉ¶́¶»¬±�µ̧°̧±Â�ºÂ±·�»Ê�°Ä±�½̧°Ê�Å®́�É¶Â°�µ®ÈÉ¶̧́Â®̄ÂÍ�
13 - 87



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<495=>?@A79B�C9D8@>?6789� EFGH�IJ�

KLMNO�PQRSOTUVWXNY�ZXO[�\V]̂ LSL_VS�̀aObcY�dObce]LSfX�gh�ijkil�m?6?�n8796� 38o6=�n?p?q49?� r8>s?@?tu4�r7674p�vw4@?B4�xyz5uoq79B�<o@t?9A�{�yu�|8964}�~�E��F��������F�H��HEF���H���������F��H������ J����J� �I��������F�����GH��������H����������H������H������GH���H��� ���I������� ���II�������H�H�F����������GH��������H��� JI��������� ����IJ��J��~�� H��H���H�H�F��������F�F��H�������H��� ����������� ���I���������F��H��HEF���H������GH���������������������G��H¡��F���¢����HEF���H��F��� ���������� £������J�����F��H��HEF���H�����F���¤������������� �� �J����F���GH��¥���������H���F��� ��I� J�I����F���GH��¥�~H�����H��¦����������H��� J��J������� ��������������F��H��HEF���H���~H�����H��¦����������H��� �������� ����J�J������F��H��HEF���H����EF�����¦��������§F��������EH�̈����������¡�����F�H��F����� ������� ��������̈H�FGH�����F��~H�����H��¦����EH����E��¥HH�������F��H��HEF���H��� �������� ��I��������GH�H���H�H�F�������©EH�F���G��H�������ªH�����¢��� ¢�� §��H���GH��¥��«�F�H�§��HFGH�� £¬��� ����GH��¥�§H��F�����H®����̄����H� ����I�� I����J�°±±²³²́µ¶·�±̧³¶²·�¹º́»�³¼̧�½º̧¾²́¿À�³¼º̧̧�³¶Á·̧À�²À�½º́¾²±̧±�²µ�̀ ^̂Ob[UcOX�ÂÃ�ÄÃ�¶µ±�ÅÃ�º̧À½̧Æ³²¾̧·ÇÈ��
13 - 88



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<=6=>4�<79?957?@�A?9?B4C496�DE?@@49B4F� GHIJ�KL�

MNOPQRS�T;UVPVWN�UQSXSOQXY�ZXSX[NZNSP�O\XYYNS[NM�]̂_� àbacd�̀efgfhd�idjgcbkdfb�hlgmmdfndo�pqrsr�tu�vwxvyu�v�wrvsztz{�|}s~r���s�v�zrx��tzvz|r��tsr|��s����v�|t�y��pqr��t�y������}�q��vuv�rzv�qtsr���t�y{v�r�����s�~t�r�vz�vzvwyutu����qrw��uq�s�rz��qv��wrvsztz{�|}s~r��y��s�~t�tz{�v��vut|��~rs~trx�vz��sr~trx�����qr��tzvz|r��r�vs��rz�����vuutu���qr�zrx��tsr|��s�tz�v||wt�v�tz{�����qr��r�vs��rz����sr��}t|�wy��pqtu�sr��s��xtww�vwu��qrw���qr�zrx��tsr|��s�t�rz�t�y�vz���st�st�t�r�tuu}ru�����r~rw���v|�t�z��wvzu���qv����ww�xu�vsr�u��r�����qr��vzv{r�rz��|qvwwrz{ru��pqtu�wtu��tu��y�z���rvzu�tz�rz�r������r�vww�tz|w}ut~r��pqrsr�vsr�z}�rs�}u�|qvwwrz{ru�w���tz{���s��tzvz|r��r�vs��rz�u�tz��qr�}�|��tz{�yrvsu��tz|w}�tz{�tz�svu�s}|�}sr��v|�w�{u�vz���}z�tz{��u�v�r�vz���r�rsvw�wvxu��r|�z��t|���xz�}szu�����rz�tvw�wv��s�tuu}ru��r�|��pqr���ww�xtz{�t�r�u�vsr�u��r�����qr���sr���~t�}u��:������4�49=4�DE?@@49B4F��rzrsvw��}z��sr~rz}ru�qv~r�vz�v~rsv{r�vzz}vw�{s�x�q����v��s��t�v�rwy������������s������rs|rz����~rs��qr�wvu���t~r��tu|vw�yrvsu����xr~rs��v���twt�y��ursu�pv�����p �sr�rvw��vww����rvu}sr�qvu��}vwt�tr����s��qr�¡�~r��rs�¢�£���vww����pqr���p�tu��vur���z�v��v���z�}�twt�tru����¤����rs|rz��vz���stz{u�tz�v��s��t�v�rwy�������twwt�z���s�£���rs|rz�������rzrsvw��}z��sr~rz}ru��¥���qr��rvu}sr�xrsr�����vuu��urs~t|ru�x�}w��zrr������r�ut{zt�t|vz�wy�sr�}|r������vtz�vtz�v�qrvw�qy��rzrsvw��}z��xt�q�v��s��stv�r�srurs~ru���:���¦��7F79B�D?@§̈ �3�D8F6F�¥z�vz�r���s������vtz�vtz��qr��tu|vw�qrvw�q�����qr��vw�©ª��sr�tsr�rz��uyu�r����vw�©ª��qvu�t��wr�rz�r��ur~rsvw�|qvz{ru��qv��qv~r�tz|srvur���rzut�z�|�u�u�vz���tz�u��r�|vuru��sr�}|r���}�}sr��rzr�t�u��©v|q��r��rs�����vw�©ª��|�z�sv|�u�xt�q��qr�uyu�r������s�~t�r�v�wr~rw�����rzr�t�u����s��qr��t�y��vu�xt�q���u���vw�©ª���r��rs�v{rz|tru���qr�wr~rw�����rzr�t�u�tu��r~rw��r��«¬®̄°¬�±²³®�́µ°®«¶²«¶®́·�̧¶«¬�«¬µ�²°µ́¹º»·�¼²¶®̄·�±²³®�°®̄½·¾�¿·¶́°�¼²¶®̄·�²¹«̄²¶²±�vuu}���t�zu�vz���r�q���w�{tru���vw�©ª���r~rw��u��qr�|�u������s�~t�r��qr��rzr�t��wr~rw��rutsr���y��qr��t�y��À�~rsur�|qvz{ru�����qrur�v|�}vstvw�vuu}���t�zu�vz���r�q���w�{tru�t��wr�rz�r���y��vw�©ª���~rs��qr��vu���rx�yrvsu�xtww�ut{zt�t|vz�wy�t��v|���rzut�z�|�u�u���s�vww��vw�©ª���r��rs�v{rz|tru��Ázr��Â�«¬µ�·¶°́¶Â¶¹²́«�²Ã¼µ·µ�²··̄Ä½«¶®́�¹¬²́°µ·�¶·�«¬µ�Å²±ÆÇÈÉ�³®²Ã»·��r|tut�z����w�xrs�t�u�vuu}�r���tu|�}z��sv�r��pqr��tu|�}z��sv�r�sr�srurz�u��qr�sv�r��vw�©ª��vuu}�ru�t��xtww�rvsz��z�t�u�tz~ru��rz�u��pqr�w�xrs��qr�vuu}�r��rvsztz{u�sv�r���qr�w�xrs��qr�vuu}�r��vuur��{s�x�q�v~vtwv�wr����|�~rs�vz�t|t�v�r���rzut�z�|�u�u��¥z��r|r��rs�¢�£Ê���qr��vw�©ª����vs��~��r�����w�xrs��qr�vuu}�r���tu|�}z��sv�r��s���¤����rs|rz�����¤��rs|rz��}utz{�v��qsrrËyrvs��qvurËtz��r{tzztz{�xt�q��qr�Ì}zr�����¢�£Ê�v|�}vstvw�~vw}v�t�zu���Ívur���z��qr�sv�ru��s�~t�r���y��vw�©ª�����s��Î�£�Ï£Ð�vw�zr���qtu��qvur�Ëtz�vuu}���t�zu�|qvz{r�xtww�tz|srvur��rzut�z�|�u����s��qr��t�y��y�v��s��t�v�rwy����������tz��qr��rzrsvw��}z���
13 - 89



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;<=6=>4�<79?957?@�A?9?B4C496�DE?@@49B4F� GHIJ�KL�

:MNMO�P>854FF�QCR>8S4C496�T4S4@8RC496�?9U�QCR@4C496?6789�VW�XYZ[Y\[W]�̂_Y�̀YabX̂cYŴ�[WdeXcb̂[eW�deX�aX[eX�d[fgbh�iYbXfj�k[̂i]b̂Y�delWm�̂_b̂�fYZYXbh�ed�̂_Y�eaYXb̂[eWbh�[fflYf�[mYŴ[d[Ym�[W�̂_[f�XYaeX̂j�flg_�bf�aeh[g[Yf�bWm�aXegYmlXYfj�_bm�nYYW�bmmXYffYm�[W�abf̂�iYbXfo�pWdeX̂lWb̂Yhij�̂_Y�[WdeXcb̂[eW�bWm�aXYZ[elf�aXegYmlXYf�bXY�fgb̂̂YXYm�̂_Xel]_�WlcYXelf�dehmYXf�̂_Xel]_el̂�̂_Y�q[WbWgY�fif̂Yc�bWm�_bm�Wê�nYYW�lamb̂Ym�[W�fYZYXbh�iYbXfo�r_Yi�bXY�bhfe�Wê�bh\bif�[W�b�deXcb̂�̂_b̂�[f�glXXYŴhi�lfYmo�sĥ_el]_�̂_[f�[f�Wê�[mYbhj�[̂�b̂�hYbf̂�aXeZ[mYf�fecY�nbf[f�eW�\_[g_�̂e�nl[hm�bWm�lamb̂Y�̂e�bmmXYff�fecY�ed�̂_Y�[fflYf�[mYŴ[d[Ym�ni�̂_Y�q[WbWgY�̀YabX̂cYŴ�XYZ[Y\o�tYWYd[̂[W]�dXec�̂_[f�[WdeXcb̂[eWj�_e\YZYXj�\[hh�XYul[XY�Yv̂YWf[ZY�XYZ[Y\j�XYfYbXg_j�bWm�geWfeh[mb̂[eW�̂e�gXYb̂Y�b�lfYdlh�cbWlbh�̂_b̂�gbW�nY�bmeâYm�ni�̂_Y�k[̂io�wxyzxy{�|}~��sW�Yv̂YWf[ZY�bcelŴ�ed�[WdeXcb̂[eW�bmmXYff[W]�aeh[g[Yf�bWm�aXegYmlXYf�bXY�[WghlmYm�[W�̂_Y�q[WbWgY�̀YabX̂cYŴ�d[hY�eW�̂_Y�d[WbWg[bh�fif̂Yc�\_[g_�gelhm�nY�lfYm�bf�b�nbf[f�̂e�bmmXYff�glXXYŴ�eaYXb̂[eWbh�[fflYfo�r_Y�[WdeXcb̂[eWj�_e\YZYXj�[f�[W�ZbX[elf�deXcf�bWm�hegb̂[eWf�bWm�[W�fecY�gbfYf�[W�b�deXcb̂�Wê�glXXYŴhi�lfYmo��������yz��x�y�|�}���[ZYW�̂_Y�glXXYŴ�f̂bdd[W]�hYZYh�bWm�\eX�hebmj�̂_Y�k[̂i�f_elhm�_[XY�b�̂_[Xm�abX̂i�̂e�mYZYhea�b�gecaXY_YWf[ZY�aeh[g[Yf�bWm�aXegYmlXYf�bggelŴ[W]�cbWlbho�r_[f�\[hh�aXeZ[mY�b�feh[m�nbf[f�dXec�\_[g_�ê�c[W[c[�Y�eaYXb̂[eWbh�[WYdd[g[YWg[Yfj�YW_bWgY�[ŴYXWbh�geŴXehj�bWm�XYmlgY�geWdlf[eW�̂_Xel]_el̂�̂_Y�k[̂io��������yz��x�y�|����sW�Yv̂YXWbh�̂Ybc�nl[hm[W]�geWflĥbŴ�f_elhm�nY�_[XYm�ni�_̂Y�k[̂i�eWgY�̂_Y�WY\�q[WbWgY�̀[XYĝeX�[f�_[XYm�̂e�_Yha�[mYŴ[di�bWm�bmmXYff�[fflYf�bWm�YvaYĝb̂[eWf�[W�bmZbWgY�bWm�mYZYhea�bĝ[eW�ahbWf�̂e�_Yha�cbv[c[�Y�̂_Y�ceXbhY�bWm�aXemlĝ[Z[̂i�ed�̂_Y�̀YabX̂cYŴo��
13 - 90



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;3<==>?@�8A�B79C79DE�F�G458==49C>6789E�F�H4I6�364JE� KLMN�OP�

QRSTUVW�X;QYZZ[\]�V̂ �̂UW_UẀ Q�a�\RSVZZRW_[TUVWQ�a�WRbT�QTRcQ�def�ghiihjklm�nopqkr�shlpoklt�pef�gkluklmt�olu�qfshnnfluopkhlt�kuflpkgkfu�uvqklm�pekt�flmomfnflpw�def�nopqkr�oith�xqhykuft�xqkhqkpz�ifyfit�jekse�tvmmftp�knxifnflpopkhl�pknfgqonftw��def�xqkhqkpkft�oqf�shufu�ot�ghiihjt{�|� }�~��ehviu��f�knxifnflpfu�jkpekl����uozt�|� ��~��ehviu��f�knxifnflpfu�jkpekl���nhlpet�|� ��~��ehviu��f�knxifnflpfu�jkpekl���zfoq�|� ��~��ehviu��f�frxihqfu�jkpekl���zfoq�ph�ufpfqnklf�oxxqhxqkopf�knxifnflpopkhl�uvf�ph�shtp�ufpfqnklopkhl��gvluklm��frxfqpktf��hq�hpefq�gosphqt�lhp�qfoukiz�oyokio�if��

13 - 91



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;3<==>?@�8A�B79C79DE�F�G458==49C>6789E�F�H4I6�364JE� KLMN�OP�

QRSTU�VWXYZ[YZ\]�RZ[�̂U_̀aaUZ[RbỲZ]�cYbd�efỲfYbg�̂RZhYZ\�B79C79DE� B79C79D�i4E5?7J6789� G458==49C>6789E� G458==49C>6789�i4E5?7J6789� j?78?76@�B79C79D�klm�� nNKLopqNrp�spLtt�uLvw�vxrpyrzN{�Lr{�NttNvpy|N�poLyryrM�Lr{�yrpNorLu�voxss}poLyryrM�px�~NuK�NrszoN�xKNoLpyxrLu�vxrsyspNrv��yr�NqNoMNrv��vyovzqspLrvNs��Ls��Nuu�Ls�p~N�vxrty{NrvN�px�oN�Nvp�poLrsLvpyxrs�p~Lp�p~N���NuyN|N�LoN�vxrpoLo��px�Kxuyv��KoxvN{zoN�� G458==49C>6789�klm� �spL�uys~�L�txoqLu�poLyryrM�KoxMoLq�p~Lp�oN�zyoNs�spLtt�px�KLopyvyKLpN�yr�oNMzuLo�poLyryrM�Lr{�yrpNorLu�voxss}poLyryrM���~ys�s~xzu{��N�qLr{Lpxo��poLyryrM�Lr{�s~xzu{��N�yrvuz{N{�yr�p~N�|Loyxzs�NqKux�NN�N|LuzLpyxr�MxLus����qNv~Lrysq��N�M���s~xop��zy���s~xzu{��N�{N|NuxKN{�Lr{�pLwNr����p~N�NqKux�NN�LtpNo�p~N�poLyryrM�px�~NuK�NrszoN�p~Lp�p~N�poLyryrM��Ls�zr{Nospxx{���s�L�KLop�xt�p~N�yrpNorLu�voxss}poLyryrM��NqKux�NNs�s~xzu{��N�yrspozvpN{�oNMLo{yrM�~x��px�oNKxop�vxrvNors�xt�KxpNrpyLu�|yxuLpyxr�xt�Kxuyv��KoxvN{zoNs�{yoNvpyxr��yp~xzp�tNLo�xt�oNpLuyLpyxr�� ��B79C79D�k�m� �yp��spLtt�~Ls�rxp��NNr�L{N�zLpNu��poLyrN{�xr�p~N�������������������������������������������� �������¡����{NpNoqyrN�yt�yp�qNNps�p~N�rNN{s�xt�p~N��yp��� G458==49C>6789�k�m� ¢NpoLyr�Lr{�xo�poLyr�Luu�LKKuyvL�uN�NqKux�NNs��~x��yuu��NrNtyp�toxq�p~N�zsN�xt�£KoyrM�oxxw�px�{NpNoqyrN�yt�p~N�s�spNq�ys�L{N�zLpN�txo�p~N�rNN{s�xt�p~N�¤yrLrvN�nNKLopqNrp�Lr{�xp~No��yp��{NKLopqNrps���~ys�poLyryrM�s~xzu{��N�qLr{Lpxo��txo�Luu�LKKuyvL�uN�NqKux�NNs�� ��B79C79D�k¥m�� �~N�nNKLopqNrp�ys�rxp�Kox|y{yrM�vxrsyspNrp�~NuKtzu�sNo|yvN�px�xp~No�{NKLopqNrps�� G458==49C>6789�k¥m�� ��Kxuyv��Lr{�KoxvN{zoNs�qLrzLu�s~xzu{��N�{N|NuxKN{�Lr{�xo�zK{LpN{�� ���� �� G458==49C>6789�k¦m�� �uu�{NKLopqNrps�s~xzu{�Kox|y{N�yrKzp�xr�p~N�Kxuyv��Lr{�KoxvN{zoNs�qLrzLu§�~x�N|No��p~N�qLrzLu�s~xzu{��N�{N|NuxKN{��LsN{�xr��Nsp�KoLvpyvN�spLr{Lo{s�� ���� �� G458==49C>6789�k:m� �~N�vxqKuNpN{�Kxuyv��Lr{�KoxvN{zoNs�qLrzLu�s~xzu{��N�KoNsNrpN{�px�p~N��yp���xzrvyu�Lr{�Luu��yp��NqKux�NNs�sx�p~Lp�N|No�xrN�ys�L�LoN�p~Lp�L{~NoNrvN�px�p~N�rN��KxuyvyNs�Lr{�KoxvN{zoNs�ys�qLr{Lpxo��� ��B79C79D�k¦m� �~N��yp��~Ls�rxp�KoxvNssN{�L�txoqLu�qxrp~}Nr{�xo��zLopNo}Nr{�vuxsN�yr�sN|NoLu��NLos��Lr{�rx�txoqLu�KNoyx{}vuxsyrM��oyppNr�KoxvN{zoNs��NoN�txzr{�� G458==49C>6789�k̈m� ��txoqLu��oyppNr�sNp�xt�KoxvN{zoNs�s~xzu{��N�{N|NuxKN{�Lr{�L�txoqLu�qxrp~}Nr{�oN|yN��txo�Luu�tzr{s��xo�Lp�uNLsp�L�qy{}�NLo��z{MNp�oN|yN���s~xzu{��N�vxqKuNpN{�N|No��tysvLu��NLo���~ys��yuu�~NuK�y{Nrpyt��KxpNrpyLu�ysszNs�yr�pyqN�px�{N|NuxK�spoLpNMyNs�px�L{{oNss�p~NsN�ysszNs���~ys�KoxvN{zoN��yuu�Lusx�~NuK��~Nr�KNotxoqyrM��z{MNp�Kox�Nvpyxrs�txo�vzooNrp�Lr{�tzpzoN��z{MNp��NLos�� ©�B79C79D�k:m� �~N��yp��zsNs�ªyvoxsxtp��«vNu�sKoNL{s~NNps�px�{N|NuxK�p~N��z{MNp�Lr{�p~N�£KoyrM�oxxw�tyrLrvyLu�s�spNq�txo�xp~No�tyrLrvyLu�Lvpy|yp����~yv~�yrvoNLsNs�p~N�Lqxzrp�xt�pyqN�oN�zyoN{�px�{N|NuxK�p~N��z{MNp�� G458==49C>6789�k¬m� ��txoqLu��z{MNp�qx{zuN�s~xzu{��N�zpyuy�N{�px�txuux���Nsp�KoLvpyvNs�Lr{�qyryqy�N�qLrzLu�KoxvNssNs�Lr{�p~N�pyqN�oN�zyoN{�px�{N|NuxK�p~N��z{MNp��yr�L{{ypyxr�px�oN{zvyrM�p~N�KxpNrpyLu�txo�~zqLr�Nooxo���~N�£KoyrM�oxxw�s�spNq�~Ls�L�txoqLu��z{MNp�qx{Nu�p~Lp�ys�vxqKLpy�uN��yp~�yps�xp~No�tyrLrvyLu�qx{zuNs�p~Lp��xzu{�sz�spLrpyLuu��oN{zvN�p~N�Lqxzrp�xt�pyqN�oN�zyoN{�Lr{�p~N�v~LrvN�xt�~zqLr�Nooxo��~Nr�{N|NuxKyrM�p~N��z{MNp�� ©�
13 - 92



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;3<==>?@�8A�B79C79DE�F�G458==49C>6789E�F�H4I6�364JE� KLMN�OO�

B79C79DE� B79C79D�P4E5?7J6789� G458==49C>6789E� G458==49C>6789�P4E5?7J6789� Q?78?76@�B79C79D�RST� UNKNLV�WLXLMNWNXV�YNVVNZ�ZN[\WWNX]LV̂\X_�\̀NZ�WaYV̂KYN�b̂_[LY�cNLZ_�dNZN�X\V�L]]ZN__N]e�LX]�X\�dẐVVNX�ZN_K\X_N�\Z�KYLX�\b�L[V̂\X�dL_�[\WKYNVN]�LX]�ZǸ N̂dN]�fc�VgN�ĥVc�iLXLMNZj� G458==49C>6789�RkT� lgN�h\WKZNgNX_̂̀N�mXXaLY�n̂XLX[̂LY�UNK\ZV�ohmnUpe�WLXLMNWNXV�YNVVNZe�LX]�LYY�\VgNZ�ZNK\ZV_�MNXNZLVN]�bZ\W�VgN�LXXaLY�La]̂Ve�\X[N�b̂XLŶqN]e�_g\aY]�fN�ZǸ N̂dN]�fc�VgN�ĥVc�iLXLMNZ�LX]�KZN_NXVN]�V\�VgN�ĥVc�h\aX[̂Yj�lĝ_�d̂YY�NX_aZN�VgLV�VgN�ĥVc�̂_�LdLZN�\b�K\VNXV̂LY�b̂XLX[̂LY�̂__aN_�LX]�VgLV�L�KYLX�gL_�fNNX�]ǸNY\KN]�V\�L]]ZN__�VgN�_̂_aN_j� r��� �� G458==49C>6789�RsT� t̂_[a__�VgN�La]̂V�NuKN[VLV̂\X_�d̂Vg�VgN�NuVNZXLY�La]̂V\Z�]aẐXM�LX�NXVZLX[N�[\XbNZNX[N�fNb\ZN�VgN�La]̂V�b̂NY]�d\Zv�fNM̂X_j�wXN�\b�VgN�NuKN[VLV̂\X_�_g\aY]�fN�VgLV�VgN�hmnUe�WLXLMNWNXV�YNVVNZe�LX]�LYY�\VgNZ�ZNK\ZV_�L__\[̂LVN]�d̂Vg�VgN�La]̂Ve�\X[N�b̂XLŶqN]e�LZN�_NXV�]̂ZN[VYc�V\�VgN�ĥVc�iLXLMNZ�̂X�L]]̂V̂\X�V\�VgN�n̂XLX[N�t̂ZN[V\Zj�lgN�b̂XLY�]\[aWNXV_�_g\aY]�fN�KZN_NXVN]�V\�VgN�ĥVc�h\aX[̂Y�LbVNZ�b̂XLY�ZǸ N̂d�fc�VgN�ĥVc�iLXLMNZj� m��� �� G458==49C>6789�RxyT� m�b\ZWLY�dẐVVNX�ZN_K\X_N�LX]�KYLX�\b�L[V̂\X�V\�L]]ZN__�VgN�nz�{|}{O�WLXLMNWNXV�YNVVNZ�[\WWNXV_�_g\aY]�fN�KZ\]a[N]�LX]�KZN_NXVN]�d̂Vg�VgN�nz�{O}{~�La]̂Vj� r��� �� G458==49C>6789�RxxT� ma]̂V\Z�_g\aY]�[\WKYNVN�L�b\ZWLY�̂XVNZXLY�[\XVZ\Y��aN_V̂\XXL̂ZN�NL[g�cNLZ�\b�VgN�NXMLMNWNXV�V\�gNYK�̂]NXV̂bc�K\VNXV̂LY�dNLvXN__N_�LX]�LZNL_�\X�dĝ[g�V\�[\X[NXVZLVN�]aẐXM�VgN�La]̂Vj� r��� �� G458==49C>6789�Rx�T� naVaZN�La]̂V_�_g\aY]�̂X[Ya]N�L�W\ZN�̂X���������������������������������[\aZ_N�LX]�_VLfYN�\KNZLV̂\X_�V\�̂]NXV̂bc�LXc�\KNZLV̂\XLY�̂__aN_j� r�B79C79D�R�T� lgNZN�̂_�X\�b\ZWLY�dẐVVNX�bZLa]�K\Ŷ[c�V\�ZNK\ZV�K\VNXV̂LY�bZLa]j� G458==49C>6789�Rx�T� tǸNY\K�L�b\ZWLY�dẐVVNX�bZLa]�K\Ŷ[c�VgLV�̂]NXV̂b̂N_�VgN�KZ\[N__�V\�ZNK\ZV�bZLa]j�lgN�K\Ŷ[c�_g\aY]�̂X[Ya]N�VgN�[ZNLV̂\X�\b�L�dNf_̂VN�b\Z�X̂]̂̀ ]̂aLY_e�̂X[Ya]̂XM�ĥVc�_VLbbe�V\�LX\XcW\a_Yc�ZNK\ZV�bZLa]�\Z�K\VNXV̂LY�bZLa]�LX]�VgN�_VNK_�̂X�KYL[N�V\�NX_aZN�VgN�ZNK\ZV_�LZN�X̂̀N_V̂MLVN]j� m�B79C79D�RkT� taN�V\�YL[v�\b�[Z\__�VZL̂X̂XMe�\XYc�\XN�NWKY\cNN�vX\d_�g\d�V\�KZ\[N__�L�baYY�ĥVc�KLcZ\YYj� G458==49C>6789�Rx�T� lgN�baYY�[Z\__�VZL̂X̂XM�\b�VgN�iLXLMNWNXV�m__̂_VLXV�_g\aY]�fN�[\WKYNVN]�W\ZN��â[vYcj��YLXXN]�\̀NZV̂WN�_g\aY]�fN�[\X_̂]NZN]�V\�NuKN]̂VN�[\WKYNV̂\X�\b�VgN�VZL̂X̂XMj�m]]̂V̂\XLYYce�VgN�iLXLMNWNXV�m__̂_VLXV�_g\aY]�KNẐ\]̂[LYYc�[\WKYNVN�LX�̂X[ZNL_̂XM�K\ZV̂\X�\b�LX�L[VaLY�baYY�KLcZ\YY�LbVNZ�VgN�VZL̂X̂XM�V\�NX_aZN�̂V�gL_�fNNX�NbbN[V̂̀Nj��WKYNWNXVLV̂\X�\b�Vĝ_�ZN[\WWNX]LV̂\X�d̂YY�gNYK�V\�ŴX̂Wq̂N�Y\__�\b�KZ\[N__�[\XV̂XâVc�̂X�VgN�[L_N�\b�NWNZMNX[̂N_e�L_�dNYY�L_�ZNŶǸN�_\WN�\b�VgN�faZ]NX�bNYV�fc�VgN��LcZ\YY�h\\Z]̂XLV\Z�VgLV�ŶŴV_�NLZXN]�V̂WN�\bbj� m�
13 - 93



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;3<==>?@�8A�B79C79DE�F�G458==49C>6789E�F�H4I6�364JE� KLMN�OP�

B79C79DE� B79C79D�Q4E5?7J6789� G458==49C>6789E� G458==49C>6789�Q4E5?7J6789� R?78?76@�B79C79D�STU� VNKLWLXYZ[�Z\�]̂XYN_�̀NXaNN[�bLcWZdd�L[]�êfL[�gN_ẐWhN_�WN_KZ[_ỲYdYXYN_�Y_�dLhiY[Mj�akYhk�aNLiN[_�Y[XNW[Ld�hZ[XWZdl� G458==49C>6789�Sm:U� nkN�bLcWZdd�_XL\\�_kẐd]�̀N�WNXWLY[N]�Z[�XkN�hLKL̀YdYXYN_�Z\�XkN�NoY_XY[M�VKWY[M̀WZZi�KLcWZdd�fZ]̂dNl�nkN�XWLY[Y[M�_kẐd]�̀N�fL[]LXZWc�L[]�KLWX�Z\�XkN�L[[̂Ld�NpLd̂LXYZ[�MZLd_j�akYhk�aYdd�kNdK�fY[YfYqN�XkN�KZXN[XYLd�Z\�NfKdZcNN_�hZ[XY[̂Y[M�XZ�̂_N�XkN�Zd]j�Y[N\\NhXYpN�KWZhN__N_�aYXkẐX�hZ[_Nr̂N[hN_l�sfKdNfN[XLXYZ[�Z\�XkY_�WNhZffN[]LXYZ[�aYdd�kNdK�XZ�Y]N[XY\c�ĥWWN[X�fL[̂Ld�KWZhN__N_�XkLX�fLc�̀N�L̂XZfLXN]�Y[�XkN�KLcWZdd�fZ]̂dNj�Xk̂_�WN]̂hY[M�KWZhN__Y[M�XYfN�L[]�fL[̂Ld�hLdĥdLXYZ[�NWWZW_l�nkY_�WNhZffN[]LXYZ[�hẐd]�Ld_Z�]NdLc�XkN�[NN]�\ZW�L]]YXYZ[Ld�NfKdZcNN_�̀NhL̂_N�Z\�XkN�Y[hWNL_N]�KWZ]̂hXYpYXcl� t�
B79C79D�SmuU� nkNWN�LWN�XZZ�fL[c�fL[̂Ld�KWZhN__N_�Y[�XkN�KLcWZdd�KWZhN__j�akYhk�Y[hWNL_N_�XkN�XYfN�WNr̂YWN]�XZ�hZfKdNXN�L�KLcWZdd�L[]�XkN�hkL[hN�Z\�k̂fL[�NWWZWl�nkY_�Y_�KLWXYLddc�]̂N�XZ�XkN�̂[hNWXLY[Xc�hZ[hNW[Y[M�XkN�hLKL̀YdYXYN_�Z\�XkN�VKWY[M̀WZZi�KLcWZdd�fZ]̂dNl� G458==49C>6789�SmvU�� t�_hkN]̂dN�Z\�WN_KZ[_ỲYdYXYN_�_kẐd]�̀N�]NpNdZKN]�\ZW�XkN�bLcWZdd�L[]�ê fL[�gN_ẐWhN_�\̂[hXYZ[_�Z\�XkN�wYXcl�nkY_�_hkN]̂dN�Z\�WN_KZ[_ỲYdYXYN_�_kẐd]�\ZddZa�̀N_X�KWLhXYhN_j�Y[hd̂]Y[M�L�hdNLW�]NdY[NLXYZ[l�êfL[�gN_ẐWhN_�Y_�WN_KZ[_ỲdN�\ZW�NfKdZcNN�hWNLXYZ[j�Ǹ[N\YX_j�L[]�hkL[MN_�WNdLXY[M�XZ�KLcx�bLcWZdd�Y_�WN_KZ[_ỲdN�\ZW�hWNLXYZ[�Z\�XkN�NfKdZcNN�hkNhi�L[]�Ldd�ZXkNW�KWZhN__N_�WNdLXY[M�XZ�XkN�hkNhi�KWZhN__j�Y[hd̂]Y[M�]N]̂hXYZ[_j�KLcWZdd�XLo�L[]�WNXYWNfN[X�KWZhN__Y[Mj�WNKZWX�KWZhN__Y[M�WNdLXY[M�XZ�NfKdZcNN_�hkNhi_j�NXhl�sfKdNfN[XLXYZ[�Z\�XkY_�WNhZffN[]LXYZ[�aYdd�YfKWZpN�Y[XNW[Ld�hZ[XWZd�L[]�hZfKdc�aYXk�̀N_X�KWLhXYhN�̀c�fY[YfYqY[M�XkN�WY_i�Z\�XkN�LhhY]N[XLd�ZW�\WL̂]̂dN[X�hWNLXYZ[�L[]�KLcfN[X�Z\�\YhXYXYẐ_�NfKdZcNN_l� t�
B79C79D�SmmU� t]Nr̂LXN�Nr̂YKfN[X�XZ�\̂ddc�L̂XZfLXN�XkN�KLcWZdd�KWZhN__�Y_�dLhiY[Ml� G458==49C>6789�SmyU� nkN�wYXc�_kẐd]�Y[pN_X�Y[�XkN�K̂WhkL_N�Z\�L�\Zd]NWz_X̂\\NW�fLhkY[N�XZ�WN]̂hN�XkN�XYfN�_KN[X�Z[�\Zd]Y[M�hkNhi_�L[]�KLc_X̂̀ _�L[]�Y[_NWXY[M�XkNf�Y[XZ�N[pNdZK_�\ZW�]Y_XWỲ̂ XYZ[l�sfKdNfN[XLXYZ[�Z\�XkY_�WNhZffN[]LXYZ[�aYdd�[ZX�Z[dc�WN]̂hN�XkN�XYfN�WNr̂YWN]�̀c�XkN�bLcWZdd�wZZW]Y[LXZW�̀̂ X�Ld_Z�XkN�XYfN�_KN[X�̀c�ZXkNW�NfKdZcNN_�akZ�KNW\ZWf�_YfYdLW�]̂XYN_l� t�B79C79D�Sm{U� bLcWZdd�NfKdZcNN|_}�LWN�[ZX�hZ[_Y_XN[Xdc�Z̀XLY[Y[M�KLcWZdd~WNdLXN]�XWLY[Y[M�XZ�iNNK�̂K�aYXk�hkL[MY[M�KLcWZdd~WNdLXN]�dLa_j�ŴdN_j�L[]�WNM̂dLXYZ[_l� G458==49C>6789�Sm�U� bLcWZdd�NfKdZcNN_�_kẐd]�̀N�N[hẐWLMN]�XZ�LXXN[]�KLcWZdd~WNdLXN]�XWLY[Y[M�XZ�WNfLY[�i[ZadN]MNL̀dN�hZ[hNW[Y[M�KLcWZdd�dLa_l�sfKdNfN[XLXYZ[�Z\�XkY_�WNhZffN[]LXYZ[�aYdd�YfKWZpN�NfKdZcNN�KWZ]̂hXYpYXc�XkWẐMk�XkN�WN]̂hXYZ[�Z\�NWWZW_�hL̂_N]�̀c�dLhi�Z\�i[ZadN]MN�WNMLW]Y[M�KLcWZdd�fLXXNW_l�t[ZXkNW�̀N[N\YX�Y_�XkN�KZXN[XYLd�YfKWZpNfN[X�Y[�hZ[\Y]N[hN�L[]�fZWLdN�Z\�XkN�NfKdZcNN�]̂N�XZ�WN]̂hN]�\Ŵ_XWLXYZ[�Z\�\NNdY[M�̂[Y[\ZWfN]l� t�B79C79D�Sm�U� �Z�aWYXXN[�L̂XkZWYqLXYZ[�aL_�dZhLXN]�XkLX�L̂XkZWYqN]�XkN�wYXc�XZ�ZKNWLXN�L�]NhN[XWLdYqN]�K̂WhkL_Y[M�KWZhN__l� G458==49C>6789�SmTU� t_�L[�L]]YXYZ[Ld�hkNhi�L[]�̀LdL[hNj�XkN�wYXc�_kẐd]�hZ[_Y]NW�Y[hd̂]Y[M�L�_XNK�Y[�XkN�thhẐ[X_�bLcL̀dN�KWZhN__�XkLX�hZ[XLY[_�L�_LfKdY[M�Z\�pN[]ZW_�\WZf�NLhk�thhẐ[X_�bLcL̀dN�WNMY_XNW�XZ�hZfKLWN�L̂XkZWYqN]�_YM[LX̂WN_j����Y[\ZWfLXYZ[j�L[]�K̂WhkL_N�ZW]NW�WN\NWN[hNj�Y\�LKKdYhL̀dNl� t�

13 - 94



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;3<==>?@�8A�B79C79DE�F�G458==49C>6789E�F�H4I6�364JE� KLMN�OP�

B79C79DE� B79C79D�Q4E5?7J6789� G458==49C>6789E� G458==49C>6789�Q4E5?7J6789� R?78?76@�B79C79D�STUV� WXN�KYZ[\YN]N̂_�L̂ �̀KLa]N̂_�LKKYZbLc�KYZ[Ndd�ed�]L̂\Lcf�YNg\eYêM�KeN[Nd�Zh�KLKNY�_Z�iN�YZ\_Ǹ�_XYZ\MXZ\_�_XN�je_af�L̂ �̀_XNa�LYN�hYNg\N̂_ca�cZd_�ZY�]edKcL[Ǹf�YNg\eYêM�Nk_YL�_e]N�_Z�KYZ[Nddl� G458==49C>6789�SmnV� jYZddo_YLêêMf�Nk_NŶLc�_YLêêMf�L̂ �̀ê[YNLdǸ�L\_Z]L_eẐ�ed�LcdZ�N̂ǸǸ�ê�_XN�p[[Z\̂_d�qLaLicN�h\̂[_eẐ�_Z�e]KYZbN�KYZ̀\[_ebe_a�L̂ �̀]ZYLcNl� p�B79C79D�ST:V� je_a�d_Lhh�cL[r�_XN�r̂ZscǸMN�Zh�sXL_�[LKLiece_eNd�_XN�tKYêMiYZZr�hêL̂[eLc�dad_N]�XLd�_Z�XNcK�e]KYZbN�KYZ̀\[_ebe_al� G458==49C>6789�SmTV� p�KZce[a�dXZ\c̀�iN�̀NbNcZKǸ�_Z�N̂[Z\YLMN�p[[Z\̂_d�qLaLicN�d_Lhh�_Z�Ldr�g\Nd_eẐd�eh�_XNa�iNceNbN�L�̀eYN[_eẐ�hYZ]�_XN�uêL̂[N�veYN[_ZY�ed�[Ẑ_YLYa�_Z�je_a�KZce[a�Ld�_XNa�r̂Zs�e_l�WXed�KZce[a�dXZ\c̀�ê[c\̀N�cL̂M\LMN�_XL_�KYZ_N[_d�d_Lhh�eh�_XNa�YNh\dN�_Z�KYZ[Ndd�dZ]N_XêM�_XL_�_XNa�r̂Zs�ed�LMLêd_�KZce[al� p�B79C79D�STwV� WXNYN�ed�̂Z�deM̂L_\YN�L\_XZYexL_eẐ�cZM�se_X�hZY]Lc�bLcèL_eẐ�Zh�_XN�L\_XZYexǸ�deM̂L_\YNd�_XL_�[Z\c̀�iN�[YZddo[XN[rǸ�_Z�XNcK�èN̂_eha�\̂L\_XZYexǸ�KLa]N̂_�YNg\Nd_dl� G458==49C>6789�SmmV� ŷ N�sLa�_Z�]êe]exN�_XN�edd\N�Zh�Z]e__êM�_XN�[YNL_eẐ�Zh�L�z{PP�NYYẐNZ\dca�ed�_Z�Y\̂�L̂�p[[Z\̂_d�qLaLicN�KLa]N̂_�YNKZY_�ia�bN̂ Z̀Y�L̂ �̀[Z]KLYN�_Z�_XN�z{PP�YNKZY_�MN̂NYL_Ǹ�ia�_XN�hêL̂[eLc�dad_N]l� |�B79C79D�ST}V� WXNYN�ed�̂Z�hZY]Lc�sYe__N̂�i\̀MN_�ZbNYYèN�L\_XZYexL_eẐ�KZce[al� G458==49C>6789�Sm~V� p�hZY]Lc�sYe__N̂�K\Y[XLdêM�[LỲ�KZce[a�dXZ\c̀�iN�̀NbNcZKǸ�_XL_�ê[c\̀Nd�LccZsLicN�\dNd�Zh�_XN�[LỲ�L̂ �̀KN̂Lc_eNd�hZY�]ed\dNl�pcc�\dNYd�L̂ �̀KZ_N̂_eLc�\dNYd�Zh�K\Y[XLdêM�[LỲd�dXZ\c̀�iN�YNg\eYǸ�_Z�L__N̂ �̀_YLêêM�Ẑ�_XN�K\Y[XLdêM�[LỲ�KZce[a�L̂ �̀iN�]L̀N�LsLYN�Zh�[ẐdNg\N̂[Nd�Zh�̂Z_�L̀XNYêM�_Z�_XN�KZce[al�WXN�uêL̂[N�vNKLY_]N̂_�dXZ\c̀�Nd_LicedX�L�]Ẑe_ZYêM�KYZ[Ndd�_Z�N̂d\YN�KZce[a�[Z]KceL̂[Nl� p�B79C79D�ST�V� WXNYN�ed�̂Z�iL[ro\K�hZY�_XN�[\YYN̂_�p[[Z\̂_d�qLaLicN�d_Lhhl� �� �� ��B79C79D�ST�V� qNY�p[[Z\̂_d�qLaLicN�d_Lhhf�_XN�̀eYN[_eẐ�Zh�_XN�uêL̂[N�veYN[_ZY�ed�̂Z_�g\Nd_eẐǸf�NbN̂�eh�d_Lhh�r̂Zsd�_XL_�_XN�èYN[_eẐ�ed�L�beZcL_eẐ�Zh�KZce[al� �� �� ��B79C79D�SmnV� WXNYN�ed�̂Z_�L�KYZ[Ndd�ê�KcL[N�hZY�̀Z\icNo[XN[rêM�z{PP�KYZ̀\[_eẐ�_Z�N̂d\YN�Lcc�YNg\eYǸ�z{PPd�LYN�KYZ̀\[Ǹl� �� �� ��B79C79D�SmTV� WXNYN�ed�̂Z�hZY]Lc�sYe__N̂�K\Y[XLdêM�[LỲ�KZce[al� �� �� ��B79C79D�SmmV� t_Lhh�LYN�\dêM�L̂�Z\_̀L_Ǹ�i\dêNdd�ce[N̂dN�dad_N]�sXe[X�KYZXeie_d�_XN�KYZbedeẐ�Zh�_XN�]Zd_�Nhhe[eN̂_�dNYbe[N�_Z�i\dêNddNdl� G458==49C>6789�SmUV� je_a�dXZ\c̀�\K̀L_N�_Z�_XN�̂Ns��v��dad_N]�L̂ �̀[Ẑ_YL[_�se_X��v��_Z�\dN�e_d�YN]Z_N�i\dêNdd�ce[N̂dêM�KYZMYL]�KNY]L̂N̂_cal�WXed�secc�deM̂ehe[L̂_ca�YǸ\[N�_XN�sZYrcZL̀�Zh�_XN�_sZ�tN̂eZY�p[[Z\̂_�jcNYrdf�LccZsêM�_XN�KZde_eẐd�_Z�iN�YNK\YKZdǸ�ZY�Nce]êL_Ǹ�_Z�MN̂NYL_N�h\̂ è̂M�hZY�Z_XNY�KZde_eẐd�̀ed[\ddǸ�ê�_XN�YNd_Y\[_\YêM�YN[Z]]N̂ L̀_eẐd�ê�_Xed�YNKZY_l� p�B79C79D�Sm~V� WXN�je_a�̀ZNd�̂Z_�XLbN�i\dêNdd�ce[N̂dêM�êdKN[_ZYd�LddeM̂Ǹ�_Z�_XN�uêL̂[N�vNKLY_]N̂_�L̂ �̀YNceNd�Ẑ�_XN�heYN�êdKN[_eẐ�KYZ[Ndd�_Z�èN̂_eha�\̂ce[N̂dǸ�i\dêNddNdl� G458==49C>6789�Sm:V� WXN�je_a�dXZ\c̀�[Ẑ_YL[_�se_X�L�[Z]KL̂a�d\[X�Ld��v��ZY��\̂etNYbe[Nd�_Z�KYZbèN�L�i\dêNdd�[L̂bLddêM�KYZMYL]�_Z�̀N_N[_�\̂ce[N̂dǸ�i\dêNddNdl�WXN�iN̂Nhe_d�Zh�_Xed�YN[Z]]N̂ L̀_eẐ�LYN�_XN�èN̂_ehe[L_eẐ�Zh�\̂ce[N̂dǸ�i\dêNdd�sXe[X�LYN�YN[NebêM�L̂�\̂hLeY�L̀bL̂_LMN�ZbNY�[Z]KceL̂_�i\dêNddNdf�L̂�ê[YNLdN�ê�je_a�YNbN̂\Nf�L̂ �̀L̂�ê[YNLdN�ê�_XN�L[[\YL[a�Zh�_XN�i\dêNdd�̀L_LiLdNl� |�
13 - 95



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;3<==>?@�8A�B79C79DE�F�G458==49C>6789E�F�H4I6�364JE� KLMN�OP�

B79C79DE� B79C79D�Q4E5?7J6789� G458==49C>6789E� G458==49C>6789�Q4E5?7J6789� R?78?76@�B79C79D�STUV� WXY�Z[\]̂_�̀a_[bY__�c[dYb_[be�fgh[bibdYj�ic\klmMk�nlo�mnpqmNr�ps�ltNuvw�xlyKvpxLoNz�{lu�|mspnNss�vpxNnspnM�xLvxmvLopln}� G458==49C>6789�ST~V� �kN�|mspnNss�vpxNnsN�luzpnLnxN�sklmvz�|N�uNtpN�Nz�Lnz�uNtpsNz�ol�uNzmxN�xlyKvN�popNs�l{�|mspnNss�vpxNnsN�{NN�xLvxmvLopln�Lnz�|mspnNss�xLoNMlup�Lopln}��kps��pvv�|NnN{po�okN��pow�|w�KloNnopLvvw�Lvvl�pnM�|mspnNssNs�ol�xLvxmvLoN�okNpu�{NNs�okNysNvtNs�ol�sKNNz�mK�uNxNpKo�l{�KLwyNno�Lnz�uNzmxN�LzypnpsouLopln�opyN}� ��
B79C79D�ST:V� �kNuN�ps�nl�{luyLv�LmolyLoNz�Lxxlmnos�uNxNptL|vN�KulxNss}� G458==49C>6789�ST�V� �NtNvlKyNno�l{�L�{luyLv�LmolyLoNz�Lxxlmnos�uNxNptL|vN�KulxNss�sklmvz�|N�xlyKvNoNz}��kN�KulxNss�sklmvz�xlnoLpn�Ln�Lmoklup�Lopln�{luy��|pvvpnM�LztpxN��okLo�ymso�|N�LKKultNz�|N{luN�L�|pvv�ps�MNnNuLoNz}��vslr�okN�KulxNss�sklmvz�pnxvmzN�Ln�LKKultLv�KulxNzmuN�pn�okN��pnLnxN��NKLuoyNno�ol�ypnpyp�N�NuulnNlms�lu�{uLmzmvNno�|pvvpnMs}��zzpoplnLvvwr�okN�Lxxlmnos�uNxNptL|vN�KulxNss�sklmvz�|N�LmolyLoNz�mspnM�okN�xmuuNno�Lxxlmnos�uNxNptL|vN�ylzmvN�pn�okN��KupnM|ull��{pnLnxpLv�swsoNyr�p{�LtLpvL|vNr�lu�slyN�lokNu�LmolyLoNz�swsoNy}��kN��pow�sklmvz�Lvsl�xlnouLxo��pok�Ln�N�oNunLv�xlvvNxopln�LMNnxw�ol�Lsspso�pn�xlvvNxopln�l{�sNuplmsvw�zNvpnqmNno�uNxNptL|vNs}��kps�uNxlyyNnzLopln��pvv�{luyLvp�N�okN�Lxxlmnos�uNxNptL|vN�swsoNy�Lnz�pyKultN�opyNvpnNss�l{�uNtNnmN�uNxlMnpopln�Lnz�ypnpyp�N�|pvvpnM�Nuulus}� ��
B79C79D�ST~V� �l�NtpzNnxN��Ls�{lmnz�l{�L�{luyLv�ylnok�Nnz�lu�qmLuoNu�Nnz�LxxlmnopnM�KNuplz�xvlspnM�pn�uNxNno�{psxLv�wNLus}� G458==49C>6789�ST�V� �NNsoL|vpsk�L�{luyLv�KulxNss�{lu�LxxlmnopnM�KNuplz�xvlspnM�ln�Lo�vNLso�L�ylnokvw�|Lsps}��kps�uNxlyyNnzLopln��pvv�kNvK�MLmMN��kNuN�lKNuLoplns�LuN�kNLzpnM�Lnz�Lvvl��{lu�okN�zNtNvlKyNno�l{�souLoNMpNs�ol�LzzuNss�pssmNs�|N{luN�okN�Nnz�l{�okN�{psxLv�wNLu}��o��pvv�Lvsl�KultpzN�L�xlnspsoNno�ollv�ol�kNvK��pok�lKNuLoplnLv�Kul�Nxoplns}� ��B79C79D�ST�V� �kN��pow�zlNs�nlo�kLtN�L�{luyLv��upooNn�zN|o�xlvvNxopln�Klvpxw}� G458==49C>6789�ST�V� ��{luyLv�zN|o�xlvvNxopln�Klvpxw�sklmvz�|N�zNtNvlKNz}��kN�Klvpxw�sklmvz�pnxvmzN�okN�pnoNunLv�soNKs�okN��pow��pvv�oL�N�|N{luN�zNvpnqmNnxw�ps�sNno�ol�L�xlvvNxopln�LMNnxwr��kpxk�xkLuMNs�L�{NN}��vslr�okN��pow�sklmvz�Nn{luxN�okN�xlnouLxo�uNqmpuNyNno�okLo�okN�xlvvNxopln�LMNnxw�sm|ypo�ylnokvw�Lxoptpow�uNKluos�ol�okN��pow�sl�okLo�okN�xlvvNxopln�LMNnxw�N{{NxoptNnNss�xLn�|N�ylnpoluNz}� ��B79C79D�ST�V� �lnokvw�|Ln��uNxlnxpvpLoplns�kLtN�|NNn�xlnspsoNnovw�|Nkpnz�{lu�okN�KLso�okuNN�{psxLv�wNLus}��voklmMk�okps�{Lxo�kLs�|NNn�xlyyNnoNz�ln�pn�yLnLMNyNno�vNooNus�{lu�okN��i_\��[_dic�]Yig_̂�iah[\_j�\XY��ibieY�Yb\�cY\\Yg_�ibh�Lmzpos��NuN�nlo�yLzN�LtLpvL|vN�|w�okN��pnLnxN��puNxolu�lu�okN�Lmzpolus�ol�okN��pow��ibieYĝ_����[dY�fg�\XY�Z[\]�Zfabd[c��g[fg�\f�̀Y[be�[bdcahYh�fb�\XY�Z[\]̂_��Ỳ_[\Y�� G458==49C>6789�S��V� �s�L�Klvpxwr�{pnLv�Lmzpos�sklmvz�|N�uNtpN�Nz�|w�okN��pow��LnLMNu�Lnz�KuNsNnoNz�ol�okN��pow��lmnxpv}��vslr�okN��pow��lmnxpv�sklmvz�|N�KuNsNnoNz��pok�uNsKlnsNs�Lnz�L�KvLn�ol�LzzuNss�okN�yLnLMNyNno�vNooNu�xlyyNnos�l{�okN�Lmzpo}��kps��pvv�NnsmuN�okLo�okN��pow�ps�L�LuN�l{�KloNnopLv�pssmNs�Lnz�xmuuNno�{pnLnxNsr��kpxk��pvv�Lvvl��okN��pow�ol�yL�N�yluN�pn{luyNz�zNxpsplns��kN��pow�sklmvz�uNtpN��pos�xmuuNno�xlnouLxo��pok�okN�N�oNunLv�Lmzpolu�ol�NnsmuN�okLo�okN�pn{luyLopln�l{�okN�Lmzpo�ps�zpssNypnLoNz�xluuNxovw}� ��

13 - 96



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;3<==>?@�8A�B79C79DE�F�G458==49C>6789E�F�H4I6�364JE� KLMN�OP�

B79C79DE� B79C79D�Q4E5?7J6789� G458==49C>6789E� G458==49C>6789�Q4E5?7J6789� R?78?76@�B79C79D�STUV� WXN�YZ[\�]̂N_�̀̂ [�XLaN�L�b̂cdLe�fL_X�cNfNZK[Z̀MgXL̀]eZ̀M�K̂eZf\h� G458==49C>6789�SijV� k�b̂cdLe�fL_X�cNfNZK[Z̀MgXL̀]eZ̀M�K̂eZf\�̀NN]_�[̂�lN�]NaNêKN]h�WXN�K̂eZf\�_X̂me]�Z̀fem]N�KĉfN]mcN_�[XL[�Lee�YZ[\�]NKLc[dǸ[_�dm_[�b̂eên�Zb�fL_X�Z_�XL̀]eN]�L̀]�[XN�nL\�fL_X�_X̂c[LMN_ĝaNcLMN_�L̀]�KN[[\�fL_X�LcN�dL̀LMN]h�omdNĉm_�dm̀ZfZKLe�bZ̀L̀fN�ĉML̀ZpL[Ẑ̀ _q�_mfX�L_�[XN�rstk�L̀]�Yuvstq�XLaN�_LdKeN�K̂eZfZN_�nXZfX�[XN�YZ[\�f̂me]�L]̂K[h� k�B79C79D�SiwV� WXN�YZ[\�]̂N_�̀̂ [�KcNKLcN�L�fL_X�bên�L̀Le\_Z_�̂̀ �L̀�̂̀ xM̂Z̀M�lL_Z_h� G458==49C>6789�SiTV� k�fL_X�bên�L̀Le\_Z_�_X̂me]�lN�KcNKLcN]�d^̀[Xe\�[̂�L__Z_[�Z̀�dLyZdZpZ̀M�Z̀aN_[dǸ[�cN[mc̀�L̀]�[̂�Ǹ_mcN�eZzmZ]Z[\h� k�B79C79D�SijV� u[Lbb�eNLaN_�[XN�_LbN�̂KǸ�]mcZ̀M�[XN�]L\�]mN�[̂�L�bLme[\�_LbN�f̂dlZ̀L[Ẑ̀ �dNfXL̀Z_dh� G458==49C>6789�SiiV� WXN�YZ[\�_X̂me]�Z̀aN_[�Z̀�cNKLZcZ̀M�[XN�_LbN�Z̀�[XN�sZ̀L̀fN�{NKLc[dǸ[�aLme[�ĉ d̂h�WXZ_�nZee�Leên�[XN�_LbN�[̂�lN�fê_N]�L̀]�êf|N]�nXǸ�̀̂ [�Z̀�m_N�]mcZ̀M�[XN�]L\�L̀]�Z̀fcNL_N�fL_X�_NfmcZ[\h� k�B79C79D�SiTV� WXN�YZ[\�]̂N_�̀̂ [�XLaN�L�b̂cdLe�KN[[\�fL_X�K̂eZf\�[XL[�Z_�Ǹb̂cfN]h� �� }}}}�uNN�~Nf̂ddǸ]L[Ẑ̀ ���P� k�B79C79D�SiiV� k[XǸ_�f̂ [̀cLf[�eL̀MmLMN�b̂c�cNbm_N�fLefmeL[Ẑ̀ �L̀]�cNdZ[[L̀fN�Z_�aLMmNh� G458==49C>6789�Si�V� kdǸ]�[XN�k[XǸ_�f̂ [̀cLf[�eL̀MmLMN�[̂�feNLce\�_[L[N�X̂n�KL\dǸ[_�]mN�[̂�[XN�YZ[\�nZee�lN�fLefmeL[N]�L̀]�cNdZ[[N]h� ���� �� G458==49C>6789�Si:V� Ŷ _̀Z]Nc�KeLfZ̀M�L�|Ẑ_|�Z̀�[XN�êll\�[XĉmMX�nXZfX�fm_[̂dNc_�fL̀�KNcb̂cd�_ZdKeN�[cL̀_Lf[Ẑ̀ _�Z̀_[NL]�̂b�nLZ[Z̀M�Z̀�eZ̀Nh�WXZ_�n̂me]�KĉaZ]N�_̂dN�cNeZNb�[̂�_[Lbb�L̀]�Leên�[XNd�[̂�n̂c|�̂̀ �̂[XNc�lLf|xêMMN]�LcNL_h� {�B79C79D�Si�V� WXN�Z̀aN_[dǸ[�K̂eZf\�dNN[_�rstk�lN_[�KcLf[ZfNh� G458==49C>6789�Si�V� ~NaZNn�L̀]�cNaZ_N�LKKeZfLleN�K̂eZfZN_gKĉfN]mcN_�[̂�Ǹ_mcN�[XL[����������������������������������������������������������� k��� �� G458==49C>6789�Si�V� YZ[\�_X̂me]�]NaNêK�L�b̂cdLe�fL_X�bên�L̀Le\_Z_�KĉfN__�[̂�Ǹ_mcN�[XL[�Z̀aN_[dǸ[�̂b�Z]eN�fL_X�Z_�dLyZdZpN]h� ���� �� G458==49C>6789�Si�V� WXN�bZedZ̀M�bm̀f[Ẑ̀ �_X̂me]�cNdLZ̀�Z̀�[XN�sZ̀L̀fN�{NKLc[dǸ[�m̀eN__�[XN�sW��Z_�cNKeLfN]�Z̀�[XN�sZ̀L̀fN�{NKLc[dǸ[h�ke[X̂mMX�[XZ_�LccL̀MNdǸ[�Z_�m̀m_mLeq�[XN�lLf|mK�cN_K̂ _̀ZlZeZ[ZN_�dL̀LMN]�l\�[XN�sW��Z̀fem]Z̀M�KX̂ Ǹ_q�f̂m̀[Nc�n̂c|q�L̀]�̂[XNc�f̂aNcLMN�]m[ZN_�Z_�aNc\�XNeKbme�Z̀�L]]cN__Z̀M�̂KNcL[Ẑ̀ Le�L̀]�fm_[̂dNc�_NcaZfN�̀NN]_h��̂ nNaNcq�[XN�[Z[eN�̂b�sZed�Ŷ ĉ]Z̀L[̂c�_X̂me]�lN�fXL̀MN�[̂�vL̀LMNdǸ[�k__Z_[L̀[�[̂�Z̀f̂cK̂cL[N�[XN�̂[XNc�]m[ZN_�lNZ̀M�KNcb̂cdN]�Z̀�[XN�sZ̀L̀fN�{NKLc[dǸ[h� Y��� �� G458==49C>6789�SiUV� ���������������������������������� ���¡�������¡���¢����� ���£�¡�����£�KNcdZ[�bNN_�[̂�Ǹ_mcN�[XL[�[XN�YZ[\�Z_�fXLcMZ̀M�LKKĉKcZL[Ne\�b̂c�Lee�LKKeZfLleN�_NcaZfN_h� Y�B79C79D�Si:V� WXN�YZ[\�]̂N_�̀̂ [�XLaN�L�KĉfN__�b̂c�]NKLc[dǸ[_�[̂�]NaNêK�M̂Le_�L̀]�̂l¤Nf[ZaN������ �������������������������_[L[NdǸ[�L̀]�f̂cN�aLemN_h� G458==49C>6789�S�wV� {NaNêK�L�KĉfN__�[XL[�cNzmZcN_�]NKLc[dǸ[_�[̂�]NaNêK�M̂Le_�L̀]��¥¦�������������� ����������������������������������������������� ����WXN�nZee�XNeK�[XN�sZ̀L̀fN�{NKLc[dǸ[�L̀]�̂[XNc�]NKLc[dǸ[_�������������������������� �������������������������������������� Y�
13 - 97



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;3<==>?@�8A�B79C79DE�F�G458==49C>6789E�F�H4I6�364JE� KLMN�OP�

B79C79DE� B79C79D�Q4E5?7J6789� G458==49C>6789E� G458==49C>6789�Q4E5?7J6789� R?78?76@�
� � G458==49C>6789�STUV�

WXN�YZ[\�]X̂_̀a�b̂c]ZaNd�dN][d_b[_dZcM�[XN�aZeZ]Ẑc]�Lca�]̂fN�̂g�[XN�K̂]Z[Ẑc]�Zc�[XN�hZcLcbN�iNKLd[fNc[j�WXN�ĝ̀`̂kZcM�Z]�L�̀Z][�̂g�]_MMN][Na�aZeZ]Ẑc�Lca�K̂]Z[Ẑc�dN][d_b[_dN]j�lfK̀NfNc[L[Ẑc�̂g�[XZ]�dNb̂ffNcaL[Ẑc�kZ̀̀�mdZcM�[XN�YZ[\�̂g�n̂_[X�oL]LaNcL�Zcp̀ZcN�kZ[X�b̂fKLdLm̀N�bZ[ZN]q�kXZbX�b̂_̀a�XǸK�Zc�dNbd_Z[fNc[�Lca�Zc[NdcL̀�bd̂]]p[dLZcZcMj�rsjs�YXLcMN�t]]Z][Lc[�hZcLcbN�iZdNb[̂d�K̂]Z[Ẑc�[̂�hZ]bL̀�nNdeZbN]�uLcLMNdj�WXN�a_[ZN]�k̂ _̀a�mN�KdN[[\�f_bX�[XN�]LfN�L]�[X̂]N�Zc�[XN�b_ddNc[�v̂m�aN]bdZK[Ẑc�kZ[X�[XN�LaaZ[ẐcL̀�̂g�b̂c[dLb[�f̂ cZ[̂dZcM�̂c�L�YZ[\kZaN�mL]Z]�[̂�XǸK�LaXNdNcbN�[̂�b̂c[dLb[ZcM�K̂ Z̀bZN]j�rsjP�YXLcMN�_cZw_N�K̂]Z[Ẑc]�]_bX�L]�hZ̀f�xZLZ]̂c�Lca�oL\d̂`̀�Ŷ d̂aZcL[̂d�[̂�f d̂N�MNcNdL̀̀\�[Z[̀N�K̂]Z[Ẑc]�kXNdN�[XN�a_[ZN]�bLc�mN�b_][̂fZyNa�L]�cNNaNaj�tc�NzLfK̀N�k̂ _̀a�mN�[̂�ZaNc[Zg\�tbb̂_c[�WNbXcZbZLc]�Zc�L�]NdZN]�{ZjNjq�tbb̂_c[�WNbXcZbZLc�lq�tbb̂_c[�WNbXcZbZLc�llq�N[bj|j�WXN�b_ddNc[�tbb̂_c[�WNbXcZbZLc�XLcàZcM�Lbb̂_c[]�KL\Lm̀N�k̂ _̀a�L̀]̂�mN�Zcb̀_aNa�Zc�[XZ]�tbb̂_c[�WNbXcZbZLc�]NdZN]j�WXZ]�k̂ _̀a�L]]Z][�Zc�dNbd_Z[fNc[�Lca�Ncb̂_dLMN�bd̂]]p[dLZcZcM�Lca�]XLdZcM�̂g�ZaNL]�mN[kNNc�̀Z}N�K̂]Z[Ẑc]j�rsj~�lg�[XN�YZ[\�aNbZaN]�[̂�b̂c[dLb[�kZ[X��ix�[̂�KNdfLcNc[̀\�LafZcZ][Nd�[XN�m_]ZcN]]�̀ZbNc]N�Kd̂MdLf�LKKd̂zZfL[Ǹ\����KNdbNc[�ĝ�[XN�k̂d}̀̂ La�ĝd�NLbX�̂g�[XN�nNcẐd�tbb̂_c[�ỲNd}�K̂]Z[Ẑc]�k̂ _̀a�mN�ǸZfZcL[Naj�WXN�YZ[\�]X̂_̀a�b̂c]ZaNd�ǸZfZcL[ZcM�[XN�nNcẐd�tbb̂_c[�ỲNd}�K̂]Z[Ẑc]�Lca�bdNL[ZcM�K̂]Z[Ẑc�̂g�Y_][̂fNd�nNdeZbN��NKdN]Nc[L[ZeN]j�i_[ZN]�k̂ _̀a�Zcb̀_aN�KdZfLd\�b̂_c[Nd�]_KK̂d[�Lca�LafZcZ][dL[Ẑc�]_KK̂d[�̂g�[XN�b̂c[dLb[Na�mZ̀̀ZcM�g_cb[Ẑc]��Zcb̀_aZcM�kL[Nd�Lca�]NkNdq�dNg_]Nq�bL]X�dNbNZK[ZcMj�WXN�]LeZcM]�gd̂f�[XN�ǸZfZcL[Ẑc�̂g�[k̂�nNcẐd�tbb̂_c[�ỲNd}]�Lca�[XN�bdNL[Ẑc�̂g�L�Y_][̂fNd�nNdeZbN]��NKdN]Nc[L[ZeN�b̂_̀a�KL\�ĝd�[XN�fLv̂dZ[\�̂g�Lc�tbb̂_c[Lc[�K̂]Z[Ẑc�[̂�XǸK�fLZc[LZc�_K�[̂�aL[N�mLc}�dNb̂cbZ̀ZL[Ẑc]�v̂_dcL̀�ê_bXNd]q�f ĉ[XpNcaq�w_Ld[NdpNcaq�Lca�\NLdpNca�MNcNdL̀�ǸaMNd�b̀̂ ]ZcM�Kd̂bNa_dN]q�[XN�Yth�q�N[bj�[̂�Nc]_dN�[XL[�[XN�̂[XNd�aNKLd[fNc[]�Lca�YZ[\�Ŷ _cbZ̀�XLeN�b_ddNc[�Lca�Lbb_dL[N�gZcLcbZL̀�ZcĝdfL[Ẑc�̂c�kXZbX�[̂�mL]N�aNbZ]Ẑc]j�rsjr�nZcbN�[XNdN�LdN�b_ddNc[̀\�̂[XNd�uLcLMNfNc[�t]]Z][Lc[]�kZ[XZc�[XN�YZ[\�Lca�[XN�v̂m�aN]bdZK[Ẑc]�b̂c[LZc�b̀NdZbL̀�Lca�b̂_c[NdpdǸL[Na�a_[ZN]q�Z[�Z]�dNb̂ffNcaNa�[XL[�[XZ]�K̂]Z[Ẑc�dNfLZc�L]�Z]j�WXN�aZeZ]Ẑc�dN][d_b[_dN�k̂ _̀a�b̂c]Z][�̂g�[XN�ĝ̀`̂kZcM���C=797E6?>6789V� hZcLcbN�iZdNb[̂dq�hZ]bL̀�nNdeZbN]�uLcLMNdq�uLcLMNfNc[�t]]Z][Lc[��558<9679DV� tbb̂_c[�WNbXcZbZLc�llpoL\d̂`̀q�tbb̂_c[�WNbXcZbZLc�l���tbb̂_c[]�oL\Lm̀Nq�{P|�tbb̂_c[Lc[�lq��G4�49<4��>9>D4=496V� Y_][̂fNd�nNdeZbN��NKdN]Nc[L[ZeNq�tbb̂_c[�WNbXcZbZLc�ll�

Y�

13 - 98



����������	�
������������������������������������������ ��!�"�#$%&'($)&*+�',*%)�,(�#,)-�".$'(,�*))#,$(/0�+&($)��,&1&+(2(-�

3456789�:;3<==>?@�8A�B79C79DE�F�G458==49C>6789E�F�H4I6�364JE� KLMN�OP�

B79C79DE� B79C79D�Q4E5?7J6789� G458==49C>6789E� G458==49C>6789�Q4E5?7J6789� R?78?76@��� �� G458==49C>6789�STUV� WXYZ[Y�Z�\]̂_[_]̀�a_[b_̀�[bY�W_[c�dZ̀ZeYXf̂�]gg_hY�[bZ[�a]ijk�]lYX̂YY�mKNnoLp�qorstouN�vKNwLrovxLp�oyKwvzNyNxr�Kwv{Nnrm|�}~om�tv�pu��NxN�or�r~N�qors��s�KwvzouoxM�wNmv�wnNm�r~Lr�nv�pu��N�uNuonLrNu�rv�zLwov�m�mKNnoLp�Kwv{Nnrm�Lm�xNnNmmLws�rv�oyKwvzN�qorstouN�vwMLxo�LrovxLp�N��NnrozNxNmm|�}~om�Kvmorovx�nv�pu�Lpmv�Lmmomr�r~N��oxLxnN��NKLwryNxr�tor~�KNwovuon��oxLxnN�wNpLrNu�Kwv{Nnrm�Lxu�~NpK�[]��]̀_[]X��Y\ZX[�Ỳ[Zj�ZkbYXỲhY�[]�[bY�W_[cf̂�g_̀Z̀h_Zj�\]j_h_Ŷ���vrNxroLp�rorpNm��vw�r~om�Kvmorovx�oxnp�uN��wMLxo�LrovxLp����NnrozNxNmm��LxLMNw�vw��KNwLrovxLp��yKwvzNyNxr��LxLMNw|�}~N�Kvmorovx�m~v�pu��N�Lr�L�qors�yLxLMNyNxr�rNLy�pNzNp�rv�oxrNwLnr�tor~�uNKLwryNxr�~NLum�Lm�xNnNmmLws|� ��
B79C79D�S��V� �x�N�rNxmozN�Lyv�xr�v��ox�vwyLrovx�LuuwNmmoxM�KvponoNm�Lxu�KwvnNu�wNm�LwN�oxnp�uNu�ox�r~N��oxLxnN��NKLwryNxr��opN�vx�r~N��oxLxnoLp�msmrNy�t~on~�nv�pu��N��mNu�Lm�L��Lmom�rv�LuuwNmm�n�wwNxr�vKNwLrovxLp�omm�Nm|�}~N�ox�vwyLrovx��~vtNzNw��om�ox�zLwov�m��vwym�Lxu�pvnLrovxm�Lxu�ox�mvyN�nLmNm�ox�L��vwyLr�xvr�n�wwNxrps��mNu|� G458==49C>6789�ST�V� �ozNx�r~N�n�wwNxr�mrL��oxM�pNzNp�Lxu�tvw�pvLu��r~N�qors�m~v�pu�~owN�L�r~owu�KLwrs�rv�uNzNpvK�L�nvyKwN~NxmozN�KvponoNm�Lxu�KwvnNu�wNm�Lnnv�xroxM�yLx�Lp|�}~om�topp�KwvzouN�L�mvpou��Lmom��wvy�t~on~�rv�yoxoyo�N�vKNwLrovxLp�oxN��onoNxnoNm��Nx~LxnN�oxrNwxLp�nvxrwvp��Lxu�wNu�nN�nvx��movx�r~wv�M~v�r�r~N�qors|� q��� �� G458==49C>6789�STTV� �x�N�rNwxLp�rNLy���opuoxM�nvxm�prLxr�m~v�pu��N�~owNu��s�r~N�qors�vxnN�r~N�xNt��oxLxnN��owNnrvw�om�~owNu�rv�~NpK�ouNxro�s�Lxu�LuuwNmm�omm�Nm�Lxu�N�KNnrLrovxm�ox�LuzLxnN�Lxu�uNzNpvK�Lnrovx�KpLxm�rv�~NpK�yL�oyo�N�r~N�yvwLpN�Lxu�Kwvu�nrozors�v��r~N��NKLwryNxr|� n��

13 - 99



��������	�
������	����������	���������
13 - 100



�

�

���������	�
��������������������������� !���"��#�#�$%�����&�'�(�����)�( �&�*+,�( �����#�-.�/�,���0�(����������1�������������� !���"��#�#�$%�����&�'�(�����)�( �&�*+,�( �����#�-.�2���!3�.���������4���(%50��6�$!�(%.�230,���#3(#�&�73,�����3(���#� ���������8���(%50��6�$!�(%.�230,���#3(#�&�9��!5-3��(!�2����#���������:���(%50��6�$!�(%.�230,���#3(#�&�7��;�3�#�.�<#� �230,����3��$!�(%��#�
13 - 101



��������	�
������	����������	���������
13 - 102



���������	�
�������������������������������������������������������������� ����!"�#��$� �%�"&�&��' �!��������"!������������� �"�&�()����!" *�� +,-,./,�012,3456,7 89�:;<:=�>/?3,2 89�:;<:=�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:=<:D�>/?3,2 89�:=<:D�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:D<:E�>/?3,2 89�:D<:E�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:E<:F�>/?3,2 89�:E<:F�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:F<:G�>/?3,2 89�:F<:G�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:G<:H�>/?3,2 >/?3,2 @A2/1B C1561.A,I1J,7K54L,52M�I1J,7 :NO;;;OENN������������ ::ONGDOFND���������� HE;O:ND������ :NOPFHOG:N������������ ::ODF;OEHF���������� DP=OHGF����� ::OP:EOGGN������������ ::OPPNONGD���������� GDO=ND������� :;OD;EOGDH������������ :;OF=;OPHD���������� ;NGO;=F����� :=O:PFOPHG������������ :=O;=FOH=;���������� =POHDE�������� :=OFFDOPGP������������ EHOG;POG:E�������������� FNO=PGONHN������������� :OFFGO=FE���Q6R515M�SL,A61B�I1J ;=:OHHN��������������� ;=:OHHN������ T������������������������ ;=:OFFG��������������� ;=:OFFG����� ;=NONNN����������������� ;=;O=HH��������������� ;O=HH��������� ;=NONNN����������������� ;=:OFDE��������������� :OFDE��������� =NFONNN����������������� =NPOHHF��������������� =OHHF���������� =:;O:;N����������������� GFFONNN������������������� :O;=GODFF��������������� DG:ODFF������S1B,7�I1J ;ONNFONNN�������������� ;O;NGOFPF������������ ;N:OFPF������ ;O:HNOD:N�������������� ;O=ENOGH:������������ :GNO=G:����� ;O;GGO;DN�������������� ;OD:DODPH������������ :=GO;EH����� ;OE=:ONNN�������������� ;OF=EOPFH������������ :NDOPFH����� ;OE;EOFFG�������������� ;ODEFOFFF������������ UFPONN:V������ ;OF;EONNN�������������� ::OE;NO=:G�������������� :;ONFEOFNP������������� EDEO;P;������W26B62M�W7,57�I1J,7 =ODPPOPNN�������������� =OEF;O;:F������������ F;O=:F�������� =OFF:ONDN�������������� =ODHFOGGF������������ U:GDO;FDV��� =OG:PONNN�������������� =OD;=O;:G������������ U;PEOGH=V��� =OFFNONNN�������������� =OD:DOH;G������������ U;DEO:G=V��� =OENNONNN�������������� =O=H:OPDH������������ U::HONE;V���� =OD=NONNN�������������� :HON=POPDN�������������� :GO;FHOPHD������������� UGGNOPEFV����851.AX67,�8,,7�<�Y2X,5�I1J,7 GEHOENN����������������� PD:O=EH��������������� :H;OHEH������ GFNOE:P����������������� P=;OGDN��������������� :G;O;;:����� HH=O:NN����������������� :ON;DOHPH������������ :D:OGPH����� P:PONNN����������������� :ONNNOFFD������������ H:OFFD������� :ONNDONNN�������������� :ON:PO;NG������������ :EO;NG�������� PFNONNN����������������� DO=;EO::P���������������� DOP:HOHFG��������������� EP=OGDH�������Z !���!��& 
[\]̂[\_̀`������������ 
̂\̀
a\ab]���������� :OE=NOHED��� 
a\bà\[a_������������ 
̂\][]\bb̀���������� HP=OHG:����� 
_\̀cb\

̀������������ 
_\̀̂ b\̀ab���������� EPOPFE������� 
_\a[b\a]̂������������ 
_\_
[\̀̂ ^���������� :ENO=DN����� c̀\bdc\[b]������������ c̀\]̀]\bd_���������� U:;HO::EV���� c̀\__c\̀__������������ _d\d̂
\̀_
�������������� _b\̂̂ \̂̀̀ [������������� c\b̀[\_
b���Q6A,.7,7�1.?�K,5e627 P:EO;NN����������������� PENO;EF��������������� =EONEF�������� :ON=EO;NN�������������� P==OH:F��������������� U:N:O=HDV��� PHEOH;N����������������� :ON:NOGGP������������ ;DOPEP������� PHEOH;N����������������� :ON;HOEH=������������ D;OGF=������� :ONNDOPNN�������������� :ONEFO=EG������������ E:ODEG�������� :ONNFODDN�������������� DOP;FOPDN���������������� DOPGPOGP:��������������� E;OHE:��������86.,7�1.?�845f,62/5,7 ENEONNN����������������� E;=OF;P��������������� :HOF;P�������� E=NONNN����������������� D:;OGDH��������������� U::GO;E;V��� E=NONNN����������������� =DGOEHE��������������� U:H;OD:EV��� ==;ONNN����������������� DDDOEEF��������������� ::;OEEF����� =FFONNN����������������� =PGOG=H��������������� =:OG=H�������� =FGONNN����������������� ;O;F=ONNN���������������� ;O:;FO;EF��������������� U:=FOGDDV����W7,�4f�g4.,M�1.?�K54L,52M DN:O:;N����������������� DEFOEH:��������������� EEODF:�������� =GPOD;N����������������� DH=OH=P��������������� :NDOD:P����� =HFONGN����������������� E;NOHGP��������������� :=DOHNP����� DHHO=HD����������������� FH:ONG=��������������� :P;OFHP����� EHNOEHE����������������� ED:OGDP��������������� U=HOH=FV������ F=;OFG:����������������� ;O;=EOEGP���������������� ;OFHDO:;:��������������� DDHOED;������Y2X,5�@3,.A6,7 DEONNN������������������� FNOHP=����������������� :EOHP=�������� =EONNN������������������� ;PNOEPF��������������� ;EEOEPF����� =DONNN������������������� D=POG==��������������� DNEOG==����� :GONNN������������������� :=FO=;H��������������� ::PO=;H����� :EONNN������������������� GFO=HF����������������� F:O=HF�������� FGNONNN����������������� :DFONNN������������������� :ONN=OP=F��������������� HEGOP=F������0/55,.2�S,5-6A,7 ;ONDDODEN�������������� ;O;NHODDG������������ :F=OPPG������ ;ONPNOF;E�������������� ;OF;PO;;P������������ E=HOFND����� ;OD:EONNN�������������� ;OPGDO:;D������������ EEPO:;D����� ;O=PHOH:N�������������� ;OHNEODH:������������ DNFOFG:����� ;OD:=OENN�������������� ;OP:=OPNH������������ ENNODNH������ ;O=HFONEN�������������� ::O=F;O=HE�������������� :=OE=:O:HP������������� ;O:FHOHND���@BB�Y2X,5�+,-,./,7�<�I51.7f,57�h. :O==DOGHP�������������� HFNOEED��������������� UDGDO;=EV���� :ONPNOPDH�������������� :O:=NOPHH������������ DNONDN������� GDHOGGH����������������� H:NO=EG��������������� F:OEGP������� GD;O:EE����������������� :ODGGOPDE������������ G=EOGPN����� GNPO=H;����������������� PFEOENE��������������� ;EFO:;=������ FHNO=H;����������������� DOF;FONE;���������������� EO;DEO=DP��������������� F:PO;PG�������Z !����%����& c
\adc\]b_������������ cd\̀â\

]���������� 
\d]b\[bb��� cc\ad
\̂ac������������ c]\d]b\a[[���������� 
\[
d\̂_]�� c]\
c]\aâ������������ cb\
̂ \̂bdc���������� 
\̀[d\ab]�� c]\ac_\_
a������������ c[\]_̀\̀b]���������� 
\a[̀\
da�� cb\[cc\̀c
������������ c[\db[\
̂c���������� ad]\
[
������ c[\ad]\[]c������������ 

̂\_]
\̀]a������������ 
cb\]b̂\[]̂����������� [\b
a\[̀
���iJL,.?62/5,�j,L152e,.27 89�:;<:=�>/?3,2 89�:;<:=�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:=<:D�>/?3,2 89�:=<:D�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:D<:E�>/?3,2 89�:D<:E�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:E<:F�>/?3,2 89�:E<:F�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:F<:G�>/?3,2 89�:F<:G�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:G<:H�>/?3,2 ET9,15�I421B�>/?3,2ET9,15�I421B�@A2/1B C1561.A,062M�04/.A6B EDODH:� D=O=GE� ::O:NF�������� EHOE=:� DHONEP� :NODG;������� F:O:N=� E:OG;F� PO=GG��������� F=O:D=� E=OPPP� PO:DD��������� FEOGGE������������������� D;O:PE� ;=OEHN�������� FFO=HH������������������� =N=ON==������������������� ;=PO=ED������������������ F=OFGP��������g1.13,e,.2�S,5-6A,7062M�g1.13,5 HPEOPHN� HGHOGPD� :GO:HF�������� HH:O:N:� HE:O:FP� ;POP=;������� P=NO==N� H=NOD:F� PPOP:D������� HNPOF=G� GD=OP:F� FEOG;:������� PEEONNP����������������� P:HO::E� =FOHPD�������� PG:OHDD����������������� DODG;ONEG���������������� DO;;;OD:N��������������� ;DPOFDG������062M�0B,5k =HPO=HG� ;H=OFGD� :NEOG:=������ DN;O=FP� ==GOF;F� FDOGD=������� =GDOEPN� =FFOEE;� HON=H��������� D;HOEEN� =P=O;;;� =EO=;H������� DD=OH;=����������������� DFDO::=� U;NO;PNV������ DF=OH;;����������������� ;ON=HOG:P���������������� :OHDEO:HG��������������� :P=OE=;������iB,A264.7 FEN� =::� ==P������������� :EGO:NN� DPO;:D� :NGOHHF����� GEN� :O;HG� UE=GV���������� :;DOEEN� FDO:DP� FNODN:������� =OFNN��������������������� T� =OFNN���������� HOFNN��������������������� ;HFOFEN������������������� ::DOPF:������������������ :G:OFHP������l/e1.�+,74/5A,7 :;EODNN� ;HGO::=� U:F:OG:=V���� :FFONND� ;HPODFH� U:;=ODFDV��� ;;:O;GE� ;DGO=FD� U;FONHPV����� :G:O;GE� ::=O;;H� EHONDG������� :G:O=NN����������������� ;DHO:;G� UGFOH;GV������ ;:PODNN����������������� HEEO;ED������������������� :O:HEO=NN��������������� U==NONDFV����I51.7L4521264.�KB1..6.3 ;G;ONNN� ::NO;N;� :F:OGPH������ ;NPONNN� G:O=;;� :=GOFGH����� :HGOHNN� ;;;O=G=� U=DOEG=V����� :HGO=NN� ;NEOEPP� U:HO;PPV����� :HGONNN����������������� EDOP;F� :=;ONGD������ :HGONNN����������������� :OND=O:NN���������������� FFDOD;;������������������ =GHOFGH������Q,31B�S,5-6A,7 ;=EONNN� =:DO=ND� UGPO=NDV������ ;=EONNN� D;:OFDG� U:HFOFDGV��� ;EEONNN� ;EEONNG� UGV�������������� ;EEONNN� ;F:ODEE� UFODEEV������� ;FEONNN����������������� ;EGOEHF� GOD:D���������� ;FEONNN����������������� :O;DEONNN���������������� :OENPOPPP��������������� U;FDOPPPV����h.f45e1264.�SM72,e7 T� T� T������������� :HPO;NN� ;:EO:;;� U;EOP;;V����� =NNO:NN� =N;OHNG� U;OGNGV������� D:NOEPG� DNGO==P� =O;EH��������� DPNOPPN����������������� DHGO;PG� =OFP=���������� DPNONDE����������������� :O=PNOHHG���������������� :OD:;OEFE��������������� U;:OFGHV�������Z !���!�!$�*�� �m�"%�'�& 
\_
̂\]
a� 
\̂a]\d_̂� ]]\̀
_�������� c\cd_\aa]� c\cdb\b[̂� ]\c̀[��������� c\c[_\̂]b� c\ccb\̂̀ [� ]]\̀d_������� c\d̂[\_̀_� c\
̂ \̂_̀^� 
_̂\̀̀ 
����� c\b
[\acc� c\]d̀\
[]� [̂\bb̂�������� c\[̀b\a

� 

\dd
\[[a� 
̀\_b]\̂]]� da[\̂cd������86.1.A, F=NOD=P� FDFOFFF� U:FO;;GV������ ENEONFE� E:PONHG� U:DON;;V����� E=HON=P� FE=OPFN� U::EOP;:V��� FE=O=GN� F:PO:NP� =DO;F:������� G;DOHP:����������������� FD=OPE:� HNOPDN�������� GNHOHN;����������������� =ONE:OHND���������������� =ONH;OGG=��������������� U=NOPFPV������062M�I5,17/5,5 HOG;;� PO;N:� UDGPV����������� HOG;;� PO;;P� UENGV���������� PO=DH� PO;P:� EG�������������� PO;PN� PO;PE� UEV�������������� PODE;��������������������� PO=HN� G;��������������� PO;DP��������������������� DEOE=D��������������������� DFO=PF�������������������� UHF;V�����������n4.Tj,L152e,.21B :OFF=OEHP� ;OGFEOD;N� U:O:N:OH=:V� :OF:DOEHP� :O;:DOGFF� =PPOH;=����� :ONN:O=PG� HE;OEEP� :DHOH=H����� H;=OPEF� HHFOE=F� UF;OEHNV����� H==ODFN����������������� PDGOHFE� U::DODNEV���� P:HO=GH����������������� EOP=FOPP:���������������� FOFFGO:DF��������������� UG=NO:EEV����K4B6A, FOGGGO=EE� FOPF=OHDN� U:HFODHEV���� FOFD=O;GE� FOHP:OPHP� U;DHOG:DV��� GONNDOHH:� GO:PHOE::� U:P=OF=NV��� GOGGDOPGP� GOE;POH:H� ;DEO:F:����� HO;PEO:N;�������������� HOD:PODPE� U:;DO=P=V���� HOF;NON:;�������������� =FODPEOEP;�������������� =GONN=OFE=������������� UENHONF:V����865, DONF=OH:D� =OHPDOG=;� :FPONH;������ =OPH;ON;H� =OFPDOEND� ;HGOE;D����� DONEEOGDG� DODFGONF:� UD::O=:DV��� DOEF=OEGN� DOFF=O;EF� UPPOFHFV����� EON;:ODGN�������������� EONEEO:PP� U==OG;PV������ DOF;GOHHP�������������� ;:OFHFOF;P�������������� ;:OGGDOGE;������������� UHHO:;=V������K/RB6A�o45k7 :OFPDOHG=�������������� :O=E=O:=E������������ =D:OG=H������ :OHGFO=:G�������������� :ODHHONNN������������ =HHO=:G����� :OH=NOGGF�������������� :OFNNO:GP������������ ;=NOEPG����� :OHFDOFH;�������������� :OG;FO=GG������������ :=HO=NE����� ;ON=;O=PD�������������� :OFHNO;EP������������ =E;O:=E������ ;ONGEOE;=�������������� PO;PPOND;���������������� GOHDGOPEN��������������� :ODE:ONP;���KB1..6.3�1.?�>/6B?6.3 P=GOHDH����������������� HPHOG:N��������������� =PO:=H�������� PE;OE:E����������������� P::OHGN��������������� DNOFDE������� PDHO;:N����������������� :ONP=OHGH������������ U:DEOFFHV��� PEFOP;G����������������� :ONN;OEDN������������ UDEOF:=V����� :O:N:O==D�������������� :O:EHONPF������������ UEFOGF;V������ :ONPPODP;�������������� DOHPFOH=D���������������� EONFEONPD��������������� U:FHO;FNV����Q6R515M :OE;EO;=:�������������� :OD=FOP;;������������ HHO=NP�������� :OE==OFED�������������� :ODPHOF:G������������ =EON=G������� :OE=GOH=;�������������� :OE==OHDN������������ =OPP;��������� :OEGDOH=;�������������� :ODG=ODDG������������ :N:O=HE����� :OGNFO:EG�������������� :OE;EODFP������������ :HNOFHH������ :OG:FODGG�������������� GOHGGOGNF���������������� GODFHO;PE��������������� DNPOD::������04ee/.62M�S,5-6A,7 P;FO:PD����������������� PE:OE;:��������������� U;EO=;GV������ PENOH=F����������������� :ONNHONP=������������ UEGO;EGV����� :ONHFOH==�������������� :O:PNONPN������������ U:N=O;EGV��� :O:F;OD=G�������������� :O:HDOPFD������������ U;;OE;GV����� :O=;GOHGG�������������� :O;EFOPPG������������ GNOHHN�������� :ODE;O=HF�������������� EODEDO:GG���������������� EOEP:OFFE��������������� U:=GODHHV����0hK :OEEEONNN�������������� PD;O:P:��������������� F:;OHNP������ DO==EO;DH�������������� ;OHD:OEDG������������ :ODP=OGN:�� ;OHEEONNN�������������� ;ODG=O;GN������������ =H:OG=N����� ;O:HPOENN�������������� ;OG;HO:H;������������ UE=HOFH;V��� :NNONNN����������������� DH=OF:D��������������� U=H=OF:DV���� :OF;NONNN�������������� ::ON=DOGDH�������������� PODFHOHND��������������� :OEFEOPDD���g67A,BB1.,4/7�<�I51.7f,57�Y/2 F;;ONNN����������������� PHDONF;��������������� U=F;ONF;V���� :FHO=G:����������������� DNFOEPH��������������� U;=HO;;GV��� EH;ODPG����������������� EPFO:=G��������������� U:=OFDNV����� FDNOE=P����������������� FGFODFN��������������� U=EOP;:V����� =O=::ONF:�������������� EODG=ODNP������������ U;O:F;O=DHV� :OPNNONNN�������������� EO=;DODFH���������������� HO:=FOFFF��������������� U;OH:;O:PHV��Z !��������� �"�& cc\daa\_[d������������ cc\a[]\
ad���������� �d̂[\c
̀����� c]\̂[̂\_cb������������ cc\a[a\_ca���������� c\
̀ \̀__̂�� cd\â
\b̀^������������ cd\_][\d̀^���������� �
[]\̂̀ �̀��� c]\[[]\
d]������������ c]\a]c\̂_
���������� �â\aba������ ca\̀]b\[_b������������ c_\
c[\̀_d���������� �c\̀̂ \̀d_̂�� ca\]c̀\d̀a������������ 
cc\ad̂\ccb������������ 
cd\d]a\d_c����������� �[̀_\
[a������� ���"! ��$���'Z*�p��Z&&� �[]b\b̀]���������������� d
d\_]
��������������� _b_\]]b������ �c\
da\̀bd������������� 
\baa\̂d_������������ d\a
]\̂_c�� d]d\cà����������������� 
\c]c\cc]������������ _̂̂\_b]����� [b\âd������������������� 
\a]a\
[d������������ 
\[̂
\d̂`�� �
\]cd\[a]������������� �c\a[_\_

������������ �
\d][\cda�� �[̂b\[[b���������������� �d\a_a\
â���������������� c\


\cb[��������������� b\_̀ \̂]d]���

89�:=�IX54/3X�89�:G�0/e/B126-,�I421B

13 - 103



���������	�
�������������������������������������������������������������� ����!"�#��$� �%�"&�&��' �!���������"!������������� �"�&�()��! �$*")+,-,./,�012,3456,7 89�:;<:=�>/?3,2 89�:;<:=�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:=<:D�>/?3,2 89�:=<:D�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:D<:E�>/?3,2 89�:D<:E�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:E<:F�>/?3,2 89�:E<:F�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:F<:G�>/?3,2 89�:F<:G�@A2/1B C1561.A, >/?3,2 @A2/1B C1561.A,H1I,7 J�������������K54L,52M�H1I,7 :NO;;;OENN��������� ::ONGDOFND���������� PE;O:ND������ :NOQFPOG:N��������� ::ODF;OEPF���������� DQ=OPGF����� ::OQ:EOGGN��������� ::OQQNONGD���������� GDO=ND������� :;OD;EOGDP��������� :;OF=;OQPD���������� ;NGO;=F����� :=O:QFOQPG��������� :=O;=FOP=;���������� =QOPDE�������� EPOG;QOG:E�������������� FNO=QGONPN������������ :OFFGO=FE���R6S515M�TL,A61B�H1I J���������������������� ;=:OPPN��������������� ;=:OPPN������ J���������������������� ;=:OFFG��������������� ;=:OFFG����� ;=NONNN�������������� ;=;O=PP��������������� ;O=PP�������� ;=NONNN�������������� ;=:OFDE��������������� :OFDE�������� =NFONNN�������������� =NQOPPF��������������� =OPPF���������� GFFONNN������������������� :O;=GODFF�������������� DG:ODFF������T1B,7�H1I ;ONNFONNN����������� ;O;NGOFQF������������ ;N:OFQF������ ;O:PNOD:N����������� ;O=ENOGP:������������ :GNO=G:����� ;O;GGO;DN����������� ;OD:DODQP������������ :=GO;EP����� ;OE=:ONNN����������� ;OF=EOQFP������������ :NDOQFP����� ;OE;EOFFG����������� ;ODEFOFFF������������ UFQONN:V������ ::OE;NO=:G�������������� :;ONFEOFNQ������������ EDEO;Q;������W26B62M�W7,57�H1I,7 =ODQQOQNN����������� =OEF;O;:F������������ F;O=:F�������� =OFF:ONDN����������� =ODPFOGGF������������ U:GDO;FDV��� =OG:QONNN����������� =OD;=O;:G������������ U;QEOGP=V��� =OFFNONNN����������� =OD:DOP;G������������ U;DEO:G=V��� =OENNONNN����������� =O=P:OQDP������������ U::PONE;V���� :PON=QOQDN�������������� :GO;FPOQPD������������ UGGNOQEFV����851.AX67,�8,,7�<�Y2X,5�H1I,7 GEPOENN�������������� QD:O=EP��������������� :P;OPEP������ GFNOE:Q�������������� Q=;OGDN��������������� :G;O;;:����� PP=O:NN�������������� :ON;DOPQP������������ :D:OGQP����� Q:QONNN�������������� :ONNNOFFD������������ P:OFFD������� :ONNDONNN����������� :ON:QO;NG������������ :EO;NG�������� DO=;EO::Q���������������� DOQ:POPFG�������������� EQ=OGDP�������* !���!��& Z[\]̂[\_̀`��������� Ẑ\̀Za\ab]���������� :OE=NOPED��� Za\bà\[a_��������� Ẑ\][]\bb̀���������� PQ=OPG:����� Z_\̀
b\ZZ̀��������� Z_\̀̂ b\̀ab���������� EQOQFE������� Z_\a[b\a]̂��������� Z_\_Z[\̀̂ ^���������� :ENO=DN����� 
̀\bc
\[b]��������� 
̀\]̀]\bc_���������� U:;PO::EV���� _c\ĉZ\̀_Z�������������� _b\̂̂ \̂̀̀ [������������ ;OENFOQ:E���R6A,.7,7�1.?�K,5d627 Q:EO;NN�������������� QENO;EF��������������� =EONEF�������� :ON=EO;NN����������� Q==OP:F��������������� U:N:O=PDV��� QPEOP;N�������������� :ON:NOGGQ������������ ;DOQEQ������� QPEOP;N�������������� :ON;POEP=������������ D;OGF=������� :ONNDOQNN����������� :ONEFO=EG������������ E:ODEG�������� DOQ;FOQDN���������������� DOQGQOGQ:�������������� E;OPE:��������86.,7�1.?�845e,62/5,7 ENEONNN�������������� E;=OF;Q��������������� :POF;Q�������� E=NONNN�������������� D:;OGDP��������������� U::GO;E;V��� E=NONNN�������������� =DGOEPE��������������� U:P;OD:EV��� ==;ONNN�������������� DDDOEEF��������������� ::;OEEF����� =FFONNN�������������� =QGOG=P��������������� =:OG=P�������� ;O;F=ONNN���������������� ;O:;FO;EF�������������� U:=FOGDDV����W7,�4e�f4.,M�1.?�K54L,52M DN:O:;N�������������� DEFOEP:��������������� EEODF:�������� =GQOD;N�������������� DP=OP=Q��������������� :NDOD:Q����� =PFONGN�������������� E;NOPGQ��������������� :=DOPNQ����� DPPO=PD�������������� FP:ONG=��������������� :Q;OFPQ����� EPNOEPE�������������� ED:OGDQ��������������� U=POP=FV������ ;O;=EOEGQ���������������� ;OFPDO:;:�������������� DDPOED;������Y2X,5�@3,.A6,7 DEONNN���������������� FNOPQ=����������������� :EOPQ=�������� =EONNN���������������� ;QNOEQF��������������� ;EEOEQF����� =DONNN���������������� D=QOG==��������������� DNEOG==����� :GONNN���������������� :=FO=;P��������������� ::QO=;P����� :EONNN���������������� GFO=PF����������������� F:O=PF�������� :DFONNN������������������� :ONN=OQ=F�������������� PEGOQ=F������0/55,.2�T,5-6A,7 ;ONDDODEN����������� ;O;NPODDG������������ :F=OQQG������ ;ONQNOF;E����������� ;OF;QO;;Q������������ E=POFND����� ;OD:EONNN����������� ;OQGDO:;D������������ EEQO:;D����� ;O=QPOP:N����������� ;OPNEODP:������������ DNFOFG:����� ;OD:=OENN����������� ;OQ:=OQNP������������ ENNODNP������ ::O=F;O=PE�������������� :=OE=:O:PQ������������ ;O:FPOPND���@BB�Y2X,5�+,-,./,7�<�H51.7e,57�g. :O==DOGPQ����������� PFNOEED��������������� UDGDO;=EV���� :ONQNOQDP����������� :O:=NOQPP������������ DNONDN������� GDPOGGP�������������� P:NO=EG��������������� F:OEGQ������� GD;O:EE�������������� :ODGGOQDE������������ G=EOGQN����� GNQO=P;�������������� QFEOENE��������������� ;EFO:;=������ DOF;FONE;���������������� EO;DEO=DQ�������������� F:QO;QG�������* !����%����& 
Z\ac
\]b_��������� 
c\̀â\ZZ]���������� Z\c]b\[bb��� 

\acZ\̂a
��������� 
]\c]b\a[[���������� Z\[Zc\̂_]�� 
]\Z
]\aâ��������� 
b\Ẑ \̂bc
���������� Z\̀[c\ab]�� 
]\a
_\_Za��������� 
[\]_̀\̀b]���������� Z\a[̀\Zca�� 
b\[

\̀
Z��������� 
[\cb[\Ẑ
���������� ac]\Z[Z������ ZẐ\_]Z\̀]a������������ Z
b\]b̂\[]̂���������� [\bZa\[̀Z���hIL,.?62/5,�012,3456,7 89�:;<:=�>/?3,2 89�:;<:=�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:=<:D�>/?3,2 89�:=<:D�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:D<:E�>/?3,2 89�:D<:E�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:E<:F�>/?3,2 89�:E<:F�@A2/1B C1561.A, 89�:F<:G�>/?3,2 89�:F<:G�@A2/1B C1561.A, EJ9,15�H421B�>/?3,2EJ9,15�H421B�@A2/1B C1561.A,i13,7�1.?�>,.,e627 :DOG;GOEEN��������� :DO:Q;O:F=� E=EO=PG������ :DOF=FOPQQ� :DO:GFONQD� DFNOPNE����� :DOP=:OG:;� :EO:Q=OQQD� U=F;O;P;V��� :FONE=OEP;��������� :EOFG;O:DQ� =P:OD==����� :GOED=ODFD� :GODF=ODDE� PNON:Q�������� GGOGQ=O;NG�������������� GFOFQGOPDE������������ :ONQEO=F;���YL,51264.7�1.?�f16.2,.1.A, EO=GEOD:=����������� FOEN;OFDF� U:O:;GO;==V�� EOEP:ODNG� EO:EEO:=G� D;FO;GN����� EODQPOFQQ� EOF=;ODPE� U:==OGPFV��� EOFFPO;;N����������� EOEFDOPDG� :N=O=G=����� EOQ;DOEFG� EOED;ONEE� =P;OE:;������ ;PONDPO=NF�������������� ;PO=QGO:GN������������ U=DPOPFDV����01L621B�Y/2B1M QPONNN���������������� :D=O::;� UDEO::;V������ :DGONNN� :PPOEE:� UD:OEE:V����� :=OFNN� ENOD;;� U=FOP;;V����� ::;O;Q=�������������� :N:O;E;� ::OND:������� :FFOFNN� :F=OEGN� =ON=N���������� E=GODQ=������������������� FDFOQNG����������������� U:NQOD:DV����H51.7e,57�Y/2 F;;ONNN�������������� QPDONF;� U=F;ONF;V���� :FPO=G:� DNFOEQP� U;=PO;;GV��� EP;ODQG� EQFO:=G� U:=OFDNV����� FDNOE=Q�������������� FGFODFN� U=EOQ;:V����� =O=::ONF:� EODG=ODNQ� U;O:F;O=DPV�� EO=;DODFP���������������� PO:=FOFFF�������������� U;OP:;O:QPV��0gK :OEEEONNN����������� QD;O:Q:� F:;OPNQ������ DO==EO;DP� ;OPD:OEDG� :ODQ=OGN:�� ;OPEEONNN� ;ODG=O;GN� =P:OG=N����� ;O:PQOENN����������� ;OG;PO:P;� UE=POFP;V��� :NNONNN� DP=OF:D� U=P=OF:DV���� ::ON=DOGDP�������������� QODFPOPND�������������� :OEFEOQDD����* !��������� �"�& 

\caa\_[c��������� 

\a[]\Za]���������� �ĉ[\
ZZ����� 
]\̂[̂\_
b��������� 

\a[a\_
a���������� 
\Z̀ \̀__̂�� 
c\âZ\b̀^��������� 
c\_][\c̀^���������� �Z[]\̂̀ �̀��� 
]\[[]\Zc]��������� 
]\a]
\̂_̀���������� �â\ab[������ 
a\̀]b\[_
��������� 
_\Z
[\̀_c���������� �
\̀̂ \̀]̀Z��� Z

\aĉ\


������������ Z
c\c]a\c_
���������� �[̀_\Zà������� ���"! ��$���'*j�k��*&&� �[]b\b̀]�������������� cZc\_]̀��������������� _b_\]]]������ �
\Zca\̀bc����������� Z\baa\̂c_������������ c\aZ]\̂_
�� c]c\
à�������������� Z\
]
\

]������������ _̂̂\_b]����� [b\âc���������������� Z\a]a\Z[]������������ Z\[̂Z\ĉZ�� �Z\]
c\[aZ����������� �
\a[_\_ZZ������������ �Z\c][\
]̀��� �c\a_a\Zab��������������� 
\ZZZ\
b[�������������� b\_̀ \̂]cZ���

89�:=�2X54/3X�89�:G�0/d/B126-,�H421B

13 - 104



���������	�
���������������������������������������������������������������� !"#��$���%��& �!"�'&�'����&�()!*�&���!'�����+,-./-0 1&(*���!'!���! �&("���*%��2�"!$� �&"�& �!"!��'� �� &���"&2� �3��*%�������!) '456789:;5<�=>:9:?�@?69A:B?<:�5C�D;<9<E?�FGHI JKLMMJ JNLNOM JNLPPJ JKLPQH JNLRMK JNLMHMS5:98�T7UV?:�=W57<U?UI�=FXE87U?Y�>7EE?YY5A�ZV?<E;?YI KPLROOLOOO JNLKJKLOOO [ \PLJOOLOOO JPL\OOLOOO JKLJOOLOOO HQLQOOLOOO]?<?A98�D7<U�T7UV?:�=W57<U?UI JRLQOOLOOO H\LMO\LRJQ JOLQOOLOOO HJLNHQLPMK H\LJOOLOOO MLQOOLOOO4A5̂?E:?U�]?<?A98�D7<U�T989<E?�=W57<U?UI HOLKOOLOOO RLHMKLOOO[[ PLMOOLOOO \LRPOLOOO QLNOOLOOO HHLKOOLOOOD;<9<E?�@?69A:B?<:�T7UV?:�=Z88�D7<UY�FXE87U;<V�@?_:�9<U�̀5<G@?69A:B?<:98I HLPQOLOOO ROHLJRP HL\PKLOKO MKPLQR\ JRNLKMO HPKLOOOD;<9<E?�@?69A:B?<:�>:9CC�a�=Z88�D7<UYI M N HO N K \D;<9<E?�@?69A:B?<:�>:9CC�S;:8?Y�=D788GS;B?�G�Z88�D7<UYI D;<9<E?�@;A?E:5AZYY;Y:9<:�D;<9<E?�@;A?E:5Ab9<9V?B?<:�Z<98cY:49cA588�d55AU;<9:5AD;8B;<V�e;9;Y5<ZEE57<:�S?Ef<;E;9<b9<9V?B?<:�ZYY;Y:9<:=JI�>?<;5A�ZEE57<:�d8?AgY G D;<9<E?�hCC;E?AZUB;<;Y:A9:;i?�Z<98cY:ZEE57<:�b9<9V?A>?<;5A�ZEE57<:9<:=NI�ZEE57<:�d8?AgY ZUB;<;Y:A9:;i?�>?Ai;E?Y�j�D;<9<E?�@;A?E:5Ac�j�SA?9Y7A?AD;<9<E;98�>?Ai;E?Y�Z<98cY:>?<;5A�ZEE57<:9<:k57Y;<V�4A5VA9B�>76?Ai;Y5Ak7B9<�W?Y57AE?Y�j�W;Yg�b9<9V?B?<:�b9<9V?Al<C5AB9:;5<�S?Ef<585Vc�b9<9V?A D;<9<E?�b9<9V?AZEE57<:�Z<98cY:ZYY5E;9:?�ZEE57<:9<:e;E?<Y?U�d8?AghCC;E?�Z;U D;<9<E?�@;A?E:5AZYY;Y:9<:�D;<9<E?�@;A?E:5AD;<9<E;98�S?Ef<;E;9<S5:98�ZV?<Ec�D788GS;B?�>:9CC HQR K\ KN KM KP \MS5:98�ZV?<Ec�4?AY5<<?8�d5Y:�=W57<U?UI JHLJOOLOOO RLPNNLNNR RLOOOLOOO HOLJOOLOOO NLQOOLOOOD;<9<E?�@?69A:B?<:�4?AY5<<?8�d5Y:�=W57<U?UI MMOLOOO QQRLJJN HLOOKLHOQ QNHLOOO HRRLPOO HQKLOOOD;<9<E?�@?69A:B?<:�>69<�5C�d5<:A58�=b9X;B7B�>76?Ai;Y5A�:5�>7_5AU;<9:?�W9:;5I H�:5�N H�:5�K H�:5�R H�:5�K H�:5�Q H�:5�JZi?A9V?�Z<<798�4?AY5<<?8�d5Y:�6?A�FB685c??�;<�D;<9<E?�@?69A:B?<: HHOLOOO NKL\OM HOOLKHO RNLP\\ \KLKNO QPL\\\T7UV?:?U�]?<?A98�D7<U�h6?A9:;<V�@?C;E;:�=m?Y�5A�̀5I 5̀ G m?Y 5̀ 5̀ 5̀ZV?<Ec�>n79A?�b;8?9V?� \ JQ HQ HP Q KMZV?<Ec�b?U;9<�k57Y?f58U�l<E5B? POLQRM KQLMN\ PKLHQJ QHLQPJ KJL\\M QOLPMO[���"!*��$�o(�$�*�&�)%[[��'*� !*��

13 - 105



���������	�
���������������������������������������������������������������� !"#��$���%��& �!"�'&�'������$�(&"��$���)��'���*+,-.,/ 0&1)���!'!���! 0�����)%��2�"!$� ��2����)%��2�"!$������31��'��!'!���!� 0!��4!"��& �3�! ("! 0!���!("��3 �!'!���! 4&�)�"�%��!"# �&'� �!�56789:;<6=�>?;:;@�A@7:B;C@=;�6D�E<=:=F@�GHIJ KLMNNK OOMNIN LIMOPO IPMOQR SOMNKK QIMTKT IQPMPPP OIMOTO LQMNSQU6;:9�V8WX@;�>Y68=W@WJ�>GZF98W@[�?8FF@[[6B�\X@=F<@[J LSMRTTMTTT ISRMSTTMTTT RTMKOTMTTT KNMPTTMTTT IQTMQTTMTTT LQMSTTMTTT RRLMLTTMTTT NQMQTTMTTT PKMQTTMTTT]@=@B:9�E8=W�V8WX@;�>Y68=W@WJ KRMQTTMTTT RKMTOOMOOR PRMOQTMTTT KIMSTTMTTT OOMITTMTTT PRMKTTMTTT KQQMKTTMTTT QTMRTTMTTT KKMQTTMTTT5B6̂@F;@W�]@=@B:9�E8=W�V:9:=F@�>Y68=W@WJ ITMLTTMTTT KTMIOOMOOR IQMRQTMTTT KTMLTTMTTT IOMQTTMTTT PMQTTMTTT QRMPTTMTTT ILMLTTMTTT IRMNTTMTTTE<=:=F@�A@7:B;C@=;�V8WX@;�>\99�E8=W[�GZF98W<=X�A@_;�:=W�̀6=HA@7:B;C@=;:9J IMSQTMTTT PMSLRMRQT IMRRKMIRL aa b=F98W@W�<=�c<;d�e:=:X@Bf[�gDD<F@ IMNTTMTTT KMKTTMTTT IKMKTTMTTT KMOTTMTTT PSSMRTTE<=:=F@�A@7:B;C@=;�?;:DD�h�>\99�E8=W[J N KK II�aa� H IL N OS IL QE<=:=F@�A@7:B;C@=;�?;:DD�U<;9@[�>E899HU<C@�H�\99�E8=W[J E<=:=F@�A<B@F;6B\[[<[;:=;�E<=:=F@�A<B@F;6Be:=:X@C@=;�\=:9d[;5:dB699�F66BW<=:;6BE<9C<=X�i<:<[6=\FF68=;�U@Fj=<F<:=e:=:X@C@=;�\[[<[;:=;>KJ�?@=<6B�\FF68=;�c9@Bk[ H H H E<=:=F@�A<B@F;6BGZ@F8;<l@�\[[<[;:=;\[[<[;:=;�E<=:=F@�A<B@F;6B\FF68=;�e:=:X@B58BFj:[<=X�U@Fj=<F<:=Y@l@=8@�?87@Bl<[6B?@=<6B�\FF68=;�c9@Bk>LJ�\FF68=;�c9@Bk[>KJ�c:[j<@B[b=D6BC:;<6=�?@Bl<F@[�e:=:X@B
E<=:=F@�A<B@F;6Be:=:X@C@=;�\=:9d[;>KJ�E<[F:9�?@Bl<F@[�e:=:X@B\FF68=;:=;Y@l@=8@�c699@F;<6=[�\WC<=<[;B:;6B5:dB699�?7@F<:9<[;>KJ�E<=:=F@�c9@Bk�bb E<=:=F@�A<B@F;6Be:=:X@C@=;�\=:9d[;A@78;d�A<B@F;6B�m�UB@:[8B@B>PJ�?@=<6B�GZ@F8;<l@�\[[<[;:=;>INJ�\FF68=;�:=W�E<=:=F<:9�\=:9d[;�A<ln>ITJ�E<[F:9�?@Bl<F@[�A<ln>IPJ�58BFj:[<=X�o�5B<=;<=X�A<ln>KTJ�UB@:[8Bd�:=W�c:[j�e:=:X@C@=;�A<ln A<B@F;6B�6D�e:=:X@C@=;�?@Bl<F@[>KJ�\FF68=;�c9@Bk\FF68=;:=;c6=;B699@B5:dB699�U@Fj=<F<:=>OJ�?@=<6B�\FF68=;�c9@Bk?@=<6B�\FF68=;:=;?8776B;�?@Bl<F@[�e:=:X@B?8776B;�?@Bl<F@[�?87@Bl<[6B E<=:=F@�A<B@F;6BE<=:=F@�?@Bl<F@[�?87@Bl<[6B?@=<6B�\FF68=;�?7@F<:9<[;\FF68=;�?7@F<:9<[;

U6;:9�\X@=Fd�E899HU<C@�?;:DD IQR LKR INS ITK PPL INQ KIRK PTK LOU6;:9�\X@=Fd�5@B[6==@9�c6[;�>Y68=W@WJ KIMKTTMTTT RKMPKKMLPP PKMQQRMTQT IRMLTTMTTT OIMNTTMTTT PTMQTTMTTT KRIMRTTMTTT QQMPIOMKTT SMIINMTTTE<=:=F@�A@7:B;C@=;�5@B[6==@9�c6[;�>Y68=W@WJ NNTMTTT KMOPTMOTT IMKPSMKLT aa H IMRTTMTTT IMPTTMTTT SMKTTMTTT IMORIMTTT KSKMTTTE<=:=F@�A@7:B;C@=;�?7:=�6D�c6=;B69�>e:Z<C8C�?87@Bl<[6B�;6�?8_6BW<=:;@�Y:;<6J I�;6�O I�;6�P H I�;6�O I�;6�K I�;6�IN I�;6�O I�;6�P\l@B:X@�\==8:9�5@B[6==@9�c6[;�7@B�GC796d@@�<=�E<=:=F@�A@7:B;C@=; IITMTTT IIKMTLP ITNMNIN aa H IIPMPPP IQQMQQQ IKTMLSS IIIMQTT RTMLTTV8WX@;@W�]@=@B:9�E8=W�g7@B:;<=X�A@D<F<;�>p@[�6B�̀6J 6̀ H H 6̀ 6̀ 6̀ 6̀ 6̀ 6̀\X@=Fd�?q8:B@�e<9@:X@� P N O Q S Q KP S L\X@=Fd�e@W<:=�r68[@j69W�b=F6C@ STMQRN OOMQSR OLMOIO IINMPTT LPMINL LOMKPS RTMSQL LQMSKI QQMLKQaa��&1"���)%�!2�"!$������31��'�0!��4!"��&�!����!'!���!�

13 - 106



���������	�
���������������������������������������������������������������� !"#��$���%��& �!"�'&�'����"�(�&)'*%��'����& �!"!+&"��$�����'���,-./0.1 2&)+���!'!���! 2�(�����+%��(�"!$� ��(����+%��(�"!$������*)��'��)"3!�#�!����*�4&�+�� �*�4&�+� �"�!��! �)"3!�# �&(��! �!��"�� 4&�"&(�! 5�'+��&(��!6789:;<=7>�?@<;<A�BA8;C<DA><�7E�F=>;>GA�HIJK LMNOOL MONPML MQNPRR LLNRJS MQNQRP JRQNJPO PONRRT SSNLTR SUNQUQ JRUNLPMV7<;:�W9XYA<�?Z79>XAXK�?H[G:9XA\�@9GGA\\7C�]YA>G=A\K MUNQRRNRRR JUSNQOONQPS OJNQQPNTRR JTQNRLMNLRR JJRNPRRNRRR TTRNQRRNRRR UONJLRNRRR MMNLMRNRRR OQNJRRNRRR JRQNRRSNRRRÂ>AC;:�F9>X�W9XYA<�?Z79>XAXK LQNPRRNRRR TQNQJSNPPS PTNPQLNJLR QPNMSSNMRR TJNSRRNRRR JTQNJRRNRRR SPNRRRNRRR SLNMRRNRRR PJNTMRNRRR TLNOJRNTRR6C7_AG<AX�̂A>AC;:�F9>X�W;:;>GA�?Z79>XAXK JRNMRRNRRR UNUMRNRRR ONPQJNURR LNOLJNRRR QNPRQNRRR JJNTQRNRRR MNRRRNRRR JJNSRRNRRR TNLRRNRRR JQNPMLNRRRF=>;>GA�BA8;C<DA><�W9XYA<�?]::�F9>X\�H[G:9X=>Y�BÀ<�;>X�a7>IBA8;C<DA><;:K JNUPRNRRR SNMSMNRMQ SNPTJNOLR LNMULNURR TNOSRNRRR PNUMSNRRR UQQNTRR MSONRRR JNSMQNRRR QNTRTNRRRF=>;>GA�BA8;C<DA><�@<;EE�b�?]::�F9>X\K O JT JL JU JM SL U M JM JU
F=>;>GA�BA8;C<DA><�@<;EE�V=<:A\�?F9::IV=DA�I�]::�F9>X\K

F=>;>GA�B=CAG<7C]\\=\<;><�F=>;>GA�B=CAG<7Cc;>;YADA><�]>;:d\<6;dC7::�e77CX=>;<7CF=:D=>Y�f=;=\7>]GG79><�VAGg>=G=;>c;>;YADA><�]\\=\<;><?LK�@A>=7C�]GG79><�e:ACh\ I I F=>;>GA�B=CAG<7CF=>;>GA�c;>;YAC]GG79><�c;>;YAC?LK�6C=>G=8:A�]GG79><;><]GG79><;><@A>=7C�c;>;YADA><�]>;:d\<6;dC7::�e:ACh?LK�]GG79><�VAGg>=G=;>?PK�]GG79><�e:ACh69CGg;\=>Y�e:AChe;\g=AC�e:ACh?LK�e9\<7DAC�@ACi=GA\�ZA8CA\A><;<=iA
]XD=>=\<C;<=iA�@ACi=GA\�B=CAG<7Cj>E7CD;<=7>�VAGg>7:7Yd�c;>;YACF=>;>G=;:�@ACi=GA\�c;>;YAC�k�VCA;\9CAC]GG79><�@98ACi=\7C]GG79><�@8AG=;:=\<?SK�@A>=7C�]GG79><�VAGg>=G=;>ZAiA>9A�e7::AG<=7>�@8AG=;:=\<?LK�]GG79><�VAGg>=G=;>�j]GG79><;><W9dACl9D;>�ZA\79CGA\�]XD=>=\<C;<7C@A>=7C�l9D;>�ZA\79CGA\�]>;:d\<l9D;>�ZA\79CGA\�]>;:d\<l9D;>�ZA\79CGA\�VAGg>=G=;>

F=>;>G=;:�@ACi=GA\�B=CAG<7C?MK�]GG79><�e:ACh?SK�]GG79><;><]GG79><k]9X=<�c;>;YAC?LK�]XD=>=\<C;<=iA�]>;:d\<W9XYA<�c;>;YAC?LK�W9dAC�jW9dAC�jj?LK�BA89<d�F=>;>G=;:�@ACi=GA\�B=CAG<7CH[AG9<=iA�]\\=\<;><F=>;>G=;:�@ACi=GA\�c;>;YACĈ;><kZAiA>9A�c;>;YAC?LK�j><AC=D�e:ACh6;dC7::�VAGg>=G=;>�jj6C=>G=8:A�]GG79><;><69CGg;\=>Y�c;>;YAC@A>=7C�]GG79><;><?LK�@A>=7C�]XD=>=\<C;<=iA�]>;:d\<@A>=7C�e:ACh@A>=7C�e7::AG<=7>\�@8AG=;:=\<@98ACi=\7C�]GG79><�e:ACh
F=>;>GA�B=CAG<7C]GG79><�@98ACi=\7C@A>=7C�]GG79><;><]GG79><;><c;>;YADA><�]>;:d\<6;dC7::�VAGg>=G=;>@A>=7C�]XD=>=\<C;<=iA�VAGg>=G=;>]GG79><�e:ACh�jj F=>;>GA�B=CAG<7C�k�VCA;\9CAC@A>=7C�c;>;YADA><�]>;:d\<]GG79><k6;dC7::�VAGg>=G=;>]XD=>=\<C;<=iA�]>;:d\<]GG79><�e:ACh ]XD=>=\<C;<=iA�@ACi=GA\�B=CAG<7C�k�]\\=\<;><�e=<d�c;>;YACBA89<d�]XD=>=\<C;<=iA�@ACi=GA\�B=CAG<7CF=>;>G=;:�m8AC;<=7>\�c;>;YACc;>;YADA><�]>;:d\<�k�@A>=7C�c;>;YADA><�]>;:d\<?SK�]GG79><@A>=7C�6;dC7::�VAGg>=G=;>@A>=7C�F=>;>G=;:�@d\<AD\�VAGg>=G=;>?SK�@A>=7C�]GG79><�]\\=\<;><?LK�]GG79><�]\\=\<;><j>E7CD;<=7>�VAGg>7:7Yd�@d\<AD\�]>;:d\<

F=>;>GA�B=CAG<7C@A>=7C�]XD=>=\<C;<=iA�]\\=\<;><c;>;YADA><�]>;:d\<�jj�k�W9XYA<]GG79><�c;>;YAC?SK�]GG79><;><?SK�]GG79><�VAGg>=G=;>]GG79><�e:AChj>E7CD;<=7>�VAGg>7:7Yd�c;>;YACj>E7CD;<=7>�VAGg>7:7Yd�]>;:d\<e7DD9>=G;<=7>�@ACi=GA\�VAGg>=G=;>e7DD9>=G;<=7>�VAGg>=G=;>69CGg;\=>Y�c;>;YACc;>;YADA><�]>;:d\<�j@A>=7C�]GG79><�e:ACh
V7<;:�]YA>Gd�F9::IV=DA�@<;EE JPQ PLP LPQ SJO SRP JPJO JTL JQR LMJ SPTV7<;:�]YA>Gd�6AC\7>>A:�e7\<�?Z79>XAXK LJNLRRNRRR TQNLMONMRP PRNOJJNTPT TPNRMUNSRR MRNRRJNRRR LRLNLRRNRRR SSNSQJNLSR LTNSRRNRRR STNTJQNRRR MUNLTONRRRF=>;>GA�BA8;C<DA><�6AC\7>>A:�e7\<�?Z79>XAXK OORNRRR JNOPQNUUT JNMTLNLPR JNPUUNRRR SNURRNRRR PNSSTNRRR PPTNTRR PUUNTRR JNRPRNRRR LNRSTNRRRF=>;>GA�BA8;C<DA><�@8;>�7E�e7><C7:�?c;[=D9D�@98ACi=\7C�<7�@9̀7CX=>;<A�Z;<=7K J�<7�T J�<7�M I J�<7�S J�<7�JRn J�<7�Tn J�<7�P J�<7�Tn J�<7�Q]iAC;YA�]>>9;:�6AC\7>>A:�e7\<�8AC�HD8:7dAA�=>�F=>;>GA�BA8;C<DA>< JJRNRRR JJMNSMT JJQNUTM ULNTTQ LMSNSSS JSMNMRR MMNULM OQNQLR TONSSS JJSNJJJW9XYA<AX�̂A>AC;:�F9>X�m8AC;<=>Y�BAE=G=<�?oA\�7C�a7K a7 I I oA\ a7 oA\ a7 oA\ a7 oA\]YA>Gd�@p9;CA�c=:A;YA� SqPJ JL������������������������� JJ��������������������������� OqMT JRqOS JQqSP QqRS UqPS JSqT JTqRP]YA>Gd�cAX=;>�l79\Ag7:X�j>G7DA URNPQO TTNSPT QJNUUL SUNORT URNJPQ TTNJJJ TPNPOT QMNTTL QLNRSP TQNRTO

13 - 107



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

13 - 108



 ATTACHMENT 2 
 2022-23 Citygate Report Tracking Sheet 

13 - 109



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

13 - 110



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - CITYGATE ASSESSMENT REVIEW & STATUS UPDATE- JANUARY 2023

Findings Finding Description Recommendations Recommendation Description Response Status
Finding #1: Department staff lack continued 

and effective training and internal 
cross-training to help ensure 
operational consistency in 
emergency circumstances, as well 
as the confidence to reject 
transactions that they believe are 
contrary to policy/procedure.

Recommendation 
#1:

Establish a formal training program that 
requires staff to participate in regular training 
and internal cross-training. This should be 
mandatory training and should be included in 
the various employee evaluation goals. A 
mechanism (e.g., short quiz) should be 
developed and taken by the employee after the 
training to help ensure that the training was 
understood. As a part of the internal cross-
training, employees should be instructed 
regarding how to report concerns of potential 
violation of policy/procedures direction 
without fear of retaliation.

Management staff has worked to create a training program, and 
staff has attended an annual payroll seminar as well as the 
CSMFO meetings. Staff has renewed professional memberships 
in CSMFO, GFOA and the Payroll Association, and will keep 
apprised and involved in future training and conference 
opportunities. This ongoing process will be a priority during 
staff evaluations.

Completed & Ongoing 
2022/23

Finding #2: City staff has not been adequately 
trained on the capabilities of the 
City’s financial software system to 
determine if it meets the needs of 
the City.

Recommendation 
#2:

Retrain and/or train all applicable employees 
who will benefit from the use of Springbrook 
to determine if the system is adequate for the 
needs of the Finance Department and other 
City departments. This training should be 
mandatory for all applicable employees.

Finance leadership is working with DCM to look into and add 
additional modules and trainings to maximize the existing 
software and systems. A checklist of all mandatory tainings and 
goals will be addresed every six months. Staff will also explore 
other financial systems in the next year to upgrade to the 
industry-lead products.

Ongoing 2022/23

Finding #3: The Department is not providing 
consistent helpful service to other 
departments.

Recommendation 
#3:

A policy and procedures manual should be 
developed and/or updated.

The policies and procedures manual was updated. In addition, 
current review includes additional policies to meet new 
demands. During the FY 21-22 budget process, Finance 
Department staff went above and beyond in working with all 
departments agency-wide in planning and preparing budget 
documents and in a positive and cooperative approach 
established in the agency. Finance staff is well-liked and 
considered a big resource to other staff and departments, as staff 
is professional, polished, responsive and helpful.

Completed 2022

Recommendation 
#4:

All departments should provide input on the 
policy and procedures manual; however, the 
manual should be developed based on best 
practice standards.

A outside contractor was hired to prepare the updated manual. 
All relevant input was brought into consideration.

Completed

Recommendation 
#5:

The completed policy and procedures manual 
should be presented to the City Council and all 
City employees so that everyone is aware that 
adherence to the new policies and procedures 
is mandatory.

The current Policy and Procedures manual was adopted and 
approved by City Council in November 2022. Since then, 
Finance staff provide training and instructions to the various 
Department during orientation.

Completed & Ongoing

Finding #4: The City has not processed a formal 
month-end or quarter- end close in 
several years, and no formal period-
closing written procedures were 
found.

Recommendation 
#6:

A formal written set of procedures should be 
developed and a formal month-end review for 
all funds, or at least a mid-year budget review, 
should be completed every fiscal year. This 
will help identify potential issues in time to 
develop strategies to address these issues. This 
procedure will also help when performing 
budget projections for current and future 
budget years.

A monthly review is implemented. A mid year report was 
submitted last fiscal year. This year's report is scheduled for 
February 15, 2023. See policies and procedures manual page 49.

Completed 2022

13 - 111



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - CITYGATE ASSESSMENT REVIEW & STATUS UPDATE- JANUARY 2023

Findings Finding Description Recommendations Recommendation Description Response Status
Finding #5: The City uses Microsoft Excel 

spreadsheets to develop the budget 
and the Springbrook financial 
system for other financial activity, 
which increases the amount of time 
required to develop the budget.

Recommendation 
#7:

A formal budget module should be utilized to 
follow best practices and minimize manual 
processes and the time required to develop the 
budget, in addition to reducing the potential 
for human error. The Springbrook system has 
a formal budget model that is compatible with 
its other financial modules that would 
substantially reduce the amount of time 
required and the chance of human error when 
developing the budget.

This project is underway. Staff will be working on a Request for 
Proposals for a new product in the near future, while currently 
costing out the opportunity of utilizing additional modules in 
Springbrook. For new products, staff has identified a number of 
potential vendors and is developing an RFP. Finance will be 
asking for funding for this effort in the FY 23-24 budget.

In Process 2022/23

Finding #6: Repeat management letter 
recommendations over multiple 
fiscal years were not addressed, and 
no written response or plan of 
action was completed and reviewed 
by the City Manager.

Recommendation 
#8:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR), management letter, and all other 
reports generated from the annual audit, once 
finalized, should be reviewed by the City 
Manager and presented to the City Council. 
This will ensure that the City is aware of 
potential financial issues and that a plan has 
been developed to address the issues.

The current budget has been reconciled; this finding is no longer 
applicable. The current management letter has been addressed.

Completed 2022

Recommendation 
#9:

Discuss the audit expectations with the 
external auditor during an entrance conference 
before the audit field work begins. One of the 
expectations should be that the CAFR, 
management letter, and all other reports 
associated with the audit, once finalized, are 
sent directly to the City Manager in addition to 
the Finance Director. The final documents 
should be presented to the City Council after 
final review by the City Manager.

Under review. This year's audit is under constant review by staff 
while in process. GFOA comments from FY 2020 has been 
addressed and is being reviewed by the auditors.

Implemented for FY 
2022 & Completed

Recommendation 
#10:

A formal written response and plan of action 
to address the FY 16/17 management letter 
comments should be produced and presented 
with the FY 17/18 audit.

No longer applicable. Removed

Recommendation 
#11:

Auditor should complete a formal internal 
control questionnaire each year of the 
engagement to help identify potential 
weaknesses and areas on which to concentrate 
during the audit.

Done - standard practice. Completed

Recommendation 
#12:

Future audits should include a more in-depth 
review of the City’s golf course and stable 
operations to identify any operational issues.

The Golf Course has been analyzed by a third-party consultant, 
including the restaurant use, and findings will be under review 
by the Ad Hoc Facilities Committee. Current Management Staff 
will recommend a holistic consideration of all the Arroyo 
facilities as an effort to maximize return on investment, 
marketing and promotions, highest and best use of these 
facilities.

In Progress

13 - 112



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - CITYGATE ASSESSMENT REVIEW & STATUS UPDATE- JANUARY 2023

Findings Finding Description Recommendations Recommendation Description Response Status
Finding #7: There is no formal written fraud 

policy to report potential fraud.
Recommendation 

#13:
Develop a formal written fraud policy that 
identifies the process to report fraud. The 
policy should include the creation of a website 
for individuals, including City staff, to 
anonymously report fraud or potential fraud 
and the steps in place to ensure the reports are 
investigated.

Fraud policy is in process and under review. In process

Finding #8: Due to lack of cross-training, only 
one employee knows how to 
process a full City payroll.

Recommendation 
#14:

The full cross-training of the Management 
Assistant should be completed more quickly. 
Planned overtime should be considered to 
expedite completion of the training. 
Additionally, the Management Assistant 
should periodically complete an increasing 
portion of an actual full payroll after the 
training to ensure it has been effective. 
Implementation of this recommendation will 
help to minimize loss of process continuity in 
the case of emergencies, as well as relieve 
some of the burden felt by the Payroll 
Coordinator that limits earned time off.

In the FY 21-22 Budget, Management reclassified two 
Management Assistant positions to Management Analysts, to 
provide a higher and more technical level of work product for 
the Department per Department needs. Cross-training of staff is 
underway, and the Accountant has been trained to complete a 
full payroll process. Cross training will continue in 
collaboration with responsibilities and roles. The part-time 
Management Assistant position will be considered for a full-
time position at Mid-Year, to provide additional capacity as 
well as succession and staff mobility planning.

In process - completed 
2022/23

Finding #9: Separation of duties between 
Payroll and Human Resources 
responsibilities is lacking, which 
weakens internal control.

Recommendation 
#15:

The Payroll staff should be retrained on the 
capabilities of the existing Springbrook 
payroll module. The training should be 
mandatory and part of the annual evaluation 
goals, which will help minimize the potential 
of employees continuing to use the old, 
ineffective processes without consequences. 
Implementation of this recommendation will 
help to identify current manual processes that 
may be automated in the payroll module, thus 
reducing processing time and manual 
calculation errors. This recommendation could 
also delay the need for additional employees 
because of the increased productivity.

Completed Completed 2022

13 - 113



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - CITYGATE ASSESSMENT REVIEW & STATUS UPDATE- JANUARY 2023

Findings Finding Description Recommendations Recommendation Description Response Status
Finding #10: There are too many manual 

processes in the payroll process, 
which increases the time required to 
complete a payroll and the chance 
of human error. This is partially due 
to the uncertainty concerning the 
capabilities of the Springbrook 
payroll module.

Recommendation 
#16:

A schedule of responsibilities should be 
developed for the Payroll and Human 
Resources functions of the City. This schedule 
of responsibilities should follow best practices, 
including a clear delineation. Human 
Resources is responsible for employee 
creation, benefits, and changes relating to pay; 
Payroll is responsible for creation of the 
employee check and all other processes 
relating to the check process, including 
deductions, payroll tax and retirement 
processing, report processing relating to 
employees checks, etc.
 Implementation of this recommendation will 
improve internal control and comply with best 
practice by minimizing the risk of the 
accidental or fraudulent creation and payment 
of fictitious employees.

We have moved away from outsourcing payroll with ADP and 
transitioned to in-house payroll processing. A full time staff was 
hired to conduct payroll services in-house.

Completed- holding 
regular meetings to 

identify implementation 
and improvements. 

2021/22

Finding #11: Adequate equipment to fully 
automate the payroll process is 
lacking.

Recommendation 
#17:

The City should invest in the purchase of a 
folder/stuffer machine to reduce the time spent 
on folding checks and paystubs and inserting 
them into envelops for distribution. 
Implementation of this recommendation will 
not only reduce the time required by the 
Payroll Coordinator but also the time spent by 
other employees who perform similar duties.

A payroll software was purchased by previous staff and partially 
implemented; current staff is analyzing the best next steps 
related to this process as a whole. We are moving toward digital 
and email production of time cards. Implementing industry best 
practices.

Ongoing

Finding #12: Payroll employee(s) are not 
consistently obtaining payroll- 
related training to keep up with 
changing payroll-related laws, 
rules, and regulations.

Recommendation 
#18:

Payroll employees should be encouraged to 
attend payroll-related training to remain 
knowledgeable concerning payroll laws.
 Implementation of this recommendation will 
improve employee productivity through the 
reduction of errors caused by lack of 
knowledge regarding payroll matters. Another 
benefit is the potential improvement in 
confidence and morale of the employee due to 
reduced frustration of feeling uninformed.

In December, 2022, staff attended the annual payroll training. 
Staff is also enrolling in the Payroll support organization.

Ongoing

Finding #13: No written authorization was 
located that authorized the City to 
operate a decentralized purchasing 
process.

Recommendation 
#19:

As an additional check and balance, the City 
should consider including a step in the 
Accounts Payable process that contains a 
sampling of vendors from each Accounts 
Payable register to compare authorized 
signatures, W9 information, and purchase 
order reference, if applicable.

With the adoption of the Policies & Procedures in November 
2022, staff is trained and training refreshers are being 
scheduled, to follow an internal process and submit appropriate 
supporting documentation to Finance for review and approval. 
Various signaturess are required across the agency based on 
authorization levels.

Completed 2022

13 - 114



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - CITYGATE ASSESSMENT REVIEW & STATUS UPDATE- JANUARY 2023

Findings Finding Description Recommendations Recommendation Description Response Status
Finding #14: The procurement and payment 

approval process is manual, 
requiring pieces of paper to be 
routed throughout the City, and 
they are frequently lost or 
misplaced, requiring extra time to 
process.

Recommendation 
#20:

Cross-training, external training, and increased 
automation is also needed in the Accounts 
Payable function to improve productivity and 
morale.

The accounts payable function is technically advanced and 
automated. The payment process has been updated and 
digitized.

Cross training remains 
to be the only issue; in 

progress

Finding #15: City staff lack the knowledge of 
what capabilities the Springbrook 
financial system has to help 
improve productivity.

Recommendation 
#21:

A policy should be developed to encourage 
Accounts Payable staff to ask questions if they 
believe a direction from the Finance Director 
is contrary to City policy as they know it. This 
policy should include language that protects 
staff if they refuse to process something that 
they know is against policy.

Policies & Procedures have been adopted and implemented that 
define a process. We have hired a Deputy Finance Director/ 
Controller, and we implement a complete internal process with 
checks and balances.

In process -- 2023

Finding #16: There is no signature authorization 
log with formal validation of the 
authorized signatures that could be 
cross- checked to help identify 
unauthorized payment requests.

Recommendation 
#22:

One way to minimize the issue of omitting the 
creation of a 1099 erroneously is to run an 
Accounts Payable payment report by vendor 
and compare to the 1099 report generated by 
the financial system.

Implemented. It is standard practice to provide 1099 vendors a 
W-9 immediately with PO. Vendors must provide a signed W-9
to complete the request to facilitate processing and payment.

Completed- 2021/22

Finding #19: Per Accounts Payable staff, the 
direction of the Finance Director is 
not questioned, even if staff knows 
that the direction is a violation of 
policy.

No longer applicable. Removed

Finding #20: There is not a process in place for 
double-checking 1099 production to 
ensure all required 1099s are 
produced.

1099's are reviewed by Deputy Finance Director/ Controller Completed 2022

Finding #21: There is no formal written 
purchasing card policy.

Completed Revised in 
2022

Finding #22: Staff are using an outdated business 
license system which prohibits the 
provision of the most efficient 
service to businesses.

Recommendation 
#24:

City should update to the new HDL system 
and contract with HDL to use its remote 
business licensing program permanently. This 
will significantly reduce the workload of the 
two Senior Account Clerks, allowing the 
positions to be repurposed or eliminated to 
generate funding for other positions discussed 
in the restructuring recommendations in this 
report.

In effect. Completed 2021/22

Finding #23: The City does not have business 
licensing inspectors assigned to the 
Finance Department and relies on 
the fire inspection process to 
identify unlicensed businesses.

Recommendation 
#25:

The City should contract with a company such 
as HDL or MuniServices to provide a business 
canvassing program to detect unlicensed 
businesses. The benefits of this 
recommendation are the identification of 
unlicensed business which are receiving an 
unfair advantage over compliant businesses, 
an increase in City revenue, and an increase in 
the accuracy of the business database.

City Manager and Finance staff have been working with HDL 
Account Manager and representatives to improve upon the user 
experience, analytics, customer service provided through this 
contract. BL and FOG permit compliance is currently under 
review.

Ongoing

13 - 115



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - CITYGATE ASSESSMENT REVIEW & STATUS UPDATE- JANUARY 2023

Findings Finding Description Recommendations Recommendation Description Response Status
Finding #24: The City’s business licensing 

ordinance, although not unique, is 
overly complicated for business 
licensing calculation.

Recommendation 
#26:

The business license ordinance should be 
reviewed and revised to reduce complexities 
of business license fee calculation and 
business categorization. This will benefit the 
City by potentially allowing businesses to 
calculate their fees themselves to speed up 
receipt of payment and reduce administration 
time.

To be reviewed with HDL In Process

Finding #25: There is no formal automated 
accounts receivable process.

Recommendation 
#27:

Development of a formal automated accounts 
receivable process should be completed. The 
process should contain an authorization form 
(billing advice) that must be approved before a 
bill is generated. Also, the process should 
include an approval procedure in the Finance 
Department to minimize erroneous or 
fraudulent billings. Additionally, the accounts 
receivable process should be automated using 
the current accounts receivable module in the 
Springbrook financial system, if available, or 
some other automated system. The City should 
also contract with an external collection 
agency to assist in collection of seriously 
delinquent receivables.
 This recommendation will formalize the 
accounts receivable system and improve 
timeliness of revenue recognition and 
minimize billing errors.

The Management Analyst reviews the billing registers from 
Muni Billing for correctness; staff will review Springbrook 
additional modules for automation capabilities.

Completed 2021/22

Finding #26: No evidence was found of a formal 
month-end or quarter- end 
accounting period closing in recent 
fiscal years.

Recommendation 
#28:

Reestablish a formal process for accounting 
period closing on at least a monthly basis. This 
recommendation will help gauge where 
operations are heading and allow for the 
development of strategies to address issues 
before the end of the fiscal year. It will also 
provide a consistent tool to help with 
operational projections.

Staff is working toward implementing regular month-end 
accounting close out and implementing best practices.

In Progress

Finding #27: The City does not have a formal 
written debt collection policy.

Recommendation 
#29:

A formal debt collection policy should be 
developed. The policy should include the 
internal steps the City will take before 
delinquency is sent to a collection agency, 
which charges a fee. Also, the City should 
enforce the contract requirement that the 
collection agency submit monthly activity 
reports to the City so that the collection 
agency effectiveness can be monitored.

See policies and procedures - pages 24 to 25. Completed 2022

13 - 116



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - CITYGATE ASSESSMENT REVIEW & STATUS UPDATE- JANUARY 2023

Findings Finding Description Recommendations Recommendation Description Response Status
Finding #28: Monthly bank reconciliations have 

been consistently behind for the 
past three fiscal years. Although 
this fact has been commented on in 
management letters for the past 
fiscal years’ audits, the 
management letters and audits were 
not made available by the Finance 
Director or the auditors to the City 
Manager’s Office or the City 
Council prior to being included on 
the City’s website.

Recommendation 
#30:

As a policy, final audits should be reviewed by 
the City Manager and presented to the City 
Council. Also, the City Council should be 
presented with responses and a plan to address 
the management letter comments of the audit. 
This will ensure that the City is aware of 
potential issues and current finances, which 
will allow the City to make more informed 
decisions The City should review its current 
contract with the external auditor to ensure 
that the information of the audit is 
disseminated correctly.

This is standard practice, and we are on track to completing the 
FY 2022 ACFR before end of January 2023, 4 1/2 months 
earlier than last year. ACFR will be presenting to City Council 
mid-February.

Completed 2022/23

Finding #29: The City does not have a formal 
cash receipting/handling policy.

Recommendation 
#31:

A formal cash receipting/handling policy 
needs to be developed. The policy should 
include procedures that all City departments 
must follow if cash is handled and the way 
cash shortages/overages and petty cash are 
managed. Numerous municipal finance 
organizations, such as the GFOA and CSMFO, 
have sample policies which the City could 
adopt.

In Policy and Procedures Manual. Completed. 2022

Finding #30: The City does not prepare a cash 
flow analysis on an on- going basis.

Recommendation 
#32:

A cash flow analysis should be prepared 
monthly to assist in maximizing investment 
return and to ensure liquidity.

Included in monthly Investment Report. Completed. 2021

Finding #31: Staff leaves the safe open during 
the day due to a faulty safe 
combination mechanism.

Recommendation 
#33:

The City should invest in repairing the safe in 
the Finance Department vault room. This will 
allow the safe to be closed and locked when 
not in use during the day and increase cash 
security.

Now in Finance office. Always locked and closed. Completed. 2021

Finding #32: The City does not have a formal 
petty cash policy that is enforced.

**** See Recommendation #31 Petty cash facilitation is minor; the petty cash policy is 
enforced. Audits are completed periodically by Management 
Analyst.

Completed

Finding #33: Athens contract language for refuse 
calculation and remittance is vague.

Recommendation 
#34:

Amend the Athens contract language to clearly 
state how payments due to the City will be 
calculated and remitted.

The City is in the midst of negotiating with Athens and 
currently reviewing contract terms.

In Progress

Recommendation 
#35:

Consider placing a kiosk in the lobby through 
which customers can perform simple 
transactions instead of waiting in line. This 
would provide some relief to staff and allow 
them to work on other back- logged areas.

More than 56% of business is completed online/digitally; FD 
staff feels there is no need for a kiosk when so many 
transactions are now done online.

N/A

Finding #34: The investment policy meets GFOA 
best practice.

Recommendation 
#36:

Review and revise applicable 
policies/procedures to ensure that they are in 
compliance with the City’s investment policy.

Updated Policy submitted to Council November 2022. Completed 2022

Recommendation 
#37:

City should develop a formal cash flow 
analysis process to ensure that investment of 
idle cash is maximized.

Completed

13 - 117



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - CITYGATE ASSESSMENT REVIEW & STATUS UPDATE- JANUARY 2023

Findings Finding Description Recommendations Recommendation Description Response Status
Recommendation 

#38:
The filming function should remain in the 
Finance Department unless the FTE is 
replaced in the Finance Department. Although 
this arrangement is unusual, the backup 
responsibilities managed by the FTE including 
phones, counter work, and other coverage 
duties is very helpful in addressing operational 
and customer service needs. However, the title 
of Film Coordinator should be change to 
Management Assistant to incorporate the other 
duties being performed in the Finance 
Department.

Staff remains in the Community Development Departments and 
acts as an inter-departments liaison.

Removed- not 
recommended

Recommendation 
#39:

Update the City’s Master Fee Schedule for all 
fees, including filming permit fees to ensure 
that the City is charging appropriately for all 
applicable services.

Will be included in FY 2022-24 budget process. In process.

Finding #35: The City does not have a process 
for departments to develop goals 
and objectives to support the City’s 
mission statement and core values.

Recommendation 
#40:

Develop a process that requires departments to 
develop goals and objectives that support the 
City’s mission statement and core values. The 
will help the Finance Department and other 
departments demonstrate their individual plan 
to meet the City’s direction.

City Council adopted a five-year strategic plan in December 
2021 that is over 50% completed. As part of the FY 2-22-23 
budget process, City Manager's Staff worked with each 
Department to develop Key Performance Indicators (KPI's) that 
were reviewed and refined by City Council; the qualitative and 
quantitative data will be presented as part of the 2023-24 budget 
process.

Completed 2021/22

13 - 118



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - CITYGATE ASSESSMENT REVIEW & STATUS UPDATE- JANUARY 2023

Findings Finding Description Recommendations Recommendation Description Response Status
Recommendation 

#41:
The City should consider restructuring the 
divisions and some of the positions in the 
Finance Department. The following is a list of 
suggested division and position restructures. 
Implementation of this recommendation will 
bring the City of South Pasadena in-line with 
comparable cities, which could help in 
recruitment and internal cross-training.
 41.1 Change Assistant Finance Director 
position to Fiscal Services Manager. The 
duties would be pretty much the same as those 
in the current job description with the 
additional of contract monitoring on a 
Citywide basis to help adherence to 
contracting policies.
 41.2 Change unique positions such as Film 
Liaison and Payroll Coordinator to more 
generally title positions where the duties can 
be customized as needed. An example would 
be to identify Account Technicians in a series 
(i.e., Account Technician I, Account 
Technician II, etc.). The current Account 
Technician handling accounts payable would 
also be included in this Account Technician 
series. This would assist in recruitment and 
encourage cross- training and sharing of ideas 
between like positions.
 41.3 If the City decides to contract with HDL 
to permanently administer the business license 
program approximately 50 percent of the 
workload for each of the Senior Account Clerk 
positions would be eliminated. The City 
should consider eliminating the Senior 
Account Clerk positions and creating position 
of Customer Service Representatives. Duties 
would include primary counter support and 
administration support of the contracted 
billing functions; including water and sewer, 
refuse, cash receipting. The savings from the 
elimination of two Senior Account Clerks and 
the creation of a Customer Services 
Representative could pay for the majority of 
an Accountant position to help maintain up to 
date bank reconciliations journal vouchers, 
month-end, quarter-end, and year-end general 
ledger closing procedures, the CAFR, etc. to 
ensure that the other departments and City 
Council have current and accurate financial 
information on which to base decisions.
 41.4 Since there are currently other 
Management Assistants within the City and 
the job descriptions contain clerical and 
counter-related duties, it is recommended that
this position remain as is.
 The division restructure would consist of the 
following: Administration: Finance Director, 
Fiscal Services Manager, Management 
Assistant; Accounting: Account Technician II-
Payroll, Account Technician I – Accounts 
Payable, (2) Accountant I, Revenue 
Management: Customer Service 
Representative, Account Technician II

The City Manager has hired a Deputy Finance 
Director/Controller, reclassified two Management Assistants to 
Management Analysts, and plans to bump a part-time 
Management Assistant to full-time. In working with department 
leadership, we have identified and provided temporary staffing 
to provide for capacity in addressing major and special projects 
and priorities in a timely manner, as well as to provide capacity 
during recruitment efforts.

A Finance Department 
Assessment/ Current 
Status Update will be 

presented to City 
Council in mid-
February, and a 

discussion about the 
current org chart and 
staffing levels will be 

included.

13 - 119



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - CITYGATE ASSESSMENT REVIEW & STATUS UPDATE- JANUARY 2023

Findings Finding Description Recommendations Recommendation Description Response Status
Recommendation 

#42:
Create a position within the City Manager’s 
office that would oversee special Citywide 
operational improvement projects. This would 
benefit the City by providing resources that 
could be dedicated to various special projects 
as necessary to improve Citywide 
organizational effectiveness. This position 
could also assist the Finance Department with 
periodic finance-related projects and help to 
monitor Departmental adherence to the City’s 
financial policies.
 Potential titles for this position include 
Organizational Effectiveness Manager or 
Operational Improvement Manager. The 
position should be at a City management team 
level to interact with department heads as 
necessary.

A Deputy City Manager has been hired, and worked with the 
Finance Department as well as all departments agencywide to 
provide organizational oversight and management.

Completed 2021/22

Finding #36: An extensive amount of 
information addressing policies and 
procedures are included in the 
Finance Department file on the 
financial system which could be 
used as a basis to address current 
operational issues. The information, 
however, is in various forms and 
locations and in some cases in a 
format not currently used.

Recommendation 
#43:

Given the current staffing level and workload, 
the City should hire a third party to develop a 
comprehensive policies and procedures 
accounting manual. This will provide a solid 
basis from which to minimize operational 
inefficiencies, enhance internal control, and 
reduce confusion throughout the City.

Completed. N/A

Recommendation 
#44:

An external team-building consultant should 
be hired by the City once the new Finance 
Director is hired to help identify and address 
issues and expectations in advance and 
develop action plans to help maximize the 
morale and productivity of the Department.

Completed. N/A

13 - 120



 ATTACHMENT 3 
  2020 Claro Report 

13 - 121



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

13 - 122



Privileged & Confidential 
Protected by Attorney Work Product 

 

 
1 

 
 
 

Date:   September 14, 2020     

To: Teresa Highsmith - Colantuano, Highsmith, & Whatley, PC on behalf of the 

City of South Pasadena 

From: The Claro Group  

RE: Accounts Payable and Vendor Analysis – Summary Report 

Purpose 
 

The City of South Pasadena (“CoSP”) retained The Claro Group (“Claro”) in August 2018 to review 
and identify accounting records related to a potential misappropriation of monies or fraudulent 
activity.  Claro identified transactions and/or vendors for further investigation from data provided by 
CoSP.  Claro then informed CoSP of the transactions and vendors identified through the processes 
described below.  CoSP provided final review of the transactions and vendors described herein. 
 

 
Data & Method 
 

I. Source Data 
 
Claro received a SQL database from CoSP’s Springbrook software system (“Springbrook Database”) 
containing 743 separate data tables totaling over 22 million individual lines of data. Based on 
discussions with CoSP, Claro analyzed the following three tables: 
 

• ap_check – list of all outgoing checks from CoSP from July 2003 to August 2018 
• ap_vendor – details for all CoSP vendors 
• cr_receipt – list of all cash receipts from July 2003 to August 2018. 

 
The three tables contained records as far back as 2003; however, CoSP instructed Claro to focus on 
the 2012-2018 period. 
 

 
II. Data Analysis and Results 

 
a. Phase I Analyses Identifying Vendors and Transactions for Additional Review 

 
Based on discussions with CoSP, the first phase of Claro’s investigation consisted of nine separate 
analyses on CoSP’s Accounts Payable. The nine analyses were as follows: 
 
 

13 - 123



Privileged & Confidential Communication 
Prepared at the Request of Counsel       2 

1. Questionable Vendors

This review developed a list of vendors (with total amount paid lifetime) that have PO boxes
as their stated address. Fictitious vendors are more likely to use PO boxes as an address.

Claro identified 112 vendors with total payments exceeding $10,000 that also had a PO Box
as their stated address in the Springbrook Database.  See Exhibit B for a list of these vendors.
CoSP reviewed these vendors and did not identify any fictitious vendors.

2. Benford’s Law

Claro performed an analysis of Accounts Payable Checks from 2012-2018 by performing
Benford's Law. Benford’s Law gives a prediction on the frequency of the leading digit in a
data set to identify potentially fraudulent entries. Per the Journal of Accountancy, “Benford's
Law maintains that the numeral 1 will be the leading digit in a genuine data set of numbers
30.1% of the time; the numeral 2 will be the leading digit 17.6% of the time; and each
subsequent numeral, 3 through 9, will be the leading digit with decreasing frequency.”1 By
analyzing the distribution of payments to vendors in the Springbrook Database to the expected
distribution per Benford’s Law, one can potentially identify any fictitious or falsified entries.

The distribution and frequency of CoSP’s outgoing check amounts were in line with the
expected distribution per Benford’s Law. See Table 1 for the results of Benford’s Law on
CoSP’s outgoing payments. The full results of Claro’s Benford’s Law analysis is attached
hereto as Exhibit C.

TABLE 1 
[Redacted] 

3. Round Dollar Amounts

This test identifies vendors with significant round dollar payments and their frequency.  Claro
identified all vendors receiving round dollar amounts and their frequency and provided the list
to CoSP. Claro highlighted the top 20 vendors as well as certain other vendors based on a
subjective review for suggested CoSP review.  CoSP reviewed the list and deemed each
vendor to be properly recorded. See Table 2A and Table 2B for the top 20 vendors receiving
round dollar amounts and their frequency from 2012 – 2018 as well as the additional vendors
highlighted on the list to CoSP, respectively.

1 Journal of Accountancy. Using Excel and Benford’s Law to Detect Fraud. April 1, 2017. 
https://www.journalofaccountancy.com/issues/2017/apr/excel-and-benfords-law-to-detect-fraud.html 

13 - 124



Privileged & Confidential Communication 
Prepared at the Request of Counsel       3 

TABLE 2A TABLE 2B 

4. Payments to PERS

Claro summarized all historical payments made to the California Pension Fund (PERS). Per
discussions with CoSP, payments to PERS on behalf of certain individuals may have been an
area susceptible to misuse.

Claro reviewed all payments made to PERS from 2003 to 2017 to identify any questionable
payments. Claro identified two questionable payments to PERS in April 2016 and July 2016
totaling $94,848 and $1,378,201, respectively. CoSP reviewed these two transactions and
deemed them appropriate.

5. Payments by Year

Claro summarized all payments (by amount and # checks) by year to each vendor from 2012-
2018. This analysis was used for comparison purposes to identify anomalies from year to
year.  After reviewing with CoSP, no vendor warranted further investigation based on this
analysis.

6. Trend Analysis

Claro summarized the year over year increases in amount/frequency of checks from 2012-
2018 by vendor. This analysis is used for comparison purposes to identify anomalies from
year to year.  After reviewing with CoSP, no vendor warranted further investigation based on
this analysis.

Top 20 Vendors Frequency Vendor Name Year Amount Frequency
CA Franchise Tax Board 83 City of Pasadena 2013 100$               1
Mike Roos & Company 69 City of Pasadena 2014 5,000$            1
CA Maintenance & Environmental 57 City of Pasadena 2014 3,000$            1
Karbelnig - Dr. Alan 46 City of Pasadena 2015 3,000$            1
CoreLogic Information Solutions, Inc. 35 City of Pasadena 2016 15,000$         1
Prothero - Dr. Donald R. 33 City of Pasadena 2017 26,900$         1
L.A.C. Sheriff's Dept. 31 City of Pasadena 2017 9,000$            1
S.P.Chamber of Commerce 31 City of South Pasadena 2012 2,500$            2
Petty Cash 21 City of South Pasadena 2014 600$               1
Sams - David A. 18 City of South Pasadena 2018 25,000$         1
Tumpak - John 18 HDL Software, LLC 2018 10,000$         1
Donovan Brothers Golf LLC 17 HDL Software, LLC 2018 7,000$            1
McIntosh - Deborah 17 Margrave - Diane 2014 36,000$         1
Pierce - Danielle 17 So. CA Edison 2015 10,000$         1
Pitney Bowes Reserve Account 17 Valley Construction Mgmt 2015 1,800$            1
Studio Spectrum 16 Valley Construction Mgmt 2016 4,200$            1
AKD Consulting 15 Valley Construction Mgmt 2017 28,200$         1
High Point Strategies LLC 15
Lem - Nancy 15
MedCycle Systems 14

13 - 125



Privileged & Confidential Communication 
Prepared at the Request of Counsel       4 

7. Variance From Average

Claro summarized variances by year for amounts paid to vendors from their historical annual
average (2012-2017). This analysis is used for comparison purposes to identify anomalies
from year to year.  After reviewing with CoSP, no vendor warranted further investigation
based on this analysis.

8. New Vendors

Claro identified vendors that first received payments in 2018; these vendors were not
previously paid from 2012-2017. Per discussions with CoSP, CoSP consistently utilized the
same vendors for tasks therefore any new vendors should be reviewed.

Claro identified 22 new vendors in 2018 that CoSP paid over $10,000. Table 3 presents a list
of these vendors.  CoSP reviewed this list and did not identify any fictitious vendors.

TABLE 3 

9. Vendors with Significant Increase in Payments

Claro identified vendors with a significant increase in payments/amount from their historical
averages from 2012-2017 to identify potential abnormal invoice activity. Fraudulent activity
and magnitude tends to increase as time progresses.

VENDOR TOTAL AMOUNT 2018 # PAYMENTS
American Asphalt South Inc. 267,250$  2
RKA Consulting Group 165,936$  6
RC Foster Corp. 145,778$  1
Intercare Holdings Insurance Svcs 63,620$  7
Citygate Associates LLC 61,921$  4
FFBH Motors 39,319$  1
Accountemps 32,423$  7
Long Beach BMW Motorcycles 30,892$  4
TNVC Inc. 24,750$  3
Katz & Associates Inc. 22,887$  2
Degenkolb Engineers 21,500$  1
Matrix Consulting Group 21,367$  2
Dave Volz Design 19,200$  2
True North Research Inc. 18,000$  1
Conceptual Site Furnishings Inc. 16,816$  1
Sunbelt Inflatable Tents 16,263$  2
Keyser Marston Associates Inc 14,560$  1
Pacific Parking Systems Inc. 12,997$  1
Water Quality & Treatment Solutions 12,755$  1
Athens Services 12,250$  4
Minagar & Associates Inc. 11,364$  1
Emerson & Associates 10,000$  2

13 - 126



   
 

    
Privileged & Confidential Communication 
Prepared at the Request of Counsel                     5 

 
Claro identified 31 vendors where total payments in a single year were significantly higher 
than their average annual amount paid to the same vendor from 2012 through 2017.2 CoSP 
reviewed these vendors and ultimately deemed each vendor’s respective activity to be 
appropriate and reasonable. See Table 4 for a breakdown of the 31 vendors. 
 

TABLE 4 

 
 

                                                           
2 A significant increase is deemed to be over 150% increase from their 2012-2017 annual average. 

Vendor Year
Total Amount 
Paid (In Year)

Yearly 
Average 
('12-'17)

Amount of 
Increase 

From Avg 
('12-'17)

% Inc

Amtech Elevator Services 2013 45,900$          11,889$       34,011$       286.06%
AT&T 2017 44,149$          13,154$       30,995$       235.63%
Aztlan Athletics 2016 92,532$          22,866$       69,666$       304.67%
CalPERS 2016 1,479,369$    494,840$     984,529$     198.96%
City of South Pasadena 2018 54,652$          1,932$         52,720$       2728.90%
Control Automation Design Inc 2016 74,258$          24,773$       49,485$       199.75%
Core & Main LP 2018 51,329$          413$            50,916$       12336.98%
County of Los Angeles 2013 955,272$       178,604$     776,668$     434.86%
D & R Office Works, Inc. 2018 38,421$          2,157$         36,264$       1681.10%
Dept. of General Services 2018 25,805$          3,587$         22,218$       619.45%
Emergency Vehicle Group Inc. 2016 250,465$       50,624$       199,841$     394.76%
Envicom Corp. 2018 31,339$          10,965$       20,374$       185.80%
Flex Advantage 2013 40,492$          15,805$       24,687$       156.20%
Forrey - Sandra 2018 21,250$          254$            20,996$       8268.12%
Game Time 2015 145,510$       55,023$       90,487$       164.45%
General Pump Company 2016 248,785$       85,084$       163,701$     192.40%
InfoSend, Inc. 2012 37,629$          14,586$       23,043$       157.98%
Judge Netting 2018 115,840$       46,080$       69,760$       151.39%
L.A.C. Registrar-Recorder 2012 75,060$          13,735$       61,325$       446.51%
L.N. Curtis & Sons 2017 37,108$          10,164$       26,944$       265.08%
Main San Gabriel Basin Waterma 2017 921,324$       309,550$     611,774$     197.63%
Motorola 2012 332,452$       121,311$     211,141$     174.05%
Nelson Nygaard Consult. Assoc. 2015 95,815$          24,295$       71,520$       294.38%
Performance Pipeline Technologies 2013 88,597$          22,754$       65,842$       289.36%
Quinn Company 2018 146,871$       7,910$         138,960$     1756.68%
RHA Landscape Architects-Planners 2013 117,248$       34,215$       83,032$       242.68%
Sully-Miller Contracting Co. 2018 1,665,316$    584,997$     1,080,319$ 184.67%
Union Bank 2012 630,221$       136,798$     493,422$     360.69%
Upper S.G.Mun. Water Dist. 2014 246,469$       96,412$       150,057$     155.64%
Upper S.G.Mun. Water Dist. 2018 1,237,279$    96,412$       1,140,867$ 1183.32%
Zoll Medical Copr. GPO 2015 73,590$          19,270$       54,321$       281.89%

13 - 127



   
 

    
Privileged & Confidential Communication 
Prepared at the Request of Counsel                     6 

Claro provided CoSP with an excel file outlining any transactions or vendors identified during these 
nine analyses. CoSP independently reviewed all transactions and vendors identified by Claro and 
cleared all transactions and vendors as appropriate.  
 
 

b. Phase II Analyses Identifying Vendors and Transactions for Additional Review 
 

After completing the Phase I tasks, Claro proposed six additional analyses on Accounts 
Payable/Vendors to CoSP. CoSP agreed that these additional analyses would be beneficial and 
requested Claro perform the following six analyses:  
 

10. AP - Invoices Just Below Approval Amounts 
 
Claro summarized all payments between $8,000-$10,000 by vendor and identified those that 
may require additional review. CoSP’s approval threshold is $10,000 therefore significant 
activity just below the required approval threshold might signify a problem transaction. 
 
A summary of all vendors and transactions within various dollar ranges of the $10,000 
approval list is attached hereto as Exhibit D. Refer to Table 5 below for a brief summary of 
specifically identified vendors that appear questionable in nature because either over 50% of 
total payments were within $1,000 of the threshold or Claro could not locate a reputable 
website for the vendor. CoSP reviewed these vendors and ultimately deemed them reasonable 
and appropriate. 
 

TABLE 5 
[Redacted] 

 
 

11. AP - Invoices Just Below Approval Amounts All Transactions 
 
Claro listed all transactions between $8,000 and $10,000.  A full list of these transactions is 
attached hereto as Exhibit E. A summary of select vendors with transactions within $250 of 
the approval threshold is presented below in Table 6.  CoSP reviewed these vendors and 
ultimately deemed them reasonable and appropriate. 

 
TABLE 6 

[Redacted] 
 

 
12. AP - Duplicate Payments 

 
Claro identified duplicate payments made from 2012-2017 based on payments with the same 
vendor, same invoice number, same invoice date, and same invoice amount. A common fraud 
technique is to submit duplicate invoices and divert payment on one of the invoices to a 
separate account. Any internal review may neglect/approve the transaction because the details 
of the transaction are accurate and known. 
 

13 - 128



Privileged & Confidential Communication 
Prepared at the Request of Counsel       7 

Claro identified 32 instances of potential duplicate payments over $1,000. These payments are 
attached hereto as Exhibit F. CoSP reviewed these payments and ultimately deemed them 
reasonable and appropriate. A brief summary of the potential duplicate payments over 
$10,000 is presented below in Table 7. 

TABLE 7 

13. AP - Multiple Payments to Same Vendor on Same Day

Claro summarized all instances where CoSP made multiple payments on the same day to the
same vendor but for different amounts. This test is used to identify instances where a
transaction is potentially split into multiple payments in order to avoid triggering the $10,000
approval threshold.

Claro identified one instance of two payments each separately under the $10,000 approval
threshold that were paid on the same day, but when aggregated total above the $10,000
approval threshold. CoSP reviewed these payments and ultimately deemed them reasonable
and appropriate. Table 8 presents these two payments.

TABLE 8 

Vendor ID Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount Check #
0027557246 Wells Fargo Bank 9/11/2014 2,192,114.72$ 100
0027557246 Wells Fargo Bank 9/11/2014 2,192,114.72    185120
0027550339 E.C.Construction 11/14/2008 308,884.66       115130
0027550339 E.C.Construction 11/14/2008 308,884.66       155130
0027554521 Pers Retirement 8/16/2012 98,144.81         174497
0027554521 Pers Retirement 8/16/2012 98,144.81         174510
0027550164 DMR Team 11/14/2008 36,550.00         115129
0027550164 DMR Team 11/14/2008 36,550.00         155129
0027552706 L.A. Superior Court 3/25/2010 20,000.00         162211
0027552706 L.A. Superior Court 3/25/2010 20,000.00         162212
0027556894 U.S. Bank 9/16/2009 15,647.20         159592
0027556894 U.S. Bank 9/16/2009 15,647.20         159563
0027548976 E. D. D. 7/31/2003 13,983.68         129141
0027548976 E. D. D. 7/31/2003 13,983.68         129123
0027555922 So. CA Edison Co. 8/16/2012 13,510.47         174502
0027555922 So. CA Edison Co. 8/16/2012 13,510.47         174515

Vendor Name Check Date
Check 

Amount
Check 

Number
Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 8/20/2015 4,755.60      189814
Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 8/20/2015 7,724.50      189786

13 - 129



Privileged & Confidential Communication 
Prepared at the Request of Counsel       8 

14. AP - Multiple Payments to Same Vendor for Same Amount but on Different Date

Claro identified instances where CoSP made multiple payments to the same vendor for the
same amount but on different dates. This test is to identify instances where a fraudulent
transaction is posed as a real transaction in order to bypass internal reviews.

Claro identified 22 payments made to the same vendor for the same amount but on different
dates. CoSP reviewed these payments and ultimately deemed them reasonable and
appropriate. Table 9 below summarizes these 22 payments.

TABLE 9 

15. Credits in the Cash Receipts Journal

Claro reviewed all credits (negatives) in the cash receipts journal. This test is to identify
potentially fraudulent refunds or outgoing cash transactions.

Claro identified seven questionable entries in the cash receipts journal. These entries
contained miscellaneous description fields and user identification. CoSP reviewed these
payments and ultimately deemed them reasonable and appropriate. Table 10 presents these
seven transactions.

Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount Check Number
Judge Netting 11/15/2017 46,080.00$          200670
Judge Netting 3/15/2018 46,080.00            202207
99 Pasadena Ave. LLC 11/5/2009 40,000.00            160334
99 Pasadena Ave. LLC 11/12/2009 40,000.00            160347
DMR Team 1/25/2006 30,038.50            141463
DMR Team 2/1/2006 30,038.50            141651
Raftelis Financial Consult.Svcs. Inc. 3/31/2011 29,568.84            167430
Raftelis Financial Consult.Svcs. Inc. 4/6/2011 29,568.84            167372
End2End, inc. 1/3/2007 28,785.62            146066
End2End, inc. 7/18/2007 28,785.62            148600
LandCare USA LLC 6/28/2018 25,025.63            203373
LandCare USA LLC 6/21/2018 25,025.63            203293
Intercare Holdings Insurance Svcs 5/23/2018 25,000.00            202942
Intercare Holdings Insurance Svcs 6/1/2018 25,000.00            203080
Osz Technologies 1/25/2006 19,499.93            141525
Osz Technologies 2/1/2006 19,499.93            141712
E. D. D. 4/12/2012 19,301.64            172586
E. D. D. 4/18/2012 19,301.64            172563
Dave Volz Design 4/5/2018 9,600.00              202329
Dave Volz Design 5/2/2018 9,600.00              202613
OCLC Inc. 1/21/2004 9,000.00              131229
OCLC Inc. 1/5/2005 9,000.00              136082

13 - 130



Privileged & Confidential Communication 
Prepared at the Request of Counsel       9 

TABLE 10 

In addition to the fifteen tests outlined above, Claro also used professional skepticism and judgment 
on specific vendor names that appeared to be questionable in nature. A common fraud technique is to 
set-up fictitious vendors with names similar to real companies but slightly different.3 A quick review 
would not identify the misspelling or fictitious vendor. Claro discussed any questionable vendor 
names with CoSP and CoSP did not identify any fictitious vendors. 

Claro provided CoSP with an excel file outlining any transactions and vendors identified during these 
additional six analyses. CoSP independently reviewed all transactions and vendors identified by 
Claro and cleared all transactions and vendors as appropriate.  

Based on CoSP’s further investigation of the vendors and transactions Claro identified, none of the 
transactions or vendors indicated the misappropriation of funds during the time-period in question. 

Limitations 

Claro did not review or verify any data, values, or assertions not explicitly addressed in this memo, 
and did not independently verify any information provided by the City of South Pasadena. 

Based on instructions from CoSP, Claro’s investigation focuses on Accounts Payable and Vendors.  

This Memo was prepared by Claro for informational purposes only and should not be construed as 
accounting, legal, tax, investment, financial, or other advice. 

3 For example, a real vendor may be ABC Corporation. A fictitious vendor “ABC Company Inc.” may be set-up and any 
internal review would assume it was the real vendor and not flag for additional review. Intentional misspellings is also a 
technique. 

Receipt No. Month Year Date Description Amount User

398076 12 2017 12/21/2017 Miscellaneous (145,589)$              mfestejo
389963 12 2016 12/21/2016 Miscellaneous (133,186)$              jmendez
382468 12 2015 12/21/2015 Miscellaneous (128,064)$              plieu
367329 12 2013 12/23/2013 Miscellaneous (125,260)$              mfestejo
375088 12 2014 12/22/2014 SB2557 ADMIN FEE (123,771)$              PLIEU
352020 12 2012 12/20/2012 Miscellaneous (123,229)$              coordina
352094 12 2012 12/21/2012 Miscellaneous (123,229)$              coordina

13 - 131



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

13 - 132



 ATTACHMENT 4 
 2022 Finance Ad Hoc Committee Report (with Staff    
 Report from August 17, 2022 City Council Agenda) 

13 - 133



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

13 - 134



��

������3 - 135
13 - 135



���������	�
��������������������������������������

������� ��

!"���		������#������$��������%�����	����	���&�	�	�����"����&���	������"�	����������������##�'�(�� )�*�������������"���$$������$�$+���)�,����������
-�$���������)�,���#���������	���$��������	�����	����$����������./012343�!"����������$$���5����"����&������	$�����������6��+�	���������������	��&�����"��7���8��"��"#��"����"�����$���������"����������������'�##��������������$��&�$�����	����#���(���7�9��:#����	��"������+��'���������	�+�	�����������&��'���7�!"��-��;�-�����#6�������	������������"��+�	�����"��	�����"����$#�����������$�#;���	�����<7�!"��#��	�������"���������������"�����������	�
���-�$$��������	���������������������'��=����	��7�!"���������������"��#��=�����������#�������#�������������;���	���$�#�����������������7���!"����������##�������������������	�����	>����"��"�����������	��������#���	������"����������	�����#;�����"��-��;�-�����#7�
�'�&�����"����������������"����"�����	������"��������$$��	�	�$��������?�����������	�����	��������#���	����@�'��#	����#�������:����������������������&��$��������������������#��������"����:�����$���"�7�8���#�����=��'#�	�����"����"����"���+�������������������"�����&��������������	����"�$��������'��#	�������������	���#�+�����	���������#�+��	�������#���	;���:�	������7�����##;���"����������=��'#�	�����"���$��;�����"�����������"�&���#���	;�+������$�	��	������������"����$�	��#�������7��!"��$�A������$��������������"���"�&���#���	;�+������$�	��	������������"����$�	��#�����������(�)���#��������	������	����(�����������#��������	������	�����'������&��'�	���	�����$$��	�	��������&�#�+;��"����������-�$$����������B�;���������	��"��-��;�-�����#���&��'�	���	�	�������	��"��	�����	���$��������"����C������������$������7�D�����'�##���������"������#�	���������-�����#6�������	����������	��	����������"��-��;�-�����#�$����������D���$+����������7���)�!�$�#;����������	�����������;(�!"�����������	$������������"���'��=�	�	�#�����#;�����		������"��������������#�	��������$�#;�B�	;�����������B���"#;�8�&���$�������������	������������##;��	���	������#�E�	�������C�����������7�D�����#��=�����'��	��������������%������#;��	���������"��F���������	�	�D���$+���<�������7�G��"��"��"�������������$��������������,����������	�,���;�,�������>-�����##���?��&����#;������������B������@���"��-��;�B������������������+��������%������#;���"���$���"#;�+�	��������������-��;�-�����#7���� HI�J�K13

13 - 136



���������	�
��������������������������������������

������ !��

"�#�$�%&���	���'�#(��)��&�(����%���	&���(�	�%�	��(������*�������	�������+�,�$-��������.�����%%���/�$���(�����%�����(���%����&���0����	�����$$����$���1�#(��)��&�2�%%�-��2��3����2��(�����������	�������4�%�	&�5�6�����7��468������(�����$������	�������2������������(���*&������	�����������1�9����(����$%����������(���������������������(��)��&�2�%%�����������-�	���������2���	�����������1��"����������������%�,�%�:$���%�'�;��������$%�&��������������	���������������2�%%��������������������-��������	�-���������������������������������	����,��������(����$$����&1���%����	���������	����$���������������,��2�-���	�����(����
)������������	��(����	����0��	��%���������(����(��	����$���������	��������	�-&����%���������%%*��$������������������%�	������������,��������1�������������(���-�����������	����(�����������,���������$���������(����������<�����������������2(��(�������������$$�����������������������1�=���		������������(�0������	�����%�	����(�����%�����������������(�������������4����������<���&���������<�������:)�����%%��1�>�����(�������%�,�%����������������%%�	���(��)��&�4�������2�%%�2��3�2��(��(��$�����$�������$������$%�������(�����(����������������$���1�� "�?���%'�#(������%�$��������(���1�6$��(������-���	�����%��&�	����������	�	������������$�)��&�)�����%1��=��������������(������$$��	��������	�������	�����)��&�6�������������������(�������(�	��������������2��%	�%�3�����(��(%��(���(����%%�2���'���1�=�������������+�2��=�	���	������	���������������������������(��)��&�)�����%�<������$������������-%��(�	������*���������$��,�$�����%����	��-�,��������������0������$$��	��������������������������������	�������������%���	��������	�������(�������������������	���������������(����������,��$�������1����1�)��������	�)��&��������&�6��,����#(��)��&��������&�2�%%������������,�	�����%%�%���%����,����������(��)��&���������	�����2��(��(�������$��������?���%�6��,�������	��(��)��&0��4������%�)�	�1���1���������)��&��������&�6��,�����=��6���$-�����������	�������������3�%��������(��)��&�)�����%�$������������	�������������������2���������������������&����,����1�;�,����(����$�����������������&���	�2��3%��	���(��)��&�4�������2�����,��������������&����-������(������$�-��3�������������	���1�#(��)��&�4�������	������������$$��	����������(�������(�����$����,������������%�,�%����������	������@�������	��,���%%�2��3%��	1�=��2�%%�-���/���$�%&��(�%%��������(��������(��)��&��������&����$�����(��$�	�������%%�����(������������	���������������A������%��(�%%�����1����1�<����$����?���%�?��-�%��&����������=������(��)��&�)�����%0����%�������,�	���%��$�����%��&�	�������������/����������	������	��(�������	�%���������1�#(��)��&��������&0�����������	����3�4�����$����������2�%%�������������	�%�����%&��������(��)��&�)�����%�����/����������	������	��(�������	����3�����	����������	��������(�����1�� BC�D�E13 - 137



���������	�
��������������������������������������

������� ��

!"�#����������������$�������������%���$�&'������()�������������������*$����+��)��$$�*����������������������$���$��'�����������*�������)���	��������,����	�-��	�����������)��.��/"��	*���������0��1�������0��+���$$�$���$�2�$$�����	��)��.��/�.�����$�)����)����������/������0��+��$$�$���$�2�$$�����������$�������)�*�����)��3����������������"�()���$�������������������	��*��������$���$��'���������2���	�������������0��/�����������	�����	��)����$���0����*$�'��/�������)�$���$�*�����"���4"����0�	��5������$/�6	���������)����������.�**���������	�.��/�.�����$����&������������������)��7������$/�2�	�����	���������)����������.�**���������	�.��/�.�����$���������������$�	���	���������)��������**��	�	��*��0�*����"��89:;�<;9=>�()��.��/�?���������**����������������*��0�*���������������$�������$����	�����2$��)������$�	��$��������	�����	����"�()����������@����*����+�$$�+��A��$���$/�+��)��)��.��/�?����������2����������*�$/���	�����$����������������)��.��/�.�����$"��		������$$/���)��.��/�?����������+��A����+��)�����������������������+��)������������)��������*��������������@��������������	��������/�������+��	���	�2��$	���������)�����������"�3��)���0�����/�����)����������@����*�����.�����$�����$��������	�������)�����$�������������������������������@���/���������@�������B.�����$$���������������$�0�����)�������������?������������������	������0�	������)����0�����)����	�*�����*��������)��	����*���"�#�������	����)��.��/�.�����$C����0��+����	�����������������/�����)�������������������������)�����	������������**��	�������+��)����)�������"��DE>FGH�IJ=GF;�()���������������$��*�������������	�+��)������0������	���0��+�����)��������"���KLJJE>>ELM�N9OE9P�()����������.�**������������0�	���	���$�	��)����������������	�
���.�**����������$�����������)����Q����R�������*������"��������)*���S����0���	���������������	�
���.�**����������$��������
13 - 138



�������������	
		������������������������������������

13 - 139



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

13 - 140



�������

� � � ����	�����
�������������������������
������ � � 
���������������������������������������
�������� !"#�� � $�$���%�&�������'()*#�� � ����	�����
�����������������������������
������+("+ ("��,-#�� .��/�0���1��&����2���$�������3���0����������.�������$��&����2���$�������3���0��������4�
����
�����2&�
������������������5��3���� � � ������6�$�����&�
������������������5��3���6�����2���$�&����������� � � 7������������&����������8��������$�������&�����������9:,;"<!#� +=>?>@ABACD@�DE�'C@FC@G?�B@F�'C@BH�(>IDJJ>@FBACD@?�AD�9ABEE�KL�AM>�NONOPNONN�'C@B@I>� F�QDI�<DJJCAA>>���,BIRG=DS@F����������T$���������$�������3���U������&��������������������������$������V����W�������
�������0��������X���Y�$��&�����
���������$3���������������������Z��������&�����
���������������������������������������
�������������������������������������&�������.$���[&�������������������2��$3��������������2�������2�5�������������2������.$���\&����������������������32����������V������1��������]���� �̂_̀ab�cdefgeh�ijkkl��mnopqrsb�̂tuvw�xqỳ_s�vuz�xqr̀aaquzvst̀u{�̀|�s}q�̂tuvurq�~z��̀ r��̀ aatssqq��vsqb���he����������d������������������̀b����lhe��g�f����h����g�f����h�kj�dgf�k��eh�����j����rb��jh���l��dg���f�l��dg�kj�dgf�k��eh�����j����������jhj��h����jhj��h�kj�dgf�k��eh�����j������e���lh� e���¡¢l  l���£¤l  ¥���  lh�he¡��¦�e�j����g�h��§�̈ �����j�e����ede��¦l� ljhl������©ª«¬®̄��°�±«�²±³³́�µ¶�±¶·̧®�µ²±µ�µ²®�¹¬±̧®�©º�»¶̧�¼¶««¬µµ®®�²®½º�µ²®¬ª�¾¬±½�«®®µ¬¿�́®Àµ®ªº±́Á��©µ�µ²±µ�«®®µ¬¿�µ²®�«®«Â®ªÀ�¬�±µµ®º±̧®�ÃÄ¶�Åª¬«·µ²̄�Ä±̧Æ�Ç¶¶È±̄�¹ª®º�¹¬º½®́ �̄Å®µ®ª�É¬·½¬¶¬̄�Ê¬½½�¼·½½¬±®̄�Éª®¿�¼²·̄�±º�«́ À®½¾Ë�ª®È¬®Ì®º�±º�±³³ª¶È®º�µ²®�±µµ±̧²®º�¹¬±½�Í®³¶ªµ�±º�Í®̧¶««®º±µ¬¶À�¶¾�µ²®�¹¬±̧®�©º�»¶̧�¼¶««¬µµ®®�¾¶ª�À·Â«¬ÀÀ¬¶�µ¶�¼¬µ́�Îµ±¾¾Á��Å½®±À®�µ±Æ®�µ²¬À�®«±¬½�±º�ª®³¶ªµ�À·Â«¬ÀÀ¬¶�±À�µ²®�̧¶««¬µµ®®ÏÀ�¾¬±½�±̧µ¬¶̄�±º̄�¬�Æ®®³¬¿�Ì¬µ²�µ²®�¼¬µ́�¼¶·̧¬½ÏÀ�ª®̧®µ�º®̧¬À¬¶À̄�µ²®�¹©»¼�¬À�¶Ì�º¬ÀÀ¶½È®ºÁ��©À�±½Ì±́À̄�³½®±À®�ª®±̧²�¶·µ�¬¾�́¶·�²±È®�±́�Ð·®Àµ¬¶À�ª®¿±ªº¬¿�µ²®�ª®³¶ªµ�̧¶µ®µÀ�±º�¾¶½½¶Ì�·³�¬µ®«ÀÁ��°�Æ¶Ì�Ä¶�±º�Ä±̧Æ�Ì¬½½�±½À¶�Â®�ª®±̧²¬¿�¶·µ�µ¶�́¶·�º¬ª®̧µ½́�µ¶�²®½³�Ì±½Æ�́¶·�µ²ª¶·¿²�µ²®�ª®³¶ªµ�±À�Ì®½½Á�� ÑÒ�Ó�Ô  

13 - 141



��������

��	
�����	�	�
���	���������
��������	�����������	�������	
�������	��
��������
���������������
	������	
���������������������� �!��"����#$%�&'�%�()*�+�,�-�./0012345678�9�9:�%+�$;�(<��#=>?��((�-@�@�(<��;�-�'�#=>?�9��(�-��$-�AB-��C*�DEDD*��-@�+B:+�FB�-(�($��@@�(�$-�'�@�+&B++�$-��-@�@�'�:�%�(�$-�%���%@�-��(<��,�%�$B+�&$-(�-(�$;�(<��G�H$%(*�(<��+�,�-�9�9:�%+�H%�+�-(�,$(�@�B-�-�9$B+')�($��HH%$,�*��-@�+B:9�(*�(<��G�H$%(�@�%�&(')�($�?�()�I�-���%�?<�H�%)�-��+�@�%�&(�@�:)�?$B-&�'9�9:�%��%�9B(<J����%�(<��$%���-�'�&$,�%��9��'�;%$9�(<��G�H$%(�+B:9�++�$-*�(<��+�,�-�;B'')K,$(�-��9�9:�%+�H%�+�-(�$-�AB-��C*�DEDD�L�%���+�;$''$L+M��?�()�?$B-&�'9�9:�%�A�&N�O$-$,�-*�?�()�?$B-&�'9�9:�%�A$-��%�9B(<*�#�-�-&��?$99�++�$-�9�9:�%�#%�@�#�-@'�)*�#�-�-&��?$99�++�$-�9�9:�%���(�%�P�B'�$-�*��-@�%�+�@�-(+�P%��$%)�?<B-*�Q�''��9�?B''�-�-�*��-@�R(�H<�-�G$++�J��S-�($(�'*�(<��#=>?�<�'@�9��(�-�+�$-�(<��;$''$L�-��@�(�+M�T�U$$9M��VEWVXWDEDE�T�U$$9M��VVWYWDEDE�T�U$$9M��VDWVEWDEDE�T�U$$9M��VWDYWDEDV�T�U$$9M��CWVWDEDV�T�U$$9M��ZWDDWDEDV�T�S-���%+$-�I��(�-�M��ZWDYWDEDV�T�S-���%+$-�I��(�-�M��ZWD[WDEDV�\��(�%�P�B'�$-���-@�R(�H<�-�G$++�]�T�G�&$%@�@�U$$9M��VEWYWDEDV�T�G�&$%@�@�U$$9M��XWYWDEDD�T��<$-��?�''M��XWDXWDEDD�\A$-��%�9B(<��-@�R(�H<�-�G$++�]�T�U$$9M��YWD̂WDEDD�\A$-��%�9B(<��-@�R(�H<�-�G$++�]�T�S-���%+$-�I��(�-�M��[WCWDEDD��=@@�(�$-�'')*�:�(L��-�ZWDYWDEDV��-@�[WYWDEDD*�(<�%��L�%���-��_&�++�$;�[E��9��'��_&<�-��+�:�(L��-�9�9:�%+�$;�(<��#=>?�($�;�&�'�(�(��G�H$%(�@%�;(+*�&$99�-(+*�@�'�:�%�(�$-*��-@�9��(�-��'$��+(�&+J��̀abcddaefaf�gbhicej��S(�L�+�-$(�L�(<�-�(<��+&$H��$;�(<��#=>?�($�9�N���-)�&$-&'B+�$-+��+�($�L<�(<�%��-)��-�HH%$H%��(���&(�,�(��+�klm�$&&B%%�@�$%�(<���-(�-(�$-+�:�<�-@��-)��-@�,�@B�'��&(�,�(��+�@�+&%�:�@��-�(<�+�%�H$%(J��n<��#=>?�<�+�-$(�9�@�*�-$%�@$�+��(��-;�%*��-)�+B&<�&$-&'B+�$-+J��G�(<�%*��(�L�+�(<��(�+N�$;�(<��#=>?�($��-,�+(���(��L<�(<�%�%�@�;'��+��_�+(�@�(<�(�L$B'@��-@�&�(���-�HH%$H%��(���&(�,�(��+�olp�<�,��$&&B%%�@J��S(��+�(<��$H�-�$-�$;�(<��#=>?�(<�(�(<��%�@�;'��+�@�+&B++�@�(<%$B�<$B(�(<�+�%�H$%(�@$*�$-�(<��%�+B%;�&�*�L�%%�-(���;B%(<�%�%�,��L�:)�+H�&��'�+(+�,�����;$%�-+�&��B@�(J���>$L�,�%*���,�-�(<��-B9:�%�$;�)��%+�(<�(�<�,��(%�-+H�%�@�+�-&��(<��:B'N�$;�(<�+���&(�$-+�($$N�H'�&�*�(<��+��-�;�&�-(�;�-�-&��'�&$+(��++$&��(�@�L�(<�+B&<��-��-@��,$%*��-@�(<��H%�$%�%�9$,�'W%�+��-�(�$-�$;�9�-)�(<�-K�&(�-��?�()�$;;�&��'+�H$(�-(��'')��-,$',�@*�+B&<���+(�H�9�)�-$(�:��H%�&(�&�'�;$%�(<��?�()��(�(<�+�(�9�J��n<��#=>?��-+(��@�%�&$99�-@+�(<��?�()�(�N��(<���@@�(�$-�'��&(�$-+�$B('�-�@�:�'$L�($�<�'H��-+B%��+�9�'�%��&(�,�(��+��%��-$(�($'�%�(�@�$%��''$L�@�($��_�+(��-�(<��;B(B%�J��n<�+�&$-&'B+�$-�L�+�:�+�@*��-�-$�+9�''�H�%(*�BH$-�(<���++B9H(�$-�(<�(�?�()�R(�;;*�(<��#�-�-&��?$99�++�$-*��-@�(<��?�()�?$B-&�'�L�''�&$-(�-B��($��9H'�9�-(�(<��9�-)�%�&$99�-@�(�$-+�H%$,�@�@��-�:$(<�(<�+�%�H$%(��-@�H%�,�$B+')�H%$,�@�@�(<%$B�<$B(�(<��#=>?q+�L$%NJ���S-�(<���,�-(�(<��?�()�@$�+�-$(�;$''$L�(<%$B�<�$-�(<��%�&$99�-@�(�$-+�H%$,�@�@��-�(<��-�_(�VD�9$-(<+*��(��+�(<��:�'��;�$;�(<��#=>?�(<�(���;$%�-+�&��B@�(*�@�+��-�@�($�'$$N��-($�(<��-B9�%$B+�;�-@�-�+�@�+&B++�@��-�(<�+�%�H$%(*��+�-$(�$-')�L�%%�-(�@*�:B(�-�&�++�%)J���� rs�t�s13 - 142



���������

����	�
������������������������������

��� �� ���������������������������	�	��������������������		���������������������������������������������
���	�����������������������������������������������	���������������������
��������	����� ��!	���	��		�����	�����������	�������������"�	�����������������	��������������	�����������������������
����������������������������������������������������
�����!#�$	�
������	 ��#���������	������	�������
������%��������	�����������������

��������������������������������������������������	���	������������������$	������������	����	������	�����������������
������
������
�������	���	�������� ��!�����������!�����������������������������������������������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������
���������%�������������������&���������	��������������	���������������������������	���������������	���������	���������������	��������
�����
����������������������������������������%������ ��'�	������������������������	���������������������������������	���	��������
�������	�������������������	�����������(����������������������������������
�	������������������	������	����
�
���	�
����������)��	��
��������	�����*���� �������������������������	����������	�
��������������������	��	���	�������������+�������
�����
�����������	��������������
��������	�����$	�����������
�����	���,�����������������������
���������-����������.��
������
������
�������	�������	�������������������������
���	������������������������������������������
�������������������/�0���������������!��������	������	������/��0������������	������	*��� �������������������������������
�����������������������!������������
����/�	�����������������������������������1�����������	�������������������������������������������	�		������������������������2��3432����������������0��������������������������������	����������������������������	����������������������
�������5��������3433���������	*��� &�����������	��	��������������������������	������������������������6!�7���	���,������������������������������������������
������
������������
���
��	���������������	(������	�	��
������"�	������������������������������������������	��������
�������������������8����������������������������!�����������������������������������&������������������������		����������%������������������������������������������	���������������������������!��*���� ������	��
��������������������
������
��������������������������������������"���	�	���������������������������������������������	���8�������������	�����"���	�	�
�������������	�����	������	������������	�	*������� ����������,�����������������������������������		�����������������������������������������������������������		���������������������+���	���������	�������������������	�������

$	�������		��������������������������������������	 ��'�����������	���	����������!#�$	����(�������������������������	���	������������*���	���������
���������	������������
������������������������

������������!#�$	����(*��������������	�����	��������	��������	��		���	����������������	��
�����������������		��������������������*��������������������������������		�������������	�9�������
�������������������������������	�����������	��������
�����!#�$	�
������	�������������������	 ��'���!#�������������	��������������������������		���������������������	���	�		������������	������������
�������������������
������	���	�������������������������������8������������������������	 ��5��������		������!#���������	����������������������	��
������������������������	��������������������������	������������������	���������������	������		�		������
��������		����
�������	������
���������������������	�/������������
����	����������
�����������������0���	���������������������	���������������	�������	������
�����!#�$	����(��������������
�������������	���	��� ��������������	���
�����	��������������

������������������������������	�����	�������
�����!#�$	���	��		���	��������������
�����	��������������-!		�		�����������	�����	�����
���	��

����������������
����	����������������������
��������������
�:����342;�������������������������<����������3434=�.��������
��������������������������������	�����1���������������������������	�/
������
����������������	��
�����!#�0 ��>����	��������
���������������$	�?��'�����������/���	�@@����� ��@A7��27���B?�����CDDEFGHHIIIJKLMDMNOJPLQHIRDPCSTUVWXYZ[\PP]0̂ � _̀�a�b13 - 143



�������

��	��
������� ����������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������������������������������������������������������� �	� �!"�#$�%��&������"'��()"*�(+�	,)-�.+"�/��	�	)#+�0-*�"+�1+%#�"'��2)	�	,��3/�4+,�(+##)""���5"'��6234(789��:'��234(�;�0�+%)�)	�--*�!%+!+0�/�"+�"'��()"*�(+�	,)-�+	� �!"�#$�%���������	/��-")#�"�-*��!!%+.�/�$*�"'��()"*�(+�	,)-��)	�%�0!+	0��"+�,+	,�%	0�%�)0�/�$*�%�0)/�	"0��"'��2)	�	,��(+##)00)+	���	/���1+%#�%�()"*�2)	�	,��<)%�,"+%��$+�"�"'��!%+!+0�/�1)0,�-�*��%���=����$�/��"��	/�"'��/�-�*�/�(+#!%�'�	0).��3		��-�2)	�	,)�-�>�!+%"�56(32>78�1+%�1)0,�-�*��%���&=��?9�� ����@ABC@DEAF��BAGHI@JK�HL��MNHJ�ODCBAGPHA@C��QMDR@A�EH�EQ@��JHSHA@C�TUTUVTUTW��BEK�XYCR@E�� 3�/%�1"���=����$�/��"�;�0�!%�0�	"�/�"+�"'��2)	�	,��(+##)00)+	�+	�Z�*��[������$*�"'��"'�	=�,")	��2)	�	,��<)%�,"+%�\�%�	�3,�.�09��:'��,+##)00)+	�.+"�/�]=�"+�%�,+##�	/�"'�"�"'��()"*�(+�	,)-��!!%+.��"'��/%�1"�$�/��"���	/���!%�0�	"�")+	�+1�"'��/%�1"�$�/��"�"+�"'��()"*�(+�	,)-�;�0�0,'�/�-�/�"+�+,,�%��"���()"*�(+�	,)-�#��")	��+	���	��̂����9�� 4+;�.�%��"'��/%�1"�$�/��"�)	�"'��()"*�(+�	,)-����	/��!�,_�"��!+0"�/�+	-)	��+	�Z�*��?�������;�0�/)11�%�	"�1%+#�"'��$�/��"�+%)�)	�--*�!%�0�	"�/�"+�"'��2)	�	,��(+##)00)+	�̂�/�*0���%-)�%9�('�	��0�"+"�-)	���!!%+̀)#�"�-*�a�
�#)--)+	�'�/�$��	�#�/��"+�%�.�	����	/��̀!�	/)"�%��-)	��)"�#09��:'���%+00�0�#�+1�,'�	��0�#�/��$*� "�11�+.�%�"'��,+�%0��+1�̂�/�*0�;�0��	��#+�	"��b��-�"+��&c�+1�"'��()"*d0�"+"�-�a]��#)--)+	�%�.�	���$�/��"9��2�%"'�%��0)�	)1),�	"�,'�	��0�'�/��-0+�$��	�#�/��"+�.�%)+�0���	�%�-�1�	/�%�0�%.��$�-�	,�0��	/�0!�,)�-�%�.�	���1�	/�$�-�	,�09��:'��$%��/"'�+1�"'��,'�	��0�;�0�	�)"'�%�/)0,-+0�/�	+%��̀!-�)	�/�)	�"'�����	/��%�!+%"�1+%�"'����	��̂������()"*�(+�	,)-�$�/��"�!%�0�	"�")+	9��� :'����	��̂�����()"*�(+�	,)-�#��")	��;�0�,+	")	��/���	/��)	�"'��1+--+;)	��/�*0��	/�;��_0��)%%���-�%)")�0�)	�"'��/%�1"�$�/��"��	/�+"'�%�,+	,�%	0��	/�b��0")+	0��$+�"�"'��()"*d0�1)	�	,)�-�%�!+%")	��;�%��$%+��'"�"+�"'���""�	")+	�+1�()"*�%�0)/�	"0��	/�-��/�%0')!��-�%��-*�"'%+��'�";+�%�!+%"0��+	����"'+%�/�$*� '�)-��>+00)��	/�234(�#�#$�%�� "�!'�	�>+00)���	/�"'��+"'�%�$*���1+%#�%�()"*�2)	�	,��<)%�,"+%9���� X���Q@��BASYE@��I@J�EQ@��CHSEBHD�HL�M��@AHPYEBHD�HL��HDEBDYBDR��SSJHSJBMEBHDA�� 3"�"')0�!+)	"��"'��()"*�(+�	,)-�%�b��0"�/�"'�"�"'��	�;�/%�1"�$�/��"�$��%�.)�;�/�$*�"'��2)	�	,��(+##)00)+	9���	�)"0�%�.)�;�+1�"'��	�;�/%�1"�$�/��"��"'��2)	�	,��(+##)00)+	�.+"�/�
=��"+�%�,+##�	/�"'�"�"'��()"*�(+�	,)-��/+!"���%�0+-�")+	�+1�,+	")	�)	���!!%+!%)�")+	0��;)"'�%�.)�;�+1�"'��/%�1"���=����$�/��"�!+0"!+	�/��	")-�,+#!-�")+	�+1�/�-�*�/���&=��?�(+#!%�'�	0).��3		��-�2)	�	,)�-�>�!+%"�56(32>789����� e�"�%��/�%)	���� !�,)�-�Z��")	��'�-/�+	���	���
������ "�11�!%�0�	"�/�"'��()"*�(+�	,)-�;)"'�"'��2)	�	,��(+##)00)+	d0�%�,�	"�%�,+##�	/�")+	�"+�/�-�*�%�.)�;�+1�"'����=����$�/��"9��:'��1)%0"�)"�#�+	�"'�����	/��)	,-�/�/��� "�11�%�!+%"�%�,+##�	/)	��"'�"�"'��()"*�(+�	,)-��!!%+.��2)	�	,��(+##)00)+	d0�!%+!+0�-9��4+;�.�%��,)")	����0�!!+0�/�â9]�#)--)+	�%�.�	���0'+%"1�--��̀!�,"�/�/���"+�"'��(+.)/�!�	/�#),̂�� "�11�5-�/�$*�Z09�3,�.�0��	/�"'��"'�	=�,")	��()"*�Z�	���%��Z09� "�!'�	)��<�f+-1�8���-+	��;)"'�(+�	,)-#�#$�%0�Z09�\'�$�0%)�	��	/�Z09�Z�'#�/��0!+_�����)	0"�"'�� "�11d0�%�,+##�	/�")+	��)	0"��/�0����0")	��"'��()"*�(+�	,)-��/+!"�"'��	�;�/%�1"�$�/��"9
���� gh�i�j13 - 144



�������

��	�
��	�	���	���
���
	������
��	�
���	���	��	�	�������������������������
�����������
������	��������	����������� �!�����������
��	�� ���	�����
	����"	���#�	��$��		�����	�������������
�"������
������	�����
	��
#��%�	����
���������!��	�	����	�����	�����������&��'	�����#�(���
������)�����	���	����	�������
��
��	�������	����*�+,-�.�/����	01��	����	���"	����
��������	��#�����!�	����
���
����������	��	& �2������!���	�����	���		�
��������������	��	�����	������!������	�	��	�������!���������������	������	���/
�!���	#�	�����	�������������	���	���
����������
�����	��������	��������
��
��	���&�� 34�356789:;<;=<>�?@6=<A>9B7CA�D;B9:A�EF9:9G97H�IB:A<�JK<7F9F9<A�B7K�J7F9;9KBF957�F5�L6<::�M<A9K<7FN�I5>;<>�D;O:5P<<N�B7K�39FP�QRR989B:�L6<AF957A�M<HB>K97H�F@<�S6KH<F��� /��!����������	��������T�
��������
��������	��	�����
��	������	�����U�#�!���	���
�����	��������	��������
��
��	����!�������
��	�����	�����������
�������
�	��#�	��$��		�����	�������������
�V�����
����	���������������
�����	��!�������
������W���	����
���
����	��������	#����
��	�
�����	���������������
����
�	�������!�	���	����T�����
�����	���# X���	�����������		���������������	���������������
����������	�	���&��1������������������	�����
�����	������	�����	
���
������
��	������	Y��Z�
�����������
	���
�	���	��$��	�����	��[����
������������\�
��	�
�����
��
�����������	���!�	��	����.�.$�.�+������	��
�����Y������T���������	����������
��
��	���������	�	�����
��
���	��������\�
��	�
�!�����	��
���������	����
�	�����
���
	�&]����
	��
��
�#�[�&�V�����
��������	�������������������	�	����̂���������������_�	���
����
����
����������#������������
�������		��	���	�����T���W���	��������	�	�����	����������������������������	��������
��
��	���������	���	���	��
�
�����	�!��������
��������������
�	����������	��[�&�V�����
������	����.�.$�.�+������	��
�����&̀����	�
�	���������
��
��	����	����!�
���������
�������Z�����������
�����	#�[�&�V�����
�������		�����	��
���	�������������������������
���������
�����	��������$�����	��.�.&��1����������������	�	��	������!���	������������
����!�����������������	�����	�������������������	����
��	�����U�&�� a4�I5>;BF957�5R�F@<�Ibc3�F5�bAA9AF�I97B78<�a<OB>F;<7F�dFBRR�B7K�eBf<�M<85;;<7KBF957A��g�"��	����
��#��.�.#�	�����U��!�����
���������������
�������		���	���
������
��������	����	�#���������	�	���!�	�#�	�����	��������\���
	��	������
�	�������		�
��	���
���	��	���	��������#�����
���#����	
����
�������	�����	������������
���
	������!�������	����
����
��������	��#���������	�����U����
����!#�
���
����!��	��
�����
���������	�!��������!�

�	��&��1�����U�������������!�
T�!�������	���	��	��������!����	���h,���̂_� i��
���	���������	������	���������������������
��.+̀$�.+,�����
���������������������)���
	�̂����) _Y��̂�_�i��
���	���	������������	������	�������������
��.+,$�.�.����)Y��̂��_�[������	�������
����	����	�������������
��.�.$�.�+������	Y��̂�_�j���	���	�����	�������������������������
�����
��Y���̂_�[�T�����
��������	���	��	�������������������
���
����	����
�W��������	����������������
���
	��Y�����̂�_��������	���������	����#��
�����������������	���������	�#�����������	��������	������	������U�����!�
T#����	�����������������
���������	�!��
��	�����	��	���!�

�	������	�����
����!&��JJ4� dEeebMk�QI�MDdElmd�QI�QnDMbmJQobl�3cbopDd�� ������	�����	�����	���������
��
���
	#�	�����U��!�������
����������Z������
��q�������������������������
���������
�����	��!�	����
��������T�
������������	��#�����	#������������
�	���#������#���������������#����
��	
��	�
���q������	!����	����������������&+.���
���	�����	�����	�����U��������	����	������
�Z���	����r�����.�+#�	�����U�������	���������\���
	��	�"	�������������������	��������!��&��[�
����	��������������	������	�����������������Ds@9=9F�b�	��	����
���
	&�� �̂_� g�g�	���
��X#��.�.#�	�����	�����������	���t$+�	��
�������	���������.+̀,-+,�����
���������������������)���
	�̂����) _#����������	���u������
�v#��.�.�����	��++Y�wx�y�wz13 - 145



�������

���	�
��������������������������������������������������������������������������� !�����"����#���������$�!�����%��#$&	��'�����	�
���!�����(������������������������������)*�����������������������+����������������'�����	��� !��������"������������� �,������  ��������"���������-����	�����������.�"��!�������"���������������!������"�����!�������"'�������	��� !��������"������������� �,������  ��������"���������-����	�����������.�"��!�������"����� �����������/����������!������0�� #�� ��!!��1� �����������������������������������"���!���������#�2�����"���"�.���������������� ���������� ����������������#�2�3"�"��!����"����������.�����������������4��� ���	��""�""���������""�����������"��!������������������������"����!��������������"  �������������5#�2�3"6�7��,��!������������������������"��������7���������"��������7������"�����������������70��8����� �������������"���!����������������� !��������1��.��"������������"��7���������������������!�����������#�2�3"�����  ��������"	��!������"����������"��������#�2�3"���"�""���"���������.�������"����7������������������������"���������"�����  �����0��9�����������������������"���!���������#�2�3"�7��,���"�.������ !�����0��:::;� <=>?@@=ABCD:?A�<=EC<B:AE�C�F?<=AG:>�CHB:D��� +������!���������������  ����������"����7��������������"���������"�7���������������"��� ������7�"���������� ���������������#�2�� � .��"������.����-���������������"����������.��!��"������7�������������7��������� �����4�� I� 9�����"�����!�!�"������������"�������J�I� 9��������������������"����������������������"���������"�7��������J�I� ����"�""���������������������������"�.������#�2�0��� C;�KLMN�OP�NLQ�RSTUVPQ�VW�M�FVTQXPOY�CSZON[���������"��������������"�"���������������� ������������"����������������������,��������#$0��8���������� ���"�7����!�!��"�������1!�������������������"��!������!�������"�����������7����������!����������"�����������7�������� ����"� !���������"���!���������.����������\���"��!������%#����"�������"���������7�����������������"������������������"0���������"���������"�������������������!��"�������!���������������� .�]]�� ��������������������������� �"0&���� #������������������������� �����������������+"���""�̂���������%��+̂&	��%#����"������������"�����������"�"�����"� ������"�"� �����������������������������"�����������"0��8�����������������������"��,��7����������",���"0��#����"�����������������"��������"������������������������������0��8��"��"�������������� ������������.������������������	�����"��������"����������������"!��"�.�����������������������0&�_�� ;̀�KLMN�MTQ�NLQ�<QZ�FaMbP�NLMN�:XZOYMNQ�M�FVTQXPOY�CSZON�OP�KMTTMXNQZ[�� 8�����������"�������������.��������+̂���������.������������ ������������������7���c&�� I� 9��,������������������!����""�"'�����I� d����� ����"����������!��""����� !�����"������,��������"�.����������������"���� ���� ����� ������� ���!������������������ �"��!��"���������7������"�����0��� 8�����+̂����"�������"������%���"�����*��������!�������"�����7��������������"���� ���� �"��!��"������������������7�� !������ ������������"�!�""�.��������������/������ !��"���������������������������1!���������ef�g�ee13 - 146



�������

������	
����	����������������
�
�����������	��	�
�����������
������	�����������	��	�
�����	�
����������	�������	�����
���
��	�����������������	���
���
�	����������������	������
�
��������� ��	���	 �!���
����������������
�����	��������������
�������������	�������"#�� $� %������
���!���	�
�#�&��������	���
��	��
�
�����	������������	���	
��������
�������'%���(
)����	��������$� *+�	���#�&�����	�������
�����������	���	���������	�� �������� �	���������������$� �

���,�
���	�	�����#������������������ �-����
������������� ����������
�
�����
���-��������� ��	����������	���
.������	��������
������	�/��	���
���������	
����	������
���
 �������
�
����0����������	����	�%����	�
�	��
 �$� ����������0����������	���#�&1����������	�
��������	������������-�	
�����-������
�	�������%/�������+�������
�����������	�������-��
�
 �	���������������	�

�	������	�	����� 23�45675689�:;�<=>�4?@2��� �	�����	����	(
����������� �����	����������A%��������
������-���������	��������	��������������������	�������
�����������������

�-������	���	�������	�������������	����
���������
�	��	������ B3� CD6D8>E>6<�;D5FGH>9�56�ED6D8568�D67�=5H568�456D6I>�J>KDH<E>6<�K>H9:66>F�F>7�<:�=58=�9<D;;�<GH6:L>H�D67�6>MN�H>FD<5L>FO�56>PK>H5>6I>7�D67N�56�9:E>�ID9>9N�G6QGDF5;5>7�9<D;;3���4567568�B3B�� ?�456D6I>�J>KDH<E>6<�H>:H8D65RD<5:6�F>7�<:�D�95865;5ID6<�H>7GI<5:6�56�456D6I>�J>KDH<E>6<�9<D;;568�F>L>F9S��T��U���-�	�V �WX�Y �����/�������%����,�����	 �,
��0���������Z�[������������������	�	������������������������Z���	�������V�1��
�	�	���������������������	�
�������������\�	���������������	������
�������������
 ��	������
�	�������������]�
��������-�	
�������1���	�������
������������������������������
���	��������������	̂��
����
�����������
�	�������-�
���

������
�
��������	����������
��_̀abcadef�gbh�ifejkl��m̀n�bopf̀qbb�ò refbs�tdjt�aurc̀vbrs�dcbwpbrdbcxbh�oecejbrks�nbey�dcabrcef�x̀car̀fks�ech�dcx̀opfbab�zdcecxdef�rbp̀radcj{�� 4567568�B3|� }=>�H>:H8D65R>7�456D6I>�J>KDH<E>6<�=D7�56>PK>H5>6I>7�F>D7>H9=5K3��Z���	����
�������	��	���������������� �����	~���������	����+��	�������
��������-�	
����������������%����,�����	�Z�[��������	������������	����������������	��
�	��������	
�����	�������������Z�	�������
���� �Y��������������������Z�	���	�����������������������������+��	���������������������	��������	����
��!���
����	����������%��������������������
������-���
�	�����
��	������
����
��������������������Z���	����� ��
����������������������������Z�	���	 �����	�������	�	����������������	��~����������+��	������	�~��	�����
���	����	��	����������_̀abcadef�gbh�ifejkl��m̀n�bopf̀qbb�ò refbs�tdjt�aurc̀vbrs�dcbwpbrdbcxbh�oecejbrks�nbey�dcabrcef�x̀car̀fks�ech�dcx̀opfbab�zdcecxdef�rbp̀radcj{��|3� }=>�456D6I>�J>KDH<E>6<�H>:H8D65RD<5:6�D67�<=>�KH:IGH>E>6<�:;�<=>�25<O8D<>��>K:H<�M>H>�G67>H<D�>6�56�I5HIGE9<D6I>9�<=D<�85L>�H59>�<:�QG>9<5:69�D�:G<�D�K:995�F>�FDI��:;�<HD69KDH>6ION�K:995�F>�D<<>EK<�<:�I:L>H�GK�DFF>8>7�D99><�E59DKKH:KH5D<5:6N�D67�K:<>6<5DF�>P59<>6I>�:;�D�I:6;F5I<�:;�56<>H>9<��O�25<O�CD6D8>H�J>�:F;>3����4567568�|3B�� �G>9<5:6D�F>�I5HIGE9<D6I>9�9GHH:G67>7�<=>�<5E568�:;N�D67�<=>�KH:I>99�G67>H<D�>6N�<:�>68D8>�25<O8D<>S��T����� �������������������
��
���-��,
��Z�[������
���	��������������Z���	������	�	��������� ���
���	��	�������&%�����������	�����	������-��%���������

�����
 ���%��&%�����������]�����	�����������
�����	��	��������%����%������	�������������	����%������� ����	�������������

�

�����	��	����
�����������	���	���	�����	���	����������������������	���	��������-���������������-
�������1���	��	����
�������� 
13 - 147



�������

���	��	�
�����	������������������������	����	��������	������������	����������������������
����	���������	�	�
������������	��������	�����	�������
��������������	������������ ���
�����	�����	���� �����������
��	���������	�	��������
������������������
�!�����!��	�	��� �����	���������������
����	�����"������#����	���	���������	��	��������
�	��������	#�	����	����
���!���	�
������$����	���%&��	�!��	��	�	��������	�����!!��
�
�����!���!��	�
���	����	�������	�$'�!��	�����(��	���#�	���()"����
��	��	�	����*��	��������������	��������+������,��������������-�	��������'.$/#������*�!�	������!��	����������	��������������������	���
���	�������	���	���	���	���	�#���
��	���������!�	�����#���������������������������
����
�������
0����1234562�789:92;�<=>?9:>2�64@�:8�A@9:8=B:>=48:5�C2D=2E�46�>F2�G=8:8H2�12I:@>J28>K��L	��	�������������'.$/#�+������,����#���!�!�������	���(������������	!��	��	���#����	�	���M"�!���,����������������������!�+���N����
�N�����)������!�������������
�������������������������	������
�!�����
��������������	��	�����!���	����������!��	���
��������!�����# '.��������������������������������
����,�������)����*�!�	��������!��	����	��#����)�����$O#�'.$/#���������	�������	���	���	������	���	����
�	����	�����L��	������
�������������
���������������#������
��������	M	�M�*���
����	���	�	�	������PQO#%'.�..�����������������
������������	�
�	�#���
��������
���#�	����	���������	��������������������)�����$/#�'.$/��'$��)�����������	����	�����-����������	����	�R�������	��
�
���	����
��������
������������!��	�	������

�������������������	����	�R��	������������
�������(��	���#��	�������	�
�������
#���	�������	���������	�	����	��	����	������������L	�����������	������	���	���	���	���	���	����#�	��	�	���L�����������	��	���������
����������!����	�����������	��������������������!�������
����(������������	��#�����)�
����S����������S�������
���������������-�
���	�����������������	����	���������
��������	�����������T'..OM'.$'U''#����	���	���
����	�
�	����	���������
�������V�������'.$���!�
�	���������	���	������	��	����!������!��	����PQ�%�!����������!�����	�����
�����������������S�����'&����WX2;>=48:Y52�<=@HXJ;>:8H2;�C29:@Z=89�>F2�CXY=8�<:;2�:8Z�<=>?9:>2K�������	���	�������	�����!�������	�������������	��������[���	����������	��!���	����������	����+������,���������!����	��	�����������!!�������
�	����	���	�������	#�	������������������������	����������	��S�������
���	���	�������!��	�	������

�����������#��������		�!�	�	�������	�������	��	��!���	��,�������
���
��,����R������!����������������!�������	�������!�	����	����������'%��,���������	��!���	�
����	����	�����\���!����'.$/#�	�����!��	�����	����	���	�������
�	��������#�)����	�$Q#�'.$/������	��]	������������	��	���!�!��������	���()"����	����	���������!��������������������������������������	������
�!�����
����̂��̂!�����# ����	����,�����	��N����
�)�����#�����������
�������
�	��	����	���������������	��	�����!!�������������	����	���	�������	#�	���
��!���������,��������	����	�#����	�������������,����R������������!������������������R��+��-�
]���������#�������V����'.'$#������*�!�	����'�!��	�����	�������������		��!��	�����������
����	���,������������
������!��	�����	����������R��������	�������!���������	��������	�������������L��	������
���#��	���	������
������������������������!��	�_�+��
������������	��	����̀4>28>=:5�C2Z�G5:9;K��<4865=H>�46�=8>2@2;>a�J:8:92J28>�;>?52�>F:>�I@2;;X@2Z�2JI54?22;�>4�>:b2�:H>=48;�Y2?48Z�6=8:8H=:5�;>:>2J28>�J:8:92J28>�>4�J:8=IX5:>=48�>4�4X>@=9F>�J=;@2I@2;28>:>=48�EF=HF�=;�6@:XZa�I4>28>=:5�:;;2>�J=;:II@4I@=:>=48cI@4D=Z=89�H48>@:H>;�>4�>F=@ZdI:@>=2;�ZX2�>4�I2@;48:5�@25:>=48;F=I;a�J=;X;2�46�e>:66�>=J2�4@�4>F2@�<=>?�@2;4X@H2;a�:8Z�;I2H=6=H�H5:=J;�46�6=8:8H=:5�=@@29X5:@=>=2;�J:Z2�Y?�CXY=8f��ghijhik�lml�� nop�qhrs�qtuivhw�xyypxzpj�rt�ox{p�u|pj}�p~rpi|h{pws�xij�hixyyztyzhxrpws}�vwt|pj�|p||hti�qhrs��xixkpz�ypz�tz�xivp�zp{hp�|�rt�vtijuvr�tropz��u|hip||�uizpwxrpj�rt�rop�qhrs��xixkpz���(������������#�	�������	�������	����	���������������	��	��	���L��	������
�����	��������#���
������
���������!�����������	��������	����	�����������������
��	�
����	����	�����������������
����������)���!!������������#�����
����������������	����	��������������
��������13 - 148



�������

�����	
����
�����	����
�����������	�����������������	���������	�����������������	���������	
����	��
�����������	
��	����������
��������
�������������	� ���
�� !	�����������
���	���
�����	��������������	
�����	��
����������

�����"��#	�����������	���
�������
����	���������������	
���$������������"��%����	��������&����
���	��������	��
����������	����
����	&�������'�������
�(	�	
�����	��
���������������"���	
����	
�������)��������
�������
���������
���	�������	��
������	����
�����
"��*	��������	
���	����
������	
�	�������������
�$�����	
���������������������������
	�����������
����	�������	���������	
����	��
���������"��+�������������������	����
���������
����������������������������
�������	���
����
�����
��	
���	���
���������	
���
������������������	���������	
����	��
���������������
������������'�������	�"��,-./0.123�4/5�632789��:-0;31<.8�-;�10./=/8.>�?/2@�10./=023�<-0.=-3�A=-</88/8>�A-./0.123�B=-?0�C<.�D1-32.1-08�� EF� GHI�JKLMLNI�OIPMQRSILR�TKT�LUR�HMVIW�MLT�TKT�LUR�XUYYUZW�KSPUQRMLR�KLRIQLMY�NULRQUY[W�PUYKNKI[W�MLT�PQUNI[[I[F��� JKLTKL\��EF]�� GHI�JKLMLNI�OIPMQRSILR�XMKYIT�RU�QINULNKYI�̂ML_�MNNÙLR[�RKSIYab��c�������������������������	���	
�������
d����	�
����
����	����	
�������
�
�����������
�e�������	��������	
����
�������f�
�
���g������
������������������������(��)��	
��������
���
���	
����
������h���i����
d����	�
����
����	��
���	
�������
�
��������������������
���	������������
������
�j�	������
����������j�k�h�f+"��,-./0.123�4/5�632789��l/2@�10./=023�<-0.=-3�A=-</88/8��JKLTKL\�EFm� GHI�nKRa�YMN_IT�NULRQUY[�UQ�PQUNIT̀QI[�RU�MYIQR�SMLM\ISILR�RU�RHI�OIPMQRSILRo[�̀LQINULNKYIT�MNNÙLR[F��%���h���i����������	������p�	��������
��������	��
������������������
�����	�
��������	
�����q���������
��������p�����������d
���q���
��
��������������	��
���������j�k�h�f+������������"�(���	����
����
��	����������
�r&��������	���������	����
��	
s�
���	
������������������	����������'���k�h�f+������h���i��	������������������+�!#���������������������p�����������d
�����q��
�����h���i���
��
����	
�	���	������������
��������������������������������������	����
�
�������	��
�"��%������
����������������
	�����������	���	
�������
d���	
�������	
�����
�����������������	
�����������t��
��
���������	��	�����������
���	�����
�
������������
�����	�
����
������������	����
���
��
����$�����uv�w�ux13 - 149



�������

������	
�����	�����������	
��	��
����������	�����	��
������	�������������������������	�	�����������	�������	���	��	���
���
�����	��	�����������	
�����
�������	���������������������	����� !������	��
����������������������������������"�������#���$���	�%�����������	���	��
�&�����������	����'�����	�������	�	�����������	���()*+,*-./�0+1�2/.345��6+.7�-,*+8,./�9),*8)/�:8)9+44+4��;<=><=?�@A@� BCD�;<=E=FD�GDHEIJKD=J�LE<MD>�JN�HIDHEID�LNIOEI>�MNNP<=?�HINQDFJ<N=R�NL�JCD�S<JTUR�FERC�HNR<J<N=�=NI�OER�JCD�VN=JCMT�W<XY<><JT�ZDHNIJ�FDIJ<L<D>�[T�JCD�S<JT�BIDERYIDI�ER�IDXY<ID>�[T�JCD�S<JTUR�\=]DRJKD=J�̂NM<FTA��_���#���$��̀	'�����	������������'��
�	�%������#����#�	�����������������&����������#����_������������������������������'����%������������������������#���$���a��	
�������'�������	�a����a��	���b��%���
�	��������"���c����	����'�
�
�%��������	�	�����������	����� ��������
���������� d#�"���������
e�����#����_��������$���	�����������"�������	����	��������	�	��������������������������	��
�
��������������#����#�	�������_���#���$��̀	'�����	����������&����
�����#����_�����������������������#���$����&��
���������	�%���
�	�������"��
f�g�	����c����	����������	�	�����������	����d�
�����#����_����������������	
������������	�����������
�������	�	�����������	�$��������������'�
��������"��
f�g�	���������	��e�����#����#�	����"��
���'��%��	�
��������������
���������������_���#����#�	����"��
���'��%��	�	�	���������������������"����	�������	�	�����������	�e����	�������������������������������������	��	�����%�
����
�������	�������������
��	�h�	��ijij���()*+,*-./�0+1�2/.345��6+.7�-,*+8,./�9),*8)/�:8)9+44+4��kA�BCD�S<JT�><>�=NJ�FNKHMT�O<JC�<JR�NO=�HYIFCER<=?�HNM<FTA���� ;<=><=?�kAl�� BCD�HI<NI�S<JT�VE=E?DI�YRD>�CDI�EYJCNI<JT�JN�Y=>DIK<=D�JCD�RH<I<J�NL�JCD�S<JTUR�HYIFCER<=?�HNM<FT�IDXY<I<=?�S<JT�SNY=F<M�EHHIN]EMR�NL�KEQNI�FN=JIEFJRA�#������������	�����������	���
��'��������'���	������	�	�������������'������&����
�%�������������m�����a��	
�������_������������������e���	����������	��e�������	���	�����e����	
��	�e������"f	��	�����e���������������	�����������'������%����a��	
�������������	�nioejjj�jj���&����������'���%������#����#�	����io��̀	���
�
��	�������������������	����'��"�
�%��� !����������������ijpqfijpr�# ��e�����a��������pq��	����������'�
�
�������� d#�
��������%��� !���"������	
���%���	����	�����'�����	�������#���$����������	���������e��	���
�	�����������i��	�����������e�	��������������e�����
���'���	��������#����#�	�����������'����s���"�����a�����
�%�����	f����	��#����!�	�������t�����	
����	f����	��#���� ���	���d�����������	������
��������#��	��	e�d��������e��	
�t��������iu�()*+,*-./�0+1�2/.345��6+.7�-,*+8,./�9),*8)/�:8)9+44+4v�.44+*�w-4.::8):8-.*-),�� xA�BCD�S<JT�><>�=NJ�CE]D�HNM<F<DR�NI�HINFD>YIDR�LNI�E>K<=<RJDI<=?�<JR�MD?EM�M<E[<M<JT�IDRDI]DA��;<=><=?�xAl� BCD�S<JT�><>�=NJ�CE]D�E�HNM<FT�NI�HIEFJ<FD�NL�EFFIY<=?�E=�EFJYEM�IDRDI]D�E?E<=RJ�<JR�MD?EM�M<E[<M<JT��s���
�	������ d#$����'��"�������y��%���iue�ijije�#����#�	���������	���	
����"����
�������	��"���������e�����#����
�
�	�����	���	������������%�����������'���	
���
�	���������������
��������
�	������������e�����nojjejjj�������'������	��"������������
�	�����#���$��%���	��������������	�
��	���	��'��������e�"�������	������	��	���	���������a��	
��������������������������������'�����	��������%�����������	
e�����������
�%��� d#����%���������	�����&�����	f�	
f�	�"��������	�"����������
�����������	����'���������y��%���iue�ijije�#����#�	���������	�e���������	��"�����������������������������	��	����'���������
�������	��"����	��������������	����������'���	
�������"���	���������������%�����������'�������������	���	�
�"����	�����#���$��%���	������������_���
e�������"���	�����
�����'��"������m�
�%������#������
������	������#���$������e������	
�	�����������%��������%����������
��	������		������
����	
���	�	������������	��������&����
�%��z �s��̀	����
�����#���������
��a�����'����	�����#���� ���	��$����	����e�%����	��������e�%�����������������������	�������������'���
�%������#���$��{|�{~13 - 150



�������

��	
��������	���������������������������
������������
��������������������������� �!�"��#$%��&��'�����(����)���(���*(�)�$$�$+�)��,��)���,�����(�$�+��$$���-�$�**(�*(������+�,����)����$����-����,(�.!��/012013�456�� 788090:;�<=><=?=1@:@0A1?�@B:@�@B=�;0@03:@0A1�;0:C0;0@D�<=?=<E=�F:?�:1�:9@G:;�:99<G:;�8A<�:1@090>:@=2�;0:C0;0@D�=H>=1?=?�F=<=�C:?=2�A1�01:99G<:@=�?@:@=I=1@?�I:2=�CD�J0@D�K@@A<1=D�L03B?I0@B�:12�JAG190;I=IC=<�M:BIG2�F0@B�1A�01@=<1:;�<=E0=F�><A9=??�CD�@B=�/01:19=�N=>:<@I=1@O�/01:19=�JAII0@@==O�J0@D�M:1:3=<O�J0@D�JAG190;O�A<�@B=�J0@DP?�AG@?02=�:G20@�80<IO�<=?G;@013�01�@B=�80;013�A8�:�>A@=1@0:;;D�01:99G<:@=�6QRST6QRU�JK/V5�W������X���Y���Z[\�Z]Z]���
�����̂������\�_����W��������̀���	̂��������_�
����̂�̂ Y���a��̂ 
�������	������������������
�����	�����������������������Y��������	��b��c�	�����	��b�������	�����	���Y����������������������d���	�	\�����e]]f��������������������d���	�	�Y����������������g	����
���Y���c�
���Y����b�����Y������_���g	���	
�����������̂������
��������	�
		�����������������
�����		�������̀c�b��\��
���������	�̂ ����
�����̂������\Zh�����_���g	��
�	�����
�����������̂��i�ej�������c�	�������
�������
����������_���g	����������	�����������������d���	�	k�Zj���	���������_Wlm�Y���������
���������������������������n
���o]\�Z]ep\���b����������������_Wlm�c�	�Y�����!���q�(�!��������_����_�
����\�X���Y���Z[\�Z]Z]\�����b��c���������d�	����\��������\���������������������������
�	�����������������̂�����̂ �n
���o]\�Z]ep�����
����������b����r����̂ Y���o]\�Z]Z]�c�
���Y������		���������������������_Wlm����Y���������Z�k�����oj������
�����	g�	����	�
������������̂�����������������������������������������̂	������	������_����c�	�������������b�����Y������s�������_����W�������\�a	��t����	��̀���	̂���\��������������_�����
���\�̀���	̂���\�����u���������t��������	��������	�Y��_����W��������̀���	̂���������
�������������������������������������������������b��
	��������b���Y������_���g	���	
���������b����\������b����Y����������_����W���������������������X���Y���Z[\�Z]Z]���
�����̂�����������������v�������������Z]e�sZ]ep�_Wlm��	��
����������l�������w�o�Y���c���W	�	
��\�����b��	����������b��c��������_����W�������g	�̂�����������	\������	�	\���������
	���	�c�	�����
�����Y������̂�̂ Y������_����r����\�l�������_�̂ �̂		���\��������_����_�
����������������b������������b������_Wlm���t���_����_�
�����b�����xse���������b���������������Z]e�sZ]ep�_Wlm����X���Y���Z[\�Z]Z]������������� �!�"��#$%��&��'�����(����)���(���*(�)�$$�$+�)��,��)���,�����(�$�+��$$���-�$�**(�*(������+�,����)����$����-����,(�.!��/012013�45y�� zB=�J0@D�80;=2�:12�<=9=0E=2�@B=�6QRST6QRU�:G20@�<=>A<@�9A1@:01013�:�;=3:;�;0:C0;0@D�=?@0I:@=�F0@BAG@�:2={G:@=�2G=�20;03=19=5��|b������̂�	������̂	������	������_����������b�����Y������_���g	���	��������b�����\�����_�����	�	��������
����\�����Y���������
���	��������	����������
���������������������	��	�c�����	���	
����������������
���Y���������\������d��
�������\�����_���g	����
��������	���	�Y������	\�������
��������	��̂���������̂ �
��������	��b�����������������̂����Y������	����������������d������
��	��d����������	����
����������d���	��Y
�������}�����������d���������_����_�
���������������������Z]e�sZ]ep�_Wlm����X���Y���Z[\�Z]Z]\����	��
���Y�������\�����������̂ ���	����b�����������	�lẀ_���������
�����	�|d��Y���~�������	�������\�Y����_����	���������_�����
���\�̀���	̂���\�����u�������c����̂�����c���\�������	��w�̂����	��������������X���Y���Z[\�Z]Z]�_�
�����̂������\����������_��������Y�������������Y����	���	
��������̂ ����������������	�������������������������̂�������Y����b�����
������������������_�	��Z�j��X��a���Zh\�Z]Z]\�_����	���������̂ �����������	���������̂��������_����_�
����������������������
��	�c�
���Y�����
����������b��������������������������	�	\�	������\��u����������������_�
���������	
��\�����c����	�
		�WrW��������������b��c����	
Y	��
����_����_�
�����̂�������������	\����	�������c�	���b���Y��
����Y����������_����_�
�������lẀ_�����	����	���
�	���������������	�������̂ ��	��������������������������������
���������	��b�������	������_���g	����Y��������	������������
����������	��������_���g	�������������	����������������̂�������������
Y������lẀ_�����̂ �̂��	����������_���������̂������	��	��̂��������������Y��������	��������������������c�����Wr~\��	����
�����Y������������r��������
������\��������������
�����b��c�������
�	�̂ �������̂ �����	������	�	���������d�	����\��������\���������������������������
�	��������������������b������̂�s������\����������Y������_����W��������������b��c���Y������l�������������̂���\�l�������_�̂ �̂		���\�_����a������\���������_����_�
������������������
	�����������_����Y
��������_Wlm���������13 - 151



�������

� ���	
�������	�������������������	����������������������������������������������	�������
�	
��������������������	�������	��������	�����	�	�� ��������������!������"��#	��
�����	��	
��	���������	�$�	%�����������������&�������������	���������������	���������������	���������	���	�������
	�����	����	%������������$���������������	����� ����������������������	���������&��	������������	������������������	�����������	�������������	���������	�������������%��������%��������������������������	
�����
�����������
	�����	��������������������'($��'����)*"��+,-./-012�3.4�521678��9.1:�0/-.;/12�<,/-;,2�=;,<.77.7>�<,/?20<-�,?�0/-.;.7->�177.-�@071==;,=;01-0,/>�?0/1/<012�7-1-.@./-�?;1A4��BCDECDF�GHI�� JKL�MCNOPQ�RSNLDNCTUUO�CDTELVWTNL�EWL�ECUCFLDXL�SY�RSUCXCLQ�YLFTYECDF�UCNCFTNCSD�YCQZ�TQQLQQ[LDN�TDE�YCQZ�[TDTFL[LDN�ULE�NS�TRRYS\C[TNLUO�]̂__̀___�Sa�UCNCFTNCSD�TDE�QLNNUL[LDN�XSQNQ�bSYD�bO�NT\RTOLYQH��c��	���������d������	
�����������	��������������	�������������e��������f�����������"���g�����������������h,A-i+1714./1/����	�������������� ����	��j��%����������������	��k��
�������	����������������l�������m������������������
	��n�������"��o������������������������������	�����	$����������	%��
�	�������	��������	��p�������''�������p�������'�������'("���q�����������������������������������������������&��
��������������f�	����������������������������	�f����k
	��������	�f�������	��p�������'�����'(m�����������������������������&�����������������������"�q��p���������'(���������������������������e�����������	d��������nr�������	�����
	����%��	�����������������	��	
������	��������������������������	
�������������	������	������
�	������	%��
�	����������������	�f���������������&����������������"�o�����������������	���	��������������e����"�o��������������������������������������'("�q����	������'����������������������������������������	

����	�������������	���������g��	��s����������
	��n(�������	��	%���������%��	�����������������	���������������	
�������������	������	���������������������������	�������	�������������"��o��������������	

��������	����������������������"��t�������	���	����������������
����������������	

��������d�������������$g�������"��c�����	����������������������������������	���������	��������	�������������������������$�������d������	�������������������	�����������	���������������	������������o�����������������	������������
�����������������	��������
���������������������	d��������n�����������������	�����������������������	�������������	
���	�������	��������������������

������	������������������"����������������	��
	��������	�����������	������������������������������	
�f����%����u��

�vw�x�vw13 - 152



��������

��		
��������������������������������������������
�����
��������������
����������������������� ���!�������
�����������������"������������	�������
������#��!�����������"������������$�������������
���
�������������!����%�����������#������!����
���&���������!����'����	�	�
����!�������
���������(������
������	����������������������
������
���	�
���
�������'��
�����
)������������
������������
����������)���������������������������'�
*�����������#������
����#�
����������������'��
�����+,-./-012�3.4�521678�9.1:�0/-.;/12�<,/-;,2�=;,<.77.7>�<,/?20<-�,?�0/-.;.7->�177.-�@071==;,=;01-0,/��AB�CDE�FGHI�JEKLEMNEJ�GHN�OGPMPKGMQ�HLMPNRMLEPKI�SI�LEJTKGPU�HDE�JEHMGQ�MPJ�OLEVTEPKI�WO�GHN�OGPMPKGMQ�LERWLHGPU�HW�FWTPKGQB��� XGPJGPU�ABY�� CDE�FGHI�JGNKWPHGPTEJ�GHN�NEZG[MPPTMQ�LERWLH�WP�E\REPNEN�OWL�MHHWLPEIN]�KWPNTQHMPHN]�MPJ�QWSSIGNHNB��"���
���������������
��*���������	�����
�����
��
��������
�������
��	�#��������
����������������������
�������	�������	������
����������
��������
�������������������������##�����'���	
�)�����'��������
��������!���!�������$����������	
�)���������������������������������
��*���������	������#��������
�������	����������#�����
#�������
��������	�����	�
�����������̂���������������*������	���#�����
�����!���!����������
���������	��������������������������
�������
������������_��������
�#�������������
������������#������
��)�
������
���#��������!���!����������
����������$��������
�	�
��'�������
������	
�)�����'���	�
����
�����������������̂�"!�'����
����������������������������������
�	�
��'�����̂�#
��
��%��̀���������������������������������
�	�
�������#�����)���#���������)������̂������a�	�
������'�#������������������������������%�%���� ������)�������#����
���)�����+,-./-012�3.4�521678��9.1:�0/-.;/12�<,/-;,2�=;,<.77.7>�<,/?20<-�,?�0/-.;.7->�177.-�@071==;,=;01-0,/>�?0/1/<012�7-1-.@./-�?;1b4��XGPJGPU�ABc��� CDE�FGHI�LEJTKEJ�HDE�JEHMGQ�RLWdGJEJ�GP�GHN�eEUMQ�fGQQGPU�gGNKQWNTLEN�MZGJNH�LENGJEPH�KWPKELPN�LEUMLJGPU�KWPOQGKHN�WO�GPHELENH�LEUMLJGPU�HDE�FGHI�hHHWLPEIiN�EZRQWIZEPH�SI�FWQMPHTWPW]�jGUDNZGHD]�MPJ�kDMHQEI�������
�#��*���������ll����m������������)���#���������
��)���������!������������������������#���n���������	��������������������'�

����
�����
�	
��������������		
�)�����
�	�������#������!���!������'�
�������
o���#�������
�'�������������
������������	�����������
�m����
��������
�������
���������#�
n�(���p��
����'���������������	������#�������
��������������q����%�%��#��!�����������"������������$�������m�����
��'������	���������!���������
����!�������
����������	
�)��������
���������
)���n������	
���������������!���!��������
���������������'�

����
�����
����#���		
�)������r���#�
����%�%��(%�������������
����)��#����
���)�����
��s���������#��������������'�������������#������!���!��������
�������r���#�
��������������������������������������#�����	
������'�����������������	��������t��)������u���������vw�x�vy13 - 153



��������

����	
�������
���������
�����	��
�����������������
��
��	�
���������������
��������������
�������	�����
	��������
���
��
��������
��	����������	���������������������
�	���	
����	���
	����������	���������
�������
����
�����
���������	��������
����������	������
��������������		
����
�
���
�����	�	��	���
�
�������
�
��������
��
��	����������������
��	�
�����������������		��
������
�����������
������	�� !��
�
���
��"##�$����%������	�������
���&���������&������'���������������������������������
������������	(������
��
��	������
����
	�������������
���&������������������
����������������������
��	�
�������������������	���	��������
������
�����	���
	����
	����������������
����������
�"��)*+,-+./0�1,2�30/456��7,/8�.-+,9-/0�:*-+9*0�;9*:,55,5<�:*-=0.:+�*=�.-+,9,5+<�/55,+�>.5/;;9*;9./+.*-<�=.-/-:./0�5+/+,>,-+�=9/?2�� @ABCABD�EFG�� HI�JKL�MAJN�KOC�POABJOABLC�JKL�IQLRSLBTN�OBC�CLJOAU�VI�ULDOU�LWXLBYL�QLXVQJABDZ�JKL�CAYTUVYSQLY�[VSUC�KO\L�OULQJLC�JKL�XS]UAT�JV�UOQDL�IUSTJSOJAVBY�AB�ULDOU�LWXLBYLY�IQVP�NLOQ�JV�NLOQF��$��� ̂�_( ̂�̀��&ab��
�����
��������
�������
�����c������� d�� ̂ ̂���	�
�������������
��
�
�
�	���������
������	
������
�	��������������������	�	�����ef̂ �̂̂̂ "̂�c��g������ �� ̂ �����		������f������	����������� ̂�_( ̂�̀��&ab���	����	��������������
�������
�������h*?+i)/5/2,-/-���������#j�����������
��k	�����(�����	��� ̂ ̂( ̂ ���
���������
����������
�
���
�������������e�"�f��
��
������� ̂ ���������������
��	��	������	����� ̂ ̂"""!��$������
������	��l���	�����(���
���m����
��&		
	������
���g��������n��
���&�
������	�	���
��������e�"�f��
��
����
���	����	�����
������������
�����	�	���������	�
�������
����
�
���
����������	��������o�������	����p�"�q��	�� r!��a&������������	������
�����	����
����
���������
�������
�����������
���������
����������������������	�	�
	����
���������	��������������������
����
�������	���������
����
������
����
�����������������
�
���	��
(������������	���������	�	���������������	�����	�����	�����������
	�	"����)*+,-+./0�1,2�30/456��7,/8�.-+,9-/0�:*-+9*0�;9*:,55,5<�:*-=0.:+�*=�.-+,9,5+<�/55,+�>.5/;;9*;9./+.*-<�=.-/-:./0�5+/+,>,-+�=9/?2���HsF� tuMvwwuxyz{Hvx�tu|ztyHx|�z�@vtux}HM�z~yH{��m����	������
��
������	������������a&��������o�����������	
��	��	����������������
��������
�������
�
�
�	�i/2����������������
�����
��	����
�������
��
�
�������
�
�
�	���	��
����
����
	�������"��$���a&�����	������������������	�
��
����������	��������	
��	"��b�������
����	�������	o��������a&������
���	�
���������������������	���
	��������������
��
�����
��������
�������
�
�
�	�>/��������������"��m��
	�������
�
����������a&��������������������	��
	�		��������������
	������������������
��	���������������������������
������	���
��
	�	��
���������	
����
�"�������������
���������������������	���������������	�
����	
����������o�������	�����
��	����o������������	
��
�
������
����
�����	���		��
������
���	��������������������������
�������������	
����
���������������(���
����
������
�
��	�������
�����
���������	�����	��������������������
�������������
��������
	��
��"��$���a&���
�	��������������	������
�����o���������
�
��������
��	����
��������������������	���	
�
�������
�
�
�	�����������������������������������
	��
����������"��$�
	������	
�����	���	����
�����	��������������������		���
���������
���%����������a
����������
		
�������������
�������
���
�������
������
�����������������������������
��	�����
����
���������
	����������������
�	�������
�����������������a&��k	����o"���m�����������������
������	�������������������������������������
��	�����
����
������������ ������	��
��
	��������
����������a&���������������	
����
�����	
�����������o�
�������������	��
��
��	��
	�		���
����
	���������
	����������������������������		���"���m��
	��������������������������
���%������� �� b��
�����������������������	
	��������a
����������
		
��������
�������
��������
��������
��
�
������
�	�
��
����������
�����������
����������
������	
�
����
��
�������
������%������	�����"��&	��
	�		�����	�������
����
	���������������
	�
����
������
�
�	�������������	�����������������������������������������������������������������
�
�����������������a&��k	��
��
��	"������������	�������	
�
�������
���g�������
	�����������
���%������������������
����
���������������
�������
������
	���	���������������
�k	��
���������	����	����
	
������������
������������
������
�����	��
	��������"��&��m��������&�
������
��������������
��������������
���������	��
���������
�����
���������������
�������
�������������������13 - 154



��������

�	
���	
�	�����������������	������	
���	�	�����������	��������	������	������	���	��������	�������������
��������
��������������	
������
����������������������	����
����	�������������	���������������	�������������	���	����
��������
���������������������	����	������������	������������� �������������� �
�	���	��������	��!	���
����	
��	��

����	��� �������������������
�	��������
����������	
��������������"�	�����#���������
�	�$��%� &	���
��������������������������������������	�����������	�������
�������
��������'���������������	�����������	
�������������#���������
�	�(����	���
��������������)����	����������	����	����� �	�����*�������	��+��������	���������	���������������������	
�
������������
�����������������������������		��������	��	���������������� �
�������,�-���	�����������.����	������ �������	
�,��-���������	���� ����$�%� &���
������������
�������	�/���������	�����	�����������.����	�����������,�������
�������	�
�������	���������0	�������	
�����	
�
�������	��������������������	����	�������	�
���	������#�������������1������	��������	�-�����������
����	���	
��	������
��
������	�
���������	������	�������
���������	�������������2� �������1���������	�$�%� �������	��������������
��������������������	��	������
�	��������3.#4�������)����
���������	
�#�������������	���	
�������������� �������������������	��������!��	������������5����	�����	
�	�������������	�
���������	�������	
�	������������� �	������6�����
���������
�������������.����	����	
��� ����
����������	�	�����������	�����	�	������������	���������	�������	
�������������	�������������	�����	��	��	���������
��������.�/$��%� &	���������	�	�����������	�������������������	���������� �������������5��	������	��
�	���	�����
����������	������� �
�	������6�		������������	��5��	��������������������	����	�����	
���������$��	
�%� ��� �
����)����������
�������������	�	������������	������
����������������
���	
���	����	�����������	�	������������	��	
���������	���'�����	����������������������	���������#����(������������	�������	��	�������������	
�
������	�����������	��	��������
��	������.7�(�����!��	�������������	����������
�������
���� �$������� �������
�����	����	
��������	��������	���� �
�
����#�����
���	�������.7�(�����!$����	
����������������	�����	����	
�
��������	��������	������	������������	�	������������	��	
���������	��$��	
������������
����������������������������8���	������������� �����	�����
�������������������������	�����������������.7�(����	
�	����	
��������	
����	���������.7��
�
�	�����	��
�����	
�
�
�	����� ���������������������	�������
�������	���������������������	��������	���������
������
����������������������������������	��6���	�������������� ��������2� ���������������.7������ �����������������	�������������������������	�����	���	�������	�����������	���������	������	�����	�������
���	
����������	���������	���������	��������������	
�����������	���

����	����
����,�	��
�	��������	������
������
����
������	��
-�����	����� �	����������������������������
��������������������.7�(�����!������������
������������
���������������������������������	�����	������#������������������	�����	
����������
�	�����������������.7�(��
��������	�������
�	��������	�����������������*.���������������������
 ��������������������������	
�������	������
��������	
����
��������������
����9����1�:������������������	�������
�;#����������1�1<�+���	�������	
��	��������� �������������	
�0���������	�� �
��������
�	���,����������	�����������	�����������.7�-���=�
������	�������	
��	���������(��>����������		��,�����?@@��������@A4�
�4#��B>��	
�CDDEFGHHIIIJKLMDMNOJPLQHIRDPCSTUVWXYZ[\PP]-̂������� _̀abc�de�cfgb�hija�kaec�glcalcgdlikkm�nkilop����qr�s�tu13 - 155



��������

��	
���������������������������������������������������� !������������"����#$�%&#$�'���(���)*�+,�-�#./�#$#$/���0-�1*��2+)-�3�(456���((7�8��5(�(95�8���)2-*������� !�12-�1549�8�:��-�#$�%&#$�'�;�4�)-�4�(*�0�*2�*3���5(�(9���2++54452(�12-�-�65�;/�054974452(/��(0���-�92++�(0�*52(�*2��5*:��27(958<��=7-5(��5*4�5(5*5�8�-�65�;�21�*3��0-�1*�#$�%&#$�'�����/�*3��92++54452(�054926�-�0�0549-�)�(95�4�,�*;��(�*3��0-�1*�#$�%&#$�'�������(0�*3��#$�%&#$�'�,70��*��02)*�0�,:��5*:��27(958�2(�>7(��?/�#$�%<�@���3��92++54452(�17-*3�-�2,4�-6�0�0549-�)�(95�4�,�*;��(�*3��#$�%&#$�'�,70��*��02)*�0�,:��5*:��27(958��(0�*3��#$�%&#$�'�,70��*�0297+�(*�)24*�0�2(�*3���5*:A4�;�,45*�<�?���(�2*3�-�;2-04/�*3�-��;�-��*3-���0511�-�(*�#$�%&#$�'�,70��*�0297+�(*4/�*;2�21�;3593�;�-��0511�-�(*�1-2+�*3��,70��*�0297+�(*��9*7�88:��02)*�0�,:�*3���5*:��27(958�5(�#$�%<���3��92++54452(�92780�(2*�15(0��650�(9��*3�*�*3��93�(��4�3�0�,��(�0549824�0�*2�2-��))-26�0�,:�*3���5*:��27(958<���(�5*4�5(5*5�8�+��*5(��2(��9*2,�-���/�#$#$/�*3�������-�65�;�0/�0549744�0/��(0�)-2650�0�1��0,�9B�*2�4*�11�2(�*3��0-�1*�����/�2(�*3��6�-5�(9�4�50�(*515�0�,:�*3���5(�(9���2++54452(/��(0�2(�*3���06�-4��15(05(�4�+�0��,:�*3���5*:A4��705*2-�5(�92((�9*52(�;5*3�*3��0-�1*�#$�%&#$�'�����<���+2(��2*3�-4/�*3���705*2-A4�15(05(�4�5(9870�0C�� D� �2(&�2+)85�(9��;5*3�E70��*��2859:C��F358��-�65�;5(��*3��=�����#$�%G�'�����/�+�+,�-4�21�*3�������-��85H�0�*3�*�*3��#$�%G�'�E70��*�-�1�--�0�*2�5(�*3��=����������;�4�(2*�92(454*�(*�;5*3�*3��#$�%G�'�E70��*��))-26�0�,:�*3���5*:��27(958<���5+58�-�*2�*3��#$#$G#��E70��*�6�-5�(9�4�0�49-5,�0��84�;3�-��5(�*354�-�)2-*/�47,4�I7�(*�*2��))-26�8�21�*3��#$�%G�'�E70��*�,:�*3���5*:��27(958/��--2-4�;5*35(�*3��E70��*��))��-�*2�3�6��,��(�054926�-�0�,:�+�+,�-4�21�*3���5(�(9��=�)�-*+�(*��(0��92--�9*�0 �;5*327*��(:�(2*5159�*52(�*2/�-�65�;/�2-��))-26�8�,:�*3���5(�(9���2++54452(�2-��5*:��27(958<���4�(2*�0�,:�������(0�5(9870�0�5(�*3��#$�%G�'��������(���+�(*���**�-/�*354�;�4�5(�6528�*52(�21�4*�*�0��5*:��5(�(95�8��2859:<��D� �2(&�2+)85�(9��;5*3��5*:��7-93�45(���2859:C���5*:�)7-93�45(��)28595�4�5(9870��6�-5274�)-265452(4�27*85(5(���7*32-5*:�8�6�84�-�I75-�0�,:�*3��*2*�8�45H��21��J)�(05*7-�<���3�4��)28595�4�4*�*�/��+2(��2*3�-�*35(�4/�*3�*��(:�92(*-�9*/��+�(0+�(*/�2-�12882;&2(�92(*-�9*/�*3�*�-�478*4�5(���97+78�*56��)2445,8���J)�(05*7-��5(��J9�44�21�K#@/$$$<$$�-�I75-�4��))-26�8�,:�*3���5*:��27(958�L<���(9870�0�5(�*3��4�+)8��4�8�9*52(4�-�65�;�0�,:�������4�)�-*�21�*3��#$�%G�'�����/��))-2J5+�*�8:��5�3*��(���%!�92(*-�9*4�;�-��127(0�*2�,��5(�)2*�(*5�8�6528�*52(�21�*3���5*:A4�)7-93�45(��)28595�4/�5(98705(���*�8��4*�*;2�92(*-�9*4�*3�*/�2(�*3�5-�47-1�9�/�432780�3�6���2(��*2�*3���5*:��27(958�12-��))-26�8<��E2*3�;�-���J�97*�0�,:�*3�(&�9*5(���5*:���(���-�=�F281���(0�*3�(&�9*5(���5*:��**2-(�:��5�34+5*3��92(*-�9*�0�*3-27�3��28�(*72(2/��5�34+5*3/��(0�F3�*8�:!<�� D� E�(B���92(9585�*52(4��2*��-�)�-�0��5+�8:C������127(0�*3�*�,�(B�-�92(9585�*52(4�3�0�(2*�,��(�)-�)�-�0/�-�65�;�0�2-��))-26�0�5(���*5+�8:�+�((�-/�0�49-5,5(��*3��9�74���4C���3���5*:�050�(2*�3�6��92(*-284�5(�)8�9��*2��(47-��,�(B�-�92(9585�*52(4�;�-��)�-12-+�0�5(�*5+�8:�+�((�-�M5<�</�+2(*38:N< ���3���705*2-�92(450�-�0�*354�0�1595�(9:�*2�,�����+�*�-5�8�;��B(�44< �%��D� "��-&�(0��8245(���-29�44C������127(0�*3�*��+�(:��9927(*4�;�-��(2*�)-2)�-8:�-�65�;�0��(0G2-�-�92(958�0��*�:��-&�(0�5(�)-�)�-�*52(�12-�*3��M#$�%&#$�'N��705*< ���3���705*2-�0�49-5,�0�*3��9�74���4C���3���5*:�050�(2*�+�5(*�5(�*3���))-2)-5�*��4*�115(��8�6�84�*2��882;�12-�*3��)-2)�-�:��-&�(0�98245(��)-29�44< ���3���705*2-�92(450�-�0�*354�0�1595�(9:�*2�,����+�*�-5�8�;��B(�44<�� OP�Q�RO13 - 156



��������

�� 	

���������
��������������
�������������	��������������������
������������������������������������

���������
��������������
���������������� �������!�������������
�"#��$�����������
������������������
��
 ����������
�������
��
 "#%&��	���������������'(�)*'(�&�+	���,����������������������
��+�����������-
��!����./�'('(/�,����
���������������
����������0��������������������������������������������� �����������������
�����������������!���'�/�'('(/������������������!�
1���
���������������
����������������������	2+"��$���
��������������������
�����������������'(�)*'(�&�+	��"��$���'(�)*'(�&�+	���,�������������������+�� �+��
�����-
��!���'3/�'('("��$�������������������
����������0����������������
�������������! ��������
��+�����������������������,�! ��������
��+������������! ������	2+"��$���+�� �+��
����������*�������
�����������������'(�)*'(�&�+	��"�(��4������	2+5�����,/��������� �
���������������
�������������
���������������������������������������	2+�,���������
���������������������
�����������"��4�������������������������������������������������������������
�����������#�
�����! �����+�� 5���������/������*
�
������'(�)��������6���������������
�����������/����������! ��������*�
����+�� �������/�����
���������������������������������
������7&8���������7.8/�����������
���!���������
���������� �������
����"��90�
��!�������������
������������,������������
������������
 �������,�����,�������,���������������������������1�,�����/����������������������
������
����,�����
1��������0�����
���
����� ����������������������"��$�����
�������/�
���������! �����
1����
�������7�����������������������,��0������
������8/�������������� �������*���!�1���
�
���������**�! ������
������,�����7�'8�������**�,��
��������������������� ������� ���*���
���������
���/�,��
��������������������� ���
����
����������������
������������'(�)*'(�&�+	��"��$���+�� 5���������+�� ���������������������� �����
�����������!����'/�'('(/����������� ���!��:������������!�����/�'('(����
����	�����+���������������������
������������,��������+�� �+��
��"��$���+�� 5������������
������
�����������������
�������������������� ���������	������'('(/��������������-
��!���3/�'('(/�����������������������������������,��1�����������������������������	2+�,������
��"�����$���
���������
������������������	��������+�� �����������������������������
���������������
����������������������������������������
 ������������������������!�
1�������������
��+�����������������	2+/��������!�������������
��� ����'(�)*'(�&�+	������
��������"�����	;;<	=�+-���929;�4>9��4;	;+4	=��9�-�$�7�	+��#8��-���4�+	=�?9	��'(�&*'('(�����
�������������������������� ��������������	2+�����������
��+��������������������������������������
����� ����
������������	����+���������������
�����������7�	+��#8��������
��� ����'(�&*'('(/������
���������������1�������� ���*����������
������"��$���������������,�����������������������'(�&*'('(������/������	2+������,���+�� �+��
���������������������������'(�&*'('(����
��� ����7@�� ��/�'(�&/���������@���%(/�'('(8���������� �+�� �+��
����
���������������������
�������A�������������� �������!�����/���
������������6���
����
������
����
����������/�����
�������
����
��������"��$����	2+����!���������!����������������������/��������������/�������������������! ���������
��
����,�����������������
����������������'(�&*'('(�	+��"��	�������'(�&*'('(�	+���,����������������������
��+�����������@�� ���/�'('�/�����������+�� �+��
�����@�� �'�/�'('�"��B����!�����������������
�����������������������"���� CD�E�FF13 - 157



��������

����		
����
����������������������������������������� !� "#$�%�&��������������'(���!���#�)��#��!���!*�!+���"���$���*,,"##"*��*��-��$+�.������������!*�!+���"!&��*(�$"%�*���)�"%��/������0���+��$*,,"##"*��1*!���(���",*(#%&�!*���$*,,�����))�*1�%�* �!+������������'(���!������!+���*(�$"%�1*!���(���",*(#%&�!*���*)!�!+��'(���!0��2"!+�!+�����3����4������+�1"���'����$*,)%�!����&�������� (���'�%��$�#����� "#$�%�&�������3����4���1��(�������5)���"!(��#���)*�!���"��!+������������'(���!������!"���!*��$!(�%���(�"!����(,'��#0�����"!"*��%%&�� "#$�%�&�������4��������1��(�������5)���"!(��#������!"���!*�)����(�"!���$!(�%��(,'��#0���
����	����	�	���������������	������
������#�)��!�* �!+����6����1"������$*,,����!"*�#������,����!*��!�  �������"���()��!��� "���$"�%�)*%"$"�#�"������������'(���!�"�$%(�"��7�,"��&����'(���!�()��!���8(��!��%&���)*�!#����������9��"#:�,�����,��!��$$*(�!"���;��1��(�#������5)���"!(��#������*���$$*(�!��� *��!+�*(�+�"�#(���$��"�!����%�#��1"$�� (����"�#!����* �!+�*(�+�������%� (���1"��!���# ��<0���+����6���%#*��"#$(##���)(�$+�#"���)*%"$"�#��!+��%�$:�* ���$(����!�)*%"$"�#�����)�*$��(��#�,��(�%����1"������5"#!"����"!&�)*%"$"�#��#�)�*1"����'&�#!�  �������%#*���1"�����*!+���!+��)*%"$"�#�* �*!+���=$�#��#!(�&>�$"!"�#��"!+�!+���"!&�* ���1"���)�*1"�"�����,*��%��#�!*�'�#!�)��$!"$�#0���+���"!&�+�#�#"�$����!�"������$*�#(%!��!�!*���� !����()��!���)*%"$"�#�����)�*$��(��#�,��(�%�!�"%*����!*�!+���"!&�* ��*(!+���#������'�#���*��!+��)�"*��,��!"*������$*,,����!"*�#�������1"��#0����� �

?@�A�BC13 - 158



��������

�	
��������������������������������� ��!�"��#"��$�%���&'$�&(&(�)*+'�,%����-.�/0�������!123��4#"�5123�6#1�.0/�#�"�����7�189:�;�����,��8�#�4<���8�#6#1�.0/�#�"�����7�189�=>��?������@���#�4.A���#6#1�.0/�#�"�����7�189��BCD�> ��EF*�����2�-��8���#�,��1��.���G�� H�>���I��0����J1.��11"���5#�0���K7�!��5�22����"�����L�M(;�.1���.�.0�1��0�.0������7�NOPQ���R/��#�#�����2�##�.0���L&(;�.1�"�.�7�,�"�.0��,-��.0�����A��#����.��#��1.�������.��"$�%�<��"1�#�S.�A�2��8���.�5�22�A���//�18�"7��!�����"�.1��1�.1�N1����2�31��#���$�����5��"�#��##�,-,�7�� �������;�����,��8�#�4<���8�#6#1�.0/�#�"�����7�189���� ��!�"��#"��$�%���&'$�&(&($�)*���,%����?������@���#:�����������������BCD�> ������2�-��8���#�,��1��.����I��,22$�����!�����"�.1��1�.1��1����2�.1���T��#.����������#��31��2���2�#��8���#�13��A1�.�L&(($(((�31��.0��������"���13�.0������7�Q.��#��2���"��18���A��&�$�(((�#1�5��5�22����"�.1��1�.1��1����2�.0�#����.���7�������.S#�.�2<��1��7�����;��������UVWXY�Z[\]̂_̀�â b̂ Ẁc�dWY�e_̂f�gWh\_�ecij_\kY�lmY�l[bn�Ẑ f̂o_X_fk�p̂ k_Y�q_rf_br̂hs�tWu_Xi_V�vs�wxwx�yYz{Y|y�}Z��q[k]�V_b~_\k�kW�_�\_bb�\Wu_V̂o_s�̂��[f̂ �̀\Wu_V̂o_�r_k_VX[f̂k[Wf�[b�X̂ r_�̂k�k]_�\Wf\̀cb[Wf�W��̂�\̀̂ [X�̂fr�[��r__X_r�fWk�\Wu_V_rs�V_̀̂ k_r�r_�_fb_�\Wbkb�̂V_�̂̀bW�fWk�\Wu_V_r���W�_u_Vs�}l�eZ�bk̂��s�Wf�i_]̂ �̀�W��k]_�à [̂Xb�l_u[_��aWXX[kk__�[bbc_b�̂�\Wu_V̂o_�̂̀_Vk�̀_kk_V�_̂V̀h�Wf�̂b�̂�\WcVk_bh�kW�X_Xi_Vb�kW�~VWu[r_�~V_̀[X[f̂Vh�fWk[\_�W��~Wk_fk[̂̀ h̀�cf\Wu_V_r�_�~WbcV_���d]_��[̂i[̀[k[_b�à [̂Xb�e~_\[̂̀[bk�̂fr�bk̂����VWX�}l�eZ�X̂ n_�k]_�r_k_VX[f̂k[Wf���W�_u_Vs�k]_h�rW�̂̀ Ẁ��\WXXcf[\̂k[Wf��VWX�̂�X_Xi_V�kW�X̂ n_�̂f�̂VocX_fk��WV�\Wu_V̂o_����̂X�̂�̂ V_�W��Wf̀h�Wf_�\̂b_��eX[k]�\̂b_���]_V_��_��_V_�fWk[�[_r�k]̂k��_�X̂ h�]̂u_�\Wu_V̂o_�[bbc_b���W�_u_Vs�k]_�a[kh�b�̂kkWVf_h��g_ff[�}̂f\̂n_��Wf�k]̂k�\̂b_�~VWu[r_r�̂�r_k̂[̀_r�V_b~Wfb_�kW�k]_[V�[f[k[̂̀�\Wu_V̂o_�̀_kk_V�k]̂k�b__X_r�kW�V_bWf̂k_��[k]�k]_�}l�eZ�bk̂�������UVWXY�e_̂f�gWh\_��bjWh\_�bWck]~̂b̂r_f̂\̂�oWu��e_fkY�q_rf_br̂hs�tWu_Xi_V�vs�wxwx�yYv��}Z�dWY�Z[\]̂_̀�â b̂ Ẁc��X\̂b̂ Ẁc�bWck]~̂b̂r_f̂\̂�oWu���������13 - 159



��������

�	
������������������������������ �!"#$%#&�&�'�((%��)�*#"')�+,�-.� �/"((��0(#"((�1("2,.-%(%&� %3%4�"56�7%,�)�8"5�'9�#�:;�<=<=�%,�>)>?)<=�@A�@+B�B")�+�% �C"D3��0(E"D3�1("2,.-%(%&� %3%4�"56�+29E�3,)�/�)�/�(F�A% %��'� ,��+"�,.��,$"�!"GG"$�2-�H2�(,�" (�$"2G&�9�)�� I� J.� �&"�$��(29'�,�!"#�#��'92#(�'� ,�!"#��K-� (�(�� ��K3�((�"!�LM==NO�P,�,.��,�'��"!�� 5"�3�;�-%D'� ,;�"#�!� %G�E2&��'� ,O�I� QB.��R�%9�G�,D�-#"�#%'�$"#F(�" �%�#��'92#(�'� ,�9%(�(;�,.�#�!"#�;�,.��S�,D�$�GG�9��#��'92#(�&�!"#�%'"2 ,(�(-� ,�%9"5��,.��+T/�%((2'� ��,.��G"((��(�%�3"5�#�&�2 &�#�,.��9DG%$(4�Q�J."��(�G""F� ��%,�$.%,(�3"5�#�&�2 &�#�,.��9DG%$(�% &�.%(�,.��� (2#% 3��3%##��#�%3F "$G�&��&�,.%,�%GG�"!�,.��" �"� ��G�,��%,�" (�%#��3"5�#�&O���UV��������WVX��������Y	����XZ�[V\��
�U�]Z�̂_̂_�̀�]]�a��YV�����bc����V�����	
������d�������������������+,�5�;��+���A�F�e(��K-G% %,�" �9�G"$4��+�% ���*#"')�A�3.%�G�S%(%G"2�+� ,)�B2�(&%D;�8"5�'9�#�>;�<=<=�M)<:�@A�B")�+�% �C"D3��0(E"D3�1("2,.-%(%&� %3%4�"56�+29E�3,)�/�(F�A% %��'� ,��fghi�jklkmnonlp�qrnsrgnt�B.��S�,D��(��K-"(�&�,"�5%#�"2(�#�(F(�"!�G"((�#�G%,�&�,"�,"#,(u�,.�!,�"!;�&%'%���,"�% &�&�(,#23,�" �"!�%((�,(;��##"#�% &�"'�((�" (u�� E2#��(�,"��'-G"D��(�% &� %,2#%G�&�(%(,�#(4�B.��S�,D�2,�G�v�(�%�3"'9� %,�" �"!�(�G!w� (2#% 3�;�C"� ,�@"$�#(�P2,."#�,D�-%#,�3�-%,�" �% &��K3�((�� (2#% 3��,"�%&&#�((�,.�(��3" 3�# (4�B.��S�,De(�-#�'%#D�3"5�#%���-#"5�&�#��(�@29G�3�/�(F�T  "5%,�" ;�+"G2,�" (�% &�A% %��'� ,�x@/T+A�!"#'�#GD�S+PSy4�B.��-2#-"(��"!�,.�(�"#�% �v%,�" ��(�,"�-#"5�&��%�!"#'�"!�G�%9�G�,D;�$"#F�#(�3"'-� (%,�" �% &�-#"-�#,D�3"5�#%���$.�#�9D�#�(F(�%#��,#% (!�##�&�,"�,.��C@P�,"�!2 &�%--#"-#�%,�GD�!"#��,(�'�'9�#�%�� 3��(4�z� �#%G�G�%9�G�,D;�J"#F�#(�S"'-� (%,�" �% &�@#"-�#,D�G"((�(�%#��-""G�&�%'" ��,.��'�'9�#�3�,��(�%,�3�#,%� �G�5�G(;�% &�3"5�#%����(�E"� ,GD�-2#3.%(�&�� ��K3�((�G%D�#(4�B.��S�,D�-%D(�% �%  2%G�&�-"(�,�9%(�&�" �%�3%G32G%,�" �"!�-#�"#�3G%�'(��K-�#�� 3��% &�-%D#"GG�x"#�B",%G�T (2#�&�{%G2�(�!"#�@#"-�#,D�3"5�#%��y4�*"#�R�%9�G�,D;�,.��S�,D�.%(�%�(�G!w� (2#�&�#�,� ,�" �"!�LM==;===;�G"((�(��K3��&� ��,.��(�G!w#�,� ,�" �G�'�,�2-�,"�L|�'�GG�" �-�#�3G%�'�%#��#�3"5�#�&�!#"'�&�-"(�,(�-%�&�9D�'�'9�#�3�,��(4�T &�5�&2%G�3G%�'(�� ��K3�((�"!�L|�'�GG�" �2-�,"�%�'%K�'2'�"!�L|=�'�GG�" �%#��3"5�#�&�9D�-#�5%,��� (2#% 3��3%##��#(4�B.��R�%9�G�,D�-#"�#%'�$"#F(�" �%�#��'92#(�'� ,�9%(�(;�,.�#�!"#�;�,.��S�,D�$�GG�9��#��'92#(�&�!"#�%'"2 ,(�(-� ,�%9"5��,.��+T/�%((2'� ��,.��G"((��(�%�3"5�#�&�2 &�#�,.��9DG%$(4�*"#�J"#F�#(�S"'-� (%,�" ;�,.��S�,D�.%(�%�(�G!w� (2#�&�#�,� ,�" �"!�LM<|;===;�G"((�(��K3��&� ��,.��(�G!w#�,� ,�" �G�'�,�2-�,"�L|�'�GG�" �-�#�3G%�'�%#��#�3"5�#�&�!#"'�&�-"(�,(�-%�&�9D�'�'9�#�3�,��(4�T &�5�&2%G�3G%�'(�� ��K3�((�"!�L|�'�GG�" �%#��3"5�#�&�9D�-#�5%,��� (2#% 3��3%##��#(�$."�-#"5�&��}+,%,2,"#De�3"5�#%��4���� �
~������13 - 160



��������

�	
�������

�
�13 - 161



��������

��	
	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ��!�����������""��������������� ����������#���������""������$������������������������������������%&�������������������'������������������(��)����*��+,+,��"������$��+�-�������������������� ���������������� ��������������������������������"��������������������!������������������������������������������������#���������""������������ �������������"���������"���������"�����������������������"����������������������������������$��.�������������������������������������+,�/&+,�������������������"���������&����������������"�������������+,�%&+,�/��������������������������������&����������������"��������� ��������� ��������������������$��0123�234�56789567:�;<=>�?4@AB4?C�DEF?�GA@AFH4I�1F�234�JK1L1FA@�?KAD2�565695657�GE?L42�MK4I4F24?�2J�234�=1FAFH4�;JNN1II1JF�HJE@?�FJ2�3AO4�G44F�214?�2J�AH2EA@C�AE?124?�FENG4KI�1F�234�D1KI2�1FI2AFH4P��QF�@1L32�JD�231IC�234�31I2JKB�JD�N1IAMM@1HA21JF�JD�AE?12�1FDJKNA21JF�2J�MK1JK�A?JM24?�GE?L42IC�AF?�234�IEGI2AF21A@�H3AFL4I�NA?4�2J�234�DEF?�GA@AFH4I�1F�234�?KAD2�GE?L42�MK4I4F24?�2J�234�HJNN1II1JFC�234�DEF?�GA@AFH4I�1F�234�?KAD2�GE?L42�MK4I4F24?�2J�;12B�;JEFH1@�@AHR4?�K4@1AG1@12BP��*�����S*$T�"�������U���������V���������������.���������W�-��������������������������)����+X��+,+,��������������"������������������������������������Y�������� ����������������S*$X*+�"����������"�����������U���&�� ��V�+,+,&+,+��Z�������#������ ������[�������������������� �����U����&�� ��V��� ������[�����������\���&���������&�� �������������Y�����������.�����!����S*,$/�*�"�����������S+%$X]��"��������������� ������������������������������%&+X��������)����*��+,+,���������������������"����������'��̂$��_������������������&�� ������������������������������������ ������� �������+,��&+,+,�����$������+,��&+,+,��������\����� ���!������������������������ �����"�������������̀�����+,+,̂����������Z�������#������ ������[��������������S+/$],��"������$��a����������������������� �����U���������V��������������������������������������.��������������������������������)����*��+,+,�����������'���!�������S*$T�"�������������������S�$�X,�"�������\����+,��&+,+,������������ ���������S+/$]�"��������������������&�� ����������������������S+%$T�"������̂$����b�!� ��������������������������������)����*��+,+,� ������������������������������������������S/�%����������������������������������[��� ���������"��������������������� ������������#���������""�������������������������������\S�X$/+T�"������� ��S�T$%++�"��������������� ���̂$��-�������������������[��� ����������������������!����������������� �������������������#���������""������������������� �����U���������V���� ����������������&�� ����������!������� ���������������������S+X*��������������������������"�������������+,��c+,��������������������d������]$�e��������S*$T�"���������������������������W�-���������a�� ����������)����+X��+,+,��������������"������$��_�����������������������������!���������+,+,&+,+����������������"�����������������������f�������#���������]��+,++�������.�������� ����������������������!������̀��&g���������������� ��!���������+,+�&+,++������������$�W������������� ��!��.��������������������������������!�������������������"�������Z�������#������ ������������������������"�����S�]$X�"����������"������������[���d��������S�$]�"�������b_Zbhi����������+,+,&+,+���������������������W�-����ca�� ���\�������������������������������jKJM4K2B�kAl�����mJ2JK�n431H@4I�1F9o14E���������"����������������������������!��������������������������������������)����*��+,+,���������������������!��������������������������������"�̂$��X�����.����������������������,p,XpXT��������)����+X��+,+,� ���������������� �������������������(��!��������T��������"�"����.��������(����""�������������������[�"�������p,XpX���������)����+X��+,+,� ���������������� �������������������(��!��������]��������"�"����q���������(����""��������������������������[�"�������p+*p,,��������)����+X��+,+,� ���������������� �������������������(��!���������

��������������������������������������������������������

rs�t�us13 - 162



��������

�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	���
��������������������������������������
�������������� ��!��"#�������
����������$�����%���  ������� ��������
��&���'�#��%��������(��)�����*+�����+��������+��� �%��
�,--����%
��� ����.���-��#����&%����#����� ��������'#�� ����������������%�
��� ����������/�����#������-.��0�%��
�,--����%
��� ����.���-��#�������������������������������1��� ��%#�����������������-��2�	��''(��#�
�#���� ��  ������� ���������
#������ �����%������������������������%�����
���'�/�#&�'�#��%��345�+��� ��

#�1� �$�������%�������������+��������'��� ����
���������'��%��	�
�����#��0+������	
�����������������!�������4��� ������� �%�#�,�%��
�,--///.����%
��� �����.��1-%���-�%�/
����%�  �������-�*�2�-6���66*2062�$�������� �%�#�,�%��
�,--///.����%
��� �����.��1-%���-�%�/
����%�  �������-�*���-6���62���0*������������7%����%��345���#����������� � ��/��8�9������#��'#����%��3�����������������+������'��%���������#��#������ �'#����%��345��
#��#�����%��'����1�#������'��%���#�
�#�.�����"%��:�����#��6+������1������� ������� ������#�� ��������#�����%���#�
�#�.�����7%���%� �
#�1�����������&��/����������
#�%����1��4�����3��������;�
�#��8�43;9�/����%���� ������������� ����4��������
#�%����1��3��������;�
�#��84�3;9�����%��
�,--///.��1����
� ��.���-��#��-'-'�#�������� ��.��
���*�4��#�����)��#����'�<��������� ��������=�3��#�%�>��#��#����0+��������+�?����#��+������6�8%��
�,--'���.�#��.� .��1-'���@�-�)��$�$62.
 '9���$�4��#�����)��#����'�<��������� ��������=�3��#�%�>��#��#����0+��������+�?����#��+������$�8%��
�,--'���.�#��.� .��1-'���@�-�)��$�$62.
 '9���6�%��
�,--///.��1����
� ��.���-��#��-'-'�#�������� ��.��
�������������������������1� ���'�#�?�1����#��+����0�8�������������
���,$�,$29,��%��
,--///.�
���#����#���.���-��#������-����%A
��� ���-���0A��A��.�'�����0�	��������B����;�
�#�+� ��� �4�������6+����0+�����@��.�	����#�+�
.�0�8%��
�,--///.����%
��� �����.��1-%���-�%�/
����%�  �������-����*-6���0�66$2�$0�����9���2�"%�����������#�
�#���������'��� �����%��3���������
�#�����(��/�������%�#�,��%��
�,--///.����%
��� �����.��1-��1�#�����- �
�#������-'������� �
�#������#����#��������%��
�,--����%
��� ����.���-'�#��#��������#&�'����#�����������������������1�#��
���������������#�-C,D,��@�EF��#��G��;����G��G���G��'�#��#G�����+�G������ �G���1�#G����������G���������.�����"%��4
#���0+����0�	��''�#�
�#�������/��%��%���������������#������ �
#�
�����������'��� �%�#�,�%��
�,--�
����1.����%
��� �����.��1-7��F��&-������/.��
@H� E26�*�I���#�%� E��2 2����2��$�*$����6����'$ 2�*0 � 6I �� E��������
�������%����#����'�#�B#������ ���7�'���������'��� ����F��&� J��%�#��%��
�,--///.��&� ��.���-��-�� #�/��#�������26�$�-��� �%�#���%��
�,--///.��&� ��.���-��-���
%����� �/�'��26*�0�6�-+�#��
����1�������%��
�,--///.
��� ������#��/�.���-���$-��-��-�/��
��� ���� �
�#������%�� ��'�#� ���� �6*����������������1����������-���*�%��
�,--����%
��� ����.���-'�#��#��������#&�'����#�����������������������1�#��
���������������#�-C,D,��@�EF��#��G��;����G��G���G��'�#��#G�����+�G������ �G���1�#G����������G���������.���$�	���%����� ����������� ��4#�����KJ���#�%�����+�	�����������.22��2���#�%�������������8��98�9,��%��
�,--///.�� �
����%���.���-�4-	���%���� ���-CL-	���%���� �����.%��C�.22��2���� MN�O�PQ13 - 163



��������

��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	
��������������������������������	������������
��������������������������������������������
���� �������!�"��� ������������������������������������������������������������������������#�������������������������������������$�����������
����$���%�&������&�$��������'�������$����(���������&��
����(�����������������
����$���$�����������������
���)�������������������'���
���������������(����������$���)��)���#������
�����������������
������������
������(������
������������������$���%�������$#���
�����#�&��������*��������������%���������)���#������
���������������&����$����������$#��
�����#���������+���,���&&��������������������������������
�����#-��������������������������$�����������&�.!/�!/������!.0!11��������&��!1��,�����!/�!�/�����
��2���$��������.�.����#���������&�����������������$�������
�����#-��)�$��������3�4�����5*�6������������������������������������$�������������������)��
���������������������������7����1.���.���)�������������$������)�������������������������������������������������������
�����#�$��������
�������������������$���������
���������������$��(��������7����1.���.���)�����$������)����������������������������������$��(������������������������
����!88����
������������&8����������������#�������������
�����)����8��1.�
����!88)))��������������8��������8�������������
�����1�������������$������������������$#�9�����6���&����6��:&�����������1������
��;��&$����,����������#���������*���������:��!��
����!88�����������
�������������8<�$=��:8.8���8��.8���������%���1������������$������������������$#�������������>��
�&��
�����<
����#����������.�������
��2���$�������.������#���������*���������:��!��
����!88)))�����
�������������8
�&�8�
�)��$���
������&���8�,���8�1,�3�.00/��1,....���$������������������$#��
����&�����&���������,��1�����
��*�������3���.������#���������*���������:��!��
����!88)))�����
�������������8�����&���8���#���������&�������8�.�����������&����������11������������$������&&����������������
������������$����������������*?����
���!�
����!88)))�����
�������������8
�&�8�
�)��$���
������&���8��3/08�1,�0�.�/,,.,,....@�����������*?��1�����*?����
���!�
����!88)))�����
�������������8
�&�8�
�)��$���
������&���8���/�8�1,����1�.,00,....@������������10�
����!88����
������������&8/��&�����������
�������������#�$�����������$#���������������������)��������8A!B!��%�C	
�D�.��)�D�.��&��D�.��D�.�
���������D�.
��
��D�.�
��D�.������D�.�.�.�E��%�C'��������D�.����D�.���������D�.���
D�.�����)D�.�������D�.��������D�.$����D�.�����������1/�	
���.�3��.���$��������������$#����#���������)�����$�����"?F*G	+��������������������������#�&������-��$������&���������
�����#-��������������������������������#�����.�3��.�����������%������������&&��#�$#����������������������:��������
���������-��7��������.�3��&��������$������������������/������'���
�����$���������
������
���
���$�������������������)���&��������
��G���������&&��������������#������.�3��&���������
���)�����"���������������+�����������&�������������&&���������)���&��������
�����#���������$#��
����&&�������������������������������
���������.�3��.���$��������1��*��
���
��
���������#�����.�3��.���$����������&���������������
�����#-��)�$����������������������#�&������-��$������&����������������&�������������������������������������#�����.�3��.�����
�������&��
���&����#�$����������������������&��
�����������.�,��.�3�$������)��
�����
���������������������������
����&����&&��#��
�������������
�������&��
���������������#������1,�����
�������������#������*�������H'�����
���������$��������������������
�������#���&���� �� !��
����!88)))�������$���
������&8�*8����
��������8AI8����
��������.��
�&�A����������13�"���������)��:����+���������������"�����������#���������&$�������������������������������������������������
��
����
����������������$��������$����#��
�����&��������&�������&��������
�������#-�����������������&�����)��������$���������������������������������������������&��#�$�����+��1��"���������������������#+���������������"�����������#���������&$����������������������������������������������
������������������
�����&��������)��:������#����&�������������
����&���������������$#��
�����
������)��
�����������+��0.�	
����������������������
�����������������������
���.�3��.����*GF�
���$�����������������&���������������)
��������
������������0��
����!88�������)���������&8�����������������:����������������������&����#�����8�JK�L�MN13 - 164



City Council 
Agenda Report 

DATE: February 15, 2023 

ITEM NO. 

FROM: Armine Chaparyan, City Manager -r/3 �C'f:>,- A C.. 

PREPARED BY: John Downs, Interim Finance Director 
Hsiulee Tran, Deputy Finance Director/Controller 
Albert Trinh, Finance Manager 

--

SUBJECT: Presentation of the City's Investment by Morgan Stanley and 
Western Asset Management 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the City Council receive and file the presentation of the City's 
Investment by Morgan Stanley and Western Asset Management. 

Background 
Morgan Stanley and Western Asset Management provide the City the service to make 
trades in securities within the City's Investment Policy. 

Analysis 
Morgan Stanley and Western Asset Management have a deep understanding of the 
current financial market. Their decision on trading securities for the security complies to 
the City's Investment Policy in which they consider the three fundamental aspects: 
Safety, Liquidity, and Yield, in their respective order. 

Key Performance Indicators and Strategic Plan 
This item is in line with the Finance Department's Key Performance Indicator. The 
relationship with Morgan Stanley and Western Asset Management allows staff to 
properly prepare the City's Monthly Investment Report. 

Fiscal Impact 
The investment management services provided by Morgan Stanley and Western Asset 
Management are budgeted for in 101-3010-3041-8170-000 for $28,000. 

Commission Review and Recommendation 
The Finance Commission received and file the presentation on November 30, 2022. 

14

14 - 1



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

14 - 2


	00. Closed Session Agenda - 02-15-2023
	00. Open Session Agenda - 02-15-2023
	05. Approval of Prepaid Warrants in the Amount of $12,534.42
	06. Monthly Investment Report for December 2022
	07. Approval of a Purchase Order to D&R Office Works, Inc.
	08. Adoption of a Resolution Adopting an Updated City of South Pasadena Emergency Operations Plan and Annexes
	09. Public Hearing to Receive Objections or Protests to the Vegetation Management Program Regarding the Abatement of Weeds
	10. Presentation of the Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Actuarial Study by Foster & Foster
	11. Presentation of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022
	12. SB 361 - Remote Teleconferencing Meeting - Legislative Bodies
	13. Finance Department Current Status Update and Organizational Assessment
	14. Presentation of the City's Investment by Morgan Stanley and Western Asset Management



